
September 11, 2023 – Regular Meeting Agenda – 7:00 p.m. 
 
Printed on Recycled Paper         See Reverse 

 

47+---  

 September 11, 2023 – City Council Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

City Council Chamber 
390 Towne Centre Drive 

Lathrop, California 
(209) 941-7200 

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us 
 

City Council 
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor 

Paul Akinjo, Vice Mayor 

Minnie Diallo 

Diane Lazard 

Jennifer Torres-O’Callaghan 
 

City Staff 
Stephen Salvatore, City Manager 

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney 

Michael King, Assistant City Manager  

Thomas Hedegard, Deputy City Manager 

Teresa Vargas, Government Services 
Director / City Clerk 

Brad Taylor, City Engineer 

Tony Fernandes, Information Systems Director  

Cari James, Finance Director  

Juliana Burns, Human Resources Director  

Rick Caguiat, Community Development 
Director 

Todd Sebastian, Parks, Recreation and 
Maintenance Services Director 

Raymond Bechler, Chief of Police  
 

 

General Order of Business 
1. Preliminary 

• Call to Order 
• Closed Session  
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Announcements by Mayor/City Mgr. 
• Informational Items 
• Declaration of Conflict of Interest 

2. Presentations 
3. Citizen’s Forum 
4. Consent Calendar 
5. Scheduled Items 

• Public Hearings 
• Appeals 
• Referrals and Reports from 

Commissions and Committees 
• All Other Staff Reports and/or Action 

Items 
• Study Sessions 

6. Council Communications 
7. Adjournment 

 
Order of Discussion  
Generally, the order of discussion after introduction 
of an item by the Mayor will include comments and 
information by staff followed by City Council 
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their 
authorized representative, or interested residents, 
may then speak on the item; each speaker may only 
speak once to each item. At the close of public 
discussion, the item will be considered by the City 
Council and action taken. 
 
Consent Calendar 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered 
routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or 
interested resident so requests, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
considered separately.  

 

1

http://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/


 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS MEETING 
 

This public meeting will be conducted in person; all members of the City Council will attend 
in person. Members of the public are welcomed in person. This meeting will also be available 
for public participation by teleconference via ZoomGov at the following link: 
 

https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1600527364?pwd=QWxVUU9MMW1Q
MEU4aVhIOEdxTlcyQT09 
 

 During the meeting, those joining by ZoomGov, will be allowed to speak prior to the 
close of public comment on an item. If you are using this method, please “raise the 
hand” feature to inform the City Clerk (meeting host) you wish to speak on the matter. 
Please ensure your computer speaker and microphone are fully functional.  
 

 For audio / calling in only, dial: +1 (669) 254-5252 or +1 (669) 216-1590   
o To request to speak (same as the “raise hand” feature) press *9 / When the 

City Clerk calls your name, press *6 to unmute. 
 

 Meeting Webinar ID: 160 052 7364 / Passcode: 118180 
 

 If you are not able to attend the meeting in person or virtually - Public 
comment/questions will be accepted by email to City Clerk Teresa Vargas at 
website_cco@ci.lathrop.ca.us  or by calling (209) 941-7230  
 

 Questions or comments must be submitted by 4:00 p.m., on the day of the meeting. 
 

 To address City Council in person, please submit a purple card to the City Clerk 
indicating name, address, and number of the item upon which a person wishes to 
speak.  

 
Council Meetings are live-streamed (with Closed Captioning) on Comcast Cable Channel 97, 
and on the City Council Webpage: https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-stream 
 
Addressing the Council 

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving 
recognition by the Mayor. Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the 
meeting. To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name, 
address and number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the 
City Council, please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name 
and address. In order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will 
be set by the Mayor for each speaker (see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of 
time, each speaker may only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your 
comments to new material; do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the 
nature of a proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
  

2

https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1600527364?pwd=QWxVUU9MMW1QMEU4aVhIOEdxTlcyQT09
https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1600527364?pwd=QWxVUU9MMW1QMEU4aVhIOEdxTlcyQT09
mailto:website_cco@ci.lathrop.ca.us
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-stream


 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 

Citizen’s Forum 

Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, may do so 
under the Citizen’s Forum section. Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk 
prior to the commencement of Citizen’s Forum, or submit your request to speak via the “raise 
hand” feature in ZoomGov. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or have expressed 
an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen’s Forum will be called upon to speak. 
Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any 
immediate action on an item, which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets 
stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the length of your presentation (see 
instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only speak once on this agenda item. 
Please note, the Council Chamber has limited occupancy due to social distancing.  
 
To leave a voice message for all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial (209) 941-7230. To 
send an e-mail for Councilmembers simultaneously email: citycouncil@ci.lathrop.ca.us. This 
City Council Agenda and meeting materials can be accessed by computer or any smart device 
at: https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/meetings  
 
General Information 

For reports citing supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items, these are 
available for review in the City Clerk’s Office. This agenda was posted at the following 
locations:  City Hall, Community Center, Generations Center, Senior Center, and the Lathrop-
Manteca Fire District “J" Street and Somerston Parkway Offices. The meetings of the Lathrop 
City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97 and live streamed 
on the City’s website. 
 
Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/or 
accommodations to this meeting. [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II] Interested persons 
must request the accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by 
contacting the City Clerk at (209) 941-7230. Information about the City or items scheduled 
on the Agenda may be referred to: 
 

Teresa Vargas, MMC 
Government Services Director / City Clerk  

390 Towne Centre Drive 
Lathrop, CA 95330 

Telephone: (209) 941-7230 
 

  

3

mailto:citycouncil@ci.lathrop.ca.us.
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/meetings


 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 

CITY OF LATHROP 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 11, 2023  
7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL 
390 Towne Centre Drive 

Lathrop, CA 95330 
 

AGENDA 
 
PLEASE NOTE: There will be a Closed Session commencing at 6:00 p.m.  The Regular 
Meeting will reconvene at 7:00 p.m., or immediately following the Closed Session, 
whichever is later. 
 
1. PRELIMINARY 

 
1.1 CALL TO ORDER 

 
1.2 CLOSED SESSION 

 
1.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation - 

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9(b) and 54956.9(e)(1) 

• 2 Potential Case(s) 
 

1.2.2 CONFERENCE THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES: 
Consultation with: Legal Counsel and Police Chief Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957, Regarding Safety Protocols for 
Potential Public Threats 

 
RECONVENE 
 

1.2.3 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

1.3 ROLL CALL  
 

1.4 INVOCATION 
 

1.5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

1.6 ANNOUNCEMENT(S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER 
 

1.7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S) – None 
 

1.8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT(S) OF INTEREST 
 
 
 

4



 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 

2. PRESENTATIONS  
 
2.1 INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEES 

 
Public Works Department 
 Veronica Albarran, Junior Engineer  

 

Police Department 
 Tracie Shea, Lieutenant 

 
2.2 POLICE DEPARTMENT EMERGENCY EVACUATION TRAINING 

PRESENTATION 
 

3. CITIZEN’S FORUM 
 
Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, may 
do so under Citizen’s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City Clerk 
prior to the commencement of Citizen’s Forum. Only those who have submitted 
speaker cards, or have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of 
Citizen’s Forum will be called upon to speak. Please be aware the California 
Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate action on an 
item, which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory 
requirements. The City Council can, however, allow its members or staff to briefly (no 
more than five (5) minutes) respond to statements made, to ask questions for 
clarification, make a brief announcement or report on his or her own activities. (See 
California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)). Unless directed otherwise by a 
majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answered at the meeting will 
be responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE 
MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND 
PROCEDURES! 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the City Council and will be 
enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these 
items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which event the 
item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately. 
 
4.1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

Waive the Reading in Full of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda and 
Adopt by Reading of Title Only, Unless Otherwise Requested by the 
Mayor or a Councilmember  
 

4.2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of July 10, 2023 
 

4.3 TABLE SPONSORSHIP AT STOCKTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE’S 56TH  
ANNUAL INDUSTRIAL BARBECUE 
Ratify City Participation and Table Sponsorship at the Stockton Chamber 
Of Commerce Barbecue, to be held September 13, 2023 

5



 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5 

4.4 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RELATED MEMBERSHIPS AND 
SPONSORSHIPS  
Approve Resolution Authorizing Participation in Membership 
Organizations and Sponsorship Opportunities that Promote and Enhance 
the City of Lathrop’s Economic Development Goals 
 

4.5 PLANNING FEE WAIVER REQUEST BY GLOBAL SEVA FOUNDATION (TUP-
23-95) 
Adopt Resolution Waiving the Temporary Use Permit Application 
Processing and Document Retention Fees for the Global Seva 
Foundation, in the Combined Amount of $392 
 

4.6 AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF THE SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 
PROGRAM (STEP) GRANT FUND AWARD FROM THE STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY (OTS) 
Adopt Resolution Authorizing the Chief of Police to Accept the Selective 
Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Grant Fund Award of $60,000 from 
the State of California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) 
 

4.7 APPROVE 2023 FACILITY FEE WAIVER REQUEST FOR MITRA USA 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Facility Fee Waiver Request from Mitra 
USA for the Use of the Scott Brooks Gymnasium on October 13, 2023 
from 4:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. to Host a Cultural Event 
 

4.8 APPROVE 2023 FACILITY FEE WAIVER REQUEST FOR LATHROP LITTLE 
LEAGUE 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Facility Fee Waiver Request from Lathrop 
Little League for the Use of Mossdale Park Baseball Fields from 
September 11, 2023 through November 4, 2023 for Fall Baseball Clinics   
 

4.9 APPROVE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR THE 2023 NATIONAL LEAGUE OF 
CITIES CITY SUMMIT  
Adopt Resolution Authorizing Out of State Travel for the 2023 National 
League of Cities City Summit Trip to Atlanta, Georgia, from November 
15-18, 2023 
 

4.10 APPROVE AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR 
THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT AT DELL'OSSO FARMS 
Adopt Resolution Approving Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement 
Services to Dell'Osso Farms, LLC, for the Annual Pumpkin Maze Event 
on September 30, 2023 through October 31, 2023  
 
 
 
 

6



 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6 

4.11 APPROVE AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR 
THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION'S 209 HEART & STROKE WALK 
EVENT  
Adopt Resolution Approving Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement 
Services to the American Heart Association for the 209 Heart & Stroke 
Walk Event on October 7, 2023  
 

4.12 APPROVE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
RECORDS SUPERVISOR TO ATTEND THE RIMSCON 2023 CONFERENCE 
IN OCTOBER 2023 
Adopt Resolution Approving Out of State Travel for the Police 
Department Records Supervisor to Attend the RIMSCON 2023 
Conference in South Lake Tahoe, Nevada from October 9, 2023 to 
October 13, 2023 
 

4.13 APPROVE PURCHASE OF A CHEVROLET SILVERADO 3500 SPRAY RIG 
FOR THE PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 
Adopt Resolution Approving the Purchase of a Chevrolet Silverado 3500 
Spray Rig for the Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services 
Department 
 

4.14 APPROVE WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY TRANSFER FROM 
SOUTH LATHROP LAND, LLC TO LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION, LLC, 
THROUGH THE CITY 
Adopt Resolution Approving the Transfer of Wastewater Treatment 
Capacity in the Consolidated Treatment Facility from South Lathrop 
Land, LLC to Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC through the City and an 
Associated Transfer Agreement 
 

4.15 APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH DOKKEN ENGINEERING FOR 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE HARLAN ROAD 
REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD, CIP PS 14-04 
Adopt Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1 with Dokken Engineering 
for Professional Engineering Services for the Harlan Road Realignment 
at Roth Road, CIP PS 14-04 
 

4.16 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY AMERINE 
SYSTEMS, INC. FOR CITY HALL LANDSCAPE RENOVATIONS, CIP GG 21-
09  
Adopt Resolution to Accept Public Improvements Constructed by 
Amerine Systems, Inc. for the City Hall Landscape Renovation, CIP GG 
21-09, Authorizing the Filing of a Notice of Completion, Release of 
Contract Retention, and Release of Performance and Payment Bonds 
 
 

7



 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 7 

4.17 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY TIM PAXIN’S 
PACIFIC EXCAVATION, INC. DBA PACIFIC EXCAVATION FOR 
STREETLIGHTS ASSOCIATED WITH LOUISE AVENUE LANDSCAPE, CIP 
GG 21-15 
Adopt Resolution to Accept Public Improvements Constructed by Tim 
Paxin’s Pacific Excavation, Inc. dba Pacific Excavation for Streetlights 
Associated with Louise Avenue Landscape, CIP GG 21-15, Authorize the 
Filing of a Notice of Completion, Release of Contract Retention, and 
Release of Performance and Payment Bonds 
 

4.18 AWARD SERVICE CONTRACT TO SWEEPING CORPORATION OF 
AMERICA OF CALIFORNIA, LLC FOR STREET SWEEPING SERVICES 
Adopt Resolution Awarding a Service Contract to Sweeping Corporation 
of America of California, LLC for Street Sweeping Services   
 

4.19 RATIFY CITY MANAGER APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
WITH LUMA ENGINEERING INC. FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES 
ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23-14 AND APPROVE BUDGET 
AMENDMENT  
Adopt Resolution to Ratify City Manager’s Action to Approve 
Construction Contract with Luma Engineering Inc. for the City of Lathrop 
Facilities ADA Improvements, CIP GG 23-14 and Approve Budget 
Amendment 
 

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT CONSENT ITEM(S) 
 

4.20 APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SUBDIVISION 
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 105 LOTS IN TRACT 4155 UNIT 1 
WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS 
Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4155 Unit 1 within the 
West Village District, Totaling 105 Single Family Lots, CFD Annexation 
No. 4, Irrevocable Offer of Dedication and Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement with River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/K/A River 
Islands Employment Center, LLC  
 

4.21 APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SUBDIVISION 
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 68 LOTS IN TRACT 4172 VILLAGE 1 
WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS 
Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4172 Village 1 within the 
West Village District, Totaling 68 Single Family Lots, CFD Annexation 
No. 2, and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands 
Development Area 2, LLC, and River Islands Stage 2A, LLC 
 
 
 

8



 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 8 

4.22 APPROVE CONSOLIDATED JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT 
WITH RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR THE 
AUTHORITY’S COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Consolidated Joint Community Facilities 
Agreement with River Islands Public Financing Authority (RIPFA) for the 
Authority’s Community Facilities Districts 
 

4.23 APPROVE THE REVISED RIVER ISLANDS PHASE TWO PARKS AND OPEN 
SPACE MASTER PLAN 
Adopt Resolution Approving the Revised River Islands Phase Two Parks 
and Open Space Master Plan 
 
CEQA STATUS: The Proposed Project Falls within the Scope of the 
Previously Certified Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) 
(SCH No.1993112027) for the River Islands at Lathrop Phase Two 
Project; therefore, no further Environmental Review is Required in 
Accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act                      

 
5. SCHEDULED ITEMS  

 
5.1 PUBLIC HEARING (PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ADOPTING AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 2 
“ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL”, CHAPTER 2.36 “PURCHASING 
SYSTEM”, SECTION 2.36.110 “EXCEPTIONS TO PURCHASING 
PROCEDURES AND LIMITS”  
City Council to Consider the Following Items: 

1. Hold a Public Hearing; and 
2. First Reading and Introduction of an Ordinance Amending Title 2, 

Chapter 2.36 “Purchasing System”, Section 2.36.110 “Exceptions 
To Purchasing Procedures and Limits” by Adding a New Section 
(“D”) to Allow Cooperative Purchasing Agreements  

 
5.2 ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR CIP PW 22-

36 AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY 
Adopt Resolution Adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 
City of Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project, CIP PW 22-36 in 
Accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act Requirements  
 

5.3 GRAND JURY REPORT RESPONSE  
Accept Grand Jury Report on School Safety in San Joaquin County and 
Direct the City Attorney to Submit a Letter to the Presiding Judge of the 
San Joaquin County Superior Court Responding to the Finding and 
Recommendation of the Grand Jury Report 
 
 
 

9



 

September 11, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 9 

5.4 PROVIDE DIRECTION ON LATHROP ROAD RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAY 
RECONSTRUCTION AND CREATE CIP GG 24-27 
Adopt Resolution Creating CIP GG 24-27 Lathrop Road Residential 
Driveway Reconstruction and Approve Budget Amendment 

 
 

6. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS  
 

6.1 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT(S) 
• Central Valley Executive Committee/LOCC (Akinjo/Diallo) 
• Council of Governments (Lazard/Diallo) 
• Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division (Akinjo/Torres-

O’Callaghan) 
• Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority (Salvatore) 
• San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors (Salvatore)  
• San Joaquin County Commission on Aging (Vacancy) 
• San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (Akinjo/Dhaliwal) 
• Water Advisory Board (Torres-O’Callaghan/Lazard) 
• Tri Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo) 
• San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency (Akinjo/Lazard/Torres-O’Callaghan) 
• LAFCo (Diallo) 

 
6.2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT(S) 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT  

 
 
 

/Teresa Vargas/ 
Teresa Vargas, MMC 
Government Services Director 
City Clerk  

 

10



ITEM 4. 2

CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, JULY 10, 2023

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE; There was a C/osed Session, which commenced at 5:50 p, m,  The

Reqular Meetinq econvened at 7: 08 p. m.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 5: 50
p. m.

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL:  Anticipated Litigation  -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code

Section 54956. 9( b)

Potential Case( s)

1. 2. 2 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS:  Pursuant

To Government Code Section 54956. 8

Property: APNs 192- 020- 44 & 192- 020- 45

Agency Negotiator: Stephen Salvatore, City Manager
Negotiation Parties: Saybrook, CLSP, LLC

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Negotiations

1. 2. 3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:   Pursuant to

Government Code Section 54957

City Attorney
City Manager

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 08 p. m.

1. 2. 4 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that there was no

discussion on Item 1. 2. 1, and the City Council authorize staff to pay
4. 50 per square foot for purchase of real property pursuant to Item

1. 2. 2. Mayor Dhaliwal reported that there was not reportable action

pursuant to Item 1. 2. 3.

July 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

11



1. 3 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal, Vice Mayor Akinjo,

Councilmembers: Diallo and Torres-

O' Callaghan

Absent: Counciimember Lazard

1. 4 INVOCATION - Mayor Dhaliwal held a moment of silence in memory of
longtime City of Lathrop resident Joyce Gatto,  and City of Tracy
residents Amrik Wander and Arvind Ram.

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  -  Vice Mayor Akinjo led the pledge of
allegiance.

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

City Manager Stephen Salvatore announced Caltrans work on I5

scheduled for the month of) uly; and grand openings of the Lyons Park,
Rotary Park, and River Park in the Central Lathrop Stanford Crossing
Development.

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

Councilmember Diallo declared conflict of interest with Item 4. 18, due
to an agreement with the River Islands Development.  Mayor Dhaliwal

declared a conflict of interest with Item 5. 2, due to his residence within
the Woodfield Park District area.

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PRESENTATION OF ARTWORK DONATION FROM THE MARTIN FAMILY

TO THE LATHROP MAYOR' S ART SHOW AND SALE COMMITTEE

Tony Martin,  on behalf of the Martin Family,  presented the City of
Lathrop Mayor' s Art Show and Sale Committee with a piece of artwork
painted by the late Cindy Martin,  former founding member of the
Mayor' s Art Show and Sale Committee and longtime Lathrop resident.
Additionally, Bennie Gatto donated to the City of Lathrop' s Joyce Gatto
Art Gallery an acknowledgement award presented to Joyce Gatto
honoring her years of service and contributions to the Mayor' s Art Show.

2. 2 PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION TO THE LATHROP-

MANTECA FIRE DEPARTMENT, AND CITY OF LATHROP PUBLIC WORKS,
POLICE,   AND PARKS,   RECREATION   &   MAINTENANCE SERVICES

DEPARTMENTS FOR THEIR INVOLVEMENT IN THE PREPARATION OF THE
ANNUAL JULY 1 CELEBRATION EVENT

uly 10, 2023   •  lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

12



Mayor Dhaliwal, on behalf of the City Council, presented certificates of
appreciation to the Lathrop- Manteca Fire Department,  Lathrop Public
Works Department,  and Park,  Recreation and Maintenance Services
Department for their work in preparation of the annual July 1St
celebration.

2. 3 PROCLAMATION DECLARING JULY 2023 AS PARKS AND RECREATION
MONTH

Vice Mayor Akinjo provided a proclamation declaring July 2023 as Parks
and Recreation month to Director of Parks, Recreation and Maintenance
Services Todd Sebastian.

2. 4 QUARTERLY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PRESENTATION

Economic Development Administrator Shelley Burcham provided the
presentation covering economic development activity from April 2023 to
June 2023.

2. 5 POLICE DEPARTMENT PRESENTATION REGARDING PRIORITY ONE CALL
TYPES AND UPDATED RESPONSE TIMES

City Manager Stephen Salvatore pulled Item 2. 5 off the agenda for
further data evaluation, and announced it would be rescheduled to a

future meeting.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Gavin Cline  ( in person speaker),  Legislative Representative for Congress

Member John Duarte, provided an overview of various legislative updates and
activities for California' s 13th District.  Bennie Gatto thanked the City Council
and staff for their attendance and assistance with the Joyce Gatto Celebration
of Life.

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Vice Mayor Akinjo,  seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal,  the City
Council approved the Consent Calendar,  Items 4.  1 through 4.  17,  by the
following roll call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Lazard

Abstain: Torres- O' Callaghan ( Item 4. 5 only)

July 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

13



The City of Lathrop City Council Handbook of Rules and Procedures, page
13, Chapter IV,   Section 8( 5)   applies to abstentions without identified
legal disqualifications.)

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading in full of ordinances and resolutions on agenda and
adopt by reading of title only, unless otherwise requested by the Mayor
or a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of June 12, 2023

4. 3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 23- 446 OF THE CITY

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN
CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.  2023- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES # 2)

Waived the full reading and adopted Ordinance 23- 446 Levying
Special Taxes within City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2023- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities # 2).

4. 4 APPROVE UPDATES TO THE PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS

Adopted Resolution 23- 5323 to approve updates to the Personnel
Rules and Regulations.

4. 5 APPROVE THE CREATION OF A DEPUTY CITY MANAGER POSITION

Adopted Resolution 23- 5324 creating a Deputy City Manager position
at Grade 90,  approving the job description,  updating the grade step
table, un- funding the Deputy Finance Director position, and approving
the related budget amendment.

4. 6 APPROVE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR TWO  ( 2)  LATHROP POLICE

DEPARTMENT SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS TO ATTEND THE G. R. E. A. T
OFFICER TRAINING IN JULY 2023

Adopted Resolution 23- 5325 approving out of state travel for two ( 2)
Lathrop Police Department School Resource Officers to attend the Gang
Resistance Education and Training   ( G. R. E. A. T)   Officer training in

Scottsdale, Arizona from July 24, 2023 to July 28, 2023.

4. 7 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SOLID

NETWORKS INC. FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MAINTENANCE AND
SUPPORT SERVICES

July 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

14



Adopted Resolution 23- 5326 approving a Professional Services
Agreement with Solid Networks,   Inc.   for Information Technology
Maintenance and Support Services.

4. 8 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH EKI
ENVIRONMENT & WATER, INC., FOR PFAS IN GROUNDWATER STUDY,
CIP PW 20- 16 GROUNDWATER TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS

Adopted Resolution 23- 5327 approving a Professional Services

Agreement with EKI Environment    &    Water,    Inc.,    for PFAS

characterization and evaluation of planned PFAS treatment for CIP PW
20- 16 groundwater treatment improvements.

4. 9 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH EKI

ENVIRONMENT  &  WATER,  INC.,  FOR MONITORING WELL NETWORK
ABANDONMENT FOR CIP RW 24- 16 RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM

DECOMMISSIONING AND BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopted Resolution 23- 5328 approving a Professional Services

Agreement with EKI Environment & Water,  Inc.,  for monitoring well
network abandonment for CIP RW 24- 16 recycled water system

decommissioning, and budget amendment.

4. 10 APPROVE WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY TRANSFER FROM

SOUTH LATHROP LAND, LLC TO D. R. HORTON, INC. THROUGH THE CITY

Adopted Resolution 23- 5329 approving the transfer of wastewater
treatment capacity in the Consolidated Treatment Facility, from South
Lathrop Land, LLC to D. R. Horton, Inc. through the City, and approving
an Associated Transfer Agreement.

4. 11 RATIFY CITY MANAGER' S APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT WITH SOLID
NETWORKS,  INC.  FOR EQUIPMENT REQUIRED FOR THE CAD- RIMS
TRANSFER PROJECT

Adopted Resolution 23- 5330 ratifying the City Manager' s approval of
an Agreement with Solid Networks, Inc. for equipment required for CAD-
RIMS transfer project.

4. 12 ACCEPT INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE SIA
FOR PM 19- 03 FROM LATHROP GATEWAY 1,  LLC,  LOCATED AT THE

INTERSECTION OF MCKINLEY AVENUE AND YOSEMITE AVENUE

Adopted Resolution 23- 5331 accepting intersection improvements
associated with the Subdivision Improvements Agreement for Parcel

Map 19- 03 from Lathrop Gateway 1, LLC, located at the intersection of
McKinley Avenue and Yosemite Avenue.

July 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

15



4. 13 ACCEPT STREET LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS LOCATED ON BARBARA

TERRY BOULEVARD AND STANFORD CROSSING FROM LATHROP LAND
ACQUISITION LLC

Adopted Resolution 23- 5332 accepting street landscape

improvements on Barbara Terry Boulevard and Stanford Crossing,
related to Encroachment Permit Number 2022- 16 from Lathrop Land
Acquisition LLC.

4. 14 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY MARINA

LANDSCAPE FOR APOLINAR SANGALANG PARK IMPROVEMENTS, CIP PK
20- 18

Adopted Resolution 23- 5333 accepting public improvements

constructed by Marina Landscape, Inc. for the Apolinar Sangalang Park
Improvements,  CIP PK 20- 18,  authorize the filing of a Notice of

Completion, release of contract retention, and release of Performance
and Payment Bonds.

4. 15 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY GEORGE REED,
INC. FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/ 23 CITYWIDE ROAD MAINTENANCE AND
REHABILITATION, CIP PS 22- 45 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopted Resolution 23- 5334 accepting public improvements

constructed by George Reed, Inc. for Fiscal Year 2022/ 23 citywide road
maintenance and rehabilitation, CIP PS 22- 45, authorize the filing of a
Notice of Completion,   release of contract retention,   release of

Performance and Payment Bonds, and approve budget amendment.

4. 16 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY CUSHMAN

CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION FOR THE CTF DECHLORINATION

FACILITY, ASSOCIATED WITH CIP WW 20- 17 RECYCLED WATER RIVER
DISCHARGE PROJECT

Adopted Resolution 23- 5335 accepting public improvements

constructed by Cushman Construction Corporation for the CTF

Dechlorination Facility, associated with CIP WW 20- 17 Recycled Water
River Discharge Project, Authorizing the Filing of a Notice of Completion,
release of contract retention, and release of Performance and Payment
Bonds.

4. 17 REJECT ALL BIDS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF LOUISE AVENUE AND
MCKINLEY AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS, CIP PS 15- 02 AND
RE- ADVERTISE FOR BIDS

Vice Mayor Akinjo pulled Item 4. 17.  A question and answer period
ensued. City Engineer Brad Taylor provided additional information.

July 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6

16



Adopted Resolution 23- 5336 rejecting all bids for construction of
Louise Avenue and McKinley Avenue Intersection Improvements, CIP PS
15- 02 and authorize staff to re- advertise for bids.

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT CONSENT ITEM( S)

Councilmember Diallo recused herself at 7: 57 p, m., following the vote of the consent
calendar, prior to the vote of Item 4. 1 S,  due to declared conflict of interested as
noted on Item 1. 8.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan,

the City Council approved Item 4. 18, by the following roll call vote, unless otherwise
indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Lazard

Abstain: Diallo

4. 18 ADOPT 2023 ADEQUATE PROGRESS FINDING TOWARD PROVISION OF
200- YEAR URBAN LEVEL OF FLOOD PROTECTION FOR ISLAND
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2062 ( RIVER ISLANDS PHASES 1 AND 2)

Vice Mayor Akinjo pulled Item 4. 18.  A question and answer period
ensued. City Engineer Brad Taylor provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 23- 5337 adopting 2023 adequate progress

findings toward providing a 200- year urban level of flood protection in
Phases 1 and 2 levees of Island Reclamation District 2062, by the Year
2025, acting as the Land Use Agency.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

Councilmember Diallo returned to the dais at 8: 01 p. m.

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ADOPTING AN

ORDINANCE TO IMPLEMENT A COMMUNITY CHOICE AGGREGATION
PROGRAM AND ADOPTING RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A JOINT POWERS
AGREEMENT WITH EAST BAY COMMUNITY  ( EBCE)  AUTHORITY TO
PROVIDE ELECTRIC SERVICES IN THE CITY OF LATHROP

Assistant City Manager Michael King provided the presentation.  A

question and answer period followed.   Alex DiGiorgio,   JD,   Public
Engagement Manager for East Bay Community Energy provided
additional information related to the matter.

July 10, 20Z3 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 7

17



Mayor Dhaliwal opened the public hearing.  Ben Jex  ( zoom speaker)

commented on the matter. Reyna Camarena ( zoom speaker) requested

information regarding planned and unplanned outages,   and rate

structure for current solar users.  Alex DiGiorgio provided additional
information.   Lawrence Abbott  ( zoom speaker)  commented on the

matter, and spoke in support of the item. There were no other speakers.

Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public hearing.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Akinjo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the City
Council considered the following:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Held first reading and introduction of an ordinance to implement
a Community Choice Aggregation Program to provide electric
services in the City of Lathrop; and

3.  Adopted Resolution 23- 5338 approving a Joint Powers

Agreement with East Bay Community ( EBCE) Authority to provide
electric services in the City of Lathrop.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: Lazard

Abstain: Diallo

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER FISCAL YEAR

2023- 24 ASSESSMENTS FOR THE LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING

MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO.  93- 1 WOODFIELD PARK MAINTENANCE
ZONE

Mayor Dhaliwal recused himself at 8: 22 p. m., following the vote of scheduled Item
5. 1, due to declared conflict of interested as noted on Item 1. 8.

Deputy Finance Director Thomas Hedegard provided the presentation.
A question and answer period followed. Vice Mayor Akinjo opened the
public hearing. Lawrence Abbott (zoom speaker) spoke in support of the
California native plants for landscaping in public areas. There were no
other speakers. Vice Mayor Akinjo closed the public hearing.

On a motion by Councilmember Diallo,  seconded by Councilmember
Torres- O' Callghan, the City Council considered the following:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopted Resolution 23- 5339 amending and/ or approving the
Final Engineer' s Report and ordering the levy and collection of
assessments for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District
No.  93- 1 Woodfield Park Maintenance Zone for FY 2023- 24;

proposed annual assessment for Fiscal Year 2023- 24 not to
exceed $ 123. 90.

uly 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 8

18



Ayes:    Diallo, Akinjo, Torres- O' Callaghan and Akinjo

Noes:    None

Absent: Lazard

Abstain: Dhaliwal

Mayor Dhaliwal returned to the dais at 8: 28 p. m.

5. 3 APPOINTMENT OF VOTING DELEGATE/ ALTERNATE FOR 2023 LEAGUE

OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE

Government Services Director / City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided the
presentation. A question and answer period followed.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Diallo, the
City Council appointed Vice Mayor Akinjo as the City' s Voting Delegate,
and Councilmembers Diallo and Torres- O' Callaghan the City' s Voting
Alternates, for the 2023 eague of California Cities Annual Conference,
September 20- 22,   2023,   at the Sacramento SAFE Credit Union

Convention Center.

Ayes:       Akinjo, Diallo, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal

Noes:       None

Absent:   Lazard

Abstain:   None

5. 4 PROVIDE DIRECTION FOR HISTORIC LATHROP BEAUTIFICATION AND
CREATE CIP GG 24- 23

City Engineer Brad Taylor provided the presentation.  A question and
answer period ensued throughout the presentation.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Diallo, the
City Council adopted Resolution 23- 5340 creating CIP GG 24- 23
Historic Lathrop Beautification Project, to include arches with decorative
lights,  water features with decorative lights and public seating as
potential design options, and approving related budget amendment.

Ayes:      Akinjo, Diallo, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal
Noes:       None

Absent:   Lazard

Abstain:   None

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( 5) - None

July 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 9

19



6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan expressed appreciation to the Lathrop-
Manteca Fire District and Lathrop Police Department for their efforts and
coverage during fireworks season; and requested staff look into organizing
a 4th of July parade next year. Councilmember Diallo expressed appreciation
to Lathrop' s first responders for responding to a family medical emergency.
Vice Mayor Akinjo expressed his condolences to the Gatto Family and to the
Families of Amrik Wander and Arvind Ram. Mayor Dhaliwal echoed similar

sentiments.

7.       AD) OURNMENT — There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 8: 51 p. m. in memory of Joyce Gatto and Cindy Martin.

GA' 
esa Vargas, M C

Government Servic s Director

City Clerk

July 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 10

20



ITEM 4. 3

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       TABLE SPONSORSHIP AT STOCKTON CHAMBER OF

COMMERCE' S 56T" ANNUAL INDUSTRIAL BARBECUE

RECOMMENDATION:     RATIFY CITY PARTICIPATION AND TABLE

SPONSORSHIP AT THE STOCKTON CHAMBER OF

COMMERCE BARBECUE TO BE HELD SEPTEMBER 13,

2023

BACKGROUND:   The Stockton Chamber of Commerce has held an annual industrial

barbeque event for the past 55 years to honor and recognize major manufacturers
and industrial businesses that have expanded or located within San Joaquin County.

To qualify as an honoree, businesses must be located within an industrial zone, be

operational by July 1, 2023, and meet or exceed two of the following requirements:
added 20 new jobs to San ) oaquin County, 20, 000 square feet of new or expanded
roofed facility, or $ 1 million in capital investment.

The 56th Annual Industrial Barbecue is the first event since COVID, and Lathrop will
have at least four  ( 4)  honorees.  This year's event is being held on Wednesday,
September 13, 2023, from 5: 00 p. m. to 8: 30 p. m. at the University Plaza Waterfront

Hotel in Stockton. Staff has preliminarily reserved a table sponsorship that includes
eight  ( 8)  dinner tickets  ( reserved seating)  and two  ( 2)  tickets for the honoree

reception pending City Council ratification.

Staff recommends that the City Council ratify table sponsorship at the Stockton
Chamber of Commerce' s 56th Annual Industrial Barbecue with City Councilmembers
having first opportunity to fill up to five seats, staff and honorees to fill any remaining
table vacancy.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  The Industrial Barbecue is a countywide event

honoring industrial businesses who have invested in our communities and created job
opportunities for our residents.

FISCAL IMPACT:    The cost to sponsor a table at the Stockton Chamber of

Commerce' s 56t'' Annual Industrial Barbecue is $ 1, 250.  Funds are available in the

Economic Development Division' s advertising account within the Fiscal Year 2023/ 24
approved budget.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A) Stockton Chamber Industrial Barbecue Fact Sheet

21



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT- SEPTEMBER 11, 2023

TABLE SPONSORSHIP AT STOCKTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE' S 56T" ANNUAL INDUSTRIAL BARBECUE

PAG E 2

APPROVALS:

g - 2 - 20?.3
Shelley Burc m Date

Economic Development Administrator

f

l-< n:     

Cari J Date

Director Finance

Lu    - 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

9•• z3
St phen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

22



ATTAC H M E NT " A"

CHAMBER C F CC) MMERCE
FSr. w.

56th Annual Industrial Barbecue

ate:     Wednesday, September 13, 2023

Time:     4: 00- S: OOpm Honoree Reception, S: OOpm- 8: 30pm Event

where:  University Plaza Waterfront Hotel, 110 W. Fremont St.,

Stockton 95202

why:     Each year, the Industrial Barbecue honors those major
manufacturers and industries that have located in, or expanded
their operations within San Joaquin County.   Each of these

companies represent over $ 1 million in plant and equipment
investment, and together total thousands of new employees in

our community.

criteria: Those INDUSTRIAL BUSINESSES eligible for awards must be

located in an industrial zone, and be in operation by July 1.
They must also meet or exceed two of the following
requirements:   20 new jobs to San Joaquin County, 20, 000
square feet of new or expanded roofed facility or $ 1 million

capital investment.

Previous Recipients Include:

Air Transport International,   Inc.,   Amazon Fulfillment,   Applied Aerospace

Structures Corp.,  Boboli International,  Costco Wholesale Corp.,  CRM  ( Crumb

Rubber Manufacturers), ECS Refining, Epic Plastics, Delicato Family Vineyards,
Dorfman Pacific Co.,  Inc.,  Golden State Lumber,  The Herrick Corporation
Stockton Steel,    Home Depot Distribution Center,    JM Eagle,    KeHE

Distributors/ Nature' s Best Powered by KeHE, The Martin Brower Company, Nature
Kist Snacks, Pacific Gas & Electric Co., Scientific Specialties, Inc., Simpson Strong-
Tie, Sunnyvalley Smoked Meats, Trinchero Family Estates, UniFirst Corporation,
Weber Logistics, Yara North America and others.

23



24



ITEM 4.4

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RELATED MEMBERSHIPS

AND SPONSORSHIPS

RECOMMENDATION:     Approve a Resolution Authorizing City Participation
in Membership Organizations and Sponsorship
Opportunities that Promote and Enhance the City of

Lathrop' s Economic Development Goals

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop' s Economic Development Division promotes the City' s attributes
for opportunities that will enhance the overall well- being and quality of life of the
community and its residents. The Division strives to create, support, and facilitate
policies and programs that will enhance the economic environment for the attraction,
expansion, and retention of businesses and industries that will improve the local tax

base,  create and retain jobs,  and promote opportunities that facilitate economic
g rowth.

The City of Lathrop' s economic development programs include marketing,

networking,  relationship building,  and community involvement to help build a
sustainable economy that supports job creation,  business attraction,  business

retention,  education and vocational programs that build an educated and skilled
workforce, as well as an ecosystem of resources to encourage innovation and support

small businesses and entrepreneurs.

The Economic Development Administrator is seeking City Council consideration and
approval to participate in select member organizations and to provide City

sponsorship of events and opportunities that promote and enhance the City of
Lathrop' s economic development goals.   Funding is available within the Economic
Development Division' s budget to support these requests, which totals $ 9, 000 for

each fiscal year.

BACKGROUND:

The Economic Development Administrator was hired in February 2019 to carry out
economic development activities,  including participation and representation of the
City on various boards,  committees,  and commissions that promote economic

development goals beneficial to the city, local businesses, and residents.

Outside of professional and targeted trade organizations,  staff is engaged as a

member or board member with the San Joaquin Partnership,  iHub San  ) oaquin,

Manteca Chamber of Commerce,  and TeamCalifornia,  which are all not- for- profit

25



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT- SEPTEMBER 11, 2023

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RELATED MEMBERSHIPS AND SPONSORSHIPS

PAG E 2

organizations.  Each of these organizations hold various events and activities, where

sponsorship opportunities are available, to promote economic development activities
as a State and/ or San Joaquin County region.  Economic Development Division

funding for membership dues and sponsorship opportunities are included in the
Biennial Budget for FY 2023/ 24 and 2024/ 25 approved by City Council on June 14,
2023.   The purpose of this staff report is to provide transparency and to obtain
approval as to how these funds may be used as it relates to economic development
memberships and sponsorships for the benefit of the community.

San Joaquin Partnership  ( Partnership)  is a private,  not- for- profit regional
economic development corporation that serves all of San Joaquin County and its
seven incorporated cities.  The Partnership markets the region for business attraction
of industrial and large office projects for the purpose of creating jobs and enhancing
the quality of life in our communities.   The City of Lathrop has participated as a

member of the Partnership since 1992. A partial list of businesses assisted by the
Partnership' s efforts and who have successfully located and/ or expanded in Lathrop
include: Tesla, Boise Cascade, Home Depot, DCG Fulfillment, Simwon America Corp.,
Pratt Industries, TEC Equipment,  In- N- Out Burger,  Pflug Packaging,  Diamond Pet,

AAFES.

At this time,  the Partnership does not have any scheduled events requesting

sponsorship opportunities,   however,   staff requests  $ 1, 000 per fiscal year as

discretionary funds to support potential events held by this organization and
approved by the City Manager.

iHub San 7oaquin  ( iHubSJ)  is one of 15 state designated innovation hubs

statewide.  iHubSJ operates as a 501c3 non- profit organization. The mission of iHubSJ
is to stimulate new innovations and foster a diverse entrepreneurial ecosystem in the

San Joaquin County region.

iHubSJ board members include representatives from each municipality, economic and
workforce development,   healthcare,   education and post- secondary education,

industry,  and entrepreneur and incubator service providers.   In 2021,   iHubS)

established an Advisory Council to represent a diverse coalition of technical service

providers,  workforce development groups,  green economy advocates,  business

associations,  and small business development centers, to create an inclusive and

comprehensive strategy to spark innovation by leveraging the full capacity of our

community assets.   iHubSJ harnesses these assets to stimulate partnerships,

economic development,  and job creation by providing an innovation platform for
emerging entrepreneurs and business owners to grow their businesses and ideas.

At the September 13, 2021 City Council meeting, iHubSJ representatives presented
Innovation in the Valley: an update on iHub San Joaquin" and requested a letter of

support for a State of California iHub II designation and grant funding opportunity.
This type of local support leveraged iHubSJ' s ability to successfully receive the iHubII
designation and a $ 250, 000 grant award.

26



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT- SEPTEMBER 11, 2023

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RELATED MEMBERSHIPS AND SPONSORSHIPS

PAGE 3

iHubSJ holds signature events annually and adapts new programs as their resource

network grows.

H20 Hackathon promotes teamwork and coding skills among students from
middle school age,  high schools,  colleges and universities to solve specific

issues in a one- day competition.   Past Hackathons have totaled up to 200

students in the competitions, including teams from River Islands Academy and
Lathrop High. The 7th Annual H20 Hackathon scheduled for November 4, 2023
will continue to be promoted to all Lathrop schools to encourage student

participation.

iHub San Joaquin' s Annual Meeting and Innovation Summit is scheduled
for September 28,  2023.  This half day event will be promoted to Lathrop
residents, small businesses, and home occupational start- ups for participation.
See Attachment A  -  iHub San Joaquin Annual Meeting and Innovation

Summit)

Staff is requesting a  $ 2, 500 annual contribution to provide local support toward
iHubS] efforts, and $ 1, 000 for each fiscal year to sponsor the iHub San ) oaquin' s

Annual Meeting and Innovation Summit and the Annual H20 Hackathons.

Manteca Chamber of Commerce' s is a not- for- profit organization whose Board of
Directors in 2021, approved its expansion to serve businesses in Manteca, Lathrop
and surrounding communities.  The Lathrop Chamber of Commerce has been

nonexistent since 2019,  and our small businesses have struggled to contact a

chamber to hold ribbon cuttings and provide networking opportunities to market their
businesses.   In 2021,  the Manteca Chamber held a Real Estate,   Innovation,

Development,  and Entertainment  ( RIDE)  Tour and invited the City of Lathrop' s
Economic Development Administrator to participate as a presenter.    RIDE Tour

participants included real estate brokers,  developers,  businesses leaders,  and

residents. The tour featured residential, commercial, and industrial development and

opportunities in Lathrop and Manteca with special stops at the Great Wolf Lodge, the
Lathrop Generation Center, and the Tesla Megafactory. Another RIDE Tour featuring
Manteca and Lathrop is in the planning process to be held Spring 2024.

The RIDE Tour is at no cost to the City of Lathrop other than staff time for coordination
and presentation.  The cost of inembership for Lathrop to belong to the Manteca
Chamber of Commerce is $ 1, 500 annually.

TeamCalifornia is a not- for- profit statewide economic development organization

that promotes California for the purpose of business attraction.
Members include municipalities,   economic development organizations,   utility

companies, brokers and other agencies interested in the promotion of California.

Members have the opportunity to participate in various trade industry events focused
on attraction of retail and industrial industries.

27



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT— SEPTEMBER 11, 2023

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RELATED MEMBERSHIPS AND SPONSORSHIPS

PAG E 4

Participation may include exhibiting in the TeamCalifornia Booth or sponsoring a
networking event hosted by TeamCalifornia such as at ICSC - a retail focused industry

membership organization,  and IAMC - an industrial corporate real estate focused

membership organization.

TeamCalifornia also holds an annual signature event called Meet the Consultants,

where site selectors, consultants and brokers from around the nation present to and
engage with TeamCalifornia members.  In 2021, the San Joaquin Partnership hosted

the Meet the Consultants conference held at Great Wolf Lodge and provide a bus tour
of San Joaquin County to the participants.   Lathrop' s Economic Development

Administrator served on the host committee, provided a tour of Lathrop, and River
Islands was a featured presenter at the opening dinner that was held at the
Boathouse. Participating with TeamCalifornia in these marketing opportunities allows
the City of Lathrop to leverage marketing dollars to engage in more activities that
otherwise may be too costly for an individual city to join.

For all conferences,  tradeshows,  programs,  activities,  sponsorship opportunities

afforded to the City of Lathrop through the TeamCalifornia membership, out- of-state
travel and participation are brought to City Council for approval.  Staff is requesting

3000 of funding discretion under City Manager approval to sponsor opportunities
presented by TeamCalifornia that are held within the State of California such as Meet
the Consultants, and receptions at the ICSC conferences held annually in Monterey
and San Diego.   ( See Attachment B - TeamCalifornia Sponsorship Opportunities at
ICSC San Diego)

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the resolution to authorize City

participation in membership organizations and sponsorship opportunities that

promote and enhance the City of Lathrop' s Economic Development Goals.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  The purpose of this staff report is to provide
transparency and to obtain approval as to how these funds may be used as it relates
to economic development memberships and sponsorships for the benefit of the

community.

FISCAL IMPACT:  The Economic Development Division budget, as approved in the

City of Lathrop' s Biennial Budget for FY 2023/ 24 and 2024/ 25, supports funding for
the proposed memberships and sponsorship opportunities outlines within this report.

ATTACH M ENTS:

Attachment A - Resolution Authorizing City Participation in Membership Organizations and

Sponsorship Opportunities that Promote and Enhance the City' s Economic
Development Goals

Attachment B -  iHub San Joaquin' s Annual Meeting and Innovation Summit Flyer
Attachment C - TeamCalifornia Sponsorship Opportunities at ICSC San Diego

28



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT- SEPTEMBER 11, 2023

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RELATED MEMBERSHIPS AND SPONSORSHIPS

PAG E 5

APPROVALS:

g'- 31- 23

Shelley Burcham Date

Economi lopment Administrator

a

Cari Jame Date

Director of Finance

r

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

R• - 23
Step J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

29



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

AUTHORIZE CITY PARTICIPATION IN MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATIONS AND

SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES THAT PROMOTE AND ENHANCE THE CITY

OF LATHROP' S ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GOALS

WHEREAS,   City Council approved funding for a full- time Economic

Development Administrator position to carry out economic development activities on
behalf of the City; and

WHEREAS,  staff has identified membership organizations and sponsorship
opportunities that promote and support Lathrop' s economic development efforts to
enhance the economic environment; and

WHEREAS,   transparency of how City funds are used for economic

development memberships and sponsorships for the benefit of the community; and

WHEREAS,    funding identified for proposed memberships and City
sponsorships have been included in the approved biennial budget for FY 2023/ 24 and

2024/ 25.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop,
authorizes City participation in membership organizations and sponsorship

opportunities that promote and enhance the City of Lathrop' s Economic Development
Goals up to the amount approved by Council for this purpose in each biennial budget.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September
2023, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST:       APPRO D AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 23- Page 1 of 1

30



ATTACHMENT " B"  '    •    •   •  •  •  
1

the speaker lineup
V;

ANATALIO UBALDE
Founder& CEO

SizeUp

1 1

JEFF WINGFIELD

Deputy Port Director,
Regulatory& Public Affairs

Port of Stockton

HASAN ALI

Founder

Air Tutors

Q        •  

o       _         _   
SOPHIA ZHENG

Founder& CEO

Bludot 7echnologies Inc.

SHARI TAVAF

coo

Monetery Bay DART

SPONSORED BY

SNERAZ GILL
t a'' Deputy Air Pollution Control Officer

ta,  S, V JOAQUIN PARTNERSH[ P 811, 08I UI11 8 @ San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
w-       GREAT Control District

W; LF
LODGE S CODESTACK

A+CADEMY Additional speakers

to be announced

31



r°

a

v°\

a

q:.

r       
i   :        

n

a..> ,

J

Four ( 4) event tickets Eight ( 8) event tickets

Logo recognition on event website Kiosk expo table during event
recognition during event program Logo recognition on event website

Logo displayed at event

Recognition during event program

1.     -     ,   PLATINUM - $ 5,OOtJ

Table of eight ( 8) w/ priority seating      •  Table of eight ( 8) w/ priority seating
Exhibit table during event Exhibit table during event
Logo recognition on event website      •  One  ( 1)  dedicated email news blast to

Logo displayed at event attendees

Recognition during event program     •  Abilityto providewelcomming comments
Social Media recognition Logo recognition on event website

Logo displayed at event

Recognition during event program
Social Media recognition

For more information, contact Reyna DeKasha at:

info a ihubsj. org
209) 954 - 3535

32



ATTACHMENT " C"

From:      Robin Reimold- TeamCalifornia

To: Shelley Burcham
Subject:    EXTERNAL**] Last Day for Early Bird- TeamCalifornia lCSC@Western
Date:      Thursday, August 31, 2023 12: 47: 48 PM

i

i
i

i

I

ICSC@Western

October 25 - 27, 2023

San Diego Convention Center

TODAY IS THE LAST DAY TO

RESERVE TO RECEIVE EARLY BIRD PRICING WITH

TEAMGALIFORNIA!

IF YOU ARE INTERESTED IN PARTICIPATING IN

OUR BOOTH AND/ OR RECEPTION, LET US KNOW!

P/ease disregard this notice if you' ve already signed up and have been invoiced.

Meet with Prospects

in Your Reserved

Meeting Space and
Tables

0

Display your
i Marketing Materials

and Giveaways

Exhibit with

33



TeamCalifornia for a

Fraction of the Cost of
i YO      W  €   

Going it Alone - Booth

Space, Backdrops

and Furniture

i Expenses Add Up!

0 Receive Booth Leads

and Marketing
Support With the

Event

TeamCalifornia has a

20x20 open island

T_,m____.__.__ , w.__,.__,,    booth reserved ( same

size as Western

2022)

3

i

Booth Participation Cost TeamCalifornia Reception

Before September 1:       We are trying something new: our
Members: $ 1000 reception will be located AT OUR

Nonmembers: $ 1500 I the last two hours of Day
1 exhibiting. Receive recognition

After September 1:  and take advantage of the leads

Members: $ 1200 we will generate during this time!
Nonmembers: $ 1700

TeamCalifornia Reception

Contact rQbin teamca. or to Sponsorship Cost
reserve your participation with us

today**  Before Sept 1:

34



Members: $ 500

You are welcome to participate in     ( Bundled with Booth Participation)

the booth only or bundle together
with our reception

After September 1:

Members: $ 600

Bundled  Booth Participation)
Deadline for Artwork - October 15,

2023 Reception Only Sponsorship:
Members: $ 700

Reception Only - Not A Booth

Participant)

Reception Only Sponsorship:
Nonmembers: $ 1000

Includes pre- reception sponsor
email recognition, reception

signage plus follow up listing of all
attendees

C 7    C    C

TeamCalifornia ( 11762 De Palma Rd., Suite C 73, Corona, CA 92883

Unsubscribe sburcham ci. lathrop. ca. us

Update Profile  Constant Contact Data PJotice

Sent by robin teamca. org powlered by

35



36



ITEM 4. 5

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PLANNING FEE WAIVER REQUEST BY GLOBAL SEVA
FOUNDATION ( TUP- 23- 95)

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Waiving the Temporary Use

Permit Application Processing and Document

Retention Fees for the Global Seva Foundation,  in

the Combined Amount of $ 392

SUMMARY:

The Global Seva Foundation will be holding a River Islands ( RI) / Lathrop Ganesh
Utsav Festival event from Monday,   September 18,   2023 through Saturday,
September 23, 2023. The weekday hours will be from 6: 00 pm to 9: 00 pm and on
Saturday from 10: 00 am to 12: 00 pm. The event will take place outdoors just north
of the River Islands Welcome Center along River Island Parkway and east of
Somerston Parkway as illustrated with the event' s proposed site plans ( Attachment

3).

Global Seva Foundation submitted a letter requesting the City waive the Temporary
Use Permit ( TUP) application processing fee of $ 382, and the document retention

fee of $ 10 ($ 392) for the event ( Attachment 2).

BACKGROUND:

The Global Seva Foundation is a 501( c)( 3) non- profit organization whose members

believe that basic health care and education are the foundations on which people
can improve their quality of life. As stated on their request letter for the fee waiver,
the organization was formed to provide a platform to celebrate the Indian Festival
to help bring the community together. Additionally, the organization partners with,
and supports, other charitable organizations that share their values for the global
community.

The Global Seva Foundation organization submitted a Temporary Use Permit

application requesting that they be permitted to hold their first RI/ Lathrop Ganesh
Utsav Festival event within the City of Lathrop with the goal being able to bring the
community together and create a space for people to get to know one another. It is
the organization' s hope to make this an annual event for the community and
provide multiple events in the near future for Lathrop residents.

The City Council has approved similar requests from non- profit groups that
sponsored events for the community.

37



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

GLOBAL SEVA FOUNDATION FEE WAIVER

The City' s fee waiver policy allows for such waivers if the fee waiver supports a
public benefit to the community, and the amount of the fee waiver is de- minimis in
nature and is not subsidized by other facility fees.  The  $ 392,  includes both

application processing and document retention fees.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the City Council adopt a resolution to waive the Temporary Use
Permit Application and Document Retention Fees, and make findings that the fee

waiver supports a public benefit to the community, and that the amount of the fee
waiver is de- minimis in nature and is not subsidized by other facility fees.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The requested fee waiver is $ 392.

ATTACH M ENTS:

1.       Resolution Approving the Fee Waiver Request
2.       Applicant Fee Waiver Request Letter

3.       Event description w/ site plans for TUP- 23- 95

38



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

GLOBAL SEVA FOUNDATION FEE WAIVER

APPROVALS:

l lzv
r nt DaDalt Date

Assistant Planner

8"laa 3

es Michaels Date

Senior Planner

z   Z3
Ri Caguiat Da e

C c unity evelopment Director
1

g  
Cari Date

Finance   ' ector

z y--Z L 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

9• t • 2,
Stephen Salvatore Date

City Manager

39



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP WAIVING

THE TEMPORARY USE PERMIT APPLICATION PROCESSING AND DOCUMENT

RETENTION FEES FOR THE GLOBAL SEVA FOUNDATION IN THE COMBINED

AMOUNT OF $ 392

WHEREAS, on September 11, 2023, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
considered a request by the Global Seva Foundation to waive the $ 382 Temporary
Use Permit Fee and the $ 10 Document Retention Fee; and

WHEREAS, the event is the River Islands ( RI)/ Lathrop Ganesh Utsav Festival
event which was held from Monday, September 18, 2023 to Saturday, September
23, 2023; and

WHEREAS,  the City' s adopted fee waiver policy allows for such waivers
when the City Council finds that the request provides a public benefit to the
community, and that the amount of the request is de minimis in nature and is not
subsidized from other facility fees.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED,  the City Council finds that the
request provides a public benefit to the community,  and that the amount of the

request is de minimis in nature and is not subsidized from other facility fees; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that in view of the direct public benefit
provided by the Global Seva Foundation RI/ Lathrop Ganesh Utsav Festival event
within the City of Lathrop, the City Council of the City of Lathrop does hereby waive
the Temporary Use Permit Application Fee in the amount of $ 382 and Document

Retention Fee in the amount of $ 10 for a total of $392.

Resolution No. 23-

40



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11t'' day of September 2023, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 23-

41



v r F

G

i ll N

o*      
ATTACHMENT      

e5
P k'7h CoR` p

A 501( C)( 3) Non- Profit Organization

EID # 92- 1488634

August 14, 2023

Subject: Request for Fee Waiver for the GSF RI/ Lathrop Ganesh Utsav 2023 Event

To Whom it may concern:

Global Seva Foundation ( GSF) is a 501( C)( 3) Non- Profit organization is formed to

provide a platform to celebrate India Festival " RI/ Lathrop Ganesh Utsav 2023 Event"
to bring the community together. Community members will be able to socialize with
each other during the event.

GSF is requesting for a Fee Waiver for the event. Thank you for your consideration and
we eagerly wait for your favorable response.

Sincerely,

Devender Narala

GSF Member

42



August 15, 2023
T CH E T `     '

Attn: Trent Dadalt

Asst. Planner

City of Lathrop

RE:    RI/ Lathrop Ganesh Utsav Additional Information

General Information on Ganesh Utsav aka Ganesh Chaturthi

Ganesh Chaturthi or Vinayaka Chaturthi is the Hindu celebration of the

birth of Lord Ganesh. His life represents prosperity, wisdom, and good
fortune. The festival is marked with the installation of Ganesh' s clay idols
publicly on temporary stages. Observances include chanting of Vedic
hymns and Hindu texts, such as prayers and vrata. The festival celebrates
Ganesh as the God of New Beginnings and the Remover of Obstacles as

well as the god of wisdom and intelligence and is observed throughout
India. The Festival is observed for 5 days and on 6t" day, the festival ends.

Ganesh Chaturthi for the year 2023 is celebrated/ observed on Monday,
September 18.

Monday, Sept. 18, 2023 — Start 6 PM — End 9 PM. Expected number

of people ( Devotee' s) are 200.
Tuesday, Sept. 19, 2023 — Start 6 PM — End 8 PM. Expected number

of people ( Devotee' s) are 50.
Wednesday, Sept. 20, 2023 - Start 6 PM — End 8 PM. Expected

number of people ( Devotee' s) are 50.
Thursday, Sept. 21, 2023 - Start 6 PM — End 8 PM. Expected number

of people ( Devotee' s) are 50.
Friday, Sept. 22, 2023 - Start 6 PM — End 8 PM. Expected number of

people ( Devotee' s) are 200.
Saturday, Sept. 23, 2023 - Start 10 AM — End 12 Noon. Expected

number of people ( Devotee' s) are 50.

43



Pre- Cooked Food will be distributed on Monday and Friday to the
Devotee' s attending the event. No sale of Food is allowed, and no stalls are
planned for this event.

Temporary tent 40' X 100' and the stage 40' x 40' will be erected by the
contractor. The stage has steps and a ramp for ADA Compliance.

We plan to rent a generator for the event. We will have a microphone and
couple of speakers.

We are planning to use the existing Porta- Potties at the Welcome Center
for this event. If additional units are required, we can rent them.

We are coordinating with the Police Department and Fire Department. We
sent the application to both and will be going in- person to talk to them.

We are available to attend any City meeting to answer any questions.

Thanks

Devender Narala

GSF Member

44



r , i°#     `;.' II           

N.
p. i 411 if{6 dj P,,

iy}  I p I
f         I      

IV     `
n. 

x .      6,,.

ka     

sf      ,'       u

a
a

f

r      `          
n

a._,,  
Fy  

m

a       ''

4

W  

a
w.,

n.       

i#   ,   .„ f, v e.       i,;  ,, , . s..: w -„ k  ,,     

n

V/   

rn   =

7 O
w

5            D
z.

i,  rn

r

C

C/    t

45



46



ITEM 4. 6

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF THE SELECTIVE

TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM  ( STEP)  GRANT

FUND AWARD FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

OFFICE OF THE TRAFFIC SAFETY ( OTS)

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Authorizing the Chief of Police to
Accept the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program

STEP) Grant Fund Award of $ 60, 000 from the State

of California Office of Traffic Safety ( OTS)

SUMMARY:

In January 2023, the Lathrop Police Department ( LPD) submitted an application to

the State of California Office of Traffic Safety  ( OTS)  for a Selective Traffic

Enforcement Program ( STEP) grant. This grant is funded by the National Highway
Transportation Safety Administration ( NHTSA) and is administered by the OTS. The
Lathrop Police Department has been tentatively awarded $ 60, 000 for STEP Activities.

The purpose of this grant is to reduce the number of persons killed and injured in
crashes involving alcohol and other primary collision factors. STEP activities include
the following:  impaired driving enforcement,  enforcement operations focused on

primary crash factors, distracted driving, seat- belt enforcement, officer training, and
public education and awareness programs.

LPD will be able to utilize these funds on focused traffic enforcements to mitigate
traffic issues in the City due to speeding,  drunk driving,  distracted and reckless

driving, along with purchasing traffic equipment and providing officer training. Staff
recommends Council adopt resolution authorizing the Chief of Police to accept the
STEP grant fund award of $ 60, 000 from the State of California Office of Traffic Safety
and sign the final grant agreement.

BACKGROUND:

In January 2023, the Lathrop Police Department submitted an application to the State
of California Office of Traffic Safety for the STEP grant and has been tentatively
awarded $ 60, 000 for STEP activities.

The City of Lathrop has immediate access and proximity to Interstate 5, Interstate

205, Highway 120, and Highway 99 which brings with it increased vehicle traffic from
residents and visitors passing through on the freeways.  An analysis of our traffic

accidents to date has identified the most common primary collision factors in the City
of Lathrop as; speeding, DUI, and unsafe lane changes. In the first six months of law
enforcement services by LPD, there were 148 total crashes within the City of Lathrop.
49 of the crashes were due to speeding,  19 caused by DUIs, and 19 were due to

47



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF THE SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT

PROGRAM ( STEP) GRANT FUND AWARD FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

OFFICE OF THE TRAFFIC SAFETY ( OTS)

unsafe lane changes. Of the 148 total crashes, 38 resulted in injury with 50 victims.
LPD also recorded 70 hit and run collisions, with 3 causing injury to 5 victims. LPD

had no fatalities due to crashes in 2022.

The Lathrop Police Department will utilize the funding from the grant to conduct
Sobriety Checkpoints,  have DUI saturation patrols,  implement traffic enforcement

operations focused on the primary collision factors,  conduct nighttime Click it or

Ticket enforcement operations, conduct distracted driving enforcements for drivers
using cell phones or texting,  conduct pedestrian and bicycle operations,  provide
education to the public, purchase traffic enforcement equipment, and send officers
to training.

Accepting the STEP grant will allow for the purchase of traffic equipment, reimburse
overtime hours directly related to additional traffic enforcements and public

education, and reimburse for traffic training courses for our officers. The STEP grant
will be used to reduce the number of persons killed and injured in crashes involving
alcohol and other primary collision factors.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The STEP grant will provide funding to LPD to help reduce the number of persons
killed and injured in crashes involving alcohol and other primary collision factors.
Additionally,  it will help address traffic issues such as speeding,  drunk driving,
distracted and reckless driving. LPD will also purchase traffic equipment and provide
enhanced training for police officers.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no adverse financial impact to the City of Lathrop to accept the STEP Grant
from the State of California Office of Traffic Safety of $ 60, 000. The revenue for the

STEP grant is included in our adopted FY 23- 24 Budget and is allocated to overtime
hours, training, and equipment purchase.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Authorizing the Chief of Police to Accept the Selective Traffic
Enforcement Program ( STEP) Grant Fund Award of $ 60, 000 from the State of

California Office of Traffic Safety ( OTS)

B.       Tentative Draft Grant Agreement for the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program

STEP)

48



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF THE SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT

PROGRAM  ( STEP) GRANT FUND AWARD FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

OFFICE OF THE TRAFFIC SAFETY ( OTS)

APPROVALS:

z  L3
Raymond Bechler Da e

Chief of Police

1 2

Cari James  Date

Finance Dire or

8'' Z' 
z3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l•l-Z3
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

49



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF OF POLICE TO ACCEPT THE SELECTIVE TRAFFIC

ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM  ( STEP) GRANT FUND AWARD OF $ 60, 000 FROM

THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY ( OTS)

WHEREAS, in January 2023, the Lathrop Police Department ( LPD) submitted

an application to the State of California Office of Traffic Safety ( OTS) for a Selective

Traffic Enforcement Program ( STEP) grant; and

WHEREAS, this grant is funded by the National Highway Transportation Safety
Administration ( NHTSA) and is administered by the OTS; and

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Police Department was has been tentatively awarded
60, 000 for STEP Activities; and

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Police Department will utilize the funding from the
grant to conduct Sobriety Checkpoints, have DUI saturation patrols, implement traffic
enforcement operations focused on the primary collision factors, conduct nighttime
Click it or Ticket enforcement operations, conduct distracted driving enforcements for
drivers using cell phones or texting,  conduct pedestrian and bicycle operations,
provide education to the public, purchase traffic enforcement equipment, and send
officers to training; and

WHEREAS,  accepting the STEP grant will allow for the purchase of traffic
equipment,   reimburse overtime hours directly related to additional traffic

enforcements and public education, and reimburse for traffic training courses for our
officers; and

WHEREAS, there is no adverse financial impact to the City of Lathrop to accept
the STEP grant from the State of California Office of Traffic Safety of $ 60, 000. The

revenue for the STEP grant is included in our adopted FY 23- 24 Budget and is
allocated to overtime hours, training, and equipment purchase; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby authorize the Chief of Police to accept the Selective Traffic
Enforcement Program  ( STEP)  Grant Fund Aware of  $ 60, 000 from the State of

California Office of Traffic Safety and sign the final agreement.

50



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September
2023, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

51



State of California— Office of Traffic Safety
ATTACHMENT B GRANT NUMBER

GRANT AGREEMENT PT24101

1.  GRANT TITLE

Selective Traffic Enforcement Pro ram ( STEP

2.   NAME OF AGENCY 3.  Grant Period

Lathrop From:   10/ 01/ 2023

4.  AGENCY UNIT TO ADMINISTER GRANT
To:   09/ 30/ 2024

Lathro Police De artment

5.  GRANT DESCRIPTION

Best practice strategies will be conducted to reduce the number of persons killed and injured in crashes
involving alcohol and other primary crash factors. The funded strategies may include impaired driving
enforcement, enforcement operations focusing on primary crash factors, distracted driving, night- time seat belt
enforcement, special enforcement operations encouraging motorcycle safety, enforcement and public
awareness in areas with a high number of bicycle and pedestrian crashes, and educational programs. These
strate ies are desi ned to earn media attention thus enhancin the overall deterrent effect.

6.   Federal Funds Allocated Under This A reement Shall Not Exceed: 60, 000. 00

7.  TERMS AND CONDITIONS: The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following which are by
this reference made a part of the Agreement:

Schedule A— Problem Statement, Goals and Objectives and Method of Procedure

Schedule B— Detailed Budget Estimate and Sub- Budget Estimate ( if applicable)

Schedule B- 1 — Budget Narrative and Sub- Budget Narrative ( if applicable)

Exhibit A— Certifications and Assurances

Exhibit B*— OTS Grant Program Manual

Exhibit C— Grant Electronic Management System ( GEMS) Access

Items shown with an asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this agreement as if
attached hereto.

These documents can be viewed at the OTS home web page under Grants: www.ots. ca.gov.

We, the officials named below, hereby swear under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that we
are duly authorized to legally bind the Grant recipient to the above described Grant terms and conditions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.
8.  A roval Si natures

A.  GRANT DIRECTOR B.  AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL

NnME:  Stephen Sealy NaME:  Raymond Bechler

Tir E:  Operations Commander TiT e:  Chief of Police

Ernni:  ssealy@ci. lathrop. ca. us EMa, i:   rbechler@ci. lathrop. ca. us
PHONE:  2096476403 PHONE:  2096476401

A REss:  940 River Island Parkway A aEss:  940 River Islands Parkway
Lathrop, CA 95330 Lathrop, CA 95330

Signature) Date)    Signature)  Date)

C.  FISCAL OFFICIAL D.  AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL OF OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY
Nnnne:  Thomas Hedagard NaME:  Barbara Rooney
TiT E:  Depury City Manager TiT E:  Director

EMni:  thedegard@ci. lathrop. ca.us EMai:  barbara. rooney@ots. ca. gov
PHorvE:  ( 209) 941- 7329 PHONE:  ( 916) 509- 3030

AooREss:  390 Town Centre Dr A Ress:  2208 Kausen Drive, Suite 300

Lathrop, CA 95330 Elk Grove, CA 95758

Signature) Date)    Signature)  Date)

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 1 of 15

52



E.  ACCOUNTING OFFICER OF OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY J.  SAM INFORMATION

NaME:   Carolyn Vu SAM#:   KFKVB7ZSMDV6

Ao REss:   2208 Kausen Drive, Suite 300 REGISTERED

Elk Grove, CA 95758
AooaEss:   390 Towne Centre Dr

CiTv:   Lathrop
ZiP+ 4:   95330- 9358

10. PROJECTED EXPENDITURES

FUND CFDA ITEM/ APPROPRIATION F. Y.      CHAPTER STATUTE
PROJECTED

EXPENDITURES

AG R EEM ENT
60, 000. 00

TOTAL

AMOUNT ENCUMBERED BY THIS DOCUMENT

60, 000. 00

1 CERTIFYupon my own personal knowledge that the budgeted
PRIOR AMOUNT ENCUMBERED FOR THIS

funds for the current budget year are available for the period and
AGREEMENT

purpose of the expenditure stated above.
0. 00

OTS ACCOUNTING OFFICER' S SIGNATURE DATE SIGNED TOTAL AMOUNT ENCUMBERED TO DATE

60, 000. 00

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 2 of 15

53



SCHEDULE A
State of California— Office of Traffic Safety GRANT NUMBER

GRANT AGREEMENT PT24101
Schedule A

1.  PROBLEM STATEMENT

The City of Lathrop was incorporated in 1989 and according to the Department of Finance, the recent
population estimate for 2022 is 31, 331. Lathrop is currently ranked as the number 2 fastest growing City in
the State of California with a 6. 63% growth rate. Encompassing 23 square miles and located 70 miles from
the Bay Area, this bedroom community has experienced rapid growth in residential, commercial, and
industrial development. The City' s explosive growth and its immediate access and proximity to I- 5, I- 205,
Highway 120, and Highway 99 brings with it increased vehicle traffic throughout the City. The Lathrop Police
Department is currently made up of 35 sworn officers that includes one Chief, two Commanders, five Patrol
Sergeants, one Detective Sergeant, two Detectives, three School Resource Officers, one Community
Resource Officer, three K- 9 Officers, one Motor Officer, and 16 Patrol Officers.

For the last three decades, the San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Department had provided law enforcement
services for Lathrop, however, on June 29, 2022, the City of Lathrop severed the law enforcement contract
and established its own police department. During the first 6 months of service to the community, it was
quickly learned that traffic violations and crashes were widespread concerns. The most common Primary
Crash Factors were found to be Speeding, DUI, and Unsafe Lane Changes. There were 148 total crashes
within the City of Lathrop from June 29, 2022 to December 31, 2022 of which 49 was due to speeding, 19
was due to DUIs, and 19 was due to unsafe lane changes. Out of the 148 total crashes, 38 resulted in injury
with 50 victims injured. There were also 70 hit and runs, with 3 causing injury to 5 victims. Fortunately, there
were no fatalities due to crashes in 2022.

As a new police department, the leadership team focuses development of staff and puts priority on training
and ensuring that our officers have the proper certifications required. We plan to grow our Traffic Unit,
increase our efforts to educate the public on traffic safety issues, and add additional traffic enforcements
throughout the City. The police department is hopeful to bring down our total crash numbers, keep our
fatality rate to zero, and provide proactive traffic safety education for the community that reside, work, play,
and visit the City of Lathrop. As part of the public education and to keep fatalities to zero, we would like to
reach out to not just the drivers, but the passengers, pedestrians, bicyclists, and motorcyclists that use our
roadways. For focused traffic enforcements, our goal would be to saturate our streets with officers at high
risk areas and during hours of increased traffic activities and have focus enforcements for our Primary Crash
Factors. The department would also like to provide more traffic enforcements during community events,
school events, commute times, and nighttime hours to mitigate traffic crashes due to speeding, sideshows,
textin while drivin  , and reckless drivin  .

2.  PERFORMANCE MEASURES

A.  Goals:

1.  Reduce the number of persons killed in traffic crashes.
2.  Reduce the number of persons injured in traffic crashes.
3.  Reduce the number of pedestrians killed in traffic crashes.
4.  Reduce the number of pedestrians injured in traffic crashes.
5.  Reduce the number of bicyclists killed in traffic crashes.

6.  Reduce the number of bicyclists injured in traffic crashes.

7.  Reduce the number of persons killed in alcohol- involved crashes.
8.  Reduce the number of persons injured in alcohol- involved crashes.
9.  Reduce the number of persons killed in drug- involved crashes.
10. Reduce the number of persons injured in drug- involved crashes.
11. Reduce the number of persons killed in alcohol/ drug combo- involved crashes.
12. Reduce the number of persons injured in alcohol/ drug combo- involved crashes.
13. Reduce the number of motorcyclists killed in traffic crashes.

14. Reduce the number of motorcyclists injured in traffic crashes.

15. Reduce hit & run fatal crashes.

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 3 of 15

54



16. Reduce hit& run injury crashes.
17. Reduce nighttime ( 2100 - 0259 hours) fatal crashes.

18. Reduce nighttime ( 2100 - 0259 hours) injury crashes.
B.  Objectives: Target Number

1.  Issue a press release announcing the kick- off of the grant by November 15.  The 1

kick- off press releases and media advisories, alerts, and materials must be
emailed to the OTS Public Information Officer at pio@ots. ca. gov, and copied to

your OTS Coordinator, for approval 14 days prior to the issuance date of the
release.

2.  Participate and report data ( as required) in the following campaigns; Quarter 1:  10

National Walk to School Day, National Teen Driver Safety Week, NHTSA Winter
Mobilization; Quarter 3: National Distracted Driving Awareness Month, National
Motorcycle Safety Month, National Bicycle Safety Month, National Click it or Ticket
Mobilization; Quarter 4: NHTSA Summer Mobilization, National Child Passenger

Safet Week, and California' s Pedestrian Safet Month.

3.  Develop ( by December 31) and/ or maintain a " DUI BOLO" program to notify patrol 12

and traffic officers to be on the lookout for identified repeat DUI offenders with a

suspended or revoked license as a result of DUI convictions. Updated DUI BOLOs

should be distributed to atrol and traffic officers monthl .

4.  Send law enforcement personnel to the NHTSA Standardized Field Sobriety 5

Testin SFST minimum 16 hours POST-certified trainin  .

5.  Send law enforcement personnel to the NHTSA Advanced Roadside Impaired 1

Drivin Enforcement ARIDE 16 hour POST- certified trainin  .

6.  Send law enforcement personnel to the Drug Recognition Expert ( DRE) training. 1

7.  Send law enforcement personnel to the DRE Recertification training. 1

8.  Conduct DUI/ DL Checkpoints. A minimum of 1 checkpoint should be conducted 2

during the NHTSA Winter Mobilization and 1 during the Summer Mobilization. To
enhance the overall deterrent effect and promote high visibility, it is recommended
the grantee issue an advance press release and conduct social media activity for
each checkpoint. For combination DUI/ DL checkpoints, departments should issue

press releases that mention DL' s will be checked at the DUI/ DL checkpoint. Signs
for DUI/ DL checkpoints should read " DUI/ Driver' s License Checkpoint Ahead."

OTS does not fund or support independent DL checkpoints. Only on an exception
basis and with OTS pre- approval will OTS fund checkpoints that begin prior to
1800 hours. When possible, DUI/ DL Checkpoint screeners should be DRE- or
ARIDE- trained.

9.  Conduct DUI Saturation Patrol operation( s). 6

10. Conduct Traffic Enforcement operation( s), including but not limited to, primary 4

crash factor violations.

11. Conduct highly publicized Distracted Driving enforcement operation( s) targeting 4

drivers usin hand held cell phones and textin  .
12. Conduct Ni httime 1800- 0559) Click It or Ticket enforcement operation s .       2

13. Conduct highly publicized pedestrian and/ or bicycle enforcement operation( s) in 5

areas or during events with a high number of pedestrian and/ or bicycle crashes
resultin from violations made b edestrians, bic clists, and drivers.

14. Conduct Traffic Safety educational presentation( s) with an effort to reach 2

community members. Note: Presentation( s) may include topics such as distracted
driving, DUI, speed, bicycle and pedestrian safety, seat belts and child passenger
safet .

15.

16. Send law enforcement personnel to DUI Checkpoint Planning and Management 2

trainin  .

17. Conduct specialized enforcement operations focusing specifically on street racing 1

and sideshow activities.

3.  METHOD OF PROCEDURE

A.  Phase 1 — Pro ram Pre aration ( 15t Quarter of Grant Year)

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 4 of 15

55



The department will develop operational plans to implement the " best practice" strategies
outlined in the objectives section.

All training needed to implement the program should be conducted in the first quarter.
All grant related purchases needed to implement the program should be made in the first quarter.
In order to develop/ maintain the " DUI BOLOs," research will be conducted to identify the " worst of
the worst" repeat DUI offenders with a suspended or revoked license as a result of DUI

convictions. The DUI BOLO may include the driver' s name, last known address, DOB,
description, current license status, and the number of times suspended or revoked for DUI. DUI

BOLOs should be updated and distributed to traffic and patrol officers at least monthly.
Implementation of the STEP grant activities will be accomplished by deploying personnel at high
crash locations.

Media Requirements Issue a press release approved by the OTS PIO announcing the kick-off of the
grant by November 15, but no sooner than October 1. The kick-off release must be approved by the
OTS PIO and only distributed after the grant is fully signed and executed. If you are unable to meet the
November 15 deadline to issue a kick- off press release, communicate reasons to your OTS coordinator
and OTS PIO.

B.  Phase 2— Proqram Operations ( Throughout Grant Year)

The department will work to create media opportunities throughout the grant period to call
attention to the innovative program strategies and outcomes.

Media Requirements

The following requirements are for all grant- related activities:
Send all media advisories, alerts, videos, graphics, artwork, posters, radio/ PSA/ video scripts,
storyboards, digital and/ or print educational materials for grant- related activities to the OTS PIO
at pio@ots. ca.gov for approval and copy your OTS coordinator. Optimum lead time would be 7
days before the scheduled release but at least 3 business days prior to the scheduled release
date for review and approval is appreciated.

The OTS PIO is responsible for the approval of the design and content of materials. The agency
understands OTS PIO approval is not authorizing approval of budget expenditure or cost. Any
cost approvals must come from the Coordinator.

Pre- approval is not required when using any OTS- supplied template for media advisories, press
releases, social media graphics, videos or posts, or any other OTS- supplied educational material.
However, copy the OTS PIO at pio@ots. ca. gov and your OTS coordinator when any material is
distributed to the media and public, such as a press release, educational material, or link to social
media post. The OTS- supplied kick- off press release templates and any kickoff press releases
are an exception to this policy and require prior approval before distribution to the media and
public.

If an OTS- supplied template, educational material, social media graphic, post or video is
substantially changed, the changes shall be sent to the OTS PIO at pio@ots. ca. gov for approval
and copy to your OTS Coordinator. Optimum lead time would be 7 days prior to the scheduled
release date, but at least 3 business days prior to the scheduled release date for review and
approval is appreciated.

Press releases, social media posts and alerts on platforms such as NextDoor and Nixle reporting
immediate and time-sensitive grant activities ( e.g. enforcement operations, day of event
highlights or announcements, event invites) are exempt from the OTS PIO approval process. The
OTS PIO and your Coordinator should still be notified when the grant- related activity is
happening ( e. g. car seat checks, bicycle rodeos, community presentations, DUI checkpoints,
etc.).

Enforcement activities such as warrant and probation sweeps, court stings, etc. that are
embargoed or could impact operations by publicizing in advance are exempt from the PIO
approval process. However, announcements and results of activities should still be copied to the
OTS PIO at pio@ots.ca. gov and your Coordinator with embargoed date and time or with
INTERNAL ONLY: DO NOT RELEASE" message in subject line of email.

Any earned or paid media campaigns for TV, radio, digital or social media that are part of a
specific grant objective, using OTS grant funds, or designed and developed using contractual
services b a sub rantee, requires prior approval. Please send to the OTS PIO at

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 5 of 15

56



pio@ots. ca.gov for approval and copy your grant coordinator at least 3 business days prior to the
scheduled release date.

Social media posts highlighting state or national traffic safety campaigns ( Distracted Driving
Month, Motorcycle Safety Awareness Month, etc.), enforcement operations ( DUI checkpoints,

etc.), or any other grant- related activity such as Bicycle rodeos, presentations, or events, are
highly encouraged but do not require prior approval.
Submit a draft or rough- cut of all digital, printed, recorded or video material ( brochures, posters,
scripts, artwork, trailer graphics, digital graphics, social posts connected to an earned or paid
media campaign grant objective) to the OTS PIO at pio@ots. ca.gov and copy your OTS
Coordinator for approval prior to the production or duplication.

Use the following standard language in all press, media, and printed materials, space permitting:
Funding for this program was provided by a grant from the California Office of Traffic Safety,
through the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration.
Space permitting, include the OTS logo on all grant-funded print materials, graphics and paid or
earned social media campaign grant objective; consult your OTS Coordinator for specifics,
format-appropriate logos, or if space does not permit the use of the OTS logo.
Email the OTS PIO at pio@ots. ca. gov and copy your OTS Coordinator at least 21 days in
advance, or when first confirmed, a short description of any significant grant- related traffic safety
event or program, particularly events that are highly publicized beforehand with anticipated media
coverage so OTS has sufficient notice to arrange for attendance and/ or participation in the event.
If unable to attend, email the OTS PIO and coordinator brief highlights and/ or results, including
any media coverage ( broadcast, digital, print) of event within 7 days following significant grant-
related event or program. Media and program highlights are to be reflected in QPRs.
Any press releases, work plans, scripts, storyboards, artwork, graphics, videos or any
educational or informational materials that received PIO approval in a prior grant year needs to
be resubmitted for approval in the current grant year.
Contact the OTS PIO or your OTS Coordinator for consultation when changes from any of the
above requirements might be warranted.

C.  Phase 3 — Data Collection 8 Reportinq ( Throughout Grant Year)

1. Prepare and submit grant claim invoices ( due January 30, April 30, July 30, and October 30)
2. Prepare and submit Quarterly Performance Reports ( QPR) ( due January 30, April 30, July 30, and
October 30)

Collect and report quarterly, appropriate data that supports the progress of goals and objectives.

Provide a brief list of activity conducted, procurement of grant- funded items, and significant
media activities. Include status of grant- funded personnel, status of contracts, challenges, or
special accomplishments.

Provide a brief summary of quarterly accomplishments and explanations for objectives not
completed or plans for upcoming activities.
Collect, analyze and report statistical data relating to the grant goals and objectives.

4.  METHOD OF EVALUATION

Using the data compiled during the grant, the Grant Director will complete the " Final Evaluation" section in
the fourth/ final Quarterly Performance Report ( QPR). The Final Evaluation should provide a brief summary
of the granYs accomplishments, challenges and significant activities. This narrative should also include
whether oals and ob' ectives were met, exceeded, or an explanation of wh ob' ectives were not completed.

5.  ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

This program has full administrative support, and every effort will be made to continue the grant activities
after grant conclusion.

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 6 of 15

57



State of California— Office of Traffic Safety SCHEDULE B GRANT NUMBER

GRANT AGREEMENT PT24101
Schedule B

FUND NUMBER CATALOG FUND DESCRIPTION TOTAL AMOUNT

NuMBER( CFDA)

402PT- 24 20. 600 State and Community Highway 30, 000. 00

Safet

164AL- 24 20. 608 Minimum Penalties for Repeat 30, 000. 00

Offenders for Driving While
Intoxicated

COST CATEGORY FUND UNIT COST OR UNITS TOTAL COST TO

NUMBER RATE GRANT

A.  PERSONNEL COSTS

Straiqht Time

0. 00

Overtime

DUI/ DL Checkpoints 164AL- 24 6, 000. 00 2 12, 000. 00

DUI Saturation Patrols 164AL- 24 2, 200. 00 6 13, 200. 00

Traffic Enforcement 402PT- 24 1, 000. 00 4 4, 000. 00

Distracted Drivin 402PT- 24 1, 000. 00 4 4, 000. 00

Ni ht- time Click It Or Ticket 402PT- 24 1, 000. 00 2 2, 000. 00

Pedestrian and Bic cle Enforcement 402PT- 24 1, 300. 00 5 6, 500. 00

Street Racing and Sideshow Enforcement 402PT- 24 2, 500. 00 1 2, 500. 00

Operations

Traffic Safet Education 402PT- 24 425. 00 2 850. 00

Category Sub- Total 45,050. 00

B.  TRAVELEXPENSES

In State Travel 402PT- 24 5, 350. 00 1 5, 350. 00

0. 00

Category Sub- Total 5, 350. 00

C.  CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

0. 00

Category Sub- Total 0. 00

D.  EQUIPMENT

0

Category Sub- Total 0. 00

E.  OTHER DIRECT COSTS

Lidar Device 402PT- 24 2, 400. 00 2 4, 800. 00

DUI Checkpoint Supplies 164AL- 24 4, 800. 00 1 4, 800. 00

Category Sub- Total 9, 600. 00

F.  INDIRECT COSTS

0. 00

Category Sub- Total 0. 00

GRANT TOTAL 60, 000. 00

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 7 of 15

58



State of California— Office of Traffic Safety SCHEDULE B- GRANT NUMBER

GRANT AGREEMENT PT24101
Schedule B- 1

BUDGET NARRATIVE

PERSONNEL COSTS

DUI/ DL Checkpoints - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.
DUI Saturation Patrols - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.
Traffic Enforcement- Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.
Distracted Driving - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.
Night- time Click It Or Ticket - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by
appropriate department personnel.
Pedestrian and Bicycle Enforcement - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by
appropriate department personnel.
Street Racing and Sideshow Enforcement Operations - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement
operations conducted by appropriate department personnel.
Traffic Safety Education - Overtime for grant funded traffic safety presentations or campaigns conducted by
appropriate department personnel.

TRAVELEXPENSES

In State Travel - Costs are included for appropriate staff to attend conferences and training events
supporting the grant goals and objectives and/ or traffic safety. Local mileage for grant activities and
meetings is included. Anticipated travel may include the California Traffic Safety Summit and the OTS Traffic
Safety Law Enforcement Forum. All conferences, seminars or training not specifically identified in the Budget
Narrative must be approved by OTS. All travel claimed must be at the agency approved rate. Per Diem may
not be claimed for meals provided at conferences when registration fees are paid with OTS grant funds.

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

EQUIPMENT

OTHER DIRECT COSTS

Lidar Device - Light detection and ranging device used to measure the speed of motor vehicles. This device
will be used for speed enforcement. Costs ma include lidar devices, batteries, tax, and shippin  .

DUI Checkpoint Supplies - On- scene supplies needed to conduct sobriety checkpoints. Costs may include
28" traffic cones, MUTCD compliant traffic signs, MUTCD compliant high visibility vests ( maximum of 10),
traffic counters ( maximum of 2), generator, gas for generators, lighting, reflective banners, electronic flares,
PAS Device/Calibration Supplies, heater, propane for heaters, fan, anti- fatigue mats, and canopies.
Additional items may be purchased if approved by OTS. The cost of food and beverages will not be
reimbursed. Each item must have a unit cost of less than $ 5, 000 includin tax and shi pin   .
INDIRECT COSTS

STATEMENTS/ DISCLAIMERS

There will be no program income generated from this grant.

Nothing in this " agreemenY' shall be interpreted as a requirement, formal or informal, that a particular law
enforcement officer issue a specified or predetermined number of citations in pursuance of the goals and
ob' ectives here under.

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 8 of 15

59



State of California— Office of Traffic Safety
EXHIBIT A

GRANT NUMBER

GRANT AGREEMENT PT24101
Exhibit A

Certifications and Assurances for Fiscal Year 2024 Highway Safety Grants( 23 U. S. C. Chapter 4 or Section 1906,
Public Law 109- 59, as amended by Section 25024, Public Law 117- 58)

The officials named on the grant agreement, certify by way of signature on the grant agreement signature page,
that the Grantee Agency complies with ail applicable Federal statutes, regulations, and directives and State rules,
guidelines, policies, and laws in effect with respect to the periods for which it receives grant funding. Applicable
provisions include, but are not limited to, the following:

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The State will comply with applicable statutes and regulations, including but not limited to:

23 U. S. C. Chapter 4— Highway Safety Act of 1966, as amended;
Sec. 1906, Public Law 109- 59, as amended by Sec. 25024, Public Law 117- 58;
23 CFR part 1300— Uniform Procedures for State Highway Safety Grant Programs;
2 CFR part 200— Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal

Awards;

2 CFR part 1201— Department of Transportation, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards.

NONDISCRIMINATION

applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

The State highway safety agency [ and its subrecipients] will comply with all Federal statutes and implementing regulations
relating to nondiscrimination (" Federal Nondiscrimination Authorities"). These include but are not limited to:

Title VI of the Civil Righfs Act of 1964 ( 42 U. S. C. 2000d ef seq., 78 stat. 252), ( prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color, national origin);

49 CFR part 21  ( entitled Non- discrimination in Federally- Assisted Programs of the Department of
Transportation— Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

28 CFR 50. 3( U. S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisifion Policies Act of 1970, ( 42 U. S. C. 4601),

prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or
Federal- aid programs and projects);
Federal- Aid HighwayAct of 1973, ( 23 U. S. C. 324 et seq.), and Title IXof the Education Amendments of 1972,

as amended ( 20 U. S. C. 1681- 1683 and 1685- 1686) ( prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex);
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, ( 29 U. S. C. 794 et seq.), as amended, ( prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability) and 49 CFR part 27;
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, ( 42 U. S. C. 6101 et seq.), ( prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age);

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, ( Pub. L. 100- 209), ( broadens scope, coverage, and applicability of Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of

1973, by expanding the definition of the terms" programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities
of the Federal aid recipients, subrecipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally-
funded or not);

Titles ll and lll of the Americans with Disabilities Act( 42 U. S. C. 12131- 12189) ( prohibits discrimination on the
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public
accommodation, and certain testing) and 49 CFR qarts 37 and 38;
Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-
Income Populations( preventing discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs,
policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on
minority and low- income populations);
Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to Services forPersons with Limited English Proficiency( requiring that
recipients of Federal financial assistance provide meaningful access for applicants and beneficiaries who have
limited English proficiency( LEP));
Executive Order 13985 Advancing Racial Equity and Support for Underserved Communities through the
Federal Government( advancing equity across the Federal Government); and
Executive Order 13988. Preventing and Combating Discrimination on the Basis of Gender ldentity or
Sexual Orientation ( clarifying that sex discrimination includes discrimination on the grounds of gender
identity or sexual orientation).

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 9 of 15

60



The preceding statutory and regulatory cites hereinafter are referred to as the" Acts" and " Regulations," respectively.

GENERAL ASSURANCES

In accordance with the Acts, the Regulations, and other pertinent directives, circulars, policy, memoranda, and/ or
guidance, the Recipient hereby gives assurance that it will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that:

No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity, for which the Recipient
receives Federa/ financial assistance from DOT, including NHTSA."

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 clarified the original intent of Congress, with respect to Title VI of the Civil Rights

Act of 1964 and other non- discrimination requirements ( the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and Section 504 of the

Rehabilitation Act of 1973), by restoring the broad, institutional- wide scope and coverage of these nondiscrimination
statutes and requirements to include all programs and activities of the Recipient, so long as any portion of the program is
Federally assisted.

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES

More specifically, and without limiting the above general Assurance, the Recipient agrees with and gives the following
Assurances with respect to its Federally assisted Highway Safety Grant Program:

1.  The Recipient agrees that each " activity," " facility," or" program,° as defined in 2 i. 23( b) and ( c) of 49 CFR

aprt 21 will be( with regard to an " activity") facilitated, or will be( with regard to a" facility") operated, or will be
with regard to a" program") conducted in compliance with all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to the

Acts and the Regulations.

2.  The Recipient will insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests For Proposals for work,
or material subject to the Acts and the Regulations made in connection with all Highway Safety Grant
Programs and, in adapted form, in all proposals for negotiated agreements regardless of funding source:
The( name of Recipient], in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 ( 78 Stat.

252, 42 U. S. 0 2000d to 2000d- 4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively
ensure that in any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises
will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award."

3.  The Recipient will insert the clauses of appendix A and E of this Assurance ( also referred

to as DOT Order 1050. 2A) in every contract or agreement subject to the Acts and the Regulations.
4.  The Recipient will insert the clauses of appendix B of DOT Order 1050. 2A, as a covenant running with the land,

in any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property, structures, use, or
improvements thereon or interest therein to a Recipient.

5.  That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or part of a facility, the
Assurance will extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith.

6.  That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form of, or for the acquisition of, real

property or an interest in real property, the Assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under such
property.

7.  That the Recipient will include the clauses set forth in appendix C and appendix D of this DOT Order 1050. 2A,

as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, licenses, permits, or similar instruments
entered into by the Recipient with other parties:

a.  for the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the applicable activity,
project, or program; and

b.  for the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property acquired or
improved under the applicable activity, project, or program.

8.  That this Assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial assistance is extended
to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the form of, personal

property, or real property, or interest therein, or structures or improvements thereon, in which case the
Assurance obligates the Recipient, or any transferee for the longer of the following periods:

a.  the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is
extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits; or

b.  the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession of the property.
9.  The Recipient will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the Secretary of

Transportation or the official to whom he/ she delegates specific authority to give reasonable guarantee that it,

other recipients, sub- recipients, sub- grantees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees,
successors in interest, and other participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply
with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

10. The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter
arising under the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 10 of 15

61



By signing this ASSURANCE, the State highway safety agency also agrees to comply( and require any sub- recipients,
sub- grantees, contractors, successors, transferees, and/ or assignees to comply) with all applicable provisions governing
NHTSA's access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. You also recognize that you must

comply with any program or compliance reviews, and/ or complaint investigations conducted by NHTSA. You must keep
records, reports, and submit the material for review upon request to NHTSA, or its designee in a timely, complete, and

accurate way. Additionally, you must comply with all other reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as
prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance.

The State highway safety agency gives this ASSURANCE in consideration of and for obtaining any Federal grants, loans,
contracts, agreements, property, and/ or discounts, or other Federal- aid and Federal financial assistance extended after the
date hereof to the recipients by the U. S. Department of Transportation under the Highway Safety Grant Program. This
ASSURANCE is binding on the State highway safety agency, other recipients, sub- recipients, sub- grantees, contractors,
subcontractors and their subcontractors', transferees, successors in interest, and any other participants in the Highway
Safety Grant Program. The person( s) signing below is/ are authorized to sign this ASSURANCE on behalf of the Recipient.

THE DRUG- FREE WORKPLACE ACT OF 1988( 41 U. S. C. 8103)

The Subgrantee will provide a drug- free workplace by:
a.   Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,

possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee' s workplace, and specifying the
actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

b.   Establishing a drug- free awareness program to inform employees about:
1.   The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2.   The grantee' s policy of maintaining a drug- free workplace;
3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
4.   The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug violations occurring in the workplace;
5.   Making it a requirement that each employee engaged in the performance of the grant be given a

copy of the statement required by paragraph ( a);
c.   Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph ( a) that, as a condition of employment under

the grant, the employee will—
1.  Abide by the terms of the statement;
2.   Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the

workplace no later than five days after such conviction;

d.   Notifying the agency within ten days after receiving notice under subparagraph ( c)( 2) from an employee or
otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction;

e.  Taking one of the following actions, within 30 days of receiving notice under subparagraph ( c)( 2),
with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

1.  Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination;

2.   Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other
appropriate agency;

f.   Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug- free workplace through implementation of all
of the paragraphs above.

POLITICAL ACTIVITY( HATCH ACT)

applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

The State will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act( 5 U. S. C. 1501- 1508), which limits the political activities of
employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING FEDERAL LOBBYING

applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS, LOANS, AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1.   No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding
of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 11 of 15

62



2.   If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, " Disclosure Form to

Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions;
3.  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all

sub- awards at all tiers ( including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grant, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by section 1352, title 31, U. S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than$ 10, 000 and not more than$ 100, 000 for each such failure.

RESTRICTION ON STATE LOBBYING

applies to subrecipients as well as States)

None of the funds under this program will be used for any activity specifically designed to urge or influence a State or local
legislator to favor or oppose the adoption of any specific legislative proposal pending before any State or local legislative
body. Such activities include both direct and indirect( e. g., " grassroots") lobbying activities, with one exception. This does
not preclude a State official whose salary is supported with NHTSA funds from engaging in direct communications with
State or local legislative officials, in accordance with customary State practice, even if such communications urge
legislative officials to favor or oppose the adoption of a specific pending legislative proposal.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR PRIMARY TIER PARTICIPANT CERTIFICATION ( STATES)

1.   By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary tier participant is providing the certification set
out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.

2.  The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. The prospective primary tier participant shall submit an explanation of
why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in
connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However,
failure of the prospective primary tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

3.   The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the
department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to
the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default or may
pursue suspension or debarment.

4.  The prospective primary tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary tier participant learns its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

5.   The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, participant,
person, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 180 and
1200. You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for assistance
in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

6.  The prospective primary tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or
agency entering into this transaction.

7.   The prospective primary tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled " Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification" including the" Certification Regarding Debarment,
Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion— Lower Tier Covered Transaction," provided by the

department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions and will require lower tier participants to

comply with 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.
8.  A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier

covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9. 4, debarred,
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification
is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 12 of 15

63



otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the
eligibility of any prospective lower tier participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the
System for Award Management Exclusions website

h ttps:// www. sam. qov.

9.   Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is
not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business
dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment
under 48 CFR part 9, subqart 9. 4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in
this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency

may terminate the transaction for cause or default.
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS—

PRIMARY TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

1.  The prospective primary tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

a.  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

b.   Have not within a three- year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,

attempting to obtain, or performing a public( Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a
public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft,
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

c.   Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph ( 1)( b)

of this certification; and

d.   Have not within a three- year period preceding this application/ proposal had one or more public
transactions ( Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

2.  Where the prospective primary tier participant is unable to certify to any of the Statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR LOWER TIER PARTICIPANT CERTIFICATION

1.   By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set
out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.

2.  The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly
rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the

department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including
suspension or debarment.

3.  The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this
proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was
erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

4.  The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, participant, person,
principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200. You
may contact the person to whom this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those
regulations.

5.  The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9. 4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or
agency with which this transaction originated.

6.  The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled " Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification" including the " Certification Regarding Debarment,
Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion— Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in

all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions and will require

lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.
7.  A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier

covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9. 4, debarred,
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification
is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 13 of 15

64



otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the
eligibility of any prospective lower tier participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the
System for Award Management Exclusions website

https:// www. sam. gov.
8.   Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order

to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is
not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business
dealings.

9.   Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment
under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in
this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency
with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION—

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

1.  The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.

2.  Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

BUY AMERICA

applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipient will comply with the Buy America requirement( 23 U. S. C. 313) when purchasing items
using Federal funds. Buy America requires a State, or subrecipient, to purchase with Federal funds only steel, iron and
manufactured products produced in the United States, unless the Secretary of Transportation determines that such
domestically produced items would be inconsistent with the public interest, that such materials are not reasonably
available and of a satisfactory quality, or that inclusion of domestic materials will increase the cost of the overall project
contract by more than 25 percent. In order to use Federal funds to purchase foreign produced items, the State must
submit a waiver request that provides an adequate basis and justification for approval by the Secretary of Transportation.

CERTIFICATION ON CONFLICT OF INTEREST

applies to subrecipients as well as States)

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

No employee, officer, or agent of a State or its subrecipient who is authorized in an official capacity to negotiate, make,
accept, or approve, or to take part in negotiating, making, accepting, or approving any subaward, including contracts or
subcontracts, in connection with this grant shall have, directly or indirectly, any financial or personal interest in any such
subaward. Such a financial or personal interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or
her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties
indicated herein, has a financial or personal interest in or a tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a
subaward. Based on this policy:

1.  The recipient shall maintain a written code or standards of conduct that provide for disciplinary actions to be
applied for violations of such standards by officers, employees, or agents.

a.  The code or standards shall provide that the recipienYs officers, employees, or agents may neither
solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from present or potential
subawardees, including contractors or parties to subcontracts.

b.  The code or standards shall establish penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for
violations, as permitted by State or local law or regulations.

2.  The recipient shall maintain responsibility to enforce the requirements of the written code or standards of
conduct.

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34: 59 PM Page 14 of 15

65



DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

No State or its subrecipient, including its officers, employees, or agents, shall perform or continue to perform under a
grant or cooperative agreement, whose objectivity may be impaired because of any related past, present, or currently
planned interest, financial or otherwise, in organizations regulated by NHTSA or in organizations whose interests may be
substantially affected by NHTSA activities. Based on this policy:

1.  The recipient shall disclose any conflict of interest identified as soon as reasonably possible, making an
immediate and full disclosure in writing to NHTSA. The disclosure shall include a description of the action
which the recipient has taken or proposes to take to avoid or mitigate such conflict.

2.   NHTSA will review the disclosure and may require additional relevant information from the recipient. If a conflict
of interest is found to exist, NHTSA may( a) terminate the award, or( b) determine that it is otherwise in the best
interest of NHTSA to continue the award and include appropriate provisions to mitigate or avoid such conflict.

3.   Conflicts of interest that require disclosure include all past, present, or currently planned organizational,
financial, contractual, or other interest(s) with an organization regulated by NHTSA or with an organization
whose interests may be substantially affected by NHTSA activities, and which are related to this award. The
interest( s) that require disclosure include those of any recipient, affiliate, proposed consultant, proposed
subcontractor, and key personnel of any of the above. Past interest shall be limited to within one year of the
date of award. Key personnel shall include any person owning more than a 20 percent interest in a recipient,
and the officers, employees or agents of a recipient who are responsible for making a decision or taking an
action under an award where the decision or action can have an economic or other impact on the interests of a
regulated or affected organization.

PROHIBITION ON USING GRANT FUNDS TO CHECK FOR HELMET USAGE
applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipient will not use 23 U. S. C. Chapter 4 grant funds for programs to check helmet usage or to
create checkpoints that specifically target motorcyclists.

POLICY ON SEAT BELT USE

In accordance with Executive Order 13043, Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States, dated April 16, 1997, the
Grantee is encouraged to adopt and enforce on- the- job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees when
operating company-owned, rented, or personally-owned vehicles. The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
NHTSA) is responsible for providing leadership and guidance in support of this Presidential initiative. For information

and resources on traffic safety programs and policies for employers, please contact the Network of Employers for
Traffic Safety( NETS), a public-private partnership dedicated to improving the traffic safety practices of employers and
employees. You can download information on seat belt programs, costs of motor vehicle crashes to employers, and
other traffic safety initiatives at www. trafficsafety. org. The NHTSA website ( www. nhtsa. gov) also provides information
on statistics, campaigns, and program evaluations and references.

POLICY ON BANNING TEXT MESSAGING WHILE DRIVING

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership On Reducing Text Messaging While Driving, and DOT
Order 3902. 10, Text Messaging While Driving, States are encouraged to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies
to decrease crashes caused by distracted driving, including policies to ban text messaging while driving company-
owned or rented vehicles, Government- owned, leased or rented vehicles, or privately- owned vehicles when on official
Government business or when performing any work on or behalf of the Government. States are also encouraged to
conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the business, such as establishment of
new rules and programs or re- evaluation of existing programs to prohibit text messaging while driving, and education,
awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while driving.

8/ 16/ 2023 2: 34:59 PM Page 15 of 15

66



Exhibit B

CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF

T

California Office of Traffic Safety
Grant Program Manual
For Federal Fiscal Year 2023

This manual establishes consistent program and project management
procedures for the California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) staff and subrecipients
agencies/ organizations receiving federal grant funds from the OTS) to guide

the administration of the state' s highway safety program in compliance with
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration guidelines. Best practice requires
the OTS to have a current manual which documents standard operating

procedures and the management of the highway safety program. This manual
contains a written record of current approved administrative and financial

procedures; however, it does not specifically address all regulations. Periodic
changes and additions to the manual may be necessary to meet changing
federal and state laws and/ or to improve program management and fiscal
procedures. When an agency or organization accepts federal safety funds, it
also agrees to fully comply with all requirements in this manual and any periodic
changes that may be made during the grant period.

67



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Table of Contents

COMMONLY USED TERMS& ACRONYMS 1

HIGHWAY SAFETY PROGRAM 8

DEVELOPMENT OF THE STATE HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN 8

PROBLEM IDENTIFICATION& PROGRAM AREAS H

NHTSA PROGRAM PRIORIN AREAS 9

PROIECT SOLICITATION AND DEVELOPMENT 9

ANNUAL GRANT CYCLE 10

GRANT ELIGIBILITY 1O

ARE YOU ELIGiBLE FOR AN OTS GRANT?       10

GRANT TYPES 12

GRANT APPLICATION PROCESS AND REVIEW 12

GRANTAPPLICATION REVIEW 14

RISK ASSESSMENT 14

GRANTAGREEMENT& PRE- OPERATIONS MEETING 15

DRAFT GRANT AGREEMENT 15

FINAL GRANT AGREEMENT 18

PRE—OPERATIONAL REVIEW 19

GRANT REQUIREMENTS 19

FEDERAL 8e STATE REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE OTS GRANTS 19

AU DITS 20

FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY Hi TRANSPARENCY ACT 21

PROCUREMENT STANDARDS( COMPETITIVE Si SOIE SOURCE) 21

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 22

NON—PROFITS 24

TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES 24

INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION 24

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 24

SUBRECIPIENT RESPONSIBILITIES& PROCEDURES 25

AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL 25

GRANT DIRECTOR 2S

FISCAL OR ACCOUNTING OfFICIAL 26

CHANGE AUTHORIZED OFFICIALS OR DELEGATION 26

fINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 26

FRAUD PREVENTION 27

SAFEGUARDING PERSONAL INFORMATION ZH

DIRECT ALLOWABLE COSTS Hi SOURCE DOCUMENTS ZH

PERSONNEL 2H

TRAVEL 30

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 31

EQUIPMENT 31

OTHER DIRECT COSTS 32

ALLOWABLE INDIRECT COSTS 33

UNALLOWABLE COSTS FOR SELECTED ITEMS 33

GRANT REVISIONS 35

CLAIMS PREPARATION& REIMBURSEMENT 36

TOC Page 2 Revised:  10/ 2021

68



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
GRANT REPORTS 38

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT( QPR 38

GRANT CLOSE OUT 39

EQUIPMENT DISPOSAL 39

MONITORING 40

GRANT PERFORMANCE REVIEW 40

EQUIPMENT 41

PUBLIC INFORMATION& EDUCATION 41

ADVERTISING 8c PUBLIC RELATIONS 42

COPYRIGHTS TRADEMARKS 43

WITHHOLDING, DISALLOWANCE, REDUCTION, TERMINATION AND/ OR DENIAL OF GRANT FUNDS 43

TERMINATION REQUESTED BY THE SUBRECIPIENT 43

DISPUTES/ DISAGREEMENTS 44

APPENDIXA—CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY GRANTS 45

23 U. S. C. CHAPTER 4 AND 41 U. S. C. SEC. 1906, PUB. L. 109- 59, AS AMENDED BY SEC. 4011, PUB. L. 114- 94)  45

NONDISCRIMINATION 46

THE DRUG—FREE WORKPLACE ACT OF 1988( 41 U. S. C. 8103) 48

POLITICAL ACTIVITY( HATCH ACT)   49

CERTIFICATION REGARDING FEDERAL LOBBYING 49

RESTRICTION ON STATE LOBBYING 50

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENTANDSUSPENSION 50

BUY AMERICA ACT 55

PROHIBITION ON USING GRANT FUNDS TO CHECK FOR HEI. MET USAGE 55

POLICY ON SEAT BELT USE 55

POLICY ON BANNING TEXT MESSAGING WHILE DRIVING 56

APPENDIX B— MANDATORY DISCLOSURES 57

APPENDIX C— LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES 60

PROHIBITION ON USING GRANT FUNDS TO CHECK FOR HELMET USAGE 60

RACIAL PROFILING 60

VEHICLE PURSUITS 60

USE OF FUNDS 60

APPENDIX D— GENERAL TERMS& CONDITIONS, STATE CERTIFICATIONS 61

1.    ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT AND STATEMENT OF INTENT 61

2.    AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION 61

3.    AMENDMENT 61

4.    AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT.     62

5.    ANTITRUST CLAIMS 62

6.    APPROVAL 63

7.    ASSIGNMENT 63

8.    AUDITS AND ACCESS TO RECORDS 63

9.    AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 63

TOC Page 3 Revised:  10/ 2021

69



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
10.     BYRD ANTI- LOBBYING AMENDMENT( 31 USC 1352) 64

11.     CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT 64

12.     CLEAN AIR ACT AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 65

13.     COMPENSATION 65

14.     CONFLICT OF INTEREST 65

15.     CONTRACTS 66

16.     CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES:      67

17.     INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 67

18.     COMPETITION 67

19.     CONVICT/ FORCED LABOR 67

20.     COPYRIGHTS( 41 CFR 105- 71. 134)     67

21.     CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA 67

22.     DAVIS- BACON ACT, AS AMENDED( 40 USC 3142)     68

23.     DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE/ SMALL BUSINESS AFFIRMATIVE STEPS 68

24.     DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 68

25.     DISPUTES. 69

26.     DOCUMENT RETENTION AND ACCE55 69

27.     DOMESTIC PARTNERS 69

28.     DRUG- FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:    69

29.     ENERGY EFFICIENCY 70

30.     EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 70

31.     EQUIPMENT 70

32.     EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS 71

33.     FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 71

34.     GENDER IDENTITY:      71

35.     GOVERNING LAW 71

36.     INDEMNIFICATION 71

37.     INTANGIBLE PROPERTY 71

38.     LABOR CODE/ WORKERS' COMPENSATION 73

39.     LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY 73

40.     LOGOS 73

41.     LOSS LEADER 73

42.     PROGRE55 SCHEDULE 74

43.     PROGRESS PAYMENTS 74

44.     NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION 74

45.     NON- DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:       74

TOC Page 4 Revised:  10/ 2021

70



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
46.     NON- DUPLICATION OF GRANT FUNDING 75

47.     NON- ENFORCEMENT SUPPLANTING AVOIDANCE 75

48.     PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS 75

49.     RECYCLING CERTIFICATION 76

50.     RESOLUTION 76

51.     RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT 76

52.     SINGLE AUDIT ACT CERTIFICATION 76

53.     SOLICITATION 77

54.     STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 77

55.     SUBRECIPIENT/ CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE 77

56.     SWEAT FREE CODE OF CONOUCT 78

57.     TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 78

58.     TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE 78

59.     TIMELINESS 78

60.     UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION 78

INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION 9

APPENDIX E- DOCUMENT EXAMPLES 80

PERSONNEL ACTIVITY REPORT( PAR       80

EMPLOYEE TIME CERTIFICATION 82

TOC Page 5 Revised:  10/ 2021

71



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

COMMONLY USED TERMS 8 ACRONYMS

The following commonly used terms and acronyms are provided to assist
manual users. Many appear in this manual, while others are used in documents
associated with the grant program management process.

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act ( ADA) of 1990, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable
regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA.
42 U. S. C. 12101 et seq.)

ARIDE Advanced Roadside Impairment Driving Enforcement -
Training designed to bridge the gap between SFST and DRE
that enables a police officer to observe, identify and
articulate the signs of impairment caused by drugs, alcohol, or
a combination of both.

Authorizing Agency officials within a local or state governmental entity
Official, Grant who have the authority to obligate the agency to a grant
Director,  and agreement. The individuals are responsible for establishing
Fiscal Official and maintaining procedures that ensure effective

administration of the approved grant and comply with grant
requirements.

Budget Broad grouping of expenses such, as personnel costs, supplies,
and equipment.

Buy America Prohibits states or subrecipient from using highway grant funds
Act under 23 U. S. C. Chapter 4 to purchase steel, iron and

manufactured products, unless they are produced in the U. S.,
under $5,000. 00, or a waver is granted by the Secretary of
Transportation.  ( 23 U. S. C. 3131

CaISTA California State Transportation Agency

Caltrans California Department of Transportation

Page 1 Revised:  10/ 2021

72



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

CFDA Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance - Provides a listing of
all federal programs available to state and local governments;
federally recognized Indian tribal governments; U. S. territories
and possessions; domestic public, quasi- public and private
profit and non- profit organizations and institutions; specialized
groups; and individuals.

CFR Code of Federal Regulations - A listing of general and
permanent rules published in the Federal Register by the
Executive branch of the federal government and federal
agencies.

CHP California Highway Patrol

CPS Child Passenger Safety

DD Distracted Driving

DOF California Department of Finance

DOJ California Department of Justice

DRE Drug Recognition Expert - A police officer trained to recognize
impairment in drivers under the influence of drugs other than

or in addition to, alcohol.

DUI Driving Under the Influence

DUID Driving Under the Influence of Drugs

EB Method Empirical Bayesian Ranking Method - Used by researchers and

statisticians to group and give varying weights to many
different factors. The OTS Rankings for cities are developed

using this method, which factors in not only population and
daily vehicle miles traveled, but crash records and trends to

arrive at a single, more accurate ranking.

EMS Emergency Medical Services

Page 2 Revised:  10/ 2021

73



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Employee Time Used to certify that 100 of an employee' s time is federally
Certification grant funded ( Form OTS- 26)

Equipment Non- expendable - Tangible, personal property having a useful
life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $ 5, 000 or

more that is used only for traffic safety purposes.

Equipment Details the purchase date, description, location, total cost,
Reporf federal funds used, and current fair market value.

Equipment Re-   Same as the equipment report but includes depreciation

Certification information that must be updated and filed every two years
Reporf from the original date of acquisition.

FARS Fatality Analysis Reporting System

Fair Market Is the price that property/ equipment would sell for on the
Value ( VFM)    open market. It is the price that would be agreed on

between a willing buyer and a willing seller, with neither being
required to act, and both having reasonable knowledge of
the relevant tacts. ( IRS Publication 561)

FFATA Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act -
Requires subrecipients to annually report each action that
obligates $ 25,000 or more in federal funds.

FHWA Federal Highway Administration

Fiscal Official Fiscal or accounting official who has responsibility for the
agency' s fiscal/ accounting records.

GEMS Grant Electronic Management System. The OTS on- line

application and grant award system.

Grant Federal fiscal funding awarded by the OTS to a local or state
government entity to address a specific behavioral highway
safety issue.

Grant Binding document between the OTS and a local or state
Agreement government entity outlining the terms and conditions, and

programmatic and financial responsibilities of receiving
federal highway safety grant funds.

Page 3 Revised:  10/ 2021

74



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Grant Claim Expenditures accrued in support of approved grant activities
Invoice that a subrecipient may submit for reimbursement.

Grants Made Templates (GMEs) designed to facilitate ease of preparing
Easy and submitting a grant application.

Grant Revision A change to a grant agreement that is necessary to enhance
its operational efficiency.

GPR Grant Performance Review - A review of the subrecipient

grant activities and financial records for compliance with
federal rules.

Host Agency A government agency that acts as the primary subrecipient
and manager of the grant but all or most of the activity is
performed by a contractor.

HSP Highway Safety Plan - Outlines the state' s annual expenditure

of federal highway safety grant funds for priority behavioral
safety programs during the federal fiscal year (October 1 -
September 30).

HVE Grant High Visibility Enforcement - A grant awarded to a law
enforcement agency to target a specific traffic safety issue
such as speeding or impaired driving; highly visible
enforcement is coupled with a publicity strategy designed to
educate the public and promote voluntary compliance with
the law.

LEL Law Enforcement Liaison - Provides law enforcement expertise

to the OTS and its subrecipients for enforcement grant site
selection, appropriate grant strategies and countermeasures,

and grant development as well as contacts for local, county,
and state law enforcement officials, the OTS, and the Regional

Office of the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration.

NHTSA National Highway Traffic Safety Administration - The federal

agency responsible for administering the national highway

traffic safety grant programs funded by federal legislation.

Non- Profit A non- governmental entity registered as a 501 ( c)( 3) with the
California Secretary of State.

Page 4 Revised:  10/ 2021

75



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

OP Occupant Protection

Other Direct Any grant item or service costing less than $ 5, 000 per unit.
Costs

OTS California Office of Traffic Safety, the state' s lead traffic safety
organization tasked with addressing behavioral safety issues.

OTS Rankings Office of Traffic Safety Rankings - Developed using the
Empirical Bayesian Ranking Method to enable a city or county
to compare its traffic safety statistics to similar sized cities and
counties.

Paid Media Advertising ( print, TV, radio, display, promoted or sponsored
social media) that is disseminated by the media for a fee.

PAR Employee- maintained timesheet or log used to account for all
time spent on federal and non- federal grants and other
programs.

Performance The goals and objectives that describe what the subrecipient
Measures will accomplish by implementing the traffic safety grant

program ( goals) and the tasks or activities that will be
performed in support of the goals.

P18 E Public Information 8 Education - Includes educational and

promotional materials, advertising, and public relations
activities.

Pre- Operational A meeting held during the first 90 days after the start of a the
Review OTS grant to review the grant program manual and grant

requirements.

Program Area The OTS Program Coordinators assigned to a program area to
Review team evaluate applications. Each team includes a program area

expert.

Program The OTS staff inember responsible for the effective

Coordinator administration of grants and statewide highway safety
programs.

PSA Public Service Announcement - Public interest messages

designed to raise awareness and change public attitudes and

Page 5 Revised:  10/ 2021

76



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

behavior towards a social issue. May be disseminated by the
media for free or a fee ( paid media).

QPR Quarterly Performance Report - Prepared by the subrecipient

describing tasks, activities and equipment purchases that
were made in support of the goals, objectives, and objective
data points in the grant.

SAM System for Award Management- A 12- digit alpha-numeric

unique entity identifier to detect different divisions of
companies and provide easy reference for those seeking
information.

SD/ SO Sheriff' s Department/ Sheriff' s Office

SFST Standard Field Sobriety Testing - Composed of three-phases of
DUI detection investigation used by enforcement officials to
identify impaired drivers.

Sole Source Purchases or contracts awarded through a non- competitive

process.

STEP Selective Traffic Enforcement Program - Intensive enforcement

of a specific traffic safety laws with extensive communication,
education, and outreach informing the public about the
enforcement activity.

Subrecipients A Local or state government entity receiving a highway safety
grant from the OTS.

Subrecipient Reduction in subrecipient funds for an existing activity
General Costs specifically because federal funds become available or are
of Government expected to be available to fund that same activity.

Source Any documentation required by the OTS and/ or NHTSA to
Documentation support grant activities.

SWITRS Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System - Database used

by the CHP and other law enforcement agencies to capture
and review crash data by jurisdiction, location, and other
criteria.

Page 6 Revised:  10/ 2021

77



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Time Sheet Approved documentation detailing work hours performed by
an employee on behalf of his/ her employer during a set time

period ( i. e., weekly, bi-weekly, overtime).

TIMS Transportation Injury Mapping System

Title VI Form completed by the subrecipient to ensure compliance
Assessment with federal statutes and regulations relating to non-

discrimination.

TSRP Traffic Safety Resource Prosecutor

TR Traffic Records

TRIP Traffic Records Improvement Project

Vertical A method of prosecution that provides for the assignment of a
Prosecution prosecutor to a case from the initial point of referral to the

completion of the resolution resulting in continuity and
improved prosecution success.

Page 7 Revised:  10/ 2021

78



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

HIGHWAY SAFETY PROGRAM

The Office of Traffic Safety ( OTS1, headquartered in Elk Grove, is California' s lead

traffic safety organization. Located within the California State Transportation
Agency ( CaISTA), the OTS is tasked with developing and implementing a
highway safety program that addresses the behavioral factors that impact
safety on the road.

Vision - " Everyone traveling on California roadways will go safely"

Mission - Effectively administer traffic safety grants that deliver
innovative programs and eliminate traffic fatalities and injuries on
California roadways.

The goal of the annual program is to prevent serious injury and death resulting
from motor vehicle crashes so that all roadway users arrive at their destination
safely.  Using Federal Hiqhwav Safety Pro_ rqam funds, the OTS partners with

political subdivisions of the state to address California' s highway safety needs at
the state, county, and local level. The OTS cannot directly fund a 501 ( c)( 3) non-
profit organization; however, these entities are eligible for funding through a
host" government agency (subrecipient) as a contractor.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE STATE HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN

Problem Identificafion & Program Areas

Data analysis is essential to understanding who is crashing, where they' re
crashing, and why. The OTS reviews local, county, and state crash data to
identify roadway users - motorists, pedestrians, bicyclists, teens, older drivers, for
example - with a statistically higher crash risk. This data, combined with citation,
licensing, vehicle miles traveled, and demographic information, are analyzed to
help the OTS and its partners understand what is prompting crashes and the
resulting injuries and fatalities on California' s roadways not only statewide, but
also at the county and city level. The OTS uses crash rankings to help individual
cities compare their traffic safety statistics to those of a similar population size.
The OTS and cities use this data to monitor progress in addressing ongoing traffic
safety problems as well as to identify emerging issues.

This information is also used to develop the annual Hiahwav Safety Plan ( HSP),
which details the extent of California' s crash problem and how federal highway
safety dollars will be distributed into priority behavioral safety programs during
the federal fiscal year ( October 1 - September 30). The National Highway Traffic

Safety Administration ( NHTSA) has identified priority areas, which the agency

Page 8 Revised:  10/ 2021

79



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

determines to be effective in reducing motor vehicle crashes, injuries, and
fatalities. California' s HSP addresses NHTSA' s priority program areas and others
including:

NHTSA Program Priority Areas

Alcohol- Impaired Driving Distracted Driving

Drug- Impaired Driving Emergency Medical Services
Motorcycle Safety Occupant Protection

Police Traffic Services Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety

Roadway Safety and Public Relations, Advertising, and
Traffic Records Marketing Program

The HSP not only describes what will be done to address these program areas,
but also the goals and performance measures used to gauge progress.
Program goals and performance measures are selected based on severity,
economic costs and number of agencies available to implement projects using

proven countermeasures.  Federal regulations require that the three common

performance measures ( fatalities, serious injuries and fatality rate) in the HSP
have identical performance targets with the Caltrans Highway Safety
Improvement Program ( HSIP). These common performance targets shall be
based on a five-year rolling average ( only).  For more information contact OTS

or visit our web page at www. ots. ca. gov/ About Us.

Project Solicitation and Developmenf

The annual project selection process begins by notifying Grant Electronic
Management System ( GEMS) registrants through email of the open application

period for the next federal fiscal year (October 1- September 30) and of funding
workshop dates held each December. The message also announces when
grant application forms and instructions will be available on the Grants/ Apply
Now page of the OTS website.

The Regional Grant Application Workshops, facilitated by the OTS staff, may be
constructed to generate interest in a particular program area identified in the
HSP and/ or to address questions about the grant application process.

Additionally, the OTS staff review crash data and encourages state and local
government subdivisions ( i. e., law enforcement agencies, public health, fire
departments, driving under the influence [ DUI] courts, district attorneys, colleges
and universities, school districts, and public emergency services providers) to
apply for this grant funding opportunity or to attend a workshop.

Page 9 Revised:  10/ 2021

80



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Ali grant applications are due January 31 . The table below details the grant

application process timeline.

Annual Grant Cycle

December OTS announces upcoming grant application period

OTS conducts grant workshops

January 31 Deadline to submit grant applications to OTS

February- May OTS reviews and ranks grant applications

June OTS submits grants to CaISTA for approval

OTS notifies subrecipients of grant application status

OTS holds pre- HSP meeting with NHTSA

June - July OTS holds pre-funding meetings with subrecipients (as
needed)

OTS develops draft grant agreements

OTS submits HSP to NHTSA

July - September OTS sends grant agreements to s brecipients for review &
signatures

September Signed grant agreements due to OTS

September 30 End of federal fiscal year

October 1 Federal fiscal year begins

October-   OTS holds pre-operation meetings with subrecipients
December

Grant Eligibility

Before applying for a grant, all potential applicants should review the following
list to ensure they meet eligibility requirements:

Are You Eliqible for an OTS Grant?

The first step in obtaining grant funding is to determine if the project you want
funded is eligible for Federal Funds administered by the OTS. Please review the

information below before applying to see if your Agency and Program meet the
funding criteria. Eligible applicants must meet the six criteria below:

Page 10 Revised:  10/ 2021

81



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

1.  Will you use the funds for one of the program areas listed below?

NHTSA Program Priority Areas

Alcohol- Impaired Driving Distracted Driving

Drug- Impaired Driving Emergency Medical Services
Motorcycle Safety Occupant Protection

Police Traffic Services Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety

Roadway Safety and Traffic Public Relations, Advertising, and
Records Marketing Program

2.  Can your organization pay project expenses, and then wait 90 days to be
reimbursed?

Project expenses are reimbursed after the grantee pays for them.

3.  Is your organization a public entity?
If you are a 501 c ( 3) non- profit organization, you will need a public
entity as your host agency. Please contact our office for more
information.

4.  Have you cleared the Sinqle Audit?

5.  Do you have a SAM number?

6.  Are you able to provide Traffic Safety Data that demonstrates how your
program will save lives on CA roadways and be able to demonstrate
using performance measures with one-year of funding?

If you are still unsure whether your project meets the criteria, contact our office
for assistance at (916) 509- 3030 or go to OTS Grants to start your application.

As criteria # 3 indicates, the OTS cannot directly fund a 501 (c)( 3) non-profit
organization; however, a non-profit that is registered with the California
Secretary of State is eligible for funding through a " host" government agency
subrecipient) as a " contractor." The host agency should include funding for the
contractor" under contractual services in its grant application. The host

agency, however, will be required to follow their contracting procedures.
Acceptance and fundina of the application does not imply an agreement or
reauirement for a " sole source" contract. If the contractor will receive more

than $ 150,000 in grant funds, the host agency should conduct a pre-award
review.  ( For more information, refer to Non- Profits in the Grant Requirements

section of this manual.)

Page 11 Revised:  10/ 2021

82



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Grant Types

Two types of grant applications are available - Generai grants and Grants Made
Easy ( GME). A qualifying government agency determines which type to use
based on the problem to be addressed. Problem identification should be
determined through analysis of local crash data, as well as data from the

California Highway Patrol Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System ( SWITRS)
and the OTS Rankinas for California cities and counties. The rankings, which are

developed using the Empirical Bayesian Ranking or EB Method, factor in not only
population and daily vehicle miles traveled, but also crash records and trends.
This results in a single, more accurate ranking.  Rankings are available addressing

fatalities and injuries; alcohol; motorcyclists; pedestrians; bicyclists; speed-
related, hit and run, and nighttime crashes; and composite.

A government agency should apply for a General grant if it is seeking funding to
address traffic safety problems other than what are listed on a GME.  Unlike a

GME, which includes pre-determined goals, objectives and activities by focus
area ( i. e., DUI Court, EMS, Occupant Protection, Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety,
Probation, Selective Traffic Enforcement Program, Traffic Records Improvement

Project, and Vertical Prosecution), a General grant may be customized.

Grant Application Process and Review

Application Submission

The online GEMS provides a paperless system for application entry, the OTS
review, allocation of funds, budgeting, tracking expenditures, monitoring grant
performance, and supporting the development of reports required by state and
federal agencies.

Grant applications must be submitted through GEMS before 11: 59 p. m. on

January 31 of each year. Access to GEMS application forms is only available
during the open application period; however, application training resources are
available year- round. First time GEMS users are required to register and must be

granted access by the OTS. Returning users can login using their existing
credentials. Review the OTS GEMS webqaae for more guidance.

GEMS provides an application template for each grant type that conforms to
federal requirements as outlined in the CFR Title 2 Subpart A Chapter II, Subpart C

200. 21 1 including sections for:

Agencv Identification, specific information regarding the agency
including the agency SAM number;

Problem Statement that details problem to be solved;

Supqortinq Statistical Data that thoroughly documents the problem;

Page 12 Revised:  10/ 2021

83



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Proposed Solution, a discussion of what strategies will be taken to solve

the problem ( i. e., increased DUI enforcement, pedestrian education)
and what resources it will leverage to implement the intervention;

Goals 8 Objectives, both grant types call for goals and objectives that are
specific, measurable, action- oriented, realistic, time- framed ( SMART);

Method of Procedure, includes a plan for daily managing of the grant
agency qualifications), and a plan for reducing reliance on federal grant

funding in the future ( sustainabilityj;

Evaluation, general and GME grant applications also outline media, data
collection and reporting, evaluation, and administrative support
requirements;

Budget items and Budget Narrative, include a detailed budget estimate

with supporting narrative, that includes all cost categories - personnel
costs, travel expenses, contractual services, equipment ($ 5, 000 or more

per unit), and direct and indirect costs. Each category must be detailed
by individual line items;
Allows upload of supporting documents - While not required, it is strongly

recommended that the grant application include a letter(s) of support
from the governing body ( i. e., Board of Supervisors, City Council) and if
applicable the community.

All sections of the application must be complete for GEMS to accept the

submission. GEMS will provide an individual application number. The system
allows for multiple entry so that an application can be built over a period of
time. Guidance is provided within GEMS to explain field entry requirements.
However, once submitted, the apqlication is locked and cannot be altered by

the applicant. To protect the integrity of the submission, the OTS can only view
the application during its review process.

All applications successfully submitted on or before the January 31 deadline will
receive the following automatically generated response via GEMS:

Thank you for submitting your Traffic Safety Application. Applications are
being reviewed for possible incorporation into our Highway Safety Plan for
the next Federal Fiscal Year.

You will be notified when a decision has been reached concerning the status
of your application. Thank you for your interest in traffic safety."

The status of the application is automatically updated to " Submitted".

Page 13 Revised:  10/ 2021

84



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Grant Application Review

Once the grant application period has closed, each application goes through
an evaluation process. The application is assigned to a Program Area Review
Team. The OTS Program Coordinators on the team review the application to

determine if it:

Will contribute to the California Traffic Safety Program;

is compatible with NHTSA and OTS grant funding policies;

Falls under the OTS' funding priorities, includes best practices and is a
Stratectic Hiqhwav Safetv Plan priority;

Addresses a serious problem that' s supported through comprehensive
crash data analysis;

Targets high- risk populations, high- risk behaviors, and high crash locations;

Is reasonable and proportional ( strategy, time frame, budget) to the
identified problem; and

Is a continuation of an existing grant, was funded within the past five years
or previously submitted and denied for funding and why.

Following this in- depth evaluation, the Review Team collectively prioritizes the
applications and presents their assessment to the Branch Chiefs. The final
meeting to determine funding approval involves the Review Team, the Branch
Chief, the Deputy Director, and Director. The OTS then forwards its application
funding recommendations to the California State Transportation Agency
CaISTA) for approval. All approved applications are included in the annual

HSP, which is submitted on or before July 1 to NHTSA for review and approval.

Risk Assessment

The OTS is required by NHTSA, prior to making an award, to evaluate and
document the risk for each entity selected for federal grant funding. The OTS will
assess the applicant' s risk of noncompliance with federal statutes ( Single Audit

Compliance 8 Federal Debarment), regulations and the terms and conditions of

the grant as well as the applicant' s financial stability, q ality of management
systems, history of past performance, and prior audit findings, if applicable.  If

the applicant does pose a risk, but the proposal has merit, the OTS may as a
condition of awarding grant funds, conduct a pre- funding assessment meeting
with the agency' s authorities, and/ or impose specific terms or conditions. This
information will be used to determine the appropriate level of monitoring if a
grant is awarded.

Page 14 Revised:  10/ 2021

85



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

GRANT AGREEMENT 8 PRE- OPERATIONS MEETING

Following CaISTA review and approval of the OTS' HSP and funding
recommendations, the OTS will notify the government agencies via GEMS email
of the status of their application. Successful applications are converted by the

OTS in GEMS to a draft grant agreement and assigned a grant number.

Draff Grant Agreemenf

The OTS works with the subrecipient to prepare the draft grant agreement using
information included in the original grant application as well as any changes to
the budget and/ or strategies discussed. The draft grant agreement consists of
the following documents:

Traffic Safefiy Grant Agreement, Paqe 1 and Pacae 2 summarizes the terms
of the contract between the subrecipient and the OTS.  The page

includes the grant number, grant title; name of the applicant agency;
agency unit handling the grant; grant period and description; the amount
of federal funds allocated; approval signatures of the Authorizing Official,
Grant Director, and the Fiscal Official of the applicant agency; the

authorizing official and Accounting Officer contact from the OTS; the
agency' s SAM number; the budget funding data; NHTSA transparency
reporting requirements; and the OTS fiscal approval signature.

The Grant Description Schedule A outlines the grant' s purpose ( supported
by data), activities ( i. e., strategies, tasks, reporting, evaluation method)
and performance measures ( goals and objectives), along with an
administrative support statement from the appropriate governing body or
official ( i. e., city council, board of supervisors, county executive, city
manager). All this information is taken directly from the original grant
application and agency support letters.

Detailed Budqet Estimate, Schedvle B, covers the entire one- year grant
period ( two years on an exception basis) beginning October 1 and
ending September 30. Federal funding source information is provided to
assist the agency with sinqle audit compliance. Costs are divided into six
categories which the government agency completed as applicable to its
grant.  (For more information on allowable costs, refer to Direct Allowable

Costs in the Subrecipient Responsibilities 8 Procedures section of this

manual.):

o Personnel Costs - Includes all classifications applicable to the grant,
the hourly rate ( based on the method of compensation for that
classification) and percentage applicable to

Page 15 Revised:  10/ 2021

86



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

the grant. Overtime salaries must be broken out separately from
regular pay. Reasonable cost of living increases, or merit increases are
estimated and included. Benefits are included under personnel costs.

Estimated costs for this category should be provided by the agencies
financial official.

o Travel Expense - Includes the estimated cost of grant- related travel
expenses ( transportation and per diem) segregated by in- state and
out-of-state travel, using the subrecipient' s established reimbursement
rates. If the subrecipient does not have a travel policy with established
reimbursement rates, standard reimbursement rates apply per the
California Department of Human Resources ( CaIHR).  For rates consult

the CaIHR website.

o Contractual Services- Describes the estimated cost of services to be

provided for each contract awarded on the grant using descriptive
titles ( i. e., " CPS Training," " Evaluation Services," " Public Awareness

Campaign") rather than a firm, agency, or individual names. Each
contract must have its own sub- budget detailing the contractors'
expenses. For each contract, the agency is required to follow its
established contracting policies. Approval of the grant agreement
does not imply agreement for a " sole source" contact.

o Equipment- Includes the estimated cost of each equipment item that

costs $ 5, 000 per unit or more and has a useful life of more than one
year. The total cost of equipment ( without discounts) includes
modifications, attachments, accessories, or auxiliary apparatus

necessary to make it usable for grant purposes as well as tax, shipping
and installation.

o Other Direct Costs- Details the estimated cost of any other allowable
direct grant expenses not covered under the previous categories
including services not requiring contractual agreements and minor
equipment such as office supplies, printing, educational materials,
radar devices, child safety seats, bike helmets, and checkpoint
supplies that support the grant goals and objectives. The agency must
follow its established procurement policies.  ( Note: If a line item cost in

this category is based on an allocation, it must be identified in the line
item title as " Allocated Office Supplies" or " Communication

Allocation." Cost allocation plans may be requested to determine if
costs are equitably distributed to the grant.)

o Indirect Cost- Details costs accrued for common or joint purposes ( i. e.,
phone, supplies, administrative salaries) that are not a direct grant

Page 16 Revised:  10/ 2021

87



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

cost. An indirect cost benefits more than one cost objective and

should be prorated equitably among all applicable functional areas.
For more information on indirect costs, refer to Allowable Indirect Costs

in the Subrecipient Responsibilities & Procedures section of this

manual.)  Estimated costs for this category should be provided by the
agencies fiscal official and supported by a current FFY Indirect Cost
Rate approval letter from a federal agency.

Budqet Narrative, Schedule B- 1, which provides line item descriptions, in
the same order as the costs detailed in the budget estimate ( Schedule B),

and their relationship to the grant. The narrative addresses the following:

o Personnel Costs - Explains grant- related activities and/ or responsibilities
for personnel and provides itemized employee rates and benefits.
Since actual benefit costs differ for straight time and overtime hours,

both rates are identified and itemized in their own benefit line.)

o Federal guidelines prohibit using Federal grant funds to pay for routine
and/ or existing state or local activities that carry out the overall
responsibilities of state, local, or federally recognized Indian tribal
governments. This practice is known as General Costs of Government.
If a grant includes funding for straight time personnel, the OTS requires
that the subrecipient include the following statement:

o   " Any non- grant funded vacancies created by reassignment to a
grant- funded position must be filled at the expense of the grantee
agency."

o Travel Expenses - Details the travel necessary to complete grant
objectives including conferences, seminars, training and/ or out- of-
state trips and corresponding costs using the subrecipient' s established
travel policies and reimbursement rates. If no policy exists, it is noted in
the narrative.  If the subrecipient does not have a travel policy with
established reimbursement rates, standard reimbursement rates apply

per the California Department of Human Resources. For rates consult
the CaIHR website.

o Contractual Services - Includes a brief description of the services

provided by each contract identified in the budget estimate and how
they relate to the grant objectives. Each contract must have its own
sub- budget with detail. For more information on contractual services,

refer to Contractval Services in the Grant Reqvirement section, and

Page 17 Revised:  10/ 2021

88



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Financial Management in Subrecipient Responsibilities 8 Procedures,

and also Contractual within the same section.

o Equipment- Includes a brief description of the item( s) identified in the

budget estimate, how it ( they) will be used and if costs include any
attachments, accessories, auxiliary apparatus, installation, or
modification.  Equipment brand names are not used.

o Other Direct Costs - Provides a brief description for each line item in

the budget estimate by expense type, indicating how they support the
grant goals and objectives.  ( For more information on direct allowable

costs, refer to the Subrecipient Responsibilities 8 Procedures section in

this manual.)

o Indirect Cost - Provides a brief description of how costs will be

calculated ( i. e., salaries, salaries and benefits).  ( For more information

on indirect cost, refer to Direct & Allowable in the Subrecipient

Responsibilities & Procedures section in this manual.)

Certifications 8 Assurances, which document the federal terms,

assurances and certifications that apply to the agreement between the
OTS and the subrecipient. These may be reviewed in Appendix A in this
manual.

Final Grant Agreemenf

Once the draft grant agreement is approved in GEMS, it is converted into a final
grant agreement. The assigned OTS Program Coordinator e- mails a copy to the
Primary contact and authorizing official listed on the agreement with
completion instructions. The official will also receive a GEMS User Authority form
see Authorizing Officials in the Subrecipient Responsibilities section) to designate

individuals who can represent the agency for grant activities. The Authorizing
Official, Grant Director, and the Fiscal Official will electronically sign the grant
and the designation form.  If the agreement requires governing body approval,
the agency should notify the OTS of the timetable for that process.

Once the agreement is returned to the OTS, the agreement is signed by the
appropriate OTS authority. The agency will then receive notification that the

grant is active and can be viewed and downloaded from GEMS.

The signatures of the authorized representatives indicate that the subrecipient

agrees to comply with the requirements outlined in the grant agreement. The
subrecipient may not proceed with any expenditure associated with the grant

Page 18 Revised:  10/ 2021

89



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

until the authorizing Official receives notification from the OTS and it is on or after
the effective grant start date.

Pre- Operational Review

The OTS conducts a pre-operational review with all subrecipients within the first
90 days ( between October and December) after the grant period begins. The
review is conducted either by phone, virtually, or in- person with the OTS Program
Coordinator at a mutually agreed upon time and location.  Since the purpose

of the meeting is to review in detail the grant operational and fiscal
requirements outlined in the OTS Grant Agreement, the individual( s) responsible

for administering the grant should attend the meeting. The Authorizing Official,
Fiscal Official, and Grant director are strongly encouraged to participate in the
pre- operational review, if available.  The OTS Program Coordinator will review

the grant goals and objectives along with base year data; equipment report, if
applicable; the grant claim invoice and detail; and quarterly performance
report.  After the meeting, the Pre- Operational Review, which lists all who were
in attendance, what was discussed and any other pertinent information, is
completed by the OTS Program Coordinator in GEMS.

GRANT REQUIREMENTS

Reimbursement of approved grant expenditures is contingent upon the
subrecipient complying with all grant requirements and the appropriation of
sufficient funds by the federal government and the California Office of Traffic
Safety. The OTS does not represent or guarantee the availability of federal
highway safety funds for initial or subsequent year funding. If during the term of
the grant federal funds are reduced or eliminated, the OTS may immediately
terminate or reduce the grant award upon written notice to the subrecipient' s
Authorizing Official.

Once a grant has been awarded and becomes effective, the OTS reimburses
the subrecipient for actual expenditures related to approved activities. Only

costs accrued within the approved qrant period and that do not exceed the

federally obliaated funds as indicated in the aqreement are reimbursed. The
goals and objectives outlined in the grant should be accomplished during the
grant period and within the approved budget.

Federal& State Regulations Governing the OTS Granfs

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform

Guidance for Federal Awards, is the federal administrative regulation under

which the OTS grants operate. Agencies receiving highway safety funds must
adhere to these requirements. The OTS is as restrictive as the requirements of 2

Page 19 Revised:  10/ 2021

90



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

CFR Part 200 and 2 CFR Part 1201  ( implementing regulations).  However, in some

cases, the OTS may be more restrictive to allow time for the s bmission of reports
to NHTSA which include subrecipient information.  ( Refer to Appendix B, General

Terms and Conditions in this manual.)

The expenses and costs eligible for reimbursement under the highway safety
program are those stipulated in the approved grant budget. To be allowable,
costs must be necessary, reasonable, allocable, and expended according to
the appropriate federal and state statutes or grant regulations outlined in 2 CFR
Part 200. 416 and Appendix VII ( for state, local or tribal government), 2 CFR Parts

200. 418 and 200. 419 and 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix III ( for educational institutions)

and 2 CFR 414, and A pendix IV ( for private non- profit organizations other than
higher education institutions or hospitals). When evaluating reasonable cost,
subrecipients should consider the following:

Is the cost generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the
performance of a government agency?

Does the cost exceed the market price for comparable goods or
services?

Was restraint used and requirements followed ( i. e., sound business

practices, arm' s length bargaining)?

Did the person act prudently and responsibly in expending public funds?

Did the subrecipient adhere to established procurement practices

thereby ensuring the cost to the OTS is justifiable?

All procurement and contractual transactions must be conducted in a full, open
and competitive manner consistent with the standards of 2 CFR Part 200.318.

Sole source procurement or contracting is discouraged, because it is
inconsistent with a policy of full and open competition. Grant management
rules require the OTS to monitor subrecipients to ensure compliance with

applicable federal requirements and cost principles.  ( For more information,

refer to the Monitoring section in this manual and Audit information provided
below.)

Audits

Audits are conducted to determine the fiscal integrity of financial transactions
and reports, as well as compliance with laws, regulations and administrative

requirements. All grants awarded by the OTS are federally funded by the U. S.
Department of Transportation/ NHTSA and recorded in the catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance ( CFDA). If a subrecipient or its parent agency expends
over$ 750, 000 in federal funds from any source, a single audit procedure is
required by the Single Audit Act for State and Local Agencies, 1996

Page 20 Revised:  10/ 2021

91



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Amendments, Public Law 104- 156. Current code 2 CFR Subpart F - Audit, Part

200.501 describes the audit requirements. All agencies meeting this threshold,
must submit a copy of their completed audit to the California State Controller' s
Office.

State highway safety offices are required to review the Federal Agency
Clearinghouse for existing audits submitted by entities meeting the $ 750, 000

threshold. Annually in July, all proposed and current subrecipients that have not
met the federal single audit requirement receive a letter from the OTS

requesting resolution. If a subrecipient is unable or unwilling to have an audit
conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Subpart F - Audit, Part 200.501, the OTS

may administer the following sanctions: withhold a percentage of the grant
award, withhold or disallow overhead cost, suspend the grant until the audit is
conducted or an exemption certification is submitted, or terminate the grant.

In addition to the federal single audit requirement, the California Department of
Finance Office of State Audits and Evaluations ( OSAE) conducts financial and

compliance audits and monitoring activities on behalf of the OTS in
accordance with government audit standards. These audits are performed to
aid the OTS in complying with federal audit requirements and grant fund
oversight.  ( For more information, refer to the Monitorinq section in this manual)

Federal Funding Accountability & Transparency Act

Passed by Congress in 2006, the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act ( FFATA) requires the OTS to report each action ( sub- award
and executive compensation) that obligates $ 25, 000 or more in federal funds

during the grant year. The subrecipient is exempt from this requirement if, during
the previous year, its gross income from all sources was less than $ 300, 000.

Procurement Standards ( Competitive & Sole Source)

A subrecipient of federal grant funds awarded by the OTS must follow the same
policies and procedures it uses for procuring goods and services with non-
federal funds provided they conform to applicable state laws as well as federal
laws and standards outlined in 2 CFR Part 200.318. A copy of the subrecipient' s
established procurement procedures must be readily available for audit
purposes upon request from the OTS. State government agencies must comply
with contract and procurement policies and procedures set forth in the
California State Administrative Manual and the California State Contractinq

Manual. Three competitive bids should be secured for each purchase or
service.

Page 21 Revised:  10/ 2021

92



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Purchases or contracts awarded by a non- competitive process or sole source
are allowed only when small purchase procedures, sealed bids or competitive
proposals are unfeasible, and the following applies:

Goods or services are only available from a single source.

Public need or emergency will not permit a delay resulting from a
competitive solicitation.

Competition is determined to be inadequate after soliciting a number of
sources.

Sole source approvals must be granted in accordance with the subrecipient' s
procurement and contracting directives addressing non- competitive
procurement and contracting. All waivers must follow state guidelines as
outlined in 2 CFR Part 200.318.32b.

Buv America Act - 23 USC 313

Prohibits states and their subrecipients from using highway grant funds to
purchase products over $ 5, 000. 00, unless they are manufactured or

assembled in the U. S. This prohibition applies to steel, iron and all
manufactured products, unless a waiver is granted by the U. S. Secretary of
Transportation. There is no minimum purchase threshold that exempts the
need for a waiver under the Buy America Act.

The Buy America Act is also contained within Appendix A - Certifications and

Assurances for Highway Safety Grants, which become a part of a signed
grant agreement.

Contracfual Services

Subrecipients may use consultants and contractors, secured through a
competitive bid or proposal as previously described in the Procurement
Standards in this manual, to achieve the goals and objectives outlined in a
federal funded highway safety grant.  However, the subrecipient should not
enter into a contract until the grant agreement is signed and authorized by the
OTS, and effective after the grant start date. The subrecipient is responsible for
verifying contractor eligibility by checking the System for Awards Manaqement
website. or adding a self- certification clause or condition to the contract (see
Certification Reqardinq Debarment and Suspension included in Appendix A of
this manual)

The subrecipient is responsible for managing all contracts issued using the OTS
grant funds including:

Ensuring the contractor complies with all contract provisions.

Page 22 Revised:  10/ 2021

93



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAI

Ensuring services are performed according to the quality, quantity,
objectives, timeframes, and manner specified in the contract.

Ensuring that all work is completed and accepted before the contract
expires.

Assessing and requesting amendments, renewals or new contracts as
required allowing sufficient time to process and execute these changes
before the contract expires to prevent lapse in service.

Ensuring that contracts are amended after any grant agreement revision
that affects the contract terms.

Reviewing and approving invoices for payment, ensuring payments are
made in accordance with contract terms, all costs are budgeted and

allowable, and work has been performed.

Monitoring contract expenditures to ensure there are sufficient funds to
pay for all services rendered as required by the contract.
Verifying all requirements of the contract are fulfilled before submitting the
final invoice.

Ensuring that all Personnel Activity Reporting ( PAR) requirements are met.
For more information, refer to Personnel Source Documentation in the

Direct Allowable Cost & Source Documents section in this manual.)

Nothing contained in the grant agreement creates a contractual relationship
between the OTS or the State of California and the contractor. The subrecipient

is responsible for monitoring the activities of the contractor to ensure it is
achieving the desired results as outlined in the contract and grant agreement,
and that federal grant funds are used for purposes authorized in the grant
agreement and in compliance with federal and state statutes and regulations.

The subrecipient, not the OTS or the State, is responsible for paying its
contractors.

The subrecipient is the responsible party and remains liable for the performance
of the terms, conditions, assurances, and certifications of the grant agreement
that specifically relate to the contractor. The subrecipient is as fully responsible
to the OTS and the State for the acts and omissions of its contractors and the

contractor' s employees as it is for its own employees. In the event of a

contractual and/ or administrative issue arising out of a contract entered into in
support of the grant agreement, the subrecipient, not the OTS or the State of
California, is responsible for resolving all disputes, claims or other matters of a
contractual nature as well as civil liability arising out of negligence or intentional
misconduct on the part of the contractor.

Page 23 Revised:  10/ 2021

94



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Non- Profits

Contractual agreements with 501 ( c)( 3) non- profit organizations (" contractors")

registered with the California Secretary of State are allowable and must be on a
cost reimbursement basis and include detailed budgets with budget narratives

descriptive enough to limit misinterpretation of allowable cost items. If the value

of the contract is more than $ 150,000, the host agency is responsible for
conducting pre- award reviews, as necessary, to determine if the non- profit can
perform in accordance with the terms, conditions and specifications in the
contract and all applicable state and federal requirements. The review should
determine:

the propriety of the amounts in the cost proposal;

the ability of the contractor' s accounting system to accumulate and
segregate reasonable, allocable and allowable costs for charges related

to the contract; and

that the agreement complies with all applicable state and federal

procurement criteria.

The pre- award audit may be waived if the non- profit has a successful history
with the host agency.

Tra c Enforcement Agencies

A subrecipient' s traffic enforcement personnel and any equipment funded
under a grant agreement must be solely dedicated to grant supported
enforcement tasks unless a crime is committed in the officer' s presence, the
officer is responding to a distress call, or all available enforcement personnel are
responding to a riot. Nothing in the grant agreement ( i. e., goals, objectives)

should be interpreted as a formal or informal requirement that a police officer

issue a specified or predetermined number of citations.

Institutions of Higher Education

Colleges and universities may enter into contracts to perform applicable
provisions of a grant agreement. The terms and conditions of a grant
agreement is detailed in Appendix B.

Limitation of Liability

The subrecipient is responsible for the settlement of any and all claims and

lawsuits arising from or incident to the OTS' non- payment of a subrecipient' s
claim. The subrecipient expressly acknowledges that their responsibility
including the payment of all damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs,
charges, and attorney fees, if the claims and lawsuits are based upon the OTS'

Page 24 Revised:  10/ 2021

95



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

nonpayment of claims. The subrecipient will defend any suits brought upon all
such claims and lawsuits and pay all costs and expenses.

The agreement entered into with the OTS is subject to any applicable
restrictions, limitations or conditions entered by the U. S. government subsequent
to the execution of the grant agreement.

SUBRECIPIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 8 PROCEDURES

When a government agency accepts federal highway safety funds, it agrees to
fully comply with all requirements in this manual and any periodic changes that
may be made during the grant period. The government agency designated
Subrecipient Authorizing Official will be notified in writing of any changes via
email and/ or mail.

It is critical that the agency officials carefully review the federal regulations
outlined in 2 CFR Part 200 and 1201 and the certifications and assurances

included in the grant agreement and in A pendix A and B in this manual. The
Governor is the responsible official for the administration of California' s highway

safety program through the OTS ( which has adequate powers and is equipped
and organized to carry out the program) and must assure compliance with
applicable statues and regulations. By accepting federal highway safety funds,
the government agency or subrecipient is also bound by these certifications
and assurances.

Authorizing O cial

The authorizing official has contract binding authority. Once the grant
agreement is finalized by the OTS, The Authorizing Official will receive from GEMS
an alternate signature/ GEMS user authority email. The attached GEMS User
Authority form ( OTS 55) allows the official to delegate up to five ( 5) authorized
users. The form is submitted to OTS via email. Retain the original form in the

agencies official grant file. All individuals listed on this form and will be able to
log INTO GEMS for all matters relating to the OTS grant, including, but not limited
to, completing and submitting Quarterly Performance Reports ( QPRs) and
reimbursement claims.

Grant Director

The grant director ( i. e., police chief, police sergeant, traffic engineer) is
responsible for establishing operating procedures and controls that ensure
adequate administration of the grant in accordance with the terms of the
agreement as well as all applicable statutes and regulations. He/ she is

responsible for meeting work schedules, maintaining costs within the approved

Page 25 Revised:  10/ 2021

96



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

budget( s), compiling sufficient documentation to validate grant progress and
fund expenditures, submitting timely and complete grant reports, and the grant
evaluation. The grant director must be available for periodic operational
reviews with the OTS program coordinator.

Fiscal or Accovnting Official

In addition to the grant director, the subrecipient must also identify the fiscal or
accounting official who is responsible for ensuring that budgeted costs comply
with the agency' s standard policies and procedures and that the agency' s
accounting system conforms to generally accepted accounting principles. The
fiscal official should also carefully review the federal regulations outlined in 2 CFR
Part 200 and 2 CFR Part 1201 and the certifications and assurances included in

the grant agreement and in Appendix A and B in this manual.

Change Avthorized Officials or Delegation

Contact the OTS for changes to the Agency officials listed on Page 1 of the
grant agreement, submit an email detailing the change. The OTS will provide
further instruction by email. Resubmit the OTS- 55, should changes occur to those
listed on that document.

Financial Management

The subrecipient must have adequate and appropriate internal controls in

place for every OTS grant that assures awards are managed in compliance with
state and federal statutes and regulations. These controls should ensure that all

cash, real and personal property, and other assets are safe guarded and used
solely for purposes authorized in the grant agreement.

A separate account or fund must be established for each highway safety grant
and all grant costs should be separately and accurately recorded. Additionally,
the fiscal official should ensure that all claims for reimbursement are limited to

those specifically authorized in the grant agreement and that they are
prepared using grant accounting records or a process that reconciles claims at
least quarterly with the grant records.

While the OTS establishes an electronic copy file for each grant, it is strongly
recommended that copies of all financial records pertaining to a grant be

stored in a grant file ( hard copy, electronic, or both) maintained by the
subrecipient' s fiscal official or Authorizing Official.  This will make it easier to

submit claims, complete status reports, respond to questions, and reference
documents. The file should include information pertaining to grant awards and
authorization, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, liabilities, outlays, and, if

applicable, income ( contact OTS for additional reporting requirements). It

Page 26 Revised:  10/ 2021

97



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

should also include a copy of the subrecipient' s internal purchasing policies and
procedures. At a minimum, the policies must meet state requirements; they may
not be less stringent. If no written policies exist, the subrecipient is subject to the
state' s purchasing guidelines.

Subrecipients must maintain records that sufficiently detail the procurement
history for all purchases.  At minimum these records should detail the rationale

for the method of procurement and selection of contract type, written selection
procedures, documented reasons for rejections, and the basis for the contract
price.  For sole source procurements, the records must at minimum include
justification of why the purchase/ service cannot logically and reasonably be
made through a competitive bidding process including the consequences if not
approved, a list of the vendor' s or contractor' s unique qualifications,
experience, etc., and a detailed cost analysis.

The subrecipient must retain all source documents and records in the file and

make them available for federal and state audits for at least three years

following the date of the final reimbursement of grant expenditures or final
disposition of equipment purchased with grant funds, whichever is later.
Records must be retained beyond this time period if there are unresolved audit
findings.  ( For more information, refer to Audit section and the Monitorinq section

of this manual.)

Fravd Prevention

A subrecipient must have strong training programs in place that address
policies, procedures and controls, with a particular emphasis on fraud
prevention.  Effectively supervising and monitoring employees working on the
grant is critical. Examples of fraud include but are not limited to: falsified time

sheets, grant applications, quarterly performance and final reports, contracts, or
competitive bids; expenditure reports that falsely indicate federal funds have
been expended; reporting activities, citations or arrests that did not occ r;
embezzlement; bribery; extortion ( acting under color of official right); obstruction

of justice; and destruction of records.

If a subrecipient determines there is fraud, and/ or a conflict of interest

associated with a federal highway safety grant, this information must
immediately be detailed in writing and forwarded to the OTS Program
Coordinator. The OTS Program Coordinator will notify the OTS management,
who in turn, is required to report any fraud or conflict of interest associated with
a federal highway safety grant to NHTSA.

Page 27 Revised:  10/ 2021

98



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Safegvarding Personal Information

A subrecipient must take reasonable measures to safeguard protected,
personally identifiable information and other information NHTSA or the OTS
designates as sensitive or that the subrecipient considers sensitive consistent with

applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of
confidentiality as prescribed under 2 CFR Part 200. 303.

Direct Allowable Costs & Sovrce Documents

The OTS uses the cost principles outlined in 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E and NHTSA
policy and guidance to determine necessary, reasonable, allocable, and
allowable costs consistent with policies, rules and regulations conforming to
limitations or exclusion of cost. A subrecipient is required to adhere to these

same requirements when administering grant funds.  (For more information, refer

to Federal 8 State Regulations in the Grants Requirement section in this manual).

A subrecipient is responsible for determining whether a cost for a specific
service, function or item ( i. e., supply, equipment) is a direct cost, direct
allocation ( costs such as depreciation, rental, facility operation and
maintenance that are prorated and the benefit to the grant can be directly
measured) or allowable indirect cost ( costs accrued for common orjoint

purposes that are prorated to a grant based on the benefit received but are
not readily associated with a specific grant). For federal highway safety funded

grants provided by the OTS, direct costs are categorized in the grant agreement
as personnel, travel, contractual services, equipment and other direct costs ( i. e.,
office supplies, educational materials). For more information on allowable costs

for federal grant funded programs, consult the NHTSA Highway Safety Grants
Program Resources Guide website. Supplemental information and clarification

regarding allowable and unallowable costs are published in the NHTSA
memorandum titled " Use of NHTSA Hiahway Safety Grant Funds for Certain
Purchases".

Adequate documentation is required for a cost to be eligible for reimbursement.

The criteria for ensuring a subrecipient has adequate source documentation are
provided under each direct cost category below:

Personnel

Personnel costs include only direct compensation of wages and fringe

benefits of subrecipient employees hired expressly for the grant and for the
time and effort spent on grant- related activities. Grant funds may be used
for wages, special compensation, or other authorized absences such as

annual and sick leave provided the cost for the employee is reasonable for

Page 28 Revised:  10/ 2021

99



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

the services rendered, follows an appointment made in accordance with

state or local laws and rules, and meets federai requirements.

Grant funds may also be sed for employee fringe benefits for authorized

absences such as annual leave and sick, as well as employer' s contributions

to social security, health insurance, workmen' s compensation, and the like
provided they are granted under approved plans and distributed equitably
to the grant and all other activities. Costs for authorized absences are only
reimbursable up to the amount earned during the term of the grant.

Source Documentation:

If an employee of a subrecipient or contractor ( excluding an employee
only receiving OTS funding for overtime) is receiving less than 100 of

funding from the OTS for personnel services or is receiving 100% of funding
from the OTS but the funding comes from more than one federally- funded
grant, his/ her time distribution to the federally funded grant must be
supported by an after- the- fact Personnel Activitv Report ( PAR). This

requirement also applies to employees of non- profits and institutions of
higher education.

A PAR is an employee-maintained timesheet or log which accounts for
100 of the employee' s time. It is used to identify effort spent on multiple
programs/ federal funds. A PAR must:

reflect the employee' s after- the- fact distribution of time by

program/ federal fund;

account for the total activity by program/ federal fund for which
each employee is compensated whether grant-related or not;

be prepared at least monthly and coincide with one or more pay
periods; and

be signed by the employee and his/ her supervisor.

A digital signature and/ or online PAR is acceptable provided the
subrecipient or contractor can demonstrate and document that the

actions detailed on the PAR were performed by the employee.

An employee of a subrecipient or contractor receiving 100% of funding
from the OTS for personnel services is not required to complete an after-
the- fact PAR. Instead, the subrecipient may choose to have the
employee complete the Emplovee Time Certification form stating that the
employee worked solely on the federally funded program for the period
covered by the certification. This certification must be prepared at least
semi- annually and signed by the employee and supervisory official who

Page 29 Revised:  10/ 2021

100



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

has firsthand knowledge of the worked performed by the employee. Both

of these forms will be provided by the OTS Program Coordinator during
the Pre- Operational Meeting.

Travel

Allowable travel expenses accrued by personnel identified in the grant
budget include transportation, food and lodging that meet the
subrecipient' s documented travel policies. The travel should occur prior to
the claim submission for reimbursement.

If the subrecipient' s travel policy does not include maximum allowable
lodging rates, these costs may not exceed the state' s lodging rate unless
written justification is submitted and approved by the OTS. If the subrecipient

does not have documented travel policies, the State Travel Policies apply.

Out- of- state travel expenses require written approval from the OTS prior to

incurring costs unless identified in the Budget ( Schedule B) and the Budget
Narrative ( Schedule B- 1) of the grant agreement.

Expenses associated with attending meetings and conferences, where the
primary purpose is the dissemination of technical information, are allowable.
These include transportation, registration fees, and other incidental costs.

Source Documentation:

Travel expenses must be supported by properly prepared employee
expense reimbursement claims, including required receipts per the
documented travel policy. For audit purposes, all receipts must be
retained for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a
longer period of records retention is stipulated.

Conference or seminar expenses must be supported by an event
agenda.

For meetings or conferences, documentation must indicate that the

primary purpose was for dissemination of technical information.

For costs associated with the use of agency- owned vehicles,
documentation must indicate who used the vehicle, when, for what

purpose, and number of miles driven. Documentation must also
explain how the mileage or other billing rate( s) was developed if the
state rate is not used.

Page 30 Revised:  10/ 2021

101



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Confractual Services

This applies to any professional services and associated costs necessary to
complete the grant objectives, not available through the subrecipient,
requiring contractual agreements that are entered into in accordance with
the subrecipient' s normal procedures.

Source Documentation:

Services provided by an individual, organization, firm, or agency must
be supported by a properly executed contract or interagency
agreement.

Payments must be supported by itemized invoices and made in
accordance with the terms of the agreement.

The subrecipient must maintain records that sufficiently document the
procurement process associated with the contract.

Equipment

Equipment is any non-expendable, tangible personal property costing $ 5, 000

or more with a useful life of at least one year that is required to carry out
grant activities ( i. e., motorcycles, radar trailers, some extrication equipment).

The total cost includes modifications, attachments, accessories, or auxiliary
apparatus needed to make it usable for grant purposes as well as tax,
shipping and installation ( excluding any discounts).

All equipment purchased using federal highway safety funds require written
approval from NHTSA, which is handled by the OTS during the grant
application process. Equipment purchased with grant funds must be used
for traffic safety purposes only. Non-authorized use of equipment is grounds
for refunding a portion of the equipment value to the OTS. All equipment
purchased with grant funds must comply with the Buy America Act, in this
manual. Additional guidance is available from the OTS Program
Coordinator.

The subrecipient must have procedures in place for managing equipment
including replacement equipment) purchased in whole or in part using the

OTS funds that at minimum include:

Adequate controls for safeguarding against loss, damage or theft;
Provisions for replacement due to circumstances other than normal

wear and tear;

Maintenance procedures to ensure good working condition; and
Complete records ( detailed below).

Page 31 Revised:  10/ 2021

102



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

For information on equipment monitoring, refer to the Monitoring Section in
this manual. Equipment disposition is discussed in Grant Close Out in this

manuaL

Source Documentation:

Equipment must be reported to the OTS using the Equipment Reporting
Form. The form is generated in GEMS at the time the subrecipient requests
reimbursement for the purchase on a claim. The OTS uses this form for
monitoring purposes, but it should not be used by the subrecipient as a
substitute for appropriate equipment control records which should include

the following information:
Description of the item with serial or identification numbers;

Federal funding source ( FAIN number);

Acquisition date and total cost including federal share;
Source and title holder;

Location, condition; and

Disposition data including date of disposal and sale price.

Other Direcf Cosfs

This includes any other supplies or services ( i. e., educational materials, DUI

checkpoint supplies, child safety seats) of a non- contractual nature with an
acquisition cost of less than $ 5, 000 purchased using highway safety funds.
These purchases do not require NHTSA pre- approval. However, these items

or services must be used in support of the grant. Non- authorized use of
supplies or services is grounds for refunding a portion of the value to the OTS.

The cost of the item or service, which would not otherwise be allowable using
the subrecipient' s general funds, may not be purchased with federal grant
funds. Additionally, if joint costs are prorated as direct costs to the grant, the
allocation method must be reviewed by the OTS to determine
reimbursement eligibility.

Grant funds may be used for the development of new training curricula
and/ or materials that do not duplicate materials already developed for
similar purposes by U. S. DOT, NHTSA, the Federal Highway Administration or
the State of California.

The subrecipient should contact their OTS Program Coordinator for guidance
on allowable supplies and services and refer to the Public Information &

Education Section of this manual for information concerning the inclusion of
logos on materials. All items purchased with grant funds, over$ 5, 000, must
comply with the Buv America Act.

Page 32 Revised:  10/ 2021

103



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Sovrce Documentation:

All other direct costs must be supported by purchase orders or other

original procurement documents signed by the appropriate authority.
The subrecipient should also have itemized invoices or properly signed

and dated delivery and/ or packing slips. Rental or lease costs must be
supported by detailed agreements.

Allowable Indirect Costs

Allowable indirect cost rates are reimbursed as defined in 2 CFR Appendix E Part

414 . Indirect costs are those costs accrued for common or joint purposes ( i. e.,
telephone, administrative services, depreciation, facility and equipment
maintenance) and not assigned to a highway safety grant as a direct cost.
Indirect costs benefit more than one cost objective and should be prorated
equitably among all applicable functional areas ( OTS grant and non-grant
related).

A non-profit that does not have an approved indirect cost rate, may elect to
charge a de minims rate of 10 of modified total direct costs. Guidance on

establishing an indirect cost rate as well as regulations for negotiating and
approving this rate is outlined in Aqpendix IV of 2 CFR Part 200, Indirect Costs
Identification and Assignment and Rate Determination for Non- Profit

Organizations.

A subrecipient that does not already have an approved federally-recognized
indirect cost rate negotiated with the Federal government must negotiate a
rate with the OTS as outlined in 2 CFR 200. 331 ( al( 41. Once the indirect rate is

negotiated, it must be accepted by all federal agencies ( i. e., NHTSA, FHWA) as

outlined in 2 CFR 200. 414( c)( 1).

Source documentation ( i. e., a subrecipient' s federally approved indirect cost
rate letter) must be available to support an indirect cost rate authorized by the
federal government. If the subrecipient' s indirect cost rate is amended or
changed during the term of the grant, the new indirect cost rate plan and
approval letter must be submitted to the OTS.

Unallowable Costs for Selected Items

The following is a list of selected costs that are ineligible for reimbursement under
the Highway Traffic Safety Program. A subrecipient should contact the OTS
Program Coordinator for guidance regarding the other costs not discussed
previously or below in this manual.

Page 33 Revised:  10/ 2021

104



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Construction 8 Facilities

Highway construction, maintenance and/ or design

Construction or reconstruction of permanent facilities such as paving,
driving ranges, towers, and non- portable skid pads

Highway safety appurtenances including longitudinal barriers such as
guardrails, regulatory and warning signs and supports, field reference
markers, luminaire supports, and utility poles

Construction, rehabilitation or remodeling of any building or structure

Cost of land

Purchase of office furnishings and fixtures such as but not limited to: desk,

chair, table, shelving, coat rack, credenza, book, filing cabinet, floor
covering, office planter, storage cabinet, portable partition, picture, wall
clock, draperies/ hardware, fixed lighting, lamp

Equiqment

Traffic signal preemption systems

Automated Traffic Enforcement Systems

Trainin

Cost of the individual' s replacement hourly rate while attending
training, unless the personnel position is already grant supported

Proqram Administration

General Costs of Government, which includes the use of funds for routine

and/ or existing governmental activities that constitute general expenses
required to carry out overall responsibilities of a government entity

Promotional items ( i. e., key chains, pencils, m gs)

Entertainment costs including amusement and social activities and any
costs directly associated with the purchase of tickets to shows or sporting
events, meals, lodging, rentals, transportation and gratuities

Alcoholic beverages for any consumption purposes including controlled
training settings for law enforcement training

Contributions and donations, including cash, property and services to
others regardless of the recipient

Page 34 Revised:  10/ 2021

105



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

Cost of fundraising, including financial campaigns, solicitation of gifts and
similar expenses incurred to raise capital or obtain contributions

Contingency provisions for contributions to a contingency reserve or
similar provision for unforeseen events excluding self- insurance reserves

Fines, penalties, damages, and other settlements resulting from violations
or non- compliance

Costs of commercial insurance that protects contractor for correction of
defects in materials or workmanship

Costs not recovered under one grant agreement are unallowable under

other grant agreements

General liability insurance

Grant Revisions

A subrecipient may request a revision to the grant agreement that is necessary
to enhance the operational efficiency of the highway safety grant. This includes
any changes that may affect the overall budget or a specific budget line
including moving funds between line items and/ or cost categories), a sub-

budget or contractual services, as well as the addition of travel ( in and out- of-

state), and/ or a significant change in goals, objectives and/ or procedures that
affect the grant scope or end date.

The Authorizing Official, Fiscal Official, or Grant Director must submit to the OTS
Program Coordinator a detailed explanation and justification for a grant
revision. In advance of sending written notification, the subrecipient is
encouraged to contact the OTS Program Coordinator to discuss any proposed

grant revision.

Once a revision request is received, the OTS carefully reviews it taking into
consideration the subrecipient' s current and past grant performance, timeliness
and quality of claims and quarterly performance reports, the circumstances and
justification for the change, and availability of grant funds. The subrecipient
should allow sufficient time for the review process (which may also require
NHTSA approval), keeping in mind that no grant funds may be expended until
written notification of the status of the request ( approval or denial) is provided

by the OTS.  Failure to comply could jeopardize claim reimbursement.

Page 35 Revised:  10/ 2021

106



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

CLAIMS PREPARATION 8 REIMBURSEMENT

Claim Preparation

To request reimbursement of an approved grant expenditure, the subrecipient
must complete a Grant Claim Invoice in GEMS and Contractual Services

Summary Sheet, if applicable. These forms must be input into GEMS no later
than 30 days following the end of the calendar quarter as follows:

Quarter Time Period Due Date

First October thru December January 30
Second January thru March April 30

Third April thru June July 30
Fourth July thru September October 30

An invoice showing " zero net" must be submitted even if no expenses were
accrued during that quarter. Failure to submit quarterly grant claim invoices by
these due dates may result in suspension of the grant, loss of grant funding
and/ or a denial of future grant funding. Additionally, invoices will not be
processed for subrecipients that fail to provide Quarterly Performance Reports
for two or more quarters.  ( For more information, refer to the Grant Reports

section, Qvarterly Performance Reports in this manual.)

The grant claim invoice shoutd be prepared using the subrecipient' s accounting
records and include costs accrued during that time period. Enter the exact cost,
do not round off numbers. To ensure proper accounting of reimbursements,

grant claim invoices submitted to the OTS should be recorded as a receivable in
the subrecipient' s accounting system.

Subrecipients access Claims from the Grant Agreement list view on their GEMS

home page. The form is pre- populated with the grant budget items against
which claims for reimbursement can be made. The form also indicates b dget

remaining for each item based on prior claims that have been reviewed and
approved.

Personnel Costs, enter the claimed hourly rateand/ or overtime costs, if

applicable. Source documentation is maintained by the subrecipient in the
event of an audit and/ or the Grant Performance Review For more

information, refer to Grant Performance Review in the Monitorina Section of

this manual.)

Fringe Benefits, enter the pertinent information for authorized absences such
as annual leave and sick leave, as well as employer' s contributions to social

Page 36 Revised:  10/ 2021

107



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

security, health insurance, workmen' s compensation, and the like provided
they are granted under approved plans, and are distributed equitably to the
grant and all other activities.

Travel Costs, enter the pertinent travel information and claimed costs, if
applicable in accordance with the Subrecipient Responsibilities section,

Travel. Upload source documentation organized by in- state and out-of-state
travel for each individual( s) trip or training. For each individual trip or training,
group all source documents together and clearly label each with the
traveler' s name and approved trip or training identified in the Budget of the
agreement.

Contractual Services, enter the claimed contractual services amount by line
item in the GEMS Grant Claim Invoice Screen including entry into sub-
budgets if applicable. Upload all source documents for each contractor,

group all source documents together and clearly label each with the line
item identification and/ or contractors name.

Equipment, enter the claimed amount, if applicable. GEMS will require

completion of the Equipment Report as part of the claim. GEMS
automatically creates the first Recertification record with a Recertification
due date that is 2 years from the date of original claim.

Assemble and upload applicable invoice( s).  If sales tax is not included on

the invoice, provide a statement that includes the following: " Charge is for

California Sales Tax that will be paid to the Board of Equalization ( BOE),"
amount of sales tax for each item, and date tax is paid to BOE. For each line
item, assemble all source documents together and clearly label each with
the line item name.

Other Direct Costs, enter the claimed line item amount, if applicable and

upload invoices or receipts. For each line item, assemble all source

documents together and clearly label each with the name of the line item.

Indirect Costs, the approved rate is already entered in the agency
information tab and will automatically calculate, if applicable.  No source

documents are required; however, the subrecipient should have its indirect

cost allocation approval letter on file.

The authorized user or subrecipient must verify that costs claimed are allowable
and authorized, do not exceed budgeted line items, and posted to the correct
cost categories and line items. They should also check that all source
documents are provided.

Page 37 Revised:  10/ 2021

108



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

If a claim is submitted with undecipherable or missing source documents, the
subrecipient will be notified and instructed to submit the missing information or
re- submit the documents in question within three business days.  If documents
are not received by this deadline, the costs in question will be removed from the
claim.

GRANT REPORTS

Quarferly Performance Report ( QPR)

Subrecipients must submit Quarterly Performance Reports ( QPR) through GEMS.
The QPR details grant activities conducted during each quarter to accomplish
grant objectives. It is the main source of information used by the OTS to
determine grant success and commitment as well as any difficulties the
subrecipient may be experiencing. The information and data provided in the
QPR is incorporated into the Annval Performance Report that the OTS submits to

NHTSA and the State Legislature. The quarterly data is pulled from the
subrecipient' s crash records.

The QPR must be input into GEMS no later than 30 days following the end of the
quarter on the following dates:

Quarter Time Period Due Date

First October thru December January 30
Second January thru March April 30

Third April thru June July 30
Fourth July thru September October 30

QPR due dates are the same regardless of when a grant starts within a quarter
i. e., grant start date is December 1 and first quarter QPR is due January 30).

Failure to submit QPRs on time may result in suspension of the grant, loss of grant
funding and/ or a denial of future grant funding.  Additionallv, invoices will not

be processed for subrecipients that fail to provide QPRs for two or more quarters.

The OTS coordinator will provide the QPR reporting guidelines at the pre-

operational review meeting. The QPR is prepopulated based on the grant
agreement, it' s completed in GEMS, and contains the following:

An overview, that includes a brief list of all activities (including significant
media) and procurement conducted in support of the grant during the
quarter as well as the status of grant funded personnel and contracts, any
challenges, and accomplishments.

Page 38 Revised:  10/ 2021

109



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

An equipment overview for any equipment ( costing $ 5, 000 or more) being

purchased during the grant period noting steps taken to accomplish the
purchase and/ or if it is still required ( i. e., bid, purchase order or requisition,

delivery, invoice received and/ or paid) or a justification or reason if the
purchase was delayed.

A summary of completed grant objectives including an explanation of
what was not accomplished and/ or plans for upcoming activities.

If applicable updated objective data points for the quarter.

Documents illustrating what was done during the quarter such as the OTS-
approved press releases, news clips, photos, and/ or other materials.
Include a list of these documents.

Supporting information may be uploaded into GEMS.

The fourth quarter QPR should include a final evaluation that briefly summarizes
significant total grant accomplishments and challenges ( highlight significant
items from the objective data points), the number and type( s) of activities

completed, type(s) of training conducted or received, and grant-funded
purchases. Complete all final goals, objectives, data points and indicate
whether they were achieved and if not, provide an explanation if not
completed.

Grant Close Ovt

Approximately 30 days prior to the grant end date, the OTS sends a reminder e-
mail to the primary contact and Authorizing Official that serves as a reminder of
the grant end date and includes information to assist the subrecipient prepare
the final QPR, evaluation, and claim. The final QPR, including the completed
evaluation section, and reimbursement claim for costs accrued up through the
grant end date, must be sent to the OTS for receipt no later than 30 days
following the grant end date.

Eqvipment Disposal

At the end of or anytime during the grant, prior to disposal, a subrecipient must
notify the OTS of any disposition of grant equipment, unless the value has been
certified to be under$ 5, 000 and at the end of its useful life. The subrecipient

must submit a letter or email requesting the OTS approval to sell, transfer or
dispose of grant equipment. The OTS will forward the request to NHTSA for final
approval and notify the subrecipient of the outcome. All proceeds from the
sales of the asset, regardless of the amount, must be used for the objective of

the original grant agreement.

Page 39 Revised:  10/ 2021

110



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

MONITORING

Federal and state qrant manaaement rules require that the OTS staff maintain
regular contact via telephone/ virtual calls, email/ written correspondence and

on- site visits with subrecipients throughout the course of the grant period to
ensure compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations and procedures.
Grants administered by the OTS are subject to monitoring based on a number of
criteria including dollar amount of the award, the capabilities and experience
of the subrecipient' s personnel, complexity of the grant, contractual services
with or without a non-profit agency, risk assessment, new subrecipient,
indications of problems, previous GPR or audit findings, and/ or change in grant
direction. This monitoring includes not only the review and approval of claims,
QPRs and other documents submitted by the subrecipient, but also ongoing
outreach through desk monitoring and/ or on-site visits.

The intent of this outreach is to develop a relationship with the subrecipient,
address grant management- related questions, provide technical assistance,
and identify and help address problems and/ or concerns. Any documentation
generated as a result of this contact is placed in the subrecipient' s grant file.

Grant Performance Review

The Grant Performance Review ( GPR) is designed to be instructive, not

disruptive, and to foster information exchange and partnership. The OTS
Program Coordinators conduct a GPR after receipt of at least the first Quarterly
Performance Report and a claim with expenditures.

The OTS may schedule a virtual or onsite review at an agreed upon time with the
subrecipient in advance, and the OTS Program Coordinator will provide
information to the subrecipient to help the staff prepare for the review. During
the review, goals, objectives and tasks are reviewed to determine if the project
is being implemented as outlined in the approved grant application. This review
is also used to determine if the subrecipient is satisfying and adhering to grant
agreement terms and conditions. The financial review includes an examination

of the agency and grant-specific financial documents and issues related to the
implementation and performance of the grant.

While conducting the GPR, the OTS Program Coordinator completes the GPR in
GEMS noting any issues and the subrecipient' s response. If, following the OTS
review, there are fiscal follow-up action items, the subrecipient will be notified in
writing and a corrective action plan will be requested. The OTS will track
subrecipient' s progress in implementing the plan and taking corrective action.
In the event the issue( s) cannot be resolved, the OTS may request an audit be

Page 40 Revised:  10/ 2021

111



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

conducted by the California Department of Finance. For more information,

refer to Audits in the Grant Requirement section in this manual.)

If any disallowed costs are identified during the GPR, the OTS will reduce the
subrecipient' s next grant claim invoice by the amount of the disallowed cost
prior to payment. If the grant is closed, the OTS will invoice the subrecipient for
the amount of the disallowed cost.

Equipment

A subrecipient must submit an Equipment Recertification Report (OTS- 25a) to the

OTS every two years from the date of acquisition. This report includes the same
information as the Equipment Report as described in the Subrecipient

Responsibilities, Eauipment section, but also includes a description of the

method used for determining current fair market value, whether the fair market
value is more or less than $ 5, 000, and that the equipment is being used for
federally- sponsored activities. The report also certifies that the information
provided is complete and accurate to the best of the subrecipient' s knowledge,
in compliance with 2 CFR Part 200. 313 and 23 CFR 1200. 31 ( d), and that the OTS

will be contacted immediately after discovery of any grant equipment loss.

Beginning with 2018 FFY grants, equipment purchases were documented in
GEMS. The Equipment Recertification Report will also be completed in GEMS. A

reminder letter or email will be sent through GEMS to the subrecipient to ensure

compliance.

PUBLIC INFORMATION 8 EDUCATION

Public Education and Information ( PE& I) falls into two categories:

Educational - materials that educates and informs an audience such as

activity books, coloring books, brochures, and posters.

Promotional - material that promotes, supports or enhances efforts and
directly relates to the project objective such as key chains, onboard signs,
mugs, pencils, magnets, and litter bags. The State of California and NHTSA
does NOT allow grant funds to be used for this purpose.

Subrecipients that use federal highway safety funds to produce educational
material must receive approval from the OTS Public Information Officer (PIO)

prior to production. Additionally, subrecipients that use non- federal highway
safety funds to produce P18 E materials must receive written approval from the

OTS Public Information officer in order to use any OTS logo. Subrecipients should

Page 41 Revised:  10/ 2021

112



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

allow sufficient time for approval; they should contact their OTS Program
Coordinator for assistance.

Subrecipients should also advise vendors that all materials sed in production of
public outreach materials paid for with grant funds are the property of the
subrecipient and the OTS ( i. e., data, plates, digital files, camera- ready artwork,
designs, concepts, photographs, video and audio). The OTS reserves the right to

use materials developed by the subrecipient and/ or contractor.

All educational materials produced using grant funds must include the OTS logo
or the logo from another program unless otherwise determined by the OTS ( i. e.,
Click it or Ticket), and the following message:

Funding for this program was provided by a grant from the California Office
of Traffic Safety, through the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration.

Inclusion of the logo and/ or funding line should not interfere with the primary
traffic safety messaging. Questions regarding the inclusion, size or placement of
either logo or funding statement should be directed to the OTS PIO.

All published research and reports developed with highway safety grant funds
must include the following disclosure statement:

This report was prepared in cooperation with the California Office of Traffic
Safety (OTSJ. The opinions, findings and conclusion expressed in this

publication are those of the author(sJ and not necessarily those of the OTS.

Advertising & Public Relations

All press releases discussing the kick-off of a grant and/ or grant-funded activity
must be approved by the OTS Public Information Officer prior to dissemination
even if the subscriber uses a pre-approved press release templates available on
the OTS website. Approval is also required for all original press releases and press
releases developed using the OTS templates that the subrecipient has
significantly modified. The subrecipient should email the draft press release to
pio@ots. ca. qov at least two weeks in advance of the announcement or event
and copy the appropriate OTS Program Coordinator.

A subrecipient must coordinate media and kick- off events with their OTS

Program Coordinator.

Grant funds may be used to purchase paid advertising ( i. e., television, radio,

cinema, Internet, print, outdoor). However, special reporting documents are
required, and costs must be displayed as a separate " paid media" line item in

the grant budget. Additionally, federally funded public service announcements

Page 42 Revised:  10/ 2021

113



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

PSAs) or video materials intended for television broadcast must be closed

captions. A subrecipient should contact their OTS Program Coordinator for

more information on paid advertising.

Copyrigh ts/ Trademarks

The OTS reserves a royalty- free, non- exclusive and irrevocable license to
reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for federal or
state government purposes the following:

The copyright/ trademark in any work developed under a grant, sub grant
or contract under a grant or sub grant.

Any rights of copyright/ trademark to which a subrecipient or contractor
purchases ownership with grant funds.

WITHHOLDING, DISALLOWANCE, REDUCTION, TERMINATION AND/ OR DENIAL OF

GRANT FUNDS

The OTS Program Coordinator has the responsibility of recommending to the OTS
Director the cancellation of any grant, which is not being implemented in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws or the terms, certification

and/ or assurances in the signed grant agreement. Additionally, the OTS will
withhold or disallow grant payments, reduce or terminate grant funds and/ or
deny future grant funding to any subrecipient that fails to comply with any term
or condition of the grant agreement or program guidelines. This may include,
but are not limited to, failure to submit acceptable and timely draft and final
grant agreements, claims, quarterly reports and/ or objective data points; and
failure to comply with the Sinale Audit Act requirement.

Should the OTS deem it necessary to reduce or terminate grant funds, the
Authorizing Official will first receive a letter citing unacceptable grant
discrepancies, required corrective action and the penalty for not rectifying the
discrepancies by the specified deadline. If corrective action is not taken by the
deadline specified in the letter, the state penalty will be imposed.

Payment for allowable costs up to the date of termination or reduction of grant
funds will be subject to negotiation and availability of federal funds.

Termination Reqvested by the Subrecipient

Grant agreements may be rescinded upon written request by the subrecipient.
The letter must be signed by one of the Authorizing Officials of the grant
agreement.

Page 43 Revised:  10/ 2021

114



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL

DISPUTES/ DISAGREEMENTS

Any dispute, disagreement or questions of fact concerning a grant should be
handled with the OTS Program Coordinator assigned to that grant in
consultation with managerial staff. All final decisions will be put in writing and

distributed to all concerned parties as well as maintained in the subrecipient' s
grant file. The subrecipient may then proceed with the performance of the
grant in accordance with that decision.

If a subrecipient disagrees with a decision made by the OTS Program
Coordinator, an appeal may be made to the OTS Director. The appeal must be
made in writing within 30 days of the Program Coordinator' s decision and sent
to the OTS by certified mail.  No legal action may be taken by the subrecipient

without following these steps.

Page 44 Revised:  10/ 2021

115



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

APPENDIX A - CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY GRANTS

23 U. S. C. Chapter 4 and 41 U. S. C. Sec. 1906, Pub. L. 109- 59, as Amended By
Sec. 4011, PUB. L. 114- 94)

The Governor is the responsible official for the administration of the State

highway safety program through a State highway safety agency that has
adequate powers and is suitably equipped and organized ( as evidenced by
appropriate oversight procedures governing such areas as procurement,
financial administration, and the use, management, and disposition of

equipment) to carry out the program.  ( 23 U. S. C. 402( b)( 1 )( A)

Each fiscal year the State of California must sign a Certifications and Assurances
document that it complies with all Federal requirements including applicable
statutes and regulations that are in effect during the grant period. These
Certifications and Assurances are submitted in the Highway Safety Plan in
support of the State' s application for Section 402 and Section 405 grants.
Requirements that also apqlv to subrecipients are noted below.

Failure to comply with applicable Federal statutes, regulations, and directives

may subject Subrecipients Agency officials to civil or criminal penalties and/ or
place the State in a high- risk subrecipients status in accordance with 2 CFR Part
200. 205 - 200. 207.

The officials named on the grant agreement, certify by way of signature on the
grant agreement signature page, that the Subrecipients Agency complies with
all applicable Federal statutes, regulations, and directives and State rules,

guidelines, policies and laws in effect with respect to the periods for which it
receives grant funding.

Applicable provisions include, but are not limited to, the following:
General Requirements:

23 U. S. C. Chapter 4 - Highway Safety Act of1966, as amended

Sec. 1906, Pub. L. 109- 59, as amended by Sec. 4011, Pub. L. 1 14- 94

23 CFR Part 1300— Uniform Procedures for State Highway Safety Grant
Programs

2 CFR Part 200 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

2 CFR Part 1201 - Department of Transportation, Uniform Administrative

Page 45 Revised:  10/ 2021

116



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIPICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

NONDISCRIMINATION

Applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State highway safety agency will comply with all Federal statutes and
implementing regulations relating to nondiscrimination (" Federal

Nondiscrimination Authorities"). These include but are not limited to:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 ( 42 U. S. C. 2000d et seq., 78 stat.

252), ( prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national
origin) and 49 CFR part 21;

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition
Policies Act of 1970, ( 42 U. S. C. 4601), ( prohibits unfair treatment of
persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because
of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

Federal- Aid Highway Act of 1973, ( 23 U. S. C. 324 et sea.), and Title IX

of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended ( 20 U. S. C. 1681-

1683 and 1685- 1686) ( prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex);

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,( 29 U. S. C. 794 et sea ),

as amended, ( prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability) and
49 CFR Part 27;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, ( 42 U. S. C. 6101 et

se c.), ( prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);

The Civil Riqhts Restoration Act of 1987, ( Pub. L. 100- 209) ( broadens

scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 ( 42 U. S. C. 2000d et sea., 78 stat. 252). The Age Discrimination

Act of 1975 ( 42 U. S. C. 6101 et sea.) and Section 504 of the

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 ( 29 U. S. C. 794 et sea.), by expanding the
definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the
programs or activities of the Federal aid recipients, subrecipients
and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally-
funded or not);

Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U. S. C. 12131-

12189) ( prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in the
operation of public entities, public and private transportation
systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing) and
49 CFR Part 37 and Part 38;

Page 46 Revised:  10/ 2021

117



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental

Justice in Minority Populations and Low- Income Populations
prevents discrimination against minority populations by

discouraging programs, policies, and activities with
disproportionately high and adverse human health or
environmental effects on minority and low-income populations);
and

Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons
with Limited English Proficiency ( guards against Title VI national
origin discrimination/ discrimination because of limited English

proficiency ( LEP) by ensuring that funding recipients take
reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful
access to programs ( 70 FR 74087- 74100).

The subgrantee -

Will take all measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United
States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, disability, sex,
age, limited English proficiency, or membership in any other class
protected by Federal Nondiscrimination Authorities, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any of its programs or activities, so long as any
portion of the program is Federally- assisted;

Will administer the program in a manner that reasonably ensures that any
of its subrecipients, contractors, subcontractors, and consultants receiving
Federal financial assistance under this program will comply with all
requirements of the Non- Discrimination Authorities identified in this

Assurance;

Agrees to comply (and require its subrecipients, contractors,
subcontractors, and consultants to comply) with all applicable provisions
of law or regulation governing USDOT' s or NHTSA' s access to records,
accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff, and to cooperate

and comply with any program or compliance reviews, and/ or complaint
investigations conducted by US DOT or NHTSA under any Federal
Nondiscrimination Authority;

Acknowledges that the United States has a right to seek judicial
enforcement with regard to any matter arising under these Non-
Discrimination Authorities and this Assurance;

Agrees to insert in all contracts and funding agreements with other State
or private entities the following clause:

Page 47 Revised:  10/ 2021

118



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

During the performance of this contract/ funding agreement, the
contractor/ funding recipient agrees -

a.  To comply with all Federal nondiscrimination laws and regulations,
as may be amended from time to time;

b.  Not to participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination
prohibited by any Federal non-discrimination law or regulation,
as set forth in aqpendix B of 49 CFR Part 21 and herein;

c.  To permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources
of information, and its facilities as required by the State
highway safety office, USDOT or NHTSA;

d.  That, in event a contractor/ funding recipient fails to comply
with any nondiscrimination provisions in this contract/ funding
agreement, the State highway safety agency will have the
right to impose such contract/ agreement sanctions as it or

NHTSA determine are appropriate, including but not limited to
withholding payments to the contractor/ funding recipient
under the contract/ agreement until the contractor/ funding
recipient complies; and/ or cancelling, terminating, or
suspending a contractor funding agreement, in whole or in
part; and

e.  To insert this clause, including paragraphs ( a) through ( e), in every
subcontract and sub-agreement and in every solicitation for a
subcontractor sub- agreement that receives Federal funds under

this program.

THE DRUG- FREE WORKPLACE ACT OF 1988 ( 41 U. S. C. 8103)

The Subgrantee will provide a drug-free workplace by:
a.   Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture,

distribution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is
prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be
taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

b.  Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:
1.  The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2.  The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance

programs;

4.  The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug
violations occurring in the workplace;

5.  Making it a requirement that each employee engaged in the
performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph ( a);

Page 48 Revised:  10/ 2021

119



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

c.   Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph ( a) that,
as a condition of employment under the grant, the employee will -

1.  Abide by the terms of the statement;
2.  Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for

a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five days
after such conviction;

d.  Notifying the agency within ten days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (c)( 2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual
notice of such conviction;

e.  Taking one of the following actions, within 30 days of receiving
notice under subparagraph ( c)( 2), with respect to any employee
who is so convicted -

1.  Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination;

2.   Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by
a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other

appropriate agency;
f.   Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug- free

workplace through implementation of all of the paragraphs above.

POLITICAL ACTIVITY ( HATCH AC

Applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U. S. C. 1501- 1508) which
limits the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities
are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING FEDERAL LOBBYING

Applies to subrecipients as well as States)

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements:

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1 .  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on
behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of

Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;

Page 49 Revised:  10/ 2021

120



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

2.  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid
or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a

Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,

grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, " Disclosure Form to Report

Lobbvinq", in accordance with its instructions;

3.  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be

included in the award documents for all sub- award at all tiers ( including
subcontracts, sub grants, and contracts under grant, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was

placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this

certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code. Any person who fails to file the
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than

10, 000 and not more than $ 100, 000 for each such failure.

RESTRICTION ON STATE LOBBYING

Applies to subrecipients as well as States)

None of the funds under this program will be used for any activity specifically
designed to urge or influence a State or local legislator to favor or oppose

the adoption of any specific legislative proposal pending before any State or
local legislative body. Such activities include both direct and indirect ( e. g.,
grassroots") lobbying activities, with one exception. This does not preclude a

State official whose salary is supported with NHTSA funds from engaging in
direct communications with State or local legislative officials, in accordance

with customary State practice, even if such communications urge legislative
officials to favor or oppose the adoption of a specific pending legislative
proposal.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

Applies to subrecipients as well as States)

Instructions for Primary Tier Participant Certification ( States

1.  By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary tier
participant is providing the certification set out below and agrees to
comply with the requirements of 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.

Page 50 Revised:  10/ 2021

121



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

2.  The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will
not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered
transaction. The prospective primary tier participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below.
The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with

the department or agency' s determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary tier participant
to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person
from participation in this transaction.

3.  The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon

which reliance was placed when the department or agency
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the

prospective primary tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal

Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction
for cause or default or may pursue suspension or debarment.

4.  The prospective primary tier participant shall provide immediate written
notice to the department or agency to which this proposal is submitted
if at any time the prospective primary tier participant learns its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous

by reason of changed circumstances.

5.  The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension,
ineligible, participant, person, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used
in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. You may contact
the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for
assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

6.  The prospective primary tier participant agrees by submitting this
proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction
with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 9,

Subpart 9. 4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless
authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.

7.  The prospective primary tier participant further agrees by submitting this
proposal that it will include the clause titled " Instructions for Lower Tier

Participant Certification", including the "Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion— Lower Tier

Covered Transaction," provided by the department or agency entering
into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier

covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered

transactions and will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR
Parts 180 and 1200.

Page 51 Revised:  10/ 2021

122



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIPICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

8.  A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of
a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is
not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9. 4,

debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.

A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not
suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered
transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the
eligibility of any prospective lower tier participants, each participant
may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management
Exclusions website ( https:// www. sam. gov/).

9.  Nothing contained in the fore going shall be construed to require
establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of
a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed
by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10.  Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these
instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters
into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for
debarment under 48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9. 4, suspended, debarred,

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from parficipation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, the
department or agency may terminate the transaction for cause or
default.

Certification Re_ aqrdinq Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility
Matters- Primary Tier Covered Transactions

1)  The prospective primary tier participant certifies to the best of its

knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from

participating in covered transactions by any Federal
department or agency;

b)  Have not within a three- year period preceding this proposal been
convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public ( Federal,
State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction;
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of

embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

c)  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged
by a governmental entity (Federal, State or Local) with commission of

Page 52 Revised:  10/ 2021

123



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph ( 1)( b) of this

certification; and

d)  Have not within a three- year period preceding this
application/ proposal had one or more pubiic transactions (Federai,
State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

2)  Where the prospective primary tier participant is unable to certify to
any of the Statements in this certification, such prospective
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification

1 .  By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier
participant is providing the certification set out below and agrees to
comply with the requirements of 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.

2.  The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon

which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is
later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly
rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies

available to the Federal government, the department or agency with
which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies,
including suspension or debarment.

3.  The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written
notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the
prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous
when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

4.  The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension,
ineligible, participant, person, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used
in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. You may contact
the person to whom this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a
copy of those regulations.

5.  The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal
that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not
knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who
is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9. 4, debarred,
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation
in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or
agency with which this transaction originated.

6.  The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this
proposal that it will include the clause titled " Instructions for Lower Tier

Participant Certification" including the "Certification Regarding

Page 53 Revised:  10/ 2021

124



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion- Lower Tier
Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered

transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions and

will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.
7.  A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a

prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not
proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9. 4, debarred,
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A

participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended,
debarred, or otherwise in eligible to participate in covered transactions.
To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any
prospective lower tier participants, each participant may, but is not
required to, check the System for Award Management Exclusions website

https:// www. sam. aov/ 1.

8.  Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require
establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by
a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

9.  Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions,
if a pprticipant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier
covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under
48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9. 4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal government, the department or
agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available
remedies, including suspension or debarment.

Certification Reaardinq Debarment, Suspension, Ineliqibility and Voluntarx
Exclusion-- Lower Tier Covered Transactions:

1 .  The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this
proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal
department or agency.

2.  Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to

any of the statements in this certification, such prospective

participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Page 54 Revised:  10/ 2021

125



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

BUY AMERIGA ACT

Applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipient will comply with the Buy America
requirement ( 23 U. S. C. 313) when purchasing items using Federal funds.  Buy
America requires a State, or subrecipient, to purchase with Federal funds only
steel, iron and manufactured products produced in the United States, unless
the Secretary of Transportation determines that such domestically produced
items would be inconsistent with the public interest, that such materials are
not reasonably available and of a satisfactory quality, or that inclusion of
domestic materials will increase the cost of the overall project contract by

more than 25 percent. In order to use Federal funds to purchase foreign
produced items, the State must submit a waiver request that provides an
adequate basis and justification for approval by the Secretary of
Transportation.

PROHIBITION ON USING GRANT FUNDS TO CHECK FOR HE MET Usa e

applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipient will not use 23 U. S. C. Chapter 4 grant funds for
programs to check helmet usage or to create checkpoints that specifically
target motorcyclists.

POLICY ON SEAT BELT USE

In accordance with Executive Order 13043, Increasing Seat Belt Use in the
United States, dated April 16, 1997, the Grantee is encouraged to adopt and

enforce on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees when
operating company-owned, rented, or personally owned vehicles. The National
Highway Traffic Safety Administration ( NHTSA) is responsible for providing
leadership and guidance in support of this Presidential initiative. For information
and resources on traffic safety programs and policies for employers, please
contact the Network of Employers for Traffic Safety ( NETS), a public private

partnership dedicated to improving the traffic safety practices of employers
and employees. You can download information on seat belt programs, costs of
motor vehicle crashes to employers, and other traffic safety initiatives at
www.trafficsafety. org. The NHTSA website ( https:// www.nhtsa. aov/) also

provides information on statistics, campaigns, and program evaluations and
references.

Page 55 Revised:  10/ 2021

126



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX A- CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

POLICY ON BANNING TEXT MESSAGING WHILE DRIVING

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership On Reducing

Text Messaging While Driving, and DOT Order 3902. 10, Text Messaging While
Driving, States are encouraged to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies
to decrease crashes caused by distracted driving, including policies to ban text
messaging while driving company- owned or rented vehicles, Government-
owned, leased or rented vehicles, or privately-owned vehicles when on official
Government business or when performing any work on or behalf of the
Government. States are also encouraged to conduct workplace safety
initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the business, such as

establishment of new rules and programs or re- evaluation of existing programs
to prohibit text messaging while driving, and education, awareness, and other
outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while
driving.

Page 56 Revised:  10/ 2021

127



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX B— MANDATORY DISCLOSURES

APPENDIX B- MANDATORY DISCLOSURES

2 CFR Part 200. 1 13 and Appendix XII

Non-Federal entities that have received a Federal award including the term and
condition outlined below in " Appendix XII- Award Term and Condition for

Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters", are required to report certain

civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings to SAM.  Failure to make required
disclosures can result in any of the remedies described in § 200.338 Remedies for

noncompliance, including suspension or debarment. ( See also 2 CFR part 180,

31 U. S. C. 3321, and 41 U. S. C. 2313.)

Appendix XII to Part 200- Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and
Performance Matters

Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance

1.  General Reporting Requirement

If the total value of your currently active grants, cooperative agreements,
and procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies exceeds

10, 000, 000 for any period of time during the period of performance of this
Federal award, then you as the recipient during that period of time must
maintain the currency of information reported to the rstem for Award

Manaqement( SAM) that is made available in the designated integrity and
perfOrmanCe System ( CUrrently the Federal Awardee Performance and Inteqrity
Information System ( FAPIIS)) qbOUt Clvil, criminal, or administrative proceedings
described in paragraph 2 of this award term and condition. This is a statutory
requirement under section 872 of Public Law 1 10- 417, as amended ( 41 U. S. C.

2313). As required by section 3010 of Public Law 1 11- 212, all information
posted in the designated integrity and performance system on or after April
15, 201 1, except pasf performance reviews required for Federal procurement
contracts, will be publicly available.

2.  Proceedings Aboufi Which You Must Report

Submit the information required about each proceeding that:

a.  Is in connection with the award or performance of a grant, cooperative
agreement, or procurement contract from the Federal Government;

b.  Reached its final disposition during the most recent five-year period; and

c.  Is one of the following:

Page 57 Revised:  10/ 2021

128



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX B- MANDATORY DISCLOSURES

1)  A criminal proceeding that resulted in a conviction, as defined in
paragraph 5 of this award term and condition;

2)  A civil proceeding that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and
payment of a monetary fine, penalty, reimbursement, restitution, or
damages of $ 5, 000 or more;

3)  An administrative proceeding, as defined in paragraph 5. of this
award term and condition, that resulted in a finding of fault and
liability and your payment of either a monetary fine or penalty of

5, 000 or more or reimbursement, restitution, or damages in excess of

100, 000; or

4)  Any other criminal, civil, or administrative proceeding if:

i.    It could have led to an outcome described in paragraph 2. c.( 1),
2), or ( 3) of this award term and condition;

ii.    It had a different disposition arrived at by consent or compromise
with an acknowledgment of fault on your part; and

iii.    The requirement in this award term and condition to disclose

information about the proceeding does not conflict with
applicable laws and regulations.

3.  Reporting Procedures

Enter in the SAM Entity Management area the information that SAM requires
about each proceeding described in paragraph 2 of this award term and
condition. You do not need to submit the information a second time under

assistance awards that you received if you already provided the information
through SAM because you were required to do so under Federal
procurement contracts that you were awarded.

4.  Reporting Freqvency

During any period of time when you are subject to the requirement in
paragraph 1 of this award term and condition, you must report proceedings
information through SAM for the most recent five year period, either to report
new information about any proceeding( s) that you have not reported
previously or affirm that there is no new information to report. Recipients that
have Federal contract, grant, and cooperative agreement awards with a
cumulative total value greater than $ 10, 000, 000 must disclose semiannually

any information about the criminal, civil, and administrative proceedings.

5. Definitions

Page 58 Revised:  10/ 2021

129



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX B- MANDATORY DISCLOSURES

For purposes of this award term and condition:

a.  Administrative proceeding means a non-judicial process that is
adjudicatory in nature in order to make a determination of fault or liability
e. g., Securities and Exchange Commission Administrative proceedings,

Civilian Board of Contract Appeals proceedings, and Armed Services
Board of Contract Appeals proceedings). This includes proceedings at the
Federal and State level but only in connection with performance of a
Federal contract or grant. It does not include audits, site visits, corrective
plans, or inspection of deliverables.

b.  Conviction, for purposes of this award term and condition, means a

judgment or conviction of a criminal offense by any court of competent
jurisdiction, whether entered upon a verdict or a plea, and includes a
conviction entered upon a plea of nolo contendere.

c.  Total value of currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and
procurement contracts includes—

1)  Only the Federal share of the funding under any Federal award with a
recipient cost share or match; and

2) The value of all expected funding increments under a Federal award
and options, even if not yet exercised.

Page 59 Revised:  10/ 2021

130



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
APPENDIX C- LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES

APPENDIX C- LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES

PROHIBITION ON USING GRANT FUNDS TO CHECK FOR HELMET USAGE

Applies to subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipients will not use 23 U. S. C. Chapter 4 grant
funds for programs to check helmet usage or to create check points that
specifically target motorcyclists.  Public Law 129 - 1510, SEC. 4007

RACIAL PROFILING

Ali subrecipient law enforcement agencies shall comply with California law
regarding profiling. Penal Code section 13519. 4, subdivision ( e), defines " racial

profiling" as the " practice of detaining a suspect based on a broad set of
criteria which casts suspicion on an entire class of people without any
individualized suspicion of the particular person being stopped." Then,

subdivision ( f) of that section goes on to provide, " A law enforcement officer

shall not engage in racial profiling."

VEHICLE PURSUITS

The State actively encourages all relevant law enforcement agencies in the
State to follow the guidelines established for vehicular pursuits issued by the
International Association of Chiefs of Police that are currently in effect. ( 23 U. S. C.

4)

USE OF FUNDS

Traffic enforcement personnel and any equipment funded under this grant
agreement shall be dedicated solely to grant supported enforcement tasks
unless a criminal offense is committed in the officer' s presence; a response to an
officer in distress is initiated, and or a riot requires that all available enforcement

personnel be committed in response.

Nothing in the grant agreement shall be interpreted as a requirement, formal or
informal, that a particular police officer issue a specified or predetermined
number of citations in pursuance of the goals and objectives hereunder.

Page 60 Revised:  10/ 2021

131



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

APPENDIX D- GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS, STATE CERTIFICATIONS

As referenced in the grant agreement)

Terms and conditions, when applicable, are incorporated by reference and
made a part of, but not necessarily limited to, the following documents: grant
agreements, subgrants, contracts, subcontracts, interagency agreements,
invitations for bid, and requests for proposal for goods or services for which the
OTS grant funding reimbursement is requested. It is understood and agreed by

the subrecipient that grant funds received as a result of this grant agreement
are subject to all applicable federal and state regulations, rules, guidelines,
policies and laws and to the following applicable controls, terms and
consideration expressed in the OTS Grant Program Manual.

Federal certifications and assurances are included in Appendix A of this Grants

Management Manual. The following laws apply to persons or entities doing
business with the State of California.

1.   Administrative Support and Statement of Intent

This program has full support of the authorizing agency, and every effort will
be made to continue the activities after the grant conclusion.  If required by
local governance, the city council or the board of supervisors will endorse this
grant through a resolution.

2.   Air or Water Pollution Violation

Under the State laws, the subrecipient or contractor shall not be:  ( 1) in

violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; ( 2) subject to

cease and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301
of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or

discharge prohibitions; or ( 3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions
of federal law relating to air or water pollution.

3.   Amendment

No amendment or variation of the terms of this agreement shall be valid

unless made in writing, signed by the parties and approved as required. No
oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in the grant agreement is
binding on any of the parties.  ( Reference: DGS Standard Agreement

General Terms and Conditions,"). Grant agreement revisions are allowed in

accordance with the guidelines detailed in the OTS GPM. All appropriate
documentation required to request a grant revision must be submitted timely
to Grantor.

Page 61 Revised:  10/ 2021

132



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

4.   Americans With Disabilities Act.

Subrecipient or contractor assures the State that it complies with the

Americans with Disabilities Act ( ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination

on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines
issued pursuant to the ADA.  ( 42 USC 12101 et sea.)

5.   Antitrust Claims

The subrecipient by signing this grant agreement hereby certifies that if these
services or goods are obtained by means of a competitive bid, the
subrecipient shall comply with the requirements of the Government Code
sections set out below.

a.  The Government Code chapter on antitrust claims contains the following
definitions:

1)  " Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of
goods, services, or materials by the state or any of its political
subdivisions or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General
may bring an action pursuant to subdivision ( c) of Section 16750 of the
Business and Professions Code.

2)  " Public purchasing body" means the state or the subdivision or
agency making a public purchase.  ( Reference:  GC 4550)

b.  In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and
agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all
rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under
Section 4 of the Clayton Act ( 15 U. S. C. Chapterl Part 15 [ Title 15

Commerce and Trade, Chapter 1, Monopolies and Combinations in

Restraint of Trade, Section 15, Suits by Persons Injured]) or under the

Cartwright Act ( Chapter 2 ) commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of
Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of
goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body
pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become
effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the
bidder.  ( Reference:  GC § 4552)

c.  If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through
judgment or settlement, a monetary recovery for a cause of action
assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive

reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand,
recover from the public body any portion of the recovery, including treble
damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but
were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the

Page 62 Revised:  10/ 2021

133



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the recovery.  ( Reference:

GC 4553)

d.  Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one
year from such demand, reassign the cause of action assigned under this
part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of
law for which the cause of action arose and ( a) the assignee has not

been injured thereby, or ( b) the assignee declines to file a court action for
the cause of action.  ( Reference: GC 4554)

b.   Approval

This grant agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and
approved by the Office of Traffic Safety. Subrecipient or contractor may not
commence performance until such approval has been obtained.
Reference: California Department of General Services ( DGS) Standard

Agreement " General Terms and Conditions,")

7.   AssiQnment

This grant agreement is not assignable by the subrecipient, either in whole or
in part, without the consent of the Office of Traffic Safety in the form of a
formal written amendment.  ( Reference: DGS Standard Agreement

General Terms and Conditions".

8.   Audits and Access to Records

Subrecipient agrees that the California Office of Traffic Safety, the National
Highway Traffic Safety Administration, or their designated representative( s),
shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting

documentation pertaining to the performance of this grant agreement.
Subrecipient agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a
minimum of three ( 3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of
records retention is stipulated. Subrecipient agrees to allow the auditor( s)

access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews
of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such
records.  Further, subrecipient agrees to include a similar right of the state to

audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to the
performance of this agreement.  ( Reference: GC § 8546. 7, Public Contract

Code ( PCC § 101 15 et seq., California Code of Regulations ( CCR Title 2,

1896).

9.   Availabilitv of Funds

Reimbursement of approved grant expenditures is contingent upon the
subrecipient complying with all grant requirements and the appropriation of
sufficient funds by the federal government and the California Office of Traffic
Safety. OTS does not represent or guarantee the availability of federal

Page 63 Revised:  10/ 2021

134



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

highway safety funds for initial or subsequent year funding. If during the term

of the grant federal funds are reduced or eliminated, OTS may immediately
terminate or reduce the grant award upon written notice to the
subrecipient' s Authorizing Official.

Once a grant has been awarded and becomes effective, OTS reimburses
the subrecipient for expenditures related to approved activities.  Only costs

incurred within the approved grant period and that do not exceed the
federally obligated funds as indicated in the agreement are reimbursed. The
goals and objectives outlined in the grant should be accomplished during
the grant period and within the approved budget.

OTS has the option to void the agreement under the thirty- day cancellation

clause or to amend the contract to reflect any reduction in funds
Reference: SCM, Vol. , 3. 1 1.)  Funds are awarded under Catalog of Federal

Domestic Assistance ( CFDA) Numbers. The specific funding source is
identified on the grant budget.

10.  Bvrd Anti- Lobbvinq Amendment( 31 USC 1352)

Subrecipients who apply or bid for an award of $ 100, 000 or more shall file the

required certification.  Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and

has not used federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any

federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 USC 1352. Each
tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non- federal funds that takes place in
connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are
forwarded from tier-to-tier up to the recipient.

11.  Child Support Compliance Act

For any grant agreement in excess of $ 100, 000, the subrecipient

acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code ( PCC § 71 10), that:

a.  The subrecipient recognizes the importance of child and family support
obligations and shall fully comply with all applicable state and federal
laws relating to child and family support enforcement, including, but not
limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings

assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 ( commencing with section
5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Cod; and

b.  The subrecipient, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the
earnings assignment orders of all employees and is providing the names of
all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the California

Page 64 Revised:  10/ 2021

135



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

Employment Development Department."  ( Reference: DGS Standard

Agreement " General Terms and Conditions,")

12.  Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act

33 USC 1251 et seq.), as amended. Grants of amounts in excess of $ 100, 000

shall contain a provision that requires the subrecipient to agree to comply
with all applicabie standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the
Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401 et sea.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control

Act as amended ( 33 USC 1251 et seq.). Violations shall be reported to the

federai awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency ( EPA).

13.  Compensation

The consideration to be paid subrecipient, as provided herein, shall be in
compensation for all of subrecipient' s expenses incurred in the performance

hereof, including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so
provided.  ( Reference: DGS Standard Agreement " General Terms and

Conditions")

14.  Conflict of Interest

Subrecipient or contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions
regarding current or former state employees. If subrecipient or contractor
has any questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved
with the agreement, the awarding agency must be contacted immediately
for clarification.

Current State Employees ( PCC 10410)

a.  No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity, or
enterprise from which the officer or employee receives compensation or

has a financial interest, and which is sponsored or funded by any state
agency, unless the employment, activity, or enterprise is required as a
condition of regular state employment.

b.  No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an

independent contractor with any state agency to provide goods or
services.

Former State Employees ( PCC 1041 1)

a.   For the two- year period from the date he or she left state employment, no
former state officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or
she engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning,
arrangements, or any part of the decision- making process relevant to the
contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency.

Page 65 Revised:  10/ 2021

136



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

b.   For the twelve- month period from the date he or she left state
employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a

contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that state
agency in a policy- making position in the same general subject area as
the proposed contract within the twelve- month period prior to his or her
leaving state service.

If subrecipient or contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs,
such action by subrecipient or contractor shall render this agreement
void. ( PCC 10420)

Members or boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they

do not receive payment other than payment of each meeting of the
board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per
diem.  ( PCC 10430( e))

15.  Contracts

Subrecipients may enter into contract(s) to perform applicable provisions of
this grant agreement. The subrecipient is responsible for ensuring that all
activities delegated to contractors are in support of this grant agreement.

1)   Consultants and/ or contractors shall be selected in accordance with

the subrecipient agency procurement policies and procedures in order
to comply with the terms of this Agreement and in accordance with the
OTS GPM.

The subrecipient consultant and/ or contractor are subject to all

applicable terms and conditions and are bound by the applicable

certifications of the grant agreement and 2 CFR Part 200.

CA OTS is not obligated to make any payment under any agreement
prior to final execution or outside the terms of the contract period.
Contractor or subrecipient agency expenditures incurred prior to final
contract execution are taken at the risk of that contractor/ subrecipient

agency and will be considered unallowable if that agreement/ contract
is not executed.

2)   Nothing contained in this grant agreement shall create any contractual
relation between the State and any contractors, and no contract shall
relieve the subrecipient of its responsibilities and obligations hereunder.

Subrecipient agrees to be as fully responsible to the State for the acts

and omissions of its contractors and of persons either directly or indirectly
employed by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons
directly employed by the subrecipient. The subrecipient' s obligation to
pay its contractors is an independent obligation from the State' s
obligation to make payments to the subrecipient. As a result, the State

Page 66 Revised:  10/ 2021

137



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D- General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

shali have no obligation to pay or to enforce the payment of any
moneys to any contractor.

16.  Contractor Certification Clauses:

The Contractor Certification Clauses contained in the Department General

Services document CCC 04/ 2017 are hereby incorporated by reference and
made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.

17.  Independent Contractor

Contractor, and the agents and employees of contractor, in the

performance of this grant agreement, shall act in an independent capacity
and not as officers or employees or agents of the state.  ( Reference: DGS

Standard Agreement " General Terms and Conditions" J

18.  Competition

No subrecipient shall draft, or cause to be drafted, any invitation to bid or
request for proposal, in connection with the awarding of a consulting services
contract, in such a manner as to limit the bidding directly to any one bidder.
At least three competitive bids or proposals shall be secured for each
consulting services contract.  ( Reference: PCC § 10340)

19.  Convict/ Forced Labor

No foreign- made equipment, materials, or supplies furnished pursuant to this
contract may be produced in whole or in part by forced labor, convict labor,
or indentured labor under penal sanction.  ( Reference: PCC § 6108)

20.  Copvri4hts ( 41 CFR 105- 71. 134)

The federal awarding agency reserves a royalty- free, nonexclusive, and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize

others to use, for federal government purposes:( a) The copyright in any work
developed under a grant or contract; and ( b) Any rights of copyright to
which a subrecipient or a contractor purchases ownership with' grant
support.

21.  Corporate Qualifications to Do Business in California

When agreements are to be performed in the State by corporations, the
authorizing agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified
to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the

State are fulfilled.

Doing business" is defined in Revenue and Taxation Code ( R& TC) Section
231 Ol as actively engaging in any transaction for the purpose of financial or
pecuniary gain or profit. Although there are some statutory exceptions to
taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within the state not be
subject to the franchise tax.

Page 67 Revised:  10/ 2021

138



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D- General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

Both domestic and foreign corporations ( those incorporated outside of

California) must be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in
California. Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good
standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State.

22.  Davis- Bacon Act, as amended ( 40 USC 3142

When required by federal program legislation, all construction contracts
awarded by the recipients and sub recipients of more than $ 2, 000 shall

include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 USC 3142)
and as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5,
Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally

Financed and Assisted Construction").  Under this Act, contractors shall be

required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the
minimum wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary
of Labor. In addition, contractors shall be required to pay wages not less
than once a week. The recipient shall place a copy of the current prevailing
wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation
and the award of a contract shall be conditioned upon the acceptance of

the wage determination. The recipient shall report all suspected or reported

violations to the federal awarding agency.

23.  Disadvantaged Business Enterprise/ Small Business Affirmative Steps

Subrecipients and contractors will take all necessary affirmative steps to
assure that disadvantaged business enterprises ( DBE), as defined in 49 CFR

Section 26. 5, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. Affirmative
steps shall include:

a.   Placing qualified DBEs and small businesses on solicitation lists.
b.  Assuring that DBEs and small businesses are solicited whenever they are

potential sources.
c.   Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks

or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and DBEs.

d.   Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which
encourage participation by small and DBEs.

e.   Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and
the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of
Commerce.

f.   Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the
affirmative steps listed above.  ( Reference: 2 CFR 200.321)

24.  Disclosure Requirements

a.   Any document or written report prepared for or under the direction of a
state or local agency, which is prepared in whole or in part by non-

Page 68 Revised:  10/ 2021

139



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D- General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

employees of such agency, shall contain the contract numbers and the
dollar amounts of all contracts and subcontracts relating to the

preparation of such document or written report when the total cost for
such work performed by non- employees of the agency exceeds five
thousand dollars ($ 5, 000). The contract and subcontract numbers and

dollar amounts shall be set forth in a separate section of each such

document or written report.

b.   When multiple documents or written reports are the subject or product of
the contract, the total contract amount is deemed to represent the

compensation for those multiple documents or written reports.

Reference: GC § 7550)

25.  Disputes.

Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this grant agreement
during any dispute.  ( Reference:  DGS Standard Agreements " General Terms

and Conditions,")

26.  Document Retention and Access

The subrecipient certifies that it will comply with the retention and access
requirements for records established by 2 CFR Subpart D - 200. 333- 200. 337.

The required records and documentation relating to the grant and/ or sub-
contract shall be retained for a minimum of three years after the starting
date of the retention period as defined in Section 200.333. The OTS or their
authorized representative shall have the right of access to any books,
documents, papers, or other records of subrecipients or contractors which
are pertinent to the grant and/ or contract, in order to make audits,
examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The right of access is not limited by
the required retention period and shall last as long as the records are
retained.

27.  Domestic Partners

For agreements over$ 100, 000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007,
the subrecipient certifies that it is in compliance with Public Contract Code

section 10295. 3

28.  Druq- Free Workplace Requirements:

Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug- Free Workplace Act
of 1990 and will provide a drug- free workplace by taking the following
actions:

a.    Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture,
distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is
prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for
violations.

Page 69 Revised:  10/ 2021

140



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D- General Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

b.    Establish a Drug- Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:
1)     the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2)     the person' s or organization' s policy of maintaining a drug- free

workplace;

3)     any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance
programs; and,

4)     penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse
violations.

c.     Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:
1)     receive a copy of the company' s drug- free workplace policy

statement; and,

2)     agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a
condition of employment on the Agreement.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of
payments under the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both
and Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if
the department determines that any of the following has occurred: the
Contractor has made false certification, or violated the certification by failing
to carry out the requirements as noted above. ( Gov. Code § 8350 et seq.)

29.  Energv Efficiencv

It is understood the grant applicant will purchase only energy efficient equipment,
whenever possible and appropriate.

30.  Equal EmploYment Opportunity

All grant agreements shall contain a provision requiring compliance with E. O.
1 1246, and E. O. 11375" Equal Employment Opport nity," as amended by E. O.
1 1478, " Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment
Opportunity," and as supplemented by regulations at 41 CFR Part 60, " Office

of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity,
and Department of Labor."

31.  Equipment

Equipment acquired under this grant agreement for use in highway safety
program areas shall be used and kept in operation for highway safety
purposes by the state; or the state, by formal agreement with appropriate
officials of a political subdivision or state agency, shall cause such equipment
to be used and kept in operation for highway safety purposes.  ( Reference

23 C F R 1200. 31)

Page 70 Revised:  10/ 2021

141



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D- General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

32.  Expatriate Corporations

Subrecipient or contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate
corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286. 1 , and is eligible to contract

with the State of California.

33.  Financial ManaQement Svstem

The subrecipient or contractor, will comply with all applicable state, local,
and federal procurement procedures and will maintain a financial
management system that complies with the minimum requirements of 2 CFR

Part 200 Subpart D - 200. 303.

34.  Gender ldentitv:

For contracts of $ 100, 000 or more, Contractor certifies that Contractor is in

compliance with Public Contract Code Section 10295. 35.

35.  Governinq Law

This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the
laws of the State of California.  ( Reference: DGS Standard Agreement

General Terms and Conditions,")

36.  Indemnification

Subrecipient agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the State, its
officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing
or resulting to any and all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and
any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work services,
materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of this agreement,
and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person,
firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by contractor in the
performance of this agreement.  ( Reference: DGS Standard Agreement

General Terms and Conditions,"). Institutes of Hiaher Education, # 2.

37.  Intangible Propertv

a.  The subrecipient may copyright any work that is subject to copyright and
was developed, or for which ownership was purchased, under award.
The California Office of Traffic Safety and the National Highway Traffic
Safety Administration reserve a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable
right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the work for federal purposes,
and to authorize others to do so.

b.  Subrecipients are subject to applicable regulations governing patents
and inventions, including government-wide regulations issued by the
Department of Commerce at 37 CFR Part 401, " Rights to Inventions Made

Page 71 Revised:  10/ 2021

142



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government
Grants, Contracts, and Cooperative Agreements."

c.  The federal government has the right to:
1)   obtain, reproduce, publish or otherwise use the data first produced

under an award; and

2)   authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use such
data for federal purposes.

d.  Freedom of Information Act

1)   In addition, in response to a Freedom of Information Act ( FOIA)

request for research data relating to published research findings
produced under an award that were used by the federal
government in developing an agency action that has the force and
effect of law, the federal awarding agency shall request, and the
subrecipient shall provide, within a reasonable time, the research
data so that they can be made available to the public through the
procedures established under the FOIA. If the federal awarding
agency obtains the research data solely in response to a FOIA
request, the agency may charge the requester a reasonable fee
equaling the full incremental cost of obtaining the research data.
This fee should reflect costs incurred by the agency, the recipient,
and applicable sub recipients. This fee is in addition to any fees the

agency may assess under the FOIA ( 5 USC 552( A)( 4)( a)).
2)   The following definitions apply for purposes of paragraph ( d) of this

section:

i)   Research data is defined as the recorded factual material

commonly accepted in the scientific community as necessary to
validate research findings, but not any of the following:
preliminary analyses, drafts of scientific papers, plans for future
research, peer reviews, or communications with colleagues. This
recorded" material excludes physical objects ( e. g., laboratory

samples). Research data also do not include:

A)   Trade secrets, commercial information, materials necessary
to be held confidential by a researcher until they are
published, or similar information which is protected under
law; and

B)   Personnel and medical information and similar information

the disclosure of which would constitute a clearly
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy, such as
information that could be used to identify a particular person

in a research study.

Page 72 Revised:  10/ 2021

143



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D- General Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

ii)   Published is defined as either when:

A)   Research findings are published in a peer-reviewed scientific
of technical journal; or

B)   A federal agency publicly and officially cites the research
findings in support of an agency action that has the force
and effect of law.

iii)   Used by the federal government in developing an agency action that
has the force and effect of law is defined as when an agency publicly
and officially cites the research findings in support of an agency action
that has the force and effect of law.

e.  Title to intangible property and debt instruments acquired under a grant
or contract vests upon acquisition in the recipient. The recipient shall use

that property for the originally- authorized purpose, and the recipient shall
not encumber the property without approval of the federal awarding
agency. When no longer needed for the originally authorized purpose,
disposition of the intangible property shall occur in accordance with the
provisions of 2 CFR Subpart D - 200. 315.

38.  Labor Code/ Workers' Compensation

Subrecipient or contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require
every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to
undertake self- insurance in accordance with the provisions, and subrecipient
or contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the
performance of the work of this agreement.  ( Labor Code Section 3700)

39.  Limited Enqlish Proficiencv

The grant applicant will take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access by persons with limited

English proficiency to the information and services provided through federal financial assistance.

40.  Loqos

The OTS logo will appear on all promotional materials where appropriate and
practical. Contact the appropriate OTS Coordinator for copies.

41.  Loss Leader

If this subrecipient agreement involves the furnishing of equipment, materials,
or supplies then the following statement is incorporated: It is unlawful for any
person engaged in business within this state to sell or use any article or
product as a " loss leader" as defined in Section 17030 of the Business and

Professions Code ( BPC 17130).

Page 73 Revised:  10/ 2021

144



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

42.  Proqress Schedule

Subrecipients entering into a contractual agreement for consultant services
totaling five thousand dollars ($ 5, 000) or more shall include detailed criteria

and a mandatory progress schedule.  ( Reference: PCC § 10371)

43.  Proaress Pavments

Subrecipients may provide for progress payments to consultants/ contractors
for work performed or costs incurred in the performance of the contract. Not
less than ten percent of the contract amount shall be withheld pending final
completion of the contract and an evaluation of the contractor' s

performance. If the contract consists of the performance of separate and
distinct tasks, then any funds so withheld with regard to a particular task may
be paid upon completion of that task and an evaluation of the contractor' s
performance.  ( Reference: PCC § 10346)

44.  National Labor Relations Board Certification

Subrecipient or contractor certifies that no more than one ( 1) final

unappealable finding of contempt of court by a federal court has been
issued agcainst subrecipient or contractor within the immediately preceding
two-year period because of subrecipient or contractor' s failure to comply
with an order of a federal court which orders subrecipient or contractor to

comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board.  ( PCC 10296)

Not applicable to public entities.)

45.  Non- Discrimination Clause:

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors
shall not deny the contract' s benefits to any person on the basis of race,
religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental

disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender,
gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and
veteran status, nor shall they discriminate unlawfully against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, religious creed, color, national

origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition,
genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender
expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and veteran status. Contractor
shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of employees and applicants

for employment are free of such discrimination. Contractor and

subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and

Housing Act ( Government Code Section 12990 ( a- f) et seq.), the regulations

promulgated thereunder ( Cal. Code Regs., Title. 2, § 1 1000 et seq.), the

provisions of Article 9. 5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government
Code ( Gov. Code §§ 1 1 1 35- 1 1 1 39. 5), and the regulations or standards

adopted by the awarding state agency to implement such article.

Page 74 Revised:  10/ 2021

145



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

Contractor shali permit access by representatives of the Department of Fair
Employment and Housing and the awarding state agency upon reasonable
notice at any time during the normal business hours, but in no case less than
24 hours' notice, to such of its books, records, accounts, and all other sources

of information and its facilities as said Department or Agency shall require to
ascertain compliance with this clause. Contractor and its subcontractors

shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor
organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other
agreement.  ( Cal. Code Reas., Title 2, § 11105)

46.  Non- Duplication of Grant Fundinq

The grant applicant has no ongoing or completed grants under agreement
with other federal funding sources which duplicate or overlap any work
contemplated or described in this traffic safety grant. It is further agreed that
any pending or proposed request for other federal grant funds which would
duplicate or overlap work under this traffic safety grant will be revised to
exclude any such duplication of grant fund expenditures. It is understood
that any such duplication of federal fund expenditures subsequently
determined by audit will be subject to recovery by the Office of Traffic
Safety.

47.  Non- Enforcement Supplanting Avoidance

Non- enforcement salaried and hourly personnel assigned to this grant are
conducting a new traffic safety program not previously funded with city,
county or State funding or were previously in a grant- funded position.

48.  Prioritv Hirinq Considerations

For agreements in excess of $200, 000, the subrecipient, in accordance with

the California Public Contracting Code § 10353, shall consider filling
vacancies in positions funded by the agreement to qualified recipients of aid
under WIC Chapter2 ( commencing with Section 1 1200) of Part 3 of Division 9
of the Welfare and Institutions Code, in accordance with Article 3. 9

commencing with Section 1 1349) of Chapter 2 of Part 3 of Division 9 of the
Welfare and Institutions Code.

This section and Article 3. 9 ( commencing with Section 1 1349) of Chapter 2 of
Part 3 of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code shall not be

applicable to any contracts for a grant as defined in Section 10105.  ( Section

10105 defines a grant as ". . . the erection, construction, alteration, repair or

improvement of any state structure, building, road, or other state
improvement of any kind which will exceed a total cost calculated pursuant
to subdivision ( b)."

Page 75 Revised:  10/ 2021

146



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D- Generai Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

This section and Article 3. 9 ( commencing with Section 1 1349) of Chapter 2 of
Part 3 of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code shall not be construed

so as to do any of the following:
a.   Interfere with or create a violation of the terms of valid collective

bargaining agreements.

b.   Require the subrecipient to hire an unqualified recipient of aid.

c.   Interfere with, or create a violation of, any federal affirmative action
obligation of a contractor for hiring disabled veterans or veterans of
the Vietnam era.

d.   Interfere with, or create a violation of, the requirements of Section

12990 of the Government Code.  ( Reference: PCC § 10353)

49.  Recvclina Certification

The subrecipient shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, the minimum,
if not exact, percentage of post- consumer material as defined in the Public
Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies
offered or sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the
requirements of Public Contract Code Section 12209. With respect to printer
or duplication cartridges that comply with the requirements of Section
12156( e), the certification required by this subdivision shall specify that the
cartridges so comply ( Pub. Contract Code § 12205).

50.  Resolution

Upon request, a county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the
State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing
body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution
of the grant agreement.

51.  Riqhts to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement

Contracts or agreements for the performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work shall provide for the rights of the federal
government and the recipient in any resulting invention in accordance with
37 CFR Part 401, " Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and
Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts, and Cooperative

Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding
agency.

52.  Sinqle Audit Act Certificafion

The OTS is the agency responsible for administering California' s' federal
highway safety funds on behalf of the Governor. Federal funds are provided
for this grant by the United States Department of Transportation. The records
and supportive documentation for all completed grants are subject to an
on- site audit and OTS reserves the right to inspect and review during normal

Page 76 Revised:  10/ 2021

147



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

working hours the work product of any independent auditor in support of
their audit.

The subrecipient certifies that it will comply with the Single Audit Act of 1984
31 U. S. C. Chapter 75 - 7501- 7506 et seq.), as amended, which requires the

following:
a.  State or local governments that receive $ 750,000 or more a year in

federal financial assistance shall have an audit made in accordance

with the Office of Management and Budget ( 2 CFR Subpart F -

200. 501).

b.   State or local governments that receive less than $ 750, 000 a year shall
be exempt from compliance with the Act and other federal audit

requirements.

c.   Nothing in this paragraph exempts State or local governments from
maintaining records of federal financial assistance or from providing
access to such records to Federal Agencies, as provided for in federal
law or in Circular A- 133 " Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-

Profit Organizations".

d.   The State Controller' s Office notifies OTS of those cities, counties, and

special districts that have not submitted an audit report or have not

indicated to SCO that they are exempt each fiscal year. Subrecipient
agencies that are not in compliance will be notified and required to

provide verification of compliance or be subject to sanctions including,
reimbursement withholding or grant cancellation.

53.  Solicitation

No employee of the applicant agency, the contractor, or any agency
acting on behalf of the agency, may solicit or accept gratuities, favors, or
anything of monetary value from contractors or potential contractors.

54.  Statement of Compliance

Subrecipient has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination

program requirements ( GC 12990 ( a- f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 1 1 102 and
1 1 103).  ( Not applicable to public entities.)

55.  Subrecipient/ Contractor Name Chanc e

An amendment is required to change the subrecipient or contractor' s name

as listed on this grant agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of
the name change an amendment will be processed. Payment of invoices

presented with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said
amendment.

Page 77 Revised:  10/ 2021

148



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms & Conditions, State Certifications

56.  Sweat Free Code of Conduct

All subrecipients contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel,
garments or corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment,
materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public works
contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or
corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the
state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced in whole or
in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor
under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children
in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor,
convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child
labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor. The subrecipient further
declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweat Free Code
of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations

website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108.

The subrecipient agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to
the subrecipient' s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if

reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine

the contractor' s compliance with the requirements under paragraph ( a).

57.  Termination for Cause

The State may terminate this grant agreement and be relieved of any
payments should the subrecipient fail to perform the requirements of this
grant agreement at the time and in the manner herein provided.

58.  Termination without Cause

Either party may terminate without cause upon thirty days written notice to
the other party. All work performed pursuant to the contract and prior to the
date of termination may be claimed for reimbursement ( Reference: State
Contracting Manual, Chapter 9. 12).

59.  Timeliness

Time is of the essence in this subrecipient agreement ( Reference:  DGS

Standard Agreement " General Terms and Conditions,").

60.  Unenforceoble Provision

In the event that any provision of this subrecipients agreement is
unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree that all
other provisions of this agreement have force and effect and shall not be
effected thereby.  ( Reference: DGS Standard Agreement " General Terms

and Conditions")

Page 78 Revised:  10/ 2021

149



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix D - General Terms 8 Conditions, State Certifications

Instifutions of Higher Education

The Department of General Services requirements for universities contained

within the document, UTC- 220 University Terms and Conditions (Effective 4/ 19),
are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement by
this reference as if attached hereto.

1.  Subcontracts. Subrecipient may enter into contract(s) to perform applicable
provisions of this grant agreement. The subrecipient is responsible for
ensuring that all activities delegated to contractors are in support of this
grant agreement.

Consultants and/ or contractors shall be selected in accordance with the

subrecipient agency procurement policies and procedures in order to
comply with the terms of this grant agreement and in accordance with the
OTS GPM.

The subrecipient, consultant or contractor are subject to all applicable terms

and conditions and are bound the applicable certifications of the grant
agreement and 2 CFR Subpart F Aqqendix II and 2 CFR Subpart E

200.451 whichever is applicable.

OTS is not obligated to make any payment under any grant agreement prior
to final execution or outside the terms of the contract period. Contractor
expenditures incurred prior to final contract execution are taken at the risk of
that contractor agency and will be considered unallowable if that
agreement/ contract is not executed.

2.  Indemnification. The University shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the
State, its officers, employees and agents from and against any and all
liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damages arising
out of the performance of this grant agreement but only the proportion to
and to the extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for
injury or damages are caused by or result from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of the University, its respective officers, agents or employees.

In accordance with Government Code Section 895. 4, the State shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the University, its officers, employees and agents
from and against any and all liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims
for injury or damages are caused by or result from the negligent or intentional
acts or omissions of the State, its respective officers, agents or employees.

Page 79 Revised:  10/ 2021

150



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix E - Document Examples

APPENDIX E- DOCUMENT EXAMPLES

Personnel Activity Report (PAR)

Sa e otCalitenla• Omee ot7n c S kq

PERSO\'' EL AC7I"[ T1' REPORi( PAR)
OTS?6( Nea 975)

1Qencc:    Gnnt\ amher.  Grant Period:

Emplocee\ ame:     Posi6m Tide O7S Time• 4 i F{ ovrs:

touth l'ear.

CfDAIt Fl7ND 1 2 3 4 5  6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14. 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 Talal

Onmt

Emploqee Si uatarNDate Supenisor Si nature Date

lonth. h'ear:

C DAk FtfDiD 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 I6 t7 Id 19 20 21 22 23 24 75 26 27 28 29 30 31 Tmal

Oit x

Employee Si; aatore Date Sapenisor Sienature%Dah

touf6' Year:

CFDA# FUPID  !  2 3 4 5 b 7 8 9 10 II 12 13 14 IS 16 17 IS 19 20 21 72 23 2 TS 26 27 2E 29 30 31 Taal

Ottgx

Emplo} ee SiQuatore?Date Supenisor SiqnaturoiDate

1 of?

Page 80 Revised:  10/ 2021

151



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix E- Document Exampies

Snh af Catltornia• OAee of inffic Sa4q

PER50:' EL ACTI\' I7Y REPOR7( PAR)

OIS26a( New 9t13)

A PAR is an employee maintained log wltich accotmts for! 00 perceut of the employee' s time. The fonn is used to identify effort spent ou mnlriple

pro¢ rams,' federal fiuids.

PAR' s mnst meet tl e follo cing standards:

Reflect the euiployee' s after- ffie- fact distributiou of tuue Uy proga am;'federa! fiwd.

Account for the totai acti• ity by pro ram/ federa fiuid for• luch each employee is compeusated( w•hether grant related or uot).

r4ust be prepared at least montlily azid coiucide e•ith one or uiore pay periods. aud

Must be signed by the employee and his, 9ier sup n•isor montlily.

INSTRUCTIONS -

1. Eutzr tl e name of Agency. Cnant Nimiber. Cirant Period. Employee Name. Position TiUe. and OTS Tiuie 9•o' Hoius.

2. Enter the nauie of the Month Tear Reporting.

3. OI' S Ho us - eu[ er actual homs w•orked ou tlie OTS¢ rant by CFDA aud Fund umuber.

4. Ofl er— enter tl e acmal hours reflected on tuuesheet BUI NO'I WORICED on the O'IS Grant.

5. Employee and Supen isor are requu• ed to sicn vid date by month. Please eusure 8iat e• ery employez has PAR sicned for ecery mou8i

u orked divin¢ the¢ rant yeu.

6. Retain all PARs in a¢ ency grant file. Submit to OTS upon request.

2 of 2

Page 81 Revised:  10/ 2021

152



GRANT PROGRAM MANUAL
Appendix E - Document Examples

Employee Time Certification

SF. 1I'& DF CALffQP. NL4 UFFBC OF TkAFEIC SAFEI' Y

Emplo ee Time Cei caHoa Foi n( Grantee. s.rSnbgrantecs)
OT' 5-26( New i+i l)

Grautees aad sui gsantees recei ing 100 percent of fimding fram the Office of Traffic Safety( OTS) for persosmel
seivices nn st co i e rertificatioms siatin that tl e emplayeels) worked sokly on that grogra fcx the geriod
coveled by t1 e ce tificatian. The certificatic moust be paepa d at least semi- anuually and st be si ed by tl e
emgloyee and supervisory official having fust- l d knowledge of the a ork perfornme by the employce.

E IIPLOI E TIl1iE C.ÈR'TIF' ICATTON

EhiPLOI' EE 1: 11 iE

i ctrsifr tLat I ha• e a orkcd 100 perceat of mr time on Aa Office of Traffic Safen•( OTS) Grant.

From:    Octaber 1 I'o:    111arcL 31

EI1iPL04" EE SIG T iTL1iE

Date

SLTPER TSOR n 111E

SLTPER ZSOR SIGV TLiRE

Date

E1IIPLOI' EE TIl1IE C' ERTTFICATTON

I LOI' EE I: 1hIE

I ccrtif tLat I La- e nrorked 100 percent af m}• time on an Offire of TraH'ic 5afets•( 07S) Grant.

From:    April 1 o:    September 30

AiPLOI' EE 5IGY, TURE

Date

SLTP' ER TSOR;: 111iE

SITPER TSOR SIG'_T II'LiRE

Date

Page 82 Revised:  10/ 2021

153



EXTERNAL"`] Welcome to GEMS

GEMS < otsgemsadmin@ots. ca. gov>   
EXHIBIT C

Mon 11/ 21/ 2022 236 PM

To: Cristina Caguiat< cwguiat@ci. lathrop.ca. us>

Hi Cristina,

Welcome to GEMS! To get started, go to https:// ca- ots.force.com/ GEMS/ Ioqin7
c- qJ7XjrJasAksCbQQKLKL0A5DXwLhFQTZ3DwvqZGEp3s3TDc5q510RTAe2 LWquW TAG9Nt7H sqDTGa sC048DKnuRzRQBMuqOW21qxP2L9c8qT7xJ2N OMXRG8u59
ez 3NHrQi YJsmUCOP6h5EzzrSLGnqAXMVkfq4hw46quwpR. yHkaDMvSpQUXsacA04uDkPT

Username:_ @ci. lathrop. ca. us

To login to the GEMS system in the future, go to this URL:

ca- ots. force. com/ G EM S

Thanks,

California Office of Traffic Safety

154



ITEM 4. 7

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE 2023 FACILITY FEE WAIVER

REQUEST FOR MITRA USA

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution Approving a Facility Fee
Waiver request from Mitra USA for the use of

the Scott Brooks Gymnasium on October 13,

2023 from 4: 00 p. m. to 10: 00 p. m. to host a

Cultural Event

SUMMARY:

Review and consider adoption of a resolution approving a facility fee waiver request
from Mitra USA for the use of Scott Brooks Gymnasium in accordance with the City
of Lathrop Fee Waiver Policy. Mitra USA submitted a facility fee waiver request for
the use of Scott Brooks Gymnasium for October 13, 2023 to host a Cultural Event

from 4: 00 p. m. to 10: 00 p. m. with an estimated attendance of 150 participants.

The Parks and Recreation Commission typically reviews and makes recommendations
on approving Fee Waiver requests, however, the submission came in after the August
3,  2023 meeting.  In order to move forward with this Fee Waiver request,  staff

reviewed the request,   and recommends Council approval,   as it meets the

requirements of the Fee Waiver Policy and are of public benefit, de minimis in nature
and not subsidized from other facility fees. Staff requests that the Council review and
approve the proposed resolution for the fee waiver requested by Mitra USA.

BACKGROUND:

Staff received a request for a fee waiver that meets the requirements of the Fee

Waiver Policy, from a local organization for the use of a City facility to support their
activities. Mitra USA is a local non- profit engaged in charitable, social, cultural, and
community development activities. Mitra USA submitted a facility fee waiver for the
use of Scott Brooks Gymnasium on October 13, 2023 to host a Cultural Event from
4: 00 p. m. to 10: 00 p. m.  with an estimated attendance of 150 participants in the
amount of $ 1, 050. 10 which includes both the cost of the facility and staffing.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Council find the requested waiver provides a public benefit to the
community and the amount of the request is de minimis in nature and not subsidized

from other facility fees, and approve the Facility Fee Waiver requested by Mitra USA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fees associated with the facility fee waiver request total $ 1, 050. 10.

155



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
MITRA USA FEE WAIVER

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution approving a Facility Fee Waiver request from Mitra USA for
the use of the Scott Brooks Gymnasium on October 13, 2023 from 4: 00

p. m. to 10: 00 p. m. to host a Cultural Event
B.  Fee Waiver Calculations

156



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
MITRA USA FEE WAIVER

APPROVALS:

g 23'. 23

To d Sebastian Date

Director of Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services

1 a3
Cari Jam s Date

Finance   ' ector

z t-. o 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

q• l • 23
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

157



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FACI ITY FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM MITRA USA FOR THE

USE OF THE SCOTT BROOKS GYMNASIUM ON OCTOBER 13, 2023 FROM

4: 00 P. M. TO 10: 00 P. M. TO HOST A CULTURAL EVENT

WHEREAS, the City received a facility fee waiver request from Mitra USA in
accordance with the City of Lathrop Fee Waiver Policy; and

WHEREAS, Mitra USA submitted a facility fee waiver request for the use of
Scott Brooks Gymnasium on October 13, 2023 to host a Cultural Event from 4: 00

p. m. to 10: 00 p. m. with an estimated attendance of 150 participants; and

WHEREAS,  The Parks and Recreation Commission typically reviews and
makes recommendations on approving Fee Waiver requests,   however,   the

submission came in after the August 3, 2023 meeting and in order to move forward
with this Fee Waiver request, staff reviewed the request, and recommends Council
approval, as it meets the requirements of the Fee Waiver Policy and are of public
benefit, de minimis in nature and not subsidized from other facility fees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop finds the request to be of public benefit,  de minimis in nature and not

subsidized from other facility fees does hereby approve the Facility Fee Waiver for
Mitra USA for the use of Scott Brooks Gymnasium on October 13, 2023 to host a

Cultural Event from 4: 00 p. m. to 10: 00 p. m. with an estimated attendance of 150

participants in the amount of $ 1, 050. 10.

158



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September
2023, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

159



VOO OON          "

a  N lI1 M
R i! 

rl

i    

O O 3
Z

O O
Q

N

L

Q ii ii     

3a

a

v

a a     

o a ww 3     

o         
u,

a     

L .        

o aUU o

Q             
Q

M N

N N

41 N

O O

O  =     + 
N M

Cl G7 
L       A4        M M

L M            i
N

a., 

o. o,-       

3

N p 2 J

w N

c
L 

O
v L L

M
J n

u oC         Vo o :=

VsOo
N

U
a

1=
L O

u

a

c V

c c

o c

U o w w

0
J J

U

N  — H
J Q W U U H

160



ITEM 4.8

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE 2023 FACILITY FEE WAIVER

REQUEST FOR LATHROP LITTLE LEAGUE

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution Approving a Facility Fee
Waiver request from Lathrop Little League for
the use of Mossdale Park Baseball Fields from

September 11,   2023 through November 4,

2023 for Fall Baseball Clinics

SUMMARY:

Review and consider adoption of a resolution approving a facility fee waiver request
from Lathrop Little League for the use of Mossdale Park Baseball Fields in accordance
with the City of Lathrop Fee Waiver Policy. Council approved a fee waiver request

from the Lathrop Little League at the November 14, 2022 Regular Meeting. Lathrop
Little League submitted a new facility fee waiver request for the use of Mossdale Park
Baseball Fields on Mondays,  Tuesdays,  Thursdays,  Fridays and Saturdays from

September 11, 2023 through November 4, 2023 for the use of Fall Baseball Clinics

with an anticipated attendance of 100 participants.

The Parks and Recreation Commission typically reviews and makes recommendations
on approving fee waiver requests, however, the submission came in after the August
3,  2023 meeting.  In order to move forward with this fee waiver request,  staff

reviewed the request,   and recommends Council approval,   as it meets the

requirements of the Fee Waiver Policy and are of public benefit, de minimis in nature
and not subsidized from other facility fees. Staff requests that the Council review and
approve the proposed resolution for the fee waiver requested by Lathrop Little
League.

BACKGROUND:

Staff received a request for a fee waiver that meets the requirements of the Fee

Waiver Policy, from a local organization for the use of a City facility to support their
activities.  Lathrop Little League is a local non- profit providing enriching youth
programming that promotes sportsmanship, teamwork, and leadership skills through
the game of baseball. Lathrop Little League submitted a facility fee waiver for the use
of Mossdale Park Baseball Fields  ( 1)  and  ( 2)  on Mondays, Tuesdays, Thursdays,

Fridays and Saturdays from September 11, 2023 through November 4, 2023 for the

use of Fall Baseball Clinics with an anticipated attendance of 100 participants in the
amount of $ 6, 514. 22 which includes both the cost of the facility and staffing.

161



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

LATHROP LITTLE LEAGUE FEE WAIVER

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Council find the requested waiver provides a public benefit to the
community and the amount of the request is de minimis in nature and not subsidized
from other facility fees, and approve the Facility Fee Waiver requested by Lathrop
Little League.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fees associated with the facility fee waiver request total $ 6, 514. 22.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution approving a Facility Fee Waiver request from Lathrop Little
League for the use of Mossdale Park Baseball Fields from September 11,

2023 through November 4, 2023 for Fall Baseball Clinics

B.  Fee Waiver Calculations

162



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
LATHROP LITTLE LEAGUE FEE WAIVER

APPROVALS:

8• 3. 2 3

To d Sebastian Date

Director of Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services

I a3
Cari Jam Date

Finance Di ctor

3 Z

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z3
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

163



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A FACILITY FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM LATHROP LITTLE

LEAGUE FOR THE USE OF MOSSDALE PARK BASEBALL FIELDS FROM

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 THROUGH NOVEMBER 4, 2023 FOR FALL BASEBALL
CLINICS

WHEREAS, the City received a facility fee waiver request from Lathrop Little
League in accordance with the City of Lathrop Fee Waiver Policy; and

WHEREAS, Lathrop Little League submitted a facility fee waiver request for
the use of use of Mossdale Park Baseball Fields on Mondays, Tuesdays, Thursdays,

Fridays and Saturdays from September 11, 2023 through November 4, 2023 for the

use of Fall Baseball Clinics with an anticipated attendance of 100 participants, and:

WHEREAS,  The Parks and Recreation Commission typically reviews and
makes recommendations on approving Fee Waiver requests,   however,   the

submission came in after the August 3, 2023 meeting and in order to move forward
with this Fee Waiver request, staff reviewed the request, and recommends Council

approval, as it meets the requirements of the Fee Waiver Policy and are of public
benefit, de minimis in nature and not subsidized from other facility fees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop finds the request to be of public benefit,  de minimis in nature and not

subsidized from other facility fees does hereby approve the Facility Fee Waiver for
Lathrop Little League for the use of use of Mossdale Park Baseball Fields on Mondays,
Tuesdays,  Thursdays,  Fridays and Saturdays from September 11,  2023 through

November 4, 2023 for the use of Fall Baseball Clinics with an anticipated attendance

of 100 participants in the amount of $ 6, 514. 22.

164



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September
2023, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

A7TEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

165



0 0 0 000 0          N N
i O
a oo              M

tA

H

00 0 o O o00

Z o 0 0 000 3

G ui ui o o
M M 01 pl M M

Q i i a 1 i

Q r r

3
y U U U U U U

C C C • 

U U U UUU
s

3    ° 'o      a, a     a     a, a, a,     

l 0 r à m r à    CC
L

m m m mmm

L

O a l LL L    LL LL LL O Z

O 01 O CO O CO V1
N

N N      N N I) N

00 N 00 N 01 I 01 I    Q
W 7 i Ilj O ,-{ lIj p  ,-- N      ,-- N

O        
M

G
l0 N 1p N M I l0      I l ,-- i    

f0i N M  +-- i N M

N N  N N ^ l0  O ^ l  O
M M L     

M
i nj 0 ,-- i fy CO l ." N M p ,-i N M N N

W

J N      nj N N nj N N   M      [ t '' 1 L
Q M •-- 

N
M ,-- 

N 7

N i N     , N M .-- i M .-- i V     O
C ,--i i

N - i N N ,--i N

O L
L w
s  

G L L   
ii J-.!

OV    V

Vs in ri o o z z
Gl C w     Q

O    ~

a:+
f0

3

i N N -- i N
U

O a

a a    m a u a 
V u

ii iL ii ii iL ii

c c e c c e U
L L L L L L

a a a aaa
v a     a     a v a    a
0 f0 6 f0 ( 0 0

J y     J

U
o

a c op a
H C7 _    H

1L W i

166



ITEM 4. 9

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR THE 2023

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES CITY SUMMIT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Authorizing Out of State Travel for
the 2023 National League of Cities City Summit Trip
to Atlanta, Georgia, from November 15- 18, 2023

BACKGROUND:

The National League of Cities ( NLC) is an organization comprised of city, town and
village leaders focused on improving the quality of life for their current and future
constituents. The NLC has nearly 100 years of experience in providing educational
and resource programs dedicated to the development of local governments and their
leaders. The NLC has members and supporters throughout more than 2, 700 cities

across the nation. Their mission is to advocate for, and protect the interests of, cities,
towns and villages by influencing federal policy, strengthening local leadership and
driving innovative solutions.  In order to expand educational training opportunities
and take advantage of the legislative support services provided by the National
League of Cities, the City of Lathrop became a member city in 2021.

The National League of Cities will be hosting their 2023 City Summit Conference,
November 15t" through the 18t'', in Atlanta, Georgia. This would be the City' s first
time participating in the National League of Cities City Summit conference.  Since,

City policy requires Council approval for all out of state travel, staff requests approval
of the attached resolution authorizing travel for four ( 4) Council Members to attend

the National League of Cities 2023 City Summit Conference. The City Council training
and travel budget for Fiscal Year ( FY) 23- 24 has sufficient funds to cover the cost of

the proposed travel.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Councilmember participation allows the opportunity to learn about protecting the
interests of our municipality, the federal policy and lawmaking process, strengthening
local leadership and driving innovative solutions.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff requests out of state travel approval for four ( 4) Council Members to attend the

National League of Cities 2023 City Summit Conference. The City Council training and
travel budget, for FY 23- 24, has sufficient funds available to cover the cost of the

proposed travel.  The total fiscal impact for the 2023 City Summit Conference is
approximately $ 8, 000, which includes registration, hotel, airfare, transportation and

meals ( not provided by the conference).

167



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES 2023 CITY SUMMIT CONFERENCE

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Authorizing Out of State Travel to the 2023 National League
of Cities City Summit Trip to Atlanta, Georgia, from November 15- 18,
2023

B.       National League of Cities 2023 City Summit Conference Information

APPROVALS:

T resa Vargas Date

overnment Services Director &

City Clerk

oQ    1  l ° 23

Cari James Date

Finance Director

o 02
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

s•ti3
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

168



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR THE NATIONAL LEAGUE OF

CITIES CITY SUMMIT TRIP TO ATLANTA, GEORGIA, FROM NOVEMBER 15- 18,

2023

WHEREAS, the National League of Cities ( NLC) is an organization comprised

of city, town and village leaders focused on improving the quality of life for their
current and future constituents; and

WHEREAS, the NLC' s mission is to advocate for, and protect the interests of,
cities, towns and villages by influencing federal policy, strengthening local leadership
and driving innovative solutions; and

WHEREAS,  in order to expand educational training opportunities and take
advantage of the legislative support services provided by the National League of
Cities, the City of Lathrop became a member city in 2021; and

WHEREAS,  the NLC will be hosting their 2023 City Summit Conference,
November 15th through the 18th, in Atlanta, Georgia, and this would be the City' s
first time participating in the National League of Cities City Summit conference; and

WHEREAS,  since City policy requires Council approval for all out of state
travel, staff requests approval of this resolution authorizing travel for four ( 4) council
members to attend the National League of Cities 2023 City Summit Conference; and

WHEREAS, the City Council training and travel budget for Fiscal Year ( FY) 23-
24 has sufficient funds to cover the cost of the proposed travel; and

WHEREAS, the total fiscal impact for the 2023 City Summit Conference is
approximately $ 8, 000, which includes registration, hotel, airfare, transportation and

meals ( not provided by the conference).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approve out of state travel for four ( 4) council members to attend

the National League of Cities 2023 City Summit Conference, in Atlanta, Georgia.

Resolution No. 23-

169



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11 day of September
2023, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 23-

170



ATTACHMEN f ._._

NOYEI BER

i

2023
NATIONAILEAGUEOFCITIES PRECONFERENCEACTIVITIESANDEXECUTIVEEDUCATIONSESSIONS NOVEMBER15. 2013

Explore our list of workshops (tentativeJ being plannedfor City Summit. Please
note that all workshops are subject to change.

HOUSING & HOMELESSNESS

Local Actions to Accelerate Housing Supply

Local leaders are keenly aware that housing supply needs to increase to meet growing demand. In

response, they are pursuing a wide range of promising and equitable practices to bolster housing supply.

This workshop will highlight some of the innovative actions that cities are taking to expand existing

housing supply; opportunities to make effective use of construction and development, finance, land use,

and zoning strategies; and the potential for public- private partnerships to increase and preserve housing

supply. Panelists also will discuss approaches cities are adopting for authentic community.

Local Actions to Preserve Existing Housing Supply

Cities are pursuing a range of strategies to meet the demand for housing, including directing greater

attention toward preserving the existing housing supply. This workshop will explore a toolbox of housing

preservation policies and programs that cities can draw upon, including engagement with homeowners

and landlords on preserving naturally occurring affordable housing and community-wide education.

Panelists also will show how housing preservation efforts can draw on equity, climate resilience and

healthy housing frameworks to deliver multiple layers of benefits to communities.

Governance Strategies to Improve Local Homeless Response Systems

Local governance is most effective in responding to challenges when processes are participatory,

accountable, transparent, efficient, and inclusive. This workshop highlights the role of governance in

developing approaches to improve local homeless response systems, particularly in terms of increased

alignment across governance structures. Participants will discuss how to coordinate strategies across

agencies and with other organizations; learn about successful partnership models; and explore ways to

involve the lived experiences of residents, community organizations, and stakeholders in decision-

making processes that drive meaningful change.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

171



NOVEMBER

6 - 8
2023

NATIONAI LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVI71E5 AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 75, 2023

Human- centered Approaches to Address Homelessness

Homelessness is not a monolithic issue, and tackling it requires tailored solutions that consider the

unique needs of different populations experiencing homelessness, including pregnant women, children,

youth and young adults, families, veterans, justice- involved individuals or individuals with mental health

challenges. This workshop delves into a coordinated systems approach that relies on using local data,

both qualitative and quantitative, to inform decisions about how to allocate resources, services and

programs to most effectively meet the needs of those experiencing homelessness in the community.

Housing Stability: New Ideas for a Persistent Challenge

In an ever- changing housing landscape, how can cities ensure there is a stable housing supply for their

residents? Housing stability has taken on even greater urgency as eviction protections put in place

during the COVID- 19 pandemic have expired. In this session, participants will gain insight into the

meaning of housing stability and learn how some communities are making progress toward the goal of

housing stability. City leaders will highlight steps they are taking to prepare residents to maintain and

upkeep their homes and endure disruptions and emergencies such as evictions, foreclosure or natural

disasters. The discussion also will explore inclusive solutions to build housing stability among residents

who are underserved due to race, ethnicity or geography.

INFRASTRUCTURE

Infrastructure Grant Winners: Learn How They Won and How You Can Too

Small municipalities( under 50K population) have been successful in securing Bipartisan Infrastructure

Law( BIL) grants. This workshop will highlight how some of these communities, with limited staff and

resources, put together winning proposals and will generate ideas for how your municipality can take

steps to make an application for BIL or other federal funding more competitive. Come hear about

general trends in BIL funding, anecdotal reports on successful tactics, and more.

BUILT: Community Engagement for Placemaking and Infrastructure Design

Come join this interactive session on creative community engagement for placemaking and

infrastructure design and experiment with Sojourn Theatre' s gamified planning tool, BUILT. BUILT is a

civic dialogue project that addresses the challenges of housing, infrastructure, neighborhood cohesion,

and equity in American cities. This simulation will demonstrate the complexity of placemaking, the roles
of local elected officials as they design a community, and how decisions impact the health and equity of

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

172



NOVEMBER

8i
2023

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15. 2023

residents. Learn about creative approaches to equitable placemaking and engaging community voices,

and explore the connections between social infrastructure and health, equity, well- being and the built
environment.

INNOVATION + TECHNOLOGY

Using a Data- driven Approach to Build Innovative Policies

From delivering services to solving problems, building data capacity can support the prioritization of

funding for successful projects, improve response to community needs, and build resiliency for future

crises. How can local communities build on innovative policies? What lessons can they take away from

pilot projects? This workshop will help local leaders learn how to use data to better understand the

impact of innovative policies and pilot projects and recognize the impact of policies on different

neighborhoods and communities. Perfect for the newly elected official or a seasoned local leader, this

session gives you the strategies to use data to spur and strengthen the adoption of innovative policies.

From Tech to Talk in the Era of Emerging Technologies

This workshop equips local leaders with strategies to effectively communicate about emerging

technologies, improve service delivery, and connect with their constituents. Participants will learn to

craft compelling narratives that highlight the impact and opportunities of these technologies while

demystifying buzzwords and addressing resident concerns. Through persuasive communication

techniques and data- informed storytelling, local leaders can build trust, foster understanding, and

bridge the gap between advancements and community needs. Come engage in small group discussions
with an array of experts and leaders and leave with the skills to drive inclusive and informed discussions

that shape the future of your communities.

MENTAL HEALTH & WELLBEING

Addressing Root Causes of Mental Health and Substance Use Disorders

About 46 million Americans suffer from addiction and mental health burden, and local governments

increasingly recognize the need to adopt holistic strategies that go beyond treatment options. The

growing availability of fentanyl and rising numbers of opioid overdose deaths, combined with increases

in mental health challenges, trauma, and violence, only underscore the need for cities to examine root

causes and set a course for long- term change. Learn how cities are analyzing data, implementing
multidisciplinary and regional approaches and combining funding streams, including opioid settlement

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

173



NOVEMBER

2023
NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECU7IVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15. 2023

dollars, to go beyond treatment and lay the foundation for comprehensive strategies to address mental
health and substance use disorders.

Taking a Data- Driven Approach to Community Well- Being

City leaders are health leaders. They have the power to reshape policies and practices and to redefine

their city' s view of" progress" from one that uses economic or growth measures alone to one that
defines progress as" well- being for all people." Local governments can address multiple dimensions of

health equity by ensuring city efforts are data driven and city specific and by working side by side with
communities to codesign solutions to address complex health and social needs. Learn how cities are

analyzing a range of indicators and implementing data- driven policies to comprehensively address

community well- being.

The Urgency of Addressing Youth Mental Health in Cities

Across the country, cities are seeing increases in depression, anxiety, and other mental health conditions

among adolescents and young adults, as well as the impacts of isolation and stress on community life.

Many of these conditions have been exacerbated by the COVID- 19 pandemic and the influence of social

media, among other drivers. This session will explore ways that cities can direct resources to meet the

needs of their youth, parents and families. Panelists will open their toolboxes and discuss steps to raise

awareness and reduce stigma, school- based interventions, trauma- informed approaches and integrating

the arts into behavioral health practice. They also will focus on ways to make mental health services

more accessible and affordable, especially for youth and historically marginalized groups. Join us for a

candid and solutions- oriented discussion to promote healing in our cities.

PUBLIC SAFETY/ VIOLENCE iNTERVENTION

Youth& Young Adult Violence: Facts, Myths, Prevention & Intervention

Many cities are becoming increasingly concerned about issues of youth and young adult violence in their

communities, particularly as Black and Brown young people are disproportionately impacted. In

response, cities are supporting innovative measures to engage young residents in violence prevention

efforts in K- 12 classrooms, afterschool programs and community- based organizations. This session takes

a closer look at some of the facts and myths surrounding youth and young adult violence and engages

city leaders in dialogue about community- and school- based prevention and intervention strategies that

respond to the needs, concerns and aspirations of youths and young adults.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

174



NOVEMBER

16 - 8
2023

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECUTIVE EOUGATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15, 2023

Reimagining Community Safety: Taking a Collaborative Approach

Elected officials, residents, civic leaders, educators, businesses and other stakeholders share the goal of

community safety. What types of creative solutions can they collaboratively develop and implement to

promote safety and well- being throughout their communities? This session will focus on innovative

community violence interventions and the impacts they can deliver when properly supported. It will

feature examples of collaborative approaches that engage city leaders, agency staff, residents,

philanthropies and national partners.

New Visions for the City Safety Workforce

Cities across the country are taking a fresh look at public safety and reimagining the type of workforce

needed to ensure a safe community. This approach entails reducing police response to nonviolent and

non- criminal calls for help, expanding alternative response programs and recruiting crisis intervention
and social service responders. Come learn about some of the innovative strategies cities are

implementing and how they are redefining the roles of public safety professionals and gain new insights

into building and sustaining a public safety ecosystem in your community.

Community Resilience 101: Best Practices to Advance Climate Goals

The impacts of changing climate conditions affect virtually every facet of governance, infrastructure

operations and community well- being. This session will deliver valuable information for all city leaders,

from those just starting their climate resilience journey to those leading in the field. Learn about best

practices to advance resilient infrastructure, how cities are leveraging federal funding and other

financing mechanisms to advance climate projects, and the critical role of partnerships in creating

communities that thrive. These success stories can inspire your community to meet this moment and

take advantage of the billions of federal dollars available for critical projects to maintain and strengthen

built and social infrastructure. This session is an excellent opportunity to connect with other leaders and
collaborate on solutions to create healthier, more resilient communities.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

175



NOVEMBER

g
2023

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 75. 2023

Climate- Friendly Buildings for a Healthy, Just& Sustainable Future

Buildings account for over 30 percent of greenhouse gas emissions in the United States— which means

that meeting climate goals will require American communities to rethink how they construct and power

buildings. Upgrading and investing in the built environment also have positive spillover benefits to other

policy areas such as green workforce development, public health improvements and energy

independence and resilience. With Americans spending over 90 percent of their time indoors, making

buildings as healthy as possible can substantially improve their quality of life. Learn about the benefits

and challenges of municipal, residential and commercial building decarbonization, and hear local leaders

describe their experiences with building code and zoning ordinance changes, energy efficiency upgrades

and distributed renewable energy systems.

Achieving Environmental lustice through Policy, Practice& Funding

Communities that bear the brunt of climate change often are on the frontlines of other injustices as

well. Historic levels of federal funding create a once- in- a- generation opportunity to invest in climate

resilience measures that not only address sustainability needs but also improve health and equity. At

this interactive session, city leaders, federal agency representatives and environmental justice advocates

will showcase the tools they use to set environmental justice priorities and highlight the funding

opportunities available to address them. Come learn about best practices for health and environmental

remediation, including lead removal and increasing access to nature and open spaces; using data tools

to identify environmental justice areas of focus; making use of federal funding, municipal bonds and

capital planning; and designing workforce training for a just transition.

TRANSPORTATION

Delivery Drones, Robots and Sensors: The Municipal Role and the Environmental Opportunity

The rapid rise of delivery technologies, such as unmanned aerial vehicles ( UAVs), ground- based delivery
drones and e- cargo bikes, offers new opportunities for more efficient and innovative delivery in cities,

towns and villages. However, integrating these technologies requires careful planning, coordination and
effective curb management. This session will provide participants with insights into these growing
delivery modes and practical strategies for managing them while" owning" the public rights of way. City
leaders will showcase examples of successfully implementing these technologies while balancing the
needs of different stakeholders, including pedestrians, cyclists and traditional delivery vehicles.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

176



NOVEMBER

16 - 8
2023

NATIONAL EAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECU7IVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15, 2023

Making Connections: Exploring Rural and Suburban Mobility Options

How can rural and suburban communities fill mobility gaps, ease traffic congestion and reduce stress on

parking demands while driving economic development? A surge of federal funding to cities, towns and

villages gives local leaders new opportunities to increase resident well- being, boost economic prosperity

and lower barriers for those with limited mobility options. In this session, municipal leaders will explore

tradeoffs between flexible mobility and fixed- route mobility, best practices in establishing and funding

pilots and programs, success stories and lessons learned, and some of the ways that rural and suburban

communities are prioritizing accessible mobility. A panel Q& A will be followed by break- out sessions.

Road Safety Interventions That Work and Save Lives

With 2022 as the deadliest year on roads for pedestrians and drivers, local leaders are looking for ways

to improve road and rail safety and save the lives of residents. This workshop will focus on best practices

for rail and road safety, including the U. S. Department of Transportation' s Proven Safety

Countermeasures, technological innovations in road safety, funding options and implementation
strategies. Come hear from three municipalities that found ways to implement innovative measures and

reduce the number of roadway deaths in their communities and learn how NLC can connect you with
helpful resources.

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

Economic Inclusion: Alleviating Burdens and Building Resilience

Embedding economic inclusion strategies into a framework of well- being and resilience is essential in

supporting and ensuring the success of families, businesses and communities. This workshop will

highlight several NLC programs designed to help cities close wealth gaps driven by race and gender

inequity and expand economic opportunities for businesses of color and multiple generations of

residents. Hear from city officials as they outline measures implemented to foster interdepartmental

cooperation and community engagement, fortifying economic resilience and mitigating racial wealth
disparities.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

177



NOVEMBER

2023
NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15, 2023

Leveraging Municipal Bond Markets for Racial Equity

Municipal bonds are used to finance vital public infrastructure. They also can be used to emphasize

equality, equity and other social outcomes in capital projects. Over the last year, NLC has collaborated
with the Public Finance Initiative and other partners on the Racial Equity& Bond Markets project, which

provides cities with opportunities to share their experiences and utilize tools to incorporate racial equity

frameworks into their capital projects. This panel discussion will feature cities that have taken part in the
Racial Equity& Bond Markets project and spotlight their experiences in leveraging finance as a catalyst
to change inequitable conditions.

Building Pathways into the Municipal Workforce

Local governments are facing a labor and workforce skills shortage that has been exacerbated by the

COVID- 19 pandemic, increased competition for labor, ineffective hiring practices, hiring restrictions,

inadequate training programs and a lack of available labor data to inform workforce policies. This

interactive workshop will highlight strategies local leaders are pursuing to reimagine their public sector

hiring practices, benefits, training programs and workforce development strategies to attract and retain

workers, build skills and pathways for advancement, support employees outside of work and generally

develop a family-friendly city environment.

Good Jobs, Great Cities: The Next- Generation Infrastructure Workforce

Building next- generation infrastructure requires a skilled and ready workforce— a challenge that calls

upon city leaders to take an active role in aligning their regional workforce pipelines to meet burgeoning

needs in infrastructure, advanced manufacturing, and clean energy. In this session, city leaders will

spotlight useful frameworks for workforce development, funding strategies and lessons learned. They
also will share how they have partnered with employers, colleges and universities, and workforce

development agencies to create on- ramps to promising career pathways that can help close racial and

economic equity gaps and expand economic opportunities for residents and businesses of color.

Revitalizing Main Street: Transforming Downtown Spaces

Join our workshop to explore the roles of vibrant downtowns and Main Streets as economic, cultural,

and social centers that contribute significantly to local identity, economic vitality, and overall quality of
life. Delve into the various challenges these downtown areas face, such as vacant properties, business

closures, and escalating rent costs. Acquire valuable insights, strategies, and tools necessary for the
revitalization of your city' s downtown core, alongside practical approaches, and successful case studies.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc.org

178



NOVEMBER

16 - 1
2023

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECU7IVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15. 2023

Engage with industry experts to expand your network and empower yourself with the means to cultivate

a prosperous future for your community, fostering thriving businesses while nurturing a flourishing

culture and sense of community.

SOLUTION SESSIONS

In addition to workshops, conference attendees can enjoy sessions led by

industry experts. Explore our Solufion Sessions.

Leading Ahead of the Trends: Today' s Top Ten Community Needs

Many facets of livability— such as infrastructure, public safety, and housing— work together to form a

great community. This session puts the spotlight on ten priorities that matter most to U. S. residents

today. Come hear public opinion experts and local government thought leaders discuss national trends

that have the greatest impact on cities. Take a closer look at Polco' s nationwide community survey and

government performance databases and gain new insights into residents' perspectives on community

livability. You' ll also discover proven, practical strategies to harness community data for the most
successful outcomes.

Becoming a City of Service

1ustServe appreciates the power of service and volunteering to build unity in the community, and its

platform links opportunities to serve with community needs. This session will highlight ways to engage

youth in identifying needs in your community, help them collaborate with organizations that meet those

needs and then see their efforts make a difference in the community. It also will introduce the new

program that JustServe is launching to recognize cities and youth for their efforts in bringing their

communities together. Come and learn how your city can be recognized as a City of Service!

Reimagining Recruitment and Retention

Given the structural changes in the nature of work and workforce competition over the last few years, it

is time for local government managers to take a hard look at the recruitment process, experiment with
new outreach and engagement methods, restructure interviews, and consider ways in which full- time

vs. part- time may no longer be the only options. MissionSquare Research Institute will share data from

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

179



NOVEMBER

2023
NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVI71E5 AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15. 2023

public sector employees, HR managers, and job candidates for a discussion on how government can

remain competitive in a difficult hiring market. Particular attention will be given to hard- to- recruit

positions, the use of technology to reconfigure both recruitment and the workplace, and new findings

among employees 35 and younger about what factors motivate them to seek or remain in public sector
employment.

Inclusive Mental Health Policies for the City Workforce

Rates of anxiety, depression, and other mental health conditions are on the rise, creating a dual
challenge for local communities. Communities need to provide their government workforce with the
mental health- related services and supports they need to perform theirjobs. They also need to ensure
that there are enough well- trained mental health providers to meet the growing demand for services
and treatment. This panel will explore some the innovative ways that local governments are addressing
these challenges—from work- related mental health policies, plans and practices to efforts to bolster the
behavioral health workforce.

This session will be facilitated by the State Exchange on Employment& Disability( SEED), a state- federal
collaboration. The discussion will feature NLC members sharing their firsthand experiences and solutions
for advancing inclusive mental health policies.

Redlining and Health: A Look at Impacts in Three Cities

As part of the NLC Capstone Challenge, the City Health Dashboard is working with three cities that have
dealt with historic redlining— Charlottesville, VA, Houston, TX and Rochester, NY— to understand how

this practice continues to impact current health and economic disparities. The goal is to help cities

integrate historic redlining maps into their equity planning processes and create action plans for
impactful and lasting local change for displaced populations and disinvested neighborhoods. Learn
about these unique collaborations to combine mapping and data expertise with city representatives'

collective local knowledge. You' ll also hear directly from cities who are thinking critically about how the
past can inform the present to create more widespread, equitable opportunity for all communities in
the future.

Data, Insights and Innovations for Mental Health Solutions

Join leaders of Care Solace and Be Well OC as they delve into the pressing issue of inental health among

vulnerable populations. Drawing on data- driven insights from city partners, this session explores
innovative strategies and solutions that can transform the mental health services and support systems

available for individuals who are facing homelessness and other challenging circumstances. A

combination of case studies, discussions among experts and collaborative problem- solving will give
participants fresh ideas and new tools to respond to mental health issues that cities of all sizes are

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

180



NOVEMBER

3 -

2023
NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15, 2023

facing. This session will be valuable for both elected officials and municipal staff seeking to strengthen
the mental well- being of their communities.

Reimagining Commercial Space as Housing

Communities across the country are struggling to provide high- quality affordable housing, and Freddie
Mac estimates a current shortage of 3. 8 million units nationwide. At the same time, changes in the

commercial real estate market— driven by more flexible wark patterns— have created an abundance of

vacant office space and, perhaps, new opportunities to expand the housing supply and create 24/ 7
neighborhoods. The American Institute of Architects will present five key takeaways for city leaders wha
are considering office- to- residential conversions as part of a comprehensive strategy to address housing
shortages.

Good Neighbors: A Commitment to Protect Housing Affordability

Airbnb has launched a set of new principles that guide how it partners with communities around the

world to support policies that address housing affordability challenges. These principles are the first of

their kind for the industry and represent Airbnb' s clear and comprehensive commitment to work

together with policymakers, community groups, housing- policy experts and thought leaders to ensure

Airbnb helps make communities stronger. During this discussion, Airbnb will outline its newly launched

principles, highlight its existing efforts on housing and announce new initiatives and opportunities for

partnership with local communities to advocate for sensible policies to help boost the affordable

housing supply.

Creating Resilient and Healthy Communities

Resilient cities recognize the importance of equitable solutions that serve all members of the

community, including our most vulnerable. That includes community members who are experiencing

homelessness. Community leaders play a critical role in addressing the issues of housing and

homelessness, and they understand that homelessness can arise from various circumstances, including
mental health issues, the opioid/ fentanyl crisis, extreme weather events, natural disasters and economic

problems. With this in mind, community and local leaders seek ways to offer immediate shelter and

establish pathways toward more permanent housing solutions. This session will focus on ways to build a
comprehensive approach that combines immediate relief with sustainable strategies to build resilient

cities where everyone has access to safe and stable housing.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

181



NOVEMBER

8
2023

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECU7IVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15, 2023

Socially Responsible Purchasing with Amazon Business

Supporting local, veteran- owned and minority- owned businesses and improving sustainability are

important for city growth. Join this session as representatives from Amazon Business share innovative

ways for city leaders to define, meet and proactively measure progress toward socially responsible

purchasing goals. Learn how the buying process for city governments can be simplified and how the

playing field can be leveled to create more opportunities for small businesses.

Drones as First Responders

Drone technology is increasingly becoming an integral part of a first responder' s toolbox. Drones allow

for safer research and rescue, identifying safe pathways of entry and exit for first responders, opening

two- way communication between an officer and a suspect in barricaded and unsafe situations and

increasing situational awareness. They also can deliver payloads like medical kits and NARCAN. This
session will feature some of the ways that state and local agencies and communities can benefit from

using drone technology, aligned with correct policies, in responding to a range of emergency situations.

Integrated Public Safety: Developing a Holistic Response

Public safety is no longer the sole domain of police, fire and offices of emergency management. The
challenges cities face — from homelessness to violent crime — can only be tackled by strategizing and

collaborating across municipal agencies and by bringing diverse skills, data and interventions together in

meaningful ways. At this session, participants will learn about innovative ways cities are breaking down

silos between city departments and addressing their most difficult challenges in building safer and

healthier communities. Practical advice from police, housing and technolagy leaders will show what' s

required to build and execute cross- departmental strategies, including how to engage stakeholders

across your city and how data tools can drive collaboration.

Gaining Community Support for Crime- Solving Technology

Cities across the country face a challenging equation: rising crime, particularly firearm violence, and

increasingly understaffed police departments. Real- time crime centers and policing technologies like

license plate readers and gunshot detection systems are proven to be effective force multipliers for both

real- time emergency situations and investigations. But in order to see maximum benefits, the process of

implementing these technologies must involve the community. In this session, law enforcement and city

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

182



NOVEMBER

2023
NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE AC7IVITIES AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15, 2023

leaders who have successfully deployed crime- solving technology will walk through a framework

emphasizing transparency, accountability and equity. Topics of discussion will include choosing

technologies/ technology vendors that reflect the community; bringing together residents, community

groups, elected officials, law enforcement and other stakeholders to be a part of the conversation; using

a data- driven approach to technology deployment; and maintaining open lines of communication

between police and community residents.

Nine Non- Techie Things to Help Keep Your Municipality Safe

City leaders can' t afford to ignore cybersecurity risks. Even if your technology experience is limited, you

need to be part of decision- making processes to protect municipal systems. This session will cover the

three biggest leadership mistakes that can leave a city vulnerable to cybersecurity breaches,

understanding big- picture implications and what successful leaders are doing to change their outcomes

even when they don' t understand anything about IT. Join this session for a plain- language discussion

and walk away with a nine- step practical checklist that you can start applying immediately.

Generative AI: What Mayors and Managers Must Know

Easy access to artificial intelligence and cloud technologies opens up new opportunities for city

governance. This session will review the digital landscape and deliver clear, practical and responsible

examples of how AI can be used to propel your daily operations and policies. Speakers will provide real-

world examples and highlight how very simple tools can support your work. They also will share best

practices that protect against unwelcome uses. Regardless of your familiarity with these technologies,

you' ll leave with new insights and actionable strategies tailored to the needs of your office and

community.

Helping Cities with Google' s Generative AI

In this age of artificial intelligence, companies are inspired to think big while balancing the need to act

responsibly. For Google Cloud, that means delivering innovative products, developing transformational

uses for your city and continuing to build an open ecosystem for AI innovation. Our work is driven by a
commitment to apply AI safely and responsibly— in how we develop our models, how we partner with

customers to evaluate risk and how we help ensure you maintain full control of your data. This session is

an opportunity to gain knowledge and ideas to help you map out AI plans for your community.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

183



NOVEMBER

2023
NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE ACTIVITIES AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBER 15. 2023

The Role of Data and Analytics in Building Safer Communities

Data- driven insights are critical for creating safer communities. This session will cover the latest

technology to help cities solve safety challenges, including software solutions that can accelerate the

pace of safety initiatives with predictive features. Participants also will learn how technology can be

used to gauge progress on safety initiatives and provide required reporting for funding opportunities.

Helping the Advanced Air Mobility Industry Take Off

Advanced Air Mobility( AAM) has the potential to make current transit networks more efficient by

reducing carbon emissions, lowering congestion and adding transportation solutions to traditionally
underserved communities. Learn about the AAM- driven benefits and what factors local leaders should

consider to implement AAM safely and equitably. Speakers will address policies and measures that cities
can take to spur investment and workforce development in AAM.

Electric Vehicles, Energy Companies, and Equitable Solutions

More than 26 million electric vehicles are expected to be on U. S. roads by 2030. To meet anticipated

demand to power those vehicles, and to ensure electric vehicles and their benefits are accessible to all,

it is imperative for charging infrastructure to be strategically deployed in cities and counties of all sizes.

This panel will discuss the partnerships necessary among energy companies, local governments and

other key stakeholders to successfully align charging infrastructure build- out with equitable solutions.

Five Things Every City Leader Needs to Know About GIS

GIS is engrained in local government operations and it delivers significant benefits for community life.

Cities of all sizes use GIS to understand their challenges and improve the quality of life for residents. Like

other technologies, GIS has undergone massive advancements, which cities can use to address equity,

housing, transportation, public safety, economic development and more. This session will highlight five

GIS application areas city leaders need to be aware of as they seek to execute more data- driven policy.

You will leave this session with new ideas on how GIS can help you solve the challenges your community

faces as well as questions to take back to your GIS staff.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

184



t°

NOVEMBER

16 - 18
2023

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES PRECONFERENCE AC7IVITIES AND EXECUTIVE EDUCATION SESSIONS NOVEMBERIS, 2023

Leveraging the Cloud to Elevate the Digital Resident Experience

Digital government services are rapidly evolving, with cloud technology at the forefront. Cloud- based

solutions not only provide seamless, integrated services but also significantly enhance the resident

experience. How does the cloud facilitate this transformation, and what are its implications for your

digital government services? Attend this session to better understand how your government can

leverage cloud technology for staff and resident services.

Learn more at citysummit. nlc. org

185



186



ITEM 4. 10

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER il, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL

PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT AT DELL' 0550 FARMS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Agreement to Provide
Law Enforcement Services to Dell' Osso Farms, LLC.

for the Annual Pumpkin Maze Event on September

30, 2023 through October 31, 2023

SUMMARY:

Dell' Osso Farms ( Dell' Osso) holds an annual Pumpkin Maze event during the month
of October and has requested law enforcement services for their event security.
Dell' Osso has requested a total of 308 sworn overtime hours for the duration of the

event that will be held from September 30,  2023 through October 31,  2023.

Additionally, Community Service Officers are being requested for traffic mitigation for
a total of ten ( 10) hours.

The Lathrop Police Department ( LPD) is able to provide staffing for the requested
overtime hours for the annual Pumpkin Maze event. Dell' Osso has further agreed to

pay the cost of additional law enforcement services should circumstances require
additional hours or mutual aid from other agencies to restore or secure public safety

during their events.  The overtime cost for the Dell' Osso Pumpkin Maze event is

35, 165. 92.

Staff recommends City Council approve the agreement to authorize LPD to provide
law enforcement services to Dell' Osso Farms for the annual Pumpkin Maze event for

the period of September 30, 2023 through October 31, 2023.

BACKGROUND:

Dell' Osso Farms holds an annual Pumpkin Maze event during the month of October
that brings thousands of attendees from the City of Lathrop and the surrounding
areas. The Lathrop Police Department provided law enforcement services last year,
and Dell' Osso has again requested for LPD to provide law enforcement services for
their event this year.

The Pumpkin Maze event is scheduled from September 30, 2023 through October 31,

2023. Dell' Osso has requested a total of 308 sworn overtime hours for the duration

of the event. Additionally, Community Service Officers are being requested for traffic
mitigation for a total of ten ( 10) hours. Police Officers will work from a schedule with

23)  eight- hour shifts and  ( 11)  six- hour shifts for a total of 250 hours,  and

Sergeant( s) will work from a schedule with  ( 5) eight- hour shifts and  ( 3)  six- hour

187



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER il, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR

THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT AT DELL' OSSO FARMS

shifts for a total of 58 hours. Officers working the event will do so outside of their
regularly assigned work schedule.

Dell' Osso further agrees to pay the cost of additional law enforcement services should
circumstances require a mutual aid request from other City,  County,  or State

agencies in order to restore or secure public safety at their event.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Due to the size and scope of the events, law enforcement services are required for

the safety and security of the visitors for the annual Pumpkin Maze Event. LPD is able
to provide the law enforcement services requested, and Dell' Osso has agreed to pay
the overtime rate to cover the costs of sworn and non- sworn personnel.  Staff

recommends Council approve the agreement to allow LPD to provide law enforcement
services for the annual Pumpkin Maze event.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Overtime for the event is estimated at $ 35, 165. 92. At the conclusion of the event,

the City will invoice Dell' Osso for the cost of providing law enforcement services.
Should circumstances arise requiring more hours than what was scheduled or mutual
aid from other agencies was needed, Dell' Osso will be responsible for reimbursement

of the actual hours worked and costs for mutual aid. There is no fiscal impact to the

City for this agreement and the Revenue and Overtime Expense are included in the
FY 23- 24 adopted budget.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement Services to
Dell' Osso Farms, LLC. for the Annual Pumpkin Maze event on September 30,

2023 through October 31, 2023

B.       Agreement with Dell' Osso Farms, LLC. to Provide Law Enforcement Services

for the Pumpkin Maze event on September 30, 2023 through October 31, 2023

188



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE I.AW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR

THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT AT DELL' OSSO FARMS

AP OVALS:

Z(   z
Raymond Bechler Date

Chief of Police

l 3
Cari James Date

Finance Di tor

g' zo z3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

t- 23
Step Salvatore Date

City Manager

189



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO
DELL' OS50 FARMS,  LLC.  FOR THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023

WHEREAS, Dell' Osso Farms, LLC. holds an annual Pumpkin Maze event during
the month of October that attracts thousands of attendees from the City of Lathrop
and the surrounding areas; and

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Police Department provided law enforcement services
last year,  and Dell' Osso has again requested for LPD to provide law enforcement
services for their event this year; and

WHEREAS, the Pumpkin Maze event is scheduled from September 30, 2023

through October 31, 2023; and

WHEREAS, Dell' Osso has requested a total of 308 sworn overtime hours for
the duration of the event.  Additionally,  Community Service Officers are being
requested for traffic mitigation for a total of ten ( 10) hours; and

WHEREAS, Police Officers will work from a schedule with ( 23) eight- hour shifts
and ( 11) six- hour shifts for a total of 250 hours, and Sergeant( s) will work from a

schedule with  ( 5) eight- hour shifts and ( 3) six- hour shifts for a total of 58 hours.

Officers working the event will do so outside of their regularly assigned work
schedule; and

WHEREAS, LPD is able to provide staffing for the requested overtime hours
and Dell' Osso further agrees to pay the cost of additional law enforcement services
should circumstances require a mutual aid request from other City, County, or State
agencies in order to restore or secure public safety at their event; and

WHEREAS,  the overtime cost for the Dell' Osso Pumpkin Maze event is
35, 165. 92; and

WHEREAS, there is no fiscal impact to the City for this agreement and the
Revenue and Overtime Expense are included in the FY 23- 24 adopted budget; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement Services to
Dell' Osso Farms, LLC. for the Annual Pumpkin Maze event on September 30, 2023
through October 31, 2023.

190



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of September
2023, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

191



qttachment 6

CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. LAW ENFORCEMENT

SERVICES FOR THE PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023

THIS AGREEMENT far law enforcement services to DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. for the

PUMPKIN MAZE event( hereinafter" EVENT"), dated far convenience this day of September is by
and between Dell' Osso Farms, LLC., a separate and distinct entity ( hereinafter" DELL' OSSO FARMS")
and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal corporation ( hereinafter " CITY"). The CITY and

DELL' OSSO FARMS may be referred to herein as" Party" or collectively as " Parties".

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, DELL' OSSO FARMS requests the CITY to provide law enforcement security services
for its EVENT; and

WHEREAS, the CITI' desires to accommodate DELL' OSSO FARMS request and has no objections

to providing law enfarcement security services for the EVENT as allowed by Government Code 53069.8 and
reserves the right to terminate EVENT for the purposes of public safety; and

WHEREAS, any costs associated with work hours pursuant to this AGREEMENT wherein Officers
or Sergeants worked at the EVENT shall be paid for by DELL' OSSO FARMS at the rate indicated in the
estimated cost schedule below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, covenants, terms, and conditions in this

Agreement, DELL' OSSO FARMS and the CIT' Y agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CITY's assigned police officers shall provide law enforcement security services to DELL' OSSO
FARMS EVENT in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.

A.  Each police officer shall be the CITY' s employee and shall be subject to the CITY' s
administration, supervision, and control.

B.  DELL' OSSO FARMS agrees to the estimated costs for law enforcement security
provided by the Lathrop Police Department.

C.  The estimated costs is based on the understanding that CITY shall assign Police
Officers and Sergeants to cover the EVENT on each requested day on a rotational
basis. Community Service Officers will work on a as needed basis for traffic control.
Police Officer( s) will work from a schedule with a total of 250 hours, Sergeant( s)

will work from a schedule with a total of 58 hours, and Community Service
Officer(s) will work as needed for an estimated total of 10 hours for traffic control.

Attached is Exhibit" A" of the shifts and hours requested by DELL' OSSO FARMS.

Page 1 of 8192



CITY OF LATHROP - AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO

DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. FOR THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30,
2023 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023.

D.  The CITY shall be entitled to a reimbursement should circumstances arise requiring
more hours/ and or personnel and the estimated cost would be adjusted accordingly.

E.  DELL' OSSO FARMS shall be entitled to a reduction for less hours worked should

circumstances( such as rain and wind) cause the EVENT to be closed or impacted.

Additionally, closing hours in Exhibit" A" are estimates. Ifthe EVENT closes early,
officers may work less hours.

F.  DELL' OSSO FARMS agrees to pay the CITY for all costs associated with
providing law enforcement services for the EVENT. In addition, if further resources

are needed to provide adequate security at the EVENT, including mutual aid from
other agencies, those cost will be the responsibility of DELL' OSSO FARMS.
Hourly rates for the additional resources that are not included in the estimated cost

schedule may vary.

2)       Comnensation

DELL' OSSO FARMS hereby agrees to the estimated cost for law enforcement services below:

Overtime Rate Estimated Hours Estimated Cost

Police Officer 108. 56 250 27, 140. 00

Ser eant 127. 94 58 7,420. 52

Community 60. 54 10 605. 40

Service Officers

TOTALS 35 165.92

CITY will invoice DELL' OSSO FARMS for law enforcement services for actual hours of CITY

personnel and any additional resource costs incurred for the EVENT. Hourly rates for additional
resources that may be needed to provide adequate security at the EVENT that are not included in the
estimated cost schedule above may vary.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement shall be from the date of its full execution through October 31,

2023, unless terminated earlier by either party providing thirty (30) days' written notice.

4)      Emnlovment of Officer( s) and Assignments

CITY shall retain control over supervision, wages, and other terms and conditions of employment of

the officers providing the services under this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that such officers
are held to the requirements of the law and CITY policies and procedures. DELL' OSSO FARMS
shall immediately notify the CITY of any concerns regarding the performance of the assigned
officers, including, but not limited to, adherence to quality of services as detailed in this agreement.

CITY shall assign Police Officers and Sergeants to cover the EVENT on each requested day on a
rotational basis. Police Officer( s) will work from a schedule with( 23) eight- hour shifts and( 11) six-
hour shifts with a total of 250 hours, and Sergeant( s) will work from a schedule with( 5) eight- hour
shifts and( 3) six- hour shifts with a total of 58 hours, unless otherwise adjusted due to circumstantial
events as referenced in the Agreement.

Page 2 of 8193



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO

DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. FOR THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30,

2023 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023.

5)      Billings

CITY shall submit one invoice at the conclusion of the EVENT for actual law enforcement services

incurred and any additional resource costs incurred for the EVENT. DELL' OSSO FARMS shall

remit payment to the CITY within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of invoice

6)       Supulies & Epuipment

CITY shall provide each officer with the following equipment:

A.       Police Vehicles: Cit, sYhall,

l. Provide a standard patrol vehicle for each officer.
2. Maintain the motor vehicles assigned to each officer.

3. Purchase gasoline, oil, replacement tires, and other expenses associated with
the operation of each motor vehicle.

4. Maintain comprehensive general auto liability insurance on each motor
vehicle in an amount as is cunently provided through the Central San Joaquin
Valley Risk Management Autharity.

B.       Weapons and Ammunition

1. CITY shall provide the standard issued weapons( handgun, shotgun, and rifle)
and rounds of ammunition for each officer.

C.       Office Supplies

1. CITY shall provide each officer with the usual and customary office supplies
and forms required in the performance of their duties.

7)      Comqliance With the Laws

The Parties shall keep themselves informed of and in compliance with all federal, state and local
laws, ordinances, regulations, and orders that may affect in any manner performance of the Services
or those engaged to perform Services under this Agreement.

8)      Insurance

A.       DELL' OSSO FARMS shall maintain commercial general liability insurance
coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office( ISO) form CG 00 O1, in an
amount not less than one million dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per occurrence for bodily
injury, personal injury, and property damage, including without limitation, blanket
contractual liability. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate
limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit
shall be twice the required occurrence limit. DELL' OSSO FARMS general liability
policies shall be primary and shall not seek contribution from the CITY' s coverage,

and be endorsed using ISO form CG 20 10( or equivalent) to provide that City and
its officers, officials, employees, and agents shall be additional insureds under such

policies. For construction projects, an endorsement providing completed operations
coverage for the additional insured, ISO form CG 20 3' 7 ( or equivalent) is also
required.

B.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies by DELL' OSSO
FARMS shall not affect coverage provided the CITI'.

Page 3 of 8194



CITY OF LATHROP - AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO

DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. FOR THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30,

2023 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023.

C.       Coverage shall state that DELL' OSSO FARMS insurance shall apply separately to
each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to

the limits of the insurer' s liability.

D.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the CITY.

9)      Indemnification

A.       DELL' OSSO FARMS shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers( hereafter collectively City Personnel)
from and against any and all liability, claims, damage, cost, expenses, awards, fines,
judgments, and expenses of litigation( including, without limitation, costs, attorney
fees, expert witness fees and prevailing party fees and cost) of every nature arising
out of or in connection with the any services provided by the City or any City
Personnel or their performance of work or any failure to comply with any of the
City' s duties contained in the Agreement, except such loss or damage which was

caused by the gross or willful misconduct of City Personnel.

B.       In the event of concurrent negligence on the part of DELL' OSSO FARMS or any of
its officers, directors, trustees, employees, agents or volunteers, and CITY or any of
its officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers, the liability for any and all
such claims, demands and actions in law equity for such losses, fines, penalties,
forfeiture, costs and damages shall be apportioned under the State of California' s

theory of comparative negligence as presently established or as may be modified
hereafter.

C.       If DELL' OSSO FARMS rejects a tender of defense by the City or City Personnel
under this Agreement, and it is later determined that the City and City Personnel
breached no duty of care and/ or were immune from liability, DELL' OSSO FARMS
shall reimburse the City and/ or City Personnel for any and all litigation expenses
including, without limitation,  costs,  attorney fees,  expert witness fees and

prevailing party fees and cost). A duty of care or immunity determination may be
made by a jury or a court, including a declaratory relief determination by a court
after the City and/ or City Personnel settles a liability claim, with or without
participation by DELL' OSSO FARMS.

D.       The Parties acknowledge that it is not the intent of the Agreement to create a duty of
care by the City or City Personnel that they would not owe in the absence of the
Agreement. The Agreement does not create an affirmative duty of care( including,
without limitation, a duty to protect, a duty to deter and/ or a duty to intervene) by
the City or City Personnel and the absence of City Personnel is not a material breach
of this Agreement. The Parties further acknowledge that by entering into this
Agreement neither the City nor City Personnel intend to waive any immunities to
which they would be entitled in the absence of the Agreement.

10)     Intesration of Prior Terms and Conditions

This Agreement, including all recitals, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties. This
Agreement may be amended or modified only by the mutual written agreement of the Parties. This
Agreement is invalid unless approved by the legislative body of each Party, although it may be

Page4of8195



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO

DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. FOR THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30,

2023 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023.

executed by an authorized agent of each Party. An authorized agent of the City shall be a person
specifically authorized by the legislative body of the City to execute this Agreement, at the level of
City Manager or City Attorney or equivalent. The indemnity sections shall survive termination or
expiration of this agreement.

11)     Termination

Either Party to this Agreement may far any reason terminate this Agreement at any time by giving
thirty ( 30) days' written notice to the other party. Upon termination of this Agreement as herein
provided, DELL' OSSO FARMS shall have no obligation to compensate ofpay the CITY except for
services provided prior to termination.

12)     Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change Orders, consents,

designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either party to the other shall be in
writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party( 1) personally served,( 2) sent
by the United States mail, postage prepaid, by certified mail ( 3) sent by private express delivery
service and addressed as follows:

To City:       City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to: City of Lathrop
Lathrop Police Department
940 River Islands Parkway
Lathrop, CA 95330

To Dell' Osso Farms:       DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC.

Attn: Susan Dell' Osso

26 W. Stewart Rd.

Lathrop, CA 95330

13)     Miscellaneous

A.       Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party is required, such
approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person having the express
authority to grant such approval or consent.

B.       Contract Terms Prevail. All exhibits and this Agreement are intended to be construed as a

single document.   Should any inconsistency occur between the specific terms of this
Agreement and attached exhibits, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

C.       Non- Discrimination. No party shall employ any discriminatory practices in its performance
hereunder, including its employment practices, on the basis of sex, race, color, religion,
national origin, ancestry, age, sexual orientation, or physical and mental disability.

Page 5 of 8196



CITY OF LATHROP - AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO

DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. FOR THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30,

2023 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023.

D.       Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed by
and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

E.       Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results from an Act of
God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

F. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect
upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

G.       Incorporation of Documents.   All documents constituting the Agreement documents
described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may, from time to time, be referred to
in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in the Agreement
and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

H.       Integration. This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the parties constitute the
entire Agreement between the parties concerning the Project and Work, and there are no
other prior oral or written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in this
Agreement.

I. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

J. Provision.    Any agreement,  covenant,  condition,  clause,  qualification,  restriction,

reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall define or otherwise control,

establish or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by
either party. All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to be both
covenants and conditions.

K.       Severability. The invalidity in whole or part of any provision of this Agreement shall not
void or affect the validity of any other provision of this agreement. If a court of competent
jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the
provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

L.       Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and

shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

M.      Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree that trial
of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of
San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

N.       Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms of this
Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover its reasonable costs, including
reasonable attorney' s fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the

non- prevailing party

Page 6 of 8197



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO
DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. FOR THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30,
2023 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023.

14)     SiEnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right, power, legal
capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal
entities of DELL' OSSO FARMS and the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be

binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 7 of 8198



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO
DELL' OSSO FARMS, LLC. FOR THE ANNUAL PUMPKIN MAZE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30,
2023 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2023.

In Witness Whereof, each Party to this Agreement has signed this Agreement upon the date indicated, and
agrees, for itself, its employees, officers, partners, and successors, to be fully bound by all terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

City of Lathrop:  Dell' Osso Farms, LLC:

Stephen J. Salvatore Date Susan Dell' Osso Date

Ciry Manager

Approved as to Form:

Zy Z 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Attest:

Teresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

Page 8 of 8199



2023 CORN MAZE STAFFING SCHEDULE
Exhibit A

September 30, 2023 through October 31, 2023

DATE SHIFI'      ASSIGNED STAF' F Dep Hrs Sgt. Hrs

Officer Sgt.   NAME

30- Sep Saturday 2pm- lOpm 1
Officer 8

2pm- lOpm 1 Officer g

1- Oct Sunday 1pm- 9pm 1
Officer 8

1pm- 9pm 1 Officer g

6- Oct Friday 4pm- lOpm 1 Officer 6

4pm- lOpm 1
fficer

6

7- Oct Saturday 2pm- lOpm 1
fficer

8

2pm- lOpm 1 fficer 8

8- Oct Sunday 1pm- 9pm i
fficer

8

1pm- 9pm 1
Officer

g

13- Oct Friday 4pm- lOpm 1
Officer

6

4pm- lOpm 1
Officer

6

4pm- lOpm 1 1 Sergeant& Officer
6 6

14- Oct Saturday 2pm- lOpm 1 fficer
8

2pm- lOpm i
Officer

8

2pm- lOpm 1 1 Sergeant& Officer g 8

15- Oct Sunday 1pm- 9pm 1 Officer g

1pm- 9pm 1
Officer

g

1pm- 9pm 1 1 Sergeant& Officer 8 8

20- Oct Friday 4pm- lOpm 1 Officer 6

4pm- lOpm 1 r 6

4pm- lOpm 1 1 Sergeant& Officer 6 6

21- Oct Saturday 2pm- lOpm 1 Officer
8

2pm- lOpm i
Officer

g

2pm- lOpm 1 1 Sergeant& Officer g 8

22- Oct Sunday 1pm- 9pm 1
Officer

8

IPm_9pm 1 ffiCer               
8

1pm- 9pm 1
1 Sergeant& Officer g

g

27- Oct Friday 4pm- lOpm 1 fficer 6

4pm- lOpm 1 Officer 6

4pm- lOpm 1 1 Sergeant& Officer 6 6

28- Oct Saturday 2pm- lOpm 1
Officer

8

2pm- lOpm 1
Officer

8

2pm- lOpm 1 1 Sergeant& Officer g 8

29- Oct Sunday None

Total Sworn Hou 250 58

Non- Swoxn Hours

Traffie nuol As needed 2 ornmuniiy Service Oft"rc. zs{ CSO 10

Total Non- Sworn Hour 10

200



ITEM 4. 11

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE AMERICAN

HEART ASSOCIATION' S 209 HEART & STROKE WALK

EVENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Agreement to Provide
Law Enforcement Services to The American Heart

Association for the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk Event

on October 7, 2023

SUMMARY:

The American Heart Association ( AHA) is hosting the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event

in the City of Lathrop on October 7, 2023. This is a regional event that will attract

thousands of visitors into Lathrop.    Due to the size and scope of the event,  law

enforcement services are being requested to ensure the safety and security of event
participants.  The 209 Heart  & Stroke Walk is a one- day event from 8: OOAM to
11: OOAM. The total hours requested by the AHA is sixteen ( 16) hours.

The Lathrop Police Department ( LPD)  is able to provide staffing for the requested
overtime hours for the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk. The AHA has further agreed to pay
the cost of additional law enforcement services should circumstances require

additional hours or mutual aid from other agencies to restore or secure public safety
during the event.  The overtime cost for the AHA' s 209 Heart  &  Stroke Walk is

estimated at $ 1, 736. 96.

Staff recommends City Council approve the agreement to authorize LPD to provide
law enforcement services to the American Heart Association for the 209 Heart &

Stroke Walk Event on October 7, 2023.

BACKGROUND:

The American Heart Association is the nation' s oldest and largest voluntary non- profit
organization whose mission is to fight heart disease and stroke. The AHA is hosting
their 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event on Saturday, October 7, 2023 at 1051 River

Islands Parkway in Lathrop to raise awareness and funding for heart disease.  In

previous years, two ( 2) Heart & Stroke Walk events were hosted on different days in

the Cities of Modesto and Stockton.  This is the first year that the event will be
combined and will take place in the City of Lathrop. This regional event will attract
thousands of visitors to Lathrop. Event organizers estimates between 1, 500 - 2, 000

attendees for the October 7, 2023 event.

The 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event will begin at 8: OOAM and the vendor/ festival area
will have a kids activity zone, face painters, sponsor booths, a DJ, and photo areas.

201



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR

THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION' S 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT

Due to the size and scope of the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event, law enforcement

services are being requested to ensure the safety and security of event participants.
The 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event is from 8: OOAM to 11: OOAM, and a total of four

4) officers are being requested to be present for the event. The total hours requested
by the American Heart Association is sixteen ( 16) hours.

The AHA further agrees to pay the cost of additional law enforcement services should
circumstances require a mutual aid request from other City,  County,  or State

agencies in order to restore or secure public safety at their event.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Due to the size and scope of the events, law enforcement services are required for

the safety and security of the visitors and participants for the 209 Heart & Stroke

Walk event. LPD is able to provide the law enforcement services requested, and the
AHA has agreed to pay the overtime rate to cover the costs of sworn and non- sworn
personnel. Staff recommends Council approve the agreement to allow LPD to provide
law enforcement services for the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Overtime cost for the AHA' s 209 Heart & Stroke Walk is estimated at $ 1, 736. 96. At

the conclusion of the events, the City will invoice the AHA for the cost of providing
law enforcement services.  Should circumstances arise requiring more hours than
what was scheduled or mutual aid from other agencies was needed, the AHA will be

responsible for reimbursement of the actual hours worked and costs for mutual aid.

There is no fiscal impact to the City for this agreement and the Revenue and Overtime
Expense are included in the FY 23- 24 adopted budget.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement Services to the
American Heart Association for the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event on October

7, 2023

B.       Agreement with the American Heart Association to Provide Law Enforcement

Services for the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event on October 7, 2023

202



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR

THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION' S 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT

APPROVALS:

Z   z3
Raymond Bechler Date

Chief of Police

r gl o/v od
Cari Jame Date

Finance D r ctor

t . Z3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

2.3
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

203



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO

THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION FOR THE 209 HEART & STROKE WALK

EVENT ON OCTOBER 7, 2023

WHEREAS, the American Heart Association ( AHA) is the nation' s oldest and

largest voluntary non- profit organization whose mission is to fight heart disease and
stroke; and

WHEREAS,  the AHA is hosting their 209 Heart  &  Stroke Walk event on

Saturday,  October 7,  2023 at 1051 River Islands Parkway in Lathrop to raise
awareness and funding for heart disease. This regional event will attract thousands
of visitors to Lathrop and event organizers estimates between 1, 500  -  2, 000

attendees; and

WHEREAS, the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event will be from at 8: OOAM to

11: OOAM and the vendor/ festival area will have a kids activity zone, face painters,
sponsor booths, a DJ, and photo areas; and

WHEREAS, due to the size and scope of the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event,

law enforcement services are being requested to ensure the safety and security of
event participants. A total of four ( 4) officers are being requested to be present for
the event. The total hours requested by the American Heart Association is sixteen

16) hours; and

WHEREAS, LPD is able to provide staffing for the requested overtime hours
and the AHA further agrees to pay the cost of additional law enforcement services
should circumstances require a mutual aid request from other City, County, or State
agencies in order to restore or secure public safety at their event; and

WHEREAS,  the overtime cost for the AHA' s 209 Heart  &  Stroke Walk is

estimated at $ 1, 736. 96; and

WHEREAS, there is no fiscal impact to the City for this agreement and the
Revenue and Overtime Expense are included in the FY 23- 24 adopted budget; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement Services to the
American Heart Association for the 209 Heart & Stroke Walk event on October 7,

2023.

204



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of September
2023, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

205



Attachment B

CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT WITH THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT ON

OCTOBER 7, 2023

THIS AGREEMENT for law enforcement services to the AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION

for the 209 HEART& STROKE WALK event( hereinafter" EVENT"), dated for convenience this day
of September 2023 is by and between the AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION, a nonprofit organization
hereinafter" AHA") and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal corporation( hereinafter" CITY"). The

CITY and the AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION may be referred to herein as" Party" or collectively as
Parties".

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, AHA requests the CITY to provide law enforcement security services for the EVENT;
and

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accommodate AHA' s request and has no objections to providing
law enforcement security services for the EVENT as allowed by Government Code 53069. 8 and reserves the
right to terminate the EVENT for the purposes of public safety; and

WHEREAS, costs for Officer work hours shall be paid by the AHA at the rate indicated in the
estimated cost schedule below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, covenants, terms, and conditions in this

Agreement, AHA and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CITY' s assigned police officers shall provide law enforcement security services to AHA' s 209
HEART& STROKE WALK EVENT located at 1051 River Islands Parkway, Lathrop, CA 95330 in
accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.

A.  Each police officer shall be the CITY' s employee and shall be subject to the CITY' s
administration, supervision, and control.

B.  AHA agrees to pay the costs for law enfarcement services provided by the Lathrop
Police Department at the hourly rate listed in Section 2 below.

C.  The initially estimated total cost is based on the number of hours that CITY intends
to assign Police Officers to cover the EVENT. Police Officer( s) will work from a

schedule with a total of 16 hours for the duration of the EVENT as detailed in

Section 2 Compensation below.

D.  AHA agrees to pay a deposit equal to the initially estimated total cost as detailed in
Section 2 below.

Page 1 of 7206



CITY OF LATHROP - AGREEMENT WITH THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION TO

PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT

ON OCTOBER 7, 2023

E.  The CITY shall be entitled to reimbursement should circumstances arise requiring
more hours/ and or personnel and the estimated additional cost will be billed to AHA
accordingly.

F.  AHA be entitled to a reduction for less hours worked should circumstances( such as

rain and wind) cause the EVENT to be closed or impacted. If the EVEN' T closes

early, officers may work less hours.

G.  AHA agrees to pay the CITY for all costs associated with providing law
enforcement services for the EVENT. In addition, if further resources are needed to

provide adequate security at the EVENT, including mutual aid from other agencies,
those cost will be the responsibility of AHA. Hourly rates for the additional
resources that are not included in the estimated cost schedule may vary.

2)      Comuensation

AHA hereby agrees to pay all initial deposit of initial estimated total cost for law enforcement
services as detailed in the schedule below:

Date No. of Hours Total Est. OT Estimated

Officers Hours Hourly Rate Total Cost

10/ 7/ 2023 4 8AM — 12PM 4 hours 16 Hours    $ 108. 56 1, 736. 96

Total Estimated Cost 1 736. 96

After the EVENT, CITY will invoice the AHA for law enforcement services far actual hours of

CITY personnel and any additional resource costs incurred for EVENT and apply the initial deposit
as a credit. Hourly rates for additional resources that may be needed to provide adequate security at
the EVENT that are not included in the initial estimated total cost schedule above may vary.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement shall be from the date of its full execution through October 8,

2023, unless terminated earlier by either party providing a minimum of seven ( 7) days' written
notice.

4)      Emplovment of Officer( s) and AssiEnments

CITY shall retain control over supervision, wages, and other terms and conditions of employment of

the officers providing the services under this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that such officers
are held to the requirements of the law and CITY policies and procedures. AHA shall immediately
notify the CITY of any concerns regarding the performance of the assigned officers, including, but
not limited to, adherence to quality of services as detailed in this agreement.

CITY shall assign Police Officers to cover the EVENT on each requested day on a rotational basis.
Police Officer( s) will work from a schedule as detailed in Section 2 Compensation of the Agreement,

unless otherwise adjusted due to circumstantial events as referenced in the Agreement.

5)      Billin s

CITY shall submit one invoice at the conclusion of the EVENT for actual law enforcement services

Page 2 of 7207



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT WITH THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION TO

PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT

ON OCTOBER 7, 2023

incurred and any additional resource costs incurred for the EVENT. AHA shall remit payment to the
CITY within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of invoice.

6)       Supplies & Equipment

CITI' shall provide each officer with the following equipment:

A.       Police Vehicles: City shall,
l. Provide a standard patrol vehicle for each officer.
2. Maintain the motor vehicles assigned to each officer.

3. Purchase gasoline, oil, replacement tires, and other expenses associated with
the operation of each motor vehicle.

4. Maintain comprehensive general auto liability insurance on each motor
vehicle in an amount as is currently provided through the Central San Joaquin
Valley Risk Management Authority.

B.       Weapons and Ammunition

1. CITY shall provide the standard issued weapons( handgun, shotgun, and rifle)
and rounds of ammunition for each officer.

C.       Office Supplies

1. CITY shall provide each officer with the usual and customary office supplies
and forms required in the performance of their duties.

7)      Compliance With the Laws

The Parties shall keep themselves informed of and in compliance with all federal, state and local
laws, ordinances, regulations, and orders that may affect in any manner performance of the Services
or those engaged to perform Services under this Agreement.

8)      Insurance

A.       AHA shall maintain commercial general liability insurance coverage at least as
broad as Insurance Services Office( ISO) form CG 00 01, in an amount not less than

one million dollars ($ 1, 000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury,
and property damage, including without limitation, blanket contractual liability. If a
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply
separately to this project/ location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit. AHA' s general liability policies shall be primary and shall
not seek contribution from the CITY' s coverage, and be endorsed using ISO form
CG 2010( or equivalent) to provide that City and its officers, officials, employees,
and agents shall be additional insureds under such policies.

B.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies by AHA shall not
affect coverage provided the CITY.

C.       Coverage shall state that AHA insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of

the insurer' s liability.

D.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the CITY.

Page 3 of 7208



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT WITH THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION TO

PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT

ON OCTOBER 7, 2023

9)      Indemnification

A.       AHA shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers( hereafter collectively City Personnel) from and against
any and all liability, claims, damage, cost, expenses, awards, fines, judgments, and
expenses of litigation ( including, without limitation, costs, attorney fees, expert
witness fees and prevailing party fees and cost) of every nature arising out of or in
connection with the any services provided by the City or any City Personnel or their
performance of work or any failure to comply with any of the City' s duties
contained in the Agreement, except such loss or damage which was caused by the
gross or willful misconduct of City Personnel.

B.       In the event of concurrent negligence on the part of AHAor any of its officers,
directors, trustees, employees, agents or volunteers, and CITY or any of its officers,
officials, employees, agents or volunteers, the liability for any and all such claims,
demands and actions in law equity for such losses, fines, penalties, forfeiture, costs
and damages shall be apportioned under the State of California' s theory of
comparative negligence as presently established or as may be modified hereafter.

C.       If AHA rejects a tender of defense by the City or City Personnel under this
Agreement, and it is later determined that the City and City Personnel breached no
duty of care and/ or were immune from liability, AHA shall reimburse the City
and/ or City Personnel for any and all litigation expenses ( including, without
limitation, costs, attorney fees, expert witness fees and prevailing party fees and
cost). A duty of care or immunity determination may be made by a jury or a court,
including a declaratory relief determination by a court after the City and/ or City
Personnel settles a liability claim, with or without participation by AHA.

D.       The Parties acknowledge that it is not the intent of the Agreement to create a duty of
care by the City or City Personnel that they would not owe in the absence of the
Agreement. The Agreement does not create an affirmative duty of care( including,
without limitation, a duty to protect, a duty to deter and/ or a duty to intervene) by
the City or City Personnel and the absence of City Personnel is not a material breach
of this Agreement. The Parties further acknowledge that by entering into this
Agreement neither the City nor City Personnel intend to waive any immunities to
which they would be entitled in the absence of the Agreement.

10)     Inte ration of Prior Terms and Conditions

This Agreement, including all recitals, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties. This
Agreement may be amended or modified only by the mutual written agreement of the Parties. This
Agreement is invalid unless approved by the legislative body of each Party, although it may be
executed by an authorized agent of each Party. An authorized agent of the City shall be a person
specifically authorized by the legislative body of the City to execute this Agreement, at the level of
City Manager or City Attorney or equivalent. The indemnity sections shall survive termination or
expiration of this agreement.

11)     Termination

Either Party to this Agreement may for any reason terminate this Agreement at any time by giving a

Page4of7209



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT WITH THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION TO
PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT

ON OCTOBER 7, 2023

minimum of seven( 7) days' written notice to the other party. Upon termination of this Agreement as
herein provided, AHA shall have no obligation to compensate or pay the CITY except for services
provided prior to termination.

12)     Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change Orders, consents,

designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either party to the other shall be in
writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party( 1) personally served,( 2) sent
by the United States mail, postage prepaid, by certified mail ( 3) sent by private express delivery
service and addressed as follows:

To City:       City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to: City of Lathrop
Lathrop Police Department
940 River Islands Parkway
Lathrop, CA 95330

To AHA:       American Heart Association

Atm: Donna Duldulao

2007 O St.

Sacramento, CA 95811

13)     Miscellaneous

A.       Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party is required, such
approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person having the express
authority to grant such approval or consent.

B.       Contract Terms Prevail. All exhibits and this Agreement are intended to be construed as a

single document.   Should any inconsistency occur between the specific terms of this

Agreement and attached exhibits, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

C.       Non- Discrimination. No party shall employ any discriminatory practices in its performance
hereunder, including its employment practices, on the basis of sex, race, color, religion,
national origin, ancestry, age, sexual orientation, or physical and mental disability.

D.       Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed by
and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

E.       Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results from an Act of
God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

F. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

Page 5 of 7210



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT WITH THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION TO

PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT

ON OCTOBER 7, 2023

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

G.       Incorporation of Documents.   All documents constituting the Agreement documents
described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may, from time to time, be referred to
in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in the Agreement
and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

H.       Integration. This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the parties constitute the
entire Agreement between the parties concerning the Project and Work, and there are no
other prior oral or written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in this
Agreement.

I. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

J. Provision.    Any agreement,  covenant,  condition,  clause,  qualification,  restriction,

reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall define or otherwise control,

establish or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by
either party. All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to be both
covenants and conditions.

K.       Severability. The invalidity in whole or part of any provision of this Agreement shall not
void or affect the validity of any other provision of this agreement. If a court of competent
jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the
provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

L.       Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and
shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

M.       Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree that trial
of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of
San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

N.       Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms of this
Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover its reasonable costs, including
reasonable attorney' s fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the
non- prevailing party

14)     Si natures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right, power, legal
capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal
entities of the AHA and the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon
the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 6 of 7211



CITY OF LATHROP — AGREEMENT WITH THE AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION TO
PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 209 HEART & STROKE WALK EVENT
ON OCTOBER 7, 2023

In Witness Whereof, each Party to this Agreement has signed this Agreement upon the date indicated, and
agrees, for itself, its employees, officers, partners, and successors, to be fully bound by all terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

City of Lathrop: American Heart Association.:

Stephen J. Salvatore Date Donna Duldulao Date

City Manager Event Planning Director

Approved as to Form:

z. zoz3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Attest:

Teresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

Page 7 of 7212



ITEM 4. 12

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR THE

LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT RECORDS

SUPERVISOR TO ATTEND THE RIMSCON

CONFERENCE IN OCTOBER 2023

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Out- of- State Travel for
the Lathrop Police Department Records Supervisor
to Attend the RIMSCON 2023 Conference in South

Lake Tahoe, Nevada from October 9, 2023 to October

13, 2023

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop Police Department ( LPD)  utilizes RIMS by Sun Ridge Systems
RIMS) as the police department' s Computer Aided Dispatch  ( CAD)  software. The

system assists with dispatching officers and non- sworn personnel to calls for service.

Participation in the RIMSCON 2023 Conference will provide training to our Records
Supervisor for any system updates and changes, to be more proficient in RIMS, learn
different shortcuts, receive answers from the subject matter experts, and to be able

to train staff on how to navigate the system efficiently.

The cost for one staff inember to attend the RIMSCON 2023 Conference is $ 2, 800.

There is sufficient funds in the adopted FY 23- 24 budget to cover the cost of the

training.  Staff recommends City Council approve the out- of- state travel for the
Lathrop Police Department Records Supervisor to attend RIMSCON 2023 Conference
in South Lake Tahoe, Nevada from October 9, 2023 to October 13, 2023.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop Police Department utilizes RIMS by Sun Ridge Systems as the
police department' s Computer Aided Dispatch  ( CAD)  software.  RIMS assists with

dispatching officers and non- sworn personnel to calls for service, to prioritize and
record incident calls, and to identify status and locations of responders out in the
field.

Other features in RIMS include the ability for LPD staff to create and submit case and
accident reports,  store all agency subpoenas,  citations,  and offender information,

electronically transfer mandated data to the Department of Justice, and interface with
the California Law Enforcement Telecommunications Systems ( CLETS). The interface

with CLETS permits staff to verify driver' s license statuses,  vehicle statuses,

probation, warrants,  parole information,  and other pertinent information that LPD
staff and officers may need immediate access to.  Due to the complexity of the

213



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR THE LATHROP POLICE

DEPARTMENT RECORDS SUPERVISOR TO ATTEND THE RIMSCON

CONFERENCE IN OCTOBER 2023

software and the different agencies that are connected to the CAD system, updates

and changes to the software are essential.

The Records Supervisor serves as the administrator for the RIMS software.  It is

crucial for the Records Supervisor to acquire proficiency in the various features and
functions of RIMS, enabling them to effectively train staff to navigate the system
efficiently. Attending the RIMSCON 2023 Conference will provide valuable training on
the software updates and modifications scheduled throughout the next year and
ofFers networking opportunities that connect LPD with other professionals and experts
in the field.  Networking allows LPD to create and foster valuable relationships and
resources. During the conference, the Records Supervisor will have the opportunity
to provide feedback on software issues experienced by LPD and what can be
improved, work with their peers and subject matter experts to find resolutions, and
to find out what changes or updates may be coming.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

RIMSCON 2023 Conference will provide the training the Records Supervisor needs to
acquire proficiency in the various features and functions of RIMS, enabling them to
effectively train staff in navigating the system efficiently. Staff requests that the City
Council adopt resolution approving the out- of-state travel for the Lathrop Police
Department Records Supervisor to attend the RIMSCON 2023 Conference being held
in South Lake Tahoe, Nevada from October 9, 2023 to October 13, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost for the Records Supervisor to attend the RIMSCON 2023 Conference is

2, 800. There are sufficient funds in the adopted FY 23- 24 Budget.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Out- of- State Travel for the Lathrop Police Department
Records Supervisor to Attend the RIMSCON 2023 Conference in South Lake

Tahoe, Nevada from October 9, 2023 to October 13, 2023

B.       RIMSCON 2023 Conference Schedule

214



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER il, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR THE LATHROP POLICE

DEPARTMENT RECORDS SUPERVISOR TO ATTEND THE RIMSCON

CONFERENCE IN OCTOBER 2023

APPROVALS:

Z3 Z

aymond Bechler Dat

Chief of Police

j o

Cari ) ame Date

Finance Di ctor

ZY Znz3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

k  • Z3
Step en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

215



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR THE LATHROP POLICE

DEPARTMENT RECORDS SUPERVISOR TO ATTEND THE RIMSCON 2023

CONFERENCE IN SOUTH LAKE TAHOE, NEVADA FROM OCTOBER 9, 2023 TO

OCTOBER 13, 2023

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Police Department ( LPD) utilizes RIMS by Sun
Ridge Systems ( RIMS) as the police department' s Computer Aided Dispatch ( CAD)

software; and

WHEREAS, RIMS assists with dispatching officers and non- sworn personnel to
calls for service, to prioritize and record incident calls,  and to identify status and
locations of responders out in the field; and

WHEREAS, other features of RIMS include the ability for LPD staff to create
and submit case and accident reports,  store all agency subpoenas, citations,  and

offender information,  electronically transfer mandated data to the Department of
Justice,  and interface with the California Law Enforcement Telecommunications

Systems ( CLETS); and

WHEREAS, the Records Supervisor serves as the administrator for LPD' s RIMS

software, and it is crucial for the Records Supervisor to acquire proficiency in the
various features and functions of RIMS, enabling them to efFectively train staff to
navigate the system efficiently; and

WHEREAS,  attending the RIMSCON 2023 Conference will provide valuable
training on the software updates and modifications throughout the year and offers
networking opportunities that connect our department with other professionals and
experts in the field; and

WHEREAS,  during the conference,  the Records Supervisor will have the

opportunity to provide feedback on software issues experienced by LPD and what can
be improved, work with their peers and the subject matter experts to find resolutions,
and to find out what changes or updates may be coming; and

WHEREAS, the cost for the Records Supervisor to attend the RIMSCON 2023

Conference is $ 2, 800. There are sufficient funds in the adopted FY 23- 24 Budget.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the out- of- state travel for the Lathrop Police

Department Records Supervisor to attend the RIMSCON 2023 Conference in South

Lake Tahoe, Nevada from October 9, 2023 through October 13, 2023.

216



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of September
2023, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

217



a

v
c

J
C

LL C

C C al
6 f0 Vl         

C
C

m N

V
m TL

U

Z

CNU1

t10      C OH °      ~     3        c    no i c       o v 3      
o v     '+  ° a   c v c       +'      3 c c  „

Vf O' 
N " C       

i N v  Q ta in O .     '  O        L

N ro ra O OA 3   ` n
ta C 3    n p     T n    O

3      `           ,      o        v
F=     + a

c           °;  i
o o    o c   c           on Q   a L

o  `  o     - a          v

v   +     •  ,  ca       c co     ,      u C     Q     ` p c
p

n
O  `-     cLo      ',     41 pp      O U p

Vf O       
U       tE O

o o `

L a - a      on     Q o    E    c        on  .,     a  i   a, 

ab v •           v -   
v        m v    L     >' • c    

N     ° c o c E 
ra o    . c E c  

v v        v          

a o; o    
o E       ;  ai 3         `" s

aci

Q `     -
a   s       '>   v a

m v v ao n v on,.-  ° 2S ca       v },  
c       v  "   c

0o L n Q o o            a  '-,  v m c     >  . 
v u        •   o

c ro u        ,-   ca     ,         ro on    co o
X c ,..,     N cn   s E

i     + •°+-° m z a;     o c   N           v ao o       Q v ca  o   3 E
Iyp u     ,      0  n

N •  
v f-.  cn     ,

n .   
u c  • N

p

N     ' N x •`-' 
J         fl' 

co c"o ai      0 3 c  ^ n ° C '  ,°'„   
on +•     .-

u v          ao  v ai ao +' -
a  "  

a` 
H v    o '     v   o

C Y u  ;        • ,° 1 v u 5 af6i `^   F-  ° n    . s            v   v  
v c L       —  c i v w v

L,    

O "_  
l0 ,  41 C C O z         V      

v E      •-,   N       N ` V) 

M
w v o    3 c     `°  `°  E        v v -a 3°   c o               

a  "  v m oC v v       E     +,  Q     >    c m
v r-     o - a a c     - a   en —

N O co - o Z =o 0 0     o                v
X ',     v p c   a

O V Q v             ..,   o    v       c p in    a         ° J            ;. -
a  

N o   Q  Q 3     
o       — = 

a   Q s        
v       v L v o

Z L 1
c.         

o •   " _ 3 .   o +.'     
o '  o       c 3 •

O v i c n L cò        
a i c  >  a     °° 3   °   a 3       E n     o

V     a, m v   v c E   v o c c on       -     .   
o

0 o v  
N C V " O

N cn          y Q- 
C .

0 L     G1 Y C i N     a1 U1  
C ( p vi 61 C            a r6 .   ++   a-' Q N  L s

C    ••
L C      —    c0   

C  (
p S]. 6 Q +-'

C

Q          
N v

io
N    '      c

o c

c c

a o n
on

O o
y      •   ca a o

0 3
g a C7 o

Q
C p,  

Co c ' n oA
a  

i
p N C G1

0
m

ca U
U C C

a0 v i U O

m

c- i N

W W O O

U Q Q

N O 4J l0

p
O S O 2

V fD c 6 c
N N

v

Q

v v
o

rn rn

M
O O O O O

O O O O O
O O O O O

218



a,   

YU V O c p

C Z
TC C

U1 vf C

C a1
rO

m

L
t C L

O G1 U
N

O1
O C

U J

c s v  .     3 H ao
v

a

o L n      c N  >           v       c m   t
v i

o    v      ;     '
a      o     °° eao  

v       > u      u fO
00  Q C O C

o

C
r0   U G) Y c ca         al

J O
C  ( 6 u   N cn fl- '   in

c0       
C    3 O     ? Q L tC N     +

L.+ O v       " fl- t II          "
a   Q-           + if  " Orp O      n     

p  ( 0 ++   vf
in L 6J   +  C         v 00              

i 0          r6

vUi      `'       p     .   ;   c ca  
s a f6

N ai       o        o v =  
n      `°       c °

c >      3 '           u v     o       ..       N
t o 3 —           t v o_

c C O C a       
CD cn  ' n     n aJ

t''    
v ++      a+

0
v N v

p    
U  

n  .     ,  N  

O        y -
G

y           pp O               C -
6  n e c0 O p v ',   

a+  ].  .

a       o            o o   , v Y v ' a,     
o     o       o  ,  o       , o u     o

v        *'      t oc o 0 o v - o N • v on       - a  "  °   o m u '  v  -a a u 
V          H                  a+  

V .  
N        C v = J

L       n „    Q
N   '

4.+  
O

c° v              v         ca       L  ° o   z            c c 3 NU
3     .

L   `             
fl-

o o           '
a  , 

vi ai cai a  ' °  v  ° 
L 3 '     ''^     - a v v  '^ ` o c     v

c
a u n   o

U1        Ul j C C       ? N   -+   Q1 L          [ 6        L            N V fD Y
3 v          v

3
z    v u c o ao a v , on

c in       '      u v    ' t

u - a       a        v       c o-   v • c o               3  `'-° •°         a E
Q v      3  ' o ,`-'

s     °
1 -

o       a; Q     a
o      •       >  v  ° D

co       o  °-  
v

o o 

ai v     "  `°  °'      
c N  °'  °  - a     ^  o  c  , s., s        a  °'       c s a      c o a

u       v  ; a,           ° 7   

c o   
ra n ' o v =        v a       a;   •   o  - a     o 0

v c v o a

o y      
a w Q u rc

f°  +     a ì  c c - a +         Q c . v c     " .c  
c o           •     g c         a o c   «  3 0 0        v     °  +  a

N            
J

VI  —     N c6 L  [
0       c9 j Q 4/  h.0

a v 3   E           u Y  L y   ,      s v
a 3  n v c 3 w , ao

3                 O    O   '        v t             L O      L   
N        

Q     +     
n C pJ

Q-  +_  v p       +,,    c.      C C  C
to

Lai      N v ?      
C      .^'     

L
v i

Q- - f6a ai a
c a'     

v

C

t a`°i o°1n 3YC L C       C       
m U 7     3

N C

J ` J

tk C       C

J tl0 a O
C

N O n L
Y ()  N c.>    a+

v i n     c`Jo L°

r`• U o-    
m c   a E a p

ai ro o         
c

c o

v m  a ,       v o u

3
N J z N

v z v3i o
Z O iSn w

1
L

Q lJ

L U v
v

n

m v
p p 0

O O
n U W U
m v v

2 2 O 0 S O

O a O O

ro ra
F—  

ra

C N
N

l

O O O
O O O

O O O O O O

00 Q i Oi O O O
O O O c-    ci c- I

219



a,

v
t

V1 U

C LL
v m

v C V
L

m
C L

U j,       
aJ C

m

41 YU
Z

U
C

NNN

N N C   vi  
L L

s o  °.       a o C°     
a°  

a i
ai a   ai      a Y '  v     '^     °  a s

O
N N     ' f    C      `     N +'  N O j U 7   N . 0 N    vYi        `

pO
9 ni      ++ G!     C

V v L L     O       N _      fQ      a`    [ 6 E        3    C Y c9 Nc c vif6̀    

C
a.. 1 O pp    Q          yr ` •, F,      W        p

v       , 
p tn

v i
C  

N

o    o     Z          ^     `                    $  N c
u4    -

o      oc  
L n in    O C C       

7
O C      ` p 3    61 vf

v i         Q a1    . 0 C C
v n o         I o ra - o u o  '     o  }'      '     . 1 a o             

a •
Q v u     `     •    

cc

f6
L •'^        a i n       '   

3
c°o       v c o =  O    '^   v o a .`— w,      v N v ra

u a  >          
c •-  o

Q      .   L ._., c o .           
LL     E        3

n      
M1•  

a         v        3     E     +°     - a N E       0 3 v  ~'   "         a v       ° na v o
0

Q      a ra    ,    v c
3      

v     " _  ,  v '`   ^      p •    ,. s     '  "

r"a ra o   
a i `      -  o     >.      .°  v         v    n o v o-c     . U c     T 3 v    

c     °, c    o `  v       ai ai   v i        ' c  ,N     c   E   "  v `   ai      u   "„   c _o     ; F v c
v a oc Q t   v i o       3     n       o o   o  v •°        '^ a      aai         °

T = a  a
v     '  o   a       

o o ' g       - o ao o +     ra
v       ,  0 6    cn v     +..

v  a    ai v c   .      ,   v  .   +.     a 'a caa
co v u 0 L

v oc v ai    «-  ai   z ai a   ao ,,  '^   3      
p —            s

v a   o L     . 
s v  >-  c     °     a.     c Y . n

v  °    o '   ¢     +  c 3 c v c v  '_'

p    . D ' 7  '       N L    L a)     3    v    v O C N u c',"'0
C O        L O +'  v Uj T    +

L+   3

a i
f0

a i 3              s °° o c       •> • n ' +_'         °  3
a6̀i a °'' '        3 ai on v c       a   s

o E Q     o c 3 v           o - a            c v Y u - a

a     -°      -   3 E
a

L
v s

Q         °   
w -°  m a         3 "  = a       o  '^  c

v c v 3 o v Y a       v     - ' o.     o o  '      c     °  o v v     p o =a  a

c o  °
0       

c      -     r n     >

c             
3 +,  c

w u v n   - o '>     Y   u

on  o      c Q.       °              °;       
c `•' 

p    ceno
ra  - a 3  - vo v ao-i   n

o     c  -    - o = 'c a N Y     - o v        
c c   ro c     •     

u o          f6

v ra  
o o c LL  a r v m o°. o 0 -

o
v '  a `^     . S 3 

lo   u
y,,       

L +-'  i a          L .`, C       C j
I—     v F—    cp     ,     Q >

3
a

v c Z

c
v

a c o

E o t +,

w

0

N
J

N

C O
C

v tii
r4 a O     O

pc c n Q a

a'i N

vi m C i i to N

Q
z 3 N

o g

m
c l m

O O O

Q Q
W

L

O 2 2 O 2

H C H
m

V1 N C ln

4J

Ln Lfl L! 1 Ln Ln L! 1

O a-- i a-- I c- I I a-- I

a- i c- I e- i I ei e- 1

i i

O O O
O O O

c- I a-- 1 r- I c- i c-    c- I

220



v
y L

t U
U

Y

C C C
v

C C C 4J z

NU

3 m U
m

N

C
C N
J N

f0 v1
N

QN  N N   O C O       hC0
c  in    v C  U u a

L
p

W   C + ' O a \ 7 ' a C co "
O O ` C

0 3 z E m
Q

o
on o- a   a o v  >  o           

O   -
o on      O on N v   v O   

a i O  - L U     v a

Y     LL .  y .°_° p v  ° 1 -
o '

c  - 
v;  

3 vi E   p  c
v .

m v  .
c     +

o       o       c Q c       g    a Q  o          

a a c N v    ai U aUi   „     .  o  °   $  r ò        o oc o H.
T.   ,     o . 3    ~     m

E v    °  v   +     `-    
v  °        v oo v a  c }'      ; N             o

G1 f0        LL N '      C d'  V1  ( p t'
a       

N ''  v   " O        vi UJ rp '  7  `^   N ra  `^ *'  
C

vi       O  . N   n C
n          Y LL     ;  U                f0 0

n Q C       [ O

ai     ° >, o
n f0 c °     Q       v a            >     

a °  ° J     ° v   •  
u

o v y v          v v  • : a           -        3

T    ,  C
3

O }, `  
v  

O U         
rp    

C  '^   ..     
N      v C O       O          J

N     `^  v      co o - a
c      - a n t

a     ,,        •°'  o o        °'  >  '^     
v       °°   ai a •`—' a a m v v .     +'   -

a
c

o  "  ?  
ro

J  - .-     °° 

v  •  a  ,  
o   N v  

p  "
a on s   3 o rc v p_   v v N v  °     c . N o -°  oc     `

n

p c `-  v C    7      +   O        - a o p 0
m .     C p      - p  .      

C •    . L C vi
0

61      • 

w  °  v
a

ra 3 o v         v •+,     -
a E    o       

o  ,          oc
a Q v c v v ;     a . r v      c

p v    \ ! 6 CJ v)  . / f 61 U  "  f6    v1 c0 L v1
v

L    Q N    aJ a-+      
N 7 y

O       + .        d i-     ++  3    C
C

f6
N            

y
U   N L  ' D CD O1 N U    V

N cn C +'  v     =  3       U vVi O       L
w p       i N C       n •   n N f6 C

N 7 '   
LL

C 7 N 3  (
0 O    C         v    

C N      GJ C  ++       i

C +'        L N O - p C        > a u C a1         G.   C C p V p U Q     
a      U    a i         °'  a`°i   

f0 '

3   c          o Q    ``°  
a  °     "    

c  - a     °

U Y

o' c   N       
E

v . ' c   —     = o L
v '

o o',o 3   = t       co

o ou o o    c o +  

v i   
a

c  ro 3     °'     ca

g .             
Y

o . .'         

o   o .'_^     ai V a ca 3  °      c     

u c o a L       
ao o - o - a i     a u o       -     ro

rò >  
v > s    t       ro

u ai a + t 'a
U

a C ~
r a

o
c

V Q O O
ra aj co E U

n J c      3
0 0 a c n

2S c o      m

z
Q  

o N o
o

c      I c  I  +  v     o

o o  °      a,       o           3 0
o  ' Q   Q          a v o

a oc v v -o  c a,       
v

a, n

a i . 

N

ii   v Ev U
aai

o

v v c
n

Y
o o

ai

i-- I N

O O

U
w

U fl Q

O Y O S O 2
O

H
O       

H F       
C C

C tn n
O1

l

ci cYf M M
c- I I 1 i a-- I e- i

i i i i

O O O O O O
O O O O O O

r'A m m M M
e- i ci r- I r- I I ci

221



C C C

C 4J c0 C

v
a v

7

U m

7

G

tn C v      N       
O L

C
V I N       V N S]  O 0 .  ? a1

L      '     a
a,    u          c a ._ + v

o      c
v

L c o   -      a v     

f6

E
v

v o v +   E     - a Q  :      t „   
m "  

i U L a ln +.. 1  n  

N Q a„           

lA'   E t v      GJ          C  ( 0 L N
Y O O

v 3 0 o               o  -

y        o 0 0   •       - 
v  ,   c a

Y        O  ` 1 y   n     . a "'  p_ L        N    0 i^       a N    
a1 w=

s
v   _  3     

m       u

a             ` 
n Y v°

J,  -    °  
ra       ` • • v,  

O
a

oc v    '     

3   v 3      v     ,., +            
a

c ai v N o -  t c   ,  s v      N a   
f0 O            L   '       N  J J       `          

V T n a o 0 3 a a,         U d v    
v     

Q   v i c  `-       v E v ai u v s a      , cn N        o
fl- +  

a ai
E a u v vw + u o n 

n
ca  `

0  >  u      . y         `   - -  v      °   
N

3       =  
ro c

6.
i  °

i  ° ;

a a v s o     + 3     - a 3   o v 3       
Q_ O C ' 3 N O Q   6 V    

a VI

L +     J UJ   ?             
L    Q    C

v
u  ' o     - o a                3 30      >  '^ Y                +   ro

ai       E a,        v
o n `  Q a   v a;  o      X - a  , .    o

o +,  3
Q c •` o  - a     > 

s   L   ra v  °  u 3 v      T   o  '

a     = '        •°-,° . n          3 3   a,     y co          t o s  

p a       a' '       v - B v c     a c u   v a      - a _       v
1 f6

C       
f6   "     C  ( 6

C O        C m O U       N V    (
Q

v a     ,     o a     ,        c o v
a  - 

o
a      "'  '^   a

t +'  c     '    v  -      -  - a v  ,  °-     p  Q a v o  
m      .      - v 3 n  n °U U  

o a,     ° 1  >_ 

c

Q 4J
V i N f6 vtn UJ

v f0
UO      + .

v—i aL.+     N U     C N G —  >
n >     y  

C        v1  L      0

Y C       tn O v    p V a'  3 v
U p

r0 C   m
N    C n       C

L      a-'   Y C      C O V
v • 3

f—
U c     —    ra 

L

J O
C

L)   f6O

C
p UVJ C O

Q U 6 C pJ 3 L
a

ei

u Q 3k

y L

N y O
C L C  0  C  

O O
L       L. L C fO L y l/ 1

m
V

UJ C p X i

ln N
W

L

i
N U       

pal
LL

f0

ri M ei

O O O
W U

6 6 N 6

2
O

2 O 2

O O O
C C C

O 6 l6

N N N

L! 1 L! 1 N L! 1

a-- I i-- I c- 1 c- I c- I

O O O O O

c- I ci c- I c- i ci

222



L

U

U

Z

N

c O C N v
J"    U

c c     U
v i U m c

N C

N  —      

L

U

ctO

a   v

0 0 •     c .      g
o        

a i    c`"o

c vi >  a     a  '^  v E      v pq co        v °  c

a o         m ra E c E v
n +. •  v  `

o a'i
a         . co t v  . v c ca o   LL vi
vi      

C    [
6

U U i  
L.+   

v-   
V N H v1  >

v v
3       c    >   `

a
e o ao a  

c   .    o o z            Q„ ° c° p  n
v     a =   c

v •  °
1  ,     

m       v   ` LL v             •,  - 

e 3         v,       o    -       on c ` .
O .       C aL- ' i tp p vf cn  p     .,  C   d   ++  C      C

U w  L a.      O t    ỳ   c      ra   N    O —        ,  to e v

in GJ      >'    +'     ,  pp     '   
r6 61 y

a-+ .. Q Q a-+ " O O ' p

@ = • 3        
c

3  .   c      m     '  -°    3 Q
v       v   u

a c  3 u   .  a 3 m o  -
o - a        •  a o      n     , },     c

N      
Y    

N          c6 _
O - p ++  a

N L y    QJ L U        3 ±' L

C   O 3    V C C ++  n p in        

C  C C _           ++ 
O

a-,  a n         on •   ro >'     -+     3 a        n N  n

oo       
v     ', • •  `°     v  n o o e

o ro     N  

m c ra    = o v  `  o -°      N on fl- °'     Q' v           E  m

3 m` o
N a     °      

o o  `      ,  
v   v o

o

c       °° J'  o '

o v       T
N  ° •  

o    v       v v  °°          N      3

ro   °           ; c  `o o L    u c     '> -     Q o °  o  
c o co co     `"  a     

ai      a  m v     ' u E  '^  3 c      ,       
m on ,  3          

N   + a;
u ai

m
a         3 co

cv    _° o  . 3
c a .c  

v c c  ;     L -
o o v r    c       ou o v

3      
in p          

41      O C al O ` s U

0  °  °'     s c  °'  0  "  
a>i        c       o    ,

Q v,        
v i ,

o +    c    3 - a     o      —     c u T o
v        v   a

a s ai . •`—'        v

a     ,  c ro v o , v `  3 '>  v c T   p       0 3
t L Vj Y N   C  '   C f6 '  C a+  ( 0 Lif

u p_ 4J - O       p1   .   U        
V _

C C      }, J
y

N
O

OC       C N p .  3

HO
L

U

C C O v
LL

C     N O
C f9

U J N     Q 7

H     

U    U  
co p V

U U

p.       Z

O

N N

N M
L

LQ QL L

6 d

0

6 6
L L

C C

cn

C
lD lD t       t0
e- i a-- I ci ci

i

O O O O
O O O

ci c-       c- I i

223



0m
v

o

U

uz

C

N

CLO

in a+   O

O pp -     O      O C  O 7
p_     L           d       O

O
O

N O +'  i O.   —  v+
V   {'

a "  O - j     'y '     C0
p U      U Q      L      C

OU1 O pp N C 3 N p t
a     

a .°1c   
z

3 —  •
J

cn cu v 3 ._ .
U   

V         t i1 N . 0 OD
7   

p.    m v°Ji  . i   c ' o o,     a      °
v     LL U1 - O

J
r0 C N    ' a V1 O i^L c6

Q Up      .+  O Cf O   
N O 3 V1 y  N          C  / j

N V r"  

N    T "O N p.        

d p Y  1 =     O   U   
tn 3 a'' -

p   +.+ N    - 6 j cp̀  
c9 C    .      U1 O    a

M    N    - L Q OC pCp   p ++
N    v +  v vi

o +-' roai     — . ai v    ,  cV
cn a`,  v°Ji 3  ° D "    -

a T o

Z  `    3    c        •   3 a
O vi

f6     v o c       °,' '  °' - a

V Q
c  3 3    c_l _

O Q        >  l6

a 3      v         o o  -°
O N       - O f6 N    N U +   

C

a C - LS
6

C          
C v  C      +

L,+     C L Y N 
N L cO 7 v      . " O 

a

Y     •
o v

N
v

v n ,
a c 

O a
Y v
a      •  T o

v

3

O U 0
i ++N

G

m
Q

M

m

Q Q

0

O 2

tcoF—  
co

O O
m

o 0
0 0

224



a

v

sU
T

L
C

m C

al C v

O A

m
ra

c

J

Vf GU' II 40 a... '-''  ! 6    = `  C . +
N+     " _  

O N C         GJ

c  c  •  
3 y co + c c°   3 3 v    c a v 3 c

a>i c v m 
v ro co  `^     on c v +,  c  °

J     '
u +_ Q.   i c         3 u     + J

a;   s o  Q `°  ?  ai    
v u    3 3

m  "    c   o
3  o a, °

0 E    >   }'  co n   o v o y N a v

a a  c v u      '    a   c     .   c  n D  .

c           v  >    o c
3 n to   .         to O ' O - p    L  ` 1    ra  n    `  n p LL             0 0  L            Q v

i^  N
n O -  vi v i

M N —  
f6         fl- ,_  `^ +  C ''' +   .  y       Q    ,          y,,  c.l C Q 00

VN . r `'  
cE p U1 t6  V V  n  >' in C to '  O C

U
N    C      '     ta w L " O          m —  7 3,, Q

o      
m +-•     ,  , -

a  ,  v o       v o o
a      +  o v v 1 3 "'    

v e >   c u °  u - a o 3  +   o    
a u    -                       3  °

J

o
L L      v •   3 a,    v    ,  o             °-     a,     a      v        3    a,   >.

C    Gl N a.. 1 v E       U L   7    C
Q .  

O . 0 UJ E Y    O GD UJ •`  { n C ; C C fO C C ,,.C ta U O_ •       ai N

o Q °' o
a      *'   oD oD °  a c c v      ,`  c'i Q m °  +  v01i          a j v v o ai a   s a1 v

tn ,[    O C     3 00  a''  

C   ' + L'  
tUif   T f0   N +.+ O L        L       N C

L C  
i

a-_+ L C
Y

61   +' "
6     O ;'      C

F'    
C

u  °  a@ v 3
3  o o    3 ' . v +' 

v v  o  m 3 6 3 Q a     o       v  . o v
C   tn   .     ' a - a     O ++     n  ` 1    3

7   3 N _ L   >,       C   " a  >,    
a

0 C + -
fl

c   o   , - d c       c c > v    3      m o z m          y  •       o
t c v n m o N  ° _ };  •  o c

ai v 3 Q- f°         °'  c E          ^ o    o 
v  u 3   u a      >  p p t v p E   c     '^     

a"' 

vi  N          C C v   7    Q-   - O    t Y A '~     C     . n U 
N..  

O          U     
7

v  a o p y  - a `~  
3  '  n     .-  ra +  

o
u 3     -     

n    co           `^ >  
ai  '^ 

a
aEi o •+; 3 ca o'   m o u   +

s  o   = v          o N     o     c ,°'

4.+    L V1 V1  '  C.. 1         ( O      QJ Q)  
O N 0      ( 6 ++ U         

U N V1 N U ,

N v  a 3 0 0    "' •       a-i
E "    c

a       y v m v v ra    
a o

o    Q u u        . u u    o   a;   .  o E v t  
J  >.   Vl V G C     *' 6 Vl i

i

4'.  
Q y p     {..

C   Y F       ra     " a O  O 0             C Y C N V  `   p3 L v a,    p     •   w

Q
N

U        v O

vc     i

n c'i
v`-   

a ra
ci= a

a a 3 0
T       C    Z ' in

n G1O a      0 i. N
a c. L fp

U       
L>

O a1

a` N

m
N

N

W u
L

0

O

C

rV̂

0

Q 0

225



YU
Z a.   L

C v\i N cV
C i C

N J

L

m
O

O p V

O

N
m

C
J

7 q.0     
O a vi 41           

F-     U ' V1 fC6
f0 0 Y N J U N        }' 

Vf      a- 

vi          C  ^ 
N in U        —  to

c9     _ l O r6 N •       N - O
o     .          

v     .   
a        ra a     +  3        n 3 o v  '  v*'i 3 v

a o           o o c     ,     3       
a       

c    `      
g ',     

oc   E     - a a, -  o  . a, 
f0     *' +-' '

c          "  o cnm       av      n  `°      .  
o 0 3   •   >     '> 

r°     
n

v c.Ti . c  n a   `  n     •           + v 3 . c t v cc
Q          UJ       3p       v 3       C         - Y N        h0    ++  41 T 7  ^     C   n y

N  `  v

v     •`'          F' Lvi          
m -      

ovn   E
onm  '"      6 .     o         v  ò     •  c E   

o v m o c           o m Q v , a;        "            aai    c       `°       °  E *' L =  `
T°

c L
vi      - o              uo v,    ,-       v

r      +-'     
v v

v c +'  3 E
ro +-       p        `               n    . n T . v V             ca • C      +'.+  C , 0   

a  aQ C
y t0 C p  c6 t0     v= p    in — ++

UJ  .

0        .   UA y

O
v     

C

p 00   

U    '_      L -+     O - p       C C V    

N C v 4-+  C C tn
c0 CU     `  C N     tn ++      v L C

N       °       n c  ' c o              ' c 3 o v        '     v   3   Q o '  
m   LL v 3

a,  ro rn : a        '+ •—  o o Y  ^      
c - a       ,  o L      3      3

r0 U       Q Y V      [ 0 O        C O N        N  n a1 N          
E N C  '  V C

c
aUi

v     =     o ai     `
n  ;        `°       `  f°   

u  • }'      -°       Q n s ai .*—'' v a"i ai c

v       o Q               ,         fl-     o . ' 3 a v c a °  u ai      3   c o a  - o

C dj      Y  [ O : F+     
V

O —  C C C
O fDN       Y    c a     v       > 3

f6          

p = •«     ai L     '> c o v ro
0 N N N C

4-

a O   co     " O              U       0 W               Q   v     Q  p   O
ro ++

0

o          Q       ° v;            v, . c         v o , Q Q       v       - a 3 c       v  

a v c     ;.        Q •   o     . , a •     -
o  ;  o v v,  >.  +,  u  >' ;,_

v v
v     o +      -

a 3 - o ca   -
o               `  Q    - a v,          , .`

a
v~i v         s c

y        +  v v      -  v     .   
o

v c co   o a :c ro
c       3       —     3  °      - o v m      ' u v c       c a      °' a a +' u
v     .   y m v c e v

N Q v n c c         E
c°      c ac

z u N v  °          H        
aò 

o2S N

3 c     °
1

cn

m

Z o0
c  `*'^     

N - '    
o

t/)     
C J

U Vf
J  

a+  C n N Y 3
cLO

N
N

a
a O H

Z

r m      
O

C v      

3 a    c a ai

L

n a a     o 

cn Z y U     tn

U
c

M N

m L U1

O O O

Q U

0 v f6 UJ f0 Y
2 O 2 O 2 p

s t

ra
H fl

N N cv
C7

v v v
rn o o ,      o o 1

o 1

0 0 0 o

226



a,

N o v a
c cv v

s
C L t U C

G N
y

3 o v o
m U

O L N co T
U

p C 7

C

J

N
C

C

O       v O pp 1 O

C a ,C
y.

T,                
la OC p

C

v            C           Q L _        vi 0
p     O

L       f6 N i
V   

s..

m a      3 -      a           + ao v,     — +      „

vi N ++  n L          41 C L p Y t6 C C      - 6     -
6

N N

o
a          o '  n         , c n     . n      m           

on `~      ° v c  
c a     v c 3
Q N    

v           o v  '       

c v       v       ò E     ' c               , F  +  o
w  >      

o
0 o a

a 3 c aE
Q         

v'   `"         •      o v c E      °     F`- t       >     a i ro 

v        o       c         °      . o   ,      o       •°          T v v E v v
a   c

m       v on          - a c
o  `               

a o u 
i ++       `-  V •           `~ L C •       i aJ U

C u ro p 7     n  n

N       7      `       O Y            L        
N        

h0 ca        O     N
N L N 

o o  °' a;  o- v       ,  
L v      on  N c   - a c u p       ` 1            

oc - o
co a  a,  o

v      ,=  ao —      a      , o   c      m  

N       3   v ro ;.. N      N c o o , c                    N     `°      Q a.        o oc °;     o Z m
c       L        C L        

L

C

U    

C
V N tn

L       ;,  f0 U1 a U L 41 Q_      t% L

ro       •'^  v i O         a       n       
O y C O  `    

C
v     —   C

v o   3       —     3 3        o   ;      v        ,     u     v a        v o    '3 m v

t p L 7
Q c     v i      ., 

p       •      
a     ._             >  n        c'a             3 ``  r`"a

v L            v o   Y        ,-      3
ai      °      

a     , e a Q  "     ;  v

Q1   v o v      '         °   3 a z      v o  °           ,   ,
in    3 U •

N
O p d O          

3 v i o           
o    Q v

s
Q 3                   

o          3  ,    3   N a          - a
h      °;     a .c v

v     -
a v -°  v v u ai            °

1 o on c
c ra  =       v           u      — c      — on s

y v CC 3       '     L v U ' O " O
C

c a) n C ni C " O
C i a+   N

c0   
v          

a
c

J       
a 

N a tyi     

L c N 3 a`,

o

v 0 v L N v     c u,

Z
v i t C N 1] 0      C N

CO N vf a p — N
C    al C

N t/ f c0 i    O
m - p pp C , C U1 U    

p
t/ 1 C O  vYi L O x

V        
fII a) 

C
N Q

LL W

f— U 

Q
N

Q i,     
N a

Q
a a

m

m

m o o m

a u u a s
i o o o o
p

L L L L

H H H

N N N

r- I e- i r- I

c-- I rl a-- I c- I c- I t-- I 1

O O O O O O O
O O O O O O O
o i m m m m

227



a

v

cU
L

C

G y v f6

C C
i'     O

f6 T

C.)    
C O
C CO

m v

4

C
L

O

O

y

m o   -  ;    •     c s o

a

3 c    a >
a    v  =     _      +'  E     o o .

n a  a v
n u o o a,       ao   c o o c co  ;   oc en v      n

J N
L s . + . a +     oo p . o    

Y - a c
N 3            •  

N'     '  °   v       
Q s v . *.'  ° a .       0       p c a  `     O v NU

v              3 - o       - u,     -
a N o o h o .  >. 3 Q- Y - o

o          v c     v v v Y v       ai       '~  '-  c L          v

U o v u c  v         a a  o          .   p o   u v      o     
n     ,., w-  o o            c y

3 v Q L   3 v,     ,      o x Q L      
v

o ,  3 0       
Y L u v a        ,     o        v v

v z       v             
3

3
u o  ° 1 p    v o  `° •= o                      : a        `     o   n - o       v  v

d  

v C N            ` 1   a.+     tn Q V L- L    
C       i  > 

n d +  C  
v c  >   

v o
f°      

3 v   - a    3      >    ' c c v          "- ,  
fl-    ,,..    o  ,     o  ;  , c

Q. 
J  `n

N N C N C    N            O  n v N f0 O       O O  '  v     ++  N N N
3     i  `

0  
o T ,       c ' p co ra         in p

u a     ,       '+     n  n n c

V U   QJ
Y

L L U QI  (
O a L C 3 C 3 7 fQ X O

O O p
C U   

Q      \    
3                O    v p ,  u 7 L 0      

O   v '.:.

a •`  ,  
v ,,,   

3 L     (7 v E on .    a
Q        '  `"  a ~       `.'° N o

c      m co - o   °° z v  -'   m -      ai a c      a        ° 1
afDi 3    on     >   o vv    M ' U    C ca p t

N C     ?      
O     ` w  —  C N      

N v u     '
n-

N°  `

n   +
J

Y v      v v v      s a 3  °  di       v v •
c g 3 a v c u  a

Q ro       ai    c v .       o m            c ^          v '  - a c o c o      ' ra +-  c

p Q- 4J c  O_ O 41    ' D c/ f     O O h.0
y L L aJ      ' N OJ `     O     6

v C T 2     " 6 v         Q T '++       a-     +-' +_'  " O cn cn t0 ++

a    = a o •   H o ,  o
a     .  co e c      ' 3       Y      Q c     

u  , ,.  ;    Q c   
v  + o v co - a u     —     o a     ,  u o E  

J       v o   r E ai 3 > u v o       3   v      S°   ac 3 v a 3
v    u c      s      o c      o vi v  v      -     

a i v t
o     

c            ,,,      

v v v     , n  > 
in

a
a    

Q
a c      a v 

0
i

a N
f6 U L i     N

U a v
o z o O  s
o        o     

Y     
C

N 0 C C          i

N '
6

p    v    

N  •(

0           
N

c
y   

Q   v F-      0

00 C    N
v G1 Q II

C
0

v i        

a

N
LL

N i a-- I

00

w U Q U
Y N f6 N N
O O 2 O O

p L L L

H H H

N N

l)

l      V1 tD tD
r- i 1 i ci e- i i

i i i i

O e i Q Q Q 0
M M A V1 L/ 1 1p
c- I ci c- I c- I rl c- I

228



i O
O

O

U
L

OO
LL

N

L

r6 f6

N
t v

6
J

C O
C

41 N

lJJ

O

Tt'      C
r U O

O
V/     

Q
O v

E O
o t

o v,

L

M          -        
N
O         N

y y„_
o v

Z
Oi t

m a

V/     t C5 a   

V         
oC

I C

3

jU c v, o°   

i         o d '  ;   
y a.. :  ,   p   '

c'   v-i    °
oc rts v

2

i      
G      m

o 3

Q
M v'       N

0   _ U O c

V

CC O N C

t N   • v+  
O       U O    ...   

0    -   4J U    n

N     

V1 p       00    

C      Ol Y      
v   .   v

N L

y v
v           m             a                

a, p       `^  a N O a
v    `^   V W

C C     l_J      
J    6 U H J

I     .

j        -^   Q V a        p   
L

a Z
o          o   `"    o       Q

a,

N 0
ln d v ln   Q      " d V1 N      i

pt i v          _           C        C       U     7

GJ   +'   L i 00 7 GJ GJ N O

CO OC LL J OC      00         OC     V

Q Q

O Q

OO
fl-

r6 r6 r6    
o    6    a Q Q       Q Q O Q     

p Q 0
O O U1 O      0 O O      O     

M M O
O M O

M O O M

I   00 O               c-    Q N M
0

v1 Q
O N O
O M M

N O

229



s.

N

n t0 N
L

vf          V vf   N
C      01   L

Z  o a    aTi o f6      

e O ro      E v
ii     -        

a`       w  =  w
a a       j         a

a       v  
v

ro  +'            
L

tn r6              O GJ     s     
Gp          o S m T v     rII

U U J
t

V

O

pC C

Y O
CN

tXt
Y

3 Y-      O U

q '  O O Y m

Q7 + r3 v  
N

N 

C       ~     y
vt ty '       n p  n n  

j '      `'          +-     6

N d   ,       O           O O  
w N   > N

O o o  
N

n n         ++     n O
QJ :.       _  , v N C C    l

U
O   , ,   O   V O O    

4J H         vi v  vNi v i    N

N C 1 , ',     Oi ., 7    3 Ol t
V          U      V  .  U    i

T n = v  n in =  O

G t3    
6 '  -  

t6
O       : p  ^ p t6 C

N
v     

s-.  '"`      `      i v i i-  L NL

O
w"` '.

4. 3 -.   O
O   '    

O 3 O
O  +"+

C .' n     >,         T O O
ra in C3 U O tC O       , C O  +

w   , 1
sn ' ;   C i^  ` _    C a rp

H
v

L   _ y .   y    (  ( Q   L        v      
O   [ t n OCS in° ` L.    CO N V1 U m  00 in r6

N
N

v      

I

O    +-'       tn O l

r0

a i   , o Q-       
ai

a Qc
v    a       

n o      c
o

Q U    N        A O

Y
6 f+   -Q      7 i tn i

n I     OC
U      - p p v-

O
U 1 v-

p    `   p C   .       ' O    , 
l    ra O

c       v,  3 3 v o   , n v o    
a v

v     Z z a a    +- H
c

c a
i tn vf    `

p
O N 0

V1           

fYC   ++      -
a lL1 YO m U i

6    ( 6 Q
v L   .            

iv m         >      m
z

a

E        E E E        E E           
6    6    6

t6    6    Q    6    6
Q

N

O O O O O
O O O

O N O M O          

I   00 O             
Q

tI1

230



a

i.

M
a

N vi  —                a       —    ++   N     +   

aJ     v       `^  Y N         N      

a1 L               O                i 41     Z     Q     N

V
ro               O W  =   ra    +       

L.   
J  C O

m

l     U    =   t6        
a

N    U N     

C T      >   t6 C
L Y

y C            V N      
i          +

7̀ C 0 Vl O
6  .. 0 C          p Z          N L       C              

J i U                cV    U     J U m
i

m C m

R

L C
O

v

7  

Y U Y 3     Y L
v v ra   v ro c
v   a        v a,

n.      o    
a,  E
V

V    "-+  _      O
C

0 v o v Z
N

O

V1    V1 fd      N      -+   

p N      p i          
Y

n n N          N

C    C ' a      C        J

O    O v - p O       
m N

N   N       . N   L         Y

p v
7 r6

V    u v Qj V    Q
C Q

Y m
p   O    N   " tf R -

0         t6 Ni =    
L  -     

Q d
3 O O       - O

rp r0
v N L

i

N

C    C               v N

L i i
m Q C

m N m N tn CG V1 V LL Z U QJ
C

H

N

V

N O
01 O N M Q-   p[

vv          e o o o
v v N   

o v Z o 2 p   
V

o O ra c
C C C O

ra ra Z
tf1 V1 ln O

v N   
N

0

O

a a
0 0

0 0

M M O    0

O O O O

M M

n   

Q d

Il t11

N N

231



u?

C

O

v

a.

rn

N N VI

E

N   - a    

vR-         Y
O O

L

N V in n    ( II

H    7    
W O    , v N   

d 0 0    
L. L Y

J
N N

Q          v       O
v O oc m oc v

E E        

a                    

0 0 0
0 0 0

O N      
O N O

O O   

232



ITEM 4. 13

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE PURCHASE OF A CHEVROLET

SILVERADO 3500 SPRAY RIG FOR THE PARKS,

RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

DEPARTMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of
a Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig for the
Parks,  Recreation and Maintenance Services

Department

SUMMARY:

On October 11, 2021, with Resolution No. 21- 4965, the City of Lathrop City Council
approved the purchase of heavy equipment for the Parks,   Recreation and

Maintenance Services Department,  which included a budget of  $ 139, 239,  taxes

included, for the purchase of a Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig.

Due to the numerous delays between General Motors ordering windows and supply
chain issues with Spraytec, the spray rig is finally nearing the end of production and
is estimated to be completed in mid- September 2023. As a result of the delays, the

materials and parts increased in cost, resulting in an additional increase of $ 29, 438.

The total cost for the Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig is now $ 168, 677.

Additonally, due to the length of time between the purchase order completion and
the estimated acceptance of the custom spray rig, the original purchase order from
October 2021 is no longer valid and is unable to be carried forward.  As a result, the

Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig requires City Council to reapprove the purchase.
Sufficient funds are available within the FY 23/ 24 budget for the proposed purchase.

BACKGROUND:

The order for the Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig was placed with the dealership
in October 2021. The dealership placed the custom order with the General Motors
factory in May 2022, which is when General Motors opened the ordering window for
government entities.

The Chevrolet Silverado 3500 truck went into production on October 24, 2022.  In

January 2023, the truck was transported from the General Motors factory to Spraytec
for the fabrication and manufacturing of the spray rig body.  Due to supply chain
issues and delays, the fabrication of the spray rig body was delayed. The spray rig is
nearing the end of production and is estimated to be completed in mid- September
2023.

233



CITY MANAGER REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PURCHASE OF A CHEVROLET SILVERADO 3500 SPRAY RIG FOR THE

PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Due to the increase costs in materials and parts between October 2021 and present,
the price for the Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig has increased by $ 29, 438. This

brings the total cost to $ 168, 677. Staff requests City Council approve the purchase
of the Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig for a total cost of $ 168, 677.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of a Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig
for the Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Department.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds are available within the FY 2023/ 24 budget for the proposed
purchase.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop Approving the Purchase
of a Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig

B.  Quote - Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig
C.  Resolution 21- 4965 Approving Purchase of Seventeen  ( 17)  Units of Heavy

Equipment

234



CITY MANAGER REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PURCHASE OF A CHEVROLET SILVERADO 3500 SPRAY RIG FOR THE

PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

APPROVALS:

31• ?- 3

Todd Seb     '  n Date

Director of Parks, Recreation, and Maintenance Services

i

3 a a3
Cari Ja e Date

Director a'f Finance

i• 2. L

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l •S• z3
StepnehJ. Salvatore Date

City Manager

235



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A CHEVROLET SILVERADO 3500 SPRAY RIG

FOR THE PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, on October il,  2021, with Resolution No.  21- 4965, the City of
Lathrop City Council approved the purchase of heavy equipment for the Parks,
Recreation and Maintenance Services Department,  which included a budget of

139, 239, taxes included, for the purchase of a Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig;
and

WHEREAS,  due to the numerous delays between General Motors ordering
windows and supply chain issues with Spraytec, the spray rig is finally nearing the
end of production and is estimated to be completed in mid- September 2023; and

WHEREAS, because of the delays, the materials and parts increased in cost,
resulting in an additional increase of $ 29, 438 bringing the total cost for the Chevrolet
Silverado 3500 Spray Rig to $ 168, 677; and

WHEREAS, due to the length of time between the purchase order completion
and the estimated acceptance of the custom spray rig, the original purchase order
from October 2021 is no longer valid and is unable to be carried forward; and

WHEREAS,  as the result of the purchase order no longer being valid, the

purchase of the Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig requires City Council to
reapprove the purchase; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available within the FY 2023/ 24 budget; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting City Council' s approval to purchase a Chevrolet
Silverado 3500 Spray Rig for $ 168, 677.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the purchase of a Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig
for a total amount of $ 168, 677.

236



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this llth day of September
2023, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

237



ATTACHMENT B

a    •       

i

q?,  x. r-,a Z r

p
d•.. n:..  . .   .   '..     . . i

AMERiCAN CHEVR t, ET

4742 MCHENRY AVE

Mt?DESTO, CA 95356

Pitione: 209- 575- 7 60S

Fax: 209- 499- 7825

r  .   s   

9! F IJ+ F'

r ,   I  
tF..,.  . .._    F          j.

Mnde! Year: 2023 Event Code: SQQ4- Deliv red ta Dealer

Make: Chevrol8t Order#: BRFD3P

Mode1: S500H0 Sifverado NlSRP;$ 43, 595. OQ

CK31403-Reg Chassis- Cab, 4WD
PEG: 1W7- Wc rk Truck Preferred Equipment Graup Order Type: FNR- leet Comrnercial

Prirnary Colar: CsA2- Summft White Stock#: T23244

Trim: H2G- 1WT- nyl, Jet Black, tnterior Trim tnventory Status: N!A
Engine: . 8T-Engine: 6. 6L, V-$, SfDI

i'ransrnissian: MYD- 6- Speed Automatic

Additional Vef icle Infnrmation

GM Marketing infonnetian
x   ;   ,     r..

r
lt. ),...

r.:, 3 r
r .. i S .;' S+',y( t̀ iyt.

Y...."`... j:n  •

G9Y-GVW Rating 14, d04 Lbs Dual Rear Wheels
GT4- Rear Axle: 3. T3 Ratfo

L8T- Engine: 6, 6L, V-8, Slpl

MYD- 6Speed Aertama# ic

PYW Wheeis: 97" Steel, Painted-- Duai Rear Wheels

VQ1- Holdback, Fieet Dealer Assistance

YF5- California Emissions

er? tinri:'
u r=

9WT- Work Truak Preferred Equipment Group 9J4- Burnper: Rear Delete

AE7weats; Fronf 40/ 20/ 40 Split• Bench, Uplevel BG9- Flour Covering; Rubberized Vinyi, B)ack
G80- Auto ocking Differential, Re r GAZ- Susnmit White

tl2G- 1WT- Vinyi, Jet 8iack, Interior Trim OR- Chevrofet Infotainment, 7" Coior Screen
K47- Heavy Duty Air Fitter KC4-Cooler, Engine Oil

KNP- 7ransmission Cooling Sysiem KW7- Alternator, 17Q AMP

N2N• Pue! Tank, Duai Front and Rear, 63. 5 NQ- 7ransfer Case: w! Rotery Di l Contrai,
Gallon Totai Etectronic ShifE

P03- Painted Wh et Trim 3kins, Painted Center 4Q0- Tires: i.T235/ 80 R17 All Sea on,
Caps 8lackwail

SFW- Back- Up Alarm Calibration( SEOj UQ1- Roof Marlcer Larnps

V76- Recovery Hoaks VK3- Front t. icense Piata Maunting PrdvEsions
YK6- SEO Processing ption ZYU9- Delete: Pick- Up Box

indicates vehicfe belongs to Tra iing Partner s̀ inventory

Disclaimer•
xr r: i L

i[at : f Jease t f r to acti al ve :           h                

1     rr ie ca bi nsccutate prici g mto

238



JDN 19,  2023 F& I  -  DEAL WORKSHEET Store 02 FANDz01 596/ 7452 4 70

1 DEAL  # 149759 11 TRADE  # 1 19 DOC  EE 85 . 00

2 DEAL DAT$    06f19/ 2023 12 PAYOFF  # 1 20 WARR PRSM 0 . 00

3 STOCR  # T23240 5 13 DEPOSIT 2S MAINT PREM O . db

14 CASH DOWN 22 GAP PREM

4 PRICE 45595 . Od 15 RSBATS 0 . 00

5 SPRAX RIG      09208 . 00 T4TAL DOWN a. 00 23 MSRP 45595 . 00

TOTAL AFTMKT ( 09208 . 00 24 BALLOON 0 . 00

26 R GISTERED STATE CA ADJ BALLOON 0. 00

6 TERM 1 17 CQIINTY C DE

RATE 0 18 COUNTY RATE 8 . 875 AMT FINANC D 168676 . 06

8 DAYS 3d GQVT FESS 41 . 5

9 PAYfYBAR 12 TAX S 13746 . 31

0 PXMT DATE 07/ i9j2423 RQ/ PQ  # 1 INS:

RO/ FO  # 2 MEMO# 1

3TATUS S Rv/ PO  # 3 MEM 2

LINE#) M MODZFY} (?, CMD LIST}

SxIFT F1= FKEYS BANK= CABH DEAL MONTHLY PYMT  ( 0)     16$ 676 . 06

239



4':  d 31" t ! S.
r Sv:-! £       

y ,

y S fY  i

y

Sprayer 7cthnobgy

P.O. Box 2951

livermore, CA 94551- 2951

Phone: 57- 483=T394
Fax:     590- 483- T396

April 27, 2022

Zack Riedinger, Fleet Manager

American Chevrolet

4742 McHerrry Ave,
Modesto, CA 95356

Good morning Zach,

Spraytec is pleased to provide the folfowing quotation to build a sprayer for the City of
Lathrop.

We wifl provide and install the falfowing pet our discussions with #he City.

1.  8' x 12' flat bed with beiow deck cabinets between the cab and rear wheels for the

pump/ engine assembly and the hose ree(. An across the rear cabinet with 3 doors for
the injec#ion pumps, The surface of the bed and inside bottoms af the cabinets will be
pra#ected with Hercuiir er non-skid bed paint.

2.  A 525 gallor uvater tank with " through the top" air gap filler and tocking lid

3. Honda GX270 engine, electric start, with low oil shutoff

4. Hypry J262C centrifugal pUmp with efectromagnetic cfutch

5. Teejet/ Mid#ech TASC6300 computer cantral system with radar speed gun, and 3
MT500 injection pumps.

6. ( 3) 7. 5 gallan chemical concentrate tanks, ( 1) with an agitator, and stainless steel

mounting backets.

7.  all interconnecting p(umbing fcom the tanks,  through the  umps,  antt out the
manifold.

8. An 8-solenad I regulator manifold with 2 left/righf ba11 valves for selecting and
directing the spray to the multiple spray outlets.

9.  a consale for controlling the movement of the spray arm and nozzl s,  engir
startJstop, agitator control, and light switches.

10. a 5- nozzle boomless spray head with a 3- way articulated arm mounted nn the
driver' s side.

11. a 2- nozzle boomless spray head on the passenger side.

240



12. rear spray bar

13. ( 2} curb nozzles, 1 on each side, for spraying a 2- 3' pattern

14. An electric rewind hose reel, mounted in the belaw deck cabinet on the right side,
with 200' of fz" hose, spray gun, and 4- sided rolier guide assembiy.

15. A 30- gailan fresh water tank with 12V dernand pump for provid' mg fresh water to the
eye wash / shower hose and nazzie, and #a the hand wash spigots mo nted c rr e ch
side of the truck bed.

16. ( 4) above deck tool boxes for storage of toois, PPE i#ems, etc.

1. I n 8- IigF t traffic adviso, mounted on a station rear of the m in t++fi r t k, nd

controlleci from the truck cab.

18. ( 4) rectangular quad flashers, 2 on the headboard facing fonrvard, 2 in the rear bed
rail.

19. ( 8) mini rectangular quad flashers, 2 on the front gri!!, 1 on each front fender, 1 on

each side of the bed, and 2 on t1 e rear of the bed.

20. All required wiring, plumbing, components, installation, and ca{ibra#ion to render 
complete operating spray truck.

2. Operator training on all components and the contrallers t'ar up ta 4 persorrs.

22. A 1 year warranty for parts and lat or against defects in materials and workmanship.

We warrant our equipment and installation for 1 year from the in service dafe agains#
defects in materials and workmanship. The warranty extends to components and labar.
The warranty is FOB aur shop in Livermore,  California.  Furthermore,  we accept

responsibility for correcting any items the receiving department deems unsatisfactory
for meeting of the specifcations.

Defivery:

Our quotation assumes you will deliver the chassis to us in Livermore and pick
up the compMeted sprayer for delivery to the City.

4ur production time from receipt of the truck and chassis is 120- 150 days after
eceipt of the chassis. if you can give us about a 2- 3 w ek no#ice af when #he chassis

wiit be ar iving, it helps to meet this timing.

Quatatinn:       _,:  
M L

Yaur cost for this assembly wilt be $ 109, 208.00.

If you p ov li o na R' C' rfi' te w vtirt"ii 'f F̀ 2irge sales tax.

Terms: We offer a 1° to cash discount of $ 1, 092. 40 for payment within 10 days
after notificatian that the assembiy is finished and ready far pick up. atherwise it is net

241



iv uiaya iiv+i niv it. c uatc.

Thank you far coordinating the assembly with us.

Neil Donat

Manager

242



ATTACHMENT C

RESOLUTION NC3. 21- 4965

A RESOLUTION OF THE   ITY COUNCIL OF TH   CITY t?F I. ATHROP

APPROVING THE PURCHASE t?F SEVENTEEN   { 17)   UNITS OF HEAVY

EQUIPMENT FOR PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SEOtVICES

WHEREAS, the City operates and maintains an inventory of heavy equipment
far the purpose of inspecting,   maintaining and repairing City facilities and

infrastructure; and

WHEREAS,  seventeen  ( 17)  new units of heavy equipment are n eded to
replace existing equipment at the end of th ir servi  life  d ta t btain new

equipment to increase productivity and better serve the City; and

WHEREAS,  in accordance with LMC 2. 36 regarding purchasing,  staff has

researched muitipie companies and received three  ( 3)  quotes for each piece o
equipment and has chosen the lowest price quotes; and

WHEREAS, the pricing associated with the purchase Chevrolet 350Q Spray Rig
was provided by Arnerica Chevrolet thraugh the Gavernment Pricing Contract and
was the lowest of the quotes received; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting Council approvai to pface an arder for the
following equipment:

Purchase of the foilawing:

Two ( 2) 3000 Watt Portabie Generators 3, 298

ne ( 1) 5000 Watt Portable Generator 2, 299

One ( 1) Tow- behind Aerator 9, 614

One ( 1) Anchor Care Drill with Motor 3, iS9

ne ( 1) Tow- behind Compressor Trailer       $ 22, 950

Qne ( 1) Concrete Walk Behind Saw 2, 715

One ( 1} Single Disc Grinder 5, 070

One ( 1) Edge Grinder 3, 293

One ( 1) Emergency Respanse Equipment     $ 16, 251

One ( 1) Poie Saw 550

One ( 1) Pressure Washer w/ Turbo Nozzle    $ 686

One ( 1) Seed Spreader 15, 851

One ( 1) Chevrolet 3500 for Spray Rig 128, 036

One ( 1) Vacuum Excavator 62, 938

One ( 1) W ter Pump w/ Hoses 1, 524

Tax   $ 25, 042

Tota l   3t13, 2$ 8

Resolution No. 21- 4965

243



WHEREAS, sufficient funds have been included in the fiscal year 2021- 22
adopted budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE YT RESOLVED that the City Counci! of the City nf
Lathrop daes hereby apprave the purchese of seventeen  ( 17}  units of heavy
equipment frorn multiple companies for a kotaf amount of $ 303, 286,

The foregoing resolution was passed and adapted this ilth day of C3 tober
2021, by the following vote af the City Councii, to wit:

1 YES:

Nt ES;

ABSENT.

ABSTAIN:

5onny Dhaliwal, Mayor      .

4

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

resa Vargas, City Cler Salvador Navarrete, Cizy Attorney

Resolution No. 21- 4965

244



ITEM 4. 14

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE WASTEWATER TREATMENT

CAPACITY TRANSFER FROM SOUTH LATHROP

LAND,  LLC TO LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION,

LLC, THROUGH THE CITY

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving the Transfer of
Wastewater Treatment Capacity in the

Consolidated Treatment Facility from South
Lathrop Land, LLC to Lathrop Land Acquisition,
LLC through the City and an Associated

Transfer Agreement

SUMMARY:

On October 5th, 2006, City Council approved Vesting Tentative Map 3533 to create
62 parcels on 960 acres of land in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan. Per the City of
Lathrop General Plan,  Lot 4 of Tract 3533  (" Project"),  is zoned as high density
residential. Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC ( Saybrook"), the owner for the Project, is

required to secure sufficient wastewater capacity prior to the issuance of first building
permit for a land use that does not require a Small Lot map for the Project. South
Lathrop Land, LLC (" SLL") has unused wastewater capacity and has agreed to sell it
to Saybrook with the City acting in its capacity as the intermediary for the transfer.

Staff recommends Council approve the requested transfer of wastewater treatment

capacity and authorize the City Manager to execute the Wastewater Treatment
Capacity Transfer Agreement (" Transfer Agreement").

BACKG ROU N D:

In November 2016,  the City and several developers entered into a Design and
Construction Funding Agreement Related to the Phase 2 Expansion of Existing
Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility (" CTF 2 Agreement", Exhibit A of Attachment

B). The CTF 2 Agreement assigned sewer allocation in two categories, Initial Capacity
and Reserve Capacity, with use of the Initial Capacity being immediately available
and the Reserve Capacity being subject to demonstration of need.

On November 21, 2016, Richland Developers, Inc. (" Richland") entered into the CTF

2 Agreement, whereby the City allocated 114, 000 gallons per day ( gpd") in initial

wastewater treatment capacity,  and 41, 455 gpd of reserve wastewater treatment
capacity to Richland.   On May 12, 2018, the capacity was transferred to SLL based
on SLL' s acquisition of the South Lathrop Commerce Center Property ( SLCC Property)
from Richland, and Richland' s transfer of their rights to the CTF as documented in

the transfer of the Funding Agreement between SLL and Richland   (" Funding
Agreement"), as adopted by the City Ordinance No. 18- 390.

245



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY TRANSFER FROM SLL, LLC

TO SAYBROOK, LLC. THROUGH THE CITY

The Wastewater Treatment Capacity allocation factor for the SLCC Property ( Parcel

Map 17- 01) is being adjusted from 355 gpd to 172 gpd based on data from similar
dry warehouse use and water meter consumption. This frees up 183 gpd for sale to
other city developments. The new 172 gpd allocation limits the SLCC Property use to
dry warehousing.

On October 5, 2006, the City approved a Vesting Tentative Map ( VTM) for Tract 3533
to create 62 parcels on 960 acres of land. Saybrook has requested to secure sufficient
sewer capacity for Lot 4 of Tract 3533 for the planned development of 195 multifamily
units  ( Project").   Pursuant to the Conditions of Approval for Tract 3533,  the

developer,  Saybrook,  is required to secure 33, 150 gpd of sufficient wastewater
capacity for the Project prior to the issuance of first building permit for a land use
that does not require a Small Lot map.

SLL recognizes the benefits to its own project and to the long term development goals
of City for SLL to support the Project and therefore wishes to transfer to Saybrook,
and Saybrook wishes to accept,  33, 150 gpd of Wastewater Treatment Capacity
previously allocated to SLL under the CTF 2 Agreement.

The purchase price has been established by the City in accordance with the Funding
Agreement as $ 29. 98/ gpd, and so the purchase price for a total of 33, 150 gpd is
agreed by Saybrook to equal $ 993, 837.  Saybrook is required to use the wastewater

capacity for the Project within one year of the approval of the Transfer Agreement or
sell the capacity back to the City at the original price of $ 29. 98/ gpd.

The Public Works Director has confirmed that the requested transfer is consistent

with the City' s General Plan, Sewer Master Plan, and Zoning Ordinance. The Public
Works Director and the City Engineer recommend City Council approve the

application for sewer transfer and authorize the City Manager to execute the Transfer
Agreement.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Public Works Director has confirmed that the requested Transfer Agreement is
consistent with the City' s General Plan,  Sewer Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance.
The Public Works Director and the City Engineer recommend City Council approve the
sewer transfer and authorize the City Manager to execute the Transfer Agreement,
approved as to form by the City Attorney, with the applicant.  In accordance with the

Transfer Agreement, Saybrook shall make payment in full within ten ( 10) days after

the date when the City Council approves the transfer and agreement.  At the time of

receipt of payment,  City will transfer the treatment capacity to Saybrook and the
funds to SLL.

246



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY TRANSFER FROM SLL, LLC

TO SAYBROOK, LLC. THROUGH THE CITY

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Transfer of Wastewater Treatment Capacity in the
Consolidated Treatment Facility from South Lathrop Land LLC, to Saybrook,
LLC, through the City and an Associated Transfer Agreement.

B.  Wastewater Treatment Capacity Transfer Agreement from SLL to the City and
from City to Saybrook.

247



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY TRANSFER FROM SLL, LLC

TO SAYBROOK, LLC. THROUGH THE CITY

APPROVALS

r- R 8• 2a • Zo23

Brad Taylor Date

City Engineer

Cari Jam Date

Finance D ctor

S • Z` t - 2023

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Z-,` Z o -

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23

St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

248



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE TRANSFER OF WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY IN
THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY FROM SOUTH LATHROP LAND,

LLC TO LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION,  LLC THROUGH THE CITY AND AN

ASSOCIATED TRANSFER AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2016, the City and several developers entered
into a Design and Construction Funding Agreement Related to the Phase 2 Expansion
of Existing Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility (" CTF 2 Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the CTF 2 Agreement assigned sewer allocation in two categories,

Initial Capacity and Reserve Capacity,  with use of the Initial Capacity being
immediately available and use of the Reserve Capacity being subject to

demonstration of need; and

WHEREAS, Richland Developers, Inc. (' Richland") was one of the developers

that entered into the CTF 2 Agreement, whereby the City allocated 114, 000 gallons
per day (" gpd") in initial wastewater treatment capacity, and 41, 455 gpd of reserve
wastewater treatment capacity to Richland; and

WHEREAS on May 12, 2018, the capacity was transferred to South Lathrop
Land, LLC (" SLL") based on SLL' s acquisition of the South Lathrop Commerce Center
Property ( SLCC Property) from Richland, and Richland' s transfer of their rights to the
CTF as documented in the transfer of the Funding Agreement between SLL and
Richland (" Funding Agreement"), as adopted by the City Ordinance No. 18- 390; and

WHEREAS, the Wastewater Treatment Capacity allocation factor for the SLCC
Property ( Parcel Map 17- 01) is being adjusted from 355 gpd to 172 gpd based on
data from similar dry warehouse use and water meter consumption. This frees up

183 gpd for sale to other city developments. The new 172 gpd allocation limits the
SLCC Property use to dry warehousing; and

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2006, the City approved a Vesting Tentative Map
VTM)  for Tract 3533 to create 62 parcels on 960 acres of land.  Lathrop Land

Acquisition, LLC (" Saybrook"), has requested to secure sufficient sewer capacity for
Lot 4 of Tract 3533 for the planned development of 195 multifamily units (" Project").

Pursuant to the Conditions of Approval for Tract 3533, the developer, Saybrook, is

required to secure 33, 150 gpd of sufficient wastewater capacity for the Project prior
to the issuance of first building permit for a land use that does not require a Small
Lot map; and

WHEREAS, SLL recognizes the benefits to its own project and to the long term
development goals of City for SLL to support the Project and therefore wishes to
transfer to Saybrook,  and Saybrook wishes to accept,  33, 150 gpd of Wastewater
Treatment Capacity previously allocated to SLL under the CTF 2 Agreement; and

249



WHEREAS, the purchase price has been established by the City in accordance
with the Funding Agreement as $ 29. 98/ gpd, and so the purchase price for a total of
33, 150 gpd is agreed by Saybrook to equal $ 993, 837; and

WHEREAS,  Saybrook is required to use the wastewater capacity for the
Project within one year of the approval of the Wastewater Treatment Capacity
Transfer Agreement (" Transfer Agreement") or sell the capacity back to the City at
the original price of $ 29. 98/ gpd; and

WHEREAS,  the Public Works Director has confirmed that the requested

transfer is consistent with the City' s General Plan, Sewer Master Plan, and Zoning
Ordinance,  and the Public Works Director and the City Engineer recommend City
Council approve the application for sewer transfer and authorize the City Manager to
execute the Transfer Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the transfer from South Lathrop Land, LLC to the City
and the City' s transfer to Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC of 33, 150 gpd in Wastewater
Treatment Capacity in the Consolidated Treatment Facility, pursuant to the terms of
the Transfer Agreement; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve the Transfer Agreement and authorize the City Manager to sign
documents necessary to implement the terms of the same to document the transfer
from South Lathrop Land, LLC to the City of 33, 150 gpd in Wastewater Treatment
Capacity in the Consolidated Treatment Facility the immediate transfer of the same
capacity from the City to Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC.

250



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 11th day of
September 2023, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas Salvador Navarrete

City Clerk City Attorney

251



ATTACHMENT

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

AFTER RECORDING MAIL TO:

CITY OF LATHROP

ATTN: CITY CLERK

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CA 95330

Exem t from a ment of recordin fees GC 27383

Space above this line reserved for recorder' s use

APN' s:

241- 030- 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 45, 46, 47, 48

WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY

TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY TRANSFER AGREEMENT  ( the

AgreemenY'), is made this day of 2023 (" Effective Date"), by and between
South Lathrop Land,  LLC a Delaware limited liability company, TriPoint Building 3,  LLC,  a

Delaware limited liability company, TriPoint Building 5, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
TriPoint Building 6,  LLC,  a Delaware limited liability company,  TriPoint Building 7,  LLC,  a

Delaware limited liability company, collectively hereinafter referred to as " SLL", Lathrop Land
Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, hereinafter referred to as" Saybrook", and
the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporation in the State of California, hereinafter referred to as
City".   Hereinafter all parties may be referred to collectively as " Parties" or individually as a
Party„

RECITALS

WHEREAS, SLL owns the South Lathrop Commerce Center (SLCC) parcels designated
with APNs 241- 030- 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 45, 46, 47, and 48 in the City of Lathrop, California,

SLCC Property") where it is the developer of industrial and commercial properties pursuant to
the South Lathrop Specific Plan (" SLL Project"); and

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2016, Richland Developers, tnc. entered into the Design

and Construction Funding Agreement Related to the Phase 2 Expansion of the Existing Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility with the City ("CTF 2 Agreement") attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The CTF 2 Agreement states that the City allocated 114, 000 gallons per day (" gpd") in Initial

Wastewater Treatment Capacity, and 41, 455 gpd of Reserve Wastewater Treatment Capacity to
Richland Developers, Inc; and

WHEREAS, SLL acquired the SLCC Project from Richland Developers, Inc., and Richland

Developers, Inc.' s transfer of all of their rights to the Phase 2 Expansion of the Existing Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility as documented in the Transfer Agreement Relating to Design
and Construction Funding Agreement For The Phase 2 Expansion of the Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility between SLL and Richland Developers Inc. as adopted by the City Ordinance
No. 18- 390 and as approved by the City and recorded by the San Joaquin County Recorder's
Office as Doc# 2018- 047863 on May 1, 2018, attached hereto as Exhibit B ( Funding Agreement).

252



SLL became and now is the successor in interest to all of Richland Developers, Inc.' s rights

contained within the CTF 2 Agreement; and

WHEREAS, on September 14, 2020, 41, 455 gpd of Reserve Wastewater Treatment
Capacity was transferred from SLL to Saybrook CLSP,  LLC with the Reserve Wastewater

Treatment Capacity Transfer Agreement recorded by the San Joaquin County Recorder' s Office
as Doc# 2020- 126204; and

WHEREAS,  on July 10,  2023,  17, 100 gpd of Wastewater Treatment Capacity was
approved to be transferred from SLL to DR Horton with the Wastewater Treatment Capacity
Transfer Agreement recorded by the San Joaquin County Recorder' s Office as Doc # 2023-

059240; and

WHEREAS, the Wastewater Treatment Capacity allocation factor used for the SLCC
Property with Parcel Map 17- 01 was 355 gpd however City is adjusting this factor to 172 gpd
based on an analysis of similar dry warehouse use and actual water meter consumption data from
the SLCC Property.  The difference of 183 gpd ( 355 — 172 = 183) is available for sale from SLL
to other developments in City.  The Wastewater Treatment Capacity allocation factor of 172 gpd
limits the use of the warehouse to dry warehousing operations only and SLL will be required to
purchase additional capacity if the future use of the warehouse changes to something other than
dry warehouse use and the Wastewater Treatment Capacity demand increases above 172 gpd;
and

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2006, the City approved a Vesting Tentative Map ( VTM) for

Tract 3533 to create 62 parcels on 960 acres of land. Saybrook has requested to secure sufficient
sewer capacity for Lot 4 of Tract 3533 for the planned development of 195 multifamily units

Project"); and

WHEREAS,  pursuant to the Conditions of Approval for Tract 3533,  the developer,

Saybrook, is required to secure sufficient wastewater capacity prior to issuance of building permit
for a land use that does not require a Small Lot map. The purchase price has been established
by the City in accordance with the Funding Agreement as $ 29.98/gpd. The total purchase price
for the required 33, 150 gpd of wastewater capacity for the Project is agreed by Saybrook to equal

993, 837; and

WHEREAS,  SLL recognizes the benefits to its own project and to the long term
development goals of City for SLL to support the Project and therefore wishes to transfer to
Saybrook,  and Saybrook wishes to accept,  33, 150 gpd of Wastewater Treatment Capacity
previously allocated to SLL under the CTF 2 Agreement; and

WHEREAS,  the Public Works Director has confirmed that the requested transfer is

consistent with the City' s General Plan, Sewer Master Plan, and Zoning Ordinance. The Public
Works Director and the City Engineer recommend City Council approve the application for sewer
transfer and authorize the City Manager to execute this Agreement,  approved by the City
Attorney, with the applicant; and

WHEREAS,  consistent with Schedule 3 of the CTF 2 Agreement,  SLL has filed an

application with the City to effectuate the transfer contemplated in this Agreement, and that
application took the form of this Agreement. This Agreement, which shall be approved as to form

by the City Attorney, constitutes the agreement required by the City pursuant to Schedule 3 of the
CTF 2 Agreement. Schedule 3 of the CTF 2 Agreement is attached hereto in Exhibit A.

253



NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.       Adjusted Wastewater Treatment Capacity Allocation Factor. SLL agrees to adjusting the
wastewater factor from 355 gpd to 172 gpd for the SLCC Property. The difference of 183 gpd
355 — 172 = 183) is available for sale from SLL to other developments in City. The allocated

Wastewater Treatment Capacity factor of 172 gpd now restricts the property's usage to dry
warehousing operations exclusively. If there are plans to use the warehouse space for activities
other than dry warehousing, and this leads to a rise in Wastewater Treatment Capacity demand
beyond 172 gpd, SLL will be obligated to acquire additional Wastewater Treatment Capacity.

2.       Allocation of Wastewater Treatment Capacity. SLL agrees to transfer to the City
33, 150 gpd of Wastewater Treatment Capacity previously allocated to SLL in the CTF 2
Agreement and reflected on Exhibit C within ten ( 10) business days after the City Council approval
of this transfer and Agreement.  This will leave SLL with 63, 750 gpd of Wastewater Treatment
Capacity.  The Wastewater Treatment Capacity transferred as part of this Agreement shall be
allocated first to City for transfer to Saybrook once the requirements of this Agreement are
satisfied.  If Saybrook does not fund and proceed with this transfer, the City agrees to return the
Wastewater Treatment Capacity to SLL.

3. Pavment for Allocation of Wastewater Treatment Capacitv. In exchange for SLL' s

transfer of Wastewater Treatment Capacity pursuant to this Agreement to the City, Saybrook
agrees to pay to City $ 993, 837, or $ 29. 98 for each gpd of Wastewater Treatment Capacity
transferred pursuant to this Agreement. Payment shall be made in full prior to the issuance of the
first building permit for the Saybrook Project.  At the time of receipt of payment from Saybrook,
City will transfer the 33, 150 gpd of Wastewater Treatment Capacity to Saybrook and the funds to
SLL.  Upon transfer, Saybrook shall have conditional ownership as outlined in Paragraph 5 and
use of 33, 150 gpd of SLL' s Wastewater Treatment Capacity.

4.       Aqreement Continqent on Citv' s Approval of Transfer of Wastewater Treatment

Capacitv and Final Map. The obligations in this Agreement are contingent on the City Council' s
approval of the transfer and this Agreement pursuant to the procedure outlined in Schedule 3 of
the CTF 2 Agreement.  In the event that the Lathrop City Council denies the transfer and this
Agreement, SLL shall have no further obligation to transfer Wastewater Treatment Capacity to
Saybrook under this Agreement, and the Agreement shall have no further binding effect on the
Parties. The City also confirms that SLL and Saybrook has fulfilled all of their obligations under
the CTF 2 Agreement, no amounts are owed, and no event of default exists.

5. Savbrook' s Obliqation to Obtain Proiect Approvals Within One Year of Citv

Approval of Wastewater Treatment Capacitv Allocation.  Consistent with the requirements in

Schedule 3 of the CTF 2 Agreement, Saybrook shall use the capacity for the Project within one
year from the City's approval of the transfer and Agreement.  Unless the City Council approves
an alternative time limit, if the Project does not develop within the timeframe in this paragraph,
this Agreement shall be void and the 33, 150 gpd of Wastewater Treatment Capacity shall be sold
back to the City at the original price of$ 29. 98/ gpd.

6. Mutual Hold Harmless / Indemnification.  Each Party shall hold each other Party
harmless, and defend, and indemnify each other Party, its officers, employees, consultants, and
agents from and against any and all claims, suits, causes of action, or other proceedings for
damages, injuries, losses, costs ( including attorneys' fees and costs of suit or other dispute
resolution processes), or any other liability arising out of, the performance, or failure to perform,

254



any of the duties and obligations set forth in this Agreement.  The duty to defend shall include
provision for all costs and fees, including attorneys' fees, associated with such defense.

7. No Partnership. It is not the purpose or the intention of this Agreement to create, and this
Agreement shall not create, a joint venture, partnership, or other relationship whereby either Party
would be liable for the omissions, commissions, or performance of the other Party.

8. Further Assurance. The Parties shall execute and deliver such further instruments and

do further acts and things as may be required to carry out the intent and purposes of this
Agreement as may be reasonably requested by any Party.

9. Force Maieure. With respect to the matters contemplated by this Agreement, no Party
shall be liable or responsible to the other as a result of any injury to property or as a result of
inability to provide capacity, which was caused by any Force Majeure event.

10.      Governinq Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of California.

11.      Assiqnment. No Party may assign its rights under this Agreement to any person, entity,
or governmental or quasi- governmental body without the prior written consent of the other Parties.

12.      Entire Apreement / Amendment.  This Agreement including the recitals,  which are
incorporated by this reference, contains the entire Agreement between the Parties regarding the
Wastewater Transfer between the Parties. No change or modification of this Agreement shall be

valid unless the same is an amendment, in writing, signed by both Parties.

13.      Recordation of Aqreement. Consistent with the requirements of Schedule 3 of the CTF

2 Agreement, City shall cause this fully executed Agreement to be recorded in the San Joaquin
County Recorder' s Office within thirty ( 30) days after the City Council approves the transfer and
this Agreement.

14.      Exhibits. The Exhibits referenced and included in the Agreement are as follows:

Exhibit A:  Design and Construction Funding Agreement Related to the Phase 2
Expansion of the Existing Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility with the City (" CTF 2

Agreement"), dated November 21, 2016

Exhibit B: Transfer Agreement Relating to Design and Construction Funding Agreement
For The Phase 2 Expansion of the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility between SLL
and Richland Developers Inc. as adopted by the City Ordinance No.  18- 390 and as
approved by the City and recorded ( Doc# 2018- 047863), recorded May 1, 2018

Exhibit C:    Reallocation form to reflect the Reallocation of Wastewater Treatment

Capacity from SLL to the City.

Exhibit D:  Reallocation form to reflect the transfer of the Wastewater Treatment Capacity
from the City to Saybrook.

255



IN WITNESS WEREOF, the parties have caused their respective duly authorized representatives
to execute this Agreement as of the Effective Date above.

Signatures on Next Page]

256



South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:   CHI West 109 South Lathrop Land, L. P.,
a Delaware limited partnership,
its managing member

By:  CHI LTH GP, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its general partner

By:
Philip J. Prassas
Vice President

TriPoint Building 3, L. L. C.,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:      TriPoint Phase I Venture, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its sole member

By:      CHI West 114 TriPoint Phase I, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its managing member

By:      CHI West 109 South Lathrop Land, L. P.,
a Delaware limited partnership,
its sole member

By:      CHI LTH GP, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its general partner

By:
Philip J. Prassas
Vice President

257



TriPoint Building 5, L. L. C.,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:      TriPoint Phase I Venture, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its sole member

By:      CHI West 114 TriPoint Phase I, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its managing member

By:      CHI West 109 South Lathrop Land, L. P.,
a Delaware limited partnership,
its sole member

By:      CHI LTH GP, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its general partner

By:
Philip J. Prassas
Vice President

TriPoint Building 6, L. L. C.,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:      TriPoint Phase I Venture, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its sole member

By:      CHI West 114 TriPoint Phase I, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its managing member

By:      CHI West 109 South Lathrop Land, L. P.,
a Delaware limited partnership,
its sole member

By:      CHI LTH GP, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its general partner

By:
Philip J. Prassas
Vice President

258



TriPoint Building 7, L. L. C.,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:      TriPoint Phase I Venture, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its sole member

By:      CHI West 114 TriPoint Phase I, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,
its managing member

By:      CHI West 109 South Lathrop Land, L. P.,
a Delaware limited partnership,
its sole member

By:      CHI LTH GP, L. L. C.,

a Delaware limited liability company,

its general partner

By:
Philip J. Prassas
Vice President

259



Lathrop Land Acquisition, L. L. C.,
a Delaware limited liability company,

By:      Saybrook Fund Investors, L. L. C.,

Its:  Managing Member

Jeffrey M. Wilson Date

Officer

260



CITY:

CITY OF LATHROP, a

Municipal Corporation of the

State of California

By: Stephen J. Salvatore
Its: City Manager

ATTEST:

City Clerk of and for the City

By: Teresa Vargas
Its: City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY THE

CITY OF LATHROP ITY ATTORNEY:

By: Salvador Navarrete
Its: City Attorney

261



i

w

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION FUNDING AGREEMENT

RELATED TO THE PHASE 2 EXPANSION OF THE EXISTING LATHROP CONSOLIDATED

TREATMENT FACILITY (" LCTF")

This Design and Construction Funding Agreement ( the " AareemenY') is made and

entered into as of November , 2016 (" Effective Date"),  by and between the C1TY OF
LATHROP,  a municipal corporation  (" CITY"),  RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT,  LLC,  a

Califomia limited liability company  (" RID"),  RICHLAND DEVELOPERS,  INC.,  a Delaware

corporation (" RDI"), SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC, a Califomia limited liability company(" Savbrook"),

and LATHROP MOSSDALE INVESTORS, LP, a Califomia limited partnership (" LMI")( excluding
CITY, collectively, " DEVELOPERS"). DEVELOPERS and CiTY are referred to herein, individually
as" party" and collectively as the "  aprties."

RECITALS

A.  The CITY currently operates the existing LCTF with a flow capacity of 1. 0 million gallons
per day, or" MGD" in accordance with Waste Discharge Requirements R5- 2016- 0028 approved
by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board ( the " Repional Board") on April 21,

2016 ( the " WDRs").  Pursuant to the WDRs, the CITY may add new spra elds and construct

additional recycled water storage ponds in accordance with the requirements of the WDRs with
approval of the technical reports submitted to the Executive Officer.  The CITY also adopted a

CEQA Addenda for the incremental increase of up to`3. 0 MGD in treatment capacity, raising the
total anticipated treatment. capacity to approximately 9. 1 MGD.  Minor revisions to the WDRs

regarding new state water quality standards and a new minimum increment for expansion of
disposal areas required for the LCTF are expected to be considered by the Regional Board in fall,
2017.  New CEQA review is not expected to be required for the revised WDRs.

B.  The parties desire to expand the existing LCTF to process up to 2. 5 MGD of treatment
capacity by adding a total of 1. 5 MGD to the existing LCTF ( the" Phase 2 Expansion").

C.  CITY and DEVELOPERS are parties to a series of sewer funding agreements relating to
the Phase 2 Expansion ( collectively the " Fundinct Aqreements"). The Funding Agreements are
listed in Schedule 1 attached hereto.   To the extent of any conflicts between the Funding
Agreements and this Agreement, this Agreement shall control and supersede any such conflicting
terms.       

D.  During the pre- design and design process for the Phase 2 Expansion,  additional

developers ( listed in Schedule 2 attached) participated in and funded the Phase 2 Expansion.
Following the pre- design process, the additional developers withdrew(" Withdrawn Developers")
from the Phase2 Expansion.  CITY reimbursed ( or will reimburse) the Withdrawn Developers for
costs they had expended.  Accordingly, and once reimbursed, the Withdrawn Developers have

no right under this Agreement to receive a " wiA serve" from CITY with respect to any capacity in
the Phase 2 Expansion.

E.  The parties desire to execute this Agreement to set forth their definitive understanding
with respect to the funding of pre-design, design, permitting, programming, construction costs and
standby charges, including all outside consultant costs and CITY staff costs relating to, and
allocations of capacity in the Phase 2 Expansion as more particularly set forth herein.

NQW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants contained herein, the
above recitals, and other good and valuable considerafion, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1.  Incorporation of Recitals.  The parties agree that the foregoing Recitals are true and
correct, and are incorporated as a part of this Agreement as if set forth in full herein.

1

262



2.  Overall Cost: Phase 2 Expansion.

a.  Based upon bids received by the CITY and CITY' S calculation of other costs such
as permitting and C1TY staff charges, the #otal estimated cost of the Phase 2 Expansion is

26, 374,212 ( the °Expansion Costs").  The parties acknowledge that the estimated Expansion
Costs include a 10% contingency( the " Continaenc'), which the parties expressly approve.  Of

the total estimated Expansion Costs, DEVELOPERS have funded $ 2, 914, 647 pursuant to the
Funding Agreements ( the " Funded Expansion Cosfs"), which amount is net of any amounts
reimbursed or to be reimbursed to Withdrawn Developers by CITY.  Section 6. a. and Exhibit A

illustrate each DEVELOPER' S share of Funded Expansion Costs paid to date,  Unfunded

Expansion Costs ( defined in Section 6. a) and timing of payment.

b.  Upon receipt of the Unfunded Expansion Costs, the CITY shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to complete the Phase 2 Expansion in an timely manner, subject to force
majeure delays,  including without limitation obtaining all applicable permits and approvals
necessary to proceed with the Phase 2 Expansion including an updated WDR to clarify minimum
increments for additional storage capacity and address new state water quality standards, as well
as the requisite administrative design and pond approvals for the Phase 2 Expansion.  Newly
proposed spra eld areas and recycled water storage ponds for use in disposal of treated .
wastewater from the LCTF inay require environmental review under CEQA.

3.  Initial Capacitv Allocations.  Subject to the DEVELOPERS' compliance with the terms of

this Agreement, CITY will provide DEVELOPERS with initial capacity allocations in the Phase 2
Expansion as set forth in Exhibit B- 1 ( the" Initial Capacitv Allocations").

4.  Restrictions on Reliance or Use of Sewer Allocation bv DEVELOPERS:  Other

Restrictions. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the following shall apply
to restrict DEVELOPERS' reliance upon or use of its Sewer Allocation ( defined below):

a.       No DEVELOPER shall" rel   ( defined below) upon its Initial Capacity Allocation or
Reserved Capacity Allocation ( defined in Section 7.a) ( collectively, the " Sewer Allocation")
unless and until such DEVELOPER has ( i) obtained fee titie to land for all ponds, spra elds and

related infrastructure ( or other alternative methods of disposal approved by the CITY and the
Regiona! Board) necessary to use such capacity ( collectively, the " Disposal Infrastructure"),
ii) provided CITY with secured funding for construction of Disposal Infrastructure in the form of

designated cash on deposit with CITY, security bond, letter of credit, or speci cally designated
Land Based Financing ( defined below) containing a disbursal mechanism in favor of, and as
approved by, CITY, ( iii) offered the Disposal Infrastructure to CITY for dedication ( with conditional
right of reversion) and ( iv) secured administrative design approval from the CITY and Regional
Board for the design of Disposal Infrastructure ( with items ( i) through ( iv) referred to herein,

collectively, as the " Reliance Reauirements").  As used herein, " rel shall mean the ability to
rely upon the availability of such capacity for CITY approval of final maps.

b.       No DEVELOPER shall be entitled to use its Sewer A1location ( e.g. for CITY
approval of building permits) unless and until such DEVELOPER has ( i) completed construction
of the Disposal Infrastructure, ( ii) issued to CITY as- built drawings documenting the completed
Disposal Infrastructure and( iii) incorporated the Disposal Infrastructure into the City' s Wastewater
Discharge Permit by obtaining Regional Board approval of ( Y) a completion report for added
storage and disposal and ( Z) an increase in disposal capacity for CITY'S combined treatment
facility( collectively, " Use Reauirements").

c. Noiwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, DEVELOPER
compliance with any provisions herein regarding Disposal Infrastructure is subject to the terms of
any DEVELOPER' S Development Agreement with C1TY, the terms of which Development
Agreement( s) shall control with respect to compliance with Disposal Infrastructure.   

Z

263



d.       The terms of this f greement and any transfer of Sewer Ailocations to
DEVELOPERS or third parties under this Agreement are exempt from the City's Wastewater
Treatment Capacity Policy approved by the City Council on May 4, 2015 by Resolution No. 15-
3913 ( the " Transfer Policv"); provided, however, that no transfer to a DEVELOPER or a third
party shall be effective unless and until such DEVELOPER or third party has provided to CITY
the information required in Schedule 3 attached hereto (" Transfer Information") for CITY

approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

e.       Notwithsfanding anything to the contrary contained herein,  including without
limitation the provisions of Sections 7 and 9, no DEVELOPER' S Sewer Allocation may be taken
away from such DEVELOPER if such DEVELOPER has satisfied a11 Reliance Requirements for
its Sewer Allocation.

f. DEVELOPERS acknowledge and understand that DEVELOPERS cannot use their

Sewer Capacity until ( i) final completion and CITY acceptance of.the Phase 2 Expansion and
ii) final signoff of the completed Phase 2 Expansion by the Regional Board.

5.  Standby Charges.

a.       CITY shall provide notice to all DEVELOPERS when CITY begins receiving
invoices from Veolia Water West Operating Senrices, Inc. ("Veolia") for maintenance of the Phase

2 Expansion ( the " Standbv Charqe Notification").  DEVELOPERS' obligation to pay Standby
Charges commences upon receipt of the Standby Charge Notification ( the " Standbv Triaqer
Date"). The Standby Charge Notification shall include an invoice detailing the Standby Charges
that are due from each DEVELOPER.  The CITY shall calculate the annual charge per gallon of
capacity in accordance with Exhibit B- 2, which charge will escalate annually at the same rate set
forth in the CITY' S separate written agreement with Veolia, which escalation shall not exceed the

Consumer Price Index for all urban consumers for the Los Angeles Standard Metropolitan

Statistical Area as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the U. S. Department of Labor
the" Escalation"), unless otherwise agreed by the parties, in writing.

b.       DEVELOPERS shall pay the applicable Standby Charges not later than thirty( 30)
days after receipt of the Standby Charge Notification. CITY shall provide annual Standby Charge
Notifications to each DEVELOPER for future Standby Charges by July 31 S of each year. Annual
standby charges are due thirty (30) days after receipt of invoice.  Nofinrithstanding the foregoing,
and except with respect to charges by Veolia that have been incorporated into the construction
budget for the Phase 2 Expansion, in no event shall DEVELOPERS be responsible for Standby
Charges unless the Completion Requirements ( defined in Section 6(c)) have been satisfied.

c.       DEVELOPERS are responsible for paying Standby Charges for each

DEVELOPER' S Sewer Allocation as illustrated in Exhibit B- 2 ( including the Escalation, the
Standbv Char4es").  The Standby Charges include overcharges due to the higher operational

costs associated with a wastewater treatment plant that is larger than currently needed(" Standbv
Overcharaes"), also as illustrated in Exhibit B- 2.

d.       The parties acknowledge that DEVELOPERS' obligation to pay Standby Charges
shall terminate as sewer capacity in the Phase 2 Expansion is used. On or about May 1St of year,
the CIT1' shall check the termination date for Standby Charges in the following manner:

i.  CITY shall determine the total number of gallons of sewer capacity
assigned to rate payers.  Solely for purposes of determining the termination date for Standby
Charges, each EDU ( equivalent dwelling unit) shall be considered to be assigned 260 gallons per
day ("g d") of capacity ( the " Used Sewer Capacitv").  CITY shall provide a copy of the CIIY'S
Used Sewer Capacity determination within thirty( 30) days after CITY finalizes the determination.

ii.  If CITY determines through its calculation in subsection ( i) above that the

total gallons of Used Sewer Capacity has met or exceeded the " Threshold of Flow From New

3

264



Users at Which Standby Charge is No Longer Needed" as shown on Exhibit B- 2, DEVELOPERS'
obligation to pay Standby Charges shall terminate and no additional Standby Charges shall be
due for any subsequent year. CITY shall provide written notice to DEVELOPERS at the time that
DEVELOPERS' obligation to pay Standby Charges ceases.

iii.  Subject to the foregoing provisions regarding termination of the obligation
to pay Standby Charges, DEVELOPERS shall remain responsible for Standby Charges for any
Sewer Allocation applicable to such DEVELOPERS unless and until a DEVELOPER transfers aA

or a portion of its Allocation with the corresponding obligation to pay Standby Charges, and such
transfer has been accepted by CITY in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.d.

e.       Subject to the provisions of Section 4.f., so long as DEVELOPERS have satisfied
Use Requirements for their Sewer Allocation, DEVELOPERS may commence using their Sewer
Allocation from and after the Standby Trigger Date.

6.  Developer Funding of Phase 2 Expansion.

a.       Funded and Unfunded Expansion Costs. Each DEVELOPER'S proportional share
of Funded Expansion Costs paid to date and the portion of Expansion Costs that has not yet been
funded (" Unfunded Expansion Costs") are set forth in Exhibit A based upon the percentages
set forth therein.  Except as set forth below, each DEVELOPER shall pay its applicable share of
Unfunded Expansion Costs on the Effective Date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties
acknowledge that LMI is owed Oversizing Reimbursements ( defined in Section 8( c)) that exceed
LMI' s portion of Unfunded Expansion Costs( the" LMI Share"). As a result, ( i) LMI is not obligated
to pay the LMf Share on the Effective Date,  and  ( ii) CITY shall reduce the Oversizing
Reimbursements that are due LMI by the amount of the LMI Share when CITY pays Oversizing
Reimbursements to applicable DEVELOPERS under Section 8.

b.       Use of Continaency; Cost Overruns.

i.       Subject to the terms below, the parties agree that the CITY may use the
Contingency for any cost overruns for the Phase 2 Expansion without obtaining the prior approval
of DEVELOPERS.   Nofinrithstanding the foregoing,  during construction,  CITY shall provide
DEVELOPERS with written monthly construction updates (" Construction Updates"), which

Construction Updates shall include an updated completion schedule, a listing of costs incurred to
date based upon invoices received by the end of the previous month, copies of all changes orders
executed during the applicable month and notification of any pending or anticipated change
orders, and other information as reasonably requested by DEVELOPERS.  CITY shall endeavor

to provide the Construction Updates to DEVELOPERS not later than the 21St of each month, for
work completed during the previous month.

ii.       If CITY exhausts the Contingency and CITY reasonably believes that it
must incur costs in excess of the Contingency to complete the Phase 2 Expansion (" Excess

Costs"), CITY shall promptly notify DEVELOPERS of such Excess Costs from time to time, as
needed.  Subject to Section 6. b. iii, CITY must obtain DEVELOPERS' prior written approval prior
to incurring the Excess Costs, which shall be provided, if at all, not later than ten ( 10) business
days after receipt of CITY' S notice of Excess Costs together with appropriate backup
documentation.

iii. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if CITY and RID agree to the Excess Costs,
A) CITY shall notify all DEVELOPERS of such agreement (" Notice of Approval of Excess

Costs"), ( B) CITY may proceed with the work, and( C) all DEVELOPERS shall pay their respective
share of the Excess Costs within ten ( 10) business days after receipt of the Notice of Approval of
Excess Costs.

iv.       If any DEVELOPER fails to contribute its share of Excess Costs within ten
10) business days after receipt of the Notice of Approval of Excess Costs,  then ( Y) the

4

265



contributing DEVELOPERS shall pay the non- contributing DEVELOPER' S portion of Excess
Costs, on a pro rata basis, and ( Z) such non- contributing DEVELOPER' S Sewer Allocation shall
be reduced and allocated to the contributing DEVELOPERS on a pro rata basis.

c. Final AccountinQ.

i.  CITY shall provide a draft final accounting of all construction costs incuRed
by CITY in connection with the Phase 2 Expansion ( the " Final Accountinq") to DEVELOPERS

not later than 90 days after( A) final completion and CITY acceptance of the Phase 2 Expansion
and ( B) final signoff of the completed Phase 2 Expansion by the Regional Board ( collectively,
Comaletion Reauirements").  CITY shall request written confirmation of receipt of the Final

Accounting from each DEVELOPER ( whether through confirmation of overnight courier delivery,
return receipt request, or other method). The parties acknowledge that the Final Accounting may
include Excess Costs in addition to those addressed during construction pursuant to Section 6. b.

ii.  Each DEVELOPER shall have the right to review and approve the Final

Accounting, which review and approval shall be provided, if at all, within 10 business days after
DEVELOPERS' receipt of the Final Accounting.  If any DEVELOPER has not timely provided its
written approval or comments, if any, then such DEVELOPER shall be deemed to have approved
the Final Accounting.  Subject to the foregoing, CITY and DEVELOPERS will work together to
resolve any questions raised regarding the draft Final Accounting prior to it becoming final.

iii.  If all DEVELOPERS approve the Final Accounting OR if all DEVELOPERS
do not approve the Final Accounting but CITY and RID agree to the Final Accounting, ( A) CITY
shall notify all DEVELOPERS of such agreement (" Notice of Approval of Final Accountina")

and ( B) all DEVELOPERS shall pay their respective share of any Excess Costs as set forth in the
Final Accounting within thirly( 30) days after receipt of the Notice of Approval of Fina1 Accounting.
The Notice of Approval of Final Accounting shall attach the approved Final Accounting, the
parties' final allocations of the Expansion Costs in accordance with the provisions of this
Section 6, and the final Reserved Capacity Overpayment ( defined in Section 7. b) applicable to
each DEVELOPER.

iv.  If any DEVELOPER fails to contribute its share of Excess Costs set forth
in the Final Accounting within thirty ( 30) days after receipt of the Notice of Approval of Final
Accounting,   then   ( Y)  the contributing DEVELOPERS shall pay the non- contributing

DEVELOPER' S portion of Excess Costs, on a pro rata basis, and ( Z) such non- contributing
DEVELOPER' S Sewer Allocation shall be reduced and allocated to the contributing
DEVELOPERS on a pro rata basis.

v.  To the extent that the approved Final Accounting illustrates cost savings
e.g. the Phase 2 Expansion was constructed for less than the Expansion Costs contributed by

DEVELOPERS, including any savings of Contingency amounts contributed by DEVELOPERS),
the CITY shall reimburse to each DEVELOPER its pro rata share of such cost savings within thirty
30) days after CITY' S issuance of the Notice of Approval of Final Accounting.

7.  Reserved Capacitv.

a.  The parties acknowledge that a portion of the Unfunded Expansion Costs includes
the cost of the 0. 4 MGD oversized sewer capacity that is not currently needed by each
DEVELOPER and CITY( the" Reserved Capacitv"). Exhibit C- 1 attached hereto illustrates each
DEVELOPER' S allocation of the Reserved Capacity(" Reserved Capacitv Allocation").  Exhibit

C=2 attached hereto illustrates the overpayment by each DEVELOPER applicable to each
DEVELOPER' S Reserved Capacity Allocation ( the" Reserved Caaacitv Ovemavment").

b.  Each DEVELOPER understands and agrees that its Reserved Capacity Allocation
will not be deemed allocated to such DEVELOPER until such DEVELOPER can demonstrate to

CITY that it needs the Reserved Capacity( a) over the next five( 5) years if the Phase 2 Expansion
5

266



construction has not yet been substantially completed or( b) over the next 3.5 years if the Phase
2 Expansion construction is substantially complete  (" Demonstration of Need").     The

Demonstration of Need shall illustrate DEVELOPER' S then- current projections of its development
and sewer capacity requirements and shall include appropriate backup documentation and other
information as reasonably requested by CITY.   Upon receipt and approval by CITY of the
Demonstration of Need, such DEVELOPER' S portion of Reserved Capacity shall be deemed
perfected and allocated to such DEVELOPER,  subject to the provisions regarding Use
Determinations and Reliance Requirements as set forth herein.  Any DEVELOPER that has not
yet provided a Demonstration of Need for its allocation of Reserved Capacity is defined as an
Unperfected Developer."  The date that when all Reserved Capacity has been perfected or

sold, as applicable, is defined as the" Reserved Capacitv Exhaustion Date."

c.   If the CITY or any DEVELOPER that has perfected its right to Reserved Capacity
each, a ° Perfected Developer") determines that it needs additional sewer capacity from

unperfected Reserve Capacity, CITY or the Perfected Developer(s) may send a notice ( the
Reserved Capacitv Request") to all DEVELOPERS.  Perfected Developers must provide CIT1(

with a copy of all Reserved Capacity Requests by Perfected Developers. Any Reserved Capacity
Request from a Perfected Developer must include a Demonstration of Need for the additional

portion of Reserved Capacity being requested.  If any Unperfected Developer cannot provide an
acceptable Demonstration of Need to CITY within thirty ( 30) days after receipt of the Reserved
Capacity Request, and subject to the payment provisions below, CITY shall sell the requested
portions of Reserved Capacity to ( i) the Perfected Developer that made the Reserved Capacity
Request or ( ii) third parties or CITY, as applicable, if the CITY issued the Reserved Capacity
Request. These sales of Reserved Capacity shall reduce the remaining allocations of Reserved
Capacity from Unperfected Developers on a pro rata basis.

d.  The purchase price for the Reserved Capacity shall be equal to ( a) the Developer
Reimbursement ( defined beiow) applicable to the Reserved Capacity being purchased plus
c) simple interest at the lesser of 10% per annum or the highest rate permitted by law(" Interest"),

accruing on the date that the applicable DEVELOPER funded its share of Expansion Costs (the
Interest Commencement Date").

e.  As used herein, the term " Developer Reimbursement° means the Reserved

Capacity Overpayment and Standby Overcharges applicable to the portion of Reserved Capacity
being sold from that DEVELOPER' S allocation of Reserved Capacity.   An example of the

Developer Reimbursement is attached hereto as Exhibit D. The City is responsible for collecting
the Developer Reimbursement from the purchase, and paying the Developer Reimbursement to
the selling DEVELOPERS, not later than thirty( 30) days after the Reserved Capacity is purchased
by CITY, a third party or PerFected Developer.

f.   Subject to the provisions of Section 4.e., any DEVELOPER'S Reserved Capacity
Allocation, even if perfected, is subject to the Use Determination provisions of Section 9.

8.  Previous Oversizinq; Oversizinq Overpavments.

a.  Separate and distinct from the Reserved Capacity, under the terms of previous
Funding Agreements for the construction of 0. 75 MGD, certain DEVELOPERS have paid for
oversizing of the existing LCTF ( the " 0. 75 MGD Oversizinq Overpavments").  These funding
DEVELOPERS are due reimbursement for the 0.75 MGD Oversizing Overpayments at the time
the oversized capacity is needed by other developers  ( the  " 0.75 MGD Oversizinq
Reimbursement").  Attached hereto as Exhibit E- 1 is a table that sets forth ( i) the identity of the
DEVELOPERS that have paid 0. 75 MGD Oversizing Overpayments, ( ii) the amounY of the 0. 75

MGD Oversizing Overpayments, ( iii) the applicable 0.75 MGD Oversizing Reimbursement that is
due to each of the funding DEVELOPERS and ( iv) the DEVELOPERS that are obligated to pay
the 0. 75 MGD Oversizing Reimbursement( the" 0. 75 MGD Reimbursinq Developers"). The 0. 75

6

267



MGD Reimbursing Developers shall pay the applicable 0.75 MGD Oversizing Reimbursement to
CITY on the Effective Date, and the CITY shall pay the applicable 0. 75 MGD Oversizing
Reimbursement to the applicable funding DEVELOPERS not later than thirty ( 30) days after the
receipt of such funds.   

b.  Separate and distinct from the Reserved Capacity and the 0. 75 MGD Oversizing
Overpayments, under the terms of previous Funding Agreements for the construction of 0.25
MGD, certain DEVELOPERS have paid for oversizing of the existing LCTF ( the " 0. 25 MGD
Oversizinp Overt avments"}. These funding DEVELOPERS are due reimbursement for the 0. 25
MGD Oversizing Overpayments at the time the oversized capacity is needed by other developers
the" 0. 25 MGD Oversizinq Reimbursement"). Exhibit E- 2 identifies( i) DEVELOPERS that have

paid 0. 25 MGD Oversizing Overpayments,  ( ii) the amount of the 0.25 MGD Oversizing
Overpayments, ( iii) the applicable 0. 25 MGD Oversizing Reimbursement that is due to each of
the funding DEVELOPERS and ( iv) the DEVELOPERS that are obligated to pay the 0. 25 MGD
Oversizing Reimbur,sement ( the " 0. 25 MGD ReimbursinA Developers").   The 0. 25 MGD

Reimbursing Developers shall pay the applicable 0. 25 MGD Oversizing Reimbursement to CITY
on the Effective Date,  and the CITY shall pay the applicable 0.25 MGD Oversizing
Reimbursement to the applicable funding DEVELOPERS not later than thirty (30) days after the
receipt of such funds.

c.  The 0. 75 MGD Oversizing Reimbursement and the 0. 25 MGD Oversizing
Reimbursement are referred to herein, collectively, as the" Oversizinp Reimbursements"    

9.   Use Determinations.

a. Unused Capacity. The terms of this Section 9 shall apply if any DEVELOPER has
failed to satisfy Reliance Requirements for such DEVELOPER'S Sewer Allocation by the last to
occur of the Standby Trigger Date and Reserved Capacity Exhaustion Date .( the  " Use

Determination TriQaer Date").  The portion of a DEVELOPER' S Sewer Allocation as to which
such DEVELOPER has not satisfied Reliance Requirements is defined as" Unused Capacitv."

b. Unused Capacity Use Determinations.

i)       From and after the Use Determination Trigger Date, and upon thirty ( 30)
days' prior written notice to all parties, any DEVELOPER may request ( a " Use Determination
Reauest") that CITY determine whether any DEVELOPER has failed to satisfy Reliance
Requirements for its Sewer Allocation (" Use Determination").  CITY may also independently
initiate a Use Determination upon written notice to all pa ties. The parties acknowledge that there
may be multiple Use Determination Requests by individual DEVELOPERS.

ii)      Any Use Determination Request must ( A) describe the Sewer Allocation
desired by the requesting DEVELOPER ( the " Requested Allocation") and ( B) be accompanied

by a Demonstration of Need and proof that the requesting DEVELOPER can satisfy Reliance
Requirements for the Requested Allocation.

iii)      Within 30 days after receipt of a Use Determination Request ( or initiation

of the Use Determination by CITY, as applicable), CITY shall issue a draft summary of Unused
Capacity (the "Unused Capacitv SummarW') listing the affected DEVELOPERS and applicable
Unused Capacity.

iv)     Affected DEVELOPERS must respond with any clarifications or objections
to the Unused Capacity Summary within 15 days after receipt.  If affected DEVELOPERS fail to

respond, they will be deemed to have approved the Unused Capacity Summary.
v)      The final Unused Capacity Summary shall constitute the final  " Use

Determination" and shall be issued by CITY not later than 15 days after receipt of any objections
or clarifications.

7

268



vi)      Non- compliant DEVELOPERS shall have thirty ( 30) days after receipt of
the finai Use Determination ( the " Use Determination Cure Period") in which to satisfy Reliance
Requirements for their Unused Capacity.

vii)     If any non-compliant DEVELOPER fails to satisfy Reliance Requirements
within the Use Determination Cure Period, then CITY shall notify the parties of such failure and
the requesting DEVEL4PER( S) ( or CITY, if CITY initiated the Use Determination) may purchase
the Requested Capacity, up to the amount set forth in the Use Determination.  The requesting
DEVELOPER( S) ( or CITY, as applicable) must purchase the Requested Capacity not later than
thirty( 30) days after expiration of the Use Determination Cure Period by depositing the applicable
purchase price with CITY as set forth below; otherwise, the right to purchase shall expire and be
of no further force and effect.  The CITY shaA identify and sell Unused Capacity on a pro- rata
basis from all DEVELOPERS with Unused Capacity, so that Unused Capacity is not taken from
just one DEVELOPER.  If multiple DEVELOPERS have made Use Determination Requests and
there is insufficient Unused Capacity to satisfy all Requested Allocations, the CITY shall allocate
Unused Capacity on a pro rata basis ( based upon all non- compliant DEVELOPERS' Unused
Capacity) to requesting DEVELOPERS or CITY, as applicable.

viii)    The purchase price for Unused Capacity shall equal the Developer
Reimbursement applicable to the Unused Capacity plus Interest commencing on the Interest
Commencement Date.  CITY shall permit DEVELOPERS selling Unused Capacity to participate
in the next expansion of the LCTF to the extent of the Unused Capacity sold by such
DEVELOPER.

10. Land Based Financina.   Any DEVELOPER may petition the CITY to use community
facilities district or other land based financing (" Land Based Financinca") to pay its share of
Expansion Costs.   If the use of Land Based Financing is approved by CITY, then such
DEVELOPER' S share of Expansion Costs and any other amounts paid by such DEVELOPER
pursuant to applicable Funding Agreements may be reimbursable from proceeds of Land Based
Financing. The ClTY shall adopt a reimbursement resolution to such effect concurrently with the
approval of this Agreement; provided, however, that CITY' S adoption of such a reimbursement
resolution does not obligate CITY to issue bonds or act as the lead agency with respect to such
Land Based Financing.

11. Default.

a.  If any party materially breaches or fails to comply with any of its obligations under
this Agreement, such breaching pa ty shall have thirty( 30) days after receipt of written notice of
breach from a non- defaulting party( the" Breach Notice") to cure such breach or noncompliance
as such period may be extended as set forth below, the" Cure Period").  If such breaching party

does not cure such breach or noncompliance within the Cure Period, it shall be deemed in default
DefaulY')  under this Agreement;  provided,  however,  that if the nature of the breach or

noncompliance reasonably requires more than thirty ( 30) days to cure, the breaching party shall
not be in Default under this Agreement so long as the breaching party commences such cure
within the Cure Period and diligently prosecutes such cure, and provided further that the Breach
Notice shall set forth in reasonable detail the nature of the breach, noncompliance or default, as
the case may be.   The party sending the Breach Notice shall provide a copy to all parties
hereunder.

b.  Subject to the provisions of Section 11( c) below, upon a Default pursuant to
Section 11( a), the parties shall first mediate the dispute in good faith using a mutually acceptable
mediato, which mediation shall be scheduled and concluded not later than 60 days after
expiration of the Cure Period.   The mediation shall be conducted in accordance with the

Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association currently in effect.
Claims, controversies or disputes not resolved by mediation shall be decided by binding arbitration

8

269



unless the parties mutually agree othe wise. Arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association currently in effect.
The demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other parties to this Agreement and the
American Arbitration Association.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any party may seek injuncfive or
other immediate equitable relief, if applicable, in a court of law, pending resolution of the dispute
through mediation or arbitration.       

c.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a payment default hereunder that is
not cured within ten( 10) business days after any DEVELOPER' S receipt of a Breach Notice from
CITY,  ( i) CITY may immediately suspend such DEVELOPER' S ability to use its Capacity
Allocation and ( ii) CITY may sell such DEVELOPER' S Capacity Allocation on a pro rata basis to
the other DEVELOPERS for the purchase price illustrated in Section 9. b.

12. Counteraarts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, including electronic( pd
and facsimile counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original and all of which together

shall be considered the same document.

13. Advice of Counsel.  Each of the parties has received the advice of legal counsel prior to
signing this Agreement.  Each party acknowledges no other party or agent or attomey has made
a promise, representation, or warranty whatsoever, express or implied, not contained herein
concerning the subject matter herein to induce another party to execute this Agreement. The
parties agree no provision or provisions may be subject to any rules of construction based upon
any party being considered the party drafting this Agreement.

14. Governing Law. The validity, interpretation and effect of this Agreement are governed by
and shafl be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Califomia.

15. Severabilitv. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction
to be invalid, void or unenforceable but the remainder of the Agreement can be enforced without

failure of material consideration to any party, then this Agreement shall not be affected and it shall
remain in full force and effect.  If, however, the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of
this Agreement results in a material failure of consideration, all parties shall meet and negotiate
in good faith not less frequently than every ten ( 10) days and formulate new terms that substitute
the stricken clause with other provisions that provide substantially similar terms as the stricken
clause.   If the parties are unable to agree, then the parties shall resolve the issues through
mediation as set forth in Section 11. b.

16. Authorization.    Without any personal liability therefor,  each person executing this
Agreement on behalf of the applicable party hereto warrants that ( i) such party is duly organized
and existing, ( ii) such person has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on
behalf of the applicable party, ( iii) the execution of this Agreement by such person shall bind the
applicable party to the terms of this Agreement, and ( iv) to such person' s knowledge, the
execution of this Agreement does not violate any agreement as to which such party is bound.
CITY represents and warrants that CITY has obtained any necessary approvals to execute this
Agreement and be bound by fhe terms hereof.

17. Other Agreements Not Affected.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement

befinreen the parties hereto with respect to the Phase 2 Expansion and supersedes all prior
understandings or agreements with respect to the subject matter hereof; provided, however, that
this Agreement does not supersede, amend, nor replace any prior written agreement relating to
any matter other than with respect to the matters expressly set forth in this Agreement relating to
this specific Phase 2 Expansian project such as,  without limitation,  the parties'  separate
Consortium Agreement, as amended from time to time, and the Conditional Will Serve Agreement

for Wastewater between CITY and Saybrook dated August 19, 2013. This Agreement may be
modified only by specific reference describing a mutual intent and agreement to amend this
Agreement in written documents signed by all parties hereto.

9

270



18. Greenlighting Future Expansions.  Nothing herein supersedes, amends or replaces any
prior written agreement with respect to the DEVELOPERS'  ability to  " greenlighY'  future
expansions in accordance with the parties' other written agreements regarding "greenlighting."

19.  Notices. All notices which are allowed or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing
and ( i) shall be deemed given and received when personally delivered or ( ii) shall be deemed
given when the same are deposited in the United States Mail, with sufficient postage prepaid, to
be sent by registered or certified mail or overnight mail service, addressed to the designated
person. by one party to another in writing, and shall be deemed received on the fourth business
day after such mailing. Any notice shall be given to all of the following:
CITY RID LMI

City of Lathrop River Islands Development,      Lathrop Mossdale Investors
390 Towne Centre Drive LLC LP

Lathrop, CA 95330 73 West Stewart Road 675 Hartz Avenue

Attn: City Manager Lathrop, CA 95330 Danville, CA 94526

With a copy to:       
Attn: Susan Dell' Osso Attn: Jeff Abramson and Lori

City of Lathrop
With a copy to:       

Waltzer

390 Towne Gentre Drive River Islands Development,

Lathrop, CA 95330 LLC

Attn:  City Attomey 2999 Oak Road, Suite 400

Walnut Creek, CA 94597

Attn:  Lisa Freilicher, Esq.

RDI SAYBROOK

Richland Developers, Inc. Saybrook CLSP, LLC

3161 Michelson Drive, Suite 303 Twin Dolphin Drive

425 Suite 600

Irvine, CA 92612 Redwood Shores, CA 94065

Attn:  General Counsel Attn: Jeff Wilson

With a copy to:       With a copy to:

Richland Developers, Inc. Best and Krieger

3000 Lava Ridge Court, Suite 300 South Grand Avenue,

115 25' Floor

Roseville, CA 95661 Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attn: Clifton Taylor Attn: Seth Merewitz, Esq.

20. Further Assurances. The parties agree to pertorm such further acts and to execute and
deliver such further instruments as are reasonably necessary to accomplish the intent and
purpose of this Agreement.

21. Assiqnment and Transfer. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and bind the

successors and permitted assigns of the parties. Except for an assignment to an Affiliate( defined
below) of a DEVELOPER, no DEVELOPER may assign this Agreement without the priar written
consent of CIT1', which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned. or delayed. Without
limiting the foregoing, prior to any DEVELOPER assignment, (i) the assigning DEVELOPER shall
notify all pa ties of the proposed assignment and provide reasonable information to the parties
regarding the proposed assignee and ( ii) any potential assignee must reasonably demonstrate to
the CITY' s satisfaction that the proposed assignee has the financial ability and experience to fu ill
the assigning DEVELOPER'S obligations under this Agreement.  Any DEVELOPER may assign
this Agreement to an Affiliate, with notice to the other parties hereto.  As used herein, the term

Affiliate" means any person, entity or organization as to which any DEVELOPER has a controlling
10

271



interest.   As used herein, " controlling interest" means the right to control the management
decisions of such person or entity, whether by contract or otherwise.     

22. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

23. Construction.  All parties have been represented by counsel in the preparation of this
Agreement and no presumption or rule that ambiguity shall be construed against a drafting party
shall apply to interpretation or enforcement hereof.  Captions on sections and subsections are

provided for convenience only and shall not be deemed to limit, amend or affect the meaning of
the provision( s) to which they pertain.

24. No Joint Uenture or Partnership. Nothing in this Agreement or in any document executed
in connection with this Agreement shall be construed as creating a joint venture, partnership, or
any agency relationship between CITY and a DEVELOPER or all DEVELOPERS.  CITY shall

have no responsibility for Disposal Infrastructure or any other public improvements unless and
until accepted by CITY.

25. Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless such waiver
is in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the party against whom enforcemen
is sought.

26. Table of Exhibits. The following exhibits are attached hereto and made a part hereof:

Exhibit A:       Funded and Unfunded Expansion Costs

Exhibit B- 1:    Initial Capacity Allocations
Exhibit B- 2:    Standby Charges
Exhibit C- 1:    Developer Allocations of Reserved Capacity
Exhibit C-2:    Resenred Capacity Overpayment
Exhibit D:       Developer Reimbursement

Exhibit E- 1:    Oversizing Overpayments ( 0. 75 MGD)
Exhibit E- 2:    Oversizing Overpayments (0.25 MGD)
Schedule 1:    Funding Agreements
Schedule 2:    Withdrawn Developers

Schedule 3:    Transfer Information

SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWlNG PAGE]

11

272



SIGNATURE PAGE TO CONSTRUCTION FUNDING AGREEMENT]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

CITY RID

C{TY OF LATHROP RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC
a municipal corporation of fhe State of a California limited fiability company
California

B    By,      } . K i t1---`
ame: en J. Saivatore Name: Susan Dell' Osso

Its: Manager Its: Vice President and Secretary

ATTEST:

By: yi(J LMI

Nam  . Teresa Vargas
Its: City Clerk LA7HROP MOSSDALE INVESTORS LP, a
Dated: _       ' 7 California limited partnership

APPROVED AS TO FOR  :  By:
Name:

Its:

Salvador V. Navarrete

City Attorney

RDI SAYBROOK

RICHLAND DEVELOPERS, INC.   SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC
a Delaware corporation a California limited liability company

BY   By:     Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC
Name: its Managing Member
Its:

By:
Name:  Jeffrey M. Wilson
Its: Officer

12

273



SIGNATURE PAGE TO LONSTRUCT( ON FUNDING AGREEMENT]

IN VVITNESS WHERE F; the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

CITY RID

CiTY OF LATHROP RIVER 15LANDS DEV LOPMENT, LLC

m micipal corporation of the State of a California limited liability company
Cafifornia

By:   By:
Name:  Stephen J. Salvatore Name:  Susan Dell' Osso

its:  City Manager Its: Viee President and Secretary

ATTEST:

By:   LMII

Name:  Teresa Vargas

its:  City Clerk LATHROP M SSDALE INVESTORS LP,  a

Dated:      Cpalifornia limited partnership s,,

Y'     1j"' o{' 4 i4}7      ,/ jVVi. jS - n a.   

Pi+ 22T-' E:iL

APPROVED AS T4 FORM:   By:    '
Name:   L t l-fz- Y
Its: C

Salvador V. Navarrete

City Attorney

R(  YSRf30K

RICHI_AND DEVEL4PEf S; INC.   SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC

a Del ware corporatic n a Califarnia limited liability company

8y:   By:     Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC

Name: its Managing Member
Its:

Sy:
Name:  Jeffrey M. Wiison
ts: Officer

12

274



SIGNATURE PAGE TO CONSTRUCTION FUNDING AGREEMENT]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

CITY RID

CITY OF LATHROP RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

a municipal corporation of the State of a California limited liability company
California

By:   sy:
Name: Stephen J. Salvatore Name: Susan Dell' Osso

Its: City Manager Its: Vice President and Secretary

ATTEST:

gy:   LMI

Name: Teresa Vargas

Its: City Clerk LATHROP MOSSDALE INVESTORS LP, a

Dated:       California limited partnership

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   By:
Name:

Its:

Salvador V. Navarrete

City Attorney

RDI SAYBROOK

RICHLAND DEVELOPERS, INC.   SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC

a Delaware corporation a California limited liability company

gy:   By:     Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC

Name: its Managing Member
Its:       

By:      
Name: Jeff ey M. Wilson
Its: Officer

12

275



SIGNATURE PAt3E TO CONSTRUCTION FUNDlNG AGREEMENT]

IN WITtNESS WNEREOF, the partie8 have executed thie Age+eement as of the Eifec ive Date.

CtTY OF LATHROP RNER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT LLC
a munictpal corporation af the State of a Califomia Nmited I bi iy company
Califomta

B!:   By:
tVame: stepn. i. sanratore Plame: suaan' oeso
tts: City Manager Its: Vic:e President and 3ecretary

ATTEST:

By:   11

Name: Teresa Var as
Ite: City Cle lc LATHROP AAOS3DALE INUE3TORS LP; a
Dated:      C iF rtia Ymi ed partnership

APPROYED AS TO FORM: 8 r
Neme:

its:
Satvador V. Navarette

CiIY p ttomeY

AYBRdOK

RICHLAND DEVELOPERS 1NC.   SAYBROOK CL8P LLC
e Delewsre c orporation a Ca fom(a Ifmited tdebilit r oompartiy

By.   ey:
IVsme:       Name: . leif wason
lis: t....=a,.._   its: Co-Mana inp Member

s

276



EXHIBIT A

Funded and Unfunded Expansion Costs

See Attached)

13

277



dm d 
d t a a
Ei a10i a uiu i   u i  

WC N C /
L t/?/ 1' y AY 

3  c o m m o 0 00 0 
O ' jq N  n lD N W O

N N

C    + O1 N

o
o m uO1i     `

i'

O C a C!  tM0 t i1 V  N t 
a`     

C

a ? W    
V1 L1 V? 

V1'(/?     

W
T

Ol U
y L

L Y O CQ e- i M V     00 a t F U
A a+ V d j N « C --

I N tl1     lD X ' C y 61
C r. N p Pr̂1 `"" N Vl yj   M G ry 61 L..

O t

N X V   
d' N

m
N         ' O  O 

O  T 10 W N V? 4/ 1    N N

N  " L]  E G   '       C N  10
O.  0 a

Y N Q a
N Q 4-   7 f0

N o m 3 ^ , n
C - p tv p)  r+ . G ` f' 

O tp + N _

N f0 , a Z C N N N lO P l0
O " 1 M ' s 3

vi ' O tA Y M V C N  O tD n O N C c 6. " c
o v" a     n

u =      V C O C  nff 00 a  1/! O M 6E! C }'
Y t=o Y ' O 0i ai N vf N IV a M lD       "  ',-'

co..-.  
p  `

D e0 ` i
v N vs     ^       p u

c
m ;     u F C  A

v v     

E  ` p rc

w u   v LL

axi •"' m a o,  

N LL L  61 C

Y s,, 'x E  m ==       ;` o in
w a 

v"i

p y C  I cy O
0  . X

c p a o y  ' N   .'`- v m a y o  v

oe ""'      m vv raa` d N  mr•iai''    o°'o rv`°, 3 Y
o '°      

3 `
f' `

e

N n n
y

E   ` ums+ n "
i             ^ ' o

o o o

U ar oo n .       v     v v ì 1 " a

0 0      F  c o o a"i  m m
N L Y

t0 C i/ 1    ++ V p
C

C },      
N N O p O O O

oa      Z v       " o,     c c o og     3  •,° 7, c
a Ly O           N Q O

O O
tA  M1/ iA Vl iA

m      Y O C N.    

Q     Q            LI      N 1 tf1       u 2      r-.

m v
QU O v U o E E U v     in v         o

O

C

v     "

6 7 ( 
v

v1 01

v     ? 

C +'       
61C

C •y     .. 0  . Q     
C.            T       

y, 
H a 01 l0 - I P.     

t/ U ca
a

00

C U    O
O 01 -- I ' i N rl     ' C7 y a      G.

m 3     v,            a vF
cg mrn n               y v 

o ,     « :  o     ° u
oc ti r v v     A    rn n o v i

o       !_^ y o
C C Y `-     C lO L .      01 U1 N Q1 O       

t 0 Y
N      ` 1   C

y J O ciJ li1 i Vf O   N N. V,       N y  ` -
O N N x  O

u 7 C C y a l?
iA U? 1A

y , C  
fV0

a a w "    N L    .'c
g g        3 g `

a m . E Q     o    _ 
m

W w
c

c
o

o , '^
0 oE

m  LL        

w         ° ::    o o i a o '" ° ui '

e  
rn  o o v     ,°, oG m  Mo , o   o       "    

o o ui        ¢ w z    Nn vì aNiw ux+   
o       "'        

V      
a< n  v     °

O
O

Y . 0 p

E21 • f0  
M

ui d M
a O      +' \ p p

G

a N O

p "' N n a M      '         ,, c     
U

C   
c m
o co

m '     in C
OO I        I 

N 1/ 1 N  « •      0
N Oi 00

O 1 n 
p j C n

pp n a h , 7
O O O O

0 p
frl CO Q1 N  c. j 0 O O pj l0

N     
O h p u ' O 00 O O O ',„             j N O      E

O N           MI ! 1 O O 10 O. O i O p
1 fV m N Ol N C fV  lM V1 p p r- I N tG LL a(

p
pp N l0 a O ^       O       \ V II

V V  yj  N 1! 1
i,.,    

M      V} iA   
J y lC N e- I         ~       `        

4? VF       iA i/T V1     1 a- 1 V       (,
d uf Ol Cl     
H .

aL-
7 d d L G1
y Y

0 Y YI
L N

O C       C  E 

p V    `-  
d N 

a+  m ri h0 N N  p

O
C

N v y 7 Y L 
u o a a

u c `o m a,
u   u O a o

Q o

p
Q o o v ..     a

U
N

Y i+    OD       O C LL1 iC C U' \ N C

o  ••       n o     •• a E     N p c o ' a m o
tp E U    `- 

C       sN       `  C u~i tV  d W     C O O O N     ' D

X '  Q y'' ' • S c. o v  ' N $      o  a c o a        a v o a,       
W V      Q        >  •` `     +- .

1      a o a E r  r v   .. a
N     o°'o     a o ri N

E O . E
v d o e i   E o c c c N

U m
O O O i+ '^  K U

O  p'
n     oC O '  N C

Y

d

c
v 

p
Y  

U  D

t
U u u C Q in '- '-   

U O > p` 
n   u i m

N j.      d   ' O        . m         

a'+ 
a o 0 o u

v  
ai a i

a    '! ` 

N o o
u°  u° roa o N o  o a        N

n c  E  '> m

O VF-- Q a a   '' > > M t rif   y Y   - +-' y Gl '^ L  L . 0 OJ   y,  (.
1  "   

II

U U U U O O O m m O  +'     p O  O    7
C >       

tTa m   O O n p,o`. . in cn n .- i F- n > > F-  O U v.. U a H     O G  U z in    F-  Z Q on

278



EXHIBIT B- 1

lnitial Capacity Allocations

See Attached)

14

279



w t/ ' ct l0  o O
m nma , n° o

W  .-  
ai . 

m

c

O O O O  O
v 3 u - o oo o O o ,,10. 

fl,  e i o t o 0
p

LL  

v t0 N .--  `~ 
1

N . 0

C +'O fOJ
oC u       

i

I"'  Y
cG Q c. 0

X  O u m
W O ' C

d

v       c oY
N O

C f9

a c. o    a v
LL

v v    ' o       ;,;  a

G o o  
Y a

a
10     

o o

o   o c o o      '>  on

N   L     
II '

ai  >  
O   ' ++

O cC lJ oc vi . f0 H Q h o

280



EXHIBIT B-2

Standby Charges

See Attached)

15

281



c
c i o

a-+  C p

N N

a-+ .  7 Q n   t0

C   U CO N L
J

f0 a    .    L 7 .`

OD V ++

o C      ' a'.     V o
d     C   

3    v    ° o
o , v o ,`
v •  y p   
s     .

ca   
o 

u    y 7   •-   .  

C   U v C           

LL     Y      • C ++  
C1

v          v    C   _  y  n

3     '   
J TJ 3 y     y N 7  ( 0     

n

p
0       

O   
C C     , C        ' C aJ O

L 3 0    co
Q   .  v       n   - N LL

N Vf U '''       
U       ? 

i  =   C   O     C Q V     
N

0      
n   a)  >,

p      -      O        O_ L f0

C C.   j GUl v i        OD      7 V             ,  
V u     

p
a v          °      d' ai '=     '-' 

N        '          ''      

GJ     O            
10 • C O y

c o
C X O       LL vi C     

4! U p t0     n C      O .'^  c t-'9 O         C LL ' O      7

1
O N v i          C

d      L   j v'        OJ
N       GJ   ''     -'      3 p       , 7 " C

C   Q   `.°     '     ry     `     a     X c  m in   °    vi     p      n OL' O`     -_ .   

I  N     
w o • C          y       7,

G J U O                +'  x
O        O m         ,     C   ~ s vi A

a r v       +=  
m o  °  y o     c o         "  c a o

f0
c

t c V       a  s      o a         w          . @.   

e in v a v L o v m
o       ° p v         o      ai o     ` n

m S v             Z E
c`a +  o     .

a m c a —  c _.     m

a c      
o    °  >   +  L oE o a,  

3
0 },     - 

m o p   .,   c ,   m v .
m E E s

u

s £   o          Y   °  °'       o         3` v      o a i m    ai v

W W a   .               a a E a      a       a   , .       
c

o       

C m o c
v O

H m EO a       - o v     -o a

v E E E E        E a a
a  c 

V tf1 -- I N   ^          M O O        lG          tnD N
N N -- I Ol i Q1 O O          Ql ON LA

N O O O
p

O

i/ Y      i/1        t/} I      
L}L

C

yl
C

p p
N

pp t   t1D
y 6 rp

L

L        L f0 N UU t
V

Q c     
i t0 T U i+      tE G1 N       .

0 C   ti           A O C io O           X      
p ` 

O        C c0 .   N

fG0 C
y.. L     +''      C V1

a
GJ       C N       ''

X    C 1%   N O               Q.a _ 

L w v 3 s c v s 2 , Q v     ..  ui +=      o ew

p O L C lA p ii       .. LL      

LL          

j
N

u. co c .° Q        C.

Q  °   
ai  °     3 s a °    a°    a i e°'o

c • ' m o       o x >  >    ' 3 c à
o m      u'      u.   

v c   Q u'    ' 
c    o s

n
a       

c          o Q - o c . @ ,   c co V

j ro , °  v o     j
c v 3 i     p  +  °-,' °  o N      v

U  U pp i^ u      ' ti7
N         ++  y

7 GCi  (
6

C     
C  `    L G

C   C C                  uf `  fD       +  GJ 7

Q d N V 1 Z U U W  W Ll. U        C-     (. J U W W Q C U O d' N

282



cri G II

cCo

w

a J

a o
p T
Q             O.             j d i.

N pp
0       +'      p 7 y,, V 1

C
c              O

7

a=    O             vl G 4l
c o u7

V N p               C

a C       +       O G!       
N            

N O.

a°',       
3             3 N     ° n,
a,       cc9 o       .-,     a; ao

Ln c
W

LL       ^     3 N     
fV u O 0       ` i

C y `-
i N

ro a,    C
3          u              j            N x     -

a

p LL        C x a                   ro ; n     

tii @                 0             `     3
v 3            ' i                  --      y

o
c o ' a           '

i y m o       ^       a     " c     —-    Q       ,,,           ,     Q.      r              w a a     x     
c      in c              V a      pp p.    

n

ia C            a o       +`'             ry
w G i     " 0

Q             L   " 0     ++       f0 f0 O D       '     U N          L1
II            7 N L-    C       ++     

d n C       p
W CD

C cv       ry V V L                 Gl d             O     . Y O

440 y f 0          
O_ O N       \     Ur       ' O N C W N           L N
X

6! U     "''            
O

Gl vi C C U1             C            j O
m     

UJ
O     

Of D
C          i d N 47

C ti       ,C       
z a'

Q 3 0       >       a c y     
o a,       E o       -       a     r o •            

v c     `       o         "  
00

a oc     +              o `   ,       °,'     ,  y
d     `^

cp X C p       y y fp

C J
a

y          
O

O C          .               Gl 3             7 N

C O u       
is     $    

C  =    X p A LO        .  O            C     ;  C          pp

Q N   1] t9 d y u Z     
a+ ,,",     N p_     G1        

w     
yf     • C O.  O C a     •-     . 1

CN / f
U     ++       0 Li a cD C          ,      O v F-     v            

Z7 C O           M

H ''     C
a co O p O

to  =              d h0 O
m

O .      f0                 
V ++       

U a     ='       
C .   Y y   '

c ÌI
d 7 `

J               
N

U y O C oe ' O   - O 0!     M M vf V O.   t0
V        

V
7 V)     d

w u . LL             >     a    m a   c̀J° 
a            `   m  ` c°°   >       c       c z cv a

c a

y ,,     C ro     
O       

O      N

v     o a a
o

U      "'
in

d'

V r    ^     '     :        
O Ct     - 1 M O M              lD               \u O M 1          lD
N lD     y Q1       ^       ^     f   M

Qt
M

M
M

C1'    i/f i/} i?      00           V} N        
O il1      V?        i/   r' I t/}

C

N

ui

a            V'       C'i o a
J a       

o v       . c
eo      ¢     c            c   u o.     ,n v O                   
v                  y         N      N M C            C      W v i       Q

a      .   
o        o  =     3     "           `° ' a

j, 
f°       v W c ro r.  o a,         d          3 o c a

O  ; 

o           m N 3 a       °' 

a, oo'        v z m`   z o      z
C

p 0         e0 ro p                O Z O Lv   „_,     
o o c7     _   t7

3 N c c n     +           + 
3 0       N     v o                 u  ^ '  v     v            n      

p,  C N LL       LL a
L, L 4-         . i" 1       ri f0 vf       .        

v i

V'  f9
vi

O N in
m Q . m N

a
c0 N      ( 0 rj      U fo O C t j

0 c`0   7 p     O C O!  tL,7 ` i-     u '  
IVO C   G V            _          = Z

a°, °  
a,    a,       ` a   o ' 

a
o

a     .   v ,    a E        3          3

u  '        x >  >, >    >    3 co  >             a° .n h                 Z   -      z oc w v
C   c

a
c

u c pc
O s O a i C. O

m u d   v u o.        p  

n a d .  C ai   -   y A ? 7- C     _  G      >     aCi _-'    N         O r%     `- 
f0  >

s c ro        c `    .           . A d       > ` o     ' o
s       v   , C s y a c w

a-  N C _    O  ' a i+     'C ..,  t n Y  -  C    C y, N Y

i    a '    c s 6 c c c c  ,,  c c        co s v v a    c .          `      u m
o   y x - a v

o ..    v
co ro co co t  ro d X   X o

ro         t
s     `-  a

U  U w w Q  U O oC v'i vi t'n d o vf O. o m` O w  w    >     z F- ' S Z Z n. m`

283



DC
t0

Ld

N L
0 3      
N       m

O ,-      L
N       

V

O L  `     
N        

L  

C y
0 y

C i-+      f/ 1  

ON        c0 t
a u

di
V c      

Q p c       j c
j       

c 
L-

p GJ 0 jm O C  '^    
O J L' J N U N

i^ ^  - _ 

o  ° y o.  Q '3  °
e. i ui  o   n ,   oU Y    N C

M

f' ' ` O '
O ' 3 N O

m   • U N         y
a  OG

uxa W +- m  O ' p   =      a
p Cci c o H    0 3

v c w
N 6

C f0 V . 0 f6 7 C
O  ` C .   +  c  

nb
y N C C  N

GJ    3p   d 
J  f0 • V L V V  i1C uf

t i C     C O
O

LL    
O   v,

V 4-       s

N a C  t '
C.t   N  `  E

cp ' C - p - p    O
7 y     4-•

G)   ! O            

s       a ,  
a+

a    "

p       N o v+
O c0    ,  v!

n N   

v m 0 V  
H

a   

d  
vl f0     ''  

O

v . n v a
o   , c v    

c

m vi       ° c
N

c 3 o a
u   3  °   

O   O - 0

a   y    
3 o u  0

V1 V 1 M-  N U  D
d   LL O    y

iiil    
V  N

O
2 : 9         

284



EXHIBIT C- 1

Developer Allocations of Reserved Capacity

See Attached)

16

285



C
e

V-      o \ 
o ON V1 Ct 1p

M l0 Cfl       

X    Q1 -- 1 Q
C W

d „  
l.l1 l/' 1     

u a2i e o a " Nvm , 

0 0     u " N °° ` r `" ° o

V

O 

V Q o
J o

m
o '

u v

Z  `°   a

N W p Ol
N

C

G1

L a O       N

a ro y    " o       ••  a

u- n  >     v i C  ^
G

v  '^  v     °       

c om   - x       m
o   o c p -      .> — ofOo

d      f°  `-  °         
u

a>i  >  
o   ' af0.    v

G   U oG ui  H Q u p

286



EXHIBIT C- 2

Reserved Capacity Overpayment

See Attached)

17

287



Y

E = a
y m
eo

a  d

C
H '~Y M ~' 1 ` 1     

c a     
m  

E. h o
M    

W  

C

C

a 3  E M 00 t D̂ t f1 a^- 1 N
tD t0 10

pL
u ,  

OmO+ 0 0• 1 00 erf v1 
v o' o omnm     ,n

o   H      
m Z ' 

O
c " 

m ca F-

a ì a`   
a a

c c ma '^     m
0 0

o =  
r,  .-

i o      
a

0 tD L  N e- 1 l0 N     pNj
3

C C a   
Q!  " 

M  -^ i
N         

O

0 0 0 an <n v> '`^    +
n o°'n n°n v

y,,,       

C

L L

f0 C L L          f0

n       
yC p,      i e- i

0 T >-  0C1 O      n l0 .- I ct i. j
O ' D a

O

aL
O      V     .{ 

N ry .- 01 i    m to u ro
v air       m at''i '    .-+  v' 

oe    N 3 :
e m .-.       v - a        a •  "' o `" i

m o o  ^    o c

O i     N l0       ` y        
m

lD tD rl         w w w- N    .  

Fv_-  '   Y y tn 0      vmi  
v} v v    

y,    c c L 3 0

m , L' U Q a    . n p  ^   O a a    
N a  n

b C         X X C
C i    cG t n

W n        ,=  W W E o° o o c o
eQ f0  ( 0

y,
D f0

U C       y O O
e- i - i CF O •  Il  l0  

lD O O
a    . n UJ         

d

m oon mamo no v    a. ;

X         v-      N N N X u i

Q.-1 O t7i a- i O O O O

N Il 0.'     2'  
i/ L L? iA W C C C N

d '      
n n v

o o o  > y
vmv o c c     `—°   s aa a m ry o 3 o

G u N   m 1O        v 3
as

u

nv o0000 0
N-' .

i    o
3 0

ai
00      a        

no a a o00001D         Nv o
EM 00 pNj tD N   j ` N lD C O   p tD     M C p

m       i'is v i'
i'  

3      N  o ,.^.    '    n    ,o
u

J o

Ni  h      LL m ai
o- `

U

N m C

p v-  O
G1 O .

1 oo p u a,

C C a      o vy a a T o  
oo • R m tu

p   a T p  C c ..'^.

o    p
y o o a o

Y  > Y
a. N N .  O u

O 7 u a

n c C7       LL       0 w  a av     r 3
E P E N        p       

N     >  
a E a    o  " 

c        N  a v       o  `o     E  °' N ma
N        a   • N

o
o  ,     m a     °'  r a y a,

u       -    •, `       + .- i . o a o co N o  , c v

o        c     +     m y      
E a d v a

t,,       E "-  E    01 0 ^ c E d a
c o   E m       

c y      E  O 
r       ''"  a,      v y °

1 0 0 v  °'  >    o  

O    .'     E w
c " a  .

Y  
v E =' O

a
N    +  °

uQ v°  o   ` o  = ,    o a , >-      a
c m v o n

a c `  o o' o     , a       «-     ...     o o        o   o c c a       o d
o  , .       v x U a m    o m o a    •.. a

f0 01 ++  ' n
Y  >  f0 a+ 

W
y.,       

6!    y L p  L           f0 r+  
f0       

Q       
II

O
L vl C VI M       —     OJ N      .   Gl  N       Y p

O O O    O        >      4J  >      r?o r o   O O N  >  O O      O ^ ^    . n a
a F-   O u v cJ a F-     u.  O C cc C z n  o H f-  p F- cJ      Z 1°     ¢  

on

288



EXHIBIT D

Developer Reimbursement

See Attached)

18

289



o v
o 

o 0 0 0
a     ?,   m0000 

v  , s  o nom 

X     T  0 0 N '- I .- N-1 N
W  

O    tA V? i/? tl? 

C

L  ( UY
O N

V C    U

L   C N
N           

r
a N i

d    O j.     y O

U 7  ' O
co .  3 a   c  n v  
s c w  n    n o - - o

o  u m m m m m c o  
fl '. 

v00000 ro f0 - o c
a

f0

v Z n  in v v         o ar a,
N O   

a;  ;  v    -
o

C    

3
d N C

D   p       C '  O
C

V  

O O O O m

U    G d   O O O O j
0

n  1l1 O I ci u

N'  N' e- i Ol V Cl N

3 o n ry r,  , u a  >  u

o C    vi o  - 
VT i/ i N tA Q u   .

w.      Y  >         V    `  ( O

C U y s  `  

a C G1 O ro0!  O
p N ra N

G1 Q '-  O
L t 00   ^  O T 

a      fO +-  ,  ,  a   
J

J U d L O U
a- a- 1 a- i r- I .- i O

C       '-

i

w Q, o- 00000       —''         on m      o v . n tn v v       •    d u

m pi U VE C Q   v
p Y  .,     rl

a
C r       

Cl         uf  >           N

W   O t i N a+   y O
N

0 `~'  u " O 00 C l0
in 0   C      y O1 C N  ( 6 C.
C U U Gl a0 C

t H
n  C a''

6 U  ,, i' 4-a O      o •   O

C. N c X Gi N i°   Lx N        p p M  u i  v i j, a rò
f0 W n.   d W a a Z OJ  ( 6 a      [ Y M

N
41   p OJ

a  ° J E E E E E
a °° .^,   

m1D       - o _a  "  aai - a
o X X o X X

C c`     `      o  ;  3  a,

a aì `         d     .   
LL

0! O !'  tD U
i c°      

E1 n o000o
c   o L v

v 3° ' n          o o m y 3 u -o o r̀o 0 0 0 L `
J '  `

m

y  
o . r+ '   ny N

m p  .= r m o    o_       y ,  
m    ,

N `' 1     _:.   N O   . a-i • 0 7 LL fl- pp N' l0  O ^ N . 0 7 ' C    .
y}  a    .      iA y ih       . . .    Vf       V

v

l D N a- 1  `
1 p_ C N O  

O 1 O y
ro

m s
a —      u

a 61 N   d v .Gd d  Q
y Q H 0   

0
@ a       .. a    c

3 Q U R '     0 V X p d  NCl       _   N  ' a

i O OD ti  V
pD      O O u -a v

E v          C
V?       C Q    N  " L

C C a-'
a m 3

a N c       ,-. n o

N
U fD       n Vl

c u' i              +'"' °  a,     `^       v             c 3 00 m
a             c a i   u u       N a a  '. n vr°  

v c a c       -
Y O

C       ' h t       

c0     H C       ++     a G) C   O GJ
a ,,,          ' v a ro  ; ,.,         : o i°       o            °  °  c . .

a

0 0   }       u o  `.            u
n     >     

c S.  v w              C  > o a`,        a  ,  v o u a v o- 
o ''' c  °       + Q     +-'  °       ,       v

o             m v . c f0 0
a..  c            n       .  `  C 5         n 01 0 m - O '    V  +  U p
f0   

v        V fp p   y        V O _  
p C p pd    ..  GJ =   ? r .a

to o E      c o  E     c           o  a     o H 3  °  
u f- in Z a          c U ' in Z a          w a u  n     z °

290



EXHIBIT E- 1

Oversizing Overpayments ( 0. 75 MGD)

See Attached)

19

291



m

C C

m

N   /? N Vf

y.""' y'..
r+' T'..",.";.'"`' r C."'"  . yC'   ' s._-,..._.  

a
p,  r q,w

t     . l0 00  If1 N jUl

u° W' ,,,r O' + w N N  ;:- t
t'''  y.,`  '     O t n tN0 0 1       } M.

X O ey 10«  D V y Y  
o t u..• 4.- c   . ` in o  , _     . 

ui ai ai v ai      , m,

ui  ,   o  •    y r re  „
s

1n
vr v i v1Di vr C. 1'

0 " ' p,
y  } ^{.`     

f
F 1. R;:    D t .

dbk,.`o. o:  t  „ C.. ' ¢ °     r
s.'.     

iS. r t . n
N f iwyLf N,+'G;..- VS l?  -       '+' tt't  

w.:'.,.!_..... 1:<..,:.

o   o m   n a       n

o    .- i      v m

Em        u1Di ry    ` m       
m

q      Ol N GO V1 00       e- 1

1{       ' 

r

y,   
0        Pi 0"

3  ,,•' r"
j ,.    .

if 1f1 Cr  if 00      
f

wy X,    " 5.' g.°II f,/

yv
G'   

pp *
ai SF'.  V  00 Pi1 t      'A9^.

11 LO. O H
yg  

00{ n'
t'   :    .  

t/ f N C l0 N N-.
lf1 , N."°     "   °%`-

xi: 
Of: iT,'" ."+ af  .. w'  an 4n v an       `

M

y

y  '; Q :     Y;   . r  .  # .  } '
i"[}'

TF.
N         

F$ d       .
i,   i.       J.      ?''       r 4

1 lw,
v

iirt,
n'

r ... y, `'../
1,k,..      

O o O a0 0 0 oD m v1

m O 00 O 0 1 O N O V' p

C C       M        
c-    Vf N O tJ1

a      ip i rl O p

j

Ci/f L! N N tA Lf t?    L? N

L '*`
4'""

q'"'"'""
T.,^""., r Y r ; c-;.^.^^--

Q...,..-^^. y     
Mp O N M O1 Q
R O Q1 . 1 A

u

v`'

x 
Q /.: O 1l1

m r' 
n

L 

4' ...

N D a- i 01       ^     

inOl.    p           N
r=.

a.+    O , f0        1 01: O OO a- 1 00 Np  -`.
Y' 01    ?' ro: n^      N . a-1 N h        '     N.    7f1 tD..

N e- 1`' u.

N
tC .. f pp   '+ uy    

Vf a i N M a- 1             u
yy     i

N N t

N
G•  ', 0.. Y  . y5 rY•' j,+t „,; 4a"  "+ a};"

s,4 ,, 1 
f' 1  F,:'     mc

C       !, +
k A..ih, ih VTV) i/ i/} .  i/

s ..'#'"; j V,}     G

7 rG:. x..... r.:..-  a

o E .
1D-

i 000No n n  . 1 N
u, r v   o  u i ° om oì        
f" `p  ^'     u    ' N     mavioo oo         
f 

J  
e\- 1 h    ui    -- 1 - i 00 CII " 1 lG

SO       O y a- i O

U  
O O N

On yQ Lf N Vf tR ih N N V?    

U
O O O et O Vf Qt o a° ee e°       .     w

N O O O 01 O N e- 1 jp N M M 00 M Q V
O t0 1/' f Y O rl I   v-.       ' 7 M t0 N M c      .       

N
n V tI1 01 O 00 N 00 Y/ 1 cY1 M l0 M rY1 O

p Vf M 00 . 1 O N N N a a- 1 O
0

1 N - i i f      

VF tA N tR tA iA 4A

O

O O O O O O t0
O O O 1 O O 1   

C

m        O N O Q1 O / 1 lD

E Lif N n N n  rNi e- 1 V
a. i N N .- 1  N  d'

C N
t/> N 1/ 1 VT t/ f V? iA

I1.

o   pe   1 1' 1 lfl 00 I! 1 O

O O O O O        
f0                  0 E

E L    /
f O 1f 11 O tA

N O 01 N 01 N
y

N ll1 N N l! 1 N N
a- i a- i M f      C

h         
O'     

m
O

E
a

m in m m n m E

v

IO  O    C • N
m  E O O
U  

V d, 
U ai

O u
m Sc

O O O 1D O O l0 d Y             S
N O O O. P O O 1    N

C ,.     U N n

p O N O Q O lf1 l0 C N C           '       
V O 01 N M  N .- 1 O E     

a     C p
C

N N  V N rl      v C Ol a7 C!     O vl O

N O    Y H u

h+ .,   a a   3          
0J

e- 1 '- i

O O Qc
a y n   y n

c 2     E Q
n a m        M t G

r cc' 1 M ~ 

v w v a v o o .'- i

u. m

c c m a o vN N         0 0
Y  a a  2       n Y  j
3 3 o°/co°oa i E - r

m nv

v v o O N  Q o` `o
o o         :_ «    

o L"

in in 3 v°          a m j
c c i !

a .- i U292



EXHIBIT E-2

Oversizing Overpayments ( 0.25 MGD)

See Attached)

20

293



0N

OD7Q
N

Cp       p i''n

pCj C        V

d 10 mc
G

7
m

i/f tR V1 V1 Vf

a .
1D-

i v
N   

N a •  ,.-,- g $    n  

v . .         

va voi voi v
m  m y to  . n vi m .-+    

m . E N a ui ni o o r:    ri. M 0
2 0 0 , y E^,; .  s

o a o .

V v i v  t/ 1, ', . u1 a/   + A n 0
C

V m
lÔ   O O

1

n a     O
o     oi oo . r

n, 

3 m m
r"    .°°-     '" 

m m Y

m m o0
K         

g

r-.-,     O

O     a' `  ' Om o o  ui.     

t
m m          

n' 
m n    o v

N     - i .,  m!  1.  m              N N m
m E `

s      •       ,.     
a v       v     

a
m

C        `  VY N. ih Vf Y/} R i/T Y/? d.>-..  tL
0

y

i o c,_.o o m m o 3@ 8C ; C E           
D l0 o Ol

g
1! 1 1       01 O O o O O Cd7 O              

p tD N' O Q1 f l0          O O O O O O y

a - p o0 .  t0 t/ f' 1 00 I 00' a- i ui O O O O O O O C
X Op C M N 00 t e- i .- i tD l0 l0 00 N    

LLJ  .'   N N' - i:, .  . c+ f          _       
O Y Z'

N    
N    

m

N 2O.   
0

f:' ,.     

Gl

N        '     t/ in tn' vi v i/? tn       n r

M fYf O' 00' O' iA O
O o O O O O O i

E:. * .  , M". Vm1 1A a O M N p O O O c
s      ; ; a; 

vmmm N.   Q N     N 3
N` _ '       

o.' m ov n vt if vi vi vt
o

o v   . \.
E ;  o oE

m       .; m,. cn m. n m'  c

L, `  [ f lD' M f' 1' l0, M d

N y
o6  . ae. ac oo E

v

c,       n             o
o' g o, v' ofin rn f0,

m  ' r
o m  v_o  m u m a      y p

E  -. c ui. bi o 00.- i oo ni o ' n —, o v a

n..  n  .; n•• o, m .,,_ n ry o v      o         a

N.  a+      ..:  N e9 tD a y N a+     .     
E

C            .  '  Y m Z t 0/ T
3  3 ' z''       a 

o 

v ; .
m o - c
v  N

J
O 

O oai  

F-   
i

a` «~-iu294



SCHEDULE1

Funding Agreements

1)  Funding Agreement between City of Lathrop and Jass Sangha dated March 17, 2015
2)  Funding Agreement between City of Lathrop and David Lazares and Cynthia Lazares

Trust dated March 17, 2015

3)  Funding Agreement between City of Lathrop and Richland Developers, Inc. dated March
19, 2015, as amended by Amendment to the Funding Agreement dated March 10, 2016,
as revised by that certain Partia) Assignment befinreen Richland Developers, Inc. to
Richland Communities, Inc. dated March 10, 2016

4)  Funding Agreement befinreen City of Lathrop and River Islands Development, LLC dated
March 20, 2015, as amended by Amendment to the Funding Agreement dated March
10, 2016

5)  Funding Agreement between City of Lathrop and Lathrop Mossdale Investors LP dated
March 20, 2015, as amended by Amendment to the Funding Agreement dated March
10, 2016

6)  Funding Agreement between City of Lathrop and Ramona Chace, LLC dated March 20,
2015

21

295



SCHEDULE 2

Withdrawn Developers

Lathrop Gateway Business Park
Ramona/ Chase/ Pegasus

Jass Sangha

Richland Communities, Inc., a Florida corporation

22

296



SCHEDULE 3

Transfer Informafion

WASTEWATER CAPACITY TRANSFER CRITERIA

Any Developer or third party who has acquired wasfewater capacity under this Agreement and
who wishes to transfer some or all of its wastewater capacity shall apply for the transfer through
the City' s Public Works Director. The application shall include the following information and be
submitted with the requisite fee( s):

1.  Name of transferor and proposed transferee.
2.  Address and/ or APN of the parcel( s) to benefit from the transfer.
3.  The number of Equivalent Capacity Units ( ECU' s) or Interceptor System Units ( ISU' s)

needed.  

4.  A description of the proposed development in sufficient detail to identify the patential
impacts and benefits of the proposed development.

5.  A letter from the purchaser committing to obtain a building permit, parcel map or final
map with one year from City approval of the transfer, or to sell the units back to the City
at the end of one year unless. Council approves an altemative time limit. The repurchase
price shall be the same as the cost paid by the transferee at the time the transfer took
place, less the City' s administrative fee.

6.  An application fee to cover the cost of staff efforts, including the preparation of staff
reports for Council action and a ten percent( 10%) deposit toward the cost of the units.

7.  An acknowledgement that it is the purchaser' s responsibility to provide any sewer line
extensions and related facilities necessary to utilize the ECU' s or ISU' s.

The City's Public Works Director shall consider the following factors in approving or denying a
transfer request:

1.  Is the request consistent with the City' s General Plan?
2.  Is the request consistent with the City's Sewer Master Plan?
3.  Is the request consistent with the City's Zoning Ordinance?
4.  Is the request consistent with any other applicable local, state or federal laws,

regulations or ordinances?

Upon receipt of a written reque§t and payment of the appropriate fee(s), the City Engineer will
prepare a report for City Council consideration and action. The City Council may approve the
request and authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement approved by the City Attomey
with the applicant, or deny the request based on the foregoing factors. If the City Council
approves a transfer of ECU' s or ISU' s from one parcel( s) to a different parcel( s), the applicant
shall pay all costs to prepare and record an agreement( s) for the transfer. The agreement( s) will

be recorded and advise future property owners of the transfer and limitations on future
development.

23

297



EXHIBIT " "

Doc q:  2018- 047863
05/ 01/ 2018 08: 45: 03 AM

I Page:  1 of 22 Fee: $ 0
Steve J. Bestolarides
San Joaquin County RecordersRECORDING REOUESTED BY, AND I Paid By: SHOWN ON DOCUMENT i

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

i IIII EI 7'', I Ir l'. y II(I(       I
CITY OF LATHROP

ATTN: CITY CLERK

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CA 95330

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER' S USE

TRANSFER AGREEMENT RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN SOUTH LATHROP LAND, LLC., AND

RICHLAND DEVELOPERS INC., FOR

THE SOUTH LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN DEVELOPER

AGREEMENT, DATED AUGUST 3, 2015, RECORDED ON
SEPTEMBER 5, 2015, ( INSTRUMENT NO. 2015- 106926)

ADOPTED BY CITY OF LATHROP ORDINANCE NO. 18- 390

298



RECORDING REQUESTED BY:

CITY OF LATHROP
ATTN: CITY CLERK

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE
LATHROP, CA 95330

Space Above Line For Recorder' s Use Only)

TRA.NSFER AGREEMENT R LATING TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Transfer Agreement Relating To Development Agreement (" Transfer Agreement") is

made this   day of March, 2018, by SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L.L. C., a Delawai e limited liability

company (" Assignee"), and RICHLAND DEVELOPER' S 1NC., a Delaware corporation (" Assignor") with

reference to the following recitals.

RECITALS

A.       Substantially concurrently with the recordation of this Transfer Agreement, Assignor
has conveyed to Assignee that certain real property described in Exhibit " A" attached hereto and incorporated
herein( the" Property").

B.       Assignor, as " Seller" and Assignee, as " Buyer" entered into that certain Agreement of

Purchase and Sale of Option and Escrow Instructions dated as of February 28, 2018 pursuant to which Assignor
has agreed to transfer and assign an option to purchase the Property to Assignee, and Assignee will substantially
concurrently obtain fee title( the" Purchase Agreement"). Escrow is expected to close on March 2, 2018.

C.       Assignor is a party to that certain Annexation Agreement and Separate Development
Agreement by and between The City of Lathrop (" City") and Richland Developers, Inc. relating to The South
Lathrop Specific Plan dated August 3, 2015, which was recorded on September 2, 2015 as Instrument No. 2015-
106926( the" Development Agreement").

D.       Assignor and Assignee acknowledge that the Ancillary Properties referenced in the
Development Agreement were never annexed into the City, were personal to Assignor, and have been sold by
Assignor.

E. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Assignor desires to assign and Assignee desires to

assume all of Assignor' s rights, duties and obligations under the Development Agreement.

AGREEMENT

299



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties herein, and for
good and valuable consideration, the receipt of sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as
follows:

l. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals of fact set forth above are true and correct and

are incorporated into this Agreement in their entirety by this reference.

2. Assi, nment to and Assumption by Assig ee.   Effective as of the date that Assignee

acquires fee title to the Properiy, Assignor hereby sells, transfers and assigns to Assignee, and Assignee hereby
expressly and unconditionally assumes all the rights, duties and obligations of Assignor under the Development
Agreement, including, without limitation, all of the general rights, duties and obligations of Assignor under the
Development Agreement for the development of the Property.  Assignee agrees to observe and fully perform all
of Assignor' s obligations under the Development Agreement, and to be subject to all the terms and conditions

thereof, it being the express intention of both Assignor and Assignee that, upon execution of this Transfer
Agreement, Assignee shall become substituted for Assignor as " Richland" under the Development Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Transfer Agreement shall not apply to, and Assignor shall retain, any and all
rights in and to, any refunds, reimbursements or credits of any kind or character applicable to work performed or
sums paid prior to the effective date of this Transfer Agreement.

3. Release of Assignor.   Pursuant to Section 13. 02. 2 of the Development Agreement,

Assignor shall be free from any and all liabilities accruing on or after the date hereof with respect to the
Development Agreement.  No breach or default under this Transfer Agreement or the Development Agreement

by Assignee shall be attributed to Assignor.  For purposes of this Transfer Agreement, the " Release Provisions"
shall be all Rights and Obligations of Assignor under the Development Agreement that arise from and after the

date that Assignee acquires fee title to the Property.

4. Assi nee' s Acknowled ment.  Assignee hereby agrees and acknowledges that Assignee
has had full opportunity to read and review the Development A eement and is familiar with the rights and
obligations under the Development Agreement.

5. Notices.   Pursuant to Section 15. 09 of the Development Agreement, from and after the

date hereof, notices for Richland shall be addressed as follows:

If to RDI:

South Lathrop, LLC
527 W 7th Street, Suite 308

Los Angeles, CA 90014

Attn: Philip J. Prassas
Email: prassas[ a,chindustrial. com

With a copy to:
Barack Ferrazzano Kirschbaum& Nagelberg LLP
200 West Madison Street, Suite 3900

Chicago, Illinois 60606

Attn: Mark J. Beaubien

Facsimile: ( 312) 984- 3150

Email: mark. beaubien( u bfkn. com

6. Termination. This Transfer Agreement shall be of no force and effect unless Assignee

acquires fee title to the Property on or before June 1, 2018.  

7. Governing; Law.   This Transfer Agreement is made and entered into in the State of

California and shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
California. Venue shall be in San Joaquin County.

300



8. Bindin t This Transfer Agreement shall apply to, bind, and inure to benefit of
Assignor and Assignee, and their respective heirs, Iegal representatives, successors and assigns.

9. Counterparts.  This Transfer Aaeement may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be an original, but all of which shail together constitute one instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Transfer Agreement has been executed as of the date first

above written.

ASSIGNOR

RICHLAND DEVELOPERS, INC.,

a Delaware corporation

C

By:

Name:      J0 C• TTOUtill

e esi en
Title:

ASSIGNEE

SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L.L.C., a Delaware limited

liability company

By: CHI West 109 South Lathrop Land, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership,
its managing member

By: CHI LTH GP, L.L.C., a Delaware limited
liability company, its er

By:
Nam :     

Title:       } g  

301



CALIFOFtN1A ALL- PIJRPOSE ACKIdOWLE GINE lT CtVIL CODE § 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California 
ne

County of_     r       

On   " tl 1.  l before me,   Uv! J.  5, I  il`,-

Date Here lnsert Name and Tit/e of the Officer

personally appeared v 1        ( l i,

Name( s) of Signer( s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( j whose name sj is/
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/ she/ they executed the same in
his/ her/their authorized capacity jes), and that by his/ her/their signature aJ' on the instrument the person(s);
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(,s acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

ALLI50N ADAMS      
W TNESS my hand and official seal.Commission # 2143555

d Notary Public- Callfornia z
z Orange County

D

M Comm. Ex ires Feb 21, 2020'      Signature

ignature of Notary Public

Place Notary Sea/ Above
OPTlONAL

Though this section is optional, compleiing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document:       Document Date:

Number of Pages:      Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity( ies) Claimed by Signer( s)
Signer' s Name:  Signer's Name:

Corporate Officer — Title(s):      Corporate Officer — Title( s):

Partner —   Limited    General Partner —   Limited   General

Individual Attorney in Fact O Individual Attorney in Fact
Trustee O Guardian or Conservator Trustee Guardian or Conservator

Other:  Other:

Signer Is Representing: Signer Is Representing:

02014 National Notary Association • www. NationalNotary. org • 1- 800- US NOTARY( 1- 800- 876- 682   Item# 5907

302



CALIFORNIA ALL- PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfufness> accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California l

County of P J
On  

p_     
o      -      o, bl c

l     before me,       
G

Date N re Jnsert Name and Title of the Offrc r

personally appeared i    . • G LtS
Name( of Signer(s)j

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(,v whose name j is/ ay subscribed
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/ spE/ tl y executed the same in his/ h r/ tfy2ir
authorized capacity( i), and that by his/ I yer/ t ir signature) on the instrument the person(, or the entity
upon behalf of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the
Y

PAMELA ALONGI laws of the State of California that the foregoing
NotaryPublic- California

Z paragraph is true and correct.Z -       Orange County       >
Commission# 2230200

MyComm. ExpiresMar2, 2022 WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature

Place Notary Seal and/ or Stamp Above Signature of Notary Public
OPTIONAL

Completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
froudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document:     - row. F,er    e, r, v n. n-

Document Date:    Numberof Pages:

Signer( sJ Other Than Named Above:

Capacity( ies) Claimed by Signer( s)
Signer' s Name:     Signer' s Name:

Corporate Officer— Title(s):   Corporate Officer— Title( s):

Partner—  Limited  General Partner—  Limited  General

Individual Attorney in Fact Individua(       Attorney in Fact
o Trustee Guardian of Conservator     Trustee Guardian of Conservator

Other:     Other:

Signer is Representing:   Signer is Representing:

02017 National Notary Association

303



CITY' S CONSENT TO ASSIGN

Pursuant to Section13. 022 of the Development Agreement, the City of Lathrop hereby consents to the
Transfer Agreement and acknowledges that Assignor/ Richland, having satisfied the conditions to the release set
forth in Section 13. 02. 2 of the Development Agreement, shall be released from its obligations under the

Development Agreement.

CITY OF LATHROP,

a California municipal law corporation

By:

Name:  SO I i k/ Y/ C(fj WGt 

Title:       N` a    U  V/`          W17'{

Dated:  

ATTEST:

By:
eresa Vargas, City C1

Dated: I/

APPRO ED AS TO LEGAL FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

3  _ z- 7/ 
Dated:

Page 4

304



CALIFORNIA ALL- PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE§ 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California     

County of J/

On   -// (/   before me,   Z/      `   /' /  

Date He Insert ame and rtle of the fficer
P

personally appeared v' / 6    ' uU`     

Name( s) of Signer( s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( s) whose name( s) is/ are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/ she/ they executed the same in
his/ her/ their authorized capacity( ies), and that by his/ her/ their signature( s) on the instrument the person( s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person( s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

TERESA VARGAS WITNESS my hand and officia! seal.
ommission 21026t2

z ,-
r trotary Public- California D

San Joaquio County Signature
Comm.    res Mar 9, 2019

Signature of No ry ublic

P/ace Notary Seal Above
OPT/ ONAL

Though this secfion is optional, completing this information can deter a/ teration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of Attached Do umen s'( f (/ ND. l J' p92
Title or Type of Document       Document Date:   3[ a- /
Number of Pages:      Signer{ s) Other Than Named Above: ____       

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer' s Name:  Signer' s Name:

Corporate Officer — Title( s):      Corporate Officer — Title( s):

Partner —   Limited    General O Partner —  CI Limited   General

Individual Ll Attorney in Fact Individual 1 Attorney in Fact
Trustee Guardian or Conservator Trustee l- l Guardian or Conservator

Other:   Other:

Signer Is Repr senting: Signer Is Representing:
G,-  o  U r ww

02014 National Notary Association • www. NationalNotary. org • 1- 800- US NOTARY( 1- 800- 876- 6827)   Item # 5907

305



Exhibit A

Page 1 of 14

APN 191- 270- 24 and 191- 270- 26

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of Califomia,
described as follows:

A PORTION OF SECTIONS 14, 15 AND 16, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST,

MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, MORE PARTiCULARLY DESCRIBED AS

FOLLOWS:

PARCEL A, AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN PARCEL MAP FILED FOR RECORD FEBRUARY 19,

2004 IN BOOK 23 OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGE 9, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

APN 191- 270- 24 and 191- 270- 26

306



Exhibit A

Page 2 of 14

APN 191- 270- 11, 191- 270- 32 and 191- 270- 33

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of California,
described as follows:

PARCEL 1 AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN PARCEL MAP FILED FOR RECORD DECEMBER 30,

20041N BOOK 23 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 91, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS,

TOGETHER WITH ALL THAT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF SAN

JOAQUIN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, BEING A PORTION OF PARCEL 2 AS SHOWN ON THAT

CERTAIN PARCEL MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 23 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 91, SAN

JOAQUIN RECORDS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF PARCEL 2 AS SHOWN ON THE ABOVE

MENTIONED PARCEL MAP, THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, ALONG THE

EASTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 2, SOUTH 00° 00' 43" WEST 1261. 03 FEET TO THE

SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 2;

THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 2, NORTH 89° 59' 17" WEST
284. 91 FEET;

THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTHERLY LINE AND ENTERING SAID PARCEL 2, THE

FOLLOWING FIVE( 5) COURSES:

1.   NORTH 00° 00' 43" EAST 721. 00 F'EET;

2.   SOUTH 89° 59' 17" EAST 18. 00 FEET;

3.   NORTH 00° 00' 43" EAST 11625 FEET;

4.   NORTH 89° 59' 17" WEST 18. 00 FEET;

5.   NORTH 00° 00'43" EAST 424. 00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID

PARCEL 2;

THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE, SOUTH 89° 56' 35" EAST 284. 91 FEET, TO THE

TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION IS MADE PURSUANT TO THAT CERTAIN CERTIFICATE

APPROVING A LOT LINE/ BOLTNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENT, CERTIFICATE NO. PA- 0800041,

RECORDED MARCH 28, 2008, AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2008- 050423 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.

APN 191- 270- 11, 191- 270- 32 and 191- 270- 33

307



Exhibit A

Page 3 of 14

APN 191- 280- 09 AND 191- 280- 10

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Rea] property in the unincorporated area of the Coimty of San 7oaquin, State of California,
described as follows:

PARCEL ONE( APN 191- 280- 09):

A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN SECTION NINE( 9) AND TEN( 10), TOWNSHIP ONE( 1)

SOUTH, RANGE SIX( 6) EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, DBSCRIBED AS

FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT AN IRON PIPE AT FENCE CORNER AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF

THE BRANDT RANCH, SAID PII' E BEING IN THE WEST LINE OF I. OT LINE NINE( 9) OF

SHIPPEE FRENCH CAMP TRACT, AND 12. 25 CHAIN3 NORTH OF THE CENTER OF SAID

SECTION 10; THENCE DUE WEST ALONG FENCE ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE BRANDT

PROPERTY, 456. 5 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE IN THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD,

KNOWN AS ROBERTS ISLAND ROAD; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID

ROAD AS FOLLOWS:

SOUTH 53° 10` WEST, 50. 04 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE; DUE WEST 1460. 55 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE

AT THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED TRACT; THENCE

CONTINUE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF COUNTY ROAD, DUE WEST 1310. 0 FEET TO AN

IRON PIPE; THENCE SOUTH O 1° 45` EAST, 3417. 0 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE IN THE SOUTH LINE

OF THE BRANDT PROPERTY; THENCE SOUTH 89° 45` 30" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF

BRANDT PROPERTY, 1310. 2 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE; THENCE NORTH 1° 45` WEST, 3422. 5 FEET

TO THE TRUE POWT OF BEGINNING.

EXCEPT THAT PORTION OF SAID LAND DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED MARCH 17, 1967

IN VOL. 3111 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 215 SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

PARCEL TWO( APN 191- 280- 09):

A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN SECTION NINE( 9), TOWNSHIP ONE( 1) SOUTH, RANGE SIX

6) EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT AN IRON PIPE AT FENCE CORNER AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE

BRANDT RANCH, SAID IRON PIPE BEING IN THE WEST LINE OF LOT NINE( 9) OF SHIPPEE

FRENCH CAMP TRACT AND 1225 CHAINS NORTH OF THE CENTER OF SECTION TEN( 10),

SAID TOWNSHIP AND RANGE; THENCE DUE WEST ALONG FENCE ON THE NORTH LINE OF

THE BRANDT RANCH, 456. 5 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE IN THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF COUNTY

ROAD, KNOWN AS THE ROBERTS ISLAND ROAD; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE

OF SAID ROAD AS FOLLOWS:

SOUTH 53° 10` WEST, 50. 04 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE, DUE WEST 2770. 55 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE;

THENCE LEAVING ROAD, SOUTH O1° 45` EAST, l 153. 0 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE AT PROPERTY

CORNER; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 1° 45` EAST, 1168. 2 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE AT THE

TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE FOLLOWTNG DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND; THENCE

308



Exhibit A

Page 4 of 14

CONTINUE SOUTH O1° 45` EAST 1095. 8 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE IN THE SOUTH L1NE OF THE

BRANDT PROPERTY; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTN LINE OF THE BRANDT PROPERTY,

NORTH 89° 45` 30" WEST, 2269 FEET TO THE RIGH' I' BANK OF THE SAN JOAQUIN RIVER;

THENCE DOWNSTREAM ALONG THE RIGHT BANK OF THE SAN JOAQUIN RIVER AS

FOLLOWS:

NORTH O1° 45` EAST, 382 FEET; NORTH 53° 10` EAST, 340 FEET; NORTH 40° 30` EAST, 495

FEET; NORTH 20° 10` EAST, 136. 7 FEET; THENCE LEAVING THE RIVER DUE EAST 1572. 3 FEET

TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINI IING.

APN 191- 280- 09 AND 191- 280- 10

309



Exhibit A

Page 5 of 14

APN 191- 280- 11

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of California,
described as follows:

A PORTION IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUfH, RANGE 6 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE

AND MERIDIAN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT AN IRON PIPE AT FENCE CORNER AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF

THE BRANDT RANCH, SAID IRON PIPE BEING IN THE WEST LINE OF LOT 9 OF SHIPPEE

FRENCH CAMP TRACT, AND 12. 25 CHAINS NORTH OF THE CENTER OF SECTION 10, SAID

TOWNSHIP AND RANGE; THENCE DUE WEST ALONG FENCE ON THE NORTH LINE OF

BRANDT RANCH,

456. 5 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE IN THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD KNOWN AS THE

ROBERTS ISLAND ROAD; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID ROAD AS

FOLLOWS: SOUTH 53° 10' WEST, 50. 04 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE; DUE WEST 2770. 55 FEET TO

AN IRON PIPE; THENCE LEAVING ROAD, SOUTH 1° 45' EAST, 1153 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE AT

THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE FOLLOWING AND WITHIN DESCRIBED 40. 585

ACRE TRACT OF LAND; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 1° 45' EAST, 1168. 2 FEET TO AN IRON

PIPE; THENCE DUE WEST 1572. 3 FEET TO THE RIGHT BANK OF THE SAN JOAQLTIN RIVER;

THENCE DOWNSTREAM ALONG THE RIGHT BANK OF THE SAN JOAQUIN RIVER, AS

FOLLOWS: NORTH 25° 10' EAST, 306. 8 FEET; NORTH 2° 15' EAST, 210 FEET; NORTH 33° OS'

EAST, 210 FEET; NORTH 33° OS' WEST, 207 FEET; NORTH 56° 25 ' WEST, 236 FEET TO

PROPERTY CORNER; THENCE ALONG PROPERTY LINE, AS FOLLOWS: NORTH 40° 23' EAST,

494 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE; DUE EAST 1387. 65 FEET TO THE TRUE POIIVT OF BEGINNING.

APN 191- 280- 11

310



Exhibit A

Page 6 of 14

APN 193- 340- 03

LEGAL DESCRII' TION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of Califomia,
described as follows:

THAT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN SECTIONS( 3) AND G OF C. M. WEBER
GRANT, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A STEEL AXLE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID C. M. WEBER GRANT;

THENCE NORTH 89° 23` EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID C. M. WEBER GRANT, BEING

THE SOUTH LINE OF BRIGGS PROPERTY, 4004. 07 FEET TO A STEEL AXLE AT THE SOUTHWEST
CORNER OF PETERS, 41. 56 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED IN VOL. 592 OF

OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 341; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID PETERS PROPERTY,

NORTH 0° 37' WEST, 1191. 8 FEET TO A STEEL AXLE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID
41. 56 ACRE TRACT; THENCE SOUTH 89° 52' 15" WEST, 691. 05 FEET TO A POINT' DESIGNATED
A; THENCE NORTH 0° 07` 45" WEST, 50 FEET TO A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF THE STUART
60 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED IN VOL. 506 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE
489; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF STUART PROPERTY, SOUTH 89° 52' 15" WEST,

1607. 48 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE STUART 5 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN
DEED RECORDED IN VOL. 531 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 332; THENCE ALONG THE
WEST LINE OF SAID 5 ACRE TRACT, NORTH 0° 07" 45" WEST, 557. 77 FEET TO THE

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 5 ACRE TRACT; THENCE ALONG BOUNDARY LINE OF
ABOVE MENTIONED STUART 60 ACRE TRACT, SOUTH 89° 52" 15" WEST, 1753. 02 FEET TO A
CORNER OF SAID 60 ACRE TRACT IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID C. M. WEBER GRANT;

THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID C. M. WEBER GRANT, SOUTH 1° 56` EAST, 1834.5
FEET TO THE POIN' I' OF BEGINNING.

EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION DESCRIBED IN DEED TO ROSAURO A. DACLAN
AND PAULA D. DACLAN, HIS WIFE, RECORDED JANUARY 22, 19521N VOL. 1389 OF
OFFICIAL RECOR. DS, PAGE 359, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

A PORTION OF SECTION G OF C. M. WEBER` S GRANT, MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINI TING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION G OF SAID WEBER GRANT; THENCE
NORTH 1° 56` WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION, A DISTANCE OF 1834. 5 FEET
TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE STUART 60 ACRE TRACT, RECORDED NOVEMBER 6,
19351N VOL. 506 OF OFFTCIAL RECORDS, PAGE 489; THENCE SOUTH 89° 30` EAST ALONG
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 60 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 1753. 02 FEET TO THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE STUART 5 ACRES TRACT, DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED
JLTNE 5, 1936 IN VOL. 531 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 332; THENCE SOLJTH 0° 07` 45" WEST
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 5 ACRE TRACT AND SAID WEST LINE PROJECTED
SOUTHERLY TO A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID WEBER GRANT; THENCE WEST
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID WEBER GRANT TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

APN 193- 340- 03

311



Exhibit A

Page 7 of 14

APN 241- 020- 70

I,EGAL DESCRIPTION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of California,
described as follows:

A PORTION OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE

AND MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE

CENTRAL PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY WITH THE QUARTER SECTION LINE NORTH AND
SOUTH THROUGH SAID SECTION 3; THENCE RUNNING SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID

SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THE IN' TERSECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE MOSSDALE

ROAD PRODUCED TO MEET THE SAME; BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE TRACT

OF LAND HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUNNING SOUTH TO THE SOUTH LINE OF 3ECTION

3; THENCE WEST TO THE RIGHT BANK OF THE SAN JOAQUIN RIVER; THENCE FOLLOWING

THE MEANDERS OF SAID RIVER DOWNSTREAM TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST

LINE OF THE MOSSDALE ROAD; THENCE FOLLOWING SAiD L1NE OF ROAD

NORTHEASTERLY TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH TFIE SOUTH LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF

CENTRAL PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID RIGHT

OF WAY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM A 100 FOOT STRIP OF LAND CONVEYED TO STATE OF

CALIFORNIA FOR HIGHWAY PURPOSES BY DEED RECORDED APRIL 17, 1925 IN BOOK OF

OFFTCIAL RECORDS, BOOK 67, PAGE 375, SAN JOAQUIN COLINTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM ALL THAT PORTION OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED

REAL PROPERTY LYING EAST OF THE EAST LINE OF THE OLD MOSSDALE ROAD AND

NORTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE NEW STATE HIGHWAY:

COMMENCING AT A POINT 50 FEET SOUTH OF INTERSECTION OF CENTER LINE OF

CENTRAL PACIFTC RAILWAY RIGHT OF WAY WITH THE ONE- HALF SECTION LINE

RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH THROUGH SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST,

MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN; THENCE RUNNING SOUTH ALONG SAID ONE- HALF

SECTION LINE TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH

LINE OF SECTION 3 TO THE RIGHT BANK OF SAN JOAQUIN RIVER; THENCE FOLLOWING

THE MEANDERINGS OF SAID RIVER DOWNSTREAM TO ITS INTERSECTION WTI' H THE EAST

LINE OF OLD MOSSDALE ROAD; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID OLD MOSSDALE

ROAD NORTHEASTERLY TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH A LINE PARALLEL WITH AND 50

FEET SOUTH OF THE CENTER LINE OF CENTRAL PACIFIC RAILWAY RIGHT OF WAY;

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID LINE PARALLEL WITH E1Nll 50 FEET SOUTH OF

THE CENTER LINE OF THE CENTRAL PACIFTC RAILWAY RIGHT OF WAY TO THE POWT OF

COMMENCEMENT AND BEING A PORTION OF THE WEST 1/ 2 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 2

SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM ANY PORTION THEREOF LY1NG WITHIN THE 400

FOOT CONGRESSIONAL GRANT OF CENTRAL PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY.

312



Exhibit A

Page 8 of 14

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR HIGHWAY PUR.POSES BY DEED RECORDED AUGUST 16, 1928 IN BOOK OF OFFICIAL

RECORDS, BOOK 247, PAGE 165, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR HIGHWAY PURPOSES BY DEED RECORDED OCTOBER i l, 1955 IN BOOK OF

OFFICIAL

RECORDS, BOOK 1797, PAGE 536, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO STATE OF CALIFORI IIA

FOR HIGI-IWAY PURPOSES BY DEED RECORDED JANUARY 8, 1945 IN BOOK OF OFFICIAL

RECORDS, BOOK 907, PAGE 334, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO STATE OF CALIFORNIA BY

DEED RECORDED APRIL 17, 1969 IN BOOK OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, BOOK 3297, PAGE 147,

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO RECLAMATION DISTRICT

NO. 17, A PUBLIC AGENCY BY DEED RECORDED APRIL 22, 2010 AS INSTRUMENT NO.

2010055050 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, SAN JOAQLTII I COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPTING ANY PORTION OF THE LAND WITHIN THE NATURAL BED OF THE SAN

JOAQUIN RIVER AND ITS TRIBUTARIES BELOW THE ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK

WHERE IT WAS LOCATED PRIOR TO ANY ARTIFICIAL OR AVULSIVE CHANGES IN THE

LOCATION OF THE RIVERBED.

APN 241- 020- 70

313



Exhibit A

Page 9 of 14

APN 241- 030- 13

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of 3an Joaquin, State of California,
described as follows:

PARCEL ONE:

A PORTION OF SECTIONS 3 AND 10, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, MOUNT

DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A PO1NT ON THE ONE- HALF SECTION LINE, 6. 44 CHAINS WEST OF THE

QUARTER SECTION CORNER OF THE EAST SIDE OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH,
RANGE 6 BAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN; THENCE NORTH ALONG A FENCE

AND 6. 44 CHAINS WEST OF THE SECTION LINE TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE RIGHT OF

WAY OF THE CENTRAL PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG

SAID RIGHT OF WAY TO THE ONE- HALF SECTION LINE RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH

THROUGH THE CENTER OF SECTION 3, SAID TOWNSHIP AND RANGE; THENCE SOUTH TO

THE QUARTER SECTION CORNER BETWEEN SECTIONS 3 AND 10, SAID TOWNSHIP AND

RANGE; THENCE WEST ALONG THE QUARTER SECTION LINE TO THE EASTERLY BANK OF
THE SAN JOAQUIN RIVER; THENCE MEANDERING THE EASTERLY BANK OF SAID RIVER

UPSTREAM TO WALTHALL SLOUGH; THENCE UP SAID SLOUGH TO A POINT 15. 37 CHAIlVS

WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SECTION 10, SAID TOWNSHIP AND RANGE; THENCE NORTH

PARALLEL TO SAID SECTION LINE, TO THE QUARTER SECTION LINE, EAST AND WEST
THROUGH THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION lO; THENCE EAST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAVING AND EXCEPTING TNEREFROM THAT CERTAIN STRIP OF LAND CONTAINING

7. 57 ACRES, CONVEYED BY ANGEL LITCHFIELD TO ALAMEDA AND SAN JOAQUIlV

RAILROAD COMPANY BY DEED DATED AUGUST 31, 1885, FILED FOR RECORD IN BOOK

A" OF DEEDS, VOL. 87, PAGE 474, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO SAVING AND EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT CERTAIN PIECE OF LAND 100 BY I50

FEET, CONVEYED BY ANGEL LITCHFIELD TO RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 17, BY DEED

DATED FEBRUARY 9, 1909, FILED FOR RECORD IN BOOK° A" OF DEEDS, VOL. 173, PAGE

470, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO THE STATE OF

CALIFORNIA BY DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 5, 1955 IN BOOK 1796 OF OFFICIAL

RECORDS, PAGE 30, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO ROBERT H. BROWN, ET

UX, RECORDED JUNE 4, I964 IN BOOK 2829 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 434, SAN

JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO THE STATE OF

CALIFORNIA, BY DEED RECORDED AUGUST 19, 1974 IN BOOK 3903 OF OFFICIAL

RECORDS, PAGE 106, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF THE LAND DESCRIBED IN THE GRANT

314



Exhibit A

Page 10 of 14

DEED TO RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 17, A PUBLIC AGENCY RECORDED APRIL 22, 2010

AS 1NSTRUMENT NO. 2010- 055046 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.

PARCEL TWO:

AN EASEMENT 20 FEET IN WIDTH FOR DRAIlVAGE PURPOSES OVER A PORTION OF

SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN,

THE CENTER LINE OF WHICH IS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A POINT IN THE CENTER LINE OF THE WESTERN PACIFIC RAILROAD

RIGHT OF WAY, AT THE EASTERLY END OF A STEEL BRIDGE ACROSS THE SAN JOAQUIN

RIVER; RUNNING THENCE ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF SAID RIGHT OF WAY, NORTH 68° 49'

EAST 350 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 23 11' EAST 50 FEET TO A POINT IN THE SOUTHERLY LINE

OF THE WESTERN PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY, SAID POINT BEWG IN

THE CENTERLINE OF A DRAINAGE CANAL AND ALSO BEING THE TRUE POINT OF

BEGINNING; THENCE RUNNING ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF SAID DRAINAGE CANAL

SOUTH 23° 11' EAST, 238 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTERLINE

WITH THE CENTERLTNE OF A DR.AINAGE CANAL RUNNING IN A GENERALLY

NORTHWESTERLY DIRECTION; THENCE ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF SAID DRAINAGE

CANAL RUNNING IN A NORTHWESTERLY DIRECTION ON THE FOLLOWING TWO COURSES:

1.   NORTH 62° 09' 41" WEST 190 FEET;

2.   NORTH 78° 26' 34" WEST 29. 00 FEET TO THE WESTERLY END OF A CONCRETE INTAKE

STRUCTURE; THENCE SOUTH 66° 49' WEST 235 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE EASTERLY

BANK OF THE SAN JOAQUIN RIVER, AS RESERVED IN DEED TO ROBERT B. BROWN, ET

UX, RECORDED JUNE 4, 1964 IN BOOK 2829 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 434, SAN

JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

APN: 241- 030- 13

315



Exhibit A

Page 11 of 14

APN 241- 410- 02

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of California,
described as follows:

A PORTION OF THE WEST 1/ 2 OF SECTION 2 AND A PORTION OF THE EAST 1/ 2 OF SECTION

3, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED

AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A POIN'T ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY

RT. 120, SAID POINT BEING A CONCRETE MONUMENT MARKING THE WEST LINE OF

MCALPIN PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED JULY 7, 1954 IN BOOK 1648, PAGE

424; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 18 MINUTES WEST, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE

OF 1438 FEET; THENCE DUE EAST A DISTANCE OF 25 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER

OF PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED IN DEED TO TRACEY E. DALE, ET UX, RECORDBD IN BOOK

2788 PAGE 514; THENCE NORTH 84 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 52 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE

SOUTH LINE OF PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED IN DEED TO RUTH REHAK, RECORDED

NOVEMBER 18, 1966 IN BOOK 3088, PAGE 198, OFFICIAL RECORDS, A DISTANCE OF 636 FEET

TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PARCEL:

THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 84 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 52 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF

430. 52 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS THE— NORTH PARCEL" IN

THE INTERLOCUTORY JUDGMENT OF DNORCE, RECORDED JUNB 16, 1966 IN BOOK 3057,

PAGE 206; THENCE NORTH 4 DEGREES 08 MINIJTES 50 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE EAST

LINE OF SAID— NORTH PARCEL", A DISTANCE OF 1655. 57 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE

SOUTHERLY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY RT. 120; TI NCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE

SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID HIGHWAY A DISTANCE OF 411 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY,

PARALLEL WITH THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID REHEK PROPERTY; A DISTANCE OF 500

FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, PARALLEL WTTH THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID

HIGHWAY 120, TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF REHEK PROPERTY; THENCE SOUTHERLY,

ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID REHAK PARCEL TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION DESCRIBED IN DEED TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

RECORDED JUNE 21, 1977, IN BOOK 4274> PAGE 697, OFFICIAL RECORDS.

ALSO EXCEPT THEREFROM PARCELS A AND B AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP FII. ED

JANUARY 10, 1978 IN BOOK 5 OF PARCEL MAPS, AT PAGE 120, SAN JOAQUIN COiJNTY

RECORDS.

APN 241- 410- 02

316



Exhibit A

Page 12 of 14

APN 241- 410- 03

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Rea] property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of California,
described as follows:

PARCEL ONE:

PARCEL A, AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP FILED OCTOBER 31, 1980 IN VOL. 9 OF PARCEL

MAPS, PAGE 173, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS.

PARCEL TWO:

AN EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND UPON THE FOLLOWING

DESCRIBED PROPERTY:

A PORTION OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE

AND MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

A STRIP OF LAND 25 FEET WIDE, THE WEST LINE THEREOF BEING DESCRIBED AS

FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY

ROUTE 120, SAID POINT BEING A CONCRETE MONUMENT MARKING THE WEST LINE OF

THE MCALPIN PROPERTY; THENCE SOUTH 0° 18' WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID

MCALPIN PROPERTY A DISTANCE OF 1961 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE

DESCRIBED IN DEED TO JAMES ROBERT POWELL, ET UX, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 19, 1967

IN BOOK 3153 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS, PAGE 465, AND BETNG THE TERMINATION POINT OF

SAID LINE.

EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED IN THE FINAL

ORDER OF CONDEMNATION RECORDED AUGUST 16, 1977 IN BOOK 4295 OF OFFICIAL

RECORDS, PAGE

676.

APN: 241- 410- 030- 000

317



i

Exhibit A

Page 13 of 14

APN 241- 410- 06

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of California, described as
follows:

PARCEL C, AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP FILED DECEMBER 28, 1977 IN BOOK 5 OF PARCEL

MAPS, PAGE 105, SAN JOAQUIN COLTNTY RECORDS.

APN 241- 410- 06

7`,

f

A

c`r

i

318



r

Exhibit A

Page 14 of 14

APN 241- 410- 07

LEGAL DESCRII' TION

Real property in the unincorporated area of the County of San Joaquin, State of California,
described as follows:

PARCEL B, AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP FILED OCTOBER 31, 1980 IN VOL. 9 OF

PARCEL MAPS, PAGE 173, SAN JOAQUIlV COUNTY RECORDS.

APN 241- 410- 07

t

319



0 0 o FXHIBR" C"
a MM      s

v s
G G

a g o

Q u ì v i v i    e w .- i p   "^  
e ao

n m m
a oa  r

t,      ie
y

J

y 
p L

a

0 0 0 0
Z

ti .. . r
Z ..       Z .

ti

Z
N c

o

C o 0 o c o        o C O C C      ' a

i. .i . i . i

O

N
O

N
M

J
V N N N V N V N V N O d       
O O O O

L yC       
v Q Q Q Q y      

v
r ;      

o M
M

d
O O O N p N N p Sj C N

v jp N N N j0 N       ( 0 N jY ry

J 8 C ti . i .-    C • ai        N C    .~ i
10      

F

w ` w a`i     a`+        p" 1-       o m
a a a     a        . o y c f6

N V E E E V E V T V          

n

J O W d N O d O  Q y

p
a il C! N

Q N Q Q    ~   C
V7 Vf 1A VI y NL iw

a -

J C u
L       O       ' O ' O ' O    ' O ' O ' O    ' O ' 6 ' O p} J a..    

00 V1 00 lD O 00 .- i O 00 O O

r Y G G G G O. 1 O. C G         ul - I tD 1 Q1 M ul Vl Ol Vf if1 v N
M

G 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 C d N

N l0 N 00 M V M  N     01

i

tp
w 9

E u . o
ai oo vi v ri im

n           C eon        N
O O aC     

p U 

O  '     
Q       

C ! n
r`-  a      

d o 3 a '      m c
E      a,     m

N a   ~ p 
n c

C O O Q    f 1 O O o O N D N O O V O m .     o pv
O  1 9    1 V1 V1 O 1 O lD O I N V1 V 01 fV N

y  O O Q Q O r Ol      `    tD m .- V 1n ry ai lo rn vl o ' y
10 O1 ! O    ` 1 ` 1       ! 1 l0 lV R ul V rl rl N

3 O  M
M Q Q M M Y Q

N X 00
J  

OQI N
N

V1 a
y y

N L d j
a L C
LL a 

3 3 v

M O d 
V1 rl

N

3 @ m            
m p c

N m v n  r oo m
N a

w

C Z u u u  u u u u  o w '` +'  o
O p a    —y   

d i a a d d d a a        f6 = 

o a
n    >

V
o     ` m a

y  v i

O O 10       " O 2 p
a

u C  O O

u N         _       

0. . m a a

47

m

w L            I V O a V1 V1OoC u ° d L' o n     ° Q Q N

C O
Q

n       

Z .- 1 N M  A

v

aN 2     E ' 3 2
z L a u   c v       

J      N      ry            M YN..      
N f6

N O T,    H  d A

J +      

C C O C
m

C   
n

C C

Q p   
O          J  J C J C C C J JQ Ul lJ p       

O

v 3 y e      Q O
o v o

o
o

a v v
o 0

Z d
G '    V1 at+ •

O
C « 

Z          L  L [ L [ 11 QO f11 L L

C      ~             a J " J C J C C C J J
y 

O L y '
O 0, O C   .    .  .  .

O yi y C         V a L N L O L O O O L L

y p.    v
a y c m a a a c.

c z u!        H p o    ' o  or= = f= '
o 0

c V in   n   n n v

o c
e
G W

o a

nwmo . rvm n
a      . 

a . . NNNN       

a Z o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o v
y m m m m m m m mo E a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0       

in  Q o . ti . ti . ti . ti . . ti . .      
Z     

N N N N N N N N       
a

N K

320



PM 17- 01 Parcel Original Wastewater Original Wastewater Wastewater Demand Wastewater Capacity
APN Number Acres Demand Factor Capacity( gpd)       Factor After Transfer After Transfer( gpd

241- 030-46/ 47 1 26.08 355 9258 355 9258

241- 030- 16 2 49. 62 355 17615 355 17615

241- 030-45 3 51. 46 355 18268 172. 00 8851

241- 030-18 4 44. 72 355 15876 203. 34 9093

241- 030-19 5 15. 20 355 5396 355 5396

241- 030-20 6 12. 50 355 4438 355 4438

241- 030-21 7 9. 44 355 3351 355 3351

241- 030-22 8 6. 90 355 2450 355 2450

241- 030- 231 9 9. 29 355 3298 355 3298

225. 21 79950 63750

Total Capacity Transferred to Saybrook 16200

1. Parcel zoned as commercial so demand factor has not been adjusted

2. Parcel 2( 241- 030- 16) cannot be discounted as it is not owned by SLCC ownership

N
R$

P
G  Updated Wastewater Allocation by Parcel

r

PARCEL D
9258 gpd

P
t''`

PARCEL 4 1' ARCEL 3
PARCEL 2 o5```

s

gpgg B    
8851 gpd

17615 gpd

PARCEL C

gPARCEL B 4      
r   

G`

V

S

rFRpGi

QQ-      T`

3298 gpd

PARCEL 5      ` PAR I..  6 PARCEL 7 PARC L PARCEL A
5396 gpd 4438 g... 3351 gpd 8

f450 gpd
Authorized bv:

Citv of Lathrov SQyth Lathron Land. LLC

Brad Taylor, City Engineer Date PhilipJ. Prossas, Vice President Date

TriPoint Buildina 3. LL[

Cari James, Director of Finance Date

Philip J. Prassas, Vice President Date

IriP_oint Buildina 6. LLC TriPoint Buildina 5. LLC

Philip J. Prassas, Vice President Date Philip l. Prassas, Vice President Date

TriPoint Buildina 7 LLC

Philip J. Prassas, Vice President Date

321



EXHIBIT'°  "'

d NO

LV y

Q y

a+

C

Q
O

d^

V

yOO YO
O M v 

Z N o >

JC c N f0 - o JO

a{     m
f0

J

i L O d JJ
Q J p

y V t Y y O

O
Q

ai

O v i Y C    L L

p           d

i N t 
J        

C
O

td c

o 3  J o C
o

v            3 o
lj

Q°      ;;     
N  v o f

a
n, e  `^  £     v

L O1
N

1Ow  ` =    V mN

N Y6 - d
H Y
C C 

a ' a
a a a E 

U ao pp v a
i Q w w

Q
p O O

L N       
r 

d C      ' 

p      j M
3 M T
y d n .,

o l9 m
b fl.

3 a

0
3 
Y 

v
3 

v 3
o

a

Q a

o w a
v V
Nf0 0
Lv C
j O
fl. ",

bD U
v

C O uC
N td

a
t-     C

N

v a c
v M rC a, 

y
o

O N  c w
M a ro

m y pC
V     i

b4     on
C U

C    __ C N       o
G      '

t      in  ' c i J
i.     

w
C  t p

0

m J oC Z ~ 
00

I y L

1 N Q U m U

322



ITEM 4. 15

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.  1 WITH DOKKEN

ENGINEERING FOR PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE HARLAN

ROAD REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD, CIP PS

14- 04

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1
with Dokken Engineering for Professional

Engineering Services for the Harlan Road

Realignment at Roth Road, CIP PS 14- 04

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop contracted with Dokken Engineering  ( Dokken)  to provide

professional and technical engineering services for the Harlan Road Realignment at
Roth Road, Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 14- 04 ( Project). The original scope

of work included the preparation of a precise plan line for Harlan Road,  and

completion of environmental, design, and right- of- way acquisition phases.

The use of retention basins was analyzed during environmental and preliminary
designs to manage the Project' s stormwater runoff. However, after further evaluation
of the storm drainage system in the Project vicinity, the City has elected for the
installation of a new storm drain trunk line along Harlan Road ( Trunk Line). The Trunk

Line will serve as the backbone for future developments and roadway improvements,
eliminate basin maintenance costs and reduce right- of- way impacts.

Amendment No. 1 ( Attachment B) is needed to perform additional services, including
the design of the Trunk Line and the corresponding environmental, permitting and
final contract documents to complete the design and right- of- way acquisition phases.

Staff is requesting City Council approve Amendment No. 1 with Dokken for $ 155, 087

to design the new storm drain Trunk Line and revise the environmental, permitting,

and right- of-way acquisition phases of the Project.

Sufficient funds have been allocated within the Fiscal Year ( FY) 2023- 2024 approved

budget.

BACKGROUND:

On October 14, 2019, City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement with
Dokken Engineering for professional engineering consulting services for the Project.
These services included the preparation of a precise plan line for Harlan Road,
environmental assessment and permitting,  traffic analysis,  design  &  right- of-way
acquisition phases.

323



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.    1 WITH DOKKEN ENGINEERING FOR

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE HARLAN ROAD

REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD, CIP PS 14- 04

Initial environmental and preliminary designs included the construction of retention
basins to manage the Project' s stormwater runoff.  After evaluating the storm
drainage system in the Project vicinity, the City has opted for the installation of a
new storm drain Trunk Line along Harlan Road. This storm drain will serve as the
backbone for future developments and roadway improvements,  eliminate basin

maintenance costs and reduce right of way impacts.

Staff solicited and received a proposal from Dokken to design the new storm drain
Trunk Line,  revise the corresponding environmental,  permitting and final contract
documents, and complete the design and right- of- way acquisition phases. Thus, staff
is requesting City Council approve Amendment No.  1 with Dokken for $ 155, 087 to

prepare the additional design and construction documents for the Project.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

This new storm drain Trunk Line will provide sufficient capacity for the Harlan Road
realignment north and south of Roth Road and on- site drainage from adjacent

properties.

Approval of Amendment No.  1 with Dokken will allow staff to move forward with

completing the design phase, preparing for right- of- way acquisition, and proceed with
construction of the Project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of the Amendment No. 1 is $ 155, 087.  Sufficient funds have been allocated

within FY 23- 24 approved budget.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1 with Dokken Engineering for Professional
Engineering Services for the Harlan Road Realignment at Roth Road, CIP PS 14-
04

B.  Amendment No. 1 with Dokken Engineering for Professional Engineering Services
to the Harlan Road Realignment at Roth Road, CIP PS 14- 04, and Related Budget
Amendment

324



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.    1 WITH DOKKEN ENGINEERING FOR

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE HARLAN ROAD

REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD, CIP PS 14- 04

APPROVALS

Dd- 6 - so 3

Angel Abarca Date

Assistant Engineer

z-

Brad T ylor Date

City Engineer

1
a

Cari Ja Date

Directo f Finance

1           

8 • 1 - zozz

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Z 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

S -Zq •Z 3
ephen ). Salvatore Date

City Manager

325



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AMENDMENT NO.   1 WITH DOKKEN ENGINEERING FOR

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE HARLAN ROAD

REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD, CIP PS 14- 04

WHEREAS,  on October 14,  2019,  City Council approved a Professional

Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering ( Dokken) to provide professional and
technical engineering services for the Harlan Road Realignment at Roth Road, Capital
Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 14- 04 ( Project); and

WHEREAS, the original scope of work included the preparation of a precise
plan line for Harlan Road, and completion of environmental, design, and right- of- way
acquisition phases; and

WHEREAS,   initial environmental and preliminary designs included the

construction of retention basins to manage the Project' s stormwater runoff; and

WHEREAS, after evaluating the storm drainage system in the Project vicinity,
the City has opted for the installation of a new storm drain trunk line along Harlan
Road ( Trunk Line); and

WHEREAS, the Trunk Line will serve as the backbone for future developments

and roadway improvements, eliminate basin maintenance costs and reduce right- of-
way impacts; and

WHEREAS,  Amendment No.  1 is needed to perform additional services,
including the design of the Trunk Line and the corresponding environmental,
permitting and final contract documents to complete the design and right- of-way
acquisition phases; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting City Council approve Amendment No.  1 with

Dokken for  $ 155, 087 to design the new storm drain Trunk Line and revise the

environmental, permitting, and right- of-way acquisition phases for the Project; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds have been allocated within the Fiscal Year 2023-

2024 approved budget.

NOW THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Amendment No.   1 with Dokken Engineering for
Professional Engineering Services for the Harlan Road Realignment at Roth Road, CIP
PS 14- 04, in the amount of $ 155, 087.

326



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September, 2023
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

327



ATTACHMEN7
M p

AMENDMENT NO. 1

TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

DOKKEN ENGINEERING DATED SEPTEMBER 11, 2023

TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERIVCES FOR THE HARLAN ROAD
REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD, CIP PS 14- 04

THIS AMENDMENT ( hereinafter " AMENDMENT NO.  1") to the agreement between

Dokken Engineering and the City of Lathrop, ( hereinafter" AGREEMENT") dated for convenience

this 11th day of September 2023, is by and between Dokken Engineering (" CONSULTANT")
and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform
Engineering and Right-Of-Way Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,   on October 14,   2019,   CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

AGREEMENT to provide Professional Engineering Consulting Services for the Harlan Road
Realignment at Roth Road, CIP PS 14- 04, in the amount of$ 1, 015, 674; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has provided CITY with a scope of work attached hereto as
Exhibit " A" for Amendment No. 1 to provide additional professional and technical engineering
services to revise and complete environmental, design, and right- of-way acquisition phases; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such engineering services, as hereinafter
defined, on the following terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service. Section ( 1) of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add
the following:

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Engineering and Right-Of-Way Services in accordance
with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached hereto as
Exhibit" A" in addition to the scope of work in the original AGREEMENT dated October 14,

2019. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance with the
upmost standards of its profession and to CITY' S satisfaction.

2)      Compensation.  Section ( 2) of the AGREEMENT for Consulting Services is
hereby amended as follows:

City hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an additional cost of 155 087 for the services
set forth in Exhibit "A" of this AMENDMENT NO. 1.

Page 1 of 3

328



CITY OF LATHROP- DOKKEN ENGINEERING

AMENDMENT NO. 1 FOR THE HARLAN ROAD REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD, CIP PS 14- 04

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of AMENDMENT NO. 1 is September 11, 2023, and it shall terminate

no later than December 31, 2024. All other terms of the original AGREEMENT shall
remain in full force and effect.

4)      A plicabilitY to Oriqinal Consultant AGREEMENT

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated April 12, 2021 are still in

effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said AGREEMENT is incorporated by
reference herein.

5)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO. 1 represent and warrant that they have
the right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
AMENDMENT NO. 1 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and

the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 2 of 3

329



CITY OF LATHROP— DOKKEN ENGINEERING

AMENDMENT NO. 1 FOR THE HARLAN ROAD REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD, CIP PS 14- 04

Approved as to Form:    City of Lathrop
City Attorney

z-/• J-z, 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:   City of Lathrop
Assistant City Manager

Michael King Date

Approved by: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Consultant:    Dokken Engineering
110 Blue Ravine Road, Suite 200

Folsom, CA 95630

Federal ID #

Lathrop Business License #

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 3 of 3

330



EXHIBIT~~  HARLAN ROAD REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD( PS 14- 04)

CITY OF LATHROP PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

DRAINAGE TRUNKLINE AMENDMENT

Scope of Work

The Dokken Engineering Team ( CONSULTANT) will perform additional professional and technical

engineering services to include the Harlan Road drainage trunkline in the project Environmental

Document, Permitting and Final Contract Documents for the Harlan Road Realignment at Roth
Road ( PS 14- 04).

TASK 2. 0  SURVEY AND BASE MAPPING

Task 2. 2  Topographic Surveys

CONSULTANT will perform additional detailed ( non- aerial) topographic surveying and base
mapping derived from the established horizontal and vertical control for the project. The limits of
survey begin at the intersection of Harlan Road and Slate Street and continue northerly along
Harlan Road for approximately 0. 7 mile. The purpose of the survey is for the design and
construction of a new drainage trunkline along Harlan Road. As such, a full roadway design level
topographic survey is not necessary. Topographic surveying will include, but is not limited to
roadway improvements, edge of pavement and concrete, edge of traveled way, curbs,
flowlines, walks, ditches, fences, drainage, manholes, inlets, and all visible utilities within the

roadway. CONSULTANT will locate roadway improvements at 50' intervals or closer, including all
curve points and grade breaks. CONSULTANT will perform base mapping of topographic
information to include planimetrics, 1' contours and digital 3D surface. All topographic data will
be downioaded, processed, and reviewed by CONSULTANT staff for internal quality assurance.
The topographic data will be mapped in AutoCAD, including a digital terrain model ( DTM) of
the existing ground surface and survey points in ASCII format. Boundary and Right of Way
surveys will not be mapped as all improvements will be constructed within the existing paved
roadway.

Deliverables:   Topographic Survey Data, DTM and ASCII Point Files

Task 2. 4  Utility A Letters

CONSULTANT will prepare supplemental Utility " A" letters and project exhibits for distribution to all
potentially impacted utility owners to support the increased project area for the drainage
trunkline extension. The base plans will be clearly marked " A Plans" and the transmittal letter will
clearly identify this project as a CITY project. These plans will include proposed project limits, right
of way limits, proposed roadway geometry, and visible known features. Response from the utility
owner will be requested within 15 days of receipt of the " A" plans. As- built utility information and
planned utility information will be obtained and provided to the CITY for their records. In
addition, CONSULTANT will contact the utility owner directly to verify the request has been
received. CONSULTANT will incorporate the obtained maps and utility information to compile a
utility base map.

Deliverables:   Utility A Letters, Utility Base Mapping

TASK 3. 0  PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AND PRECISE PLAN LINE

Task 3. 3  Drainage Report

CONSULTANT will add the drainage analysis required for the added Harlan Road drainage

trunkline to the project Drainage Report. The inclusion of the Harlan Road trunkline was not
included in the original scope and fee for the project.

Consultant will gather and review available reports, modeling data, and mapping related to the
Harlan Road trunkline. This includes any CITY drainage master plans, prior drainage studies for
the project, recent drainage studies prepared for adjacent development, record drawings,
FEMA floodplain data, topographic mapping and survey data, and proposed roadway layouts.

CONSULTANT will support the environmental clearance of the additional scope.

331



HARLAN ROAD REALIGNMENT AT ROTH ROAD( PS 14- 04)

µ, ,..     
CITY OF LATHROP PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

DRAINAGE TRUNKLINE AMENDMENT

CITY criteria and standards will be used for sizing the various drainage and water quality facilities
required for the project. The on- site hydraulic analysis will include spread analysis for inlet

spacing, pipe sizing, storage sizing, and outfall sizing. Water quality and hydromodification
calculations will be performed and features designed in support of the project. Sizing of all
facilities will be based on build out conditions and potential land use changes within the project
area.

Deliverables:   Drainage Report

TASK 4.0  ENVIRONMENTAL ANALY515

Task 4. 8  CEQA IS/ MND Addendum

The Project was approved by the City under CEQA using an IS/ MND in 2021. Since then, the
Project design has been slightly modified to include the Harlan Road drainage trunkline;
however, no additional impacts are anticipated to occur as a result of the revised design that
weren' t previously disclosed in the original IS/ MND,  and an Addendum to the 2021

environmental document would be appropriate. CONSULTANT will prepare the Addendum to
the IS/ MND in coordination with the City. As part of the Addendum, analysis for impacts to
biological resources, cultural resources, and hazardous waste will need to be updated as a
result of the additional study area.  This scope and fee include new surveys for biological and

cultural resources as well as hazardous waste. All findings will be summarized within the CEQA

IS/ MND Addendum. No additional mitigation measures are anticipated. This scope and fee
include the cultural record search fee direct cost of $ 1000 and the hazardous waste record
search fee direct cost of $ 350. No public circulation or Council approval is required for the
Addendum.

Deliverable:    Draft and Final CEQA IS/ MND

TASK 5. 0  UTILITY RELOCATION

Task 5. 2  Utility Potholing
CONSULTANT will perform additional potholing of existing utilities to determine conflicts with the
proposed Harlan Road drainage trunkline. Up to 20 additional potholes are assumed.
CONSULTANT will prepare a potholing report identifying date, location, depth, type of utility
potholed, and type and number of conduits. Potholing data will be included in the 65%
Preliminary Plan Submittal.

Deliverable:    Utility Potholing Records

TASK 7. 0  FINAL DESIGN

Task 7. 2  65% Plans and Estimate

CONSULTANT will prepare 65% plans and estimates for the Harlan Road drainage truckline and

include them with the main project documents.

The following additional sheets are expected to be part of the 65% Plans ( Total 17):

Pro ect Control/ Surve Control 1

Draina e Plan and Profile 5

Draina e Details 4

Utilit Plans 2

Sta e Construction/ Traffic Handlin Plans 4

Construction Area Si ns and Detour Plan 1

332



HARLAN ROAD REALIGNMEN AT ROTH ROAD( PS 14- 04)

CITY Of LATHROP PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

DRAINAGE TRUNKLINE AMENDMENT

CONSULTANT will prepare an Engineer' s Estimate of construction costs, based on preliminary
quantity takeoffs and current unit prices. A reasonable upward adjustment will be applied to all
bid quantities that may vary during consiruction to allow for any necessary design adjustments.

Deliverables:   65% Plans and Estimate

Task 7. 4  95% Plans, Specifications and Estimate

CONSULTANT will prepare 95% plans, specifications and estimate for the Harlan Road trunkline
based on the 65% submittal and review comments.

The following additional sheets are expected to be part of the 95% Plans ( Total 13):

Pro' ect Control/ Surve Control 1

Draina e Plan and Profile 5

Draina e Details 5

Utilit Plans 2

Sta e Construction/ Traffic Handlin Plans 4

Construction Area Si ns and Detour Plan 1

CONSULTANT will prepare Special Provisions Specifications for the project based on the CITY' s
Standard Special Provisions and Standard Specifications. Specifications will be modified as

appropriate to the meet the project needs. As necessary, the Special Provisions will be
supplemented by Caltrans Standard Specifications and Special Provisions.

CONSULTANT will prepare an Engineer' s Estimate of construction costs, based on preliminary
quantity takeoffs and current unit prices. A reasonable upward adjustment will be applied to all
bid quantities that may vary during construction to allow for any necessary design adjustments.

Deliverables:   95% Plans, Specifications, and Estimate

Task 7. 4  100% Plans Specifications and Estimate

CONSULTANT will prepare 100% plans, specifications and estimate for the Harlan Road drainage
trunkline based on the 95% submittal and review comments.

Deliverables:   100% Plans, Specifications, and Estimate

Task 7. 5  final Contract Documents

CONSULTANT will prepare Final Contract Documents for the plans, specifications and estimate
based on the 100% submittal and review comments for the Harlan Road drainage trunkline.

CONSULTANT will review the final documents a final time for consistency between the plans,
specifications and estimate. The Final Contract Documents will be submitted to the CITY ready
for advertisement.

Deliverables:   Final Contract Documents

333



oa s      o    s    `  w    $              £y

F z
a P  :    r n a «  '            

a. E- F..      
z       N M N N M N M M

z 
3 p p G e e        

Q      y p

F" w  . n  ..  «

i}  

V

S 

b M 19 O    + . l!  e i    l l N          
P

a
N P

00 F'

H C,       o o  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .
O V o,       es m

n w  .  w  «     .     .M

1, Q i

C F

N H

y V
F i O

w

1       

y p'  O p M M

O p V

O Q          F    N      

6, 
a          z k'., 

y y

o 0

y        aL p NO p,.        N

Inw) a

N

o o g   

u ni oy
m

w

Or r  . Mi  '"  . i
aBp.( lmd a ,      

alB M d WIl w e e

y„:    N M

S     ^  3    a       rt                nl     N

v n w     n  6  ' •     n w
v

N N M M M N N. M M

N N

y'  
w m

N O      e  Y P n N tll        

WO

m

1s1 oMl9 .  ..  . $  `   4     . S!

aevueld. l naemow e g
N Nw

w wia/. wwa N  ` t
IeJua uawµv9a eVossY   .      

w yr

b w p+    . i g
7tA la WV/ 1p OWl6/     '.    a 8

quuqd Wnati au twY3Jquo5
w

K eC
N M

Z K..    O O O N N            
N  .

O

g     aaaplag uYri1 V
b

a w  +

a

m m     S  :?  • e w g     g  

aaau 9ug alpw cy     
N k;'.:    

N MM

C

3-_       N O    • C N
0  }'} I   m. N

Jiitl 113JO lIiS N
ryN

N N

PBi'IlMaawuw( na9     .
I F W      .        

a w

aaul8 3 a P d dtwPrWl  y   : 

O N       W
N $   N .

3d' 1+ s9 1' 1 atlqsn6ael N _„      F
N N

aafea. p nalma   .   

tt *'   N N8d tiaruqy uuen(

z L
o

0.    

z Q z
w ^      a

e

A„'       V V O O
A N

w d Y

z
a

F

W s

c

e

z a a 3   z       „       
AW E     ;     

s         x      

N      

6    ~  

m y n    P y
Y yH N N
y    y    y    Y n t  1  n

F F F F F

334



ITEM 4. 16

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY

AMERINE SYSTEMS, INC. FOR CITY HALL LANDSCAPE

RENOVATIONS, CIP GG 21- 09

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution to Accept Public Improvements

Constructed by Amerine Systems,  Inc. for the City
Hall Landscape Renovation,    CIP GG 21- 09,

Authorizing the Filing of a Notice of Completion,
Release of Contract Retention,   and Release of

Performance and Payment Bonds

SUMMARY:

Amerine Landscape, Inc. ( Amerine) has completed the construction of the City Hall
Landscape Renovation, CIP GG 21- 09 ( Project). Staff inspected the improvements

and they have been deemed complete and in accordance with the approved plans
and specifications by the City Engineer.

Amerine has submitted lien releases confirming all sub- contractors and suppliers
have been paid in full and provided a one- year warranty bond ( based on 10% of the

construction contract) for the improvements to be accepted.

Staff requests City Council accept the completed improvements constructed by
Amerine for the Project. Staff also requests City Council authorize the filing of a Notice
of Completion with the San Joaquin County Clerk, the release of contract retention
to Amerine of $ 26, 723 within forty- five  ( 45)  days after recording the Notice of
Completion, and the release of performance and payment bonds.

BACKGROUND:

On March 14, 2022, City Council awarded a construction contract to Amerine for the
construction of the Project.  The Project scope included demolition of existing
landscaping and hardscaping, and installation of irrigation, plant material, artificial

turf, hardscape, flagpole and a concrete seat wall.

During construction, contract change orders were issued for a final contract amount
of  $ 534, 461. 77.  The Project' s costs referenced below capture all construction

expenditures.

335



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER il, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY AMERINE SYSTEMS,

INC. FOR CITY HALL LANDSCAPE RENOVATIONS, CIP GG 21- 09

Construction costs are as follows:

A.  Construction Contract 497, 455. 00

B.  Contract Change Orders 37, 006. 77

Total Construction Contract Costs 534, 461. 77

Upon acceptance of the improvements,   the performance bond   ( Bond No.

GFB7306767, $ 497, 455) and payment bond ( Bond No. GFB7306767, $ 497, 455) will

be released and replaced with a one- year warranty bond  ( Bond No. GFB7306767,

49, 745). The one- year warranty bond covers any repairs or replacements that may
become necessary during the one- year period beginning with this acceptance due to
any defective materials or workmanship in connection with the completed

improvements.  Amerine has also provided the necessary lien releases for the
materials supplied and completed work.

Staff requests City Council accept the improvements constructed by Amerine for the
City Hall Landscape Renovation,  CIP GG 21- 09.  Staff also requests City Council

authorize the filing of a Notice of Completion with the San Joaquin County Clerk, the
release of contract retention to Amerine for $ 26, 723 within forty- five ( 45) days after

the recording of the Notice of Completion,  and the release of performance and
payment bonds.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Amerine has completed the project pursuant to the contract documents dated March
14, 2022. Staff inspected the improvements and they have been deemed complete
and in accordance with the approved plans and specifications by the City Engineer.

Amerine has submitted a one- year warranty bond for the improvements to be
accepted ( based on 10% of the construction contract) and lien releases confirming
all sub- contractors and suppliers have been paid in full.  The warranty bond covers
any repairs or replacements that become necessary during the one- year period,
beginning with this acceptance,  due to defective materials or workmanship in
connection with the completed improvements.

The performance bond and payment bond will be released and replaced with the one-
year warranty bond  ( based on 10%  of the contract price)  upon City Council' s
acceptance of the improvements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The final construction contract amount with Amerine for the Project is for

534, 461. 77.

336



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY AMERINE SYSTEMS,

INC. FOR CITY HALL LANDSCAPE RENOVATIONS, CIP GG 21- 09

Adequate funds have been allocated in the budget to close out the Project.  With the

completion of the Project, staff requests that unused funds be transferred back to the

original funding sources.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Accepting Public Improvements Constructed by Amerine

Landscape,  Inc.  for the City Hall Landscape Renovation,  CIP GG 21- 09,

Authorizing the Filing of a Notice of Completion, Release of Contract Retention,
and Release of Performance and Payment Bonds

B.  Notice of Completion - City Hall Landscape Renovation, CIP GG 21- 09

337



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY AMERINE SYSTEMS,

INC. FOR CITY HALL LANDSCAPE RENOVATIONS, CIP GG 21- 09

APPROVALS:

en  ,/ li e     I ?. Z

Steven Hollenbeak Date

Assistant Engineer

8- 1- 23
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

21/?, o'L3

Brad ylor Date

City Engineer

3
Cari Jame Date

Finance Di tor

8• 22• 2oZ3

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Z- Z-- Z3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

E?•Z 3

Step en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

338



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY AMERINE SYSTEMS,  INC.  FOR

THE CITY HALL LANDSCAPE RENOVATION, CIP GG 21- 09, AUTHORIZING THE

FILING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION, RELEASE OF CONTRACT RETENTION,

AND RELEASE OF PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2022, City Council awarded a construction contract
to Amerine Systems, Inc. ( Amerine) for the construction of the City Hall Landscape
Renovation,  CIP GG 21- 09  ( Project)  in the amount of  $ 497, 455,  and a 10%

construction contingency of $ 49, 746 was authorized for staff to use as necessary to
achieve the goals of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the scope of work consisted of installation of new plant material,
irrigation and concrete flatwork and seat walls,   and associated landscape

improvements; and

WHEREAS, during construction, contract change orders were issued for a final
contract amount of $ 534, 461. 77. The Project' s costs referenced below capture all

construction expenditures; and

WHEREAS, staff inspected the improvements and the City Engineer deemed
the improvements complete and in accordance with the approved plans and
specifications; and

WHEREAS, Amerine has provided the necessary lien releases for the materials
supplied and completed work and a one- year warranty bond ( based on 10% of total

project cost) for the improvements being accepted; and

WHEREAS, the performance bond  ( Bond No.  GFB7306767,  $ 497, 455)  and

payment bond ( Bond No. GFB7306767, $ 497, 455) will be released and replaced with

a one- year warranty bond  ( Bond No.  GFB7306767,  $ 49, 745)  upon City Council' s
acceptance of the improvements; and

WHEREAS, the one- year warranty bond covers any repairs or replacements
that may become necessary during the one- year period beginning with this

acceptance,  due to defective materials or workmanship in connection with the
completed improvements; and

WHEREAS, adequate funds have been allocated in the FY 2023- 24 budget to

close out the project.  With the completion of the Project, staff requests that unused

funds be transferred back to the source Fund; and

WHEREAS,  staff requests City Council accept the public improvements

constructed by Amerine for the City Hall Landscape Renovation, CIP GG 21- 09; and

339



WHEREAS, staff also requests City Council authorize the filing of a Notice of
Completion with the San Joaquin County Clerk, the release of contract retention to
Amerine in the amount of $ 26, 723 within forty- five ( 45) days after the recording of
the Notice of Completion, and the release of performance and payment bonds.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby accept the completed public improvements constructed by
Amerine for the City Hall Landscape Renovation,  CIP GG 21- 09,  pursuant to the
contract documents dated March 14, 2022; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that the City Council of the City of Lathrop

authorizes the filing of the Notice of Completion with the San Joaquin County Clerk
and the release of the contract retention to Amerine, in the amount of$ 26, 723, within

forty- five ( 45) days after the recording of the Notice of Completion, and authorizes
the release of the performance and payment bonds; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approves the transfer of unused funds back to the original funding sources.

340



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September, 2023
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

341



ATTACHMENT

RECORDING REOUESTED BY, AND

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

CITY OF LATHROP

ATTN: CITY CLERK

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CA 95330

Exempt from payment ofrecording fees( GC 11922)

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER' S USE

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN:

1.   That the interest or estate stated in paragraph 3 herein in the real property herein described is owned by:
NAME STREET AND NO.       CITY STATE

Citv of Lathrop 390 Towne Centre Drive Lathrop CA 95330

If more than one owner of the interest stated, the name and address of each must be stated)

2.   That the full name and address of the owner of said interest or estate, if there is only one owner, and that the full
names and addresses of all the co- owners who own said interest or estate as tenants in common, as joint tenants, or
otherwise, if there is more than one owner, are set forth in the preceding paragraph.

3.   That the nature of the title of stated owner, or if more than one owner, then of the stated owner and co- owners is

fee title( e.g. fee title, leasehold, joint tenancy, etc.).

4.   That on the l lth day of September, 2023 a work of improvement on the real property herein described was
completed.

5.   That the name of the original contractor, if any, for said work of improvement was: Amerine Svstems, Inc

6.   That the name and address of the transferor is:

NAME STREET AND NO.      CITY STATE

Amerine Svstems, Inc.      10866 Cleveland Ave. Oakdale CA 95361

7.   That the real property herein referred to is situated in the Citv of Lathrop County of San Joaquin,
State of California, and is described as follows:

CIP GG 21- 09, CityHall Landscape Renovation: 390 Towne Centre Drive Lathrop, CA 95330

That the undersigned has knowledge of the contents herein and states under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true
and correct.

CITY OF LATHROP

By:
Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager Date

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Date

342



ITEM 4. 17

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY

TIM PAXIN' S PACIFIC EXCAVATION,   INC.   DBA

PACIFIC EXCAVATION FOR STREETLIGHTS

ASSOCIATED WITH LOUISE AVENUE LANDSCAPE,

CIP GG 21- 15

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution to Accept Public Improvements

Constructed by Tim Paxin' s Pacific Excavation, Inc.

dba Pacific Excavation for Streetlights Associated

with Louise Avenue Landscape,   CIP GG 21- 15,

Authorize the Filing of a Notice of Completion,

Release of Contract Retention,   and Release of

Performance and Payment Bonds

SUMMARY:

Capital Improvement Project   ( CIP)    GG 21- 15 Louise Avenue Landscape

Improvements consisted of installing irrigation, landscaping and lighting to recently
constructed medians on Louise Avenue from Interstate 5 ( I- 5) to Fifth Street.  After

the irrigation and landscape were completed, the project moved into installation of
lighting.

On September 12, 2022, City Council awarded a construction contract to Tim Paxin' s
Pacific Excavation, Inc. dba Pacific Excavation ( Pacific Excavation) for the installation

of streetlights in those medians.  Pacific Excavation has completed these lighting
improvements.  Staff has inspected the improvements which have been deemed

complete and in accordance with the approved plans and specifications by the City
Engineer.  Pacific Excavation submitted lien releases, confirming all sub- contractors
and suppliers have been paid in full, and a one- year maintenance bond ( based on

10% of the construction contract) for the improvements to be accepted.

Staff requests City Council accept the improvements constructed by Pacific

Excavation and authorize the filing of a Notice of Completion with the San Joaquin
County Clerk,  release of contract retention to Pacific Excavation in the amount of

39, 407 within forty- five ( 45) days after the recording of the Notice of Completion,
and the release of performance and payment bonds.

BACKGROUND:

CIP GG 21- 15, included the installation of lighting on the medians of Louise Avenue
between I- 5 and Fifth Street.  The scope for this work consisted of constructing
concrete pole foundations and installing conduit,  wiring,  meter connection,  and

twelve ( 12) single and twenty- four ( 24) double luminaire decorative streetlights.

343



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY PACIFIC EXCAVATION
FOR STREETLIGHTS ASSOCIATED WITH LOUISE AVENUE LANDSCAPE, CIP

GG 21- 15

On September 12, 2022, City Council awarded a contract to Pacific Excavation in the
amount of $ 593, 167, and approved Change Order No. 1 for $ 190, 662 on March 13,

2023 for installation of streetlights and landscape lighting to CIP GG 21- 15. During
construction,  contract change orders were issued for a final contract amount of

788, 128. The Project' s costs referenced below capture all construction expenditures.

Construction costs are as follows:

A.  Construction Contract 593, 167

B.  Contract Change Orders 194, 961

Total Construction Contract Costs 788, 128

Staff has inspected the improvements which have been deemed complete and in

accordance with the approved plans and specifications by the City Engineer.  Pacific
Excavation submitted lien releases, confirming all sub- contractors and suppliers have
been paid in full,  and a one- year maintenance bond  ( based on 10%  of the

construction contract) for the improvements to be accepted.

Upon acceptance of the improvements, the performance and payment bonds ( No.

CA4502318)  will be released and replaced with a warranty bond   ( Bond No.

CA4502318, $ 78, 723). The warranty bond covers any repairs or replacements that
become necessary during the one- year period, beginning with this acceptance, due
to defective materials or workmanship in connection with the completed

improvements. Pacific Excavation has also provided the necessary lien releases for
the materials supplied and completed work.

Staff requests City Council accept the improvements constructed by Pacific

Excavation for lighting associated with CIP GG 21- 15.  Staff is also requesting City
Council to authorize the filing of a Notice of Completion with the San Joaquin County
Clerk, release of contract retention to Pacific Excavation in the amount of $ 39, 407

within forty- five ( 45) days after the recording of the Notice of Completion, and the

release of performance and payment bonds.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Project was completed by Pacific Excavation pursuant to the contract documents
dated August 10, 2022. Staff has inspected the improvements and they have been
deemed complete and in accordance with the approved plans and specifications by
the City Engineer.

The performance and payment bonds ( No. CA4502318) will be released and replaced
with a one- year warranty bond ( Bond No. CA4502318, $ 78, 723) upon City Council' s
acceptance of the improvements.

344



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY PACIFIC EXCAVATION

FOR STREETLIGHTS ASSOCIATED WITH LOUISE AVENUE LANDSCAPE, CIP

GG 21- 15

FISCAL IMPACT:

The approved contract with Pacific Excavation is for  $ 593, 167,  with a 15%

construction contingency in the amount of $ 88, 975,  for a total Project budget of

682, 143.  During construction,  contract change orders were issued for a final

contract amount of $ 788, 128.  Sufficient funds have been allocated during the mid-
year budget adjustment; therefore, no budget amendment is needed at this time.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution to Accept Public Improvements Constructed by Tim Paxin' s Pacific
Excavation, Inc. dba Pacific Excavation for Streetlights Associated with Louise

Avenue Landscape,  CIP GG 21- 15,  Authorize the Filing of a Notice of

Completion, Release of Contract Retention, and Release of Performance and

Payment Bonds

B.  Notice of Completion - Streetlights Associated with Louise Avenue Landscape,

CIP GG 21- 15

345



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY PACIFIC EXCAVATION

FOR STREETLIGHTS ASSOCIATED WITH LOUISE AVENUE LANDSCAPE, CIP

GG 21- 15

APPROVALS:

od' s3 zo23

Ange arca Date

Assistant Engineer

3 - Z3 - Z3
Ken Ree Date

Senior Construction Manager

56 23 202 3

Brad aylor Date

Cit Engineer

q, ao
Cari Jam s Date

Finance D'   ctor

g . 23 . ZoZ,

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Z / 
wz3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

R• • z3

Step en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

346



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO ACCEPT

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY TIM PAXIN' S PACIFIC

EXCAVATION,    INC.    DBA PACIFIC EXCAVATION FOR STREETLIGHTS

ASSOCIATED WITH LOUISE AVENUE LANDSCAPE, CIP GG 21- 15, AUTHORIZE

THE FILING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION,   RELEASE OF CONTRACT

RETENTION, AND RELEASE OF PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

WHEREAS,  Capital Improvement Project  ( CIP)  GG 21- 15 Louise Avenue

Landscape Improvements consisted of installing irrigation,  landscaping and lighting
to recently constructed medians on Louise Avenue between Interstate 5 and Fifth
Street; and

WHEREAS,  on September 12,  2022,  City Council awarded a construction
contract to Tim Paxin' s Pacific Excavation,  Inc.  dba Pacific Excavation  ( Pacific

Excavation) for installation of streetlights and landscape lighting in those medians;
and

WHEREAS, the scope for this work consisted of constructing concrete pole
foundations and installing conduit, wiring, meter connection, and twelve ( 12) single

and twenty- four ( 24) double luminaire decorative streetlights; and

WHEREAS,   the construction contract was for   $ 593, 167 and a 15%

construction contingency of $ 88, 976 was authorized for staff to use as necessary to
achieve the goals of the Project; and

WHEREAS,  during construction,  contract change orders totaling  $ 194, 961

were issued for a final contract amount of $ 788, 128; and

WHEREAS, Pacific Excavation has completed the construction of the project;
staff has inspected the improvements which have been deemed complete and in

accordance with the approved plans and specifications by the City Engineer; and

WHEREAS, Pacific Excavation has provided the necessary lien releases for the
materials supplied and completed work; and

WHEREAS, Pacific Excavation has submitted a one- year warranty bond ( based
on 10% of total project cost) for the improvements being accepted; and

WHEREAS, the performance and payment bonds  ( No.  CA4502318)  will be

released and replaced with a one- year warranty bond  ( Bond No.  CA4502318,

78, 723) upon City Council' s acceptance of the improvements; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting City Council accept the public improvements
constructed by Pacific Excavation for the streetlights associated with Louise Avenue
Landscape, CIP GG 21- 15; and

347



WHEREAS, staff also requests City Council authorize the filing of a Notice of
Completion with the San Joaquin County Clerk upon acceptance of the improvements
and the release of the contract retention to Pacific Excavation,  in the amount of

39, 407, within forty- five ( 45) days after the recording of the Notice of Completion
and the release of the performance and payment bonds.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby accept the public improvements constructed by Pacific

Excavation for the streetlights associated with Louise Avenue Landscape, CIP GG 21-

15, for a total contract amount of $ 788, 128; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
authorizes the filing of the Notice of Completion with the San ) oaquin County Clerk
and the release of the contract retention to Pacific Excavation,  in the amount of

39, 407 within forty- five ( 45) days after the recording of the Notice of Completion,
and authorizes the release of the performance and payment bonds.

348



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

349



ATTACHMENi
i3 ..

RECORDING REOUESTED BY, AND

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

CITY OF LATHROP

ATTN: CITY CLERK

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CA 95330

Exempt from payment of recording fees( GC 11922)

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER' S USE

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GNEN:

1.   That the interest or estate stated in paragraph 3 herein in the real property herein described is owned by:
NAME STREET AND NO.       CITY STATE

Citv of Lathrop 390 Towne Centre Drive Lathrop CA 95330

If more than one owner of the interest stated, the name and address of each must be stated)

2.   That the full name and address of the owner of said interest or estate, if there is only one owner, and that the full

names and addresses of all the co- owners who own said interest or estate as tenants in common, as joint tenants, or

otherwise, if there is more than one owner, are set forth in the preceding paragraph.

3.   That the nature of the title of stated owner, or if more than one owner, then of the stated owner and co- owners is

fee title( e. g. fee title, leasehold, joint tenancy, etc.).

4.   That on the l lth day of September, 2023 a work of improvement on the real property herein described was
completed.

5.   That the name of the original contractor, if any, for said work of improvement was: Tim Paxin' s Pacific Excavation,
Inc. dba Pacific Excavation

6.   That the name and address of the transferor is:

NAME STREET AND NO.      CITY STATE

Tim Paxin' s Pacific Excavation,      9796 Kent Street Elk Grove CA 95624

Inc. dba Pacific Excavation

7.   That the real property herein referred to is situated in the Citv of Lathrop County of San Joaquin,
State of California, and is described as follows:

Streetli hts associated with CIP GG 21- 15, Louise Avenue Landscape: 390 Towne Centre Drive Lathrop, CA 95330

That the undersigned has knowledge of the contents herein and states under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true
and correct.

CITY OF LATHROP

By:
Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager Date

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Date

350



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the NOTICE OF COMPLETION
dated September 11, 2023 by Tim Paxin' s Pacific Excavation, Inc. dba Pacific Excavation to the

City of Lathrop, a political corporation and/or governmental agency, is hereby accepted by the
undersigned officer or agent on behalf of the City Council pursuant to authority conferred by minute

action of the City Council adopted on September 11, 2023, and the gantee consents to recordation
thereof by its duly authorized officer.

Dated By
Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager

351



352



ITEM 4. 18

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       AWARD SERVICE CONTRACT TO SWEEPING

CORPORATION OF AMERICA OF CALIFORNIA,  LLC

FOR STREET SWEEPING SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Awarding a Service Contract to
Sweeping Corporation of America of California, LLC

for Street Sweeping Services

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop is responsible for the street sweeping maintenance of

approximately 170 curb- miles of streets and public parking lots within the city limits.
The City' s sweeping responsibility includes residential, collector, and arterial streets
and City- owned parking lots. Therefore, bid specifications and a scope of work for

scheduled and on- call street and parking lot sweeping services were completed by
staff and advertised for informal bid on August 7,  2023 in accordance with Public

Contract Code ( PCC) 22034 and Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) 3. 30. 060.

A total of two ( 2) bids were received and opened by Public Works on August 22,
2023.  Based on review and evaluation of the bids, the responsible bidder with the

lowest responsive bid was determined to be Sweeping Corporation of America of
California, LLC ( SCA of CA), with a bid of $ 90, 000.

Staff requests City Council award a Service Contract to SCA of CA for a partial term
cost of $ 74, 027 for the initial term of September 11,  2023 to June 30,  2024 for

scheduled and on- call street and public parking lot sweeping services.

StafF also requests City Council authorize the City Manager to approve up to two ( 2)

additional consecutive one- year contract terms at a base cost of $ 90, 000 per year at
the rates and terms as stipulated in the bid documents, plus yearly cost increases
due to anticipated inflation if requested by the Contractor and the addition of newly
accepted streets and parking lots.   The total cost of this request is $ 202, 875, as

summarized in Table 2 - Contract Cost Estimate Summary on page 3.

BACKGROU N D:

The State of California Water Quality laws require municipalities to clean and sweep
their public streets to ensure that trash and debris do not flow into the surrounding
natural environment from the street through the storm drain system. Furthermore,

the City' s adherence to its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES)

permit by sweeping its streets plays a crucial role in substantially reducing the release
of pollutants and debris from the City' s stormwater system into the surrounding
natural environment.

353



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD SERVICE CONTRACT TO SWEEPING CORPORATION OF AMERICA OF

CA, LLC FOR STREET SWEEPING SERVICES

The City is not equipped to perform street sweeping services. These services require
specific equipment, skilled personnel, and specialized knowledge.  Therefore, the City

contracts scheduled and on- call street sweeping.

The specifications and scope of work for this project were completed and solicited for
informal bid on August 7, 2023, in accordance with PCC 22034 and LMC 3. 30. 060.

A total of 2 bids were received, all determined to be responsive and from responsible

bidders. The bid results are summarized in Table 1 below:

Table 1: Summary of Bid Results

Contractor Total Bid

Swee in Cor oration of America 90, 000

Gre o Construction 132, 069

The lowest responsible bidder for Street Sweeping Services was SCA of CA with a
base bid of $ 90, 000 per year.

The proposed contract with SCA of CA includes monthly sweeping of all the City' s
streets with curb & gutter and quarterly sweeping of City parking lots, plus unit prices
for emergency call- outs and additions/ deletions to the basic sweeping services.  The

initial term of the contract will begin as early as September 11, 2023 and end on

June 30, 2024.  The City at its discretion may renew the contract annually in writing
for up to two ( 2) more one- year terms, each from July 1 to June 30, not to exceed
June 30, 2026 using the same pricing structure as provided in the contractor' s original
bid.

Staff requests that:

City Council award a Service Contract to SCA of CA for a total contract amount
of $ 74, 027 for the term of September 11, 2023 to June 30, 2024; and

Authorize the City Manager to extend this contract for up to two ( 2) additional
one- year terms with anticipated cost increases for inflation and the addition of
new streets, for a total authorization of $ 276, 902. See Table 2, Contract Cost

Estimate Summary below for details.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City maintains approximately 170 curb- miles miles of streets and public parking
lots, and does not have the equipment, workforce, or expertise to sweep the City' s
streets and public parking lots.   Street sweeping is also a requirement under the
City' s NPDES permit for its storm drain system.

SCA of CA was the responsible bidder with the lowest responsive bid of $ 90, 000 per
year. SCA of CA has previously provided and currently provides identical services to

354



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD SERVICE CONTRACT TO SWEEPING CORPORATION OF AMERICA OF

CA, LLC FOR STREET SWEEPING SERVICES

nearby municipal agencies in an acceptable and professional manner.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of the FY 2023- 24 Street Sweeping Services contract with SCA of CA is
90, 000 per year plus a yearly cost increase due to anticipated increases in the

California Department of General Services ( DGS) Construction Cost Index ( CCI). The

initial contract term from September 11, 2023 to ) une 30, 2024 is prorated at a cost
of $ 74, 027.

The Cost Estimate Summary Table below shows estimated costs comprising each
contract term, including contract base, and estimated costs for economic escalation
and sweeping of future accepted public streets and parking lots.

Table 2 — Contract Cost Estimate Summary

Initial Term Renewal 1 Renewal 2
Total

Bud et

Fiscal Year 2023/ 24 2024/ 25 2025/ 26

Contract Base 74, 027*      $ 90, 000       $ 97, 500

CCI Increase @ 5% max.    N/ A 4 500 4 875

Anticipated Cost Increase for
N/ A 3, 000 3, 000

New Streets

Contract Total Cost 74 027     $ 97 500    $ 105 375    $ 276 902

prorated value for initial contract term

Sufficient funding for the initial term of this contract was included in the FY 2023- 24
budget; therefore, no budget amendment is needed.

Future budgets would be required prior to any term extensions.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Awarding a Service Contract to Sweeping Corporation of America of
California, LLC for Street Sweeping Services

B.  Street Sweeping Services Contract with Sweeping Corporation of America of
CA, LLC for Street Sweeping Services

355



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD SERVICE CONTRACT TO SWEEPING CORPORATION OF AMERICA OF

CA, LLC FOR STREET SWEEPING SERVICES

APPROVALS:

8, 23 .Z3
Steven Hollenbeak Date

Assistant Engineer

5 - 28 - 23
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

gJ2 Ztn3

Brad aylor Date

City Engineer

a 3

Cari J Date

Finance p rector

8 • 23• 2023

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

zy. Z 3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

8•31- 23
S phen ). Salvatore Date

City Manager

356



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AWARDING
A SERVICE CONTRACT TO SWEEPING CORPORATION OF AMERICA OF CA, LLC
FOR STREET SWEEPING SERVICES

WHEREAS,  the City advertised an informal bid solicitation for street and
parking lot sweeping services on August 7,  2023,  pursuant to the Public Contract
Code 22034 and Lathrop Municipal Code Section 3. 30. 060; and

WHEREAS, a total of two ( 2) bids were received and opened by Public Works
on August 22, 2023; and

WHEREAS, upon review and evaluation of the bids, the lowest responsive bid

from a responsible bidder for the requested services was determined to be Sweeping
Corporation of America of CA, LLC ( SCA of CA), with a bid of $ 90, 000 per year; and

WHEREAS,  staff requests City Council award a Street Sweeping Service
Contract to SCA of CA for a pro- rated cost of $ 74, 027 for the term of September 11,
2023 to June 30,  2024 for scheduled and on- call street and public parking lot
sweeping services; and

WHEREAS,  the City at its discretion may renew the contract annually in
writing for up to two ( 2) more one- year terms, each from July 1 to June 30, not to

exceed June 30, 2026 using the same pricing structure and conditions as provided in
the contractor' s original bid; and

WHEREAS,  therefore,  staff requests that City Council authorize the City
Manager to approve up to two ( 2) additional consecutive one- year contract terms
with SCA of CA at a total estimated value of $ 202, 875, which includes potential yearly
cost increases due to inflation and addition of future accepted streets and public

parking lots; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds were included in the FY 2023- 24 budget for the

initial term, and future budgets would be required prior to any term extensions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby award a service contract to Sweeping Corporation of America of
CA,  LLC for scheduled and on- call street and parking lot sweeping services in the
prorated amount of $ 74, 027 for the term of September 11, 2023 - June 30, 2024;

and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby authorize the City Manager to approve up to two ( 2) additional consecutive

one- year contract terms with Sweeping Corporation of America of CA, LLC at a total
estimated value of $ 202, 875 for scheduled and on- call street sweeping services
through June 30, 2026.

357



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of September, 2023
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

358



arracH
g  .

SECTION 00500

FY 23/ 24 STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION

STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

This Contract, dated September 11, 2023 is entered into by and between the City of
Lathrop, a municipal corporation of the State of California( City), and Sweeping Corporation of
America of California,  LLC,  ( Contractor),  whose Taxpayer ldentification Number is

For and in consideration of the following covenants, terms and conditions, City and
Contractor( the parties) agree:

1. Term.  This Contract shall commence on, and be binding on the parties on, the date of
execution of this Contract, and shall expire on June 30, 2024,  subject to the earlier

termination of this Contract.  This contract may be extended by the City Manager at his
sole discretion for up to two ( 2) additional consecutive one ( 1) year terms after the initial
contract period pursuant to Resolution 23-      The City shall notify the Contractor
in writing of its intent to extend the contract by June 1 S` of the current contract year.

2. General Scope of Work. Contract Documents for FY 2023- 2024 Street Sweeping Services,
Work).  Contractor shall furnish labor, services, materials and equipment in connection

with the performance of the Work in accordance with the covenants, terms and conditions
of this Contract to the satisfaction of City.

The work to be performed under this contract includes all work contained in the Bid
Documents, as detailed in Paragraph 3 below, including but not limited to the provision of
scheduled monthly mobile sweeping of approximately 172 curb- miles of specified City-
owned streets and roadside and median gutters, and approximately 292,000 square feet of
parking lots, and the provision of unscheduled and/ or emergency sweeping services for any
City-owned facility, as further specified in the Bid Specifications.

The Work shall be complete,  and all appurtenant work, materials,  and services not

expressly shown or called for in the Contract Documents that may be necessary for the
complete and proper performance of the Work in good faith shall be performed and
furnished by the Contractor as though originally specified or shown.  The Contractor will
be compensated for work actual work performed in accordance with the unit prices and
provisions contained in these Bid Documents.

Contract Initial Term: September 11, 2023 — June 30, 2024 Total:  $ 74, 027

Prorated)

Optional Term 1: July 1, 2024 —June 30, 2025 Total: $ 90, 000

Optional Term 2: July 1, 2025— June 30, 2026 Total: $ 90, 000

359



SECTION 00500

FY 23/ 24 STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION

3. Contract Documents.  This Contract shall include the following documents, which are on
file with the City Clerk and are hereby incorporated by reference: Project Specifications
and addenda, and the insurance certification, workers compensation certification and the

Contract Documents submitted by Sweeping Corporation of America of California,
LLC on August 22, 2023.   For the purposes of construing, interpreting and resolving
inconsistencies between the provisions of this Contract,  these documents and the

provisions thereof are set forth in the order of precedence described in Article 3 of the
General Conditions.

4. Compensation.  In consideration of Contractor' s performance of its obligations hereunder,
City shall pay to Contractor the amount set forth in Contractor' s Bid in accordance with
the provisions of this Contract and upon the receipt of written invoices and all necessary
supporting documentation within the time set forth in the Bid Documents. Contractor
hereby shall not be permitted to invoice the City nor accept compensation for work not yet
complete. In no event, shall the Contractor be entitled to payment for work not included in
the approved scope of work, a written task order, or change order signed by the City' s
Director of Public Warks prior to commencement of any work.  Annual price adjustment,
if any, shall be as described in Section 800, Special Conditions of the FY 2023- 2024 Street
Sweeping Services Contract Specifications.

5. Insurance.  On or before the Date of Execution, Contractor shall obtain and maintain the

policies of insurance coverage described in Section 4 of the General Conditions on terms
and conditions and in amounts as may be required by the City.  City shall not be obligated
to take out insurance on Contractor' s personal property or the personal property of any
person performing labor or services or supplying materials or equipment under the Project.
Contractor shall furnish City with the certificates of insurance and with original
endorsements affecting coverage required under this Contract on or before the Date of
Execution. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by
a person who is authorized by that insurer to bind coverage in its behalf. Proof of insurance
shall be mailed to the Project Manager to the address set forth in Section 15 of this Contract.

6. Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its City
Council members, officers, employees, engineer, harmless from and against any and all
claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens, penalties, suits, or
judgments, arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time from any injury to
or death of persons or damage to property as a result of the willful or negligent act or
omission of Contractor, or which results from Contractor' s noncompliance with any Law
respecting the condition, use, occupation or safety of the Project site, or any part thereof,
or which arises from Contractor' s failure to do anything required under this Contract or for
doing anything which Contractor is required not to do under this Contract, or which arises
from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability on Contractor in the performance
of or failure to perform the terms and conditions of this Contract, except as may arise from
the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City Council members,
officers, employees.  T'his indemnification shall extend to any and all claims, demands, or

360



SECTION 00500

FY 23/ 24 STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION

liens made or filed by reason of any services performed by Contractor under this Contract
at any time during the term of this Contract, or arising thereafter.

7. Assumption of Risk.  Contractor agrees to voluntarily assume any and all risk of loss,
damage, or injury to the property of Contractor which may occur in, on, or about the Project
site at any time and in any manner, excepting such loss, injury, or damage as may be caused
by the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City Council members,
officers, or employees.

8. Waiver.  The acceptance of any payment or performance, or any part thereof, shall not
operate as a waiver by City of its rights under this Contract. A waiver by City of any breach
of any part or provision of this Contract by Contractor shall not operate as a waiver or
continuing waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision, nor shall

any custom or practice which may arise between the parties in the administration of any
part or provision of this Contract be construed to waive or to lessen the right of City to
insist upon the performance of Contractor in strict compliance with the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Contract.

9. Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all Laws now in force or which may
hereafter be in force pertaining to the Project and Work and this Contract, with the
requirement of any bond or fire underwriters or other similar body now or hereafter
constituted, with any discretionary license or permit issued pursuant to any Law of any
public agency or official as well as with any provision of all recorded documents affecting
the Project site, insofar as any are required by reason of the use or occupancy of the Project
site,  and with all Laws pertaining to nondiscrimination and affirmative action in
employment and hazardous materials.

10.      Bonds.  Payment and Performance Bonds are not applicable to this contract.

1 l.      Representations and Warranties.  In the supply of any materials and equipment and the
rendering of labor and services during the course and scope of the Project and Work,
Contractor represents and warrants:

1)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of
the Project and Wark shall be vested in Contractor;

2)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of
the Project and Work shall be merchantable and fit to be used for the particular
purpose for which the materials are required;

3)      Any labor and services rendered and materials and equipment used or employed
during the course and scope of the Project and Work shall be free of defects in
workmanship for a period of one ( 1) year after the recardation of the Notice of
Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that

final payrnent is made hereunder;

361



SECTION 00500

FY 23/ 24 STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION

4)      Any manufacturer' s warranty obtained by Contractor shall be obtained or shall be
deemed obtained by Contractor for and on behalf of City.

5)      Any information submitted by Contractor prior to the award of Contract, or
thereafter, upon request, whether or not submitted under a continuing obligation by
the terms of the Contract to do so, is true and correct at the time such information

is submitted or made available to the City;

6)      Contractor has not colluded, conspired, or ageed, directly or indirectly, with any
person in regard to the terms and conditions of Contractor' s Bid, except as may be
permitted by the Notice to Contractors;

7)      Contractor has the power and the authority to enter into this Contract with City, that
the individual executing this Contract is duly authorized to do so by appropriate
resolution, and that this Contract shall be executed, delivered and performed
pursuant to the power and authority conferred upon the person or persons
authorized to bind Contractor;

8)      Contractor has not made an attempt to exert undue influence with the Project

Manager or any other person who has directly contributed to City' s decision to
award the Contract to Contractor;

9)      There are no unresolved claims or disputes between Contractor and City which
would materially affect Contractor' s ability to perform under the Contract;

10)    Contractor has furnished and will furnish true and accurate statements, records,

reports,  resolutions,  certifications,  and other written information as may be
requested of Contractor by City from time to time during the term of this Contract;

11)    Contractor and any person performing labor and services under this Project is duly
licensed as a contractor with the State of California as required by California
Business & Professional Code Section 7028, as amended; and

12)    Contractor has fully examined and inspected the Project site and has full knowledge
of the physical conditions of the Project site.

12.      Assi ngment.    This Contract and the performance required hereunder is personal to
Contractar, and it shall not be assigned by Contractor.  Any attempted assignment shall be
null and void.

13.      Claims of Contractor.  All claims pertaining to extra work, additional charges, or delays
within the Contract Time or other disputes arising out of the Contract shall be submitted
by Contractor in accordance with the General Conditions.

14.      Audits bv City.  During the term of this Contract and far a period of not less than three ( 3)
years after the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract, City shall have the right to

362



SECTION 00500

FY 23/ 24 STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION

audit Contractor' s Project- related and Work- related writings and business records, as such

terms are defined in California Evidence Code Sections 250 and 1271, as amended, during
the regular business hours of Contractor, or, if Contractor has no such hours, during the
regular business hours of City.

15.      Notices.   All contracts,  agreements,  appointments,  approvals,  authorizations,  claims,

demands, Change Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements

given by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail,
postage prepaid,( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the case of a facsimile
transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business
hours of the receiving party and followed with two (2) days by delivery of a hard copy of
the material sent by facsimile transmission, in accordance with ( 1), ( 2) or ( 3) above.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service by
facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

PHONE:( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:     ( 209) 941- 7219

ATTN:   Senior Construction Manager

To Contractor:       Sweeping Corporation of America of

California, LLC

Mailing Address:    390 E. Gish Road San Jose, CA 95112

Phone: 510) 458- 2031

Email: jalvarado@sweepingcorp. com

ATTN: Jesse Alvarado

16.      Miscellaneous.

1)      Bailee Disclaimer.  The parties understand and agree that City does not purport to
be Contractor' s bailee, and City is, therefore, not responsible for any damage to the
personal property of Contractor.

363



SECTION 00500

FY 23/ 24 STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION

2)      Consent.  Whenever in this Contract the approval or consent of a party is required,
such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person
having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

3)      Controlling Law.   The parties agree that this Contract shall be governed and
construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

4)      Definitions.  The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

5)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any
delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Contract, which directly results
from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

6)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Contract and shall have no
effect upon the interpretation of any part of this Contract.

7)      Incorporation of Documents.  All documents constituting the Contract Documents
described in Section 3 hereof and all documents which may, from time to time, be
referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference
incorporated in this Contract and shall be deemed to be part of this Contract.

8)      Integration.    This Contract and any amendments hereto between the parties
constitute the entire contract between the parties concerning the Project and Work,
and there are no other prior oral or written contracts between the parties that are not
incorporated in this Contract.

9)      Modification of Contract.  This Contract shall not be modified or be binding upon
the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

10)    Provision.   Any contract, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, term or other stipulation in the Contract shall define or otherwise

control, establish, or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required
of or permitted by either party.  All provisions, whether covenants or conditions,
shall be deemed to be both covenants and conditions.

11)    Resolution.   Contractor shall submit with its Bid a copy of any corporate or
partnership resolution or other writing, which authorizes any director, officer or
other employee or partner to act for or on behalf of Contractor or which authorizes
Contractar to enter into this Contract.

12)    Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Contract is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Contract not so
affected shall remain in full force and effect.

13)    Status of Contractor.  In the exercise of rights and obligations under this Contract,

Contractor acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of

364



SECTION 00500

FY 23/ 24 STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION

City. Contractor shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members,  officers ar employees of City,  and Contractor
expressly waives any and all claims to such rights and benefits.

14)    Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Contract shall inure to the benefit
of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

15)    Time of the Essence.   Time is of the essence of this Contract and each of its

provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be

performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including the last.  If

the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or any Day
observed as a legal holiday by City, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

16)    Venue.  In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree
that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California
in the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of California.

17)    Recovery of costs.  The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms
of this Contract or arising out of this Contract, including the enforcement of the
indemnity provision( s), may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable
attorney' s fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the
non- prevailing party.

18)    Contractor and subcontractors must comply with all applicable standards, orders,
or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 USC 1857( h)),

Section 508 of the Clean Water Act ( 33 USC1368), Executive Order 11738, and

Environmental Protection Agency Regulations at 40 CFR Part 15.

19)    Notice to Proceed.      Prior to commencing work under this Contract,

CONTRACTOR shall receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice

to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary insurances have been received.
City shall not be obligated to pay CONTRACTOR far any services prior to issuance
of the Notice to proceed.

20)    Signatures. The individuals executing this Contract represent and warrant that they
have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this
Contract on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the

CITY.  This Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

EXHIBITS:

EXHIBIT A: Contractor' s Submitted Bid Packet

Certification of insurance and worker' s compensation certification shall be furnished to
the Ciry by the Contractor after Ciry Council' s approval with resolution.

365



SECTION 00500

FY 23/24 STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CONTRACT

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first above
stated in Lathrop, California.

CONTRACTOR:

By:

Name:

Title:

CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

By:
Michael King, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED:

By:
Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager

END OF SECTION)

366



EXHIBIT"`"

5,=: Ec c C t rFs c f t.<<'+ s

SECTION 0 3Q0

F' I3t24 STREE7' SVYEEPIV{ SER' 1<'£ S BID PRU!' US. L FURl1lS
CI1P('{' AA IPtFORB AL BID Si LICI' E' AT( Oti

SCNEUiILE-- A

BASE BID E'OR SCHEDIILE' SWEEPIi iG

g  
UfSCRiP' F10: 1 S/[ 111T UI ITS

a EAL ANN[! AL

ITEM FREQIIERC'Y PWCE

Monthlv Street Sweeping
Services for City St eets 71. 7

1 with Curb and Guttcr—      $• fl1 CURB MILES 12 78. 315. 80

171. 7 curb-miles

uarterl Stre et Sweeping 291. K00
Z

Services t'or Ciiy Parking   $
0. 01     

Q FEET 4 5 11. 684. 2U
Lots— uare Feei

TOTAL ANN[? AL BASE BtD( SUM OF BID ITEM# 1 A1 U# 2 ANI LTAL PRIf. Ey: 0

T4TAL A IN[ 1AL BASE BID fN WORDS: Nlnery Thousand Do rs

SCHEDULE— B

iT11IT PR10E FUR EMEItGEhCY CALL- QIJ' f

PRi) POSAL HOI' RLY

t' i'EM
DES RIPTIOM1 t' NITS      

t Emc.rgency Ca11- out H
icle-  $

Z1

v1I1vIMUM NO, OF HOURS PER C'ALL- UT 3

MI' V[ AillM PR10E F(lR EMERGEhCI` C.ALL O11T: S     $ 30. 00

367



368



ITEM 4. 19

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       RATIFY CITY MANAGER APPROVAL OF

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH LUMA

ENGINEERING INC.   FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP

FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14 AND

APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution to Ratify City Manager' s Action to
Approve Construction Contract with Luma

Engineering Inc. for the City of Lathrop Facilities ADA
Improvements,  CIP GG 23- 14 and Approve Budget

Amendment

SUMMARY:

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act ( ADA),  staff has identified

three facilities that will benefit from the installation of automatic doors including the
Lathrop Senior Center, Community Center and Generations Center. The goal is to
make facility access easier for people with disabilities while improving security and
energy conservancy in the three facilities.

The bid solicitation package for the construction of the City of Lathrop Facilities ADA
Improvements CIP GG21- 14 ( Project) was advertised on July 18, 2023 in accordance
with Informal Bidding Procedures in California Uniform Public Construction Cost
Accounting Act ( CA PCC) 22032 and Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) Sections 3. 30. 060
and 3. 30. 070.

Public Works received and opened one ( 1) bid on August 3, 2023. Based on the review

and evaluation of the bid, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the project
was determined to be Luma Engineering Inc.  ( Luma Engineering),  with a bid of

138, 000.

Due to the estimated time ( six weeks) to order and receive the automatic doors the

contract with Luma Engineering has been executed by staff, following approval from
the City Manager.

Staff request Council ratify City Manager' s approval of the contract with Luma
Engineering for $ 138, 000, authorize a 10% contingency of $ 13, 800 and authorize

staff to spend the contingency as necessary to achieve the goals of the project for a
total cost not to exceed $ 151, 800. In addition, sufficient funds were not approved in

the approved FY 23- 24 budget;  therefore, staff request Council approve a Budget

Amendment for $ 73, 180 as detailed in the fiscal impact section below.

369



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY CITY MANAGER APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH
LUMA ENGINEERING INC.  FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA

IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

BACKGROUND:

Congress enacted the Americans with Disabilities Act ( ADA) in 1990 requiring local
governments to provide equal access to civic facilities,  services,  programs and
activities for individuals with disabilities. Title 24 of the California Government Code

specifies that all buildings,  structures,  sidewalks,   curbs,  and related facilities

constructed in California with state, county or municipal funds, to be accessible and
usable by persons with disabilities.

To make City facility access easier for people with disabilities,  staff has identified

three facilities that will benefit from the installation of automatic doors including the
Lathrop Senior Center,  Community Center and Generations Center.  City staff

prepared the plans and technical specifications for the Project and the informal bid
solicitation package was advertised on July 8,  2023,  in accordance with Informal

Bidding Procedures in CA PCC 22032 and LMC 3. 30. 060 and 3. 30. 070. One ( 1) bid

was received; Luma Engineering was determined to be a responsive and responsible
bidder.

Table 1: Summar of Bid Results

Contractor Total Bid

Luma En ineerin Inc.     138, 000

Staff requests City Council adopt a resolution to ratify City Manager' s approval of a
construction contract with Luma Engineering for  $ 138, 000,   authorize a 10%

contingency of $ 13, 800 and authorize staff to spend the contingency as necessary to
achieve the goals of the project for a total cost not to exceed $ 151, 800.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The proposed project will improve accessibility for individuals with disabilities,
improve security, save energy and establish ADA conformance.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The construction contract with Luma Engineering for  $ 138, 000,   plus a 10%

contingency of $ 13, 800 is requested for a total project not to exceed $ 151, 800.

The project received CDBG funds in the amount of $ 78, 620. Additional funding in the
amount $ 73, 180 is needed to augment existing project funds and the CDBG funds
to cover the Project Budget.

Therefore, the balance of $ 59, 380, plus a 10% contingency of $ 13, 800 for a total of

73, 180 will be carried over from fiscal year 22- 23 General Fund ( 1010), CIP GG 22-

31 to the CIP Project Fund ( 3010) as follows:

370



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY CITY MANAGER APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH
LUMA ENGINEERING INC.  FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA

IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 73, 180

Decrease A propriations
1010- 5001- 420- 0100 73, 180

Increase Transfer

3010- 9900- 393- 00- 00 GG 23- 14 73, 180

Increase Expenditures

3010- 8000- 420- 12- 00 GG 23- 14 73, 180

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.   Resolution to Ratify City Manager Approval of Construction Contract with Luma
Engineering Inc. for the City Of Lathrop Facilities ADA Improvements, CIP GG
23- 14 and Approve Budget Amendment

B.  Ratified Construction Contract with Luma Engineering, Inc. for CIP GG 23- 14,
City of Lathrop Facilities ADA Improvements

371



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY CITY MANAGER APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH

LUMA ENGINEERING INC.  FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA

IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

C.     Z Z,    Za 2

Carlos Carrillo Date

Management Analyst II

3 - 3
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

ZI 202

Brad ylor Date

City Engineer

l i  g p..

Cari James Date

Director of inance

21 • 2023

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Z-  3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l -.-     ZQ• Z3

Step en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

372



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP RATIFYING

A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH LUMA ENGINEERING INC FOR THE CITY

OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14 AND APPROVE

BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act ( ADA), staff

has identified three facilities that will benefit from the installation of automatic doors

including the Lathrop Senior Center, Community Center and Generations Center; and

WHEREAS,  City staff prepared the plans and technical specifications.  The

informal bid solicitation package for the City of Lathrop Facility ADA Improvements,
CIP GG 23- 14 ( Project) was advertised on ) uly 8, 2023, in accordance with Informal
Bidding Procedures in CA PCC 22032 and LMC 3. 30. 060 and 3. 30. 070; and

WHEREAS, Public Works received and opened one ( 1) bid on August 3, 2023.

Based on the review and evaluation of the bid, the lowest responsive and responsible

bidder for the project was determined to be Luma Engineering Inc.   ( Luma

Engineering), with a bid of $ 138, 000; and

WHEREAS, a portion of the construction contract will be funded with CDBG
funds with an available balance of $ 78, 620; and

WHEREAS, due to the estimated time ( six weeks) to order and receive the

automatic doors the contract with Luma Engineering has been executed by the staff,
following approval from the City Manager; and

WHEREAS,  staff request Council ratify the City Manager' s approval of a
construction contract with Luma Engineering for  $ 138, 000,   authorize a 10%

contingency of $ 13, 800 and authorize staff to spend the contingency as necessary to
achieve the goals of the project for a total cost not to exceed $ 151, 800; and

WHEREAS, therefore,  the balance of $ 59, 380,  plus a 10%  contingency of
13, 800 for a total of $ 73, 180 will be carried over from fiscal year 22- 23 General

Fund ( 1010), CIP GG 22- 31 to the CIP Project Fund ( 3010) as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 73, 180

Decrease A propriations
1010- 5001- 420- 0100 73, 180

Increase Transfer

3010- 9900- 393- 00- 00 GG 23- 14 73, 180

Increase Expenditures

3010- 8000- 420- 12- 00 GG 23- 14 73, 180

373



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City
of Lathrop hereby approve the ratification of a construction contract with Luma
Engineering Inc., for $ 138, 000, authorize a 10% contingency for the total project
cost not to exceed  $ 151, 800 and authorizes staff to spend up to this amount as
necessary to accomplish the goals of the Project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve a budget amendment as detailed above.

374



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of September 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

375



ATTAC,FiMENT
SECTION 00500

y  

CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

CONTRACT

This Contract, dated September, 2023, is entered into by and between the City
of Lathrop,  a municipal corporation of the State of California  ( City),  and Luma

Engineering Contractors Inc.   dba LUMA Builders,   ( Contractor),   whose Taxpayer

Identification Number is 88- 1014365.

For and in consideration of the following covenants, terms and conditions, City and
Contractor ( the parties) agree:

1.       Term.  This Contract shall commence on, and be binding on the parties on, the date of
execution of this Contract, and shall expire on the date of recordation of the Notice of

Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that final

payment is made hereunder, subject to the earlier termination of this Contract.

a.)  This project is funded with Community Development Block Grant ( CDBG) funds.

Contractors and Subcontractors shall adhere to applicable provisions of the CDBG
Program Labor Compliance Manual & Contract Language attached to the bid documents,

of this contract ATTACHMENT B. All required compliance forms must be submitted per
CDBG requirements.

1.       General Scope of Project and Work.    Construction Documents for the CITY OF

LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS,  CIP GG 23- 14  ( Project).

Contractor shall furnish labor, services, materials and equipment in connection with the

construction of the Project and complete the Work in accordance with the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Contract to the satisfaction of City.   The Project and Work is

generally described as follows:

The work to be performed under this contract includes all work contained in the
Construction Documents, as detailed in Paragraph 3 below, including but not limited to the
removal of three ( 3) existing sets of double swing doors, framing modifications and
installation of 3 automated single slide glass doors, 1 swinging door and all appurtenances
at the three different City of Lathrop owned facilities, as more fully described in the Project
Plans and Specifications of the Informal Bid Solicitation, City of Lathrop Facilities ADA
Improvements and incorporated herein by reference.

The Work shall be complete, and all appurtenant work, materials, and services not

expressly shown or called for in the Construction Documents which may be necessary for
the complete and proper construction of the Work in good faith shall be performed,
furnished, and installed by the Contractar as though originally specified or shown.  The

Contractor will be compensated for work actual work performed in accordance with the
unit prices and provisions contained in these Construction Documents.

Base Bid Total: 138, 000. 00 ( One Hundred Thirtv- Eight Thousand Dollars)

00500- 1

376



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LATHROP FACILIT' IES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATTON CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

3.       Construction Documents. This Contract shall include the Construction Documents which

are on file with the Public Works Deparhnent and are hereby incorporated by reference
i.e. Project Specifications, Project Plans, addenda, certification of insurance, workers

compensation certification, and guaranty) and the Bid Documents submitted by Luma
Eningeering Contractors Inc. dba LUMA Builders on August 3, 2023. For the purposes of
construing, interpreting and resolving inconsistencies between the provisions of this
Contract, these documents and the provisions thereof are set forth in the order of
precedence described in Article 3 of the General Conditions.

4.       Compensation. In consideration of Contractor' s performance of its obligations hereunder,
City shall pay to Contractor the amount set forth in Contractor' s Bid in accordance with
the provisions of this Contract and upon the receipt of written invoices and all necessary
supporting documentation within the time set forth in the Construction Documents.
Contractor hereby shall not be permitted to invoice the City nor accept compensation for
work not yet complete. In no event, shall the Contractor be entitled to payment for work
not included in the approved scope of work, a written task order, or change order signed

by the City' s Public Works Director prior to commencement of any work.

5.       Insurance.  On or before the Date of Execution, Contractor shall obtain and maintain the

policies of insurance coverage described in Section 5. 2 of the General Conditions on terms
and conditions and in amounts as may be required by the City. City shall not be obligated
to take out insurance on Contractor' s personal property or the personal property of any
person performing labor or services or supplying materials or equipment under the Project.
Contractor shall fumish City with the certificates of insurance and with original
endorsements affecting coverage required under this Contract on or before the Date of
Execution. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by
a person who is authorized by that insurer to bind coverage in its behalf. Proof of insurance
shall be mailed to the Project Manager to the address set forth in Section 15 of this Contract.

6.       Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its City
Council members, officers, employees, engineer, and construcrion manager harmless from
and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens,
penalties, suits, or judgments, arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time
from any injury to or death of persons or damage to property as a result of the willful or
negligent act or omission of Contractor, or which results from Contractor' s noncompliance

with any Law respecting the condition, use, occupation or safety of the Project site, or any
part thereof, or which arises from Contractor' s failure to do anything required under this
Contract or for doing anything which Contractor is required not to do under this Contract,
or which arises from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability on Contractor in
the performance of or failure to perform the terms and conditions of this Contract, except
as may arise from the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City
Council members, officers, employees.  This indemnification shall extend to any and all
claims, demands, or liens made or filed by reason of any construction, renovation, or
remodeling work performed by Contractor under this Contract at any time during the term
of this Contract, or arising thereafter.

00500- 2

377



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LATHROP FACILI' I'IES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITAITON CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

7.       Assumption of Risk.  Contractor agrees to voluntarily assume any and all risk of loss,
damage, or injury to the property ofContractor which may occur in, on, or about the Project
site at any time and in any manner, excepting such loss, injury, or damage as may be caused
by the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City Council members,
officers, or employees.

8.       Waiver.  The acceptance of any payment or performance, or any part thereof, shall not
operate as a waiver by City of its rights under this Contract. A waiver by City ofany breach
of any part or provision of this Contract by Contractor shall not operate as a waiver or
continuing waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision, nor shall
any custom or practice which may arise between the parties in the administration of any
part or provision of this Contract be construed to waive or to lessen the right of City to
insist upon the performance of Contractor in strict compliance with the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Contract.

9.       Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all Laws now in force or which may
hereafter be in force pertaining to the Project and Work and this Contract, with the
requirement of any bond or fire underwriters or other similar body now or hereafter
constituted, with any discrerionary license or permit issued pursuant to any Law of any
public agency or official as well as with any provision of all recorded documents affecting
the Proj ect site, insofar as any are required by reason of the use or occupancy of the Proj ect
site,  and with all Laws pertaining to nondiscrimination and affirmative action in
employment and hazazdous materials.

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS- COMPLIANCE MONITORING iTNIT

DIR RegistraHon.

a)  Contractor and Subcontractor Compliance.   Strict compliance with DIR registration

requirements pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725. 5 is a material obligation of the
Contractor under the Contract Documents.  The foregoing includes without lunitation,
compliance with DIR Registration requirements at all times during performance of the
Work by the Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier.  The failure of the Contractor
and a115ubcontractors ofevery tire to be DIR registered at all times during the performance
of the Work is the Contractor' s default of a material obligation of the Contractor under the
Contract Documents.

b)  No Subcontractor Performance of Work Without DIR Registration.  No portion of the
Work is pemutted to be performed by a Subcontractor of any tier unless the Subcontractor
is a DIR Registered contractor.

c)  Contractor Obligation to Verify Subcontractor DIR Registration Status.  An affirmative

and on-going obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents is the
Contractor' s verification that all Subcontractors, of all tiers, are at all times during
performance of Work in full and strict compliance with DIR Registration requirements.
The Contractor shall not permit or allow any Subcontractor of any tier to perform any Work

00500- 3

378



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LATHROP FACILI'I'I S ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14
CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

without the Contractor' s verification that all such Subcontractors are in full and strict

compliance with DIR Registration requirements.

d)  Contractor Obligation to Request Substitution of Non-DIR Registered Subcontractor.  If

any Subcontractor identified in the Contractor' s Subcontractor List submitted with the
Contractor' s proposal for the Work is not DIR Registered at the time of opening of
proposals for the Work or if a Subcontractor' s DIR registration lapses prior to or during a
Subcontractor' s performance of Work, the Contractor shall request the CITY' s consent to
subsritute the non- DIR registered Subcontractor pursuant to Labor Code Section
1771. 1( c)( 3) and/ or Labor Code Section 1771. 1( d).

Certified Payroll Records

a)   Compliance with Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776. A material obligation of the

Contractor under the Contract Documents is:( i) the Contractor' s strict compliance with the

requirements pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776 for preparation and
submittal of Certified Payroll Records (" CPR"); and ( ii) the Contractor' s enforcement of

CPR prepazation and submittal for all Subcontractors of every tier.

b)  Express Condition Precedent to Payment of Contact Price.  Strict compliance with CPR

requirements established pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776 is an express condition
precedent to the CITY' s obligation to: ( i) process any request for payment of any portion
of the Contract Price; or( ii) to disburse any portion of the Contract Price to the Contractor.
The Contractor shall demonstrate strict compliance with CPR preparation and submittal
requirements by delivery to the CITY of electronic files or hazd copies of all CPR' s
submitted by the Contractor and/ or Subcontractors for Work pursuant to La.bor Code
Section 1771. 4 and 1776 concurrently with the submittal thereof to the Labor
Commissioner. The CITY: ( i) shall not be obligated to process or disburse any portion of
the Contract Price; or( ii) shall not be deemed in default of the CITY' s obligations under

the Contract Documents unless the Contractor' s demonstrates strict compliance with CPR

preparation and submittal requirements.

c)  PWR Monitoring and Enforcement.  During the Work pursuant to Labor Code Section
1771. 4( a)( 4), the Deparhnent of Industrial Relations shall monitor and enforce the

obligation of the Construction and Subcontractors of every tier to pay the laborers
performing any portion of the work the PWR established for the classification of work/
labor performed.

RECORD OF WAGES PAID: INSPECTION

Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776, Contractor stipulates the following:

a)  Contractor and each subcontractor shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing the name,
address, social security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours

worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman,
apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in connection with the

00500- 4

379



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL Bm SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

public work under the Facilities lease and Construction Provisions.  Such records shall be
on forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or shall contain the
same information of such fvrms. The payroll records may consist of payroll data that are
maintained as computer records, if printouts contain the same information as the forms
provided by the division and the printouts are verified as specified in subdivision ( a) of
Labor Code section 1776.

b)  The payroll records enumerated under subdivision ( a) shall be certified and shall be
available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of Contractor on the
following basis:

1) A certified copy of an employee' s payroll record shall be made available for
inspection or furnished to such employees or his or her authorized representative
on request.

2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision( a) shall be made
available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of the CITY,

the Division of Labor Standazds Enforcement, and Division of Apprenticeship
Standards of the Deparhnent of Industrial Relations.

3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision( a) shall be made
available upon request by the public for inspection or copies thereof.  However, a
request by the public shall be made through either the CITY, the Division of
Apprenticeship Standazds, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement. If the
requested payroll records have not been provided pursuant to paragraph ( 2), the

requesting party shall, prior to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of
prepazation by Contractor, subcontractors, and the entity through which the request
was made.  The public shall not be given access to such records at the principal
office of Contractor.

c)  Contractor shall file a certified copy of the records enumerated in subdivision( a) with the
entity that requested such records within ten( 10) days a$ er receipt of the written request.

d)  Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon request to
the public or any public agency, by the CTTY, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards,
or the division of Labor Standards Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated in such a

manner as to prevent disclosure of an individual' s name, address and social security
number. The name and address of contractor awarded the contract or performing the
contract shall not be marked or obliterated.

e)  Contractor shall inform the CTTY of the location of the records enumerated under

subdivision( a), including the street address, city, and county, and shall, within( 5) working
days, provide a notice of a change of location and address.

fl In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this Article, Contractor shall have

ten( 10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying in what
respects Contractor must comply with this Article. Should noncompliance still be evident

00500- 5

380



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LA'I'HROP FACILITIES ADA II1 IPROVEMEN' S, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

after such 10- day period, Contractor shall pay a penalty of One- Hundred Dollazs($ 100. 00)

to the CTTY for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict
compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards
or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, such penalties shall be withheld from the
progress payment then due.

The responsibility for compliance with this Article shall rest upon Contractor.

10.     Bonds.  As a condition precedent to City' s obligation to pay compensation to Contractor,
and on or before the date of Execution, Contractor shall furnish to the Project Manager the

Bonds as required under Section 00700- S. lA.

11.     Representations and Warranties.  In the supply of any materials and equipment and the
rendering of labor and services during the course and scope of the Project and Work,
Contractor represents and warrants:

1)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of
the Project and Work shall be vested in Contractor;

2)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of
the Project and Work shall be merchantable and fit to be used for the particular
purpose for which the materials are required;

3)      Any labor and services rendered and materials and equipment used or employed
during the course and scope of the Project and Work shall be free of defects in
workmanship for a period of one ( 1) yeaz after the recordation of the Notice of
Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that

final payment is made hereunder;

4)      Any manufacturer' s warranty obtained by Contractor shall be obtained or shall be
deemed obtained by Contractor for and on behalf of City.

5)      Any information submitted by Contractor prior to the award of Contract, or
thereafter, upon request, whether or not submitted under a continuing obligation by
the terms of the Contract to do so, is true and correct at the time such information

is submitted or made available to the City;

6)      Contractor has not colluded, conspired, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any
person in regard to the terms and conditions of Contractor' s Bid, except as may be
permitted by the Notice to Contractors;

7)      Contractor has the power and the authority to enter into this Contract with City, that
the individual executing this Contract is duly authorized to do so by appropriate
resolution, and that this Contract shall be executed, delivered and performed
pursuant to the power and authority conferred upon the person or persons
authorized to bind Contractor;

00500- 6

381



SECTION 00500

CI1' Y OF LATHItOP FACII. ITIES ADA IIVIPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

8)      Contractor has not made a.n attempt to exert undue influence with the Project

Manager or any other person who has directly contributed to City' s decision to
award the Contract to Contractor;

9)      There aze no unresolved claims or disputes between Contractor and City which
would materially affect Contractor' s ability to perform under the Contract;

10)    Contractor has fumished and will furnish true and accurate statements, records,

reports,  resolutions,  certifications,  and other written information as may be
requested of Contractor by City from time to time during the term of this Contract;

11)    Contractor and any person performing labor and services under this Project is duly
licensed as a contractor with the State of California as required by California
Business& Professional Code Section 7028, as amended; and

12)    Contractor has fully examined and inspected the Project site and has full knowledge
of the physical conditions of the Project site.

12.     Assignment.   This Contract and the performance required hereunder is personal to
Contractor, and it shall not be assigned by Contractor. Any attempted assignment shall be
null and void.

13.     Claims of Contractor.  All claims pertaining to extra work, additional chazges, or delays
within the Contract Time or other disputes arising out of the Contract shall be submitted
by Contractor in accordance with the General Conditions.

14.     Audits by City. During the term of this Contract and for a period of not less than three( 3)
yeazs after the expiration or eazlier termination of this Contract, City shall have the right to
audit Contractor' s Project- related and Work- related writings and business records, as such

terms are defined in California Evidence Code Sections 250 and 1271, as amended, during
the regular business hours of Contractor, or, if Contractor has no such hours, during the
regulaz business hours of City.

15.     Notices.   All contracts, agreements, appointments, approvals,  authorizations, claims,

demands, Change Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements

given by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail,
postage prepaid,( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the case of a facsimile
transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business
hours of the receiving party and followed with two (2) days by delivery of a hard copy of
the material sent by facsimile transmission, in accordance with ( 1), ( 2) or ( 3) above.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service by
facsimile transmission.

To City:     City of Lathrop
City Clerk

00500- 7

382



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
PHONE:( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:     ( 209) 941- 7449

ATTN:   Senior Construction Manager

To Contractor:       Luma Engineering Contractors Inc. dba LIJMA Builders

Mailing Address:    370 Myrtle Lane, Oakley, CA 94561

Phone: 925) 499- 2668

Email:  info_ buildluma com

p;  Fernando D. Lopez

16.      Miscellaneous

1)      Bailee Disclaimer.  The parties understand and agree that City does not purport to
be Contractor' s bailee, and City is, therefore, not responsible for any damage to the
personal property of Contractor.

2)      Consent. Whenever in this Contract the approval or consent of a party is required,
such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person
having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

3)      Controlling L,aw.   The parties agee that this Contract shall be governed and
construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

4)      Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

5)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any
delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Contract, which directly results
from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

6)     Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Contract and shall have no
effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Contract.

7)      Incorporation of Documents.    All documents constituting the Construction
Documents described in Section 3 hereof and all documents which may, from time
to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference
incorporated in this Contract and shall be deemed to be part of this Contract.

8)      Integration.   This Contract and any amendments hereto between the parties
constitute the entire contract between the parties conceming the Project and Work,
and there are no other prior oral or written contracts between the parties that are not
incorporated in this Contract.

00500- 8

383



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LATHROP FACILI' I'IES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

9)      Modification of Contract.  This Contract shall not be modified or be binding upon
the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

10)    Provision.   Any contract, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, term or other stipulation in the Contract shall define or otherwise

control, establish, or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required
of or permitted by either party.  All provisions, whether covenants or conditions,
shall be deemed to be both covenants and conditions.

11)    Resolution.   Contractor shall submit with its Bid a copy of any corporate or
partnership resolution or other writing, which authorizes any director, officer or
other employee or partner to act for or on behalf of Contractor or which authorizes
Contractor to enter into this Contract.

12)    Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Contract is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Contract not so
affected shall remain in full force and effect.

13)    Status of Contractor.  In the exercise of rights and obligations under this Contract,

Contractor acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of

City. Contractor shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members, officers or employees of City, and Contractor
expressly waives any and all claims to such rights and benefits.

14)    Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Contract shall inure to the benefit
of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

15)    Time of the Essence.   Time is of the essence of this Contract and each of its

provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be

performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including the last.  If
the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or any Day
observed as a legal holiday by City, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

16)    Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree
that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California
in the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Califomia.

17)    Recovery of costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms
of this Contract or arising out of this Contract, including the enforcement of the
indemnity provision( s), may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable
attorney' s fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the
non- prevailing party.

18)   Contractor and subcontractors must comply with all applicable standards, orders,
or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act ( 42 USC 1857( h)),

Section 508 of the Clean Water Act ( 33 USC1368), Executive Order 11738, and

Environmental Protection Agency Regulations at 40 CFR Part 15.

00500- 9

384



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCAA INFORMAL Bm SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

19)    Contractors and subcontractors must comply with mandatory standards and policies
relating to the energy efficiency which are contained in the State Energy
Conservation Plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation
ACT( Public Law 94- 163, 89 stat 871).

20)    The Contractor shall provide access to the site for the Environmental Protection
Agency and its duly authorized representatives, and the City.

21)    If during the course of construction evidence of deposit of historical or
archaeological interest is found, the Contractor shall cease operation affecting the
find and shall notify the City, who shall notify the EPA and the State Historic
Preservation Officer.  No further disturbance of the deposits shall ensue until the

Contractor has been notified by the City that construction may proceed.  The City
will issue a notice to proceed only after the state official has surveyed the find and
made a determination to the EPA and the City. Compensation to the contractor, if
any, for lost time or changes in construction to avoid the find, shall be determined
in accordance with changed conditions or change order provisions of the
Construction Documents.

22)    Notice to Proceed.     Prior to commencing work under this Contract,

CONTRACTOR shall receive a written" 1 lotice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice

to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurances have been
received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONTRACTOR for any services prior
to issuance of the Notice to proceed.

23)    Signatures. The individuals executing this Contract represent and wamant that they
have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this
Contract on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the
CTTY.  This Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

24)    This project is a public works project: Contractor shall comply with requirements
of California Labor Code § 1700 and following, and prevailing wages shall be paid
for work performed on this project.

25)    The statutory provisions for penalties for failing to comply with the State of
California wage and labor laws be enforced, as well as that for failing to pay
prevailing wages.

EXHIBITS:

EXHIBIT A: Contractor' s Submitted Bid Packet

Certification of insurance,  performance and payment bonds,  and worker' s

compensation certification shall be furnished to the City by the Contractor after
City Manager' s approval.

00500- 10

385



SECTION 00500

CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14
CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first above
stated in Lathrop, California.

CONTRACTOR:

By:

Name:    
Brian Pfaff

Title:    VP of Project Management

City Council Meeting:
CITY OF LATHROP Resolution no.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

By: 
Michael King, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED:

By:
Stephen  . Salvatore, City Manager

END OF SECTIOl

00500- 11

386



EXHIBIT A

SECTION 00300

CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23-14
CUPCCM INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION BID PROPOSAL FORMS

BID PROPOSAL FORMS

TO: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

ATTENTION:    Public Works Department

FOR:       CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IIVIPROVEMENTS

THE UNDERSIGNED, AS BIDDER, HEREBY AGREES AND DECLARES THAT:

LEGAL COMPLIANCE

The only persons or parties interested in this Bid as Principals are those named her in; that this
Bid is made without collusion with any other person, fum, partnership, coiporation, or association;
that he has carefully examined the location ofthe proposed work and the Construction Documents;
and he proposes and agrees that if this Bid is accepted he will contract with the City of Lathrop, in
the form of the Contract as set forth in the Consiruction Documents for said project, to provide all
the necessary labor, services, materials, and equipment, and to do all the work and fiunish all the
materials; and that he will accept in full payment therefore the price as proposed in the following
Bid Schedule.

SCHEDULE OF PRICES

All applicable permit fees, licensing costs, sales taxes, State, and/ or Federal, and any other ta ces,
patent rights, or royalries are included in the prices quoted in the Bid. All blank spaces must be
filled in.

BASIS OF AWARD

The basis for award of the contract will be the total price of the bid. The City of Lathrop reserves
the right to award only the work contemplated or none of the work.

00300- 1

387



5ECTION 00300

CITY OF LATHROP FACII. ITIES ADA IMYROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14

CUPCCM INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION BID PROPOSAL FORMS

CITY OF LATHROP FACILITIES ADA IMPROVEMENTS. CIP GG 23- 14

BID SCHEDULE

ITEM
DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS

P E
E

OENDED
Mobilization, Removal, Off haul and

1 dispose of Existing Doors and assocfated 1 LS s2o,000.0o t2o,000.00

materials.

City of Lathrop Senior CerKer Provide
and Install( Gildor) or equivalent quatity

Dual Panel glass Single Automated
Doors with 1" insulated Gray Glass with

refledNe coating on exterior. Electrical
2 Service to the door. Access/ Safety 1 LS       '

0°°' 0°    s' 0' 0°

controls and electrical tie in with City of
Lathrop security system( Bay alarm).
Door Frame dimensions approximately
74" w x85" H. Door to slide from right to

left

Gty of Lathrop Community CeMer
Provide and instal)( Gildor) or

equivalent Dual Panel Glass Single

Automated Doors with 1" insulated

Gray Glass with reflective coating on
3 exterior. Eledrical Service to the door.    1 LS       , 000.ao       0°°• 0°

Access/ Safety control and electrfcal tie
in with City of Lathrop security system
Bay alarm). Doo Frame dimensions

approximately 112" w x85" H. Door to
slide from ri ht to left

City of Lathrop Generations Center
Provide and Install( Gildor) or

equivale t Dual Panel Glass Single

Automated Doors with 1" insulated

Gray Glass with reflective coating on
exterior. Electrical Service to the three saa. 000.00     a,000. 004
doors. Access/ Safety control and

1 LS

electrical tie in with City of Lathrop

security system( Bay alarm). Door
Frame dimensions approximately 74" w
x93" H. Door to slide from right to left

00300- 2

388



SECTION 00300

CITY OF LATHItOP FACILITIES ADA IIYIPROVEMENTS, CIP GG 23- 14
CUPCCAA IIVFORMAL BID SOLICITATION BID PROPOSAL FORMS

City of Lathrop Community CeMer
Provide and Install Dual Panel glass
single manual door with 1" insulated

Gray Glass with reflective coating on
e erior. Access/ Safety control and

s e.000•oo s s,000. 00

5
electrical tie in with City of Lathrop

1 LS

security system( Bay alarm). Door frame

dimensions approximately 38"W x
85" H.

TOTAL BID:   $ 138, 000. 00

roT.a I. BID IN WO tus: One Hundred Thirty- Eight Thousand Dollars

00300- 3

389



390



ITEM 4. 20

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
SEPTEMBER 11, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE FINAL MAP,   CFD ANNEXATION,   AND

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 105

LOTS IN TRACT 4155 UNIT 1 WITHIN WEST VILLAGE
DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4155
Unit 1 within the West Village District, Totaling 105
Single Family Lots,    CFD Annexation No.    4,

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication,  and Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development Area 1,   LLC,   F/ K/ A River Islands

Employment Center, LLC

SUMMARY:

The proposed Final Map for Tract 4155, included as Attachment E" is the first tract

map within the West Village District of Phase 2 for the River Islands Project.   Pulte

Homes is proposing one- hundred five ( 105) 45' x 105' single- family lots. A Vicinity
Map is included as Attachment B".

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 4155,
West Village Unit 1 ( Tract 4155), Annexation No. 4 of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District  ( CFD)  2023- 1,  Irrevocable Offer of Dedication and Subdivision

Improvement Agreement  ( SIA),  included as Attachment  " C",  with River Islands

Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands Employment Center, LLC ( hereinafter

referred to as ' River Islands"), and Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 4155 West
Village Unit 1 included as Attachment " D", by Resolution included as Attachment ' A".

BACKGROUND:

On June 14, 2021, the City Council adopted resolutions and ordinances approving the
River Islands modified Phase 2 Project and Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map ( VTM)
6716.  On November 14,  2022,  City Council approved Large Lot Map 4149 for 34
undevelopable parcels within West Village District. The land for the proposed Final
Map for Tract 4155 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 6716 and Large Lot
Map 4149.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, all final maps must include a SIA to
guarantee specific offsite and onsite improvements.   The total cost of the

improvements for Tract 4155 is  $ 8, 115, 000,  however,  a large percentage of the
improvements have already been constructed and therefore do not need to be
guaranteed.

391



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 105 LOTS IN TRACT
4155 UNIT 1 WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Performance and labor & material securities have been provided with the SIA for
Tract 4155 that guarantee the unfinished improvements for Tract 4155 as detailed in
Table 1 below.

The SIA for Tract 4155 refers to the guarantee of streets and public improvements
that are necessary to support the West Village, Lake Harbor, and Paradise Cut Village
Center Neighborhoods of River Islands Phase 2  ( Neighborhoods).  The Offsite

Improvements are needed to provide public access, emergency vehicle access, and
wastewater discharge for the Neighborhoods.  Since construction of the Offsite

Improvements are not complete,  River Islands is required to provide security as
detailed in Table 1 below.

Table 1 - Bond Values

Tract 4155 Im rovements

Unfinished Im rovement Total:      63 300

Performance Bond Bond No. 0799691  :  69, 630

Labor & Materials Bond Bond No. 0799691  :   34 815

Callerton Avenue Brid e

Unfinished Im rovement Total:      141 000

Performance Bond Bond No. 0844434 :  155, 100

Labor & Materials Bond Bond No. 0844434 :   77 550

Callerton Avenue Tem orar Brid e

Unfinished Im rovement Total:      375 000

Performance Bond Bond No. 0799685 :  41Z, 500

Labor & Materials Bond Bond No. 0799685  :   206 250

Stornowa Access Roads

Unfinished Im rovement Total:      32 000

Performance Bond Bond No. 0799690 :  35 200

Labor & Materials Bond Bond No. 0799690 :   17 600

Fire Access Roads

Unfinished Im rovement Total: 489 000

Performance Bond Bond No. 0799689 :  537 900

Labor & Materials Bond Bond No. 0799689 :   268 950

Callerton Avenue Sewer Lift Station

Unfinished Im rovement Total:      1 885 885

Performance Bond Bond No. 0799688  :  2, 074, 474

Labor & Materials Bond Bond No. 0799688 :   1 037 237

Del Webb Interim Potable Water Connection

Unfinished Im rovement Total:      65 000

Performance Bond Bond No. 0844435  :  71, 500

Labor & Materials Bond Bond No. 0844435 :   35 750

Acceptance of the public improvements will be processed by staff for council
consideration at a later date and when the unfinished improvements are completed.
Prior to acceptance, River Islands will be required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty

bond.

392



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER li, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 105 LOTS IN TRACT
4155 UNIT 1 WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Tract 4155 will need to be annexed into the three different CFDs for maintenance
purposes.  The CFDs are for the City, Island Reclamation District ( RD) 2062 and River
Islands Public Financing Authority ( RIPFA). Approval of CFD 2023- 1 City of Lathrop
Annexation No. 4 is pending with this Council item. CFD 2013- 1 RD 2062 Annexation,
and CFD 2013- 1 RIPFA Annexation are administered by RD 2062 and RIPFA. They
are included as part of the escrow instructions for recordation purposes only and are
not a direct impact to the City.   The applicant has signed the appropriate

documentation to commit to the annexations,  and the final map recordation is
contingent on the annexations.

River Islands has provided an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for right- of- way
purposes for the portion of portion of Brightwood Avenue,  Coral Tree Lane,  and

Kenwood Drive that fronts and provides access to Tract 4155.   Brightwood Avenue,

Coral Tree Lane,  and Kenwood Drive are necessary for secondary access to Tract
4155 but is not part of the large parcel that encompasses Tract 4155 and therefore
must be dedicated by a document separate from the Final Map.

River Islands must satisfy the Escrow Instructions, included as Attachment " D", by

depositing the necessary sums and required security to guarantee the payment of all
fees and execution of the documents related to the SIA.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

River Islands has fulfilled all of the requirements of the City' s subdivision ordinance
as listed below:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security -  Uncompleted Landscaping and
Received

Miscellaneous Im rovements

4.     Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted Landscaping Received
and Miscellaneous Im rovements

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape, Light & Joint Trench Completed

6.      Geotechnical Report Completed

7.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

8.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
Maintenance

9.     Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

393



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 105 LOTS IN TRACT
4155 UNIT 1 WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

10.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

11.     Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

12.     Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

13.     Escrow Instructions Completed

14.     Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1  -  City of Lathrop Approval

Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands pending with this
Public Services and Facilities Annexation No. 4 item

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact to the City as all costs are covered by development fees and
any shortfalls in the City' s maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFDs.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4155 Unit 1 within the West Village
District, Totaling 105 Single Family Lots, City of Lathrop CFD Annexation No.
4, Irrevocable Offer of Dedication and Subdivision Improvement Agreement
with River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands Employment
Center, LLC

B.       Vicinity Map - West Village Unit 1 Tract 4155

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development Area 1, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, F/ K/ A
River Islands Employment Center, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company,
for Tract 4155, West Village Unit 1

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1, including:
City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 Annexation No.
4 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities), included as B. 2

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Public Roadway Purposes for

Brightwood Avenue, Coral Tree Lane, and Kenwood Drive, included as
B. 5

E.       Final Map - Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

394



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

SEPTEMBER li, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 105 LOTS IN TRACT
4155 UNIT 1 WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

APPROVALS

Z/ 23

Bellal Nabizadah Date

Assistant Engineer

S3 ZN Zc Z3

Brad ylor Date

City Engineer

a f
Cari J Date

Finan ctor

C 8 • 2( • 2oZ3

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

T-- 3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Cj••?>'S
St J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

395



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 4155 UNIT 1 WITHIN THE WEST
VILLAGE DISTRICT, TOTALING 105 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS, CITY OF LATHROP
CFD ANNEXATION NO.  4,  IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION,  AND

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS

DEVELOPMENT AREA 1, LLC, F/ K/ A RIVER ISLANDS EMPLOYMENTS CENTER,
LLC

WHEREAS,  on June 14,  2021,  the City Council adopted resolutions and
ordinances approving the River Islands modified Phase 2 Project and Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map ( VTM) 6716; and

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2022, City Council approved Large Lot Map 4149
for 34 undevelopable parcels within West Village District. The land for the proposed
Final Map for Tract 4155, West Village Unit 1 ( Tract 4155), is within the geographic
boundaries of VTM 6716 and Large Lot Map 4149; and

WHEREAS, as required by the Lathrop Municipal Code Chapter 16. 16, all final
maps must include a Subdivision Improvement Agreement  ( SIA)  to guarantee

specific offsite and onsite improvements; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands Development Area 1,  LLC,  F/ K/ A River Islands

Employment Center,  LLC  ( hereinafter referred to as  " River Islands")  provided
performance and labor & material securities for the proposed SIA for Tract 4155 that
guarantee the unfinished improvements for Tract 4155 in the amounts as follows:

Unfinished Im rovement Total:  63, 300

Performance Securit 110% of Unfinished Im rovements       $ 69, 630

Labor & Materials Bond 50% of Performance Securit 34, 815

and

WHEREAS, the SIA for Tract 4155 refers to the guarantee of streets and public
improvements that are necessary to support the West Village,  Lake Harbor,  and

Paradise Cut Village Center Neighborhoods of River Islands Phase 2 ( Neighborhoods).

River Islands is required to provide security for all incomplete Offsite Improvements
for the Neighborhoods as detailed in Table 1 of the City Managers Report; and

WHEREAS, potential acceptance of the public improvements will be processed
by staff for council consideration at a later date and when the unfinished

improvements are completed.   Prior to acceptance, River Islands will be required to

provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond; and

WHEREAS,  Tract 4155 needs to be annexed into the three different

Community Facilities Districts ( CFDs) for maintenance purposes.  Staff recommends

that Council approve CFD 2023- 1 City of Lathrop Annexation No.  4.  CFD 2013- 1

Island Reclamation District ( RD)  2062 Annexation,  and CFD 2013- 1 River Islands

396



Public Financing Authority  ( RIPFA)  Annexation are administered by RD 2062 and

RIPFA. They are included as part of the escrow instructions for recordation purposes
only and are not a direct impact to the City; and

WHEREAS,  Brightwood Avenue,  Coral Tree Lane,  and Kenwood Drive are

necessary for secondary access to Tract 4155 but is not part of the large parcel that
encompasses Tract 4155 and therefore must be dedicated by a document separate
from the Final Map.  River Islands has provided an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for
right- of- way purposes for the portion of Brightwood Avenue, Coral Tree Lane, and

Kenwood Drive that fronts and provides access to Tract 4155; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands must satisfy the Escrow Instructions,  included as

Attachment " D" to the City Manager' s Report, by depositing the necessary sums and
required security to guarantee the payment of all fees and execution of the
documents related to the SIA.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that approves the following actions:

1.  The Final Map for Tract 4155 and is hereby approved as submitted for
recordation with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk
Office.

2.  The City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands and a Certificate of Acceptance for
an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Brightwood Avenue, Coral Tree Lane,

and Kenwood Drive, in substantially the form as attached to the September
11, 2023 staff report.

3.  Annexation of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 No.
4  ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities)  in substantially the form as
attached to the September 11, 2023 staff report.

397



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this lltn
day of September 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

398



ATTACHMENT

J

2h0
W

U

PARCEL E
P'

P
OQ'\   PARCEL A

PARCEL F

2 3 4
PARCEL 1 5 6

pTZGERq, p CIRC( E   TRACNt55

12  
p

BOUNDARV

9 8
PARCEL 2

PARCEL 3

c4
DESIGNATEO 13     " 9'py
pEIAAINDER >   pARCEL 4   ,    4 q

TRACT 4155
0 0  15 FyGF

BOUNDARV PARCEL 16 p'  B,
fl 

5

TRACT 4149 O
O '

H  g

w NOT A PART)      O     1 9
0 20

o

99

apFy 21
PARCEL N 9a97  '°   22

96
23

PARCEL M
95

24

PARCEL L
PARCEL G

pARCEL H 94
Z5

LAKE 23)    9
26

PARCF_ L K
PARCEL J

pARCEL I
Z

PARCEL D Za

29  PARCEL B

BRADBURVAVENUE 3

31

32

33

34
Tancin55 aa 9 9192

3
BOUNDARV

36
AMBASSADORROAD

37
87 6b 65 a 3a
86 67 54 3 39
35 68 63 o Qp
84 59 sz 41

0 83

W

70 61 w 42
82 ¢  71 50   43

m 81 3 72 59 4d
30 a 73 58 45

79
m

74 57 46

7a 75 56 47

y 75 55 qa

ANYONVISTASTREET G9

5 5 515 PARCEL C

ATTACHMENT B

TRACT 4155

WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT
NOVEMBER 2022

399



ATTac v tNT

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AREA 1, LLC,

F/K/A RIVER ISLANDS EMPLOYMENT CENTER, LLC,

FOR TRACT 4155 WEST VILLAGE UNIT 1 105 RESIDENTIAL LOTS

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this l lt" day of September 2023, by and between
the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY")
and River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, F/K/A
River Islands Employment Center, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company ( hereinafter
referred to as " SUBDIVIDER").

B.       Pursuant to Division 2 ofTitle 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and the
CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 4155. However, SUBDNIDER
has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tract
4155 ( West Village Unit 1) located within the West Village District of River Islands Phase 2,

which also includes majar streets necessary to access the site. Performance and Labor & Material

securities have been provided by SUBDIVIDER that guarantee the unfinished improvements for
West Village Unit 1, in the amount shown in Table 1.

C.       SUBDIVIDER is required to construct certain off-site improvements   ( Off-Site

Improvements) that support the West Village, Lake Harbor, and Paradise Cut Village Center
Neighborhoods of River Islands Phase 2 ( Neighborhoods). The Offsite Improvements are needed

to provide public access,  emergency vehicle access,  and wastewater discharge for the

Neighborhoods as described below.   Since construction of the Offsite Improvements are not

complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to provide security as detailed in Table 1 of this Agreement.

1.  Callerton Avenue Bridge: This bridge provides the main access to the Neighborhoods and
is expected to be completed with a year of execution of this Agreement.  The Callerton

Avenue Temporary Bridge and/ or Stornoway Access Road, as detailed below, will provide
temporary access to the Neighborhoods until the Callerton Avenue Bridge is constructed.

2.  Callerton Avenue Temporary Bridge:   This bridge will consist of two lanes and will

provide interim access to the Neighborhoods while the final Callerton Avenue Bridge is
being constructed.  Prior to approval of the first building permit in the Neighborhoods,
SUBDIVIDER shall complete a traffic analysis to determine the vehicle capacity of the

temporary bridge and enter into a separate agreement with CITY to guarantee a second
temporary bridge for a total of four lanes to be construction prior to the two lane bridge
capacity being exceeded.

400



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

3.   Stornoway Access Roads:   SUBDNIDER has constructed a 24' wide paved roadway
within an existing public access easement just south of the ultimate Stornoway Avenue
alignment that connects the Neighborhoods to Paradise Road. This roadway is intended to
provide temporary access to the Neighborhoods until the Callerton Avenue Bridge is
constructed. SUBDIVIDER shall improve the Stornoway Access Roads to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer prior to issuance of the first building permit.  These improvements

include but are not limited to lighting, signage, and striping necessary to guide motorists
through the Neighborhoods.  SUBDIVIDER shall also dedicate public access easement or

right of way for all roads necessary to provide public access from the Stornoway Access
Road to Callterton Avenue as depicted in Exhibit" E" prior to issuance of the first building
permit.

4.  Fire Access Road:  Condition of Approval ( COA) # 23 for VTM Tract 6716 requires that

fire access roads meet the San Joaquin County Fire Chief' s Fire Access Road Standard,
which is 20' in width.   SUBDIVIDER has agreed with Lathrop Manteca Fire District
LMFD) to construct a 20' fire access road from Station 35 on Somerston Parkway to the

southern terminus of Callerton Avenue at the future intersection with Cambay Parkway.
SUBDIVDER shall complete construction and dedicate emergency vehicle access

easement and/ or permission from Island Reclamation District ( RD) 2062 for all portions
of the Fire Access Road that are not within public right of way prior to issuance of the first
building permit.

5.  Callerton Avenue Sewer Lift Station:  SUBDIVIDER has obtained approved plans and
construction of this facility is underway. This facility is needed to convey wastewater from
the Neighborhoods to the City' s wastewater treatment plan and is expected to be completed
within one year of execution of this Agreement.  A pump and haul system, as detailed in
Section 9 of this Agreement, will be utilized until construction of the facility is complete
and the Callerton Avenue Bridge is constructed.

6.  Del Webb Interim Potable Water Connection: Due to low pressure reported during a fire
flo v test conducted on a hydrant, SUBDIVIDER is required to construct an additional
water line to complete the fire loop so that sufficient pressure is provided to the fire
protection system.

F. SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 4155
and as noted in Recital B,  security shall be required for the unfinished portion of these
improvements, along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 4155 and West
Village Unit 1 overalL Improvement plans, and street light plans have already been approved by
the City. The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm drainage, streetlight and joint trench
improvements are substantially completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of
the required infrastructure for Tract 4155 are required security as outlined in this Agreement is
required.

G.       The term " Improvements" as used in this Agreement means all improvements listed in

Recital B- F and any associated improvements to complete required improvements in the
aforementioned Recitals.

401



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River lslands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of CITY' S pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' S
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Ageement, all applicable
laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its
sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the West Village Unit 1
neighborhood, to the limits identified in Exhibit" A", including the public landscaping, streetlight
and joint trench improvements. A Vicinity Map is included as Exhibit " B".

All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City Engineer, in a

good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above referenced improvement plans and
specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the CITY' s Department of Public

Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements as defined in this agreement, prior to issuance of certificate of occupancy of the last
home constructed in Tract 4155, or September 11, 2024, whichever comes first.

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall, at any time during the progress of the Improvements, have free
access thereto, and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the
Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of the SUBDNIDER
to ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in
compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done, and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a Warranty
Bond in the amount of$ 811, 500, equal to 10% of estimated cost of improvements for the West

Village Unit 1 neighborhood ($ 8, 115, 000) as included in the Engineer' s estimate attached to this

Agreement as Exhibit" D", to insure SUBDNIDER' s repair and warranty of the Improvements in
accordance with the terms of this Ageement. The Warranty Bond shall be released at the end of
the one year guarantee period after Council acceptance, provided there are no claims against it are
then outstanding.

402



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

7. If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, or unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, or fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.

Once action is taken by CITY to complete, repair, replace and/ or reconstruct the Improvements,
SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY,  even if SUBDIVIDER
subsequently completes the work.

The CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to
complete the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security ( including but not limited to

any Letter of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash deposit, bond for performance and labor &
materials and repair and maintenance, or letter of credit) therefore is insufficient to pay such
amounts. All administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government
Code Section 66499. 4, incurred by the CITY, in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be
a proper charge against the security and SUBDIVIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for
CITY to bring an action to compel performance of this Ageement ar to recover costs of
completing such improvements, SUBDNIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit
and all other expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

8. Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, the SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance and Labor & Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements
associated with Tract 4155 as included and described in Exhibit  " D"  of this Agreement.

Performance and Labor & Material securities have been provided in the amount shown in Table 1
below. SUBDNIDER shall also comply with CITY' S insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit

C" attached hereto and incorporated herein.

9. SUBDIVIDER is required to construct certain off-site improvements   ( Off-Site

Improvements) that support the West Village, Lake Harbor, and Paradise Cut Village Center

Neighborhoods of River Islands Phase 2 ( Neighborhoods). The Offsite Improvements are needed

to provide public access,  emergency vehicle access,  and wastewater discharge for the

Neighborhoods as described below.   Since construction of the Offsite Improvements are not

complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to provide security as detailed in Table 1 and Exhibit " F" of
this Agreement.

a)  Callerton Avenue Brid e: This bridge provides the main access to the Neighborhoods and
is expected to be completed with a year of execution of this Agreement.  The Callerton

Avenue Temporary Bridge and/ or Stornoway Access Road, as detailed below, will provide
temparary access to the Neighborhoods until the Callerton Avenue Bridge is constructed.

403



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

b)  Callerton Avenue Temporary Brid e:   This bridge will consist of two lanes and will

provide interim access to the Neighborhoods while the final Callerton Avenue Bridge is
being constructed.  Prior to approval of the first building permit in the Neighborhoods,
SUBDIVIDER shall complete a traffic analysis to determine the vehicle capacity of the

temporary bridge and enter into a separate agreement with CITY to guarantee a second
temporary bridge for a total of four lanes to be construction prior to the two lane bridge
capacity being exceeded.

c)  Stornoway Access Roads:   SUBDIVIDER has constructed a 24' wide paved roadway

within an existing public access easement just south of the ultimate Stornoway Avenue
alignment that connects the Neighborhoods to Paradise Road. This roadway is intended to

provide temporary access to the Neighborhoods until the Callerton Avenue Bridge is
constructed. SUBDIVIDER shall improve the Stornoway Access Roads to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer prior to issuance of the first building permit.  These improvements

include but are not limited to lighting, signage, and striping necessary to guide motorists
through the Neighborhoods.  SUBDIVIDER shall also dedicate public access easement or

right of way for all roads necessary to provide public access from the Stornoway Access
Road to Callerton Avenue as depicted in Exhibit " E" prior to issuance of the first building
permit.

d)  Fire Access Road:  Condition of Approval ( COA) # 23 for VTM Tract 6716 requires that

fire access roads meet the San Joaquin County Fire Chief' s Fire Access Road Standard,
which is 20' in width.   SUBDIVIDER has agreed with Lathrop Manteca Fire District
LMFD) to construct a 20' fire access road from Station 35 on Somerston Parkway to the

southern terminus of Callerton Avenue at the future intersection with Cambay Parkway.
SUBDIVDER shall complete construction and dedicate emergency vehicle access

easement and/ ar permission from RD 2062 for all portions of the Fire Access Road that
are not within public right of way prior to issuance of the first building permit.

e)  Callerton Avenue Sewer Lift Station:  SUBDIVIDER has obtained approved plans and
construction of this facility is underway. This facility is needed to convey wastewater from
the Neighborhoods to the City' s wastewater treatment plan and is expected to be completed
within one year of execution of this Agreement.  A pump and haul system, as detailed in
Section 9 of this Agreement, will be utilized until construction of the facility is complete
and the Callerton Avenue Bridge is constructed.

Del Webb Interim Potable Water Connection: Due to low pressure reported during a fire
flow test conducted on a hydrant, SUBDIVIDER is required to construct an additional

water line to complete the fire loop so that sufficient pressure is provided to the fire
protection system.

Table 1 — Bond Values

Tract 4155 Im rovements

Unfinished Improvement Total: 63, 300

Performance Bond ( Bond No. 0799691):    69, 630

Labor & Materials Bond ( Bond No. 0799691):    34, 815

Callerton Avenue Brid e

Unfinished Improvement Total: 141, 000

404



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

Performance Bond ( Bond No. 0844434):    155, 100

Labor & Materials Bond ( Bond No. 0844434):    77, 550

Callerton Avenue Tem orar Brid e

Unfinished Im rovement Total: 375, 000

Performance Bond ( Bond No. 0799685):    412, 500

Labor& Materials Bond ( Bond No. 0799685):    206, 250

Stornowa Access Roads

Unfinished Im rovement Total: 32, 000

Performance Bond ( Bond No. 0799690):    35, 200

Labor & Materials Bond ( Bond No. 0799690):    17, 600

Fire Access Roads

Unfinished Im rovement Total:       489, 000

Performance Bond ( Bond No. 0799689):    537, 900

Labor & Materials Bond ( Bond No. 0799689):    268, 950

Callerton Avenue Sewer Lift Station

Unfinished Improvement Total: 1, 885, 885. 45

Performance Bond ( Bond No. 0799688):    2, 074, 474

Labor & Materials Bond ( Bond No. 0799688):    1, 037, 237

Del Webb Interim Potable Water Connection

Unfinished Im rovement Total: 65, 000

Performance Bond ( Bond No. 0844435):    71, 500

Labor & Materials Bond ( Bond No. 0844435):    35, 750

10.      As a condition of Final Map approval, SUBDIVIDER is required to provide wastewater
conveyance to the City' s Combined Treatment Facility ( CTF) and treatment capacity to each
parcel within the Final Map boundary.   However,  the Callerton Avenue Bridge,  which is

guaranteed with this SIA, has not yet been constructed due to permitting delays and therefore the
wastewater conveyance system for Phase 2 of the Project south/ west of the main drain does not

have the ability to convey wastewater to the CTF.  Therefore, SUBDIVIDER requests approval of
the use of temporary pump and haul of wastewater until the Callerton Avenue Lift Station and
Bridge are constructed and conveyance of wastewater to the CTF is possible. SUBDNDER agrees

to the following, which is applicable to any structure south/ west of the main drain:
a.   Prior to issuance of first building permit, SUBDNIDER shall provide a plan for the pump

and haul system to CITY including location of wastewater system plugs ( if any), storage

location of wastewater, pump and haul frequency, pump and haul contractor information,
dump location, etc.

b.  Prior to the first occupancy of any structure that discharges wastewater, SUBDIVIDER
shall complete improvements to the wastewater system to accommodate the pump and haul
system, which may include completion of the Callerton Avenue Lift Station wet well or
plug and redundant plug of a section of the wastewater system to control the storage
location.

c.   Priar to the 41 st occupancy of any structure that discharges wastewater, SUBDIVIDER
will be expected to have the wastewater conveyance system operational to deliver
wastewater to the CTF.  If the conveyance system is not operational, SUBDIVIDER shall

405



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

provide an updated plan for the continuation of pump and haul to CITY.  Extension of

pump and haul and other measures to convey wastewater such as operation of the Lift
Station without SCADA will be considered by CITY but is not guaranteed.  Any interim
measure to continue issuance of occupancies beyond 40 units shall not be unreasonably
withheld.

SUBDIVIDER has guaranteed the Callerton Avenue Lift Station, Callerton Avenue Bridge and
the wastewater conveyance system from the Lift Station to the Phase 1 wastewater system, which

ultimately conveys wastewater to the CTF.  These improvements and guarantees are subject to
Section 7 of this Agreement.

11.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications, which are a part of this Agreement,
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond ar bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

12.      Neither the CITY nor any of its officers,  employees or agents shall be liable to

SUBDIVIDER, and/or SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors or subcontractors for any error or
omission arising out of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

13.      Neither the CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents, shall be liable to the
SUBDIVIDER or to any person, entity, or organization, for any injury or damage that may result
to any person or property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part
of the land covered by this Agreement.

14.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively, " Indemnitees"), harmless from any

liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDNIDER ar by any SUBDNIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractars or subcontractars. SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit or legal proceedings, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non-performance of his duties and obligations under this Agreement, or from the
negligent act or omission of himself,  his agents,  contractors,  representatives,  servants or

employees. The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section
is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied or
approved any plan or specification in connection with this wark or subdivision, whether ar not any
such indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not,
and shall not; waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid
hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDNIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all

406



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied or approved of, plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

15.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDNIDER' s agents, contractors or subcontractors
are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of
SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

16.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, the SUBDNIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements, and maintaining safety at the
project site. The SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied
until after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied and all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. The CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts to finance maintenance and improvements. The CITY expects to preserve the

ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by the CITY and SUBDIVIDER
providing that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special
taxes. SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by the CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

l8.      SUBDNIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two

weeks as directed by the City Engineer, on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by the CITY.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.
If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER, and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators and assignees of the SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable
hereunder.

20.      The SUBDIVIDER shall,  at the SUBDIVIDER' s expense,  obtain and maintain all

necessary permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement
of Improvement construction, the SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
The SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state and federal laws, whether or not said laws
are expressly stated in this Agreement.

21.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 415 5.

407



Subdivision Improvemenf Agreement ( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

22.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b. Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect
upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Ageement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the

parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds ar rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain
in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successars and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed
by excluding the first Day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be performed
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A FiNAL MAP - TRACT 4155

EXHIBIT B TRACT 4155 AND WEST VILLAGE UNIT 1 AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY 1NSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  WEST VILLAGE UNIT 1 UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENTS AND FULL

408



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development Area l, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT E:   STORNOWAY ACCESS ROADS

EXHIBIT F:   OFFSITE IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATES

409



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands

Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this 11' day of
September 2023, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY THE CITY OF LATHROP CITY ATTORNEY

BY:

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development Area 1, LLC,

a Delaware Limited Liability Company
F/ K/A River Islands Employment Center LLC,

a Delaware Limited Liability Company

BY:    

z3Susan e 1' Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"

410



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands

Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this 1 l' day of
September 2023, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY THE CITY OF LATHROP CITY ATTORNEY

BY: 3 - Z 3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development Area 1, LLC,

a Delaware Limited Liability Company
F/ K/A River Islands Employment Center LLC,

a Delaware Limited Liability Company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

SUBDNIDER"

411



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

EXHIBIT " A"

FINAL MAP- TRACT 4155

412



0

o
S

s

zo

H      y
o

o W r3paee""   
r

W      o a p       oP w

W s o      m     2

I         

O' . ' N'    

cn

d     

A       '
o,     o'+

a

s   

10

I
Z m c 

iw"`
o

a       `     
p

UY Ip p

y+  ,-
a- w

i<, 

g `     s w s'
o

o     a
z        =   w aa a

P

a`  o'   e H
Z 

z "

m
o

e

z w a m

Z p r

i'     d
w

w < an g w   -
v a = z       g Q < a`

Qw       ce
w        o c~i <

a< a  
a

a`
n

o°°       -  H
F       

s N" G         H a
ff

p        W    a u  _  
o       

w = z< W. J p  
o

Wz
m

gW sa       
o Q o

o       sa Z .- Qo w

a               w   
o         O 

x moo
W               <     U iy g '"     w
cn < o    b U _.- _., o m

Q      F
o   -

4N         a& w   
m e   -   

o

3
s<-   m?   

om m=       o _      

gNo poo o,, _          `   k
a"   -.         

N      <  i m aw a        W  - a
N

W r   '<     
sawo C

o
c~i  

F  

Cn    _ Q o
a

o<    -     a     w o

Qz    Z       _  ^ w      _     zw     a awo   o LL w

m

w    000 ooe   - 6   <            F  "  a=< o

s«$_   -   <            a  o
cnc7    w

m F   > a c  eQ W€=      

ZJ i -             a,-
LL

J      
x

UQ? 2

F = QU ao ooQommo   -      _      w  Qo a w

ow 
Z

LLI "

N"

J"

ik'oor='  
U  "" s'# m`' '    

wll.  o      , W w   a i YS< i   r c- i Z   
war

a pQ o
N= Qa m     o< w W

N d,  k'       oa z
i    -   «      on m    a Qo3w o

p  _<_  _      
o    

m`'     
p

Y isa m .,     J  = s s a p' 
w Q 3   -  m'

i"   

V`,<      

aa o mzQ    -       _     _
Y ao   

oaw 
m    < g Z    z mo S         na     ff

Q WU"     
U

U  - d a_,.- ° __     ` b Q n oai ao _ a i   nza

o      ' a-,"   i .        a

kw        o      _    
o

a   _       i

o   _

5       
o         `-'    

o„  ,

w'      -    o       a

F4
t          z   o

NiF     

N    `- o     °¢ s   a
N     

g       
oQ Q

oz   `   -    -       
m   W o       

o   <        

m 

w`¢'         - n <     
w o      o   a' S      oo  

FB  a       `< LL     o m   p   <    -   
g o<   

a       <       o w 
Nw o

wo          N   -     <   <
w m- >  

W  Z aw
Yo <

oti 
w a      $>   -    m a _   

LL U N

o¢    
o        

o       am N LL       g w
w      < Q      a wm         W

LL      
a

ao a    -           oo            o= Qo
w "€ d= ,

o o o     
J 8m       a   F-     

o

affw      ' a Qa a   - a
o ffw   _  w=  U oZ

wx a < 8 owi o a a m U m J  F   o 
s., " 

p3o o Z    `-' ?   o       <   «
i <o     a a

N

w   

S 

m ,.,     

o      

o i           LL  U w  
o' z

o m  o o 0 00         Q Z  <       soa >
Z G N -   a    o p= Wo

w Pam Z _   G
w oQw   `   '" J xaa       ga        <   w  oa w

W        m $< a N; - LL w w 2 Q <
o"'   o'" a o      -

Q W       '" < YS "' a w
3 m o LL 3 N H p`. U`  g?

J-•    

Qaom <      ww
f-  = N      C Nz` N`_

z.      o   _    _        z U a w z
w oms w w i aa     = -   

a   .    -     aa N        s 8   _-, a         
zw

a-   oa ',. Sa?        o       _     _ _    No   a

w F I         i _       i      -

Z 6Q        -  w   - Q   _           
s Z   o       d  w---

w :      o^< o o        

o` do Y          zo oi p   Qa-
O a  _

y< 

ry 
a    aa  

e  m  oW m_   o< o< omz_   Q    N o«< S a  a

413



0
T

g

w n n m m o
N

r M $ n

o       
m x w

w R g g g g
g

o
w 

LL      N      - s

a e
b

F
s

o

aa
p` g     8 $       8    $

yo m     = aw= e e        m

U   =
m

Z QaQ       €
Q

3 3  3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

S      QOO       oa n f`    P

O LLW
QSo  

O

LL a"   N   ?;
n ¢

Y

Q           -_   F pr

W

P-     

o   _

Q U
oa¢ O   - ¢

d F g
w o U'

V       6  
N

U  q

6¢      

s a
3

3 3 3 3 3
s 3

a n n Q s r

8

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

N      a

v s°'    N u    sfO v+ n sv

W

l7

w m 
c C')   

ry 
W
w g

S
x

UQ J      a   • 

Z
3 3 s    ,       s 3 3 3 s a 3 3 . 3

o     _      
m

o         H _      

U!        1 Z
n     n s r r    

w

g' gmz'= o g =
o

Y -
3    - 

o" ,    ma a=   
wwa  U   o    s

Zr
U000

VF im aaw Fti=:
a      g EYIXtnb O i    J

JEYOR* d
o

Fa"¢   o w LL    o
r3' pOER  ' y       _ w Q   oe'

o    
o vi

o¢ ow a m j N? m
mio io r    -      im

N<--      
a

s

o     ' be. a P o 
z        

a N _? - -          F
SS3oaa    

o sy.3joad#
sP F.,.,

o `-

m.,"'  

J

m 

o Fo a aN ma J= F
a€ S" Q F&`= aa -' cw., i, z`             ?  

x g   s-   oo= 
o ao              

o
a a  

F<   08 - 
m

FJ mJo o

o oapia< dg a 5z`_ w       o         o

wa z  s oQa¢ Sago   " i '      
o

JQ„   
o _      So oJc aZ a5      og op o   O a o z Ozx

W a_     rc wg o gS 4o . o0 ¢¢
mJ

w '<   F-  ycs. oLLo apWm`
l'^

owNa      ¢' zri
Z

o-
o " 

c       z r v¢ oi W o      iW 

i i G W ma'-" dam¢       oo= Fuzo ow' i i a¢, o i

z        " N iaa       F? z oao"' zrW" 5''^
a o

w w

Q n o N m
p o? oaQNoa

N

zUn_ a z

o>[ Q`"-       <  ii"'   M< m?" ia'"`+ s,="`^ 

pa     
a- w a `" 

m          
F _       

S a wa&^ wo m
a a a oa« a? o-,    

o k      - o w
c_<_ o o< n _«..« o

414



O

LL

Q

M

N

Z
P 

Z
g

o     2

V ' w  ~ 

a

g

w o       '      
UQJ  a <    Z

s'       
3

aW     

Q/(n     o
g

W a o       =' w    

LL  o< a       Z
o

O   -      w
w>  -  

W w>  nJ

Z -    

p      `_'  

o wU w o-  ?
7>      

i p z o w
Q o  m m<, a3  ,

Z \      I

w

N
w .,       

o     Z      
I 

a      wo
z LL c7 IOO    "'

g"--      
w

I

ZO

B- W), fiS' 6L6 3, O1, 96. 91N

ob\'
i M, M

5131     — _
m

a pp04 5`}` 56907        
6S' 646 3, 0l, 4b. 91N

0

00 
D

v
Q rS 9

C2 S       
61 m

L1B
3

c"i v 8
9i

P', 
J       

J
n e o

pF0 a

ry`

O
P, 

laksi  P I
5
5

ti P", p      e si  °      7   

0Q' 05  Y..    
yo,   P

ti°      ci 3
05 ti! , yoti

s'  49fCS 3, 01, 9ro. 9tN

a

r/ hk  ?     
M, MI ;   •

Z/

ti 10, q69
F'  

p, 15\ 144

I        3
N¢

S

P         w  
N

1     
P       ¢ F m -      g m U a

I',_
i

Q U"'
g m            a2¢

Z      '

i3

9J
o

Z

0 Sp)

R       /
J

6

m
S

1` J

S

a 21) fBl
OB`  

7 r° 0
O

e m i
r  OpS d u Q c"'i a 3NVl 3NOlS21V1F18

b
m r

s`

B  H

n. e a¢` 9- YI),[ 6901 3, 069491N

0o' oss= N
r=      

o;    
r IFl

hh2     
p

a 0

i m—

W           a     

U V
g.    1'

I
J   -    U

2  

J

U v
J

FU V
U aj 11 Qi

Q`        N p
F I   qKU V   

lt         m    

4C)     

J

iVN V
m

n

o

1     
r

P

56  
4l

v' 
i

d o
c5

f

L51
l49

48       :'
o

u' 3

150 Q a5        m F'S a.,
w

s      /

lM_ Ml
S)_ L53— C17 M-

M  x c`i o 0 0 Qm
AODiSON N09' 20' 36" E 79215'( M' M

m  

w      (, 7 a o

V

Z a

Q 3az
I I oQo  _

O _ eia

z N      m 

415



0
T

LL

N      <

L(
r a       

a

d   ` Z og z J  

ui

p

c C'3      W       20 g°     m o _
W

U Q J   a   • 

Z

N

i  
J

QM(  za       Z Z OIL. Lww  og w w
J

x
w m

0

Z

H
W

U

W o!.
o— cv v n i- mm

m m m m m m m v v v o v v v o c  u
J   

AVMtlOBkiVN3l`J  ! 1 aU v

d QN N Q m W C N N N N N 4

p.'

J      NN    
m   a r

rnt t ti o
m     

m d

GP,
4,Q'       ` 

oP'       
133tl1S ll3MOk1tlB     

n  

m
m

r o, nv m  .- o m

m m ro m

0Q'
M       

m

m

U
a

U O

f(

60(

Sp       
s

W

r     `   

V
4

v  a

W 4
U      ¢       `     4Z v

4J          Q
m    `    

q
U V

2

U W
p   [

V O    
K

a U

t-

4 Od

3 O
y U

Qy U
Q

U       __'

Q    3Nv 3Noisdvme

41
U

R
K

Z

N   '   

4U V

a

V d

K F
Y

J a

U v j

w 4i a
U U

Q  
a R

3f1N
1 0/"..

L     _

416



O

LL

N      < 

Z Z

g

r}d  '
o

R o

V      - 

L
O

g,'  Q    

UQ¢ a    
Z         

N        

m

Q i  wo i 
o

a          __ a

o vi  <        
z o g

F-  

os 
w

m       <  
W

v     

3 5
N go-        N

w

w    _ _   -       _
o    o   , g  : , . 4

z .,     o  o o    -

3f1N3AV NO1d3llH

O1_       
e- rv), ssscs 3. o, s+. s N - -

3

IH), 6S' 696 3, O1, 91. 91N

1) p0' SL93, O1, 99.91N N16' 07' S9' E -    ( 1), OOSLl3, 1, 94. 91N   -.       d'J

0' Sb-- -. 00- 54- --. ODS9- --, 00' S4-- --, OO S6-- ,. 00' S4-' -, 00' Sb- -. 00' S4- -", 0059'- -' 45. 00"  -.' S9- '-. 0054-- --. 00 Sb"
i      9a 2

3M, f-- i N 1

g g g 8 I 1

p 3 3 3 3 3 3  
N

3  
N

3 3 3  ^ 
3  N I 3

m   -    

a  

ry

a   a  

P           

e
I .      

U

P

U o
L--      c2ez'¢      aa°

00' S4    , 0054 OO S9    , 00' S4    , ODS9 p' S4    , OOS9 OOS4    , 00' S4    , OO S4   , OL' Sf   

T ,
1) 81   ZJ

1),£ IZZC3, 0l, 94. 91N Cfi6(    
Br' J    , 

n

AVM N08dd N3lJ a 4`F`'
O^\     

IY). W' SLS   ( 1). ZL' L6C 3. OI, 9h. 91N       _ .._.. .. _      
J

y     00' fLS ODZ9-

i   .
1), 008( 6 3, O1, 94. 91N

ol

0,

00' OL  _, W- S4    , 00' S4 ___ 0059  _, OOS6_   , 0054    , 00' S4_  _ 00' S6    , OOS9    , OOS6    , OOfb ' o    I        . 9 50l3, 0l, 909tN

3' n' d, 5
g -_  g S --  g   _       -

T

g 3 nd S-

E

W Ui o+  

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 F IJ   , OO OII
3

O
D

ry  

co, '  co v 

gi gi 
c      <      c     n

Q       I       .
3. O1 9991N     -

g,'

3 O
v

z <  =       
o      

NI           
g

p vei
L' 3- fl' d At< , OO OII

a

w  ^ Q 1), 00' SIS 3, 1, 94. 91N z a3 3 O
ry

3. 01. 94. 91N
N00' SS     , OO S4 pOS9    , W' S4    , 00' S9    , 0056    , 00' S9    , 00' S9    , 00' Sb    , 00' Sb     , OO SS     } I

n^ a I3 0       g 3

I   8 S nU    ; elQ 00' Olt

p'   3 r"  3 '  3 p'  3 O

N

3 3 N
N

3   3 i{ N 3 '  3 p'   I
3. 01, 96.91N

t0
e

D,    < O
N

I
N

I      g o       g

z

Qf              < -    
v

6   <      
a      <      <      e a a

n         p
j rl     a

mra o z z I OO OI l

1 n___    I      3, O1. 94. 91N

N I, S9' Of   , 00- S4    , 00' Sro    , 00- 54    , 0054  , 0054  , OS4    , 00' S9  , OO S4

z,

00' S6   , 00' Of

o

o
g

lo
1, S6- S96 3. O1, 99. 9LN

13
0   N m

l   
3FJ1S ll3Madd9

I I^      I 000u
m-    

er es _ _   sa ozs

r 6v    ( a) U), 00zz 3. o, so. s N
sers -

io n- n) zee s 3. o, sa. s N , sczs _      
p^.i

1), L6' B99 3. O1, 94. 91N S pl

s

J
g_ f ,

p   , 00' Of _, OOSb   _, D054    , OOS9   _ 00' S6  _, 00' S6  _, 00' S9_   , 00' 94   _, 00' 9Y    , Lfi96_ , 00- Of a. a 92.,6' L1`
o    'N g

3 3 3 3 3 3 3

0;         3

tV n gi gi

3nd. S

e e e e      <      . r      <      . n

3' fl' d, S

b' 69      , 00' S6    , OOS9    , 00' Sb    , 00' S4    , 00 54    , OOS9    , 00 94    , 0 96    , L6-94     , 00' SS

N p a)( i),oarts 3. o, sa. s e

IlL' 1 691t 1 7"?JJ-

6Z 1: 8 d

417



0
T

LL

N

u,= Z Z

g

ao V i

T d       

Cn(     - L    9,       

a?

UQ z         6
c~n  <        

z O o
F=

ww w Z  <       --    3 0
o        `     mp3

n"   

o   a   -      
a       -

w     _          ' o

a    o      LL  . 

z _     Oo o O •  F-

aN 3f1N3Atl NOld3lld

O

PARCELC     (
e- rv). es sce 3. o, st. s N

r

36086 S. F.o

II.e o

6 b
5 M' M%     

Q 919S= 1 Ir
l= ZS 10. 400= 0-.,

a    (  
1), 6S' 646 3, O1, 969tN

o 

p•
q0

t;   N _

5, 2   =
7466 1), 005( 9 3. O1, 94. 91N

137

P gj
N74' 48' S6' E   • OOS4-- -, 00' S4 -, 00' S4- --, 00' S9- --, 00' 59-- --, 00' 54-- -

G
F     / ` b9pjl` 1o, 52

E - - N0513' 30E 
1       3 0  

S6. 1B'         

8,    3 0 0 0 8      

QPej SF  / 
D,

qO' S13916W/  
N"

59'
I%      5910   

1 N
op

o, 
I o 0 0 0 0 0 0

g90   H051 H7     /    U f s

1

s 3 s a   3 .,`^  s< 0 3 m
R'  W   ''

S9.
Q o

3
N NN   ^  ¢ mO

H.
S;

5/          o d     ,   
r      <      <     <

i'
S98

i w     

o

z    

6

p

p1W'     V' 

N    $       
1 Z

l

I      

z z    -

N
1^ 05

N   •'

9Z49'     - C22   Z}      , 0054    , 0054    , 00' S4    , OOS9    , 00' S9

g9               
Q      ,

s 3M'_   .
ZL 4S. 400= V 9

N    .    
o   

c2   i.  
n z

acze 3. o y. 9 N

AO' MF109dd

o3lJ6 p402/   "
il Nn         

m /

Cjq94

Z

C2  '  ' 

1). LLZ9W3, OZ('(
lZ W W94.

91N

Sv       `"    2
O— -      (  )    

i(  )Aas s r0

o
y      , 5 1. 94. 91N

i 6`'`      
M M  

l R1)       19028 Rt lN). ZC' l8 i    , 00' l8 I

o

J,
2      p 

D'
4  } 4 5 3 0492 5 p< 15' 4B 00'    

i 1  S      Si p> 10'   o

ro   K'   
o pe4 g p      

N oz tioo N
G R=94s V p

y
c b P IE     , 5

0

3. o, sa. s N "'      
a

OOQ    `` A3j 00 oi i m o
o ¢

PG      3 3 o       p

p
3_Ol. 9h. 91N +    

p w

Q W

G3    S.     W' 901 I  ;           

J
g    m w

W

N_   
len I       ( n

S
S   , 

O,
r 

Y

p

3_O1. 94.91N I Q

0 o- j a,<     Q
J

00' 90l
i      

O d        Q r N Im

Y>
i

a{, 

n

Q o
rn

N      "'

o . OL
P

ll    - O
i           a) 3. sz, ec. uif

5,.
p5,      I!-.00- 9ot  

I`  N    '
f'   A'      o p

c0

N

Iv n I, X
F-  9'

y Ocj ,,   f Qi Kl t`   3
w 5ti ° e o

3nd, oiJ  ( n- rv). ses sp
w v,

2°

e(

a),w soi 3. ai, s. aiN `
O

a) 3. sz, cozN s
w

yl` ¢3 ( ' i
sf!

t ry
t

rro

m          
f"G

J

F Q

QPPG gf j 111R       
5

p^ E     - N05' 13'} OE       <  H

I 569 N00       5q 70            
O a

p05}
1 043816 59       1      

m

9
p0 D5 ti0; 1q2gW   -  

1.           \       N

6133HS 33S
R-       No

5q82-         
N

n

5\
3W    \     N

Na ggS'
n

i

418



0
T

N      <       ti

W   M  r

Z 51 
o

o      

9   

o c'

w  o 0`

t

cn C'3    W Q      ;'  Q       o     

UQ J      a   • 
Z a

r\ 

Q19.. a9/  i N

Q u>>  o o
y   

c~n  <        
z

o
4,   -' :`     

oLL
w     < w

dJ` e y/  
h

4g  
o

g o o i    `  

LO   $ i r4B       ' S1 q\•'
a

b g 9'/' G5 A
h

c\
7      p]

S p mo     p  . p qq'L

N

N    ",  <  

e Cfl   ti   G E  i

QPP,
S'     

S.ycA            S,

y% CP S  oh A 5' s
o

i

yo° Ws
4'  

N   r.
c       

@''
O 69 i rn

y.     ,,  ^     y hry

QJ
g N           /• :

S    1'S
o,"    s i       >' m

L o5       '       '
S' /       ' 3'      

ll

dJ

11/       
y bcQ   $.` m

q'     
i

b` l cbj S

e

p       
ohti'

p'/
y'L.      _- N    '

f`
G,
p/

h,
tiCA 4A996`

a
5`I./   / i m     

yy

L°     L° 

i'

Su    \ 1 w
O l,

L   
Ql       4` i /  C      Lbi    '^    . 0 W

ti

h    

L         ` o„      

S

y 
Sry J3''

9`°'/    /`:'     s

y hry oti       _
i  o    a  e' 

cn

ov$ y°   

9

4  ` o"'  

m

s
0
c

P h  "

b s cP  `
ry}         

w

ph'
1'  

i6'-       d/'$      ih`    
0'

6' 
r     '

2
h

y.  w    (
n

ti tS    ` v/

e^    U
e vi Jo,

f{       a

J   /     
b

o     ```/

i e

o'~
G}  \/ 0P\

6    `/'     

S

y e 
a

s O           cA
s          4 ti i

J i se  r     ' N '   '   
P/      e           o       

s
v   . d' tio

P.`
O\ i/ 6' J'

s/`     /     /      `.
A// n Jo,

i m

a H 6' q0'i
V S' j' ',  df'

GP'    i  ; . ss.      
a  b>   S

r    '

0i 6
9y     °^ y` p     

i

1617`
r

J3ss
t

i`

y'~   \~

V/    `,

dJ 

t   ' i 3 /ea 5   ry` ; 
s}'

o bN ryo h /     

m

s

p'>

M1'      
r ^    ;; /            9,y F, q55

L
o "''   h   04!      yh

p h/. h^     df
Y'    

y     o gZ     , O R

u       .   

S Sry v.,''i      g /     N NOO n
e h o       

a

i   • o<<     m 3
i m n i    ( d/3      ti,

i
S f       /

o%  6! 2    
i W g a o      ¢/     '    

U'  
SZjN h

7

4 0I   -
t-_n 1-+_\'  /    //

p/     
m       '

32
la   p   

of
h_a

1

42' 4`"I'. 0Y,. L= 171. 75'   .  ^.      
p     ( b)

3p     . o y rn

1,
p0 Q- vp.+      0     zSFFN 2 l7

w
o P',. aa A1 t

Y C73(    T  o
m o o U

000'   I       ry

O e ,
L

iv 4 F
4,   00 i

3s           
a w

o\
A,\,/ 

o 3e3
Q.

e

o m o

Z.
ctfN i

t

R /`
3'  3' nd, s   

J/-        

g
3 

g i 3 a   t

e

00
13, ([

t   S
o m

3'     
P         

SZ,  try   

OOSS         L  , / iry i- 3       =

S ry       ti

h

o
N     -   

i        
U

i

l

w
i°     w i

t o . or /    
n.

p. ar i - 3 e, o

l2 I a       

31IdAf- JI      ¢ `     N
3 o

ry Q
J

h

ml         a

h            o    _    o      m-
I m 9 sg

h    
Ii         3 w         

1         m'   O 8 ` " nl a 3p u a   -

ol
o.'       o    Z Q c`i

p  o ;
o

I j 3 O     m   _    mos`

I    , 00tit( a3, s      
w

5, 66. CZry n in Z
a W     -

O       ( l21) 661t l Rll

Z      

Z  ,  g<  LL  ,. 91 73 2IVd O

w W        w

Oo o OO • / 

419



0
T

LL

N      < 

W      w

L Q~  -    ZO wZ r z     

a, 

w   
3     - W

o

eg'.    1

ZA¢ aJ'            d'> i'    s    `    yS`,
U l J z

a   , ?    

A```     

4'      !'
k  /       69d(  v

p

O<-

v

O 
N/

ss      
l

w
Z Q     oy'

v

1 i

i t°N
n  <         G /" i a y

w w n; w
GP' abi'  i '

z   

5
y
0     b ii'~  /

a

a a Li. f'    nv?  ry

LL
QQ o ^   ^

li N M1'N

J    / \\
rs       /       

J

m

o     j ^/U'    

a   gn      /$ ^ Q . M//
p-    

V^ ga nb  "'  
I

d

r

3,  
dp iui 

I

a¢
u i/\ ¢. 

v/  o/

a n

1-_      N /
r

4hga     ll 11 ryo\},       li'/<
4T470Y L= 171. 75'   . 0°  O    /

5
5955'     

4
j969

D'
4o
i?

ti
ryb

4

o 

ry      

M M)

I
o// 

p
o D

1g4^ ti\ /- esi V1,
o,`  

q'°/ 
R`"

10
1 79_  G   ... 

I l00

R
10 

e     ..             '     ` O   .
1\    \ g'   ' j.83`       

P'   ss.
r%

d?    

g /   :/ b ` m     i v>

OO—   Oas1 a . s  ° eS,`
r{

2       °\   °``,\
o"      

3 d¢ S   

J/     

o

I p
1\

05}
1        `.^ F

O  ' l9r`/
O^      '

9iY/

J/ 

q'  /, 1 94// 3 3       ry n

0   "  9 h I a ^' /

3M, F  ''       :.  
ftf,

s    / .
1

1 , orLo
1 9'     8 N; n g i. 3 

o/
l

3: ` N 
r06Z  `    

sN
i''',0`'  

w       R

aiN S   .: j
rb':

t

ni.    
y'

0 l, 
i     i     `\,    /

p

i /o  \    

n w 2Sj8b Ci   ^

ry

6A5 G i'   . `!      
N

3 '  I

b              i v-     '' / tip, a Ao tn
h/ 

v3 I l

J m

n     /  

o ti   ^  o r

42
o x      . a o;I l

a 9g oo      '   ' Opj,   m+     y i"
Z 2 e   

i o
s(

bJ3Z  ' ry. $      /   y   
ino OC 

AF  " 3 d, of°'
3   _\

Bs(
a)3

9S
N p

M/ o i'/

j`

s   

O

i° Ili a,      4ZsfffN     ti /    
s''      -   

I
pii

m

W
I F- 1

g     =
Q

i     ' g   "/ o_, orO. or
y/  '

z9pr( d13zn
I w         z

Ig
3' N

f  . 0'!!
l3 

D

ryoo     I
bq,

N
3

d. 01- J
Q I       WN o  W

I               pr[I~, 3 i S,  I

Q

p       

o sC 3 el I  I

I ry. 001I1
F Od. OI  

o^      ^

l  .

6IDY! 3. lf.8f. 0           

I  '
I

a

J 0

3j
fN

f
a_

O_
Nz p

rN

0     

ry     I  I

1      , I  I  ' F !
i3O£ OI       ^ m I

l         a    

I      ii lW
i e JQ a

Q Sf- 9ll( b) 3. 9S, S4. lZN I
I

I
3n d A!   

o

Q o ol   

I     I 3- m r    J  . I ACCfI( N) 3. 96, 6LISN
V o   I

mP 96' 6t   l4' Ofl e

I
U

I   I

n     
I

I N13' S6' 48" E( R) 170. 36'( n    1

I I(  ; d
i    

I

w O- os
1         

f

oos  SoI

z _.,< i  Q     
Np3, p3o

W a    

m

U

d%        j       w

y        w

u,   ' '.; 
a \     I     m tn

f,     
r            r a, `

I,  
wU n

I    

F'. 
yj   \ y I

P       g, ai. y`' 2  

a\  

l      
Cn

l °' ss   e .      
ov .

g     
o .

sr,  3'- d S-- I

a       ' s t.  
o

etlt
a`   

a`   
I lo

55 4a W
i o ° 

e`
D   d ` rz I

0
1T

9ggR p        r(:09
N   D, L l

I ,    s
s;,  U          

or, 
J J N

O 1
u-- i- y n Vsti

w
ss

a o   

s96 t
o rC   O°      n

o.

t'°'' 
i

v
ooS

d J ss
j.\         

s a
SrC     J I    SN

4
m

i      (    a
I 3

Q̀

J

cn   _.  I'    1-

3na, s 
a°      

3so`
0  a"'     

i:
Or 

LL W
o

zs rsyN
o      _

i   '
a

rs
Cg

D. .      3j£,as 9

in o 3 n a, s" I       
i

Qrn
Q       - 1 0 flfry    , Bgpg AC'
ti

m=   
S:

d  
3. SS, OZ. OF     ,

Bf' S9
0.' 

i,
N

3. 96. Ib. ZZ4 J` o    9q a N o o w
1 '(      H       

e o a
0

r e

hg1 O}'

9
Q 

a'  i

o ,
9

420



0
T

LL

1
y O

N      a tipno°
S         

O)
w

W     0
6

m N14ro5;° a  w w wLn( n  -  < 
l7 s c     

e'
t w

Z    2 SEE SHEET 7 o N
ra       

o „       
s w

d'   w  o m   < 11 J

C7 d= 4    
15   =  Q

ZQ w

i

4

f

UQ J a   . 
Z

o      

m ,   a0' Nl"       a

J]      
ti'      ( a) a. o. rsrzN

a

L.L( n  <        
Z

o

m \ l y

I11
A  L

w w w pl  `,'
1'

J h
J

rn  : o5ti o      

ati
1 i         

J       

Ol
ry  o tip/

Q

oo .

o J s      h m
i      5 w     ;°'  

i 2 n` u. w
o    

v

a y      —
h 3 U F¢-

ry
J w w wF/°

j -,     

Q v2i I Q   0 0

h

N N 2
N

Of   
W~     O o h.

Z Z

s°   _   o

r  

3
i

a 

o    ti W
a iZ4z m I

U T 1
Y S    N

a
Q    a      dw y

b   
w    

r.

z      h a    
m w N

en

w          o
x ce>  

3 a
w g

o" ti    
V

w 2  0 6S o

Z _., e

l   ¢ n i

o

J

Cn 4;
wop0 p%     

Im
i l l3 aVd

a) 3>, or soN  
N N Y

w
2 a'

W
3i ai    '       N E,

aiva3 zii -    

a      

a

LL
e U 3

I

rT J v
I

Um

I

V

U
Y

o

I s   -- -

2 1O
N

flN

VM llIHtl3 dH  ° 
W

c o      ; 3? '
e I'   Z

J  m Q w a r
N<       

a w e ^     UI  w
Z

wp       

w
z 3 8  OF'     N ti a

00 O
d  r?

in o      '"
o

N         
W

e. 
z a

o

a
i m. 00'    al,   '

I
NOl' 27' 39" W   Q, oi s

g
m

w    --  ra`, e D
r        ^    o

Q      O( b
i

I>v    Zj. 1 m
m

1      
S    

n cQi. U i¢  
i 

90 Fff' J fSl

I  Q  9       °   7a b7d
ml     S9

rn
z       I    3

v

U V V ry S
w -`

fl    
S v

K
F

J

R U   `'„   
n '

m

Q

S F    \_  0 Z ol 4
W

w     

W f/ O

J N
J ! D j N Uo            

6h      

BsbyF
N

U

p 

a           a; h
a a n w

z

U    I a,

Q.     ,\,^ q.

Q
a w in0

0
I        

p o N00' DB' 47" W    , h 
w

iD        
4

C57
lL,     Y' 4^   

I  "  1 37. 47'     ; o
J

Z9
n

H

W
v

d        

ii 99l 591
09" 1 t9   a/ 

o

o

o¢
1\  

z
yq. g     ¢     0 a

t i
y W I"      

q 4\ U Yr 

Q 8    <<
b i a

7 iltld oe  
N nj\ d/

o

e$       

a

oN ny No9561'   l6 o
B   9j N092036 E 0

421



0
T

3 3 3 3  ;  3        _  ,  3 3    O

O
N      $<     y M'  o

Q       1

0

Z    2 cn

w
cn c     a w

U Q¢   z 
Q

w
o 3        3 3 3 3 3  3 3        r

J Z cz

LL Cn  <       
Z  _    

W

W w w U

4

ab U
5

K

d
N o/ 0p' l

z
p

e"     ( f!(
b)3

o lt

Zlrg N

U W

U nm2
U       U U U U U U ( J J              ^

z k'    U U

Q 9D)

a

w

Z J w

a fi
G5,-  $') 

V

Q V

6b           0

S

3yo '
02   `

rl3F`
rZN

n $ S
y ti J

w
N

m e o e      _    
o^,    o,    

2^ ;      
U

Z N n

i> o i> i>      c" i         c" i

4P
a

2

Z

g

U U U U U U U

Z
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3  3 3 3 3 3

J Z

0 3 3  3 3        _  3 _  3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 0 3         3      

U w
O    - _    

J

w

Z          2
J

3 3 3 3 3 3 3     w  3 3  3  3  3

J

3 3 3 3 3 3 3  3     

o o

Cn z z

WJ u

F       _    

422



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands

Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

EXHIBIT " B"

TRACT 4155 WEST VILLAGE UNIT 1 AREA

423



W

2O

PARCEL E

NpV

aP
EP  PARCEL A

PARCEL F

1 p 3 4
PARCEL 1 5 6

FlTZGERAIDCIRCLE 7
TRACT1155

12  '
O

BOUNDARY

9 a
PARCEL 2

PARCEL 3

c9

DESIGNATED 13     ' 9l

REMAINDER PARCEL 4 14      ' 9L

TRACT1155 o  1516    yGc
eOUNDARV PARCELI6 0  B,

fl   7
TRACT41a9 O   +' y   a

z NOT A PART)    p    1 9W

a 20

o
99   

9pFy 21
PARCEL N 9a97  F 22

PARCEL M 96
23

95
24

PARCEL L
PARCEL G

pARCEL H
ZS

LAKE 23)    94y 26

PAftCEL K
P CEL   

pARCEI I
27

PARCEL D Za

29 PARCEL B

BAA BURYAVENUE 30

31

32

33

7rucT+ i55 2899 9192
34
3

BOUNDARV
36

AMBASSADORROAD
37

a7 66 65 a 3a
06 57 6d 3 39
35 68 53 0 4D
B4 69 62

41

0 83 70 6  w 42
82 71 50  ' 43

81 3 72 59 44
m

20 73 58 qg
79

m

7d 57 46

78 75 56 4

77 75 55 qa

AN ONVISiASTREEi 49

5 52515 PARCEL C

EXHIBIT B

TRACT 4155

WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT
NOVEMBER 2022

424



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

EXHIBIT " C"

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

L The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no
less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000, 000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000, 000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement

Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that  " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in

excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty ( 30)
days prior notice of cancellation ar material change in coverage." The above language can be

included on the additional insured endarsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at
least five years after completion of the Ageement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

425



DATE( MM/ DD/ YYYY)
A! Z     CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

11/ 3/ 2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER NAMEACT MICII@II2 S8f1CI1@Z
Alliant Insurance Services, IIC.       PHONE FAX

333 S Hope St Ste 3750 uc No Ext: A/ C No:

Los Angeles CA 90071 nDORess: Michelle.Sanchez alliant.com
INSURER S AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

License#: oC3sss INSURERA: Ufllt@d S ecialt Insurance Co.    12537

INSURED RIVEISL- 01 INSURER B:
River Islands Development Area 1, LLC.      

73 W. Stewart Road
INSURER C:

Lathrop, CA 95330 INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1554390434 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7ypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR
pOLICY NUMBER MM/ DDY/YYYY MM DD/ YYYY LIMITSLTR

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Y ATN2117764P 3/ 19/ 2021 3/ 19/ 2024 EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000,000

CLAIMS- MADE  OCCUR PREM SES a oocurence    $ 0

MED EXP( Any one person)    $ 0

PERSONAL& ADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:      GENERAL AGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY E   LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER:       

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT     $
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED
BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLA LIAB
OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS- MADE AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION$       

WORKERSCOMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUTIVE E. L. EACH ACCIDENT
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED7 N/ A

Mandatory in NH) E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Re: FM Tract 4155

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents are included as Additional Insureds as
respects to General Liability. General Liability shall be Primary and Non- Contributory with any other insurance in force for or which may be purchased by City of
Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents.
30 days advanced written notice to Certificate Holder in the event of cancellation, except 10 days for non- payment of premium.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop CA 95330
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

V 2/!._'

O 1988- 2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016I03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD426



POLICY NUMBER:  ATN217764P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG20100413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS,  LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Or anization s Location s Of Covered O erations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards As Required By Written Contract, Fully Executed
and commissions and members thereof, its Prior To The Named Insured' s Work
employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person( s)  or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:
respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage"  This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:      1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)
to be performed by or on behalf of the additional

in the perFormance of your ongoing operations for insured( s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s) has been completed; or

designated above.  2. That portion of" your work" out of which the
injury or damage arises has been put to its

However:      
intended use by any person or organization other

1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only
than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 04 13 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

427



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.   Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance:  whichever is less.
If coverage provided to the additional insured is

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
required by a contract or agreement, the most we Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.   Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2     O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 0413

428



Policy# ATN217764P

United Specialty Insurance Company

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VEN 051 00 ( 02/ 20)

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies the Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to SECTION IV  -  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CONDITIONS ofthe COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART, and

supersedes any provision to the contrary:

Primary and Non- Contributory Insurance

Any coverage provided to an Additional Insured under this policy shall be excess over any other
valid and collectible insurance available to such Additional Insured whether primary, excess,
contingent or on any other basis unless:

a.     ( 1) The Additional Insured is a Named Insured under such other insurance;

and

2) A fully written contract fully executed prior to the Named Insured' s
commencement of work for such Additional Insured for the specific project
that is the subject of the claim, " suit," or" occurrence" expressly requires
that this insurance:

i)       apply on a primary and non- contributory basis;
and

ii)      would not seek contribution from any other insurance availableto
the additional insured.

or

b.     Prior to a loss, you request in writing and we agree in writing that this insurance shall apply
on a primary and non- contributory basis.

Name Of Person s Or Or anization s

As Required By Written Contract, Fully Executed Prior To The Named
Insured' s Work.

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

VEN 051 00( 02/ 20)  Page 1 of 1
429



Policy: ATN217764P

UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VEN 064 00 ( 01/ 15)

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies the Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail notification to the
persons or organizations shown in the schedule below ( according to the number of days listed below)
once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written notice of
cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective date of such
cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation date nor negate
cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE
Name and Address of Other Person/ Orpanization

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,  
Number of Days Notice

boards and commissions and members thereof,
its employees and agents
390 Towne Centre Drive 30

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement and
remain unchanged.

VEN 064 00( 01/ 15) Page 1 of 1

430



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands

Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

EXHIBIT " D"

UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

AND WEST VILLAGE UNIT 1 — FULL IMPROVEMENT COST

431



NG1NEEfZ1NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE August 21, 2023

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25504- 86

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2

DEL WEBB- TRACT 4755( UNIT 7)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Joint Trench( 60% Completion)     1 LS   $    14, 600. 00  $ 14, 600. 00

2 Striping 8 Mounments( 0% Completion)     1 LS   $    48, 700. 00  $ 48,700.00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE S 63,300.00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractor' s note for Del Webb Takedown 1 dated 9/ 11/ 2023

t,_ .,—..+Er'.iDaE F`: L R? r;: SI I' E 33:..  LEA,c .. :) t! ', p, c c c  . p c_-  ' P34'_    -[ l:_ t . fic

T\ 755( Id Rivnr IclnnAe\ Phacn Afi. Phwea 7I' lal Wwhh Cnirth IP\ WnM R Frrwl\ r ef fn(: rvnnlnfnl fl' i11A. 1 f1' i. hN. 1 To4nAnum t IAmn R 11 f: nef Tn r mnlale vleUmnm smnnle

432



ENG1NEEft7NG

DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST October 21, 2022

PHASE 2 DEL WEBB Job No.: 25504- 86

HAVERHILL LANE

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

ROADWAY

1 Fine Grading 121, 200 SF    $       0. 45  $     54, 540. 00

2 4. 5" AC Paving 76, 900 SF    $       2. 25  $   173, 025. 00

3 8" Aggregate Base 76, 900 SF    $       120  $     92, 280. 00

4 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)    2, 330 LF    $      15. 00  $     34, 950. 00

5 Concrete Sidewalk 18, 200 SF    $       5. 00  $     91, 000. 00

6 Handicap Ramps 6 EA    $  2, 500. 00  $     15, 000. 00

7 Survey Monuments 3 EA    $    300. 00  $ 900. 00

8 Traffic Signing& Striping 1, 180 LF    $       5. 00  $      5, 900. 00

g Dewatering( budget)    1, 180 LF    $     100. 00  $   118, 000. 00

Subtotal Roadway 585, 595. 00

STORM DRAIN

10 15" Storm Drain Pipe( polypropylene)    440 LF    $      18. 00  $      7, 920. 00

11 18" Storm Drain Pipe( polypropylene)     90 LF    $      20. 00  $      1, 800. 00

2 24" Storm Drain Pipe( polypropylene)    620 LF    $      31. 00  $     19, 220. 00

13 Catch Basins( type I inlet over rype I manhole base)  7 EA    $  2, 800. 00  $     19, 600. 00

14 Catch Basins( type C inlet)   1 EA    $  2, 400. 00  $      2, 400. 00

15 Manholes( type 1)    1 EA    $  3, 000. 00  $      3, 000. 00

16 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 3 EA    $  1, 000. 00  $      3, 000. 00

17 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $  1, 700. 00  $      1, 700. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 58, 640. 00

SANITARY SEWER

18 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 80 LF    $      28. 00  $      2, 240. 00

19 12" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 70 LF    $      42.00  $      2, 940. 00

20 30" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 610 LF    $     180. 00  $   109, 800. 00

21 Manhole( Trunk)    3 EA    $  6, 000. 00  $     18, 000. 00

22 Sewer Stub& Plug 3 EA    $   1, 000. 00  $      3, 000. 00

23 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $  3, 000. 00  $      3, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 138, 980. 00

WATER SUPPLY

24 8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) 50 LF    $      32. 00  $      1, 600. 00

25 12" Water Line( including all appurtenances)    1, 210 LF    $      48. 00

26 GV 6 EA    $  1, 550. 00  $      9, 300. 00

27 Fire Hydrants 3 EA    $  4, 000. 00  $     12, 000. 00

28 Blow- Off 3 EA    $   1, 000. 00  $      3, 000. 00

29 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $  4, 000. 00  $      4, 000. 00

Subtotal Water 29, 900. 00

G ST NcKIG E :: AL P._; nU . i E 3Q GL A A.': COEJ A..,_ 3k  .  q2=__ t An    ' p C i 4"

T\ 25504- River Islands\ Phase 86- Phase 2 Del Webb South IP\ Word& Ezcel\ Cost Estimate\ Haverhill Lane Cost Estimate. zlsx\ Area 2

433



NG1N£ Eft1NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

NON- POTABLE WATER

30 8" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances)       1, 120 LF    $      35. 00  $     39, 200. 00

31 Blow- Off 1 EA    $  1, 000. 00  $      1, 000. 00

32 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $  3, 000. 00  $      3, 000. 00

Subtotal Water 43, 200. 00

LAKE FILL WATER

33 24" Lake Fill Water Line( including all appurtenances)    520 LF    $      85. 00  $     44, 200. 00

34 Blow- Off 1 EA    $  4, 000. 00  $      4, 000. 00

35 Lake Fill Stub& Plug 1 1, 000. 00

36 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $  3, 000. 00  $      3, 000. 00

Subtotal ake Fill Water 51, 200. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST a 907, 515. 00

20% CONTINGENCY $ 

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest 51, 000)  a 908, 000. 00

Notes:

1) Unit prices are based on estimated current constniction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

2) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, landscaping, irrigation, or street trees.

3) This estimate assumes all of the Del Webb backbone streets are constructured at the same time and ahead of any other in- tract
street improvements.

2iJQ$'._ uE- IDoE: i.4f_ i_ R` AD . 1i  _,  ' L:. k . 1 b_ d__ ` r' .,._ <_., E_ ti_  •   2L Gr 1 <-';."

T:\ 25506- River Isiands\ Phase 86- Phase 2 Del Webb South IP\ Word& Extel\ Cost Estimate\ Haverhill Lane Cost Estimate. vlsv\ Area 2

434



DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST October 26, 2021

DEL WEBB Job No.: 25504- 86

AREA 2( 78 Lots)

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

ROADWAY

1 Fine Grading 845, 000 SF    $ 0. 45  $    380, 250. 00

2 4.5" AC Paving 95, 800 SF    $ 2. 25  $    215, 550. 00

3 8" Aggregate Base 95, 800 SF    $ 1. 20  $    114, 960. 00

4 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)      1, 110 LF    $      15. 00  $     16, 650. 00

5 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       5, 000 LF    $      15. 00  $     75, 000. 00

6 Concrete Sidewalk 31, 300 SF    $ 5. 00  $    156, 500. 00

7 Driveway Approach 78 EA    $     600. 00  $     46, 800. 00

8 Handicap Ramps 6 EA    $   2, 500. 00   $     15, 000. 00

9 Survey Monuments 13 EA    $     300. 00  $       3, 900. 00

10 Traffic Signing& Striping 3, 200 LF    $      15. 00   $     48, 000. 00

11 Dewatering ( budget)     3, 200 LF    $      75. 00  $    240, 000. 00

Subtotal Roadway 1, 312, 610. 00

STORM DRAIN

12 15" Storm Drain Pipe 230 LF    $      34. 00  $       7, 820. 00

13 18" Storm Drain Pipe 750 LF    $      46. 00  $     34, 500. 00

14 24" Storm Drain Pipe 290 LF    $      65. 00  $     18, 850. 00

15 30" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 350 LF    $      80. 00  $    108, 000. 00

16 42" Storm Drain Pipe 80 LF    $     120. 00  $       9, 600. 00

17 48" Storm Drain Pipe 45 LF    $     125. 00  $       5, 625. 00

g Catch Basins ( type A inlet)   18 EA    $   2, 400. 00  $     43, 200. 00

19 Manholes ( type I)     1 EA    $   3, 000. 00  $       3, 000. 00

20 Manholes ( type ll)     1 EA    $   5, 000. 00  $       5, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 235, 595. 00

SANITARY SEWER

21 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 1, 200 LF    $      28. 00  $     33, 600. 00

22 10" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 40 LF    $      35. 00  $       1, 400. 00

23 12" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 1, 850 LF    $      42. 00  $     77, 700. 00

24 Manholes 8 EA    $   4, 000. 00   $     32, 000. 00

25 Manhole( Trunk)     3 EA    $   6, 000. 00   $     18, 000. 00

H:\ 25504- River Islands\ Phase 86- Phase 2 Del Webb South IP\ Phase 2 Del Webb IP IArea 21\ Word& Excel\ Estimate\ Del Wehh ArPa cotr F< r o, arP- roi- inas a Pa

435



Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

26 Sewer Service 78 EA    $     600. 00  $     46, 800. 00

27 Sewer Stub 8 Plug 2 EA    $   1, 000. 00  $      2, 000. 00

28 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $   3, 000. 00  $       3, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 214, 500. 00

WATER SUPPLY

2g 8" Water Line ( including all appurtenances)       3, 220 LF    $      32. 00  $    103, 040. 00

30 GV 9 EA    $   1, 550. 00  $     13, 950. 00

31 1- 1/ 2" Water Service 78 EA    $   2, 000. 00  $    156, 000. 00

32 Fire Hydrants 7 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $     28, 000. 00

33 Blow- Off 2 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $       8, 000. 00

34 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $      4, 000. 00

Subtotal Water 312, 990. 00

LAKE FILL WATER

35 24" Lake Fill Water Line ( including all appurtenances)     250 LF    $      85.00  $     21, 250. 00

36 Blow- Off 2 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $       8, 000.00

37 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $       4, 000. 00

Subtotal Lake Fill Water 33, 250. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000)  $ 2, 109, 000. 00

COST PER LOT  $     27, 038. 00

Notes:

1) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

2) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, landscaping, irrigation, or streel trees.

H:\ 25504- River Islands\ Phase 86- Phase 2 Del Webb South IP\ Phase 2 Del Webb IP fArea 21\ Word& Ezcel\ Estimate\ Del We66 Area 2 Cost Fstimate- 011- to- JS\ Arra 7

436



ENG7 NEEfZ1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 29, 2021

DEL WEBB Job No.: 2550- 86

AREA 3( 208 Lots)

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

ROADWAY

1 Fine Grading 1, 795, 000 SF    $ 0. 45  $  807, 750. 00

2 4. 5" AC Paving 226, 650 SF    $ 2. 25  $  509, 962. 50

3 8" Aggregate Base 226, 650 SF    $ 1. 20  $  271, 980. 00

4 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)      3,400 LF    $      15. 00  $    51, 000. 00

5 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)      10, 600 LF    $      15. 00  $  159, 000. 00

g Type F Median Curb( with AB cushion)    46 LF    $      18. 00  $       828. 00

7 Roundabout Curb( with AB cushion)      220 LF    $      18. 00  $     3, 960. 00

g Splitter Island Curb( with AB cushion)     140 LF    $      18. 00  $     2, 520. 00

9 Concrete Sidewalk 71, 450 SF    $ 5. 00  $  357, 250. 00

10 Driveway Approach 208 EA    $     600. 00  $  124, 800. 00

11 Handicap Ramps 22 EA    $   2, 500. 00  $    55, 000. 00

12 Survey Monuments 28 EA    $     300. 00  $     8, 400. 00

13 Traffic Signing& Striping 7, 450 LF    $      15. 00  $  111, 750. 00

14 Roundabout Concrete 1, 900 SF    $ 5. 00  $     9, 500. 00

15 Dewatering( budget)     7,450 LF    $      75.00  $  558, 750. 00

Subtotal Roadway 3, 032, 450. 50

STORM DRAIN

16 15" Storm Drain Pipe 2, 100 LF    $      34. 00  $    71, 400.00

17 18" Storm Drain Pipe 2, 250 LF    $      46. 00  $   103, 500. 00

18 24" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 700 LF    $      65. 00  $  110, 500. 00

19 30" Storm Drain Pipe 180 LF    $      80. 00   $    14, 400. 00

20 36" Storm Drain Pipe 700 LF    $      95. 00  $    66, 500. 00

21 42" Storm Drain Pipe 400 LF    $     120. 00  $    48, 000. 00

22 48" Storm Drain Pipe 270 LF    $     125. 00  $    33, 750. 00

23 Catch Basins ( type I inlet)   41 EA    $   2, 400. 00  $    98, 400. 00

24 Catch Basins( type I inlet over type ll manhole base)  5 EA    $   5, 000. 00  $    25, 000. 00

25 Catch Basins( type C inlet over type I manhole base)  7 EA    $   6, 000. 00  $    42, 000. 00

2g Manholes( type I)     5 EA    $   3, 000. 00  $    15, 000. 00

27 Manholes ( type ll)     2 EA    $   5, 000. 00  $    10, 000. 00

28 Strom Drain Stub& Plug 8 EA    $   1, 000. 00   $     8, 000. 00

29 Connect to Existing 2 EA    $   1, 700. 00  $     3, 400. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 649, 850. 00

SANITARY SEWER

30 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 6, 000 LF    $      28. 00  $   168, 000. 00

31 10" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 930 LF    $      35. 00  $    32, 550. 00

32 Manholes 26 EA    $   4, 000. 00   $  104, 000. 00

6[ uQ S'" UNERIDGE h 1ALL R; 7AD SUi" E 33. P(..EASP TO' V CA S- FeE:  •  P 92{[ 4'_ 83A0  F OG 57 d56

H:\ 25504- River Islands\ Phase 86- Phase 2 Del Webb South IP\ Phase 2 Del Webb IP( Area 3)\ Word& Excel\ Es[ imate\ Del Webb Area 3 Cost Estimate- 2021- 10- 29\ Area 3

437



ENGINE£ f21NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

33 Sewer Service 208 EA    $     600. 00  $  124, 800. 00

34 Sewer Stub& Plug 4 EA    $   1, 000. 00  $     4, 000. 00

35 Connect to Existing 3 EA    $   3, 000. 00  $     9, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 442, 350. 00

WATER SUPPLY

36   $" Water Line ( including all appurtenances)      7, 750 LF    $      32. 00  $  248, 000. 00

37 GV 27 EA    $   1, 550. 00  $    41, 850. 00

38 1- 1/ 2" Water Service 208 EA    $   2, 000. 00  $  416, 000. 00

39 Fire Hydrants 19 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $    76, 000. 00

40 Blow- Off 5 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $    20, 000. 00

41 Connect to Existing 3 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $    12, 000. 00

Subtotal Water 813, 850. 00

NON- POTABLE WATER

42 8" Non- Potable Water Line ( including all appurtenances)   55 LF    $      35. 00  $     1, 925. 00

43 Blow- Off 1 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $     4, 000. 00

Subtotal Non- Potable Water 5, 925. 00

LAKE FILL WATER

44 24" Lake Fill Water Line ( including all appurtenances)   1, 650 LF    $      85. 00  $  140, 250. 00

45 ARV 1 EA    $   4, 000. 00  $     4, 000. 00

46 Lake Fill Stub& Plug 1 EA    $   3, 500. 00  $     3, 500. 00

47 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $   5, 500. 00  $     5, 500. 00

Subtotai Lake Fill Water 153, 250. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000)  $ 5, 098, 000. 00

COST PER LOT  $   24, 510. 00

TRACT 4155 LOTS IN AREA 3 63

TOTAL AREA 3 COST FOR TRACT 4155  $ 1, 544, 130. 00

Notes:

1) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

2) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, landscaping, irrigation, or street trees.

b20 STC; RlERIDGE MALL RUAe SUlT E ? G Pi. EA H. t sTCi J CA q458S  •  P 9< 5 223 8iA0 •  F 09 5 i A66

H:\ 25504- River Islands\ Phase 86- Phase 2 Del Webb South IP\ Phase 2 Del Webb IP( Area 3)\ Word& Excel\ Estimate\ Del Webb Area 3 Cost Estimate- 2021d0- 29 Area 3

438



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, F/ K/A River Islands
Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

EXHIBIT " E"

STORNOWAY ACCESS ROADS

439



i- = =       

I
1 II,j,,I j II j 11111    

II    `      .I/ I ..    , I : ,

IIIII/  II  

I 1/ j   II I  !
III    : I   I  I 
i  .       II I 

i ':i i 1 1  I  
1/        i       O

11111// I I' 1 
iii  1111        111/ I
i               -  I 

I     •  
1 °   ,  -     I    - i `:

I         G 3

I\
11 1  

C 1/ 1/   I  

11       ,• I   ,/ I
r II ,      1       II ii
I    I j I   :
II j i 11/ I      Ij

I        %'       /   I   II  :I j  ;          ///    Ij      `Ij    II j         I//        .;.
II    i

II        IIj   .
II  : ::  :I

III     : l
III III j  

s     

fi,,., 

440



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area l, LLC, F/ K/ A River Islands

Employment Center, LLC)

Tract 4155 West Village Unit 1

EXHIBIT " F"

OFFSITE IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATES

441



ENG1N£ ERiNG

DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST August 29, 2023

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2 Job No.: 25504- 62

CALLERTON AVE( MAIN DRAINAGE CHANNEL FILLED)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item DescHption Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

CALLERTON AVE( MAIN DRA/NAGE CHANNEL FILLED)

1 Mobilization° 1 LS   $     12, 000. 00  $ 12, 000.00

2 Clearing, Grubbing, Striping, and Site Preparation 1 AC   $      1, 000. 00  $   1, 000. 00

3 Erison Control 1 AC   $      2, 500. 00  $  2, 500.00

4 Dewatering( eudget)       150 LF   $ 100. 00  $ 15, 000. 00

5 42" Pipe Culvert 300 LF   $ 120. 00  $ 36, 000. 00

6 Rip Raps 1 LS   $      5, 000. 00  $  5,000.00

7 Geogrids 1 LS   $      5, 000. 00  $  5, 000. 00

8 Earthwork 4, 000 CY   $   5. 00  $ 20, 000. 00

9 Fine Grading 45, 100 SF   $   0. 45  $ 20, 295. 00

10 Guardrail 300 LF   $ 60. 00  $ 18, 000. 00

11 Chain Link Fence 150 LF   $ 40. 00  $  6, 000. 00

Subtotal Callerton Ave( Main Drainage Channel Filled)  140, 795. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest 57, 000) E 141, 000. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, landscaping, dry utilities, irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

3) Underground utilities, joint trench, topside improvements are excluded from this estimate as these are already accounted for in the
original Callerton Avenue estimate

4) Mobilization cost assumed to be approx. 10% of construction cost.

5) Estimate per Engeo.

5 T_ . r+, . t ttzhL G ;, D   i E.,_-_  Lc.•+  ill :; a d75' 8      " _ _  '• C      C G I .;_

T: 25504- River Islands\ Phase 62- Phase 2 A Street IP\Word 8 ExcellCost Estimate\ CALLERTON AVE MAIN DRAIN FILL COST ESTIMATEW STREET442



ENG1N££ ft1NG

DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST August 29, 2023

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2 Job No.: 25504

CALLERTON AVE TEMPORARY BYPASS COST ESTIMATE

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

CALLERTON AVE TEMPORARY BYPASS

1 Fine Grading 33, 100 SF   $   0.45  $  14, 895. 00

2 3" AC Paving 25, 200 SF   $   1. 50  $  37, 800. 00

3 6" Aggregate Base 29, 500 SF   $   0. 90  $  26,550.00

4 Traffic Striping& Signage 1 lS    $       5,000. 00  $   5, 000. 00

5 Bridge Structure( eudget)'      1 LS    $    250, 000. 00  $ 250,000.00

6 Bridge Footing/ End Supports( eudget)' 1    S    $     40, 000. 00  $ 40, 000. 00

Subtotal Callerton Ave Temporary Bypass 374, 245. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest E1, 000) S 375, 000. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, landscaping, dry utilities, irrigation, or street trees.

2) Callerton Ave Temporary Bypass shall have 24' of pavement section and shall have 3' shoulder on both side.

3) Assume pavement section to be 3" AC over 6" AB, and shoulder section to be 6" AB.

4) Estimate provided by River Islands.

c tG`_ , A. ti... .  _  i E .,      _ . T..'-! P J.:,      „__ _. _.._    . .,_   i _.._,

7: 125504- River Islands\Phase 62- Phase 2 A Street IP\ Word 8 Excel\ Cost Estimate\ Temp Bypass RoadlPhase 2 CalleAon Ave Temp Bypass Cost Estimate\ PH2 Callerton Ave443



NG7NEEft1NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE August, 28, 2023

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25504- 86

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2

TRACT 4155- STORNOWAY PUBLIC ACCESS ROAD

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

kem Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

Temporary Street Lighting( 0% Completion) 1 LS   $    20, 000. 00       $   20, 000. 00

2 Street Signage( 0% Complerion)    1 LS   $     2, 000. 00 2, 000. 00

3 Striping and Monuments( 0% Completion)   1 LS   $    10, 000. 00 10, 000. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE S 32, 000. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate hom LiD and Centerline Striping Co. Contract with RD 2062

t, _  v , cF C_ t .,,:_ F    __  _ ,_ v   cX.'.  . T. 1 .,-,, . .,.    r ;: c.  _ 3dC'      __.,   I ..:.

T: 25504- River Islands\ Phase 86- Phase 2 Del Webb South IP1Word& Excel\ Cost to Complete12022- 1142 2022• 11• 22 Tred 4155 Cost To Complatey. zlsllmprovements

444



ENGINE£ R1NG

DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST August 24, 2023

DEL WEBB INTERIM FIRE ACCESS Job No.: 25504- 44

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Unit

Item Description Gluantity Unit Price Amount

SITE PREPARATION

1 Mobilization 1 LS    $      35, 000. 00  $ 35, 000. 00

2 Clearing, Grubbing, Stripping and Site Preparation 5. 8 AC    $       1, 500. 00  $   8, 700. 00

3 Erosion Controi 5. 8 AC    $       1, 000. 00  $   5, 800. 00

Subtotal Site Preparation 49, 500. 00

ROADWAY

4 Fine Grading( roadway subgrade)   252,200 SF    $    0.45  $ 113, 490.00

5 3" AC 161, 200 SF    $    1. 50  $ 241, 800. 00

6 6" AB 89, 960 SF    $    0. 90  $ 80, 964. 00

7 Conform to existing roadway 2 EA    $       1, 500. 00  $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Roadway 439, 254. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest 51, 000)  $ 489, 000. 00

Notes:

1 Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.
2 This estimate does not include surveying, landscaping, irrigation, electrical, joint trench or street trees.
3 Mobilization cost assumed to be 8% of construction cost.

4 Assumed pavement section for the interim flre access road to be 3" AC/ 6" AB. 
5 Assumed levee top road to be 12' wide pavement w/ 4' wide AB on each side. Assumed roadway connecting from

levee top road to fire station# 35 and to Del Webb area to be 16' wide pavement w/ 2' wide AB on each side.
6 Guarantee of the improvements are to be at 110% of construction cost for a performance bond and a labor and

materials bond shall be 50% of the perFormance bond amount.

ST, vE ICi_ Ei.: . R. 7 _ _` I`_ . Sv' r t AwRP.'.; 7d :..   -      _';  ._ ._...      ,. OL.   1 .-,--

T: 125504 River Islands\ Phase 44- Paradise Road Connection\ Word and Excel\ Del Webb Fire Access Cost Estimate. xlsx

445



r,} rt's.,`} r` s' s' r y""
r       ,- .       i   !,    ,      

C'' r ri}7 rf
p;;               d...     Z i l._1    , I''{ f   v r     .       ' r

r r          t'    sf F        #     

Y     `"} C'  °  
t '"  r f

ta    +     r----    ....  s u,
pf .               {   ' g

r .' c{ ;.  

q   ,'
tn.   

i"  

f`

r r.. w 8`
t:

Yr" '     ,       5 t    ftF ''       V
d:,.      

G E,. kF
1

r    ..

A
t. . LSt jyT l.e   f'^,  

e{,[

5 vj t 

e

Z
K       R
3

tA O
x  ,.;

g   .< tMd j'+1R",,.
n 

4      
tA \ s p `    U' 

g

rt

z,,

7,   - '   '

t''{`"
Y'`        _   

y 
W g f

y,.*,  
iy          1-t,.`

t<
s * 4n'', I p` c'       

p

r'^  

w       .a

xszfyk''+ i i„ 
h ^ lti- '# Ỳ       e'" 4r { r M,

r"          o-' 4,    `.

a. r ,#.?
y

rGcs, r,,^      `'     ,,

1,,, rr       r".} 

rk
f-

v,   , a-,\ 1    '
t . ;.  ;     

T

e+
U'+ ; '   .»

a+ 
f.".

r:. r c.     

w"  r    ?' r/;

1      _'   
g*       O    

ttc f            

1 J,:
e< z       // 1    G      

v      V/J

r'       

x,., r  a i  -.   ` 1. .  

3
r*`{    

9 zf vJ (/ 
y

T    ',  4i t .  `",      .      
I_ 

Z c4 Rf t'     •, N V
s'    '        a w U J z

Z    ;       
i            . a

i '    ` x ti   o Q   
i

w  , '  r 
Y,`' *'` a  '     v 2 W oC 

3 a      ,     ?'
f.' u~i d ,       

3   W   <
c w z   +    ,   4.  

Q

t

z    t.    s

1 r'   

w C
U

Z

9

r `     

N r: fi

t aau    , 

4

t'   

t    ..

t

r

S wp
6         {.   

f    ,  . 

x i,
h  '      . 

P.1
y

r'   .   

i   "        

ry .   

fr'  

e4R+
v  . YA`  i t.

X.  
A ..

t:`:..     

fi'_"r.

r" r I 

t, e° r        ! S -      p    /

f rt     
s I .

a'   f z.,*           -! `   
sq        

o   a' '      '.;; v''       4 - e,'#  ,,f     ..  
g_. r. 

I\        i      

f     

p   '  %
f

ry

sP.°
z       ..  i' 

i. i x ': i      s iz o.           
r t..     A

V Y'";  

I
v i

5';    j',       i
ka` 

1        ';    -     :

ly,      , r s v r:

e i '.    
k     :  

1 .`"
r.,  .-  -,.;      

tw`-`   Zo  $

J     `     r

f       

d 4"   

R s

S
g j1

I B•  
aj a   

Q       <
LL     <

e '  i o
i   G u       w

W         
C7         
W a u  u  aJ

5

r       

l;

k

a,:  
9 ,{`  

i  :   

F., T5    ,       .    
a, .  

J. ,_ _       .

446



SCHEDULE OF VALUES

PROJECT:    RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 LIFT STATION B1

OWNER:      ISLANDS RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2062

ENGINEER:  KPFF

CONTRACTOI CONCO WEST, INC.

CWI JOB#:   22270

COST REMAINING

CONTRACT AMOUNT COST COMPLETED COST TO

ITEM DESCRIPTION
COMPLETE)

I.       CIVIL WORKS a 412, 446 a 163, 241   $    249, 205

II.       MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT
412, 446

a 360, 346   $      52, 100

III.       ELECTRICAL 1, 073, 880   $    
350, 000   $     723, 880

IV.      STRUCTURAL AND ARCHITECTURAL BUILDING a 929, 900   $      
69, 200   $     860, 700

TOTAL FACILITY COST    2, 003, 780   $    942, 787 a 1, 885, 885

Note: Cost to complete projected as September 11, 2023

447



ENGiNEEfi1NG

DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST April 28, 2023

PHASE 2 DEL WEBB INTERIM POTABLE WATER Job No.: 25505- 73

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Descriptlon Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)( PVC)       60 LF     $ 80. 00  $     4, 800. 00

2 8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)( HDPE)    180 LF     $ 60. 00  $    10, 800. 00

3 8" Water Line in 30" Steel Casing 60 LF     $       350. 00  $    21, 000. 00

4 8" Resilient Gate Valve 4 EA    $     2, 600. 00  $    10, 400. 00

5 Air Release Valve 1 EA    $     4, 000. 00  $     4, 000. 00

6 Connect to Existing 2 EA    $     7, 000. 00  $    14, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply $    65, 000. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest 51, 000)  E 65, 000. 00

Notes:

1) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

T_ ;
c,R1 , ;' tE. i ,   . _.., I. F.,__  _ 9:=,i,   ,;:` S ..  _   ,_    .  ....____  ; P:    , G_ i .:',^,

T:125505- River Islands Phase 73- Phase 2 Del Webb Interim Potable W ater IP\Word 8 Excel\ Cosl Estimete\ Phase 2 Del Webb Interim Potable Water Estimate. xisx448



00

0
rn
r

m
0 C

o  -      Tl

I             
z   _

00      cn

z m m D
o

y

I       z z      
o
Z     0    '

TD      y
zmcn

n     m

N

e z

m

3

y n   m pF
p

m
B

m y
m

tiD

m

1

g N 4 m     r`     

g x m a e   

o a F o
0

o am= J
o m 9 m ao    $ a    

m     

i
A'"     

r           

n g o o      '    ' mR 4        
O v m     )

R    ( Zi>     1 a R            e

R m
C   y C

C<   Z<   Z<   9       n

o0 00 00        F  m

z       ,    

z   
S   :     S  s

ZD rD p
Z

m

m 

m   
A      

Z i

3 1          A R 3m.1

I     

l   

t   .

9           Z            
T.     JC J       _ =

N
o a       

w       

yy  ^°       
F

c F ezv--  _ I j.

s  

o
g      PHASE 2 DEL WEBB INTERIM POTABLE WATER

N N Z ,  
PRELIMINARY 9=

ve'

Eq`
o

p

a
s

RIVER ISLANDS z '    

m

IMPROVEMENT PLANS m

5 0'  b 3x
M   

7 v,     
CITV OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTV CALIFORNIA m Z

o  

449



v  .,
m ' 

m .

m
a;       =      = g nR s=,„   Rg4 Qa g mo R  . 4 = a  ; s; . w: aa> fas , '". a"      _                    m

g ma  = ep g epg o   R a i"`=" a " s g s ^ =£ g Ag ' "€ a'  € f g'=                            y
AF  ` o y€ ag    

m g gg    rz4, o g= ' 
s ' -

o   £
o a`€   _^'

s 9 go w     
Z

g g a r$
F$; >  N Q o > g s  p "€ as$   a$ 3 s a  a=€ 95  o

4 
m  =

o o sm g pp e ae e e a"^

a;   ` `  $ o=  
s  

a g qgs  e a„     a

s $ A    os, $' o   p^ = a:,; €  o Fm aE   9    ,
eq  ¢  . a  

R€=

g$ a m; am
es 4 '  i a c  s    f 

N R goo o m5 73 R   ?  Qy,>"=>  F am ' e 9k£ a^g^>ea =  > o

Qo  mm.    g 
s=  @  = aa€   s F  = o  3  4s  q=

n s=  F 
gA Q   

g Spm' 3 U ^ S^ A
Q,    

Q- £  , 
t o m  4-, e$  og£    „ g t

o'` 
n$€ 

qg   p' s " s

m-  g a  oA .,  ? m
m

E a        
Rm a  ..     _ s  = aF s.

a $: p

x          - 
z g    G; m>  €    g ^   o    g> qE   ^ g w w  n Q   : a    

m     

m m w  w

gw g `  a  
o o g

v  .' =

R g   e 9°`  - ' €€  € $ Ea    $ a a  " e  
mEg $ & h 

cs e€ ;
ga o    p qFmo¢     

m

rz y Q  g    
g 

fin   a§  E  f$  
E oa   ow$€  

m"$          ;  

s
t gs  AT sQ m    

m _ -    _ 
a         g o.=  ;  ; P      _ m-,= 

a = 9  = 
a     g

s =     o_ k  £   
m

m g  mA.,
s a      R s >;     ^ .  a  g           :  

m

g, n £    4R  oR3g  `  40 $' Y    '" g'^ 2     R-,   q$ 4 4     $' R a^ o g 8m             
x    ' s  >  R sgg    m       m  '

s FF           o" m    $"-'
s  ;  3   q£^ 

N
s a

a     .
F  s    $°   Q     sSg, Fam  a F=   ,

qas    g epF>  A'
a. 

sz  ^   a t
aA Qmg p.,    

a a  r     = Hs z f  £   £ a  .      s=„ m    A'    , g      Y

s    € g  ia    
Q  =  

s    o, n     ^    . g2 m  g
s o  . s g$ a =  q _  a9R-9 :    

q  .,  R   e'   ^   ^: q     FA,
o' 

b  .     a     
R  ^

p  Cm q p g„^§^ o q  '^_    
s '%        

s a
g

n  '

gom   € . go g_
R    .      a 9  $ Fo=  oop= g m  '-     

4„     mseg  '_ g. F
4 .    € agF» g S       4     $

9     p_ o c;` ao

s9
i  ^ s  

9p y e    
a       

m  g    .    6€  $  ga oo  ge g^   ex $ a

8  " s  '  
a  m o"     $   €   .    € 4'  §       '  4a    F gm  R^ mo€ '   £' a

G

3

g$       ^ 9  '€ t`       9a

w Q a= w a F Q^ a : szw  Nw ao a  

m

o    E m   > < ez _ z = aA ' 
4mF    a F9€ wE " 

z o.,; g, 
s

g ^_ o' s sA   •'   m = a    A         g4 Es _ Hs z- A  € R= gia_  p„ $' R , s  ->= w w a,A   - 

m 7, n    ,    s '    A; m      t , o   o w
9   i  =  ^    m' or    o` e   $ e  p 

g 

gF;  o;„ o  z € m  
g    F $;    m4 @ gy  :

a  =€
U      `  _- 

o => _   = 9 ' gQ oL2_  = m g     r ; 
9€ Qm , €  o. s   ` 

Ao
g   - ` sg a `_ _ a z 7 R ma e g' s ' o gg 

a= 
Qm€,

sN g Q R ZR ¢    
r

g   a  Q : Q s   r = s g  Q  $  <€ e= = w R ' '  g9 $$ z
g  .=  o ` g_  m_ g'  q R    Fa „   

ofi 

9e
9 e    $   Q 

o g A s    $; 
s $ o =

a , -- a ^   ,    o
s  ^   " g s g=  "     

F  g  €      a e  
m ,   t. o_•     R

f m    _    s o     o        €  g R r.,
s a      a    -  at     _ o   ,,.     o a      

o mee       :  ,  _ ° o     ;
o '€ 4_     o"  e rng a ^ sm` g> '           x m        

o wA g; a      g         Q
A 4A Q7   wo  Fs Bq 4

s wo^ e, = 4 €    '   Rc9 9£   
a •

m $
w "

s   
a.  

r   fr . A E q4   9     ; '     g^ F P    m

k p  = wapmmo  " g 
m     ga    r':        a=_ m  a F->   

o - F      ,     
m g g r q      3

a  oa$` m o ' 

o? g > w    osz€ e  P  o  &  sa     = o  e A 
x.         pa       = $    E€_ o

z g3sQ   eN 8 n Q; g€ 
s '   = g 

y    '

s £       o RF  Q  
9  „     g  €  ¢  

4$  Rm m= R
Qg

s
g'  R Q^ gagR . o   4 A y  g 4^,   IS a' 3 Q     ' 3 i

g  "
R     q 

p  [ R$
T  

R i $m.  n Q  e v

g  '" s R a °^`= R   - m  _  "   

no 
E s g   = Q m rg,°  ' sa o   

g g    9    s    9 g  > e R  _  
A    

wA    =.,  : a      
x      

m     -       °:  

e  q  m    Aa  
e =€

m  ,.   $     c      qe
R R a A  ^  Y    F p n

m  
0 2mg   ys        -   g  ,_

o ;        -       om,„  A a. a  > n  €  ;  ;$ 9%    g     u c
o  a€  :€=' R g o s    " s a     , oA  .-
g  m

R:  gg
m

o       _' o s o  £ g R 8  m R R A  CA       '      :  `       R       :  gE A mn
g,. q o       =

R s   _     '  $ '     „       n ;        
o  $     Rcg  ^               :: s

5  Me  $   >"-        " s m  o g g  ,       ;€  , m  4  Ag o a  o a=      ,.  
u€  8^  m

z" oo apo a H - a  _ -  =  Pg    uo . R  _   _      p  w  R     _ ao
s

m     

o 

e _     o o    Aog
3o w        :   `    o    ",  9      ` o FE     =  o  _  ^

am
Y o=' Eo 5. T       S

o m    aeF, o g   ,   -        t '  '  3   
r'-  `,  $

a    _  g" F         
A   :  q       

f          a_ 4 n  _ 60  "   t     R =   s w

esg  = Fn: o a_ s   a   9       m o F n    '" t v

o  $

g         
n      b^ 6' m Fo    8  ' a'  g tas

o m6 m  w> m9   

gmR  
s 

g            o     €         a     Fo  $  g  °  
8  €     _  q^

g  :   '
so

a  .

o-m

fl  

v>       

m         g  m    
m   g    

t            F  " A     ,        g F -       2  
m

a    _

n .   .  . .     v   .     - tn S      k G Y    ..       5    .

a  , a y  zz  $ es ; aif D es '$   o s Ag 9 $ g"
qo 

qF F EQqg g  N
o sa    s p @

w>   g  »  e -  R  "$^ `   g 
o     

s    "    ap, a o  oe     o Q    .  e-  4z €

g o 
s

o O $ g r o a 4 oF ; p m €>  gs 
a oaF£  o gg g

p sR  : w 4    8g g  t 8   ` g asw ' v
e ;^ m a    n    " m ` A 2 -  m  &'-. $  

s=$ Q
F aa A  , E      8   8"-$ s g^  :  A a

m            

o  a€    € a`   

Am   
p >    :_   - -         = x€^

v,_   s=  -   ism s m
Q    a `

n       

98   ta£ a ' Qqg  s  Q        Fs    ms mz€    o -
a F ,    s a g m        g>

So          a     ., o        Rg b m >   
m      > 4  > x  o

q     F^ a      ^  s aE  _     QJ v      mg  p   , 
s         R    .,-    e9"  

eg= e     = m „ e     gs    efrg > s, ' ao  > o pa" " g 8 g   p a .§   g ,  „= g,    
x€  g  n" Aa

m    ? 4A     Fo   g  

ge Eq fq$ a Q o$ Am  g c?$     gg m  -  e; '°  a k x q:     €
4   

gs
bf   $     >> s's 

m""  >  

pr      .€ q : ,   tsfi Q a=         e  a  
8_  a_       9  s gF         _, s     : po^"  " s  ss a _    ' 9    w q",            

e 

p    R'    ^ g    $^    _„ , a a q; gs"; m    ay Fo s„-  a m= ` z, 
a ' s==:

4    
a  o     EA

R Rep
m

f'      
A4

m a   '     Ao     Rm' 4        
A ..  

P        

o"     ' 4m   -  a e    
R ' n  

e  Ug _ g F ag .,     Rgsw_

wm s  ,
m^       _$      $

g=
2     o a   ^ i

As sg a     mg   m  oa     z
s               g z

E    m9    e;`,  €  ; F=      
m  sm .

zF     ,     o R s, € a     „   $=   ' q $ z xa y,  a 3", ,   so n ,

po    ^  m

m

g =

a
e

o'^'  m   f

n    
oa 4 p 9y m o      80

y  
g    R e 

a         > 
F as

g>^  e.,°^     4  
g.. n    

N = A Rs zF o   s  
vo

m       

gs s_  _
Ea         Q     ` Z sigR    €-:      Sx <„ og^ rt"  3     qq, g  `

s_   gRg g   
a§_

g     p"       
J   

o 

o  " n'     9      

6m  ^  
to      

R  s  BQ 9k , 4a S^  ^   Fo'> g    ^    CQ mR
b m      o ag    "

g  ,' a,

r,  

Rg 
S''      

8C    FCE  "= g  SA .
c'   E: _ 4 0     t    .  

o   ..   '
o: R     445 S F^  ga

p R  .

o      a;     g
ee F " fr4     '  s o o s €_ N o  £  : eA      ^

K$ ,
Q   ,>       ^      s"    

b 4     o$ A
o        

a:'   q g  _; e s      qo 8 9_

s   :  ¢ m        -
v.,    gA -  

o A c a     
p R     y m   

a= gs  ;     m e        ,  
s  `     ' z s     = e  ^     a^  e, €    3ao R;      g

E   
m-    $    ; s      ,  o:  

F  m   _        :   "  o z     '"^    g   g aR  _  : e  €    a€       s    .'
s      

m8  : m  
o  o  ° Fem n    =  

s       = 4  m  a   

q yg  p  m'       "£ R A
w`

9m  .    ," g    -  _  $ s  

F
a:    >

s
A

m  

o  "     e      ga    €   sf   '    
t>  

a    ; ts      

p

R   = e   

o o       e

b m        

o_    

vR xa   €        
T   

r",      

m       -'         

A oi  .

4

w_ xF         am>   c e>  ~ .    

u  

Rm£ m p; n  p>  

e='    e r.€      R  g„$= at

c eF      c a      .  ,

g9  m : $'^- A=     m m  -  __   ' `  ; m  n  
m

k €  _ 3. s a
a  ` aa g      ; 4as 4  

oAk mR o '' F osa=  _   Rx$=
Q pv Y  $ : o g o E n oF Q >„ 9

R R   

6  o,. o> p
o oyp g  € Q: E g E O  u   ^ MG$    Fm$ am   al  g g='`

ag Q  m _€  -" eF p z ap 5    
c m      g    n   _  ,       > r  , qpm

F       3  m     a9#> "  p1  ^€ o"    a'      
b

A      4 €  v U F       " g
a  

9 $
z mc_ og-

p F p
F

em€    _    $ zA

4^ .' fa  '" - Q og   a  
a;=     

w s e a ao  q    q     

k   s    o g   e gp g ap gg n o m o      _ e o "`" o m  g   m`  w  

g  €  "             g` s m£  k  : >
NOQs og tig'   a; qD   ; R; 

s s E # 
g' _  € fgas

s  ^ o`      - 
o  x$  :     Q e  ' oo z s         e"   s     o c

9 t

oc

g  €  =  orR
y   ^    

F
o g

N    :,   _   `
y a   

e    
4A $         

9 n
b  $ m 

E g     Ri  £'-    aR F-, Nx      
Rn 

q  w

R    

IRaB
s , 

f

Q E..  R oR   g• s    R3 g  o mo            e     mI 4 Y' p $
4 g   y sn

g  g   _"'  ; Fo nw 4  "  €->  0500 0^     
g u >  =  ' Q€ 

s   

gJ m   a, op€
t

m
q R +     p,., R^    tn,  R  $ a9    ,., So 4' QiS      nRp'^ $    34

F

g   ._ ;          "€  m A' z    

m oFs; o     9ms'   saoa    : e R      o >  oa
m  e 

v           .

g
s    _.  _

a ry g           @
R    ;

Ng 
m 4 

og "  F s

R a  $     m  €   Aa` o$

s  =   
F`  m o R     

A" 

s g:
g.       €  

p
a gg : E   Rs

ou     Q    _" '  mo" og$ o     x  -; R _,      ~ e     > s;_ s     = F   Q R p  o Q

i oF   "'.  ,  A 9R t"YR^ 3 m    z  ?
s' 8p 99ft A     

4 0 § sm   R 9 4 sF$
N om o  -  ,.,     Pi R F       i"

9   .
Y^

A
R"'     F B 3

o A      :     o p  ="  ' 04^  '^  R,  F, ' n p g> p o6      _ pg $"  :, : sE'.
e m " s

a  
o    a 9As w  = o=^ g    - Am  £ t£  g       "       x -  _  g      m

s  ` "    a o     ^ s a,     zo   : A        8G> w p   p  _     

m

a s            ,      g a om     8 s  
o p             g_ w  „ a    

p oQ
m 9

y

D,           

g  R  c o i    p  = g  
k

gFzs
f9,   „ kF     m

a 3   

A
o o '  s^' F   

3 og   " o      „
4  ,       3 p 

gF      o

m p g g R      PHASE2 DELWEBBINTERIMPOTABLEWAiER o(     
Cs v, Z   a

o
p

PRELIMINARY q  

W  N
a   =° RIVER ISLANDS m '  

g\      

R o IMPROVEMENT PLANS a     f`     
n a».' 

a c J
v

D 
9

n

CITVOFLATHROP SANJOAQUINCOUNTV CALIfORNIA

s W     

450



y...... 
s .       

F   t

R
W      

S
iaoo. m

M6e
g€..   .  

8   .      133tl1S200...
A j

J  N N       
aw.. s caow E   .       

Ywes mi
m

M 9. 5'. E D' M
y

o

6W109       -_      -/        
Jlt     .       . '  

i--    I
Q        ..

n______    z
m

8  

n. w. zruea

1=B" Wro9
r

i. es. e z. swi      -_      
m

wve x. s   .      _  g nn. n.ao mv

e wzzs

m   --_     _ f8  -
s

v

r     '      
77 8

11N2 8

V1
5'[ L Ow LY Yw CO ER 8_._—=- T———

25. 5              .      II 2 Y
IIt].. 193]. 5' F1BM 1    

W 0 W61

I    
1$ 0]

61
Fy

e i

2+ 91OB rtEuO\ i[% 0ov I

cax 1 0 E S W

g   cxe r eix. .    .    
n

9  .
9
Z

G .

E

3N
aR
4

0
S 2

k a

R

m
m       

PHASE 2 DEL WEBB INTERIM POTABLE WATER        

N Z '  
a a

Y"_         
m PRELIMINARY 9 m s

wo ,  
s¢`'=°& RIVER ISLANDS m '  o     ,$ 

IMPROVEMENTPLANS ee mm

an3 x'  n
S

f
9

CITVOFLATHROP SANJOAOUINCOUNTY CA IFORNIA       m 2

8  

451



ATTACHMENT
N N

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

September 11, 2023

Via Email and Hand Delivery

Old Republic Title Company
1215 W. Center Street, Suite 103

Manteca, CA 95337

Attn:  Lori Richardson

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 4155; Escrow No. 1214022812

Dear Lori:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Development Area 1, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (" RIDA1") and the

City of Lathrop (" Cit') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escror').  The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the
Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RIDA1 as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The closing
date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 29, 2023, at the time designated
in writing by RIDA1, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below ( each a
C/ osing"). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2024, ORTC will return

the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the
following documents from City and RIDA1 for recordation in the Official Records of San
Joaquin County, California (" Official Records").

B. 1.  One original Final Map for Tract 4155, executed and acknowledged
by the City ( provided to title by City).

B. 2.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( River

Islands Public Services and Facilities) Annexation No. 4 ( provided to title by City).
6. 3.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of

Special Tax Lien for Island Reclamation District 2062 Community Facilities District
No.  2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance Services) ( provided to title by RIDA1).

B. 4.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of

Special Tax Lien for River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District
No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services) ( provided to title by RIDA1).

B. 5.  A fully executed Irrevocable Offer of Dedication of Easement for
Public Roadway Purposes and Public Utility Easement Tract 4055 for Brightwood Avenue,
Coral Tree Lane and Kenwood Drive ( provided to title by City).

1

452



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

The documents listed in Items B. 1, B. 2, 6.3, B. 4 and B. 5 above are referred to as the

Recordation Documenfs."  The Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order

referred to above.  The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the

Official Records is the Recordation Date.

Prior to recording the Recordation Documents, please confirm that you have received
copies or originals of the following documents: ( i) Unanimous Approval of Annexation to a

Community Facilities District and Related Matters, City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities); ( ii) Consent to, and Ballot

in favor of,  Annexation of Real Property to Island Reclamation District No. 2062
Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance) and ( iii) Consent
to, and Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to the River Islands Public Financing
Authority Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services).  The

original City of Lathrop Unanimous Approval must be delivered to the City of Lathrop. The
original Consents and Ballots for River Islands Public Financing Authority CFD Nos.
2013- 1 and Island Reclamation District No. 2013- 1 must be delivered to Jeanne Zolezzi

at Herum\ Crabtree\ Suntag, 5757 Pacific Ave., Suite 222, Stockton, CA 95207.  Copies

should be sent via email to Cari James( ciames( a ci. lathrop. ca. us), Cindy Yan at Goodwin
Consulting Group,       cindv[ a aoodwinconsultinqqroup. net,      Susan Dell' Osso

sdellosso( a riverislands. com) and Debbie Belmar ( dbelmar(c riverislands. com) together

with conformed copies of the amendments to notices of special tax that are recorded as

part of the Recordation Documents.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received,  or will receive from RIDA1,  prior to the recordation of the
Recordation Documents,  in immediately available funds,  the following amounts,  in

accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RIDA1 and City(" Settlement StatemenY'): recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RIDA1.

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map,  in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are as follows: The amount of$ 164,336.96, payable to the City
pursuant to that certain Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop
as amended " Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of$ 3, 687. 00 multiplied

by 44. 572 acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to the
City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City' s wire instructions are set forth below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time(s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1.  You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: ( a) Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso( a) riverslands. com); ( b) Debbie Belmar

dbelmar(a riverislands.com);  ( c) Brad Taylor  ( btaylor(a ci. lathrop. ca. us);  ( d) Salvador

Navarrete ( snavarrete( c ci. lathrop. ca. us; ( e) Sandra Lewis ( slewis(a ci. lathrop. ca. us), and

2

453



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from Susan Dell' Osso and Brad Taylor that the
Settlement Statement is accurate and acceptable;

D. 2.  You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions;

D. 3.  The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have been
fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all legal
descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D. 4 You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents,  as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete the
Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions;

D. 5.  You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Brad Taylor at the email addresses set forth above; and

D. 6.  You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Brad Taylor to record the Recordation
Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded;

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records;

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction;

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RIDA1 that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following entity
and address:

River Islands Development Area 1, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso       ( sdellosso( c riverslands. com),

Debbie Belmar  ( dbelmar( a) riverislands. com),   Brad Taylor  ( btavlor(a ci. lathrop. ca. us),

Sandra Lewis  ( slewis(a ci. lathrop. ca. us),  Teresa Vargas  ( tvarqas( a ci. lathrop. ca. us),

Sarah Pimentel ( spimentel( a ci. lathrop. ca. us), and Jose Molina ( JMolina(a siaov. orq) of

the completion of the Transaction;

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to: ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development Area 1, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA
95330; and ( 2) Mr. Brad Taylor, City Engineer, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne
Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330:

3

454



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

A)   a certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)   a certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

i b/       
Stephen J. Salvatore Date Susan ell' Osso te

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development Area 1, LLC

4

455



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS
RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RIDA1 and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed in
strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.   The undersigned represents and

warrants to RIDA1 and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

5

456



Z

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

AF'I'ER RECORDATION RETURN TO:

Ciry Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Recorded for the benefit of the City of Lathrop
pursuant to Government Code Section 27383

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1

River Islands Public Services and Facilities # 2)

AnnexaHon No. 4

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 3117. 5 of the Streets and Highways Code of

California and the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Section 53311, et.
seq., of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the undersigned City Clerk of the City of
Lathrop (the " City"), County of San Joaquin, State of California, hereby gives notice that a lien to
secure payment of a special tax is hereby imposed by the City Council of the City on the property
described in Exhibit A hereto.  The special tax secured by this lien is authorized to be levied for
the purpose of paying principal and interest on bonds, the proceeds of which are being used to
finance the acquisition and construction of all or a portion of the public facilities authorized to be
funded by the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands Public
Services and Facilities # 2) ( the " CFD"), and to pay costs of the public services and facilities
authorized to be funded by the CFD, both as described in Exhibit A to the Notice of Special Tax
Lien heretofore recorded in the Office of the County Recorder for the County of San Joaquin, State
of California ( the " County Recorder") on June 28, 2023 as Document No. 2023- 050810 ( the
Original Notice'), and said special tax is to be levied according to the Rate and Method of

Apportionment of Special Tax set forth in Exhibit B to the Notice of Special Tax Lien, to which

recorded Notice of Special Tax Lien reference is hereby made and the provisions of which are
hereby incorporated herein in full by this reference.

This Fourth Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien amends the Notice of Special Tax

Lien to add to the territory within the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1
River Islands Public Services and Facilities# 2) certain real property identified in Exhibit A hereto
the " Property") and shown within the future annexation area on the boundary map of the

community facilities district recorded on April 19, 2023, in Book 7 of Maps of Assessment and
Community Facilities Districts at Page 55 ( Document No. 2023- 030264), in the Office of the

County Recorder, which map is the final boundary map of the community facilities district. The
Property is being annexed into Tax Zone 1 of the community facilities district, as described in the

457



Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax attached as Exhibit B to the Notice of Special

Tax Lien, with the maximum special tax rates identified in Exhibit B hereto.

The assessor' s tax parcel( s) numbers of all parcels or any portion thereof which are
included in this Fourth Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien, together with the name( s) of

the owner( s) thereof, as they appear on the latest secured assessment roll as of the date of
recording hereof or as are otherwise known to the Authority are as set forth in Exhibit A hereto
which is by this reference made a part hereof.

For further information concerning the current and estimated future tax liability of owners
or purchasers of real property or interests therein subject to the special tax lien, interested persons
should contact the Finance Director, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, California
95330; Telephone: ( 209) 941- 7327.

Dated:     2023.

By:
City Clerk,

City of Lathrop

2-

458



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES # 2)

ANNEXATION NO. 4

ASSESSOR' S PARCEL NUMBER( S) AND OWNER( S) OF LAND

WITHIN ANNEXATION NO. 4 TO CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES # 2)

San Joaquin County
Name( s) of Property Owner( s) Assessor' s Parcel No.

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AREA 1, LLC 213- 610- 17, 213- 610- 18, 213- 610- 19, 213-

73 W. STEWART RD.,  610- 20

LATHROP, CA 95330

A- 1

459



EXHIBIT B

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1

RNER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES # 2)

ANNEXATION NO. 4

MAXIMUM SERVICES SPECIAL TAX FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Services Special Tax for Developed Property
within Tax Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event:

Maximum Services Maximum

Special Tax in Tax Services Special

Zone 1 Prior to the Tax in Tax Zone 1

Trigger Event After the Trigger

Fiscal Year 2022-     Event( Fiscal Year

T e of Pro ert Lot Size 23)*    2022- 23)*

Residential Property:

Single Family Detached

Property
205. 02 per SFD

Single Family Detached
Lot

Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt   $ 432. 29 per SFD Lot     165. 53 per SFD
Lot

Single Family Detached 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt      $ 349. 02 per SFD Lot     
151. 87 per SFD

Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt      $ 320. 21 per SFD Lot
Lot

Single Family Detached 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt      $ 272. 18 per SFD Lot     

129. 09 per SFD
Property Less Than 4, 000 SqFt     $ 252. 96 per SFD Lot

Lot
Single Family Detached Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit

119.97 per SFD
Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit
Single Family Attached

Lot

Property
0. 00 per Unit

Multi- Famil Pro er
0. 00 per Unit

0. 00 per Non-  0. 00 per Non-
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Residential Square Residential Square

Foot Foot

On Ji ly 1, 2023, and on each July 1 thereafter, all figures shown in the table above shall be isicreased by
the Escalation Factor.

B- 1

460



MAXIMUM FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Developed Property
within Tax Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event:

Maximum Maximum

Facilities Special Facilities Special

Tax in Tax Zone 1 Tax in Tax Zone 1

Prior to the Trigger After the Trigger

Event( Fiscal Year Event( Fiscal Year

T e of Pro ert Lot Size 2022- 23)* 2022- 23)*

Residential Property:

Single Family Detached

Property
227. 27 per SFD

Single Family Detached
Lot

Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt     $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot       
183. 49 per SFD

Single Family Detached 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot
Lot

Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot       168. 34 per SFD

Single Family Detached 4, 000 to 4,800 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot
Lot

Property Less Than 4, 000 SqFt      $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot       
143. 09 per SFD

Single Family Detached Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit
Lot

Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit
132.99 per SFD

Single Family Attached
Lot

Property
0. 00 per Unit

Multi- Famil Pro er
0. 00 per Unit

0. 00 per Non-  0. 00 per Non-
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Residential Square Residential Square

Foot Foot

On July 1, 2023, and on each July 1 thereafter until the first Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, all figures
shown in the table above shall be increased by the Escalation Factor. On J cly 1 of the first Fiscal Year
after the Trigger Event, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes shall increase
by two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the priorFiscal Year.

B- 2

461



g5

RECORDING REQUESTED BY, AND R, fT
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

CITY OF LATHROP

ATTN: CITY CLERK

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CA 95330

Exempt from payment of recording fees( GC 27383)
SPACE ABOVE THIS L1NE FOR RECORDER' S USE

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF EASEMENT

FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

TRACT 4155— OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION— BRIGHTWOOD AVENUE,

CORAL TREE LANE & KENWOOD DRIVE)

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, River
Islands Development Area 1, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, hereby grants to the
CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the County of San Joaquin, State of California,
an easement for ingress, egress and road purposes, and a public utility easement ( PUE), over and

across the hereinafter described real property situated in the City of Lathrop and more
particularly described as follows:

SEE EXHIBITS " A" & " B" ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF

This Offer of Dedication is made pursuant to Section 7050 of the Government Code of the State
of California and may be accepted at any time by the City Engineer of the City of Lathrop. This
Offer of Dedication may be terminated, and right to accept such offer abandoned in the same
manner as is prescribed for the vacation of streets or highways by Part 3 of Division 9, or
Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California, whichever

is applicable.

The above- described easement is to be kept open, clear and free from buildings and structures of

any kind. This Offer of Dedication shall be irrevocable and shall be binding on the Grantor' s
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

SIGNATURES:

Signed this day of September, 2023

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AREA 1, LLC,

a Delaware limited liability company

By:
Name:   Susan Dell' Osso

Its:   President

Notary Acknowledgment Required for Each Signatory)

462



EXHIBIT " A" & " B"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION AND ADJACENT PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT BRIGHTWOOD AVENUE, CORAL TREE LANE & KENWOOD DRIVE

See Attached)

463



EXHIBIT " A- 1"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY PURPOSES

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION

KENWOOD DRIVE, CORAL TREE LANE, AND BRIGHTWOOD AVENUE
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEING A PORTION OF PARCEL 23, AS SAID PARCEL IS SHOWN ON THE MAP ENTITLED" TRACT
4149, RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP", FILED DECEMBER 5, 2022, IN BOOK 44
OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 52, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERN LOT LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, SAID POINT ALSO
BEING THE SOUTHERLY TERMINUS OF THE COURSE LABELED AS" L143", ALL AS SHOWN ON

SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID COURSE, NORTH 09° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60. 00
FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING THE WESTERN LOT LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, SOUTH 80° 39' 24" EAST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 740. 84 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 53° 21' 07" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 34. 74 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 78° 42' 25" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60. 14 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTHERLY ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF

1530. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 82° 38' 22" WEST,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01° 58' S8", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 52. 95 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 09° 20' 36" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 255. 85 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 570. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01° 47' 45", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 17. 86 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 39° 34' 41" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 36. 64 FEET;

THENCE, EASTERLY ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF

1930. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 03° 17' 46" WEST,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 03° 42' 00", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 124. 63 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 06° 59' 46 WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60. 00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE

NORTHERLY LINE OF PARCEL 16 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE, ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE

LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1870. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS

SOUTH 06° 59' 46" WEST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07° 08' 33", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF

233. 11 FEET;

Page 1 of 3 8/ 30/ 2023

464



THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 16 AND ITS WESTERLY

EXTENSION, SOUTH 89° 51' 13" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 245. 06 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 630. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06° 14' 31", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 68. 63 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 83° 54' 16" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 121. 08 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1470. 00 FEET,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07° 33' 23", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 193. 87 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 88° 32'21" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 14. 24 FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT ON THE
SOUTHERLY LINE OF PARCEL 23 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE
EASTERLY TERMINUS OF COURSE LABELED AS" L67", ALL AS SHOWN ON SHEET 17 OF SAID
MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE ALONG SAID COURSE LABELED AS" L67", SOUTH 88°32' 21" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF
85. 76 FEET;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, WESTERLY ALONG A
TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 330. 00 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL

ANGLE OF 05° 16' 25", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 30. 37 FEET TO THE WESTERN LINE OF SAID
PARCEL 23, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHERN TERMINUS OF COURSE LABELED AS
L142", ALL AS SHOWN ON SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE, ALONG THE WESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, NORTH 14° 51' 31" EAST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 61. 39 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING THE WESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, EASTERLY ALONG A NON-

TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 270.00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER
OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 01° 18' 57" EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02° 46' 36",

AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 13. 08 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 88° 32' 21" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 100. 00 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1530. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07°33' 23", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 201. 78 FEET.

THENCE, SOUTH 83° 54' 16" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 121. 08 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 570. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06° 14' 31", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 62. 10 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 89° 51' 13" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 245. 06 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1930. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 00° 12' 15", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 6. 88 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 48° 18' 30" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 33. 29 FEET;

THENCE, NORTHERLY ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF

630.00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 83°26' 27" EAST,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02° 47' 03", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 30. 61 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 09° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 200. 85 FEET;

Page 2 of 3 8/ 30/ 2023

465



THENCE, NORTH 35° 39' 24" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 35. 36 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 80° 39' 24" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 741. 00 FEET, TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 127, 983 SQUARE FEET( 2. 938 ACRES), MORE OR LESS.

A PLAT OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL IS ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT" B" AND BY THIS
REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

END DESCRIPTION

THIS DESCRIPTION HAS BEEN PREPARED BY ME, OR UNDER MY DIRECTION, IN CONFORMANCE
WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR' S ACT.

i`'\

PM
LMNo

s'

3
o

WILLIAM M. KOCH No. 8092    * DATE

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR P

CALIFORNIA NO. 8092

fFOF CAU

Page 3 of 3 8/ 30/ 2023

466



EXHIBIT " A- 2"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

DEDICATION OF PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS

ALONG KENWOOD DRIVE, CORAL TREE LANE, AND BRIGHTWOOD AVENUE
RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEING A PORTION OF PARCEL 23, AS SAID PARCEL IS SHOWN ON THE MAP ENTITLED" TRACT
4149, RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP", FILED DECEMBER 5, 2022, IN BOOK 44
OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 52, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

P. U. E.# 1

COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERN LOT LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, SAID POINT ALSO
BEING THE SOUTHERLY TERMINUS OF THE COURSE LABELED AS" L143", ALL AS SHOWN ON
SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID COURSE, NORTH 09° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00
FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING THE WESTERN LOT OF SAID PARCEL 23, SOUTH 80°39'24" EAST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 45. 68 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED PUBLiC

UTILITY EASEMENT;

THENCE, NORTH 09° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 10. 00 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 80° 39'24" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 704. 82 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 53° 21' 07" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 13. 90 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 80°39'24" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 695. 16 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 7, 000 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

P. U. E.# 2

COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERN LOT LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, SAID POINT ALSO

BEING THE SOUTHERLY TERMINUS OF THE COURSE LABELED AS" L143", ALL AS SHOWN ON

SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE, LEAVING THE WESTERN LOT OF SAID PARCEL 23, SOUTH 80° 39' 24" EAST FOR A

DISTANCE OF 275. 00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT;

THENCE, CONTINUING SOUTH 80° 39' 24" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 466. 00 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 35° 39' 24" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 14. 14 FEET;

Page 1 of 5 8/ 24/ 2023

467



THENCE, NORTH 80° 39' 24" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 486. 00 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 54° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 14. 14 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 4, 760 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

P. U. E.# 3

COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERN LOT LINE OF SAiD PARCEL 23, SAID POINT ALSO

BEING THE SOUTHERLY TERMINUS OF THE COURSE LABELED AS" L143", ALL AS SHOWN ON
SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE, LEAVING THE WESTERN LOT OF SAID PARCEL 23, SOUTH 80°39'24" EAST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 741. 00 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 35° 39' 24" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 35. 36 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 09° 20' 36" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 85. 00 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT;

THENCE, CONTINUING SOUTH 09° 20' 36" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 115. 85 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 630.00 FEET, THROUGH
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02° 47' 03" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 30. 61 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 48° 18' 30" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 14. 87 FEET;

THENCE, NORTHERLY ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF

640. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 84° 26' 04" EAST,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 03° 46' 40" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 42. 20 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 09° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 115.85 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 80° 39' 24" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 10. 00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 1, 523 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

P. U. E.# 4

COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERN LOT LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, SAID POINT ALSO

BEING THE SOUTHERLY TERMINUS OF THE COURSE LABELED AS" L143", ALL AS SHOWN ON

SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID COURSE, NORTH 09° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60. 00

FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING THE WESTERN LOT OF SAID PARCEL 23, SOUTH 80° 39' 24" EAST FOR A

DISTANCE OF 740. 84 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 53° 21' 07" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 34. 74 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 78° 42' 25" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60. 14 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING

OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT;

Page 2 of 5 8/ 24/ 2023

468



THENCE, SOUTH 82° 38' 22" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 10. 00 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTHERLY ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF
1540. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 82° 38' 22" WEST,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01° 58' 58" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 53. 30 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 09° 20' 36" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 255. 85 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 560. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02° 45' 11" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 26. 91 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 39° 34' 41" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 13. 75 FEET;

THENCE, NORTHERLY ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF

570. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 82° 27' 09" EAST,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01° 47'45" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 17. 86 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 09° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 255. 85 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1530. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01° 58' 58" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 52. 95 FEET TO THE

POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 3, 313 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

P. U. E.# 5

COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERN LOT LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, SAID POINT ALSO

BEING THE SOUTHERLY TERMINUS OF THE COURSE LABELED AS" L143", ALL AS SHOWN ON

SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID COURSE, NORTH 09° 20' 36" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60. 00

FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING THE WESTERN LOT OF SAID PARCEL 23, SOUTH 80° 39' 24" EAST FOR A

DISTANCE OF 740. 84 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 53° 21' 07" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 34. 74 FEET

THENCE, SOUTH 78° 42' 25" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60. 14 FEET, TO THE BEGINNING OF A

CURVE TO THE RIGHT;

THENCE, ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1530. 00 FEET,

FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 82° 38' 22" WEST, THROUGH A

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01° 58' 58" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 52. 95 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 09° 20' 36" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 255. 85 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 570. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01° 47' 45" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 17. 86 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 39° 34' 41" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 36. 64 FEET;

Page 3 of 5 8/ 24/ 2023

469



THENCE, ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1930. 00 FEET,
FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH 03° 17' 46" WEST, THROUGH A

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 03° 42' 00" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 124. 63 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 06° 59'46 WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 60. 00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
NORTHERLY LINE OF PARCEL 16 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE, ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT,

HAVING A RADIUS OF 1870. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH
06° 14' 31" WEST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07°08' 33" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 233. 11
FEET;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 16, SOUTH 89° 51' 13"

WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 52. 19 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 16,

SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT;

THENCE ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 16, SOUTH 00° 08' 47" EAST FOR A

DISTANCE OF 10. 00 FEET;

THENCE LEAVING SAID WESTERLY LINE, SOUTH 89° 51' 13" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 192. 87

FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 640. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06° 14' 31" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 69. 72 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 83° 54' 16" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 121. 08 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1460. 00 FEET,

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07° 33' 23", AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 192. 55 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 88° 32' 21" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 14. 24 FEET TO A POINT ON THE

SOUTHERLY LINE OF PARCEL 23 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE, NORTH 01° 27' 39" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 10. 00

FEET TO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 23, SAID POINT ALSO

BEING THE EASTERLY TERMINUS OF COURSE LABELED AS" L67", ALL AS SHOWN ON SHEET 17

OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 4149;

THENCE, NORTH 88° 32' 21" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 14. 24 FEET;

THENCE, EASTERLY ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1470. 00

FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07° 33' 23" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 193. 87 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 83° 54' 16" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 121. 08 FEET;

THENCE, EASTERLY ALONG A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 630. 00

FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06° 14' 31" AND AN ARC DISTANCE OF 68. 63 FEET;

THENCE, NORTH 89° 51' 13" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 192. 87 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 5, 906 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

Page 4 of 5 8/ 24/ 2023

470



A PLAT OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED EASEMENTS IS ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT" B" AND BY
THIS REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

END DESCRIPTION

THESE DESCRIPTIONS HAVE BEEN PREPARED BY ME,  OR UNDER MY DIRECTION,  IN

CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR' S ACT.

aP ANO

o\ PM M    

GcL
3

o

WILLIAM M. KOCH No. 8092    * DATE

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR Q.

CALIFORNIA NO. 8092 4r.
OF CA`

c

Page 5 of 5 8/ 24/ 2023

471



PARCELIO
30' WIDE INTERIM P. A. E.       TRACT 4149
PER D. N. 2022- 109000 44 M& P 52)
S. J. C. R.

N

KENWppp DRIVE
POB s HAVERHILL AVENUE

w^
PARCEL 23 o o

Z 9

BRIGHTWOOD AVENUE( I. O. D.)     PARCEL 22

TRACT 4149 d,
DESIGNATED co o 44 M& P 52)  p

REMAINDER
Q

9
PARCEL 16 9     'c

a
9

PARCEL 21
y

PAR E 28 TRACT 4149 TRACT 41

pAR    44 M& P 52) 44 M& P 52)

F 32

PARCEL 33 PARCEL 31
PARCEL 29

PARCEL 30

NOTE

SEE SHEET 4 FOR LINE dc CURVE TABLES

O PM
LMN

SGLEGEND

o 3
s T uNE

P. U. E. ( PUBLJC UTILITY EASEMENT) UNE o

EX. LOT UNE
No. 8092      *

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION
P

I. O. D.     
FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES TFOF qL\EO

POB POINT OF BEGINNIN6

R       RADIAL BEARING

TOTAL

P. A. E.    PUBUC ACCESS EASEMENT

D. N.      DOCUMENT NUMBER

XX M& P YY IN BOOK XX MAPS AND PLATS AT
PAGE YY, S. J. C. R.

OVERALL MAP o 250 500 000

sca,:= 500' EXHIBIT" B" PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION
DRAWN BY: BK IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY PURPOSES           

FILE: 25504JOD EL- WEBB. DWG BRIGHTWOOD AVENUE, CORAL TREE LAND AND KENWOOD DRIVE

DATE: 8 24 2023 SHEET: 1 OF 4
RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 E N G 1 N f 1 N G

CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25504- RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ PLATS\ IOD DEL WEBB\ 25504JOD EL- WEBB. DWG472



Z      
Zo

1) Sl
N d

gw

N O N

o     —  
31Vy7 3

4 0'I)           z      
Z        \   

3 1 y 0
a

l      ,   .
S8' SSZ 3w9, OZ. 6pN   

o        N o
Z S

o     S8' SSt-- ——    til  , 

I     J       
l:       , se' ooty  . 

sos
z 

e2.   1
r

1   /  ,

00' S8

3. 9 0 60N I
Zl 

I J lZ7
Ll       c`.>    

o

a ¢       

mr a \    //    ~       
WF-       

w
rry j N vu''+

w 3 d , oi
oN           1 W

WZ 1    o  
cn o              I    o

U
M

N         

J O a. I J J J        

r o

W W IJ Z Z

c=n I ooY o
N         I      W

I J

vI  g w NO 2Z c¢

t              W  ow
Z z

w W3   '         I p 20
N II o I QZW

o   ;
h rn N 0 c  - 1 v  ,    

Q , 
n- o o C

Z oM Io w H

Z        I' c v N J W V a g0
Z    '

Z Z J '     
O I Q (/ V 0 Q

I wN Y Q     W I   v 3       j     o

a V w n.
w 

p         O =_
O V N d F-       Z J I0 = 

O i 1.. Z   
Y    d      

W J         W w Q

a °$ o     I^      
a o

o        Q I oo   
H

Q J O V

Q      
I p o J

o
IF 3' d , o    X  m

1 3       
I UI

3•n•d,       Io- J o
r+-      I N

N m I   

M

O
rj O rn •--•

J    !

7       Uv      n   Nv o --
Q J  0

a         V U N

a V            w
3 N3/ 1 b

6 m  

o   NOSIQOba Z n d
MN

w
o m   \

m g 
w

Q  <    a
N 0  i 0

473



Z      

d

I
g
8

Zo

W N

Z m
a

O e      

Qu

M

Z S
bl   

v,

t
N

W _

3N 33 117y    
J =       

t10 Q cn u

o `='     
N

Z      

W w

Cl             
Oo >

4i

w ao
o W N ¢    ¢

a p  W o
cj p

O Y LL

Q J 1-    ¢

N U
W  p w

2
J  

Z Q
oC ZOwdO
m

Q  _
Z

J

OVU cnz

U w o
p V Wa.

N O  w?

N Z F
OO _     w w g
r) p gLL ¢   LLO

Z    m     

H Q 
r—-_ l     

m O c' 31-  —   
X w 

l w  
m

m
0

J      

3Nb' 7 33 17by0

02

ti     
o

I
N M

w m w o

1 Q N
F"

i i'       

o
I   '       

o  
v      =  

Y    

o I s  

Z a m   

Y Q    N•  '-'

N o    o

474



LINE AND CURVE TABLES FOR SHEETS 1 THOUGH 3

LINE TABLE CURVE TABLE RADIAL BEARINGS

LINE#    DIRECTION LENGTH CURVE#   RADIUS DELTA LENGTH LINE#    DIRECTION

L1 N9° 20' 36" E 60. 00'      C1 1530. 00'   1° 58' S8"     52. 95'     R1 N82° 38' 22" W

L2 N53° 21' 07" E 34. 74'      C2 570. 00'    1° 47' 45"     17. 86'     R2 N82° 27' 09" W

L3 S78° 42' 25" E 60. 14'      C3 1930. 00'   3° 42' 00"     124. 63'    R3 N83° 24' 35" W

L4 S39° 34' 41" E 36. 64'      C4 1870. 00'   7° 08' 33"     233. 11'    R4 N3° 17' 46" E

L5 S6° 59' 46" W 60. 00'      C5 630. 00'    6° 14' 31"     68. 63'     R5 N3° 48' 46" E

L6 S89° 51' 13" W 245. 06'     C6 1470. 00'   7° 33' 23"     193. 87'    R6 N1° 18' 57" E

V N83° 54' 16" W 121. 08'     C7 330. 00'    5° 16' 25"     30. 37'     R7 NO° 03' 28" E

L8 S88° 32' 21" W 100. 00'     C8 270. 00'    2° 46' 36"     13. 08'     R8 N84° 26' 04" W

L9 N14° 51' 31" E 61. 39'      C9 1530. 00'   7° 33' 23"     201. 78'    R9 N83° 26' 27" W

L10 N88° 32' 21" E 100. 00'     C10 570. 00'    6° 14' 31"     62. 10'

L11 S83° 54' 16" E 121. 08'     C11 1930. 00'   0° 12' 15"      6. 88'

L12 N89° 51' 13" E 245. 06'     C12 630. 00'    2° 47' 03"     30. 61'

L13 N48° 18' 30" E 33. 29'     C13 1540. 00'   1° 58' 58"     53. 30'

L14 N35° 39' 24" W 35. 36'     C14 560. 00'    2° 45' 11"     26. 91'

L15 N9° 20' 36" E 10. 00'     C15 640. 00'    6° 14' 31"     69. 72'

L16 NO° 08' 47" W 10. 00'     C16 1460. 00'   7° 33' 23"     192. 55'

L17 N89° 51' 13" E 192. 87' .    C17 640. 00'    3° 46' 40"     42. 20'

L18 N83° 54' 16" W 121. 08'

L19 N88° 32' 21" E 14. 24'

L20 N 1° 27' 39" W 10. 00'

L21 N9° 20' 36" E 115. 85'

L22 N80° 39' 24" W 10. 00'

L23 N54° 20' 36" E 14. 14'

SCALE: NO SCALE EXHIBIT" B" PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION

DRAWN BY: BK IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY PURPOSES     -      

FlLE: 25504JOD EL- WE88. DWG
BRIGHTWOOD AVENUE, CORAL TREE LAND AND KENWOOD DRIVE

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 N G 1 N fZ 1 N G
DATE: 8 24 2023 SHEET: 4 OF 4 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25504- RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ PLATS\ IOD DEL WEBB\ 25504J EL- WEBB. DWG475



ATTACHMENT

0
T

rye Z       
LL

t'  

Z      
g= a

J       ..

nlNEER `    F
O

a w
yY>    ,    

lLF/  Us        
u'(  H     2

w i ao5' n¢    d         
n

i U

a< a
a    a     ,  

Hm     ,+ ro„.    

v,      y< a<

y   '" s     Z

m I d 0 I S
c

w
o as

g o O p F
U o U

U<
i 1p Lry       eo6 4 s

Z = H      . a
a

ei' h z        o w a wo a 
Z 

Q W a F-   

m

Fw w a< d z

a d

ww      i       Q a

a
Oa-i

y

2 " a¢`<? F F

om. H E,              VJ       -      Q
a    .     6 6 F-       LL 

c
w

F

n    
O 

w o r n
o`b

gm a

Z " o       p  oC o o
C7 w

asJ         w        a      iZ Qo oa       w

OC a d      o

w v-'

a     

u       = Q¢     pV o `     
ti+

J a o    a U m _ LLG o m Q c_       ,<

z o   -
a

m

F   _   

Zo
ap a   

a o o<   z N     
mw       

grzaw       
F o'          '^   

4 a a<=
s            

a?= 
o

4            

w 4aN ia Qoi a zw<               
W  _    N 

u

coo i H Sci S

Lncwn  - Y wa
s m-   o   =   o     w      

T=

Z   ' Z       '  - IIa 6 w   "
c

d    sooSeJ       
o?            W  " a 6i U

m
w    o N    ` Ks a          

U a    w

nC7    4       o< a 8   < o Q  
o       €        

04

Q am ,€ w    > a            v          
w w

UQJ
z 

a    
Z       ? oz<,., o3oomS _       2 d

a         6     

QJ  
a   Z   =   ao o&

i   -     W S wo' m i
y( nCn  a       

Z     o`
a

a
o . oos o      ' o U  o pw1saci ?     

LL      
a W a   

p b''^ '^            Z    p  

Q=   
o`<$      

oa`. oN U
w

o z
s Cn d    Q 3oa z  -,.,  a`. QW  oCn m    <

wo G am
a    owzm   ` LLm     a

ssa        amU &     J as     `-' a a  
w     

U > r ia    ti4-        ff

m UF '      ,;
wi i"„     oo

w"'  I a.,,.; g"o m      
a Y  o  ` 6o rc 7"=

W' 

L    Zn     

U aaa ia i a' a i    Z`
6 Q oao ao _ o s c, a       

o^      w   i    

k'.,        S'      -       o_              z g

v, a      Wiw
c   

o      

Z   

U   

i

No G W      aa   o   o   .                 
Q

W_   
a

Fo o      `       F

o
o o         a Qa     

o   -    -                     

a m       N W 

m    <     
m   w   

o       _

o Q        JN W z 
LL a      

N      

a         w  a    
a 

o a      
o    m a ff  w   N   "

o    -       N g      Um o >  aNow
LL -   

4 3   o a S g   g       ` 4
o 

o     » o o    
o   

6         g J o   -           
o

n  < 

S, Go ` 
3 4 < a   < i   -    io C.    

o      

Lk'¢   S€ ovi o0 om xz ,

am a  LL   

wsw - 
z3o Zmo Z', . - =   a5    -       a,,`,   _    -     o p 

a 
a a o» tia

s' i   - o 
Q   Q             pwo           H <'=` 6 U W      asom 

N
oo o

mmo
o

Q   = 

o =   wo   €      3
a<       

w Pam o= 
W r

m a.;  W        < g dw
u1 0  _ 

o 

a

y; w S        < o-` ` W 
Na

g      -

Q          a
a

w< w<
3 a 3  H wo  aas   

o=
N  

LL s  Ya       -       i   _    _    `
W'       (

n
m« m 0 < LL _   

m

om
V)  aw=      w -   r <_    _ N F

a   W m       ' iao d'.,      x
N 

ap o o '
6 

i " i     _ z -       

J J as o    _
v i a  z    - z.,

a
o       _     _    _ o   na w c      ol O   _   z      _     oo

F- m
a    m c F z

Z  - a      o d     
J   -     _           

Y              F +' 6a8
O a  _

y< 

ry 
a o  aa » 

e z '  oW m H < o< om_   Q     o' o a  aa

476



0
T

N

o     a r n -  v v+    n  n       w

a
g

8 8 8 S 8 8 S   S vi

7 N g g g

a          - SNW     

e

a

o

sw
6

S`='  S $    R    - 8    $ $ $       $    $

N o   o m`     _ 

Q a

W
z

J

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 ; 3 3 3 3 3m

z  a       o n _  '     = _       _        -     -  -     -

Z       o<   v     P r a

o    

o $ o    -      -      
ll n'   2ja   ;

U          
a e      __   F w

w  _      

a _

o U
o< ao c a g       '  '  '     

ow[      N do p
o

U  a
6 

o C

3     s s s a  s 3

p a p ' r r

S 8       -     8 g -  g

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

V      ¢  uai

P C V` 11m f'    1 11 4` 

w T a  

z  - V Z
a    

d'   W

s    -  s _    

Z J i              
m m m g   a        e e  e e  h r 

U l    3 3 w 3 3 3 w 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Q>     o
i o     _  rY'i    

o
o     i9i Yi    "'

a a      , 
Z

M P F' i f`       

g o
w

5r

m=
o    

gg
o -<$< - 

LL=

N Nw=     o a
wa- < <. o

a

w=

J=- mo     
a,

Fw o
IlJEYOR y noo Jp.

ICYOR b
o Fa 4 _    

3

jT aOER         w 3
5 P         i¢ p cF.

o   

m    _
o

F

a   

2'       
n       

oo¢
a a m

F m= o' oh      -     '"    
mw`<<

a< 
d`= = m   >    8

ara Pf"  R omo o,
y,+

o3 i si 3 ,^ - -      pG
3oad+

S
m a      Saeoaa# z`    

FFFw o    _ z
d   Fa aN

w      _

No Fa4     m<
i ti F= aR -

w - r<
s o

soapy   i,<
i000_   oo 

U•-             ?

w,       b- .
m-  affa om       _      

J
aNN`   g Soi< a             z     o

W `

o`'

oo a o    ' ~
z'" ov o

o   Yi as

a       a o o  a

w k' s      z rco o S poo< 5     N m

w<  w o4o g j o aN a
rn'  

Z               mw" a`-' o a ,;-  

w     o aWa4       w a   
w o« w     

o£'„'
II y" w=cn

w
c w m '^ Ww       o a o

mF i z'- Wopo - 
r F

Q
o w ti

oao 3
o   N Naa== k" W   

6

p'^ Noo So
w o-'   

n-     J 

o
oo< g¢'      

w w a 
w Wz a o a ao <  a o< m

o w o dz, d N"

ose< aN o

a O 3  o>? s ow< d po<

Fo<     , o          U aaa m a oa« a o o m

c _ e_ o o< a« o o a

477



0
T

LL

Q

M
N

e w

j U Z 8

w  o q      g N
v c     

o
u      

ro Q g ,

U¢    <    Z    3F w LL

Q       
S

w a o       a         

CL  o< p       Z
o p   _      o     ? w J  <

WW  oa W zw w<'__
o —  o  s J w
Q o  m m< wa3 m w
z          

o

I

Z        
Z       cw7 0      -     ,-      I
O w g    I  

20

9- W), fi5' 6L6 3, 01, 99. 9tN

IM, MI O-    _ e

606 , 40' 5131'     •       1

5ap0 `` , 56907 6S' 646 3,p1, 9b. 91N

P` p. 405
Bm    

Q, 2S 
q

CZ` l
61 3

C18
U R 8

O
Pe,\ aP,``      

J

p      IpF a''-. 0
a ti (

a) ei 
M Q

g`',ti P , p si  "      Y   i

0Q'• o`'  V'•+

ati'  V, yti°      a o
ti ti o`'ti

o-   bbTfS 3, O1. 969tN

3 a

j ts
z 

1 u' 91 91 •

Qi 15q44•

I   
o

N¢

I= 
W

w 

N

1           ¢-
m g g i v

I.   
a a   

0

8 a¢ i

p

9      

F

D0      J S9)

T  

Sj

6 y
f- m

S

i`
o8

7
S

n
Q     ( a) CBl

ir 0o e wm i

m i>

rzsr yHS az o       3Ntll 3NOlSfitllFiB
D.

00psr_b_---
2 Q      

J
O

8- W), CO- 6901 3, O1. 99. 9 N

f-     r lfl

7
e'

3 s'
OO

p J

d

e I   -
J•°'r

N

g,' I e   " a   
1 U R¢  

Rz

d Q Y I

U v F-

U V

Iii
F-      

N

p
U

Q( 
rm9iZ

a     

I
i

Q
u

m. oo a
1     n o

ol

m J '            

e" oJ

L51 L49
L50  

4B  .`
a5 •/ e, a

J   =

C l8'I M_ Ml SJ

s iSJ_ L53_-
C'. I

M M/      sza<
r<

AVENUE   - M--
m

A OISON.-- 79215'( M- 
J

w       (
n o a  

N09' 20 36 E
Ur  <"'

i,      
Qo?

p      Z

Q 3Ni

LL ao  -
O _   3a

Z N      m oU

478



0
T

LL

N

Ln cwn
r s  w

Q~  -   3   _    
v=i

Z Z

a'     

p

g
F

o 20 m  w     

UQ  a <    z             
g I

OCo>  _    z jww  o       '  w

x
w

0

Z U

F-     0.
W
LL1

o.-.  mc rno— m o

c

m m m m m m m v v v v    v v    
N N U

N
N a

nvnneoedvN3i  v-  Q
ti

d n vmc.._ o n n, n  v>

Q i0 tP N t( N N 4

F,       N m Q
t0 D

P,,

J    
o`'      

m        

m   

n w p_. c mc n>Q n nrr o
t       ` O  ? J   

m
m

d

GP,
Q,

Q'     " 

oP'
a 133tl1S113M4k1V9     

r in v  -- o m

G
m m m ro m m    

0Q'
O

m

O

a V

d
l  £ Q/

6!

Sp       
s

r

a
U

P O z

U      ¢       `     ' O v

J       ,    cZ'  U V
J m

W    q
2

d iW

U

w
4 U

nQ

O
U

d U
Q

U v V    
R 3Ntll3NOlSkitllki8

Lv1U
R

K

Z
v

U v a
QU

r

H

Y

J C

U v UJ

K

d U U V R

Q  

3 N3 V NOSIOOtl

479



0
T

LL

N      < 

Z 2

g

o 
N

w ZO    "       p=        
UZJ a   • 

Z         
N        

m

Cn>  o'" 
m     

o   =
3

i

o w  a       •  o g F

H    4 z a       o ;0o
Z     

w=  

a    `       o o  m w _    mo<
a II -     

w        _
z   , g  4  . 

z _.,     O

W

e O

o  
o

3f1N3Atl NOla3lltl

OO -    - -
e- rv), sssts 3. o, sa. s n      -

a

a), sssaa 3. o, sr• s N

1), OOSL9 3, D1, 9b91N N16V7' S9' E -   ( 1), 00' Sfl 3, O1, 99. 91N   -_       ao dJe
00 S4-' -, 00' S4- '-, 00-59- '-, 00' S4'- -", 00' Sb-' , 00' Sb-- -, 00' S9-  -, 00 S4- --, W S9"- -- 4i00'    , 00' Sb- "-, 0054-- --, 00' S4-

i        
o,( r

2

3M, f- 1 3 9yt
8 8 8 S 8 I;,   i

p 3 3 3 3 3

n

3   3 3  
N

3 3 3 e0
N

3  N I 3
m       

p     P         
p

ry    
a      p I U LL

z z z z z o z z z z z
CC Oe ir

i
c V

L___  _  _ -  _-__  -_-  --_ _  _ _  -    C26  - a^
0' Sh    , 00' S4    , 00 S9    , 00 Sb    , 00' S4    , 0054    . 00' S9    , 00'$ b    , 00' S4    , 00' Sf pL' Sf i

i).cizz 3. o. e. 9 n cssl ll ll,eieri,

4ts.tik/ M FJ08FJd N3lJ

O      _    - -      -
rv- n). oas s   ( i). zczsc 3. o, sa.e N       .-- - 4;

O-
00ccs ofi-. 00za-

i   N

1), 00' BC6 3, O1, 94. 91N

0,

00' Of  _, 0054_  _, 054    , 0046    , OD- 54    , 00' S4    , 0054_  _ 00' S4    , 00' S4    , 00' S9    , 00' C4_ o    I        , 9l' SOl3, O1, 99. 91N

T
oo' 3' fl' d, S F

UI '  3' fl d. 5
g g o       .      g o W U

e v i    

N

O 3   3 3 3 3 Q>
N

3  3 3 J      ,O OII 3

W           `       v     <      <    v e v      <      a   

N

v     Q       I       .
3AI 9491N

9'

w o Q      n ol gI '
n o

o O < o j e

w   o Z
3na. a« . 000<<

w n  3
1), 00' SIS 3, O1, 94. 91N

3 O 3. O1, 94. 91N
00' SS     , OO S6    , OO S4    , 00 59    , OO S4    , OO S6    , OO S4    , pO Sb    , 00' Sb    , OOSb     , DO SS     }  -   I o

Q I3 0       g 3

I   8 8 8 rU      < I 9
3 I 00- ou

3 r
N

3 p  3 3 O
N

3 3 3 M  3 d'  3   3 p   

g'  3. O1, 96. 91N

i w ug i      i gi g
i

oi g

i

Op_
pf N       < 6

c a      <      <      a a a      n o     

ei   
a

r-o a z z 000<<   

o   I      3, O1, 94. 91N
1 n--_

o,
S9 OC

z,

0054

z

0054    , 005h

z,

00' S4

z,

00-59

z,

O S4

z,

OOS9

z,

00' S6    , OOS9   , 00' Of  ol g
1), S4' S99 3, O1, 94.91N

I N
v"       

i 133F11S113M liVH i          °' 
8f- 9S SO OZS

00OII

a    ( a)( i).00za 3. oi. sro. siN
SB LS Y1- rv), L8' 9LS 3, A1. 96. 91N , C6' fL5 ab

i

n

1), L6B99 3, O1, 9b.91N

9,6£J Bs. r \

p   , 00' Of   , 00 Sb_  _, 00' S9_  _ 00' S4    , 0056 p0' S4   _, 00' S9_  _, 00' 94_  _, 00' 94, _, Lfi' 9ro_ , 00' Of 
6

o

a°j 2.y' L1p̀
N S H     H

3 3 3 i{

N

3 y

N

3 3 3 3 Q

N

3 3       
N    

ry    r

3ne, s
3nd, s

L4' 69      , 0054    , 00' S4    , 00' S4    , 00' S4    , 00- 54    , OO S4    , 00- 99    , 0094    , L696     , 00' SS

p a)( i).>a res 3. o, sa. e N

iiai et q va

sz aed

480



0
T

LL

N      < 

z Z

g

m p#

cnCw7     - W 20           

U¢; Z         

w   .  
2;  

Q    o o Foz
N Zs< a       

Z 0 0      a 6zo
wW w

Z a =     . _ 3$
J        O          _    mo3

as   
o   Q  - - o

N

N o

a o o    
Z _.,     O  e O • / 

3f1N3AV NOlFJ3llV

O

I PARCEL C     
B- W), 6S' 6C6 3, O1, 94. 91N

I-    / 36086 SF.

6p6
5 M'

M 4l' 9S= 1 I

4
5j3  

zs o. aoo= v..,
loN   (  

le), 65646 3, 1, 94. 91N

p/      

o

7466
1), 00' SL9 3, O1, 94. 91N

137

g9a%  
e 52

N14' 48' S6' E   00' 54-- -, 00' Srol' -, 00' S6- --, OOS9- --, 00' S9'- -', 00' S9-' ----

ltlla l
o E.   

i se_ia' w

PPGESF.    /`{ l'
S690

N'
521

E   
N05

970
1'-'- 3 o

I S 3 o S S

P`
0

3    / p40`' q26W   -
59%      

5 1'   m    ' o      o'      o 0 0

3800 N077 W  
3

m
3 3 3 3  3 cp       

O
C   R

9}

W   -
59

1    '

4.

n

a m          
m      <   <      .  -    <     

e   

NO S      /      ' 
N o.,^'„      m i

n a -   n n     ^  _

h- 6
I m' 1 m z I

p1/ _ W
Nn li I      `

i

N 1`} 05 J f+ - .
9Z 49= 1    -

C22

1

z

C23  ^ 

z.

00'$ 6    . 00' S9 00' S4

z.

00 S9    , 00' S4    --

59 i '3M
Zt9S. 400= a 9

1). fl' ZZL 3. O1. 94. 91N

44q     z cz       o AdM H09ad N3l J

6' 0,'    

i        

Z     1), ZC' Z6C 3. O1. 96. 91N 3. O1, 9ro 9tN J
5a       g,       2    ,    d   _-- - —

0-- -      (
rv- n), zcc z    - 0(rv- n). 00scs O

j P G\ 9
t 9i IN

484 l. l[-Z91 3. O1. 9Y. 91NJ

o
y        , 53

N   . n     Gp 4
h;
j`   

5 74q1'j 49205 1) ft1     _ 19028' Rt la), ZC lB 1    `. 00' l8   = 5„

o        Q

15' 480     J.

o
Z   `,

1  h
0   

405}
1%       p, 405 7\   ____ --__

m           
Q''   

o
D g90       6 Im i I

Qy   b/ F'
1

o

vCGN  Sg48
N

3A1. 94. 91N
I'   

e Q
i  ., QQP

D<
5143    00 901 I      

P
G   o ii   3 o       3 e

3. O1. 99. 91N            
w

S,     00' 901 IY; i ln       ( 7

J W

z     

Ig 

r       (

m

1 G ii
t.  

J  

r 3. O1. 96. 91N I Q

O

o d        c4i.      U r
3 00' 90l Imi ti r

gl
d o m

N^  ,

oc

r IyI    -°
y

w

a p(
N) 3. SZ. Bf. LIN' 

a

d
o'   e 5'LpS y`     I300' 90l  

m sZt Na      n „
I

F- 9,
G    5    Y o aD^

w
p0

3'' d Of   m I (
YI- W), ZB' 9LSJ,`10

p(

IN). 00 901 U ON3. O1. 99. 91N I
N) 3, 6Z, LC. OZN   ' S

w
r 

wVJ

1 3 SdjJ` r/
s, 9s !!`

1W

Q

ro

C0
f

1 J' w3'    3_

E li Q

pP 7 Sf 569pb
SXA1    

N005z
E-  ,       

No55q70
E

1     p    z

bp5o,`, n302 55:       \                ;  "

90 s}
t18

5,1y2fiW        N
N

6133HS 33S
R`       NO

5q87 3

S
SW   ' \    N

N 59g5 

N

481



0
T

c      <       

Ln F-  -  - 6

5"  

w
Z Z

y
5` as°      , 69°   

d    
o a

d.(
n(

w  p g
W 0 Q/     >,, D      

f— o a w 2
s  9m      y,

UQ J a   . 
Z

c i'

9/      
N

Q>  o° 

R

i   /
i

d`

o
6 a       . 

Z
lb     4y/ i// qBaS     

w w   o N  

N
h}  

o

o       ticP   °
0.,,

3 8   
vg

y `,
5 05: }^

ql''  
o

in C'       
i   F a          D  , 4

p    
q91

QPQ9
Sf    

5ti   '      ss92  
a`' 05' Q tio`\

g ; 
e°    oAd

i 4' g''
OO 9°°    rn

5ti.  
s N    s,

vy     cb  
l'

g ;      i`'

ti    /,, P    

i

cA   4'  
m    ',{ s m

5'L      .
J'

n'    , oZ
q,y$

Q
6

a i/

dJ
l p`°   i

35    " O;  .    "'
s    ' a, a/   d' "` b      '

V
e

p      '

y

ryp/ hry     '`

g    
9y/

y 96`/       /      !
m

m    ! 9y

o q       ": c yti° '°    b
1   '

4;   `.   

N

1'    L'       r    s,
v 4' °/  °' rS W

a,'         '
S      "' n 2 ,`' ti' ti 5ti C

J' 
6"     '

n    y 5'°       

a"°     "<<        

N

ti      q 

ti   ,`'"   %   m
s'°

ti,,. a'       O
P' h  `

b:, s'°

m tid' ' 

7         

b dJ'  g           /    y
F'      +

d v'. arsr{   
L/

r_     /  
d

o

f

v i m
e.      

i/

yl

u'   

o r9h4}°`\ g,/ OQ cp  
q': s°

y  ° ti

J s                  °      ;'   adl
i S°

sr  ry    ¢ asN `
ti g i

4  °

P e           o            /  `     `
b`  ,    s   . d' tia

c.
Q`

O /  66 yj,
a(`  

Ai`'° `%$     

y  `'

ti°5
s `,°~

1

m     '

s dGP/    i.;

r .

ys    
m

bl g

n     

0y y>

i
c` 3s

m     :

o." ?°   eP     '/ dJ.,  
0 SByls,   ;, w y"'i  , yJ,

ti ; 1`
r,     '] v. 

ry
ry

1       /     o

m

O9y 6 ry
Oc  

R.
y 

0    
fa l,h

d°.    oo y/.^      d/
3

LL

o 3

o cT 
ez£   

y>'' y
i S1'  ,+''

O

yJ

o

m    .'; 

i w     $       o m      ¢    -    
6

ZSZrN ~ h

l
a

o   '-

L_ 1__

ap\\-  /    100     m    ' s32'
4Y07' L= 171. 75'   , g

bJ3p'    $; rn

7
000 '- t/$ J711           rSFFN 2 w

g,\  
ci T0

ry v
oo'   

o w
O    n<ooJLivJ9: Gg          . oa iii m a w

A`
a  

9'.
3      

m

N' o 0
3st, r. rN i

a cn

e

i` 3 d s     '   
i

O

o/

3 3    3 ry  .     

o^

C N N N . 
3  .

00' l[ I 3 SL LI. IfNro m 3 g    /       
eo.\   + / 2n, /      3      Z

Q J        
h

p W
i      ,

o
v     ;,; n

I I    ;     o, U
i

w
L0

p

o /    
a4.

u' i° r• or I  ' d, ot

e
w r    / W      w       .
cn i 2      z h M

I             
LL      

3
d. ai- J            03       4

ry z'   w w

j m'        

o    -     i F

I  9
rg

z; g
r        '      oa w        F ztil H a   ^'   paz F       ?     

nl u        
J

Z
g a s   d a

o I
o.'         

o   
z

a  
z    Q ;

o

I

N
o  \   a mo3hIm    ,

00' lll n 1" uJ   
n

Z    3          -a) 3, 65, 46. LZN F v'i`    

JI Z _.,   g 
o  `

n a,       s616. 1,7yy1 Z o 
g1 13 2f7d

N N        . 
O  o O • / 

482



0
T

LL

Q  -  - ZQ
e p

o

aw    
Q

p     

W ytio   ,' m y

U Q
J a   , 

Z k   /      969y` '-      
S'

Q/Cn       O
P .

yti'

e

k        /    

J3Ssa'.+     
s

OO

L1      

U
o N

p 

w w  
a o            

P,

P/
ti       

e'  

oo p
ry ,   

ry>
y 

a

e i p AA5 h
4'^ /   .

1%.- r h`` ?   h

n O ti.
vi

S     / //      

J

P ry h/ 
U n       

i

Q  
g'^      

Q 60   's<       nm
X  `     /  '',  e o Q„        

d

oN   -_ 

I_ loy°   / po i
y ` 5 B ll n

Lti'
l \ y}. p   /      47 p^ L= 171. 75'   .  

q O   ~B
47

45'
9\'

l ti 6     1}0       

i }

S JS J'     

0.
Lj960'

pO/
a' I'    

p\ ` 

P'    
i 3M IA ._ -__-- O       O

4 n

pp0
D 

1g
1   til

i /. a,

va
m a'`   9 /   0000'          lo    /

o0
0,    ;      r     

e    \  O    a ` illJ f,g  =
Ro9

ti
ss

i
b/     8"'   e    `

a/    ,
1'^     m. o m      

i     o r
a o o

a ` 1 o °  
v

O-"       4p61 a ' 3  "
r,       rdz       `     ,` •°`'      3 d. s=- I o -     

o

I Q5
1        ,, µo'  '° t92j/ yJ  n    '° 2

i

J/ 

9
0. eR 9n a 3    i ry M  

C      
9'     B n hl y

l3 3 /
3. II, t  ,

2
N   

f.
y    / .

t  , /. p,ld N I

o 

1 3 ,ras2`      
SN  ey'`, i

o a     F i
a\     

b
3,             \

1     c

i     \ /   / iNiry /
I rsd'   

f,   ^/ e"

y
9'  `'`%,      a'    _.   Y ron N / tip^ O-  mp       ! n l

sC ei       '  f`
p o l

I
j<   ggs`  oo

M

o-`  .
o
j<   m y w

Z

Y</   

I

o NJ Z\ / y ooa/ oo /   
d

3   

ino      
fo Ar 

ar L.3nd
g

N
oQ. ol

3   '
8,`

Cal3,
8Z ff    / OyZF,   i'O

i /      m,

W        w
o_ Af       , 29'p    

3 I     
a'

p Of f(
b)3, Zs I I W  Z

IN
3M. f . W' ll! 3, IF. 9F: o

N       

o/  

a45F/ y '   

3
d 01- J

Q  /      

n S FN    / 3 0 I W W

o 
H q

iQ o rv , ry3 "       m

q         . ez    a i
zi

OOI!!
3. P,rpTNOI

ol_            

061 3. 1F, BF'. 0 N   ;     nl C'23 Ia N2 p

f

p   `   2        I    il   o £ I Ar° i     m i
w r      m               

i        a ai          io Q
o

I o
SF' 9ll( y) 3, 9S, S9. lZN I          _.-

3 d, 01 ^

m

o      ol

3°'     
J  -

I Af'( Yl( N) 3. 94. 61. 1ZN
a'   I     

oo• p      , 190£ l

f

n I
U

I e
I a  - 

I

l
96 6t

I      [[   
iO

N13' S6' 48" E( R) 170. 3fi'( i)  

I
I  .  

I hlW

31 I
W OO- OS

iw,
N

i     \ j   al`} 35°  z _ r..

Q     
No

o} aWl i e^  1
il=      

m          

w
3

S      I       ti
s

r
i `  i ih - w

n  ' 1
O

or \ j    I aa m Q\    
s   

oa .

g     
O -,

aE,      .   3'! 1' d, S-- I

0°`
g' `\ oa?• 

N`.
5fi 46 w

Z O
o  ' gY   d `

rzf      ¢  I     

99g       r

r
9x I    ..

i N g'
r` 

o j e I

J J       o

roSr  w       \ 
y  \       \       I

U.- H J Z a ' L`\    
FS6

Y

9„` Y'! l Y

D{

r9i t

ppS6
V

S ll
e 

I-   VF
r J

m w No.        d(]
9h'  SN

a

s           N     .

I co
J

N r-
3 Od. S- l 3 ' i   N

y '  

J     
I o,     

S

FSy I ^i       

o      

zS N a

I

iS
U n         ? I 3 F66p9 w Z ' 3'! Id S-' I

1

o a       ¢ I 00       btLf,y    . BB' yg  

n O
Of

I\      
p] i

sSb SS. OLOPN    , BF59    °,'_ i I  
4 J'       

3-, Il.ZZ o rQ"19
N wry

9`'
l      w m

s o v

q1
Q

w O a 
f
i

O 
ry9'

a

483



0

N

m \   

T

m

Q

1    `
ry

g O

N 14no    O

W r o m

N1q
oSti

W

o  
w=  W

U'     §   
i

6

Z     " Z SEE SHEET 7

6        

o
ry`     

a       
r''   o "       

w

7 o

a    w m  1h a  U   ¢0 w      -      
u    

a

UzJ    <    Z m

y 
oout"       a

J      m   . y ti fa) 3. oi. cr. czry
a cn

c n  <        
Z

o

m
Aa;,,,

9

w w W m  .'`
o 0o

o`'

ti

Q

s     p        oti
o o

titi
o5;      oo h

p 0 aa.  x a   o '  _
i    ,    

eF m. l w
C -     w

2/ 
O ti'^,

v         

h
N

J

h h

o
r°       y U FQ-

h
W

w w
Q   oEO  

I
r        

R
y

Q p N W y' 2
60 m w     

M

2
Sp i  _ No

W  
IJ 

a

j/ 4 -'    __    
a

w Q w
a      

W` o
tu i a

z I r-  c  y^'    

m   
en

m
o

s00 U
W          a

w n
P           !

8)  

p p9 ry        v
r in n vi

W 2     j p0 o'

Q   o  

C[ l
F. w p%     H

Z _ n c

m
J

w
C54 00' I ll p

i
N

l 13 21Vd         
a) 3. ai. ocso,v    `N

p N            r
J

w= 

N o J

p K

3i ai    '    m             
zo

aiea3 zli - i
4     

d'      
C' 3 V

U m

I U Q

I Q1--     Nn Ud
I       ' 

ve      _

K

r

d e
H

N

yMIIIHlf3 tlH o
c 0 3

3"   
Z

Q
N

a

W

p      

N       
J

N 0 N o

rylZ

a J v
o

p

w
z 3 8 

o_

ac(     N     ' i

r

Q+
O N  a tv wi

n0 h'

m

U p
A' 

Q

i o  tr      ¢
f

a
i m. oa'  

9olal. a- 90sNO1'] 7' 39" W     . i, 

o   / 

N       

IW ra\
6

BD      .
a^   

o
o     

W

J

U v IW     
9`

1 S l y
P

n 4  IQ  v 9p
r

Sc)      
CSl

U v
V rF P

i mll2     a B9 3J21Vd

Z

ilm   
N

S9

U v U e         
i" 91    g!.,       

J

w

a ry
N 

I
a

s F    

J

os

U w
w

Z p_.
W Vl O

a S S
fn

y'

3 sS
F!

0      '    C7

Q=   
tn U o

Kf2ry       '      a      /  I v.'' O
U

w
a'^    /      

py.CL Q'_^   Zo
a   ino

o

n G     O
y

N
NDO' 08' 47' W        

w

iO              

C53  ,     
J I       77. 41'     ti Q n

Q    

og 49 "
G9  e  /  ^> 

m`
o wq.

J,       99' I S9 
9       a%.  

o
J¢  w       V 1

4  
w

o 
6714u

Fo 3  ¢"   
i3721Vd p6   

n       p_
lL

U
v

a g 2 NpO.°% d
4 e

o   \    l o_ S\       i .Q'
e,  o N f d N M

95 61'
g   9

N0970 3fi C . y,- 1)

484



0
T

3 3 3 3 3       _  ; 3     _ 3 3  3 3 po           _ 

N      a w o O

w

Z Z

Z Q w
o 3 3 3 3    _                3 3 3 3     _  3

U Q=  z    <    ?   

Q
F m N _

Q(n>  w Z o z S

a           _    miu
W w w

M¢a      "

a

00 az

o h.     Oplr(   0p<<!

b)3Fr fBlN

U nmna
U U U J       

2
a

9b

w

Z J w

J' m  

c5    '      

W o
66l 0

oZ     

r 3f
3'^       Op' rZN

ry S' g

N
ww

p H'     

O i i h N m n e m o N n a h a m m, 0

2

QQ •
3

Q

Z rn

U U U U U U U U U cJ U U U U

2

i
g

g _

g S             o 0
U       g g

U U U U U U U U
U

zp  
3 3 3 3 3  3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

z

J           

0
3 3 3 3 3 3 3        3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 0

3 3           z

2 a    Ù  U
Z

O       -  Z O

J

w

N          
2

w

O
o

3 3 3 3  3 3 3 ,  3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

0
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

5

z z z

WJ x

a       -    

485



486



ITEM 4. 21

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER li, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE FINAL MAP,   CFD ANNEXATION,   AND

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 68
LOTS IN TRACT 4172 VILLAGE 1 WITHIN WEST

VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4172
Village 1 within the West Village District, Totaling 68
Single Family Lots,   CFD Annexation No.   2,   and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River

Islands Development Area 2, LLC, and River Islands

Stage 2A, LLC

SUMMARY:

The proposed Final Map for Tract 4172, included as Attachment E", is the first tract

map within the West Village District of Phase 2 for the River Islands Project.   Pulte

Homes is proposing sixty- eight ( 68) 50' x 100' single- family lots. A Vicinity Map is
included as Attachment " B".

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 4172,
West Village  -  Village 1  ( Tract 4172),  Annexation No.  2 of the City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District   ( CFD)   2023- 1,   and a Subdivision Improvement

Agreement ( SIA), included as Attachment " C", with River Islands Development Area

2, LLC and River Islands Stage 2A, LLC ( collectively referred to as ' River Islands"),

by Resolution included as Attachment " A".

BACKGROUND:

On June 14, 2021, the City Council adopted resolutions and ordinances approving the
River Islands modified Phase 2 Project and Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map ( VTM)
Tract 6716. On November 14, 2022, City Council approved Large Lot Map Tract 4149
for 34 undevelopable parcels within West Village District. The land for the proposed
Final Map for Tract 4172 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM Tract 6716 and
Large Lot Map Tract 4149.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, all final maps must include a SIA to
guarantee specific offsite and onsite improvements.

The total cost of the improvements for Tract 4172 is $ 1, 623, 000, however, a large

percentage of the improvements have already been constructed and therefore do not
need to be guaranteed.  Performance and labor  &  material securities have been

provided with the SIA for Tract 4172 that guarantee the unfinished improvements in
the amount of:

487



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 68 LOTS IN TRACT
4172 VILLAGE 1 WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Unfinished Im rovement Total:  9, 100

Performance Securit 110% of Unfinished Im rovements       $ 10, 010

Labor & Materials Securit 50% of Performance Securit 5, 005

Acceptance of the public improvements will be processed by staff at a later date and
when the unfinished improvements are completed.  Prior to acceptance, River Islands

will be required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond.

Tract 4172 will need to be annexed into the three different CFDs for maintenance

purposes.  The CFDs are for the City, Island Reclamation District ( RD) 2062 and River
Islands Public Financing Authority ( RIPFA). Approval of CFD 2023- 1 City of Lathrop

Annexation No. 2 is pending with this Council item. CFD 2013- 1 RD 2062 Annexation,
and CFD 2013- 1 RIPFA Annexation are administered by RD 2062 and RIPFA. They

are included as part of the escrow instructions for recordation purposes only and are
not a direct impact to the City.   The applicant has signed the appropriate

documentation to commit to the annexations,  and the final map recordation is
contingent on the annexations.

As a precondition to record Final Map,  River Islands must satisfy the Escrow
Instructions, included as Attachment " D", by depositing necessary sums and required
security to guarantee the payment of all fees and execution of the documents related
to the SIA.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

River Islands has fulfilled all of the requirements of the City' s subdivision ordinance
as listed below:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Received

Miscellaneous Im rovements

4.     Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted Landscaping Received
and Miscellaneous Im rovements

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape, Light & Joint Trench Completed

6.      Geotechnical Report Completed

7.      Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
Maintenance

8.     Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

488



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 68 LOTS IN TRACT
4172 VILLAGE 1 WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

9.      Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

10.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

11.     Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

12.     Escrow Instructions Completed

13.   Tract 4172 West Village  - Village 1  -  City of Lathrop Approval

Community Facilities District No.  2023- 1 ( River Islands pending with this
Public Services and Facilities Annexation No. 2 item

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact to the City as all costs are covered by development fees and
any shortfalls in the City' s maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFDs.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4172 Village 1 within the West Village
District, Totaling 68 Single Family Lots, City of Lathrop CFD Annexation No. 2,
and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development

Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage 2A, LLC

B.       Vicinity Map - West Village - Village 1 Tract 4172

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development Area 2, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, River
Islands Stage 2A, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, for Tract 4172,
West Village - Village 1

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 4172 West Village - Village 1, including
CFD Annexation No. 2

E.       Final Map - Tract 4172 West Village - Village 1

489



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER li, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE FINAL MAP, CFD ANNEXATION, AND SIA FOR 68 LOTS IN TRACT
4172 VILLAGE 1 WITHIN WEST VILLAGE DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

APPROVALS

2/ 2

Bellal Nabizadah Date

Assistant Engineer

2N  ?. DZ3

Brad T or Date

City Engineer

8 ' 3
Cari J e Date

Finance a ector

1=. g • Z` l • Zo23

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

zyz az3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

q• t • z3
Ste J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

490



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 4172 VILLAGE 1 WITHIN THE WEST
VILLAGE DISTRICT, TOTALING 68 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS, CITY OF LATHROP
CFD ANNEXATION NO.  2,  AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AREA 2,  LLC, AND RIVER ISLANDS

STAGE 2A, LLC

WHEREAS,  on June 14,  2021,  the City Council adopted resolutions and
ordinances approving the River Islands modified Phase 2 Project and Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map ( VTM) 6716; and

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2022, City Council approved Large Lot Map 4149
for 34 undevelopable parcels within West Village District. The land for the proposed
Final Map for Tract 4172,  West Village  -  Village 1  ( Tract 4172),  is within the

geographic boundaries of VTM 6716 and Large Lot Map 4149; and

WHEREAS, as required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, all final maps must
include a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee specific offsite and
onsite improvements; and

WHEREAS, River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage

2A, LLC ( collectively referred to as " River Islands") provided performance and labor
material securities with the SIA for Tract 4172 that guarantee the unfinished

improvements for Tract 4172 in the amount as follows; and

Unfinished Im rovement Total:  9, 100

Performance Securit 110% of Unfinished Im rovements       $ 10, 010

Labor & Materials Securit 50% of Performance Securit 5, 005

WHEREAS, acceptance of the public improvements will be processed by staff
at a later date and when the unfinished improvements are completed.    Prior to

acceptance, River Islands will be required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond;
and

WHEREAS, Tract 4172 needs to be annexed to the three different Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) for maintenance purposes.  Staff recommends that Council

approve CFD 2023- 1 City of Lathrop Annexation No.   2.   CFD 2013- 1 Island

Reclamation District ( RD)  2062 Annexation,  and CFD 2013- 1 River Islands Public

Financing Authority ( RIPFA) Annexation are administered by RD 2062 and RIPFA.
They are included as part of the escrow instructions for recordation purposes only
and are not a direct impact to the City; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands must satisfy the Escrow Instructions,  included as

Attachment ' D" to the City Manager' s Report,  by depositing necessary sums and
required security to guarantee the payment of all fees and execution of the
documents related to the SIA.

491



NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that approves the following actions:

1.  The Final Map for Tract 4172 and is hereby approved as submitted for
recordation with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk
Office.

2.  The City Manager, or their designee,  is authorized to execute a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands in substantially the form as
attached to the September li, 2023 staff report.

3.  Annexation of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 No.
2  ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities)  in substantially the form as
attached to the September 11, 2023 staff report.

492



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 11th
day of September 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS O FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

493



ATTACHMENT

Y
U'     

U
FUTURE UNIT 2 LOTS

TRACT 4180)

X    
VILLAGE DD

VILLAGE
VILLAGE EE

2 N9iVc EPIC

P
J 9

s

s

ACADEMV O
qy TRACT 4172

BOUNDARY vi acE z

f;,
VILLAGE Y

VILLAGE AA

VILLAGE .      

44

VILLAGEX

LAKE NEWPORT

A      \  

FUTURE              VILLAGE CC VILLAGE BB     -
SCHOOL SITE       '    WEST I I

u_u_u_w

VILLAGE W

VILL E CC

V EAST         
cHaMPioNs FiE s

COMMUNITV PARK

VILLAGE40

LAKE 24  
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

VILLA EtI ,

J BRIDA
ORT.,\         

VILLAGE T  -
VILLAGE 40

11LLA E V ,       
VILLAGE42

TRACT 4172 y-     
BOUNDARY

VILLAGES

FUTURE PARK

VILLAGE33 VILLAGE39
T_     

VILLAGE 41
i I

I
LAKE 15 I

I

VILLAGE34     1
I

ATTACHMENT " B"

TRACT 4172i

VILLAGE38 .  
LLAGE 1

VICINITY MAP
AUGUST 2023

494



ATTACHMENT
N q

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AREA 2, LLC,

RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2A, LLC

FOR TRACT 4172 WEST VILLAGE - VILLAGE 1 68 RESIDENTIAL LOTS

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this l lth day of September 2023, by and between
the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY")
and River Islands Development Area 2, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, River
Islands Stage 2A, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company( hereinafter collectively referred
to as " SUBDIVIDER").

B.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and the
CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,   Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 4172. However, SUBDNIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tract
4172 ( West Village - Village 1) located within the West Village District of River Islands Phase 2,

which also includes major streets necessary to access the site. Performance and Labor& Material

securities have been provided by SUBDIVIDER that guarantee the unfinished improvements for
West Village - Village 1, in the amount shown in Section 8 of this Agreement.

C.       SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 4172
and as noted in Recital B,  security shall be required for the unfinished portion of these
improvements, along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 4172 and West
Village - Village 1 overall. Improvement plans, and street light plans prepared by Power Systems
Design, Inc. have already been approved by the City. The street, sidewalk, underground utility,
storm drainage,  streetlight and joint trench improvements  ( hereinafter  " Improvements")  are

substantially completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required
infrastructure for Tract 4172 are required security as outlined in this Agreement is required.

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of CITY' S pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' S
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

495



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village- Village 1

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its
sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the West Village — Village 1

neighborhood, to the limits identified in Exhibit" A", including the public landscaping, streetlight
and joint trench improvements. A Vicinity Map is included as E ibit " B".

All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City Engineer, in a
good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above referenced improvement plans and
specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the CITY' S Department of Public

Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the last home constructed in Tract 4172 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 4172 associated with the filing of
Tract 4172 ( homebuilder), prior to the completion and occupancy of the last production dwelling
unit associated with Tract 4172, or September 11, 2024, whichever comes first.  Such occupancy

shall be documented by CITY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall, at any time during the progress of the Improvements, have free
access thereto, and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of the SUBDIVIDER

to ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in
compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done, and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a Warranty
Bond in the amount of$ 162, 300 equal to 10% of the estimated cost of improvements for the West
Village - Village 1 neighborhood ($ 1, 623, 000) as included in the Engineer' s estimate attached to

this Agreement as Exhibit  " D",  to insure SUBDIVIDER' S repair and warranty of the
Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Warranty Bond shall be
released at the end of the one year guarantee period, provided there are no claims against it are
then outstanding.

7. If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, or unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair.

496



Subdivision Improvement Agreement (River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village- Village 1

Replace or reconstruct any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required
to, proceed to complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or
by contract for such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security
deposited therein as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or
reconstruction incurred by CITY.

Once action is taken by CITY to complete, repair, replace and/or reconstruct the Improvements,
SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if SUBDIVIDER
subsequently completes the work.

The CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to
complete the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security ( including but not limited to
any Letter of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials
and repair and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such
amounts. All administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government
Code Section 66499.4, incurred by the CITY, in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be
a proper charge against the security and SUBDIVIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for
CITY to bring an action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of
completing such improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit
and all other expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

8. Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, the SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor  &  Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements
associated with Tract 4172 as included and described in Exhibit  ` B"  of this Agreement.

Performance and Labor & Material securities have been provided in the amount shown in Table 1
below. SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' S insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit

C" attached hereto and incorporated herein.

Table 1 — Bond Values

Unfinished Im rovement Total: 9, 100

Performance Bond Bond No. 0799692 :   10, 010

Labor & Materials Bond Bond No. 0799692 :   5, 005

9. Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications, which are a part of this Agreement,
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

10.      Neither the CITY nor any of its officers,  employees or agents shall be liable to

SUBDIVIDER, and/or SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors for any error or
omission arising out of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

11.      Neither the CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents, shall be liable to the
SUBDIVIDER or to any person, entity, or organization, for any injury or damage that may result

497



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village - Village 1

to any person or property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part
of the land covered by this Agreement.

12.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively, " Indemnitees"), harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/or SUBDIVIDER' S
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' S contractars or subcontractors. SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit or legal proceedings, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' S
performance or non- performance of his duties and obligations under this Agreement, or from the
negligent act or omission of himself,  his agents,  contractors,  representatives,  servants or

employees. The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section
is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied or
approved any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any
such indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not,
and shall not; waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid
hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages ofevery kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied or approved of, plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

13.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors
are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of
SUBDIVIDER' S obligations under this Agreement.

14.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, the SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements, and maintaining safety at the
project site. The SUBDIVIDER' S obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied
until after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied and all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. The CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts to finance maintenance and improvements. The CITY expects to preserve the
ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by the CITY and SUBDIVIDER
providing that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special
taxes. SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

15.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by the CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one( 1) year period,

498



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village- Village 1

whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two

weeks as directed by the City Engineer, on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by the CITY.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.
If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER, and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators and assignees of the SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable
hereunder.

18.      The SUBDIVIDER shall,  at the SUBDIVIDER' S expense,  obtain and maintain all

necessary permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement
of Improvement construction, the SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
The SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state and federal laws, whether or not said laws
are expressly stated in this Agreement.

19.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 4172.

20.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b. Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect
upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this

499



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village- Village 1

Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain
in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed
by excluding the first Day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be performed
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A FINAL MAP - TRACT 4172

EXHIBIT B TRACT 4172 AND WEST VILLAGE - VILLAGE 1 AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  WEST VILLAGE - VILLAGE 1 UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENTS AND FULL

IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

500



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village - Village 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this 11' day of
September 2023, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY THE CITY OF LATHROP CITY ATTORNEY

BY:

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development Area 2, LLC,

a Delaware Limited Liability Company
River Islands Stage 2A, LLC

a Delaware Limited Liability Company

BY:   l S 2 z3
Susan Dell Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"

501



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village- Village 1

EXHIBIT " A"

FINAL MAP- TRACT 4172

502



rn

fp p5
Z       o

T

4

G-try U

O

uor..„ F-      U`-     }, "     
r

EH

o      gj

N  t

W
l'.     

LLl       t"'.+?    d m 4   

SF og 9ye'` k,

wo3n
s  o

a a
a a Ja

r'  ;

i a
o

o Ip
Qw   a

w

p a g    < n       a"          
b o          a`gF

a

F  a   
U z

O  _       
g e e-

Z = H s  

i      a Z < s' oJ

1     
Z w S wo m

w w w a`
m< 

a Z
U d

r sa
c   

o W
ww d

g
Saa$    s

i 4    
F

Ov   w          i W

I       i5 H        Cn 
cowLLaF o Q LL o

LL 
ci     OC F= 

5
ma

i O 
w   _ o  cn 

m z -   

W

o    ww

I w g     '<      Z < o`       
I I 6             

u'       

o         o         mSa
w  ¢            a a¢ a     < z w g w

n < o    b v m o< o m LL_       ,«,

9 0    

w
g    o       

N a= a ` rm o   - o

a

w mo"             -   w  = 

mamo< a         _ o
a Nn«    -     ow  

N 
a= Fwo m=   oo=     '       wx -

o a
o wa< Qa= a g    _  `         z w Q

N a

Q wLL Nomm    < N  y      aF z""" 

N(n
r  -

a
yooJ z W a o o o a   QU= v€ v Q

o

Q        w- m"_       s Yi        
H   Z        o a  a o  - N o F-     

r   <$ 

o`- aak'
o

i o`
6  - o o a d 3<      _    ~  o 2

maa ooQQ$=?       n      -      o o Q r '

a' 

o,,,

0 r     W        . am Jzaa oa > a          LL    z

g o x

Z      • o-       a             

Q Cn  

o

UV    • 
Z  ~ 

k` o oao`.°  oN o   =€       -    w o o
w`   p

J k w aa   ok a `&
b o wgm N      U U

w om 6

J  w        
Z     

o    ,,,   hp : o      m Q      U      o<   xz 
Uw w           F w    . _:    Z

a
w

j>   k" o
i`

a-'

o z   a.  '   m€   oa o o
N      < woo<" F

w`-,

N Q«
z m

w•}  
o    z      

w        

m      o
n m   a w ap

N€ oo       o    <=    o
o    

LL wo

s     
d w m    W  - p     _ m a8

W            

47
w    <^   = Naoz m8wxic a          <     nz  _ z3T o

U a-` 5   H    oW       = oG p           `

o  oo           W ooN     

U oaa li<po,.,< c  < o_

m So 

Q pU     <'
6z

N   \
d -

n   zn   w"' c, o 5 Q

W            
V   

o w

N      V   w   _   m   N              ! o€ o a
a     a            `   po           

5 m

g o
4     g2   z-    "-     J z j    "

coRi k    -  -- x      
F=„

o a  ,. -    

0
6

o s

i
a`    '-      

o i°aa _    q?            o g   o G N= `-
o -    - 

oo
a

Q     --     `
h" o ` 60      o r

o   -    o a gm a    <          <       
r oa W3   

g         <
Q    z a ,.           m             U w w `-' z

W   a

a                     m

Z a w= <
o       

gN o   

oo  w    

a       

o   <   
o 

do aa ao os oo p o o"'   w   
p o

m a r   o _< o oLL o

o
a w 

3   a_ a      _    N       -    o v    m      -       

ga          
o w

LL F   o 

wx^ `   <    a           
m      ad o ww         zm ,.- z=   w       F   m

a y <   oo o`
o

o - p    a        <   
o=                 

w og
soi N

w w N
FQ FN       am a

N U W
ow m 

n 
o    Q oa g "<   ws   

a
Z <   

E
a w'- 

u
N= a w y

w N    -   oG m a w       g k 

w        _ o N a NN3 `"   _           _ ao      « tw- '       w  
a      ``  LL g      -

a w w w _       -   3     w      H = C7 5=  N sw z=
oo    } 4m- 

a = N     o o<      < 7< cn      _ 0 "`' -    ab o Ww      s
N  `                <       N    -      _ 

W     
zw

Cn         ` i
J,J

F _ o
J

do - o   _ v- i
n   L

a ao a    
6¢   '^

n   

m o80 
I O  _  v,      

i
z  -     

o

Z  -   
o      -    

o `¢     -          a         
v                      

z o o    €  o N a

p        
o          FN    

o
V o  o o 

a:  _,, N n   e     _    € <    m   oo om_  Q         o«< o a  a a

503



rn
T

LL

n N
z

S   b Q
m -     

n

a    
i a, x x < z

a

a
x         

o"   

r S  

s      

sz          =    w Fo
m -  r

iL"    
U

a
U', 

a     a a

S    $ $    g S g $ $ 8 $ o    _
z a sm s,  Y s''., s s s. s_ s      -   o 9    "' S' S' $ S'

ff

w  o   = wL% wt YS  ai      Qo      
N`   _            

ag Q¢ o Qa Z o
w

a c h a Zi a     ,` a O m 
o pa pa Y   < a & pa p      `     _    S

v a    <   <      

gY Y
w     - mo m t

w o     m m   =    a o Qo m n

g     „  .        _.           in a _    

a

Y

g

u w
o

i¢ 
p

2
m c f`    P  P e    ' apv n o m o

3 w'¢       

i      r                 

e e    n ry a o

og g g g g g g g d Qi g g

o            g

K  3
2       

a
rc~            

x

N
in  

3 H      

N cn
r  -    

r F= 3  e a
V.      (/ J

o
a      Z     

z WJa      o

zz  _" o w

m <      ;    o e N
d'     : Q oa              
r '    

m¢¢ Q  $                _  3           3 3

Z w   
o    . 

Z     oN a      w o 0

U C  a ao e
F-       _  _ a       z

Q+(n J   L7     -      O
p

LL J  ;      1 Z m     go
Z v     _

w       W a      Z   _   aUa o
Z          € m w =

z

O o Z ¢   p      J Z    _    
a

S p U        O wp w_  o¢ G m

N oX Q a< p_      j o w    ,  3 3 3 3 3 3 3

p        o Q

N? w? oa" w            ¢           
w H m   ' o

U  - 

zF-        a  Z w   ' o
Q c'_    o Jzo            c       Z

U
oma o no

W   y o Q

li
a Q W      -  -      Z

a  

Ln a c m J

U .-  
a `   

o W _   n n

o` a cioo„ a    n

W   ,„

m
v_ m ga pF

i   S"      EYOR agwz'
c'-'? a . n

Q       w

y.' ao°
R}

d

y
og a

w    `' opo  * eroo e" w=>>= 
F`^

a o  a.
k      

a F N= 3F0000 aH   
3a peo   

o Q J j2 z       

odoo_".-<
w

a, 30
i`>,      W

ssbara Sspt     o±   o,

SSo

e

sr   mo a

oi ozr Q _3aoaa.    H       3eoaa+ Qia   4-              o
r€ z m< m$'<   ffw F
wm  w< Joi5ow F?

U-    -
s o m

zoa< Fo, -   
a     

w os<< o W 

6Qo+ o
j mm

U

a w so< a w "<< sa w   ' Jo'_ F oo SUz s m a   >      o
o

aoJ o   

p w8 o$ w       
a        

w a<  i 
o o a'

FaF$ ag4 a 000wo} n' w   
o NmF a$ o  -' -' o am=`         a

w sa d
a ga< z« r

Nwa 

a

oaoa W
Z =

N>      

a

J=

aww` oN aaa
w q          aw w

W m i<?       ao a=. a a 4           o     o
LL

Q o= pw a   o 00       
w

Q 
o o a   N  a<' m w m w                  
x w h m`  

a.     
J?

F< o`"'< 
o o    ma

h 

w J
Y

6
J -  

a w o
Tapa n  o        o

a' w.-   w

J
o= o a sa Sg:ar 3ao

a   

a¢ Fa"` ozo'-' ,- 6irn F
a-   w aff a `<        r_    -'"< a a< 8a€ p ao,

o k.        w
a m_

U _ ea o o<   t=i_< ak' o o V    .,   e

504



rn
T

M

N            

Nfnr  -    r W
a g  

aZ   
z  =          w     w aW e

o
n       

cn 8
w

n 

8

as      W  ma o   a g      w  °      8    m

Ua  <  • ?        o    
a             

o

J   U'  =    o     , = o
a` JS

i N Jm

J  
y       

Z        
o

W   W   w n= 
w  g Y

W m o     -    izW a 3

6g  o    ` wb  7s $ o  a     

m   

w
w    o  :   m o      w wa d

N ;  

0        

I ` 
w  

l

w I I
g        ^

g= a ; O
v

133HS 33S

I $ a

wU         k'
a

W
o\ _ an 3n

prnavnoe m g

z   '

1 o fJ

J        

ZY' Z6l 3. 1Z. 9L0yN     
g n            i i

gI.
J

w i

ia ass/c£CSN,° f°°
i= a  ( ia). rrrzs 3. ez. zn

h   /.      a .
c a N

a. zo. enn      o j  
o oa zl ireu

W     ^       

eN. fb i ti

O_     _    O/  .
ICCL/     

Q>  3 w w
f9 o    :'

m
im

n       :.,  w inu
z .

ezo 20 3 2o O " a" N'

ryl
ilq

Z _ H

Ii
3. ZS, 9tLYN- 

o 

u/ 

BC fFl

p
7 y_

II ry/      M       w n s
c

g
a oh
3 pp/ i m
Y

Q m 9'
a$   r— z

w

o       S   Ug
J

Z P d
r d a  z
Q     ^ W F.' e... na.° i

Q 3N< C
3 m W_

m

a t '^ o
p    y<

ti^' a v      =:* 3„

n     

a     

Q m`

3

6a'
L     i H m LO rc a c.,

W

w
uv

h`   i N j

z

F

I I Z

I= 
3

I w

i2
Ilf), 99' L6L 3 144SSfN      m

015> 695SZ       -     
S

OFItlA3lf10BNIlAM            ,    3f1N3 tlNOltl3lltl  -   (<
a)( rv- n), zr otu3. a,> s. scN V 

fz ;

m Plm
N

W V m

J
I    

V W
a

J      
c v

m

i a

O            I

505



rnlb
O

s
r

o
nsd

d r i 1  LL

ry\
J

S 
ys

s

N V
w

Nu i  - w e NQ    
Z   -     

w

r Z      ow r\
t

m< N               
G g oy r'

pr   '-      w   -.   Q s       
Z W Gz3   Z             NV c  _    z i      N         

Qcn   Z o      
e g      

aCJ  y       w
o i l

w>  ga xv
S t       

3, 4£9   /   
U

N    

6   P    -   

O

S/
by>

oa
N 

l

l

w   ^/

8       
i

i:

i3 3
3'

f9N  / n
o97g \_/

N7 2

4

3 i
0

3
o^         

x w        w' a       o^ i
e

2  6 ry    a¢ g
Qo     

a         oN
5 y      _

a S
b

o

g  ,;       

g  <  <  <tiJ60 s      

d v

b= /   ti   k    S

al /      N       
q

b)3pf.s
Z9N.

j 
l

c
7 Wo a  •  u w

ii Z Q° i i w

N

e           
w  a U' O

i'  sS a
a g

a!'
o

o .,
c, w r ., c, ,., a

e        N Q o dd A« r dr 5

I               a o W        

ss`-,a)3 ao
N

i

I m
J

I
aa

I
g   

o
I 

13
I 

3 I om a

P I  ^ 3' 

I y'

I`  nn a
3, ZO, BO. f4N

w

lL- CL lO3
I o  

o,
e,     

a  

J

v   <',   I a`  
w o       =

3

3 I Z a d
i

U I
I Z  3 a w _  

3 N
a d

f)   O -
I ~      

I   /     
n

O O

Z           w
c/`       I

I         0 0 0 z o     il J liiC Z

y,
S,   zo o    a      n< m
s 

BL' fft 3. ZS, 91. f4N Q.  • }( \      Z _ 

s

506



rn

o

a      9133HS 33S
N

w
a      0

w

NQr  - c 

w

z f— s      I
rdZ  '` W c3w

a$ W z
cA     s`- W   =

r w= ff         } U w      
a

UJ('3  =" <  ?   a rn    
N

w
Q(n o s l7 p

wm g a   `    

o J  _       w o
U

I

m
I

w  I 3
N GRACEADA IANE

f

Z     
S o     

U U   I

Ig U
m

n I
U   =    I

zl

e m.

81 99 I

Q

a 3. Yl,fLZ9N  , Il

3 gl

v       

o  ,       r I;,,  
g       ''

N      ,+ 

g uI-
e

z     ' a

3, 6S,6aS9N   
ZC' l9  "'

I
CAPRICORN COURT

aJ3 JEQ

Q a
a) 3 gS_[.(

9N  `" 8-<    '
n  a u o"'       .( 4' g 1W a       3 za
r

o N r:    zVm            /

a  F 3-    W      "

Z o 3 J   - -  

N       `        ' 

o

a 3 a   . I

I
o

H p

H              o   l   

Z  -        v S p   . o9Z9 I . W       3
w    ,        5 3.;Fzo Ny_
Z    Qo

e e
r  ="

o • x    
a

Y

3   ,    f3 I 3
p' w

S P
z. 3.B4, 1£

B9NT'  R
1kf 0 INIW3 J

09is

i

N e              

I--
09' Zg

Io          

U

3.CI. ZE99N
ti              1

0 Im   _    _  _    

a d a        Ipr
I g iMLL LL 4 4

og
m     

a

g os

N, ' i i Q vi vi 4 i 5        3. 41, 00.f9N   I

Ix   -     

Z
mW W W w w o

w Y s o  m  
W 3 z    `"  '"€ w w       

i'     
mg    i  

cn o 8 s  d a M

I m     a

w O O O  06 O
i     

33. 61, W. C9N   
a

Ib
p

snsb
d

oszs-    

i
e

b 133HS 33S

507



rn

L 133HS 33S r

oz

N              z a          lano 3Maio a       I ww

a-   a O an    I
Z

p 

Z
w

a

w

q`-     ga
Z W  a  . Z     N

LL

I   '
V cs  < Q N     I
QcnQ k 7 0

z z w I
w  

F  w o
ww z wa

pC

m

w  g 3z`       

H   w o     

2  ,  W  3

0
m I 

w
s

u w

A

R

V m  I
S I

m

I i
o

o

I s

IZ
F I

w

Z I6  w

m

I

Ie

a

I
ln i c   

a

a       

I
W a u   z W .

Q a _ v6 aZ     

o
p

IZ 3

a W 3    
H          
Z    -    •,    

n

Z      Q    ian000ioMsia       
o • x t

N      

I

I
x

1

y,     I

I

I

l

s ,  ,     

W4

h,     
3

Sl
ys

s           

2

508



rn

B) B, l
L

r

k

J    `   i7s s      
H

la
1

W Q o

0 H IH)          
l

w
Nv    _ c  W

aT k=    
s'

U

e

H

Z   
z

w
a< w c=n

V a cù7  <¢   Z

Q m

Q g o Z
W<    m       

w m g
Z m 3   m   /

a  
WW ,, > a M

g
oC      <       w   z

v

h h   

s       o

z n w OV

b
1' Nl o      

s Q     /
e     /

Zo    '    

n
o i

zl i
a

LL
I

r

3 I rym 3 I J»
N o S a

p    

I s o
a     I I      

o

N

I I      

W
a

I I
n  

I IZ a d ` Va N
Z S s a w s S`'`}      
O

V _ 
s g'.

V

wv      

Z
Z r  

IW
w

IZz o o a oa o w

IO • X \

N   

o

Iw'

a¢      I
a~.      

I

ryIM
g I

e

ly
O>,   

O
j       _     

v
v--

3

2•`

P
3'

ti
h

e
9

ys
s      

509



rn
O

T

p
LL

YS Q
N O

1- K m

a'      ap

Ncwnr  _       
m t7 0

m<     
cn

Z W 6
Z  ¢

N

d' 1      
o S

i 9'ySw        Cn
m

m      `

5' 

F `` °    .

Zw         w ry     
i\ Qri J)i$

UQCS'  <"     ?          Y

QJ
Q

n J   Z o
Z

s ry'      

J          
m m

u`         / 

m
o` Ln\  

ti      /     '^, 6
a

s P  yoo
B\    /    .^"

3  /

a   

w
i'\

e_      /       _./       d'   

b .zo w 9,---   
i

o
s a i       / o 

N

w

1       ;= i     /
6> f    - 

3, 00,00.00N

1). ZZZ9 a

I j

o

Q-    
or

F a    
3

p

I
G

w

o  "
3    

o

3l1N3AbNIlkf390
o^      e .    /      LL LL 4

w a a
ry     U    

4 LL

o 0 0 0

3 d F e   / 4 m v       
v

z o ¢¢ 
a 9Fl a

m    

i n QN
i i i

m     M 
I,    oN r   ?  

W

l       Nr    N 4 ti 4 4N
N   ry

n r

I      '

3

ry
w  _  _  _  -  -  _  W z

v i

SF7
ry F Q

a
o r

J
P

M

O       m ti p  
8         Z

U 3   /       
w      _wWr a

W w 3
m

m ..  v i
n og s a s $    gw

3 j  ----     
a a a OU O Oa O O  O  O

m sii'' I---         l
S         

d
0

3 01)   3     // 

m M o            
w

s
a

n,:

a a
a,       ,   

J

a

a„      

Iano H iain W
o        a N
Z    - 

I
a    -

1 o 0 3 a w

L 133HS 33S w    -    ^ 
z o 0 oa o

O • ?( 4N 

510



rn
T

LL

s       
Z      _        ¢  

2      

N z g       

Q       O
o Z  j

8"      -  

T z w

o             =
U

F

P¢ W  ( n
a -          

a

5  

a 

aN YN    
y   w 3 o  o    :   

Z

C3̀  <
a   Z OC p ha   "- k" s " s  

Q( nQ   17      
Z

3 d w _     a g 8 '  N 

y             

R O  _ s r
N      -    

w -   -  -  -  & 4

m Z  -      Z a 7= < a     ` d ` 2 m ` 2a R 
W w aw   "'    4'

as"     w o       ^ o o W o 
c io d da d, oio gz g o

o      

O        
Z  

LL

o oa  Q             ^   

Z N        O • X ` 1N  w

i

I

O\

3 Id00SS0, 7130
6"

Fa)(^- n,ssrr>=.
ar,rc.si=v,0000sr-a- - Q       -

i

ro z= i e ez. r=v oosros= a M, rs,szeon
73 yyd 133HS SIHl ND 00aa    -

b 1IV130 33S   /
r   ,

y, 

T
JI    \` 

ez i9 M, cs, saeoN     _ _ _

m

zres— —    

g¢ O njw  

I w J, n
n

4fl '   
i P

j I o

l- w! N

n    cr

a

JI = I       /      

v  //

n  
3,m

g 1F1 0
NpINll3tl P U   

A i

Zv    `

N

3"    
M  

zF,       
g

y     

o

N         

b       

m W   / . OF

o   

S        
O3  /  

v  ol

G>         w  /    

I  ` iF7     / Q h
w          

1.. 2 r         wN e    "' a S

3e 
N           

m N-r   , op

w  

p I
y i

pN P a"

N       '/

2       /  

r g
o

w ` o S m      \
J\\\

C` j 0

o      O      m   - g

1bno m  

g
0` 

g W N/  o
a

aN e  . rd a w  ,

m w
s'\ 

I
b      S w,

1 W19 LL

y^    

a

W`  y z

a"•`

o<       z  // a
Sr UU       

ry       

N

U  

1 d¢ a      
G

6   
n\ w 6     

c 

r\   

S1    

1\ m         aw
5    

j^ a     /       //

J'
y

v //    

cP      .

511



rn
T

Q/         

N c
r  - 

o,    

w

Q
w o i    

aZ  g

Z
w

O             pObO
m

N

n G\
g 

N
9J S w i ti

cA     <`—      W Z 1'  

S QZW G   Z W       

a

oV g c  _   w
a,  

m

QcnQ o o a

y+—
J   _   

Z       (
n N

LL  y         iJ

a
v

pQ3\

a

2 ,

c i

p\

a     S2p°,

N ddm

O

H• pp3, ~       
4 N rc
7

Z

K21A``  S&

RA 1a   o4

H'

3Nd 1m/      

m_ O

W

m 

S  \,
ryN

a ~
1 O ll3MOl07

n'

p   

I    _
k'rc w'

o,
d i —   ? m

s     s oN
m  a          Q

d       
P d

o

w       

Z
m 

No _      w
O

z _ ., i 1
3Nb7 b0 3Jyyg

NN
e

i

lb   
N

Nyp Ndy

N        \

Nrry3..   

nrc_
16y_    o

G

ty

anNanv sniyvnor
G

3 73Jayd

d

e 13JN7d

l j N

ry

GE o   _      4u  /    S' U       

m

C
4   t v

4         V Ua

1

I

3lIN3AY NOltl3lltl7

I

U
W

U W

J       o^4
MR °   U

512



rn
8     

LL

c>       

N     =       r
N cwn  _    

7 r.       
2 w

h
Z      

J

F2S 3, BZ, IZFYN
T z  

N
i   d o

m a
a

w

e

UQw     -       Z a

Qv Q   

U    , 

Z G
0

a,

W       S3L' y 690- I
41- 16( 3. 8Z. I, L4N

cti
ll

l3 NVd
ortzi

s       oeee i), rosi
g zozs

3.<<.[
rrN

zozs

oc      °'$     ;        
zo zs     ,

to zs

iN_  o
u'  

g   
a

my z a           

Fo"
y   ¢ OZJ_ ¢

n 3       ;.

a      

2
N

zZJ '--   i

til       
bZ84-  -,

OOZS '       
h

bYgf
61

m 
0

C

WZS          v3 , u.ssN         O—_      133Fi1S 00zs-     _o a3dd l

QJ,Z9' ygF 3 BZ, S6.46ryr I     /    },     M' IY),
lOL9Z   ( LS3. BZS4. MN

3_       . fZSil 3, 6l, lD. 6bry m I          

c       ),
6(' 99l 3, 8Z, S6. bbN O WI

D6 YI).( 0' f9Z-_ A 0
i', pi o I i"'. 6f' 9(-'

n e      
SS' 9a!

3, 6f. 16. 6qry I$   ¢ 
l        y        

l

b

g o 0' 101 3, 6l,       l
I

n 3nd, 01 0( C1. 6DN
Urn

m  v ;     , 9g
y

N',' 

lo   /                  -

l            

W ry
3. 6t 1e. 60N      i`  

ry

3nd. 0! "      I 4l I

f01 2/     lo N 3   e
I 3. 6/.

L>.
6bN l

r w
Z

c I  ,      ry S       
n   99SY1   g 3 o/  

v l
l         l

3si.(
t. ssry         i           

m     

S a I
ry 3 i I

w L    . J iry   / iN./ 013, 61.( 4. fip
y3 ry W

ry l
3

M
N 3  3 /

m        n 3

1  \
n  

f4' gq
3. 61, l6.64N Iv4    /           

N

o=

p

o/ H  ,      

n
n I

LL?   

o

z

2 2e /    
Ta a u ia

C1
I ,

W' IOt 3. 61
l

w m     ?     S L6. 6/ ry
3 .          

zo z i 40'
p  

n Y1d. 0!  I l W

a   m I ds, ts.ssN   j'   n W
3

Oj'   
0

u'     

g

U          
Cn _     P r /   `_

r     00'
IOI 3,       i      ¢ a          I

J

W
m

F I  N Q/ Y n
61.(

Y.
66N I      W

ww W S68Z1( L) 3„^       "     I Hi m 3 ti cAd e. a s N       i S o ti

w    i     i 3 d, oi
or

Z _   : w    i i , 00 ioi a) 3. ei, r        
i   O; r      i

o sti

o

N

9I' OZI( y) 3. 42. 4AZ4N        
J               3

8     
I '    

IN I

m

i h N I L N I
I

I I

J          

i

OOYOI( 8) 3. Bf

N 

N

3 11Z4N
o

i_ Q .
easu( a) 3. ei. or. scN I I   I alo  ' 0'a r ì m

I m Iz I             
I I;           

3.

t9  

I^ p         

I

M       

1W

N

IU

I la    I   ?
ryryh 6''e i i , 99om( a} 3. rz, ra. rN

loru a. eo. so. ecN

m
m,    i

U      

I. a O . oc cl i
g Ni

m

e     
3   

o        

J  a  N

o m
a I

e          m

ic' i li  `°f•,      .
00' 68. 00 9C_--  ,    . n      -__-_--

S"

I I   , 60-HOl 3. fa,90. 9LN     P
J

m
i).oa ss 3. n.> ssce m i

z       ' 3' M. f
N

olz

I Q I o    o
W- W). 00' Z9Z _

O _
W- V). L4- 9LZ

O
1), f9 869 3, 19, 9S. SfN

3M. f aa    = ry U

133k11SlOkiVH93` J

cn m 3       ,      ` r c2( 0    ( i), reai 3, o, rsstN
I

0 .. C4
lb" 6f   _, 00' DS_   , 0' Ob_

9Gj
y o

o
G=   J I -"'"  e'    7  \     li

m     Q'^    
n    J 3, 

na    _  o
a I     

i     i I

a   -   _  w    w     ,
S/       

a5 0 -       -     .,; S 81 m' S I

Qo    
p  „    ¢      

s.    3
f

m m o+       o+ 01 3 3 ml g
3       a  ^     ,

Y

I
I ss/\       Q    p     P N P/    -    

I
m I

n n

f N       <       <       <       „, 
I

I

a -
e  "'  z

3            i        I 3
a

3   

I O'

J° yoz'' o £
9 i 3

r by  ey`   i),oruz 3„ ro, rssrN      1 w

x
i

a',  a rpru__   ,000s--'--• oaos-- --. 000s_  _. 00z 
l,  ,

tt    ,[ c   -----  ----    >

So,   i t
p

I
H'  

OO fZ£ 3, t4, bSSCN OO Z9      , OO Z9     ( 1), 99 C6C 3„ lb, tS. SfN
m

h

a

Q-       o    
w

rv- rv). 00-ecro    ¢ N       
v

rv- w). tezez

oN        ( 1), Z90LL13. 19, 4S. SfN       

N z

0

513



rn
T

LL
o   

o Q

N      a e

N
T

NuWi      
ZO w

w

N= Z 133HS
S

TdZ  ' o

Z
T  

m
a

a
rrra

J

UQ(   a o     Z S 3. 8Z. lZfb N
C 4 5

a

Q Q     ^ 
J J

GZl      .
1f8( 1 3. Z0. 80.F6N

a

a  _       
Z

s
w>  a W

or es 3-
a= 8s, enosH

5   1N3W3SV3 3dOj5
3

N
4f lbL 3. BZ, IyC6N

0 2
53LJy 690' t

ao su 3. l3 aNd
L, LLC4N

J

N

CB' f6Z
g

9J

3
U

3
Q m m

a p e

P o

zs3,BZ(

1JZ94g 3, 8L, 54. 46ry BfDBI----__  1

2

CO'  
3

51. 04N
cry- rv, or9a o_       laaaisaad 39

v

a dnl cibrers,°`
i,' 15

zs

l      '   
YV- IY), l0' Fgt '     b       `

a    I
r ab EIRI

os"           
6  -____. B96913- BZ- S4. 64N a N189, 15 j

m`-     d}' 

gi cpi /wz I 1 `    I m
o s

I 1
a z I l l I     / L /

Cn =     F
J

2 I I

w a s/            

ry

w w     o
N (  .   

I
N Q i l 3 .    I      //

OZ  « rs w   ry p     $ I
d.

o l
o

I

e  / 3e 3  /       Q

o0

o O / N N        
2 2        

J
o          

d N

q

p ---

J     /     W    e    

3' m
I                 

a       /   
I  ;   3P   I m

l a_      I•    a I p m
I I o i      m I o

l I 1.
3..   

I i I  

l  d At I
W /   

sp a I

o£ /

OF   /   I
2

y 
d`     3M. f

H I              i I    l I

W NW/    S g
m,,w,
J N

Cn i

N       

U' 3

w I I e,  u       
H

N i P   = p o

I     ' I,J I
y

LJ
II I 0

I Ih I      ei 3.
d      

I 

I I ycP ^>  51,     /      W I 3 _
titi b'^      I j

I
la I   /     al

P

n•

Af Af j  /    
z

J

I
v,    

z_

I-'    
a

o

3      '        dl' 6L 1_  JI J 0.
i m

o e       -       

Q  /`  -----
s----      '^    / 

sr v----
a 1S' B41 3. 1Y, 4S. SCN G N-     

e m
z r

v
S t7

a

rv- rv), oazsz           rv- v), c> scz
0 0

o     .'  a,y
aO

3, 19, 9S.SfN       
O    ,

C4964 3, 14, 4S. SfN ry       65 ti`'

133ki1S 14}iVH83 J
R` `   d    Y'

1), Sf Olt 3. 14, 9S. SfN l I

p _ T00 06   _. 00 S CS7    qq9         
I

I

g   ^ Ig I       l 3          ry o3 v    I

3 II¢
Y    / 3 3 3                 m P m

N '` 

I W

d
3 3 N p p P       - Q

Z          , 
P

P
I 1   

N    
N     '

3M C   
31 3

Q
l 3 fld, Sl w

n\\

I I n

1), OOZOZ 3, L9, 4SSCN I

V'  

z,

Lf

z .

C , _ OOZS__  _, OOOS____ 00' OS_  _ 00'OS\. I nl
O

w   _---- rxtj 0- 061 99' 09t
i>     

Q00' Z9 - 1 -'  , 00' Z9  - - 990SC

m

1). 99' L6L 3. lh. YS. SfN         

g m 133HS SIH1 NO 1
8 1IV130 33S       --+

s zst' a
3f1N3 V NOlti3l V

13 F1Vd

I       ( rv- w). aoe a          w- n), zazsz 

O 0-      - -      -       _   -   -    - --- O
i),a> o u 3, ia, rosscN

514



1bn SnS"
a b HS

s
3    _"       ,      

c,,)

N a r

wNQr  -    
u

d'   
s    j

m Z   =UQc  _      
QcJnQ   t      ox L

Z
i 

w
J  

W      ,    

o

N   /

a    16    

JS'i6,
3 i

w i

O a      '
ti

30
Mh

y o 2

e

I i LLN
y"z

3
i W        

a

U
O ll   Q      

m

p x
b

ry

i?

d
w

2
I h a
l    Ni

n K
J

y r. o o
F 5 i  

K

3            v
W

i

U c
b

yo
N

zn =       i  2 _ d

la    i'

s

I
I

m

w     ,  
w     ,  

I
U< 

z
p

J

Q

1

N     

II
w ya{ o in ig m

I
I

wN
W 

6 ~  

a
3

a
u       

orrs 3, as. eaosN N      a
3 0

a a      -    a a

aff

w3      F

a 
a      ~   

3 m
a

W
N3 ar;    .

a° I—    F., z
a, p o a < _  3`, V      _    Z a J

a      - 

s       3
Z

a    d wo
y _     y     

O s
V

a` a w
mo   w

H         
a

m r <     ;   Bo
I b -        .   

w
h

I o  

j>   Z N ,  o          N.  a

y`
Pj

s
j O o O • X \  o    

o    w

515



rn
T

Q

91133HS33S
w

CVcw  _ o

I
x

raZ p Z
I

Q Q 1i1

IryT
f J

I?     W

UQ  < z     
z

m     w IvQc_'nQ 4 7
G'    

J        , 

w

N            

w>       

5      
GRAGEADA ANE

3

S

U ryLII,
ti IZ

z

e

3""'_"
i

N

a     

g    ' i

I
i

1     I__-__._o J

CAPRICORN COUFT o  
U      

o

S" m o          U  I pm
3¢  Q u i

Z V

d n l V}-

W K CJ

I F

l

n II 1

N i           2 I
N

i

Y'„   
f 

Q

r w
m?  3o o  -  o o i o

e
N         

ti

3-__      
i W       ;.

a

I f

li?
a

g 

LL

U>  I
tl     ` ` _     

Q
Alo

n

F.    I
I O

f2 y

Z i
w a vI i

UJ
w  4.,  w w  a.,    

v,         W

w W  $ 8a $ a $ $     I
P i     

OH      Q  
a w w w w

Z _. v.,<      W    Q        
1b 00 INIW3 J

x     =

a

x

3
o  -   o a ea

a

J

d    s     J

a   _    

a    ' o K 1`'

I      
w

i U Q.

3w r     

Ci       
g    '      

I

R

w   
vNi 3

N
g

3 m S

I
a

J

Q            Fi o a
z      a 1

O   F                a
Z          

a

N       I
Z Q

d 3        ig   -      1

Z         3      - 
3• -  

3^   ;

i
3 rn

3 moY T W

g f     U V

w  _  _  

N

o o
F

o  
r a

c n o o ma

N N
Z  ¢ o

i
p

p   

z
M

a  ¢_  

Q e m  ^     i J
F-

Z
N N        a   N

w      '

b/JO
S

S
d      -..

n\       --
O  O • X \  o    F-

o o

k(

l 133HS 33S

516



rn

9l 133HS 33S

J

LL

Y/

N

N  _  
0

1Nfl0 ll3MOl0    W

Q      cnS

z   
Z

j a g W

Ua  _     ?
Q g   

o         w 3

F—>       Q

s  
3

I

J w

II
cmJ 

R-
l

o

U  CK
W J O

N
r+   

j j S U

w
Q q O
CJ

y
w

m

a m

Q
f-"  -    n

F

I
od    

v{   3 m

m

F o'
n

CJ   -- 
o

Z       
a 3

N

ti w      _  

3

3 N
Z J

n   

3 n 3
Y   ¢

z

o   3 z         m o   
w lanoo a3   o MSIy

9 o

OO o OO  • X \

z

e '  . " 

a

i

m

o

s-sJ N

N

w=

Z _ n

r     Z
2

ww

ys
s

517



rn

Zr) 
T

o l,(       O

N      
1bno

Hoiy    

g      
R     '      

ys
s     

NcwnT  _     
w

n

g<  w
Q        

T Z   Z g

j P

W

UJ  a  • ?    m

Qcn¢   
LL

J
Z W.,     m> oJ  

YS=      ,     3 3 3 a     

j  `     t S 3
3

m
S 3

Z _. Vn
v h A     

o

vn
a.

yo
r

b1

e

Z          

r r

o d

I       a

J o N
I S U N

i Qao i
I U N

n     O

o
g O; 

I

ga P
a    ss   < I

a           

F     
l   "

o
I

n    6 a m   wm
N

a

x     3 0  s   ^  m-

o      a       ""       a      
g I

a 3z     <   3 d w- ;   3 g   ;=    Q
z J          

a x w

o a 3     3 sa mo      
a    -    

n

o    -       j Z
LL

a    LL 4   < m   m.  W
W

O  O • X '  0  /       } t

M

e

16.
3 J

1 0

a r

mv—
wo^

o s._

p a o
s    

yn Q
ya

Z a n
4 2y

Ay'

Q
s

w o  ys
ds

518



rn
m

o

N      < r

J.     3 W

NQ  -¢ t   e

o z m
a

a
W S'S

r         w   
m

Z w   3 . Z v gw    Y S
U JC  < a
Qfn J

p 

l7

w   m         M

ry

g  ' y    

j    <  i    o
y

g    . '  

V  `"'      .. p`'    
P      e`      /

N       
N

N<       t'      

y
i Z0 w

e'    

I W         J oQ-   
o w W        . 0

N I N

e m

p ' a'  Z`    lw      5

I

4Ll  __    5      

g

o

N

S
n F i i

i..__......_..___      i
w

am

3

Va
w

s

R        _ s
i w

s J, F
i 0; s U o o ,z  .,<

o

o

anNanv NI1H380
a o

ry a
3

d d d d

z Z

8 g B    

j o 8     o               

W ry      
h    b b b

v    

m      <       

o Q       y              
W

j           p <  <  <  <  <  <  <

QN   :  :        
z

S r' w J w w w w
p I w z v'i ' 6 ' 6 rc ' 6 rc ' 6 ' 6 ' 6' 6 ' 6

m

af     LL m ' ' ', .' '.', ',
3

W

j       `°       t= x x

m
N

y N Z ° W w w    ; ;

w W ya < a <  a < a R' 2, ', 2

Q  1
in w 3  Q o r

W Q
o a  W   $ w 

I w O   0  0    

m     y
o s

zr,       i n

o      wo     ;°

e       
J am    

J
i `'    a   o

a Sa   

le o yo din
a       = m = a a   `

0
j F      -   o

oa     - z
N       W         a      z a

a o U
N  

W

wma   ,

z   
F a a 3,   <  <     _

9l 133HS 33S a w_ ;" "      ;
J

z
l  

3 `  a 3 y     
0 0 3

U
3 a w'    

mo<   W

a   -    m s      ;   o

Z         -    = _    -    <
w     -  a    N N 

o       \
z          < <   a

O a O • }( k e          k(

n

519



rn
T

LL

N ax   a       

NCnr  -       
w .   o 06    s    -  

w

F_  o? 2 F      o    -

ma< Z     _       a
p 3m

Z   F y    p< g F      g      _  =   Q  o   
UQ(  -,    • ? ff Z   a < a a 3'     aw    ;_

Q/(n J   U'      Z  ` 
a  `

5 3 a   _ 3^'   a   k'

LLL
J  

i       
Z

n 3 3 n U

3  

a
3           

mos g! 5
rw>  `   H  ,

N H     -        
o a

Z _ rM< 

f  \ 

s

Z N      \      a

g O  O • X \  oo   .  

O_

3AIkl40SSO, 7130
R= 1500. 0fi3J' 38` L= 43J. 55' M- M)     

r

O

I
I

la

R= 1545. OQ' d= 4' 29' 18° L= 121. 03' INOB' 26' S3' W
T3 2fbd o. 00'

O      

N  -  I       =    - -  - 
J

a- -   ,- -

i`--  
W

i
M ' ON        

a---   "    '    Q___ Q

5   "     

swib
J

1a110 NpINl13Fl
n

z
z

O

Z

3           

N
Z

2
w      

w

2'

o 

v v a
W

ffJ N w r

O i?    
O;

H Q    \ g\  e =             //

y     h   

g         
w Y

Jm,
w     

h      o

N U`   /       2 s U i"'

o N m 3     ` /    a
m o  oW LL Qf'o    

N x
w

a 
h a     

J 2
w

U V  on
no

a oIy 

rybn8
r'

a      
m ww

X yro. .,           o w a
Q.:

ya  a o       

0

i a
a      

0i

i,"         a o a b'     '        _a

o  <  z        

oa a
o,       v/       

d o a R    
a  -      _  

v`

A

O

d  sm        xN   
s"

6 o       q o  :  
d

0
o       "

V' 

oti ",, o0 0 g
3"' 

4<      0 4   4 

e     /  g  -   -  -  - -  -

W     a  <    w wa w1 :
W   w wa iR  m a o o

w
3 aFry 

W

y       \,'       Q `& o  a w o  a 
o

w O O O O O O O O 
cP      /

520



rn
T

LLQ
J

N a   w

W a r
N(n  _ 

U, a w
F o a Z a  

W

e L m w
W 3

A

r a           y     a ti 3

U Q
w  <      Z a m 

a

n"' o .- . t°

C7 p R

Q Q  l7

J         2 0      
w  F`''   W c .,

6s       Z N      

3

3M, C   '
Q U-

N

I J w

Q
a I    

w oa R   `      p

nO

5
i

i
w 3

a N ,

a

a

i
3

i

i i       
i m

n       -
h

o  3  3       -  -          -     _  _     3 3        _  3
o m     A
S

z i i z i i

z

3

Q        n v    P s n Q  y, N
S"    

m     : ' r' n
a^,       "_' N    ^ "_' e n n e e       ^ m

O       _ 8 8 9, S S S
o

8 4 9 8 8 8
0

8 8 8 8 8 S 8

m

c=7       

O

x

w

W a    ^' R     9;       Y{ _     _             _     8 

Z        
a N     a a n v    c

z    

w       
J

OU
O

w             
J w
mQ
w o 3 3 3 3 3 -        3 3    ' r 3  3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Q U h

U    - o

wZJ
J

521



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage

2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village- Village 1

EXHIBIT " B"

TRACT 4172 WEST VILLAGE - VILLAGE 1 AREA

522



t

FUTURE UNIT 2 LOTS

a f V   TRACT 41 SO)

v fl  t

VItLAG fE
VILLAGE

N

92F    EPIC

ZJ S ACADEMY

P s

RACT 4172
q,.       VILLAGE Z , „      

VPv BOUNDARY        ` Ry         .             . :_ '.__.y

x., ' r i  ;
f   r

1   , 

i     , ;

VILLAGE Y          ,      >'   ;-,     ,<  VIiLAGE AA

r                . i , .

VILLAGE

44 S   ,        -  ; -   
i L .  _ I 1-i

VILLAC EX

LAKENEWPORT
I

a       `,. r T
VILLAGE' CC   "  i' VILLAGE BB

I .  :   I
FUTURE c y

scHoo sirE       '  WEST    `    ,   ` f--=    , !  1   ,

ViLLA W      ,       ,   

Vitl. ECC  ' ! 
i;- EAST I    '  

CHAMPIONS FIELDS

COMMUNITYPARK

w V i

V VILLAGE 0

LAKE14    
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

j r

I I 11-.L,VILtAGEU   :- ,      r

A  BRIDGEPOIiT       ,      ,!,       }       I I I I i I , 
JA aKe VILLAGE T

VI LAGE 40     ;        Lg E V  
VILLAGE42 l           

t .'_
1 r'  i,- ' F

T
r

TRA 4172

L    _   ,     BOUNDARY r   
Y       _      ' V1LLA ES i

i  i f F i
r   ,       i

FUTUREPARK
c I.

i

i.     \    

I 

1      .

VILLAGE 33     .     . FYlV1LLAGE 39
VILL. AGE 41 f     

7_f

LAKE25
h ki i 11

VILLAGE 34    1,       
I

i   EXHIBIT " B"

TRACT 4172
VILLAGE38            VILLAGE 1

VICINITY MAP
AUGUST 2023523



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village- Village 1

EXHIBIT " C"

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no
less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least $ 1, 000, 000 for each occurrence and $2, 000, 000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement
Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that  " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty ( 30)
days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be

included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at
least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

524



DATE( MMIDD/ YYYY)

AcoRo CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
8/ 3/ 2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:   Nicolas DiGerolamo

Alliant Insurance Services, If1C.       PHONE Fnx

333 S Hope St Ste 3750 EC4 Lo
Ext: AIC No:

Los Angeles CA 90071 no Ress: Nicolas. DiGerolamo Alliant. com

INSURER S AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC q

icense#: oC3sas NSURERA: Uf11t8CI S ecialt Insurance Co.    12537

INSURED RIVEISL- Ot NSURER B:
River Islands Development Area 2, LLC

73 W. Stewart
INSURER C:

Lathrop CA 95330 INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 568441346 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALl THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7ypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR
pOLICY NUMBER MMIDDY/YYYY MM/ DDY/YYYY LIMITSLTR

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Y ATN2117764P 3/ 19/ 2021 3/ 19/ 2024 EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000,000

CLAIMS- MADE  OCCUR PREMISES a oocur ence    $
MED EXP( Any one person)    $ 0

PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:      GENERAL AGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY E   LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 2, 000,000

OTHER:       

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT     $
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLA LIAB
OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

EXCESS LIAB
CLAIMS- MADE AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION$       

WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E. L. EACH ACCIDENT

OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N/ A

Mandatory in NH) E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICV LIMIT  $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Re:- FM 4172 Village 1: River Islands Development Area 2, LLC

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents are included as Additional Insureds as
respects to General Liability. General Liability shall be Primary and Non- Contributory with any other insurance in force for or which may be purchased by City of
Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents.
30 days advanced written notice to Certificate Holder in the event of cancellation, except 10 days for non- payment of premium.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop CA 95330
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Y""`""`   `

O 1988- 2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD525



Policy# ATN2117764P

United Specialty Insurance Company

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VEN 064 00 ( 01/ 15)

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies the Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail notification to the
persons or organizations shown in the schedule below ( according to the number of days listed below)
once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written notice of
cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective date of such
cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation date nor negate
cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Organization Number of Days Notice

Per schedule on file with the company 30

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement and
remain unchanged.

VEN 064 00( 01/ 15) Page 1 of 1

526



POLICY NUMBER: ATN2117764P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG20100413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS,  LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR
ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s)

Or Or anization s Location s Of Covered O erations

As Required By Written Contract, Fully As Required By Written Contract, Fully
Executed Prior To The Named Insured' s Work Executed Prior To The Named Insured' s

Work

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person( s) or additional insureds,   the following additional

organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only exclusions apply:
with respect to liability for " bodily injury", " property This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
damage'  or personal and advertising injury property damage" occurring after:
caused, in whole or in part, by:

1. All work,   including materials,   parts or
1. Your acts or omissions; or

equipment furnished in connection with such

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your work,  on the project  ( other than service,

behalf;   maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or
in the performance of your ongoing operations for

on behalf of the additional insured( s) at the

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s)       
location of the covered operations has been

designated above.
completed; or

However: 2. That portion of " your work" out of which the
injury or damage arises has been put to its

1. The insurance afforded to such additional intended use by any person or organization
insured only applies to the extent permitted by other than another contractor or subcontractor
law; and engaged in performing operations for a

2.  If coverage provided to the additional insured is principal as a part of the same project.
required by a contract or agreement,  the

insurance afforded to such additional insured

will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2527



Policy# ATN2117764P

United Specialty Insurance Company

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VEN 051 00 ( 02/ 20)

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies the Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to SECTION IV  -  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CONDITIONS of the COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART, and

supersedes any provision to the contrary:

Primary and Non- Contributory Insurance

Any coverage provided to an Additional Insured under this policy shall be excess over any other
valid and collectible insurance available to such Additional Insured whether primary, excess,
contingent or on any other basis unless:

a.     ( 1) The Additional Insured is a Named Insured under such other insurance;

and

2) A fully written contract fully executed prior to the Named Insured's
commencement of work for such Additional Insured for the specificproject

that is the subject of the claim, " suit," or " occurrence" expressly requires

that this insurance:

i)       apply on a primary and non- contributory basis;
and

ii)      would not seek contribution from any other insurance available to
the additional insured.

or

b.     Prior to a loss, you request in writing and we agree in writing that this insurance shall apply
on a primary and non- contributory basis.

Name Of Person s Or Or anization s

As Required By Written Contract, Fully Executed Prior To The Named Insured' s
Work.

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

VEN 051 00( 02/ 20)  Page 1 of 1
528



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Development Area 2, LLC and River Islands Stage
2A, LLC

Tract 4172 West Village- Village 1

EXHIBIT " D"

UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

AND WEST VILLAGE - VILLAGE 1 — FULL IMPROVEMENT COST

529



ENG1N££ ft1NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE August 21, 2023

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25504- 83

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2

DEL WEBB- VILLAGE 1

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Striping& Mounments( o% Comptetion)    1 LS   $     9, 100. 00  $  9, 100. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE a 9, 100. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractor' s note for Del Webb- Village 1 dated 9/ 11/ 2023

L J:? v'
P EtKiC, E(°. H. l_ L F_` i.Gi 5 1 E 3G ? Lc: A dTOiJ i A_ 1,:    f' 6'' n c« t_4«     ki r 1 Q; E

T: 25504• River Islands\ Phase 67- Phase 2- Village PP IP1Word 8 Exce1lCost to Gomplete 2023-OB• 21 DeI Webb Villege t Cost To Complete. xls\ improvemenis

530



ENGINE EFt1NG

DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST August 11, 2021

RIVER ISLANDS- Phase 2 Job No.: 25504- 67

VILLAGE 1 ( 68 UNITS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 166, 600 SF    $    0. 45   $  74, 970. 00

2 4. 5" AC Paving 91, 800 SF    $    2. 25   $ 206, 550. 00

3 8" Aggregate Base 91, 800 SF    $    1. 20   $ 110, 160. 00

4 Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB cushion) 2, 050 LF    $   15. 00   $  30, 750. 00

5 Roll Curb and Gutter ( with AB cushion)    3, 260 LF    $   15. 00   $  48, 900. 00

6 Median Vertical Curb ( With AB Cushion)     210 LF    $   18. 00   $   3, 780. 00

7 Concrete Sidewalk 26, 900 SF    $    5. 00   $ 134, 500. 00

8 Driveway Approach 68 EA    $ 600. 00   $  40, 800. 00

9 Handicap Ramps 6 EA    $       2, 500. 00   $  15, 000. 00

10 Survey Monuments 8 EA    $ 300. 00   $   2, 400. 00

11 Traffic Striping& Signage 2, 900 LF    $    5. 00   $  14, 500. 00

12 Dewatering ( budget) 2, 900 LF    $   75. 00   $ 217, 500. 00

Subtotal Street Work 899, 810. 00

STORM DRAIN

13 Catch Basins ( type C inlet)       1 EA    $       2, 400. 00   $   2, 400. 00

14 Catch Basins ( type 1 inlet over type/ manhole base)    21 EA    $       5, 000. 00   $ 105, 000. 00

15 Catch Basins ( type 1 in/ et over type 11 manhole base)     1 EA    $       5, 000. 00   $   5, 000. 00

16 15" Storm Drain Pipe 870 LF    $   34. 00   $  29, 580. 00

17 18" Storm Drain Pipe 620 LF    $  46. 00   $  28, 520. 00

18 24" Storm Drain Pipe 970 LF    $   65. 00   $  63, 050. 00

19 36" Storm Drain Pipe 150 LF    $   80. 00   $  12, 000. 00

20 Manholes ( type 1) 3 EA    $       3, 000. 00   $   9, 000. 00

21 Manholes( type ll) 1 EA    $       5, 000. 00   $   5, 000. 00

22 Connect to Exisitng 1 EA    $       3, 000. 00   $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 262, 550. 00

SANITARY SEWER

23 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 2, 700 LF    $   28. 00   $  75, 600. 00

24 Sewer Service 68 EA    $ 600. 00   $  40, 800. 00

25 Manholes 11 EA    $       4, 000. 00   $  44, 000. 00

26 Connect To Existing 1 EA    $       3, 000. 00   $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 163, 400. 00

6200 ST+' dERICJGE A tALL RiiACi SUiTE 3.30, PLFFk5FlN70N GA E 458$    p 25 223 83dC • F' 20a 5 1 246 i

T: 25504- River Islands\ Phase 67- Phase 2• Village PP IP\Word& Excel\ Cost Eslimate\ Phase 2 Village 1 Engineer' s Estimate\ Improvements

531



ENGINEERING

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

27 8" Water Line ( including all appurtenances) 3, 000 LF    $   32. 00   $  96, 000. 00

28 Water Services 70 EA    $       2, 000. 00   $ 140, 000. 00

29 Fire Hydrants 6 EA    $       4, 000. 00   $  24, 000. 00

30 Air Release Valve 2 EA    $       2, 500. 00   $   5, 000. 00

31 Resilient Gate Valve 13 EA    $       1, 550. 00   $  20, 150. 00

32 Blow Off Valve 1 EA    $       4, 000. 00   $   4, 000. 00

33 Connect To Existing 2 EA    $       4, 000. 00   $   8, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 297, 150. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000)  a 1, 623, 000. 00

COST PER LOT  $  23, 500. 00

Notes:

This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, landscaping, dry utilities,
irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

62 0 1?:.= NERIiiGE 11, LL? AC SUtTE 330. PLEF,SA.Td70N CA 5d"c88   P 925 223 834C  • F 209 571 2465

T: 25504- River Islands\ Phase 67- Phase 2- Village PP IP\ Word& Excel\ Cost Estimate\ Phase 2 Village 1 Engineers Estimatellmprovements

532



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS A TTACHMENT
N D M

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

September 11, 2023

Via Email and Hand Delivery

Old Republic Title Company
1215 W. Center Street, Suite 103

Manteca, CA 95337

Attn:  Lori Richardson

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 4172; Escrow No. 1214022980

Dear Lori:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instrucfions") of River

Islands Development Area 2, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company(" RIDAZ") and the

City of Lathrop (" Cit') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escrov').  The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the

Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closings

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RIDA2 as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The closing
date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 29, 2023, at the time designated
in writing by RIDA2, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below ( each a
C/ osing"). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2024, ORTC will return

the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction,  you have in your possession or will receive the
following documents from City and RIDA2 for recordation in the Official Records of San
Joaquin County, California (" Officia/ Records").

B. 1.  One original Final Map for Tract 4172, executed and acknowledged
by the City ( provided to title by City).

B. 2.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( River

Islands Public Services and Facilities) Annexation No. 2 ( provided to title by City).

6. 3.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for Island Reclamation District 2062 Community Facilities District
No.  2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance Services) ( provided to title by RIDA2).

B. 4.  A fully executed and acknowledged Amendment to Notice of
Special Tax Lien for River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District
No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services) ( provided to title by RIDA2).

The documents listed in Items B. 1,  6. 2,  B. 3, and B. 4 above are referred to as the

Recordation Documents."  The Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order

1

533



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

referred to above.  The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the

Official Records is the Recordation Date.

Prior to recording the Recordation Documents, please confirm that you have received
copies or originals of the following documents: ( i) Unanimous Approval of Annexation to a

Community Facilities District and Related Matters, City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities); ( ii) Consent to, and Ballot

in favor of,  Annexation of Real Property to Island Reclamation District No. 2062
Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( Levee and Lake Maintenance) and ( iii) Consent
to, and Ballot in favor of, Annexation of Real Property to the River Islands Public Financing
Authority Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River Islands Public Services).  The

original City of Lathrop Unanimous Approval must be delivered to the City of Lathrop. The
original Consents and Ballots for River Islands Public Financing Authority CFD Nos.
2013- 1 and Island Reclamation District No. 2013- 1 must be delivered to Jeanne Zolezzi
at Herum\ Crabtree\ Suntag, 5757 Pacific Ave., Suite 222, Stockton, CA 95207.  Copies

should be sent via email to Cari James ( ciames( a) ci. lathrop. ca. us), Cindy Yan at Goodwin
Consulting Group,      cindvCa qoodwinconsultinqqroup. net,       Susan Dell' Osso

sdellosso( a riverislands. com) and Debbie Belmar ( dbelmar( a riverislands. com) together

with conformed copies of the amendments to notices of special tax that are recorded as

part of the Recordation Documents.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received,  or will receive from RIDA2,  prior to the recordation of the
Recordation Documents,  in immediately available funds,  the following amounts,  in

accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RIDA2 and City(" Setf/ement Statemenf'): recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RIDA2.

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are as follows: The amount of$ 134, 885. 20, payable to the City
pursuant to that certain Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop
as amended " Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of$ 3, 687. 00 multiplied

by 36. 584 acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to the
City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City' s wire instructions are set forth below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the "Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1.  You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: ( a) Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso(a riverslands. com); ( b) Debbie Belmar

dbelmar(a riverislands. com);  ( c) Brad Taylor  ( btavlor(a ci. lathrop. ca. us);  ( d) Salvador

Navarrete ( snavarrete( a ci. lathrop. ca. us; ( e) Sandra Lewis ( slewis(a ci. lathrop. ca. us), and

have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from Susan Dell' Osso and Brad Taylor that the
Settlement Statement is accurate and acceptable;

2

534



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS
RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

D. 2.  You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions;

D. 3.  The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have been
fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all legal
descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D. 4 You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents,  as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete the
Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions;

D. 5.  You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Brad Taylor at the email addresses set forth above; and

D. 6.  You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Brad Taylor to record the Recordation
Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinct Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded;

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records;

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction;

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RIDA2 that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following entity
and address:

River Islands Development Area 2, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso       ( sdellosso( a riverslands. com),

Debbie Belmar  ( dbelmar(a riverislands. com),   Brad Taylor  ( btavlor( a ci. lathrop. ca. us),

Sandra Lewis  ( slewis( a) ci. lathrop. ca. us),  Teresa Vargas  ( tvarqas( a ci. lathrop. ca. us),

Sarah Pimentel ( spimentel( cr_ ci. lathrop. ca. us), and Jose Molina ( JMolina( a siaov. orq) of

the completion of the Transaction;

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to: ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development Area 2, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA
95330; and ( 2) Mr. Brad Taylor, City Engineer, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne
Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   a certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

3

535



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

B)   a certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Date Susan Dell' Osso Date

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development Area 2, LLC

4

536



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RIDA2 and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed in
strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.   The undersigned represents and

warrants to RIDA2 and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

5

537



Q 2

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

AFT' ER RECORDATION RETURN TO:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Recorded for the benefit of the City of Lathrop
pursuant to Government Code Section 27383

SECOND AMENDMENT TO NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1

River Islands Public Services and Facilities # 2)

Annexation No. 2

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 3117. 5 of the Streets and Highways Code of

California and the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Section 53311, et.
seq., of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the undersigned City Clerk of the City of
Lathrop ( the" City"), County of San Joaquin, State of California, hereby gives notice that a lien to
secure payment of a special tax is hereby imposed by the City Council of the City on the property
described in Exhibit A hereto.  The special tax secured by this lien is authorized to be levied for
the purpose of paying principal and interest on bonds, the proceeds of which are being used to
finance the acquisition and construction of all or a portion of the public facilities authorized to be
funded by the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands Public
Services and Facilities # 2) ( the " CFD"), and to pay costs of the public services and facilities
authorized to be funded by the CFD, both as described in Exhibit A to the Notice of Special Tax
Lien heretofore recorded in the Office of the County Recorder for the County of San Joaquin, State
of California ( the " County Recorder') on June 28, 2023 as Document No. 2023- 050810 ( the
Original Notice"), and said special tax is to be levied according to the Rate and Method of

Apportionment of Special Tax set forth in Exhibit B to the Notice of Special Tax Lien, to which

recorded Notice of Special Tax Lien reference is hereby made and the provisions of which are
hereby incorporated herein in full by this reference.

This Second Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien amends the Notice of Special Tax

Lien to add to the territory within the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1
River Islands Public Services and Facilities# 2) certain real property identified in Exhibit A hereto
the " Property") and shown within the future annexation area on the boundary map of the

community facilities district recorded on April 19, 2023, in Book 7 of Maps of Assessment and
Community Facilities Districts at Page 55 ( Document No. 2023- 030264), in the Office of the

County Recorder, which map is the final boundary map of the community facilities district. The
Property is being annexed into Tax Zone 1 of the community facilities district, as described in the

538



Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax attached as Exhibit B to the Notice of Special

Tax Lien, with the maximum special tax rates identified in Exhibit B hereto.

The assessor' s tax parcel( s) numbers of all parcels or any portion thereof which are
included in this Second Amendment to Notice of Special Tax Lien, together with the name( s) of

the owner(s) thereof, as they appear on the latest secured assessment roll as of the date of
recording hereof or as are otherwise known to the Authority are as set forth in Exhibit A hereto
which is by this reference made a part hereof.

For further information concerning the current and estimated future tax liability of owners
or purchasers of real property or interests therein subject to the special tax lien, interested persons
should contact the Finance Director, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, California
95330; Telephone: ( 209) 941- 7327.

Dated:     2023.

By:
City Clerk,

City of Lathrop

2-

539



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES # 2)

ANNEXATION NO. 2

ASSESSOR' S PARCEL NUMBER(S) AND OWNER(S) OF LAND

WITHIN ANNEXATION NO. 2 TO CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1

RNER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES # 2)

San joaquin County
Name( s) of Property Owner( s) Assessor' s Parcel No.

RNER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT AREA 1, LLC 213- 610- 01

73 W. STEWART RD.,

LATHROP, CA 95330

A- 1

540



EXHISIT B

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES # 2)

ANNEXATION NO. 2

MAXIMUM SERVICES SPECIAL TAX FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Services Special Tax for Developed Property
within Tax Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event:

Maximum Services Maximum

Special Tax in Tax Services Special

Zone 1 Prior to the Tax in Tax Zone 1

Trigger Event After the Trigger

Fiscal Year 2022-     Event( Fiscal Year

T e of Pro ert Lot Size 23)*    2022- 23)*

Residential Propertv:

Single Family Detached

Property
205. 02 per SFD

Single Family Detached
Lot

Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt   $ 432. 29 per SFD Lot     $
165. 53 per SFD

Single Family Detached 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt      $ 349. 02 per SFD Lot
Lot

Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt      $ 320. 21 per SFD Lot     $
151. 87 per SFD

Single Family Detached 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt      $ 272. 18 per SFD Lot
Lot

Property Less Than 4, 000 SqFt     $ 252. 96 per SFD Lot     $
129. 09 per SFD

Single Family Detached Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit
Lot

Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit
119. 97 per SFD

Single Family Attached
Lot

Property
0. 00 per Unit

Multi- Famil Pro er
0. 00 per Unit

0. 00 per Non-  0. 00 per Non-
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Residential Square Residential Square

Foot Foot

On July 1, 2023, and on each July 1 thereafter, all figures shown in the table above shall be iticreased by
the Escalation Factor.

B- 1

541



MAXIMUM FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX FOR ZONE 1 OF THE CFD

The table below identifies the Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Developed Property
within Tax Zone 1, both before and after the Trigger Event:

Maximum Maximum

Facilities Special Facilities Special

Tax in Tax Zone 1 Tax in Tax Zone 1

Prior to the Trigger After the Trigger

Event( Fiscal Year Event( Fiscal Year

T e of Pro ert Lot Size 2022- 23)* 2022- 23)*

Residential Property:
Single Family Detached

Property
227. 27 per SFD

Single Family Detached
Lot

Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt     $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot       183. 49 per SFD

Single Family Detached 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot
Lot

Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot       
168. 34 per SFD

Single Family Detached 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot
Lot

Property Less Than 4, 000 SqFt      $ 0. 00 per SFD Lot       $
143. 09 per SFD

Single Family Detached Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit
Lot

Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit
132. 99 per SFD

Single Family Attached
Lot

Property
0. 00 per Unit

Multi- Famil Pro er
0. 00 per Unit

0. 00 per Non-  0. 00 per Non-
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Residential Square Residential Square

Foot Foot

On July 1, 2023, and on each July 1 thereafter until the first Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, all figures
shown in the table above shall be increased by the Escalation Factor. On J tly 1 of the first Fiscal Year
after the Trigger Event, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes shall increase
by two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year.

B- 2

542



ATTA HMENT

rn
ry

2    

N otr    

p  a_ 
W      

a -     S Q s      n

i

a F g      '+ gro3u"    y onz u

4 N       
a<

Z

I       ,     Q ,   O ?     

m'

F I
4,"%^'°      g    [ n       a s

o         

s

oa
F a

U    O  _   a U  

g, Z z sess
z w       w m a m

w w w " d a z
w/ a _<<
o`    o c~n « F
a E/      o i< 

Q   o

O      W p` F€
a<         

a
w = o<=         N   

z  
m       -

C7 aw       Bp 0 a
w

w

w o5 aa Z `
So<    OC

a        
w} `=

Qp ao       -  O   m

w    k'          F    w L     
p  w o `     ' Wo

n < o    b U m oaZ o m  Q _       < v

9    m   $ 
3

a

k'     
w _

N   3N w  g o   - zo
a=_ o

N
w - m o a   

a m g     o N€ 
ao   '     g   

o

P „'       .;   

o 

Qa          o R.9w

a    mff       c Z
w  Q

w -

N azo w    < pi                 W  _    
c c

N(nr  -   
QU

c.,

00y- mm6
0  

N_  o F-  S" cF a 6

U' ao' '_"    oa Ul aW v

N€ o   
o

1 Q         i- m a wo,.,<
II

5
r==  o x

1 `= F-       Z i a  a  -        w    -   F o i w i r

r Z  
N o

Q Q o

w N

o

m    =  

a
a

o W

a

N W m
a$ N u    -   

U
H

U  

wa zo

c ,    aa W      - g aa8< m    g  o      o  m 
o   r; w      =< -

am= w a ao=    < <              = o          
J

x

UZ w   - Z      "=
o 3aaF " w''      ^`       g  

w= o  s

J  u    •   H ' 6i$ ao a a   °' _       _         >  wu< LL

ciiQ( nQ   l7 Z p  `    < w w& kw  om o o
w U w Wm J 6 W -    

0' 6 n      
c    

U
c,      

o
a

o
J  wi      , 

w W i No   "' ap" 
Yo o=,

n  

m o          ~  = 6gYZa        wo
o oo   ow' o

s`    "   W p,

r        w

a     a   "
a   ?

w o    o o= m m€   o N Fa z
o wd   <

a« wLL d?=       a= LL ow
oa Y c-,

m

o   ¢   

o'^ m      
o y    .,       o -   Wa

Wa     om
CC c"'iQ    y "   Qgnxz' w

k' n o
J

az     -
m 

a      

z     

F

6s3   _= z3  
LL`   

p.,    >   Z o
Q wooa  _°

m_'

So o m d   Y a6  Z       \         < 6ao   ff
U aG< w< h  < o_ ..   .      i p` 6 Q G o<=' _ a   aia

z            o     m                      

o     g        -     --       

J  

3
f

Q

p   

s

o a   .. _      
a 

o a 4   _       <   
w

W   
6 -   a

W 

bo No g   o N <
go   Q       -     o    o   _ >    o N

ff

a` o          o o g       m   
m m     Sop   o`  

Y
o   < 

a 3  
N

N om w

ap a       _       z aF;  w
g go z 

oo<  w
a            ,     o o o   

o" .   >   o o   gs x    ` _          = 
a o

ff a ` 3m sa a=   ga   -      o      " N    oo o c>  
r

wx d= <      o oo LLN         m    w= a w og=
w o

www8 0 a m `
w    

000 yw
o=      mo         Q

a m a wo' w gS W m 
o    € I o a ws   _- pa Z 

a 

N
U w

a      < w< r

w > a m w   <     m w     Z 5  

o s   _ o   o      < a ae= o o N
k 

a< « o « w a       -   3   mJ `      4 a         "
w    <`

wW

a op  om  a           _ a o o      <    -       - 
o d a   _

ap< a <_ o   oo      w      `"
w"

u =   `    o _      a;  
x

o a U     _ o   _   N _   n<   a    

8 o  =   e=  -     `w p-     ° o   -    a   cn a       

I
z o o      w >  

N   - --Z ~  
v, v aa aao az  a   ^

o zF, ? o s iw=, Y      

o

o
i F  anaooaoi i

a° o  o        .,    e     a    ? a a  .,   o m   bo' ioo omz_  Q       o« a' o a`  in i

543



rn
T

LL

N       H            

O

o       N

o

g    -       

N

m r          

Q       LLi             
a

4. a
Q _   '" < x

ix o       o _

m ry     -    -      _

s ao n r u

so       
z  =    i aS       

N w
m m o          .

a               < a   >  g o g o 0 0
s" a sa; sm gFS s': su' se s.     s'',  o

w wG wY5 wYS w w!
a a  

U a     
Y

a o

a_        h       N N              

o pa a Y   < pQ pa a pa pa           4

w m       - O     o

Z:   vY   `  4     S~   
Y

g N M
w    e        a   
W o z z g z o z z z      Z ¢ o i

o Q
p _ _    

a   .  `.  .    .  .  .  .  . 
n a  _    

S

r
g

3             O n r _ Q -   -     -  -       -

Q
j-         m       < f    _ e " <     ^.  e

o$

N          -    
8 8 g 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

i            

N            

Q=       W   -  g      
w        

Q       

m

o      z

r a Z  ? 
Z wa       --  & Lw"'      z z

o  ` Z'                    e      ^     <    

Q   mQ W a       o  ,
LL           

0 3                3 3 ,

UQW         . Z o a      

w  - _

C7  ?" N            _  G  =       ¢      g

Q(n J  %' U'                O      
v,      O

J Ew      1 Z gF
Z   - c

W       w Z   _   a V a p     -
Z _    -    W LL

O Z    o o w z    -      
5z     U        Q Q

wa o
z m

Q
p Z mow   _      

a J
e       m

a m m o u; e

N
p oi    -      Q roa<  z j zo

w    ^ 3         o  
3 ;    -

O
n¢    - N X

a 3ow oaa"'       Y,    h y      _

w     -      F Gmk' c i   o
U  -       

zw   `., o 0
o iQ w    a       Z

omo            w      _
za w z zJ    

Cn < c m
Ji

U  
a  `   ...-

o W _      n

o

p oQON Wz Np om' 

8m' 
o<

o
WF

oo'
F" no

T

o <
N_`.   oio ciaw       YO

Z      .. A'
Eoac# y ogn_ 

w    

y a
R`

b   
o a

a

p
i_

U'

J F       
m

dj      a a'' r oa a      oa v i<
s6aao ami   a`       ww

z'^       

n 

u" aa,,, a a3o p'       d

bbvd  • F" 
O oa   O

b{

0    
W

wz'
Z¢; z< i p

4d Sy.
y 5SR' rvL ip Sy.     c

P   

QolF oa w N¢ -   o
am

ONd    iai F      -
Oild

N Ua   W oLL v       o

u' K-
a O~ aa

z       FS
LL .       oZo iwmo aw 

J

ow
Fz^ -- 

V..

3Zw
N

a ¢ cw.i imr o a U- Zo -   ap
Q?

wo   Udr 2o? ZoyQa¢   
m

fg W
ao  

om Zc' zuo0 x¢ w a     

o

a Ug
fa

ti   ¢ CSQUw z    7m o o
n

cai w wC 0= oo ZF i i Sa2 S` c a   ¢       

N   _

o_      .

o QZ FT  c

o

ga 00FK n0~~ ~
o 

a
y      

a

W k'¢ Z' w- m      aSia`` o
O h' wpw

g
a   o o_  o$    -   Wa."., oam?   z     ik

sa r w
Z o oow a       o ao< a- - aaQ'^"

a a    
w w

w m<€ m
w`<?

2aa m U           o o€
n 

4
a

o g o wN V- p="

z g a N`= aK3o a<  .
m  `"' pm<    a

N     5

p m _  o o o Fpzaao'
J 

j a_     O 3a a-
J-' a pn WasBnW a a

cn         pa    a< No a< a s` -

v« o oa ci_« a o o r       

o     m_

544



rn
T

k p

Mk
N             

Fw
N(n  -

a     

1—   q    
w

aZ   
8

a 
u?   `- w r

8 W     

ma =
or w< "     y  o      g    a

V¢   <  z  a s o
Q( n J  ` 7             o     w i ` i i q

oCJ  s       
Z O

o

w  gw NnW 
w       

m
W `    j t       

Q=      
W :  

i m

w

i
V W= 

o      w    3o
m  ww Z a aa 3  w w W W

a    
w   o mo

z   8

I o <

c
w   

J

w        I $ `.       cm a 3 0

W I  I
ry

V
J

p

b 133HS 33S

I   =      
S

i

Q     W

o\ _ 3n anornyvnov s o 
FJ

J

ry

ZY' Z6l 3. IZ. 9{, p` N  

m 8
P              

i

oI.
J

fr I     /       w z
b B ZL. S6N

2    

e b3. ss, srsN,° r°__°y- y  la). 1f' FZS3. BZ. IZCYN p   z

a n"     re i3. zo. eaerN. cr z      A     Sm

O       f-           o .
lCf[     Oa N ~'     wpw

f9
n'  

g
Qi   

p
ti  

3 /     
w 

z

z" 
z 20 3 O U' a`'

zlrn      

o / /

J

Z

Ii N
3. ZS, 91. ftN_ R

e 

B[ Tfl

i 7
o

N

ry/      c i

oi grc

I       r

4

a

mG n Q      C ,,; a

o      S    U 
J

i Z c` aW
rd a  p xsg
Q     - ¢     a" N< b'

Plj
y3 mm m i x-

o
v LL So N

h~ Q O 6
3

Cn m a
a'

L/       4 CO rc
z

3  
w v

8
ue

z.

K

I lo
w

i

I I= w

2

lil),99' C6[ 3 19, 6LSfN      m
01' S4  69SSZ       -     Q

Q
OkiYA3lf108NI1NN 3f1N3 tlNOlkl3llV  '   (

a)( n- w). t>ocu3. ro. ros. srN

N

i_
Q    w P m
m

o m
o

N
C m

Q

z

I
m

JI a U v
m a

d

Q      /       
F' 

I

545



lb
O

snsb'
d

s          S,( 
o    

O J
F/S

S
o

c      <    V I U    _       

Ncnr.  _<    w e w

T Qd Z
o= Z

8     (

w 3

N

c'

a

o gi
f' t    p4f

m Q< N      
u g o929 N

7F' o   g      u        Q s       

Z w    o
Uac  <       ?      z i       /
Qu)Q ok l7 a W

i l
J       

Z        m o iW>     
w ox

v

d^ 3 z9  //   

s r9N /   

16op l

sb
pd 2 fj      / l

O w     '

3
3

r      «  
9

9ry

i m27

a

o

0

3m
o         

Zu

W v I UU  /     4, . i

N       `    

rv/    a.  /      Q     
fi

a

m cJ.,  o c,
e

6,      ys            m  $  $  S

Jo

bOf i
x` v cp.i      

j d.     
rc H'

gd `
d  ' 6%  `

bg  ?Js
o  /   

a     6ti   6 Q  
q

bJ3£ SGZY,y 
z z  _  _ 

r   m" s a
A        ih 3 wo '" 

w `" w

a,  v
w o

s  i'  W    s

I               e o W O   
9ss -,

a13La
N

I mV
I

R

v I S.^   I dQ

Ip
K

O

I  ¢
3
F

I

3 I    

p lo  M 

I

S"

I I n

n

j I
3. Z0, 9QCYN

I
w

IL' fL lO3       n

i I

e  ,   J o   I a\  a
a   

w 3 

3 oa       d ' m
N I Z Q Q 3 a
d U I

Z W u W _  

aha Fl g
a ffry a

i I—      F        8
I a

II   —   
Z    r   n

W

f      zl
I

e
il o 0 0 0 o w H J

i.       Z    a     H Wabi
s

8(' ffl 3. ZS. 9Y. fhN 0 • }(   ,    Z ^ 

S

546



rn
T

LL

r5 O

o

N
9133HS 33S

r

NcWn  _=
a O

N

w

Q        v a
oYz   - 

r Z   w W
It w Z

W
c=i

a I

V a  < z   
i Q m    

N

N

a

I
Z  

Q(n J o'
6 l7    Wo N    

5 w

a   -    I

o J  _       w    I

m I
o    Q oo  I     

o      w   I 3

0 N GNACEA A LANE
z     

S o     

i-d I
4

8 U

U  _

z  

r I

Y

P

I

n

c      

m.

BY 99

a 3. bl,fLZ9N  l

vi v

I
I

a

o 1='  

o  , I•n
Q   g       

N

o      $    " h
5

g,' ''
c, I v

r

N

Iv
i 3, 6S,6QSgN   

Z(' l9
y'     

I
pPqICORN COURT I

N          

U W      

N    

eio$

a)3_es.«.
sN  8    I

wa W       

ri9 l

O o -  3s
s     

W
I J     '

Z  ' S i a W _  r

N  -.$

w         ' o

O    ,.'  N a a I o`
s

m
n 

o   
J     

I.0 WZ   _    tiz n y   3   . 09' Z9 / IA :,       I 3
W        .    S 39S,fLa[ N / —

N

o 0 0    
n 3 =       ' n

Z       o Z ry '     / 

O • } C 4         a           

I
a I a

o' a        

g p
Z, 

3. 86, l
B9N},'' v 9,'s' N

ltlllO01NIW3` J

v      :

szs     

O3

nn e U  

2 2 Z 2 2 i

i Z r'J  i'     

O9 t9
U

3. Pta ZL.99N

g                 
e

N

o       '
m k'  k'      k'    e

m-  

z z z z z

3
n

ILL         a a

3  ' 
c  c gp g    

rn

09Z9 +

N,^ u s i Q N Q v; a('n
s        3.tl.OQf9N y I

i I
rnw W w W; W o

w r mo m ms ws m q 3
w 3 

W W 

a d

W       
W         

m

8 $     $       n

m  $   

QI  I w v

W 
o  

n    

I a     
i

3. 4f. ppC9N
Ib

p

snsb
d       \    ,

oszs

I
V

e

V 133HS 33S

547



rn

L 133HS 33S T

o I LLO

N
Z 1Fi110 ll3MOl0 

8       
r

N(nr  _
a       w

Q    t    v
a      

Z w$ Z w
o

n m s a w    I

U¢  a   Z a n i
3

eNQ cn Q   L7 p

J         Z     
ffi   wm

w       W
O Z am I
m

W   w s     
g

5       O   N  

z _  w 
o

3

I

IoO
m I ¢

a

8
I

y

W

I4
d

m  I
S I

m

e I w
o

O g
w

I2m

j

I
S w

z I
w  w

N       a
m

o

w a
Iaa I a

w        = 3
a 

W 

Z 5   ,` 
Z `    o

a a I
Q

n    `'`

H       

1H( 10 0 0   _--    
I   

O • } C \

a   

MSIH       
I

I
n

I

I

N

7 C   

v S ..._........_.._.._    
ht,

h

ry

Va

v
3

s
L,

s
s      //    

2

548



rn

81    
Q Ji    yS o

SJ 1

c zo a         1ano
Hoiy n           w w

Q   a I

J      

z o 
z

w
w

e q   _       
cn ,  Qa W cn

Zw      Z     N w
V¢ c  <" w     

N  m

QcJnQ LLk l7     

J           Z     w m 
YS w Cn N N   

111  <       F a'       3
m

V

m

w      s       a y  //
s       

2

h
Z H w DU

A      

bo
l o      /

s Q     /

3     /

h     Z          

ns
o

I I

LL

a
I

g I
03 a

o s I J  
P I I      

O
a=      

I    aoG

Q 
f

N i I
Q

H   F    w m _. 
I

a I IZ k a a w a 4`      
O   _ 3 n

F'       

w

I

N         

N

Z       `
o 0 0 00 0

IZ    ' a a  w
O • X •    

I

I
U C~ J      

I

I

o/

s

I"°'
I 3

N p
I   n

1y
o,,   

O,o     
v--

O   \     YA.

1 '''       
3

w h0

9

ys
s i

549



rn
O

r

O
LLOK m

N Z

Q s ww o_    e

U

Z o 2

w 6,   

n

Sd'  ',
yv     <= w     :'         m

d s
o   < LL o w     -   r ury     z,.\ 

e d
s

C a       ?          a   y

QJ
Q

y%    \   '"

nQ o U' 4a a

ry   
J

Z o
z F. 6J\ uj      /

LL
J  

yj i
1

w
m

ti u°  
W

m V'^'/                 .

i< N— o
Lll      /   

1:

o  Y op       \           j3    
o yh   o  y" u   

e.    o t   ,

N
W   

ZD w 911--     /   

o r a  /    i              
me - s   q i      e

o
W`

Ni     /
i ,L64f    '        

3, 00, 0600N

N N

n (

1). ZZ' L9

I
a

m
0

a--  
or

o a

F-  U    
3

w

N v m

a w s

0

e     // w 
ti

O 
3 z _

O3          /

o

L

3
N3AVNIly380 o    -  -  -  -  -  -  -

o_       o

N U           
o 0 0 0 0 0

s a<    

1 N
m             

m     - 

h       o

n,      I      

NM =' 4 4 4    4N
M I      i   -

I a  SF7 I3
cn      = i i    ic i

j,    e

F
i   H Z

y'  w W w i w i

m ry m al     3    /      
w aa a so so o So < o Ua' r

W
o'    w oZ „' w Wo Wo o wo wo 00 oa8a S 8a ga  gQ       ------- T     i   ogs—  p n W  ,.. ,.,  w w w

J g   
a,, OU O O O O  O  O

m s' iF'' I--       
I   "

iL.Q '
I      

0

6    

d  .     

G—   _

W    

o

1             y,       

I
W

I             e;ao i
P o a

B   

W ;

2    =   i

o„    i

i

Ibno H iain w 3 '

z        3Fa 

I
Z     a  

o _

0 3 w No
3 e

L 133HS 33S w  -     _
o o o

z         a 
o • x ,  

550



rn

a  -    o

w
z m

Q o        g rn
Nc

f  _

a

o

a       x
1=   "   Z      m  -      -  
TdZ  z'     w i m ie i     au

o W a

T   °'< Cn
w 3 d Z so   _ 

Y

Z W      Z   a p
a    b  ! so  -

Q( nC'
3 a" Q z a    

w $ $    

Q   t7   w z o W a
J Z Z O >    3 o wm e  -   -  -  -  

w         w     Q  
s

N    am Wo  o     o  a ~ w

m Z Z wn Q
3 <

m <   d dm   a
W w       !      

w w      <

za

w o $ o ' d 8  S wR
s     H Z     o 0 0 cic io ci o{a ct+ cis  d, a

Z _ H

a            ^   

o

N

g O  }{ \

a  

w

I'

I

3 Iy00SS0, 7130
ra)( w- n,.

er. rr. vsi0000si=a     __      Q —
i

CalA= l Bl6Z. Y= 9 00' SbSl= i1 M fS,9Z80N73 yt'd 1 3HS SIHl Np   o 1     w       , 
rn

11d130 3S    

JI   ,
J\\ O J

m

9Z' 19l M, fS$ 6BON     _ _ _
m

N ^      

Zl' CSl— —

Q-  0
n   

s
cn

m ,

w          

o

n u
6Cl   

I             N  -    

z           

I

N

z/

U `£

Fj

W

I

z       /    
3  //

8
iano

Nownaa Q      r"/

z0 j,
N

3"    

N     ,   '  
Zr          / .

OF      //

o

o
4

g o'   03    o'      

1 N`! L)      / 
Q    I

N a '`    ` z    /. i I w
e    a  $/, Q 3          

w  !

3

m       oF,   
a

m  '

yo
i"  zlm 

W

N gw  I       /  

r-
W ` 8gm      \

J \

S Z  "%—` Q      -       
o          }     /  2   '

m "       vJw=      w 

1ynp
3

m

y^

y   g4   NynB ery  \   w  `   

o?   sp\

b     // 
a

w.

0.
e`,      

Z     // w
3       ^      '` w   U',

p a       

n;/       

3n                a v      /      
i

c 6   ,,      
ti4     /

m         w W 5    /

I
1 \      i..

Q ee''   /
p tJ\   , i/    y   

y    i

i

551



rn
T

N            

ay.`///      
O

N  — a   

y//      
W

a l7
w

Z  
v` i

Z
w

O R A
6       

Qo
n gl     S w N

m<`—      W z L gd

ZW    3  Z W       
1      .

ON"'   
Q fA  k n

U

l7 2
a

0.5°
a

m

j  y       w c'

a3N
es a' 

e

s     o

6m

60N          

Uy K
3   

ac SM Rap  g G
a o

H, d,

3Nd 1 1m

m- 

mS

N

a ~ 
ll3MOldJ

w'      

k' Q
S"

j     - m
m

zO
j

W j w
su=

a
m  a   S Q

i        i"^ 

amasid
m

w `'      iO'    m—

J
ap N

z

Z _ H . i

0 3ryy   `     rc o
p   

N

3

1b     y,,,_

Y 

n

u/

bihY
N 3p

N         '..._\

1

G

J`
r V on        

G

3

1
3nN3nvsniernor

3 l3Jbpd

d

f 73JL' Yd

i e I       

2   - I

q<
s I /,  i  e

e ia e-

i

n,       
3fIN3 YNO1N3lltl

a

R W

o

e.-.

g-     -

552



rn
8     

LL
o 

T

N  - 
l7         w

F_  o,   Z
trczs 3. az, izrroN

v=,

raZ  `" 
o

cn '    mQ` W w

o

J

U a

U¢   a     z e

Q v  o 7   .       
tia

OCJ         1 Z
c

l
S3a tl 690' t 41 14( 3. BZ, lZC9N

tifi i3 avd
or tzi

s       OB' 98 l),4091( 3.( 1.[ LCbNN g ZO' ZS
ZO' ZS

o.      °' 8     ;        
ZOZS     ,

ZO ZS
mi a

3_   p
g   "'   a

3 3
Qey

9

z ¢

ZJ

p 

ZZ, 7 1 __   i v

bt B4'na. n
66'       Gti,,\ i OZS - Z

o

z'       
r'

BF '
6'>,

a>N    ¢/ 00 OO---     133b1S      •
oo' zs   -       z

a3ddl11
0 zs-   _

1, Z9 bBf 3. BZ, S. 96i 1). CO N

LL

Ic-,     /   
G,     

N' W), Iof9Z ZS 3. BZStriN
y_       .

CZ$
113. 6l.(

0. 6 0
m I 04 psL991

3. BZ. S9. 64N
O 

N v I            
rv'%). 10' F9Z  ' vrf' o I

i-_',
6F' 9(-'

n

e'      
6

p       ,

5' S' gy  lo     /     I      m J   _
I 3. 61,(

0. 66ry      h

p

0'! 01
g' 

I       
d. 01             g  

0

3. 6[. l4.64N
I l     

w N  ti     .
9BC0( 3. 61.(

Y. 66N      v i m/     

I

3nd, 0/ "'      

l

W

I     /
I

wQ
3

I   _  / ,
0' Io1 3

I 2/     l

6l.( 0. 6> N
wz m

I
m  •    ry g/       

cwn
o

9956!   ^

ry

p/  

3
h/       

I     i     /
36,[ 1. 66/ y         z/        

m

u' i     
m I N 3 i     /

b I o
W o l n o O     . I

o ,    Y

0 0     

N

O 

a' 

3 /
m i    i

SI
3.6(!>.

gq
N3 a     ry  

N

a

3 s l

m    -    n3     - 
n  ,

Ff'
B613. 6l.(

6. 67N
l    / W    /      g i o y ry ry IM`      

i    '  o I

o S     
m,

n l
W

I

N

a I
m

I  •
0 3, 6       

I

S t.
69N g.           /

o    /     

H

w i<    i
v' dti'

I>!  
n

d.
01       I W

a=    y.f
36 C0.

6pN   `    /             
N

g      vi

I                 
N

W

d
o   Of     

m

U     III" 00' l0l 3, 6l. L,    
a'          

U
w

Z
e Ir 6 N   I r< W

o S68Z1        I     /    NI m 3 d
N N N 

W a aI3. bL.8496N I c i       I I       .

O       r

l     1 u'     

I Of' I       
3 d, 01

z _     w    i i , 00 im( a)3. ei,>    i    p or i i
i o i seN

i I
srozi( a)3. z, asz> v i IJ        

g     I           
i

i i   

P

i            
i

h fl i    L
a

I       - I       
00' t0 II Ia) 3. BL 4N3 I"    I ZbN

oI

J

I
BB> lt v,aO3ai Ior. srH ryo I

I v la v l I4     ti

I I&     I       ,      
I I            ea

m"'      

I.- a'  

m

n          ,+

f9 Yi I"   

I lo I  ? ryry 6hI e
I I     ,, I , 99 Ol( 8) 3, CZ, fh.LLN

I
i    . lOLll3. f0,90. 9fN

I
Ic'i

O    I I n

p 

0
O£  nl  /

N       I    I
e     

P
3    

Ia cn nm
o n           

s

o o+

c i I  f+      OOfiB. 00 9L_--  
a     `  /)    

S_.

I I   , 60BO1 3, C0, 90.9fN I a +

J

1), 00' S9l 3, 14, 6S. SfN o  

3M. f Il I=

I I Q°    O       - 
v- rv), 00 zsz - O- n- r). ca eca     

3M, f a
U

v   

l

J

1), L9869 3, 19, 9S. SfN I 133d1S lOFiVHB3` J

im       3       ,      ` s c2Q)    p), a' ea 3. ro, rosscr+ 

Qw ia    i ]
1 =   be      ca

asc_  _, 000s_   , aoo>-
s i1 I     . 7° ---  ---

u    / 
3"

a/      
I i I

a     m w    w     .
S,       

oy°'  o
v "

fri 8 8I m' S I

vLLi    
P  

o    ¢      

J
S    ?

9
c         m m¢     

3 3 o

I!
vLLi 3 ; 

q

g N
I    ^

o       Ys,.
3 m m

I 3 N       .
a`  s r h o

S ,       
P

w
P P P        

N z l I _
w Q

n e x
h

n uPi       

Y x

3 `  
1  . j°$r'

s°'. v (    n

z     /   ,   

n   -  

J
3

3
b    .      U) Acctz 3. y, assrN i

w

n I
J
j

s
6 bo,      1/—, oc u.__   , 00 os——, 00 os—--• oo os_  _. 00 as,

t,  

r    . cr  /   

l\\    .,  s  i t -----  ----    o
I

N
00'£ ZF 3, 16, 4S. S£ N OO L9 -  , 00' Z9 -   ( 1), 99C6L 3„ Ih, YS. S£ N    ¢

O a

h

Y1- W), OOBL9    v=i             rv- Y1). Z4' Z6Zl

o N        ( i),zroo u 3, ro, assru     - ^

Nz
0

553



S

T

LL
o Q

N o_    

N

O T
w          

wW

o Z
Z

E
13 HS

S
Z e

m¢¢

W

UQ w   

U
Q    . Z    .

bC' CZS 3, BZ, IZ. fbN C46 U

J(
3 C45 Z7 Q 9i

QcA Q o re i a. zo. earru

j  

o       ,  

Q`    
r 4St 3,  

Sgq N
a.,

s   1N3rv3SV3 3dO15
3

N
6l lbC 3. BZ, IZ. fyN

I

o i
S3E' V ggp l

roo- s 3. u,[
rroN   

l3 NVd

er6z I
J

e9J
B

3
Q

3

a o

3. 8Z1).
Z9' bBf 3. BZ. S6. 46N BC OBI'.--____      

z

3

1). CO' 9Z5
51. 44N

3

rv- w). ocsa O—_       133li1S Fj3d
C39

v      

dlll 1),£
sry° j,i e.

5

m a rv- w), iorsa - --__ b     ,.

6  -____.
89' 6913. BZS4. i0N

O  
N 8 5 t

1

a=   l I

w      l I 7-    I

w=    I            l L i

I h I           7
m  _     I I

F 2
2 I

w W S I I             i
1 i

I I

w W a i I

OZ _ Nns W   N Q    I 3ndAl J V
o

3/             

S
l

e l 3 3  '       
I     / I Q

O N N        

j tn2 2        
U

e

q

p  ---

W    

N  -

ry
l           n       /             y i m3

P

m

I o           m    _   '

I I
l

3 .   
I i

I  d. ot I           
8     

I I W /

o

a'
oF,

Oc   /       I Q a`       3 M, c

F-    03 I

ti"
J0 g g

m2

L

N

I C     3

w ry I b,  o,       H
I I P

z
po

I     I I ti/     0
I I       0 I

I I°" n I 3       3
d        /    cJ

n          ' ,^
J S-

y N
I I h" o.     

I I     I 2`       z i;,  -I  ,- oc,- oc I i d         
iJ J       

a
a

a    =

3

e'        
u st 1_  

i
Y J o.

r---   -     
sr b——

a P       S' 9/ l 3. 1Y. 9S. SfN L    /  

YI- R), 00- Z9Z          W- W), f9' 9fZ
J      

SpAyr

O
3. 14, 9S. SfN       

O    , f4' 864 3, th, bS. SCN N      5` ry` pp ¢
133kf1S lOFiVH83` J a    X

1). SC 0113. lb 4SSfN l p_ tOW`'
g

ry I    

O _. 09   _, 0' OS_  _  C51      49    m
T-     

I 
I¢

g g   ^

I

8  / Ia S
g   "'  

o  `.     I ' r' 
I w

1 m      n            o
m              m N N

3

I
o, 

Y    / 3 m
3     `

V

I     
ci                        

m I W
d m m       3m  p P p

N    

U  Q
Z   /       P P

P I       ;   3' M. f   
3   

J
3nd, si w

n       

I
i), 00 soz 3.>, rossrN

z       '

i ni
i¢   _____   

z

Lf

z,

C. _ 00' ZS__  _, 00' OS'___ 00 OS_  _, 00'OS
I

I      
p

IIj 2 00061
I I

99 091

Q 00' Z9 - j '- , 00' Z9  - - 99 OSf

J

1), 99 L6( 3, 19,/ S. SfN         a

133HS SIH1 NO

g    9 1IV130 335     \_ 
j 5 Zs Z

3f1N3Atl NOlFJ3llV
13 klVd

rv- n), 00ev    

v

w- n), zazez

O—r O-(
i)zao u 3. r, rsscN

G

554



1

5'
S"

d       \/''_,_  

J;

b HS
s o0

j c

N
r

CV
r  _    

W

r Z     
Z

o  

5   

z

or Yo`      w   =  
UQ  o   ?      o i
Q(nJ g' 

L7 ox V j   
w        • 

w
o

F->   

s   
e

i
16   

a  ,  ,, 

Si
3

i
6'bo

O
h N i

r i
i

i

ti

3

I     N     

y O b

d

w      K 3 j 4l

O CP an
m

a
o x

a

a
N

w<
e      _

w

N       

g o o
5

N
m

3      i
m w

W W     C  v n
U O yJ

fy7 i v a H  .,,

pJ ry iry a l

yp  i`  
i 2 _ n.<

id

Js

ii
r

4W
V

i U
o    I

a         f-- G
ri

J

g    g

Q

1

I     

s m 8 m
w" 

ao= 

w 
n  

3
3

P

fl

Of> 51 3, gS, BqOSN

o

3
v'' J

a
a S

y         ^      ` 5p       _     -

W 3       ¢
a

N3      ^   ;
U w

F{-"   _
d h Q o Q    _  y U i   

Z Q ry    
o   

Z 3

3        Q  
Y   ¢

O     - a n      
3   

O

III
W                  

S 5

J
ys I h   LL          .  a

s i OO a O • X k o t        7(

555



rn
T

c     9l 133HS 33S T

NQr  -    

aZ
p Z I n

m

o      { j     i>     z  IJ
UQ W   '  . Z i o, i     WJ  

a
U

m           
Q Q o J

j          

Q'
s      

GRACEADALANE
3

o

J ow

I
n

d

I zl

o

i

3 w ii
o  N

w ii

i5 g  $     i
i

II _____  "    JI

CAPPICORN COURT

n`  

J      o_

4"^       U F- p m
i

Z V
ai

1
i

y

a    

N

a   `' z
a          

a a  $  a a
U             

o

z  

a 3T-,,      I W 3.
m w

o o s
w

h Q;        a I ry Q

io I i i     

I
a      

I             
I Q    

W

W 3

Cn

a a

W

6

W I N N         4/

in n n

w ga g ¢  a 0 p h

O
v,   Q vi d di a di a n a  "'    

Z _..><      W 0    0
ltlfl0 INIW3 j

c

m

N     """'-

i

3

N' 6

3  _          
a d      -    _ 

r   

I
o=    v

a       a v-     w
i a

J      

b I g    ' R

3      $   - 
W F o=      r IO a s'" 3w a g   ;      r i

Z
6

3
3      

i i v      
O 3 w

W

0 3 g v     U v

Z 0
1

N    '     

o b 7p       

Z
N N 3    ,<   a d

Snsbj
d       \,

r

o  o • xR o .   `   x

El 133HS 33S

556



rn

9l 133HS 33S T

LL

Y/

N r

N
T  _  _ 

1Fif10 ll3MOl0    
W

Q      ¢ 
x

2  N
Z

T z
o

z   
Y

e

o

ZUgc  <
Qc   l7

w>        • W

P

s  
3

m

i
I

O
W

ti

ti

ag m a

r

o

i U  .- c

iI w o
i Z SU  ti

w

z o i
zo

w

m

a3 am a Q
a o

F       -      
I I

a   ; m
m

s o   _  H

Z              
U

F   
i- 3.

Z J a o  a   _ 3n _  3 Y sz
o   3

U         m o   
w lanoo 0a 3 g o MS yJ

w            o       o

0     ,.   <  ,  .  a

O  O • X \  e    F-     kC

i.

0w s
S -......,w

h

i      ry

w i

o

QW
N

4      o w

Z _ Nn 2 T

2

tJq  

b     l,
ys

s

557



rn

ZF, 
r'

o t
l

o
s      " "    HS c0

N
la o

H idi  
S r

Z
d'?  

W

6Q
m 

Q

Zw      Z o   w
UQc  < m

Q(n J   o m m-> o       

W  y i      , w w AS     
cwa 3 8'     

a H 

v m
S 3

n"     

Z _ n y p     /
0 2
sa

y

bl

r S

g
U

w

Zv          e   

e

J r a
I

N K
m

Vp N
r

I S U  N
O

I       
o

w

4

n     
Q

O; 

a aF       dn

W
a

o          -         
ffsa

P

I
J

F  - bm a      <   

o n
I

c         -

W    .,       p oa         ' S    
ao

3 a    $   am a'-->   

o       _     F   =
f  g Ia      w

s
Z  <         w- =

r
o  

g   =_  e
0 0 3

J
3  _   mo   w

a   _    -      m  m     _   o a

Z     €    -    = _      -   a Z
e

u,     -  
f 

s
w

o Z
z      

4  <  LL m a 
a

W

O  O • X   o     .   "      

N

m

MN
h

3

b
ry

fb
J)

y0
o       -

a
U  

v—

5c`",4 o iN Q
n

v in pr
h.

F y3

s/   

4 2y^

cn o   
S

J
wo ti

s

558



rn
O

T

LL

NK

N
o

r

Ncn  ` l7 g

I N=      

T Z  H
Z            8'

d'`?   `
a "     w m ysda

F.., o  w.  m

wW   .      , sz
ti w

W

f

o
a     . .

Q

w  =   Z s      - Y
C7      
Q  8 l7 5 ti       

W

i

o-

J'         
z o

y
I— u'>       o     w          = 5 e

o F g w i      o
i      j,`'      /

a  t'     
c      

o'z  \      '      '      
i   /            

ZD w QQ   G O

o g dw        
m       m / V y     N

ac  __    y      

N   ,   

N--      I
a o

3
w w

p

i

J

I

n^   
wtiww

Q
V

n  ll.

p
N

iX' v'i

s  N Oz _
z       /  Q q     

r n a

zr0

3 N3 b NIll1380
ar

ry
3  _  

d d d d

z z

3

S      S    

I o 8     o      -  -  -    
z h      h k    b

a_    

m      <       

o Q       k:, i.,        $       
N wI      

w
g Q y       i    :  :

F
o W w w w w

I ia n ' 6' 6 ' 6 ' 6 ' 6 ' 6 k ' 6
m       

a 1 0 n '    ;  H

3 W        
0 Yi= Y : t

Jw N    

m y i Z 
f

Ma Mo    o      

W  i

w R R R

Z
a 1

Q  d d    a s b
n `   W          

m

r

zri   

W / 
r

J

R   ` 
J

i3 N

a   Sa

a    a   

Q
1N O H ltl)/ 1 N   m     

F in

a g   

om

xNoa          <a  =       

a
w

a

cn W

W   a  
a    '   

N<      " g   m

g
o F    ^        F=   -

F      ; y '    
i. i

91133HS33S z  `     ; 
F

w ; Y 3 g 3

0 0 3
V  

3        mo3   
F-  V

W

a     _    " m        w   <

W     a o      -   a
s

Z a   ; a8 y

o  o • xt o          x6

559



rn
T

LL

N a   a       

Nln  _      
e

N      o a    s<   -  w

Q   a Z aa_     g

r Z  
H a=     F      ?    -

m a

Z   

m

a p

Z
T   '

8
m g F   -

UQC3  <"     ? o Z g a Q a N ti a o   ^

QCn J  ` l      Z
a

o a a   -   `., Q  Y   k'

U

n 3
W

m J    J  3      , "
1 w JT{ e i Ui f

0 O 3

6 w
w>       w

tnv v F'  

U  -     

S
o gh

v iO

Z Nna O N  _      

Z  wit

o
O  • O  . o< 

i   vWi a h

V.

N     

F-     }{

3AIFf00SS0, 7130
t

R< 7500. 0fiJJ' J8' L= 4JS.55' M- M)' -- --- - —    
I
le

R= 7545. 00' 4= 4' P9' 18° L= 121. 03' INOB' 26' S3' W
73 avd o. 00

I       \             a
T—_   1

J

a

N         

g -
r —       - - n 3 —:

W     ,
w

R     '-

i P

s

w     

J
1t1 0

N01N113y
P/
N

z i
o

z

o
e

Fz      ii w      ,.,

w o m

a w

N ti
w

O>
w

1 Q 3

O QV_     \
t',->       w /    

y' ` N m
w          

w

3
vN^ '' W   ['\      uh   /   J m^ K

O NJ 
m       

y
v

2   /     
p

Q
N 3 U 2 Om

ry  

a   /         0v. e

F  
w     

U
5 a

Idnp a      J i

m ww o

wo      
3Nbng 3JJ

m yg.,   w       
o a  <    

p y\  
a

xa
w

o    n

w  

a    gr

Nw W Q
a

o      v/

u

m  _  
P,'„ _  g  

9a G

e'

s",      

v    SP      
W 

s    
3  

m
o    "  oN o o o0 0 

3n _ W gS  ry ti N g

ti`°   /       F     
8 W  wo wo   -  _

w N <  < a a a < m a < ayJ a°    /       w 3 o  n W w w W      '"

Q oo I o c a N o  $ 
w O O O O O O O O 

J>      /

560



rn
T

LL

z
l7 Q

J

N wU r

Nuwi       a w
a W

z w

az w 
o x

ma¢

4       a
3    

U Q
w  <      Z

0.

a o r a

Q( n J
o

U

Z
r

ga       , w 3
Z Nry 1

a 3M,   s
Q J

N I

ar
a N

w

N

O

5 i

ii
W

a

i

i v

3

R I

1

i m

R

p
3 3 3 3 _  ,  3  3 3 3 , 3 _      

Q n N g _  _  _

z z z z

z       -  

3 9,

P N P     Y N P N       N p  j`"rryi        V 

Y 5

rn _ n a _    m           e n _ e '    '  n  e m e -    m

z       - 8 8 4 4 S S 8    R u4 8 8  8 g 8 S S 8 8 S g 8

m

O

x

S    -

w

R n o d o o       -  8 H
G S P r f`       V Y op         P

Z m       n
n a

O       _    Q S g

2

g

w       
Q

OU
O

w z 8

m J

3 3 3 3    ,    3 3 3 3 3     3 3 3 3 -  ,       3 3  3 3 3

U    - -

O

WZJ
J

561



562



ITEM 4. 22

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVAL OF A CONSOLIDATED    ] OINT

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT WITH

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING

AUTHORITY FOR THE AUTHORITY' S

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving a Consolidated
Joint Community Facilities Agreement with

River Islands Public Financing Authority
RIPFA)    for the Authority' s Community

Facilities Districts

SUMMARY:

In June of 2003,  the City Council authorized the Mayor to enter into a Joint
Community Facilities Agreement  ( JCFA)  with the River Islands Public Financing
Authority ( RIPFA or Authority) to facilitate the formation of a Community Facilities
District ( CFD). The primary purpose of the CFD was to provide financing for public
improvements related to development within and adjacent to River Islands.  Since

that time, the City has entered into a number of JCFA' s with RIPFA for additional
infrastructure financed with bonds issued by RIPFA.

The River Islands Public Financing Authority has recently formed its Community
Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( Public Facilities) and its Community Facilities District
No.   2023- 2  ( Public Facilities Supplemental)   in connection with the continued

development of the River Islands community. The new CFD' s are authorized to fund
various public improvements related to Phase 2 of the master planned community,
some of which are expected to be owned by the City.  As with other community
facilities districts formed by the Authority that have financed City Improvements, the
Government Code requires that the Authority enter into a joint community facilities
agreement with the City.

Rather than provide what would be a new sixth joint community facilities agreement
between the City and RIPFA, a Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement is
being proposed. This consolidated agreement will supersede the five current joint
community facilities agreements relating to the Authority' s community facilities
districts and will add the two new CFD' s.  This will simplify the process moving
forward, allowing for a single agreement between the City and RIPFA for all of the
Authority' s community facilities districts. The text of the proposed Consolidated Joint
Community Facilities Agreement, a copy of which accompanies this City Manager' s
report, is virtually identical to the existing five joint community facilities agreements.

563



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RIPFA CONSOLIDATED 70INT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Consolidated Joint Community
Facilities Agreement to provide for the funding of the improvements for the River
Islands development.

BAC KG ROU N D:

In June of 2003,  the City Council authorized the Mayor to enter into a Joint
Community Facilities Agreement  ( JCFA)  with the River Islands Public Financing
Authority ( RIPFA or Authority) to facilitate the formation of a Community Facilities
District ( CFD). The primary purpose of the CFD was to provide financing for public
improvements related to development within and adjacent to River Islands.  Since

that time, the City has entered into a number of JCFA' s with RIPFA for additional
infrastructure financed with bonds issued by RIPFA.

The River Islands Public Financing Authority has recently formed its Community
Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( Public Facilities) and its Community Facilities District
No.   2023- 2  ( Public Facilities Supplemental)   in connection with the continued

development of the River Islands community. The new CFD' s are authorized to fund
various public improvements related to Phase 2 of the master planned community,
some of which are expected to be owned by the City.  As with other community
facilities districts formed by the Authority that have financed City Improvements, the
Government Code requires that the Authority enter into a joint community facilities
agreement with the City.

RIPFA and the City have entered into multiple joint community facilities agreements
with respect to the CFD' s. The Board of Directors of RIPFA has advised the City of

Lathrop that it has formed eight different community facilities districts ( collectively,

the  CFD' s"),  pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,  as

amended, being Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at Section
53311,  of the California Government Code,  in order to finance various public
improvements necessitated by the development occurring within the River Islands at
Lathrop community.

These community facilities districts are each listed in the table below:

t` '     F  e } is": t13=    '"„ ub i  ` r s

Communit Facilities District No. 2015- 1 Public Im rovement Financin

Cc anr r   tF: a stri Vr x -.: iu r s a i     ner al

Communit Facilities District No. 2019- 1 Phase 2 Public Im rovements

u ,    V:: Y. ,, a; ° Pu[,     r s

Communit Facilities District No. 2021- 1 Public Im rovements

C rri    i, t 1. :.   Pia i li i s  ,

Communit Facilities District No. 2023- 2 Public Facilities Su lemental

RIPFA is requesting that the City enter into a Consolidated Joint Community Facilities
Agreement with RIPFA that will supersede the Prior Agreements and otherwise to

564



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RIPFA CONSOLIDATED JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT

apply to each of the listed CFD' s. This act will memorialize their understanding with
respect to the proceeds of the Special Taxes,  the Bonds,  the Notes and the

Improvements.

Rather than provide what would be a new sixth joint community facilities agreement
between the City and RIPFA, a Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement is
being proposed. This consolidated agreement will supersede the five current joint

community facilities agreements relating to the Authority's community facilities
districts and will add the two new CFD' s.  This will simplify the process moving
forward, allowing for a single agreement between the City and RIPFA for all of the
Authority' s community facilities districts. The text of the proposed Consolidated Joint
Community Facilities Agreement, a copy of which accompanies this City Manager' s
report, is virtually identical to the existing five joint community facilities agreements.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Consolidated Joint Community
Facilities Agreement to provide for the funding of the improvements for the River
Islands development. The consolidated agreement will provide one agreement that
will encompass the prior agreements and add the recently formed Community
Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( Public Facilities) and Community Facilities District No.
2023- 2 ( Public Facilities Supplemental).

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City shall have no obligation under the Consolidated Joint Community Facilities
Agreement for the financing, completion or payment of any costs associated with the
design and construction of the improvements. All costs associated with review and

approval of the design, inspections and all aspects associated with the acceptance of

improvements shall be paid from the River Islands Public Financing Authority' s
Improvement Fund.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.   Resolution Approving a Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement
with River Islands Public Financing Authority  ( RIPFA) for the Authority' s
Community Facilities Districts

B.  Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement between City of Lathrop
and River Islands Public Financing Authority ( RIPFA)

565



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RIPFA CONSOLIDATED 70INT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT

APPROVALS:

Iz 23

Thomas Hedegard Date

Deputy City Manager

Fo 2 3 . 2023

Brad Taylor Date

City Engineer

c—       

3 0  Zo Z 3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

9• r • z3
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

566



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A CONSOLIDATED JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT

WITH RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING FOR THE AUTHORITY' S

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the River Islands Public Financing Authority
RIPFA") has advised the City of Lathrop that it has formed eight different community

facilities districts  ( collectively,  the  CFDs"),  pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982, as amended ( the Act"), being Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2
of Title 5, commencing at Section 53311, of the California Government Code, in order to
finance various public improvements necessitated by the development occurring within
the River Islands at Lathrop community, including Community Facilities District No. 2003-
1  (` CFD 2003- 1),  Community Facilities District No.  2015- 1  ( Public Improvement

Financing)  (" CFD 2015 1"),  Community Facilities District No.  2016- 1  ( River Islands

Supplemental) ( CFD 2016- 1"), Community Facilities District No. 2019- 1 ( Phase 2 Public
Improvements)  ( CFD 2019- 1"),  Community Facilities District No.  2020- 1  ( Stage 2B

Public Improvements) ( CFD 2020- 1"), Community Facilities District No. 2021- 1 ( Public

Improvements)  ( CFD 2021- 1"),  Community Facilities District No.  2023- 1  ( Public

Facilities), and Community Facilities District No. 2023- 2 ( Public Facilities Supplemental);

and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of RIPFA has further advised the City of Lathrop
that RIPFA has and will continue to levy, or expects to levy, as applicable, special taxes
on property within the CFDs ( the " Special Taxes"), and has issued or intends to issue, as

applicable,  special tax bonds for the CFDs and any improvement areas therein
collectively, the " Bonds") the debt service on which is and will be payable from the

Special Taxes; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of RIPFA has further advised the City of Lathrop
that RIPFA has issued and intends to continue to issue its revenue anticipation notes ( the

Notes") the debt service on which is and will continue to be payable from the Special
Taxes; and

WHEREAS, in order to enable the CFDs to finance public improvements to be
owned by the City ( the " Improvements"), Section 53316. 2 of the California Government

Code requires that the City and RIPFA enter into one or more joint community facilities
agreements with respect to those Improvements to be owned by the City; and

WHEREAS,  RIPFA and the City have entered into joint community facilities
agreements with respect to the CFDs, currently including a Joint Community Facilities
Agreement, dated November 16,  2015,  relating to CFD 2015- 1;  a Joint Community
Facilities Agreement, dated as of July 9, 2019, relating to CFD 2019- 1; a Joint Community
Facilities Agreement, dated as of May 10, 2021, relating to CFD 2020- 1 and CFD 2021-
1, a Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of ) une 13, 2022, relating to CFD

567



2003- 1; and a Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2022,
relating to CFD 2016- 1 ( collectively, the Prior Agreements"); and

WHEREAS, RIPFA has now requested that the City enter into a Consolidated Joint
Community Facilities Agreement with RIPFA in substantially the form as attached to the
September 11, 2023 staff report that will supersede the Prior Agreements and otherwise

to apply to each of the CFDs, so as to memorialize their understanding with respect to
the proceeds of the Special Taxes, the Bonds, the Notes and the Improvements; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the City Council approve the Consolidated
Joint Community Facilities Agreement to provide for the funding of the Improvements
for the River Islands of Lathrop development.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approves the following actions:

Section 1. Approval of Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement. The
City Council hereby approves the Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement
between the City of Lathrop and River Islands Public Financing Authority for the CFDs,
in the form provided in the City stafF report for this matter, and hereby authorizes and
directs the City Manager to execute and the City Clerk to attest the Consolidated Joint
Community Facilities Agreement in such form. The City Council hereby deciares that the
Consolidated ] oint Community Facilities Agreement will be beneficial to City residents.

Section 2.  OfFicial Action. The Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk and all other
proper officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions and do
all things necessary or desirable to implement the Consolidated Joint Community
Facilities Agreement, including but not limited to the execution and delivery of any and
all agreements, certificates, instruments and other documents, which they, or any of
them, may deem necessary or desirable and not inconsistent with the purposes of this
Resolution and the Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

568



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of September 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

569



Quint& Thimmig LLP 8/ 8/ 23

CONSOLIDATED

JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT—

CITY OF LATHROP

This Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement  —  City of Lathrop  ( the

Agreement"), dated for convenience as of September 11, 2023, is by and between the River
Islands Public Financing Authority ( the " Authority") and the City of Lathrop, California  ( the

Participating Agency").

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority has formed eight different community
facilities districts ( collectively, the " CFDs"), pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982, as amended ( the " Act"), being Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing
at Section 53311,  of the California Government Code,  in order to finance various public

improvements necessitated by the development occurring within the River Islands at Lathrop
community,  including Community Facilities District No. 2003- 1  ( Public Improvements) (" CFD

2003- 1), Community Facilities District No. 2015- 1 ( Public Improvement Financing) (" CFD 2015- 1"),

Community Facilities District No. 2016- 1 ( River Islands Supplemental) (" CFD 2016- 1"), Community
Facilities District No. 2019- 1 ( Phase 2 Public Improvements) (" CFD 2019- 1"), Community Facilities
District No. 2020- 1 ( Stage 2B Public Improvements) (" CFD 2020- 1"), Community Facilities District
No. 2021- 1  ( Public Improvements) (" CFD 2021- 1"), Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1
Public Facilities), and Community Facilities District No. 2023- 2 ( Public Facilities Supplemental);

and

WHEREAS, the Authority has and will continue to levy, or expects to levy, as applicable,
special taxes on property within the CFDs ( the " Special Taxes"), and has issued or intends to issue,

as applicable, special tax bonds for the CFDs and any improvement areas therein ( collectively, the
Bonds") the debt service on which is and will be payable from the Special Taxes; and

WHEREAS, the Authority also has issued and intends to continue to issue its revenue
anticipation notes ( the " Notes") the debt service on which is and will continue to be payable from
the Special Taxes; and

WHEREAS, one or more of the CFDs are authorized to finance, among other improvements
the public improvements described in Exhibit A hereto ( the " Improvements"), which Attachment

is, by this reference, incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, the Participating Agency owns some of the Improvements that have been
conveyed to and accepted by the Participating Agency, and the parties hereto expect that the
Participating Agency in the future will own some of the other Improvements if they comply with
the standards, and have been completed to the satisfaction, of the Participating Agency, and

18016. 54: J 19000

570



certain other of the Improvements are owned or will be owned but not maintained by the

Participating Agency as indicated on Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Section 53316.2 of the Act requires that the Authority enter into a joint
community facilities agreement with the Participating Agency in respect of the Improvements
which Improvements are to be financed, in part, with the proceeds of the Special Taxes, the Bonds
and the Notes, and, upon completion, are to be owned or operated by the Participating Agency;
and

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Participating Agency have entered into several joint
community facilities agreements with respect to the CFDs, currently including a Joint Community
Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 16, 2015, relating to CFD 2015- 1, a Joint Community
Facilities Agreement, dated as of July 9, 2019, relating to CFD 2019- 1, a Joint Community Facilities
Agreements, dated as of June 13, 2022, relating to CFD 2003- 1, a Joint Community Facilities

Agreement dated as of November 14, 2022, relating to CFD 2016- 1, and a Joint Community
Facilities Agreement dated as of May 10,  2021,  relating to CFD 2020- 1 and CFD 2021- 1
collectively, the " Prior Agreements"); and

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Participating Agency now desire to enter into this
Agreement to supersede the Prior Agreements and otherwise to apply to each of the CFDs, so as
to memorialize their understanding with respect to the proceeds of the Special Taxes, the Bonds,
the Notes and the Improvements, all as more particularly set forth below.

AGREEMENT:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and mutual covenants set forth
below, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Reservation of Funds; Use of Special Taxes. The Authority has used and intends
to use proceeds of Special Taxes and proceeds of the Bonds and the Notes, as they have been
and in the future will be received by the Authority for one or more of the CFDs, to finance the
costs incurred in connection with the acquisition and construction of the Improvements and other

public improvements authorized to be financed by the CFDs.  Proceeds of (a) the Bonds and of

Special Tax levies on property in the CFDs not needed to pay costs of administration of the
respective CFD or needed to pay the Bonds or the Notes, have been or will be, as applicable, held,
with respect to each CFD, in an Improvement Fund established by the Authority for the respective
CFD ( collectively, the " Improvement Funds") for the sole and exclusive benefit of the respective

CFD; and ( b) of the Notes have been and will be held in one or more Note Proceeds Accounts ( the

Note Proceeds Accounts"). Amounts in the Improvement Funds and the Note Proceeds Accounts

shall in no way be pledged as security for any Bonds or Notes.

Other than the funds described in the preceding paragraph, to the extent they are
allocated by the Authority to pay costs of the Improvements, the Authority shall have no
obligation to pay for any of the costs of the Improvements, including but not limited to any costs
of planning, acquisition, construction, installation or inspection of the Improvements.  Any costs

2-

571



of the Improvements in excess of the available Special Taxes, and proceeds of Bonds in the

Improvement Funds and proceeds of the Notes in the Note Proceeds Accounts ( together, the
Funding Sources") will be paid by or on behalf of the master developer of the land in the CFDs,

which is River Islands Development, LLC or a related entity ( together, the " Master Developer").

The Participating Agency shall have no obligation whatsoever to pay for any of the costs
to complete the Improvements, and will only accept title to, and/ or the maintenance of, those
Improvements which conform to all of the Participating Agency' s standards and are free and clear
of all liens, stop notices and other obligations.

All Special Taxes levied by the Authority on property in a CFD shall be used as provided in
the proceedings of the Authority to form the respective CFD.

Section 2.  Construction of Improvements.  The Improvements owned and to be owned

and/ or operated by the Participating Agency have been or will be constructed pursuant to plans
and specifications approved by the Participating Agency and in accordance with all applicable

requirements of the Participating Agency. It is expected that all construction of the Improvements
will be done by independent contractors employed, supervised and administered by ( a) Island
Reclamation District No. 2062, (b) the Master Developer, or( c) another entity related to the Master
Developer ( collectively, the " Development Entities"). The Participating Agency shall not have any
liability whatsoever in respect of any work performed in connection with the Improvements that
is undertaken by or at the direction of any of the Development Entities; provided that this sentence
shall in no way limit any rights the Participating Agency may have against any persons or entities
in respect of the acquisition or construction of the Improvements once the Participating Agency

accepts title to and control over the Improvements to be owned by it.

To the extent that the Participating Agency incurs expenses incident to reviewing and
approving design plans and specifications,  conducting field inspections and otherwise in
connection with the design and construction of the Improvements, or in connection with the

acceptance of the Improvements to be owned by it, such expenses shall be reimbursed to the
Participating Agency, upon presentation of an invoice as to the nature and amount of such

expenses, from available Funding Sources or, if there are no such available funds, from one or
more of the Development Entities described in clauses ( b) or ( c) of the second sentence of the

preceding paragraph.

Section 3.  Insaection and Acceptance; Use of Bond Funds. The Participating Agency shall

cause inspections to be made during the construction of the Improvements not yet completed in

accordance with its customary procedures for construction projects of a similar nature.

Upon completion of construction of the Improvements to be owned by it to the sole and
complete satisfaction of the Participating Agency, the Participating Agency shall accept dedication
of such Improvements in accordance with its customary procedures, and shall accept ownership,
and  ( as applicable)  responsibility for operation of the Improvements to be owned by it
conditioned upon the passage to the Participating Agency of title clear of all encumbrances
unacceptable to the Participating Agency in its sole discretion.  The Participating Agency shall

3-

572



have no responsibility with respect to the ownership or operation of any of the Improvements
unless and until construction has been completed to the satisfaction of the Participating Agency,

and with respect to the Improvements to be owned by it the Participating Agency has accepted
dedication of the Improvements.

The Authority shall have no obligation to at any time to own or operate any of the
Improvements.

The Authority has disbursed and will continue to disburse the proceeds of Special Taxes
and of Bonds and the Notes described in Section 1 above to pay or reimburse payment of the
costs incurred by the Development Entities in connection with the construction of the
Improvements.  The Authority may continue to disburse such amounts as are necessary to pay
costs of construction of the Improvements prior to completion of all of the Improvements, to the
extent that such disbursement is permissible under the Act.

Section 4. Limited Obligations. All obligations of the Authority under and pursuant to this
Agreement shall be limited to the Funding Sources. No Boardmember, officer, employee or agent
of the Authority shall in any event be personally liable hereunder.

The sole obligation of the Participating Agency hereunder shall be to inspect and accept

the Improvements to be owned by it as described above. The Participating Agency shall have no
responsibility or obligation with respect to the Improvements to be owned by it for any action
occurring prior to acceptance of dedication by the Participating Agency.   If, for any reason
whatsoever there are insufficient Funding Sources to complete the Improvements or any portion

thereof, the Participating Agency shall have no obligation to the Authority under this Agreement
fund any such shortfall.  If the Participating Agency shall fail to perform any of its obligations
hereunder, the sole remedy of the Authority shall be the commencement of an action in the
Superior Court for specific performance by the Participating Agency of such obligations.

Section 5.  Ratification of Use of Funding Sources. To the extent that any of the Funding
Sources have been used to finance costs of the Improvements, the Authority, on behalf of the

CFDs, and the Participating Agency, hereby ratify such use.

Section 6. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of (a) December

31, 2060, or( b) acceptance of the ownership and/ or operation, as applicable, of the Improvements
to be owned by the Participating Agency,  and the disbursement of amounts from the

Improvement Funds and the Note Proceeds Accounts to pay costs of the Improvements.

Section 7.   Aareement of Benefit to Residents.   By their respective approvals of this
Agreement, the Authority and the Participating Agency have each declared and hereby confirm
that this Agreement is beneficial to the residents within the jurisdiction of their respective entities
in assuring the provision of financing for a portion of the costs of the Improvements in furtherance
of the purposes of the Act.

4-

573



Section 8.   Partial Invaliditv.   If any part of this Agreement is held to be illegal or

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall be
given effect to the fullest extent reasonably possible.

Section 9.  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  This Agreement is for the sole

benefit of the Authority, the CFDs and the Participating Agency and their successors and assigns,
and no other person or entity shall be deemed to be a beneficiary hereof or have an interest
herein.

Section 10. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended at any time but only in writing
signed by each party hereto.

Section 11.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between

the parties hereto with respect to the matters provided for herein and supersedes all prior
agreements and negotiations between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter of

this Agreement.  The signatories hereto represent that they have been appropriately authorized
to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom they sign.

Section 12. Severabilitv. If any part of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall be given effect to the
fullest extent reasonably possible.

Section 13.  Governing Law.  This Agreement and any dispute arising hereunder shall be
governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California applicable to
contracts made and performed in such State.

Section 14.  Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original.

Section 15.  Termination of Prior Agreements.  Upon the execution and delivery of this

Agreement by the Authority and the Participating Agency, the Prior Agreements shall terminate
and be of no further force and effect.

5-

574



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and
year written alongside their signature below.

CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA ( the

Participating Agency")

Date of Execution:     2023

By:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

Approved as to form for the Attest:

City of Lathrop:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING

AUTHORITY ( the " Authority")

Date of Execution:     2023

By:

Jeffrey K. Shields, Executive Director

18016. 54:119000

signature page to Consolidated Joint Community Facilities District- City of Lathrop]

S- 1

575



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS

TO BE OWNED AND OPERATED BY THE PARTICIPATING AGENCY

Roadway improvements and bridges, including curb, gutter and sidewalks;
monumentation; landscaping and irrigation; and related improvements.

Water supply and distribution improvements, including construction of tanks, pump
stations, pipelines and related facilities.

Storm drains and related improvements.

Sewer improvements, including pipelines, lift stations, treatment plant improvements,
spray fields for disposal of reclaimed water, force mains and related facilities.

Drainage improvements, storm water detention basins, pump stations and related
facilities.

Parks, trails, parkways, open space and related improvements.

Public safety facilities other than fire stations, and equipment related to the operation
thereof.

Communications facilities, including fiber optic lines, vaults and related equipment.

DESCRIPTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS

TO BE OWNED BUT NOT MAINTAINED BY THE PARTICIPATING AGENCY

Normal maintenance of public streets, sidewalks and adjacent areas. Maintenance of public parks
dry), as well as landscaping and recreational features along rivers, lakes, within parks and along

and including pathways. Any public park areas adjacent to lakes or rivers (wet) are not included.

A- 1

576



i  ;.  , )
9'``#`.

i

r'
r' '    t"       •

1 
R  '    

t   '

rR  
l. f..

s.._  .   .        ,

f., '~"
r.   ' :7 r- i     

r,         ,---- 1'   
x

1  ; t    !,` ,\' z

t''*,. v;  ,-       ,,*, w

N  ,.      

S LT

s       a  +  
t  ¢     x'\

va

a

i`    _ f`   

1

g       ..:       

a;:'.

d   1 g     t„__

t"__'^     . 4 .. i9h KT'::'
W

j
n._`'

i 9. +
n. r

y   I
YA     :

I .. 3"   .'{,

G s,"".      ;     

I11 A L

y. ryr'- 4
w

rt""+"a      - t +   

s,.+.

s
t '

i tE{  .
w'  

J l.

i

µ

1 •
T     , 7

s

r   

w    ,  
r, 

4.   

J 1

n'wwU..:; Sr`..* t$K''    1   .. •

t M•

2.,.      ; f:  hR
4

w is r t t:•     
K   .

r'.
j..

r   .      t` d LL

577



578



ITEM 4. 23

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE THE REVISED RIVER ISLANDS PHASE

TWO PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution Approving the Revised

River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open Space
Master Plan

CEQA STATUS:  The Proposed Project Falls Within the Scope of

the Previously Certified Subsequent

Environmental Impact Report ( SEIR) ( SCH No.

1993112027) for the River Islands at Lathrop
Phase Two Project;   therefore,   No Further

Environmental Review is Required in

Accordance with the California Environmental

Quality Act

SUMMARY:

The Parks and Recreation Commission approved the revised River Islands Phase Two

Parks and Open Space Master Plan at the Parks and Recreation Commission Regular

Meeting that was held on August 3, 2023. The Parks and Recreation Commission and
City staff recommends the City Council adopt a Resolution to approve the revised
River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open Space Master Plan to be aligned with the

recent changes to Vesting Tentative Map No. VTM 6716. The Woodlands East District
was recently modified which rearranged the street layout,  lot configurations,  and

location and size of neighborhood parks N5 and N7,  which increased the total

Neighborhood Park acreage by 5 acres.

BACKGROUND:

The Parks Master Plan for River Islands is intended to provide a network of master
planned parks and open spaces throughout the River Islands development. The park
locations along the river provide opportunities to experience the river in multiple ways.
Open spaces are woven throughout at varying scales in order to support an
assortment of passive and active recreation.    Several types of sports fields are

included as well as ample opportunities to enjoy nature and the water's edge.
Pedestrian and bicycle circulation is designed to enable residents to move safely
throughout the community.  Varying classes of bicycle paths are integrated and
promote easy access to open space and extended cycling or running.

In June of 2021, the City approved the River Islands Phase Two Parks & Open Space

Master Plan for the River Islands Modified Phase Two Project. A total of 230. 29 acres
in the River Islands Modified Phase Two area are devoted to a variety of parks.

579



CITY MANAGER REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REVISED RIVER ISLANDS PHASE TWO PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER
PLAN

The parks,  in and around the developed areas,  include Neighborhood Parks,

Community Parks, Linear Parks ( trails), and Pocket Parks. There are also over 272

acres of other open space areas,  including levees, drainage swales and protected
wetlands.

In May of 2022, the City of Lathrop' s Community Development Director approved a
Substanital Conformance request from River Islands for the Woodlands East District.

The application for Substantial Conformance with VTM 6716 was submitted to include

various modifications to the road alignments, lot size, and for the two Neighborhood

Parks N5 and N7 to be increased in acreage from 5. 39 to 7. 8 and 5. 12 to 5. 4,

respectively. This modification increased the total Neighborhood Park acreage of the
development by 5 acres and also increased the size of lake L14.  Substantial

Conformance findings are required to be made pursuant to Condition of Approval # 36

of VTM 6716 when modifications are made to the Vesting Tentative Map.  The

proposed revised Parks Master Plan will account for the increase in neighbhorhood
park acreages.

Additionally, pursuant to Condition of Approval # 118 of VTM 6716, the Phase Two

Parks and Open Space Master Plan needs to be consistent with the Quimby Act for
required park acreage. Pursuant to the Quimby Act, the project is required to provide
approximately 161 acres of neighborhood and community parks. The revised Phase
Two Parks and Open Space Master Plan shows compliance with the Quimby Act by
providing approximately 167 acres of parkland total.

CEQA REVIEW

Environmental review for the River Islands project as a whole was completed in the
certified Subsequent Environmental Impact Report ( SEIR) for the River Islands at

Lathrop Phase Two Project  ( State Clearinghouse No.   1993112027).   The SEIR

considered the full range of potential environmental effects of urban development of
the entire River Islands Project,  including planned parks and open space for the
Project.

The project would not produce any new significant environmental impacts, and no
new mitigation measures are required. The SEIR specified the mitigation measures

needed to reduce potentially significant environmental effects of the River Islands
project to a less than significant level. The project is required to conform to these
mitigation measures.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt a Resolution Approving the Revised River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open
Space Master Plan.

580



CITY MANAGER REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REVISED RIVER ISLANDS PHASE TWO PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER

PLAN

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop Approving the Revised
River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open Space Master Plan

B.  Parks and Recreation Commission Recommendation for City Council to Approve
the River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open Space Master Plan

C.  River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open Space Master Plan

D.  Findings of Substantial Conformance with Vesting Tentative Map 6716 dated
May 5, 2022

581



CITY MANAGER REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REVISED RIVER ISLANDS PHASE TWO PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER

PLAN

APPROVALS:

s s l3

Todd Seb ian Date

Parks, Recreation, and Maintenance Services Director

3 2 z3
k Cagui Dat

ommuni Development Director

g13 a-: 3

Cari Jam Date

Finance irector

3 a •Zoz?
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

q• 1- Z3
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

582



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE REVISED RIVER ISLANDS PHASE TWO PARKS AND OPEN

SPACE MASTER PLAN

WHEREAS, the Parks and Open Space Master Plan for River Islands is intended

to provide a network of master planned parks and open spaces throughout the River
Islands development; and

WHEREAS, the request is to amend the River Islands Phase Two Parks Master

Plan to be aligned with recent changes to Vesting Tentative Map No. VTM 6716; and

WHEREAS, Neighborhood Parks N5 and N7 increased in acreage from 5. 39 to
7. 8 and 5. 12 to 5. 4, respectively; and

WHEREAS,  various parks located along Paradise Cut,  Old River and San

Joaquin River provides residents the opportunities to experience the river in multiple
ways; and

WHEREAS, the open spaces are woven throughout at varying scales in order
to support an assortment of passive and active recreation; and

WHEREAS,  several types of sports fields are included as well as ample
opportunities to enjoy nature and the water' s edge; and

WHEREAS, pedestrian and bicycle circulation is designed to enable residents
to move safely throughout the community; and

WHEREAS, varying classes of bicycle paths are integrated and promote easy
access to open space and extended cycling or running; and

WHEREAS, community and neighborhood park acreages for Phase Two were
used to calculate and meet the State' s minimum parkland dedication requirements;
and

WHEREAS, neighborhood parks must be provided at a rate of 2 acres per 1, 000
population and Community Parks at 3 acres per 1, 000 population; and

WHEREAS, environmental review for the River Islands project as a whole was
completed in the certified Subsequent Environmental Impact Report ( SEIR) for the

River Islands at Lathrop Phase Two Project    ( State Clearinghouse No.

1993112027).  The SEIR considered the full range of potential environmental effects
of urban development of the entire River Islands Project, including planned parks and
open space for the Project.

583



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the Revised River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open
Space Master Plan.

584



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas Salvador Navarrete

City Clerk City Attorney

585



ATTACHMENT B

CITY OF LATHROP

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, AUGUST 3, 2023, 6: OOP. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA 95330

MINUTES

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Parks and Recreation Commissioner Chair Zien called

the meeting to order at 6: 06 p. m.

1. 2 ROLL CALL Present: Chair Zien, Vice- Chair Hopping,
Commissioners Smith, Datoc, Sandhu

1. 3 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Chair Zien led the Pledge of Allegiance

1. 4 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY CHAIR OR DIRECTOR - None

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES UPDATE

Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Director Todd Sebastian

reported the following update:

Recreation Special Events Update

Gave an overview on recent past events including the Lathrop
Birthday Celebration", Movies in the Park", and Concerts in the

Park" which all saw an increase in attendance. Stanford Crossing
and the Lathrop Food Plaza were partners for the  Lathrop
Birthday Celebration".  Under counter organic waste bins were

handed out during the event to all attendees. Upcoming Special
Events include Family Fun Night" on August 11th, Touch a Truck"

on September 9th, " Comedy Under the Stars" on September 15th

and " Trunk or Treat" on October 215t

Recreation Programs Update

Gave an overview on past and upcoming recreation programs.
Camp Lathrop and Future Leaders Summer Camp is ending this
week and both programs were full. There is a teen Welcome Back
Party at the Generations Center on August 18th.  The popular
Senior Summer Camp is returning on August 9t'' where seniors

will have an afternoon full of games, songs, water play and more.
The 2023 Resource Fair will take place on September 26th with
30- 35 vendors that can provide resources to the senior

August 3, 2023 Parks and Recreation Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

586



community. Sports is wrapping up the Junior Giants program this
weekend with over 300 participants.   NFL Flag Football is

accepting registration now for ages 5- 13. This is a co- ed program.

Park Grand Openings

On Saturday,  ) uly 15t'' there was a tour for three park grand
openings:  Lions Park,  River Park North and Rotary Park.  Lions

Park is near completion and will be open soon.

Parks

Milestone Manor Park Revitalization project is underway and
should be completed later this this fall. The park will be getting a
children' s play area,  BBQ' s,  picnic tables,  a walking bridge,  a

perimeter fence and more. There was a grant awarded for this
project for $ 192, 620. The City- standard park furniture and signs
have arrived and have been installed in several parks.  The

installation will continue in parks citywide.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM - None

Persons who wish to speak to the Commission regarding an item that is not on
today' s agenda may do so at this time. All public comment must be made in
compliance with the Lathrop City Council Handbook of Rules & Procedures.

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council
and will be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless the Chair, Co- Chair, or citizen so requests, in

which event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and

considered separately.

4. 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE PARKS AND RECREATION

COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING ON FEBRUARY 2,  2023 AND THE

SPECIAL MEETING ON MARCH 23, 2023.

On a motion made by Chair Zien, seconded by Vice- Chair Hopping, the
Parks and Recreation Commission accepted the February 2,  2023

Regular Meeting Minutes and the March 23,  2023 Special Meeting
Minutes.

Ayes:    Zien, Hopping, Smith, Datoc, Sandhu
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

Motion Carries: 5- 0- 0- 0

August 3, 2023 Parks and Recreation Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

587



5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 REVIEW AND RECOMMEND COUNCIL APPROVE THE REVISED RIVER

ISLANDS PHASE TWO PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Director Todd Sebastian

introduced Principal Landscape Architect for O' Dell Engineering Chad
Kennedy and River Islands, LLC. Representative Ramon Batista. Parks,
Recreation and Maintenance Services Director Todd Sebastian gave a
presentation regarding the Revised River Islands Phase Two Parks and
Open Space Master Plan.

On a motion made by Chair Zien, seconded by Commissioner Sandhu,
the Parks and Recreation Commission recommends the approval of the

Revised River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open Space Master Plan.

Ayes:    Zien, Hopping, Smith, Datoc, Sandhu
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

Motion Carries: 5- 0- 0- 0

5. 2 REVIEW AND RECOMMEND COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THE LATHROP

LIONS CLUB REQUEST FOR A FEE WAIVER

Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Director Todd Sebastian

presented the Facility Fee Waiver that was submitted by the Lathrop
Lions Club for the use of the Valverde Park Picnic Shelter on Saturday,
October 21, 2023 for a Breast Cancer Walk. They will be partnering with
the Police Officers Association. The total amount of the fee waiver

request is $ 85.

On a motion made by Chair Zien, seconded by Vice- Chair Hopping, the
Parks and Recreation Commission recommends the approval of the

Lathrop Lions Club Fee Waiver.

Ayes:    Zien, Hopping, Smith, Datoc, Sandhu
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

Motion Carries: 5- 0- 0- 0

6.       COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS

Commissioner Smith reported posts he has seen recently on some River
Islands Facebook pages about children not having access to water in the parks.

August 3, 2023 Parks and Recreation Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

588



Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Director Todd Sebastian reported

that the parks do have drinking fountains available for the public to use.

Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Director Todd Sebastian asked the

Commissioners if they are interested in getting new Commission shirts.
Commissioners answered yes.  Staff will be sending out examples for the
Commissioners to select which style and color they would prefer.

7.       ADJOURNMENT — There being no further business, Chair Zien adjourned the
meeting at 6: 28 p. m.

To-d.d S
Todd Sebastian

Director— Parks, Recreation & Maintenance Services

August 3, 2023 Parks and Recreation Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

589



ATTACHMENT Cy       

t,.?         

x;.,

a;

n.:

b.  ,     

n          

r  
s   it

M,.,,    _  
et

a'      

3•.

o-.

u   ., 

q I     rE   
I

RIVER ISLAN DS

r• a" e. 

a    ,.

y g.,

j

u :

z 

W '

590



Page Intentionally Left Blank

591



P rkS   &   p   S     
ist r Plar

RM NC7M: 1LL1°

Prepared for:     F r rc r t y.
RivPr Islands at Lathrop p il Er i w riri

73 W.  Stew rt Roacf 11 r air, C riv,. ui ,

L throE:, C lifarf ria 95:330 M c;, , ` 3`> f?

209) 87 - 7900 I 1- 114;;

11 
ENG7N EfZ1 NG

592



Page Intentionally Left Blank

593



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................. 1
1. 1 PURPOSE O DOCUMENT......................................................................................................................... 

1. 2 RO E OF PAf KS AMd OPEN SPACE......................................................................................................... 1

1. 3 PARKS MASTER PLAN OVERVIEW............................................................................................................ 2

PROJE T CONTEXT............................................................................. 5
corv r xT.........................................................................................................................

2, 2 PHAS 1 EXISTING FACILITIES................................................................................................................ 5

2. 3 EXISTING PARKS AND OPEN SPACES...................................................................................................... 6

PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES................................................ 11
3. 1 7RENDS IN PARKS.................................................................................................................................... 11

3. 2 PARK DESIGN GUIQELINES..................................................................................................................... 13

3. 3 SUSTAINABI I7Y....................................................................................................................................... 14

3. 4 SAFETY AND SECl1RITY........................................................................................................................... 15

3. 5 NON- MOTORIZED CIRCULATION............................................................................................................ 16

3. 6 ELEVA7ED LEVEE TRAILS........................................................................................................................ 17

3. 7 PLANTING ................................................................................................................................................. 22

3. 8 517E FIXTURES.......................................................................................................................................... 32

3. 9 CONNECTIVITY.......................................................................................................................................... 34

3. 10 ACCESS AND INCLUSION...................................................................................................................... 34

PR POSED PARKS MASTER PLAN RI D PARKS CONCEPTS .......... 40
4. 1 iTY OF LATHROP PARKS AND OPEN SPACE GENERAL PLAN REQUIREMENTS ............................ 40

4. 2 PARK ACREAGE& SERVIGE AREA STANDARDS................................................................................... 40

4. 3 DES7RIBUTION QF EXISTING PARKS AND ACILITIES ......................................................................... 41

4. 4 PARK AMENITY BENCHMARKS............................................................................................................... 43

4. 5 PROPOSED PARKS & OPEN SPACE SYSTEM........................................................................................ 43

4. 6 PREI. IMINARY PARK CONCEPT PL. A 5.................................................................................................. 44

4, 7 CI' fll L7Y RSIGNT& DEYELOPMENT PRflCESS..................................................................................... 44

594



Page Intentionally Left Blank

595



LIST OF TABLES Hi FIGURES

FIGURES
IGURE 3. 1 - TYPICAL' TRAIt SECTIONS ( ILLUSTRATIVE ONLY).............................................................. 18

FIGURE 3. 2 -` f'YPICA TRAIL PLAN VIEW................................................................................................... 20

FIGURE 3. 3- CONCEPT FOR A TYPICAL TRAIL REST NODE.................................................................... 20

FIGURE 3. 4- LEVEE TRAI Ct7NCEPT SIGNAGE AND TRAIL MAFtKERS................................................. 1

FIGURE 4. 1 - NEIGHBORHC? C7D PARK SERVICE AREA MAP...............................................................»..,.. 41

FICURE 4. 2 - Ct7MMUNITY PARK SERVICE AREA MAP............................................................................. 4

FIGURE 4. 3- PHASE 2 PARK DESIGNATION MAP...................................................................................... 4B

FIGURE 4. 4- PHASE 2 QUiMBY ACT PARK DESIGNATI4N MAP .............................................................. 47

FIGURE 4. 5- PHASE 2 CIRCULATION MAP................................................................................................ 48

FIGURE 4. 6- PHASE 2 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOLS................................................................................ 49

TABLES
TABL 2, 1 - PHASE 1 MINIMUM FACII. ITY REQUIREMENTS- CONDITION 116........................................... 5

7ABLE 2. 2- PHASE 1 PARKS & OPEN SPACE.............................................................................................. 7

TABLE 3. i - PARKS& OPEN SPACE PLANT SPECIES LIST....................................................................... 23

TQBLE 4. 1 -( UiMBY ACT CALCULATIONS BY PARK TYPOLOGY............................................................. 40

TAB E 4.2 - PHASE 2 PRC3JECTED FACILITl REQUIREMENTS................................................................ 43

TABLE 4.3- AGENCY REVIEW TABLE.......................................................................................................... 44

TABLE 4.4- PHASE 2 PARK FACILITIES BY LOCATION............................................................................. 45

596



Page Intentionaily Left Blank

597



z`\;' ,

y:

A

a*   
n

w`    p"    a    '     ;`.a
k i k

vr, a  .` a,` s''   -       4. .:,     3   +  '

u

F,    c           h" w o   . $

w;`

fi:%
u

r'        t  

at      

r

A        
1'``    

R

a 5. 

1X  ;      '    t ;     4" a    ..     R    ' p    .
d   :  ;,   ,      

a.<  '' r 4  .:,  

a mz    
W

3

a       s a  , 
1x       "..+  

a
E

ue
t'

r.,     `    

V'    
a  .  ` OA", a      . .

g'
r       ' 

ir,,
r,,°   + s`    a

a                         ,

s   ' f            
a    ,„+     ; s     ' t   c R P       '

t . iY d   g       , tr t

i'     

d  
e ti , x a s.     ae        ;  

a    , 

g   '. r
a    ,      

x f      T 
r  ,'``,`         

p  4 av      ,,'      ,

r         

4; P>
k

x           ' A      '       ,...

a     
r

e         >            ,         , +  
oo       ''     

z,

y 4E

t     .

A               

Y   '       

i''  

V
41`. 

E
ad       '  "    

i  '      "  
a

s       "`    t

s
g`  s 

a.         
r.

w'

r8.      

t,

s P»..r
a      - f

aro sw!°'

7s

e'  
t

x" " 

r'     a `  a;

ro.      e*      
c,       .       „ z;       i,.-,.,   r

7.    
3,( 

c

µ.,     ._ x,
r

s      ...   ,`

r
k

r 3w7,  , a" h,     ' 
PRM,  F'. 3 ..

A
4 Y  

m...      

a.   

h.

y e u Y.:

tA       }
y '`      

p t'      y Y

r'. a
F 

i
3 r,   

c c

r
t i

a  

e . ,.   a', .. w     .,, _    F r .

598



Page Intentionally Left Blank

599



CHAPTER 1 : INTRODUCTION

c1

J              
ti        

a 

w IMWYM i u4 u y   :    ..
a   ,

F r*'      -""    a," ._   .     .   r

e. J' S"-       ; sc- 
d : x    „',   !

W M I r y prirYM.
D',' ?,' r`    ,:,'"      ".

y, , a;;-".,.+
t

ry   ._ ''""  4"`     ._  '"..

r.. t
w 9 W

a^      

x

s'.     :  `  . `   
v.,

x`   , .      
r'    

F

r

u ,

r
Y

Y.""         ,.   '      v,r

A

w M'.   
e' e«.-   ..     

m; t, y,,    ,  
m" 

s

k 
4

d'   mr";,`  t,    

i,':'."""'"'',+. ta a'+`.:    

e       .       

w
o-.

1  „      

ra

a . 

k°      m,.....+
w a, w ,      

e u

x

an        
r y.;, ..

r

ti,,, h ' ,        <« mr.._, W.,: .  , r.
g. I  ., , .     W., x« w,., .  Ii;_     .      

IRITRODUCTIC IV

The Parks Master Plan lays out a network of neighborhood and community parks, trails, and paseos for River Isiands Phase 2
development. In addition, this Master Plan will continue to highlight the relationship between the community and the surrounding
river system by providing opportunities to experience the river in multiple ways. The park system celebrates its location along the
rivers and offers a variety of recreational amenities for the community to interact with this amazing natural resource. Locations
of parks and open spaces ensure that recreational amenities are accessible to all community members. Pedestrian and bicycle
connections are laid out to facilitate safe non- vehicular circulation between the community and park sites.

1. 1 PURPOSE OF DOCUMENT

tYie Phase 2 Parks Master Plan will provide inventory, assessment and recommendations regarding River Islands park and open
space network. This master plan builds upon the 2015 Phase 1 Parks and Open Space Master Plan, as well as the Phase
1A- 2B Neighborhood Development Plans, and continues to provide a system of valuable community assets and recreational
opportunities throughout the development.

1, 2 Rt LE OF PARKS AND QPEN SPACE

Parks and open spaces are invaluable parts of a vibrant community. Studies continue to demonstrate the b n@fits f public p ks
for individual and community health. An investment in expanding parks and open space amenities can ensur the long- term h alth
of both individuals and the community. A5 a new waterfront master- planned community, River Islands strives to provide resid nts
an idyllic lifestyle through the expansion of recreational and environmental services. Opportunities to foster community and sense
of place may be created through recreational programming, and incorporating historical themes throughout the design.

1       RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

600



CHAPTER 1: N7RC7DUCTIC.7N

1. 3 PARKS MASTER PLAN OVERVIEW

Chapter 1: Introduction

lhis chapter introduces the purpose of the MaSter Plan, and reviews the process of preparation of the Parks
Master Plan.

Chapter 2: Project Context

lYiis chapter includes a survey of existing parks and open space that were previously laid out in Phase 1 Parks
Master Plan and the Neighborhood Development Plan.

Chapter 3: Phase 2 Park System Guidelines

This chapter provides a review of best practices associated with design and construction of future parks and
recreational facilities.

Chapter 4; Proposed Parks Master Plan And Parks Cancepts

This chapter includes an overview of the Proposed Parks Master Plan, preliminary park design concepts, as well
as recommendation of future parks and recreational facilities.

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 2

601



nv....... esY.. ...     ..., 4> i?  n..+ t.,. KV'"! H,u7Ak y;:. i'... eA., :  .. .: d.   ..  ...        

3

a y'
z,. 

e  ' 
w`  

ms
s  

w     '

a.       

y

k,
aa    

F

e
s% ' 1` 3

a  , t m^  "     3 s   `- a yr  , y, c
vw           . z s* t`      , y p         

x,, aa^       .„.  { i fa   
w>

a w
t

m n....,  
e 3. i

6 a       

r

m

5  &    _.-.  S5s-` Ea
3

z  '
m,:.       „  '<     z      ,    ", r   a         

c.;

r

r..°

r.    M-    ''               o-.  x    # 5x,,-
f

ar                "     
3?

w

w 

C              
r        s

F   a;

4

s.     ' 3'

4„.,  
c v       "'.

f,.""-     ..m

M_       

a .

a

E

s

j

y      >.      ,       
H

p

x n...

k .     

f"` 4   '   

w y .   
t

w

F
R

n-     

t\ 1# *   r w  

r

t   "•   `""  y

a  "     

r

a

a       ,  s,  

t
r e

y

y¢       '
d' 

r^'.• 

y' . Y.:     ......       

y
ri , z.

y   „            x,
r

v a-
z

s

r`".    

3
sr.`

w^+' Y'"':.&     ' e,.       .
s   -.. e"`

b a wS

y"-"       "',
r'"",^ sw   .   r    ,   t

w     

s. " .   M p
a             a   

w          ?      

F e

a

a a :      ".   
m a 

t*`•. Y      ' re,.     a:     y T

F-„       t.      

a

u

t a o ,...     .,      

a X
E a

rrm.    

a     '

G,  .    w

IS

a,, p e
w   Gz..     .    a.    :.<.      :...

w W,,      

r,      
a , r

1-   , „ .    

3

w

w-    

w "'"   

r •      

w      .• 

s'" ,    , 

f s  

y      

r ,::,,

d"
e` a t

r    
a      '  ° *   

e         '    ,,            

m ,           

t
u  .     "„'              .

j
r

a
b a    

r»  "       i„' a

rw

Y  .  .       
w     .    ++ J  ...,    °".    ..'

e

602



Page Intentionally Left Blank

603



CHAPTER 2: CURRENT CONDITIONS

The content of this section covers existing parks and open space amenities that were laid out in the River Islands Phase1 Master Parks
and Open Space Plan and have either been developed or are in various phases of development.

2. 1 CONTEXT

The City of lathrop is located in the northern half of California' s Central Valley west of the San loaquin River. It is approximately 70
miles east of San Franci5co and within a 30 minute commute of many central valley and East Bay cities ( Tracy, Manteca, Stockton,
Lodi, Modesto, livermore, and Pleasanton). Tl e 23- square- mile city is at the intersection of I- 5 and SR 120 freeways. It is part of the
lowland region with elevations close to sea level and has natural runoff into the adjacent San loaquin River.

Based on 2019 information from the U. S. Census Bureau, the estimated current population is 24, 483. About 45% of the city population
is Caucasian, 26% is of Asian descent, and 6.6 o are African Americans. Lathrop has a population density of 1, 242, peopl per square
mile, with a population growth rate of about 2. 8% annually. ihe median household income is$ 82,658 with a poverty rat of 10,9%.
Approximately 78.6% of the population age 25 or above have obtained a high school degree or higher.

The City of Lathrop boasts an inventory of approximately 84 acres of parks and open space and 18 park and recreation facilities
together comprising a growing, robust parks system.  Current recreational amenities range from athletic fields and courts, a skate
park, an amphitheater, playgrounds, outdoor fitness equipment, dog parks, and other recreational amenities, such as open space,
pedestrian paths, and picnic facilities. The City runs programs out of a Community Center, Generations Center, and Senior Center
facilities. The City of Lathrop cu rently provides recreational programs for youth, adults, and seniors including summer camps, kid' s
clubs, exercise classes, sports lessons, craft classes, etc., and hosts many community events throughout the year from weekly Zumba
classes to a tree lighting ceremony in December.

2. 2 PHASE 1 EXISTING FACILITIES

Condition 116 of Vesting TABLE 2. 1 - PHASE 1 MINIMUM FACILITY REQUIREMENTS- CONDITION 116

Tentative Map 3694 required
a minimum number and size( in

acres) of various recreational Basketball Courts 1 per 3, 750 residents 0. 7 acres er court
facilities for the Phase 1 River

Tennis Courts 1 per 3, 750 residents 0. 2 acres er court
Islands development. Parks tha[

were designed and built as a Volle ball Couris 1 per 5,000 residents 0. 2 acres er court

part ot Phase 1 development Baseball Diamonds 1 per 15,000 residents 3.0 acres er field
include elements required by Lighted Diamonds 1 per 15, 000 residents 3. 0 acres er field
Condition 116.  A list of the

require facilities is listed in Softball Diamonds 1 per 2, 500 residents 2. 3 acres per field
Table 2.1 for reference. li hted Diamonds 1 per 15,000 residents 2. 3 acres per field

Football Fields 1 per 10,000 residents 1. 5 acres per field
Other related community
scale facilities are planned

Soccer Fields

for inclusion within the phase Adult 1 er 5, 000 residents 2. 2 acres per field
1 area.  Youth 1 per 3, 000 residents 1. 3 acres per field

Multi- Pla Courts 1 per 10,000 residents 0.46 acres er court

Public Swimming Pool 1 per 20,000 residents 1. 5 acres er ool

5 f RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

604



CHAPTER 2: CURRENT CONDITIONS

2. 3 EXISTING PARKS AND OPEN SPACES

River Islands parks and open space can be classified into several categories that indicate size and amenities provided. me following
list is color- coded to indicate the type of park. The same color- coding is used in the following inventory sheets to enable quick
identification of park type. As can be seen in the Phase 1 Parks Master Plan, only some of these facilities are intended to satisfy Quimby
Act requirements.

Phase one includes approximately 85 acres of Quimby Act qualified parks and open space. As phase 1 is nat compl tely built out ta
date, these spaces are at various levels of completion and planning. Table 2. 2 has been provided to clarify the typology of the open
spaces, Quimby Act status, and level of completion. Phase 1 also includes privately maintained and operated facilities that service the
needs of the community such as Islander' s Field, and Sunset Point/ the Boathouse.

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 6

605



CHAPTER 2: CURRENT CONDITIONS

TABLE 2. 2 - PHASE 1 PARKS & OPEN SPACE

a               j   •      :     

t.      .  i        t r-  i  . •         •       a

z i'   n' z,' :
f.;   ._  .      + F.-.     .,., ,  ,,  ,       . E ,    ..   3:< s 1-r

s3"

C1 Lathrop Landing Community Park Yes Eariy Planning
C2 Champion Fields Communit Park Yes Biddin

C3 STEAM Academ Communit Park Yes Construction

C4 Levee Trail Yes

i

N1 Michael Vega park Yes Completed

N2 Somerston Park Yes Completed

N3 Reflections Park Yes Completed

N4 Cr stal Cove Park Yes Com leted

N6 Summer House Park Yes Com leted

N7 Tidewater Park Yes Completed

N8 Old River Nei hborhood Park Yes Constructian Document Phase

N9 Nototomne Park Yes Construction Document Phase

P1- P49 n/ a No Varies ( plannin - completed)

W1& W2 n/ a No Completed

k 

n/ a n/ a No Varies ( plannin - completed}

I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

606



Page intentionally Left Blank

607



w   ...   r'.

a 7 i

a  "'  ";,<

a 1

z         t<-.      

M..,   

a        
Y

a'
e,

n`   
t

r ; x

a   

a    a

K

z       
w    

t

r      
G   

k U           n.,      

h     a:
f  g

F.. , 
r

Y' e      .  j

C       
t 

i
v .      

sy ry. 5y,`
x

Sm. rY'   

r G f,uhb,:,1

a
d.       

r '   

4   " P'

3
y.  

1,

N
e:

ff:.:      .      

a'     
pqak

Ka r      
r

s   •      —
a,

608



Page Intentionally Left Blank

609



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

The following chapter provides a review of parks and recreation guidelines and planning as they pertain to this phase of development
at River Islands. This chapter reviews standards and trends in parks and recreation usage, design guidelines, and sustainable practice
which will inform a basis of de5ign for the master planning of this park sysiem.

3. 1 TRENDS IN PARKS

Health Trends

In its " Healthy Parks Healthy People" guide, the National Park Service specifically mentions that connection to local parks will help
children " lead healthier, happier, more fulfilled lives" in addition to connecting them to natural resources. Efforts such as these by th
National Park Service and others by the State and local entities have made the dialogue surrounding health and parks mainstream. It
is now widely acknawledged that increasing exposure to nature and exercise encourages physical and mental health far users of all
ages. River Islands enthusiastically integrates this concept into its development by encouraging recreation throughout all aspects of the
development. Best practices for parks and recreation development include maximizing opportunities to engage users in creative
forms of exercise. TY e focus must be on engaging the entire community to participate more actively in parks and recreation. Parents
and grandparents engaged in active pu suits will likely encourage the same values and habits in children and youth. Communities
with varying demographics must feel comfortable using their public parks and recreation system. Existing cultural and hobby- related
community groups provide a desire to participate in a number of activities such as little leagues, futbol clubs, etc.

Current trends show an increase in including opportunities for community gardens. The positive impact of gardening is far- reaching
and proves to be beneficial for all members in the community. Community gardens support a sense of community pride and
build connections amongst neighbors. They provide the opportunity for people of different cultures to share and build upon cultural
connections from farming to food.

Level af Service

National Parks and Recreation organizations, including the National Recreations and Park Association, began to scale back from
issuing naiional standards for facilities level of service per population about twenty years ago. Rather it was deem d apprapriat
that level-of-service slandards should be determined by individual municipalities and tailored to the unique needs of each cily. 5inc
the 1975 Quimby Act ( California Government Code § 66477) was passed, cities and counties in the state of California have had
the power to establish land dedication ordinances and require that developers contribute in one of several ways to dedicating land
for park improvements. Quimby Act standards include dedication of 3- 5 acres per 1, 000 residents in a given jurisdiction to ensure
adequate park land is developed along with housing construction. While five acres does not constitute a maximum allowable park
acreage, it does represent in the Quimby Act the maximum park acreage per 1, 000 residents that may be required for developers.
The City of Lathrop has further defined these acreages by requiring three ( 3) acres of Community Park per 1, 000 resitlents and two
2) acres of Neighborhood Park per 1, 000 residenls, Per the City's General Plan, minimum acreages apply to the sizes of indivitlual

community and neighbohood parks, The minimum size for a community park is 15 acres, the minimum size for a neighborhood park
is 4 acres.

1 t   (  RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

610



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDE INES

n  , ,._,      
4.    a n1. r   ,.

c   '     

y     
r

N .   °. 
r

P,{ h'   ^   
t     

d..    - t..:%- v

S u
t .':

v     .     '.
r  .,   

y .

r

1•.

r

1   

W

3
v''" y ky,',

4 t'. 

a w.

F
d. i       v,, .,`      r

F

t'. s,     °   .

ow
r

v w
i,    3

y1 a' Pi
n'    S` 

u      de

2'    IP.

4 t    
a

2 u;     •      Y   ,     j  i      `    
II  _    '      ,.  

M

a E
dFi „'      4

c

t

3 n  `, Sq,"     R,   
w

k          s

e x ,:,

ti  a  w, ya  

n  \ p
s

s           ',,  q': ne

r
v      

o.  
e0.'. ,,, ,       °: r.. .  .      

i ,

p,       ,...   

r q

e:,

Y^ ""xr. y„ 

a     .  #      

s v

a 1
a  ' ` u

r<      '-."`'  ",  .      

4

t a o
a.

a       ,  

v. v1    
U\,<

o;,.

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN      I?

611



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

3. 2 PARK DESfGN GUIDELINES

Each park, regardless of size, provides varying unique services to target user groups. The following section categorizes parks by size
antl summarizes the types of amenities typical of each park typology. For clarity and consistency, these categories reflect those faund
in khe Phase 1 Parks Master Plan and the Neighborhood Development Plan: Community Park, Neighborhood Park, Pocket Park, and
Linear Parks. The following typology sections provide an overview of each type of park within the River Islands park and open space
system and include typical features which may be appropriate for the separate categories.

Recreation Gaals

River Islands echoes the recreational goals of the City of Lathrop by embracing the following:
Provisions for diverse recreational spaces and opportunities that can support music, dance, arts and crafts, sports, drama, nature

study, games, special events, and educational learning activities;
provisions for opportunities regardless of an individual' s age, religion, etncic background, economic status, sex, or level of
abilities;

opportunities for fostering of leadership skills in the community through safe outdoor environments that allow for social interaction,
creative expressions, and community involvement;
options tor year- round engagement in active and passive recreation whether programmed or not;
and, education of the community on how to recreate in positive and community building ways.

Community Parks
Community parks often incorporate a variety of recreational programming to provide active and passive recreational opportunities for
all. Most residents should be able to access a community park within/ z to 1 mile from their home. An ideal Community Park connects
residents to outdoor recreation options, fosters public growth and establishes collective identity. Per the City of lathrop, community
parks are primarily intended to serve the needs of organized sports and active recreation.

Community Parks are recommended for development on land greater than fifteen ( 15} acres; exceptions to the this are acceptable
but require approval from the Cily. The service area for Community Parks is measured as Yz mile from the boundaries of the park,
approximately 10- 20 minute walk for pedestrians.

Typical features include those found in a Neighborhood Park( see Neighborhood Parks description) with the addition of any number
of other features. These may include sports fields( lighted and unlighted depending on programming), sport courts, concessian s(ands,
restrooms, and amphitheater or performing arts facilities, nature education opportunities, splash pads or other water-play featur s,
dog parks, and fitness courses. The design may also include areas for specialty athletics and recreation. Each design will attempt to
provide the highest level of accessibility and safety possible ior the benefit of the community and the for the park' s continued succ ss.

Unique to River Islands, community park space also includes miles of non- motorized levee trails that circle the developm nt providing
safe access to anywhere within the development.  lnese parks are located near schools to maximize recreational space and
programming. These open spaces may also include storm water quality features and facilities accessory to the park.

On- site parking facilities are important within community parks to service patron heavy activities that typically occur in these parks.
During the design phases of each community park, the necessary number of parking stalls to accommodate users will be identified
based on specific park amenities included in the design. The number oF parking stalls will vary at each park site.

Neighborhoad Parks

Neighborhood parks serve as an extended back yard for local residents and provide both passive and active recreation opportunities.
An ideal Neighborhood Park connects residents to outdoor recreation and increases residents' sense of ownership of their own
community. Neighborhood parks are generally a minimum of four acres and are recommended far new neighborhoods as amenities
that may be accessed wilhin a 5- 10 minute walk.

Neighborhood Parks are recommended for development on land greater than four( 4) acres. The design of each park will tak into

13 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

612



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

consideration the unique needs and demographics of the neighborhood within which it is placed. Each design will attempt to provide
the highest level of accessibility and safety possible for the benefit of the community and the for the park`s continued success. Parks
should be as centrally located as possible within new developments, and not located along high speed roads.

Neighborhood Parks typically include a mixture of active and passive recreational opportunities and more variety of amenities
than pocket parks. Playground structures, fitness equipment, and shaded benches and/ or table are typical. BBQ facilities may be
appropriate, and provision of waste stations ( trash, recycling, and dog waste) will help support maintaining a clean neighborhood.
Fenced dog parks located within neighborhood parks are designed to serve communities within the immediate neighborhood viciniCy,
The dog parks should be strategically located near levee access points to encourage pedestrian use between parks and levee irail.
Open lawn areas large enough to provide spaces for youth team sport practices are encouraged. Sports courts are also appropriate
and maybe include bocce, horseshoes, volleyball, basketball, or multi- sport courts.

Pocket Parks

Pocket Parks are geared toward serving residents within the immediate adjacent neighborhood. lhe standard measurement ta
determine park service coverage is measured as a quarter- mile radius from the park border, which is roughly a 5- 10 minute walk. The
park design should consider the unique needs and the demographics within its service radius. Each design should attempt to provide
the highest level of accessibility and safety possible for the benefit of the community and for the parks continued success. Parks will be
as centrally located as possible within new developments, and not located along high speed roads.

Pocket parks typically include a mixture of ackive and passive recreational opportunities. These are essentially extended" backyards" of
the neighborhood and so provide play opportunities as well as social space for residents. Typical features include, fitness equipment,
shaded benches, and tables. BBQ facilities may be appropriate, and provision of waste stations( trash, recycling, and dog waste) will
help support maintaining a clean neighborhood amenity. Pocket Parks may also support community garden initiatives. Pocket parks
do not qualify for Quimby Act credit.

Linear Parks

linear parks can be designed for multiple functions and purposes. They may function to connect park spaces with safe non- motorized
paths that can be used by individuals and families to navigate the network of trails and parks while avoiding automobile traffic. Th y
may be a combined vehicle and pedestrian parkway, they may even act as a buffer between residential and commercial ar s, or

combine storm water conveyance infrastructure with non- motorized trails. In general, these Uails also encourage pedestrian movement
throughout the community while improving visibility and increasing observant" eyes" on the community.

linear parks typically include a mixture of active and passive recreational

opportunities, but with less amenities than neighborhood parks. Typical features
include fitness equipment, benches, and tables. linear parks do not qualify for
Quimby Aci credit.

3. 3 SUSTAINABILITY

There is a common misconception that sustainable building alternatives are
inherently more expensive than traditional planning and building practices. In
a 2009 survey by the National Recreation and Park Associa[ ion, Parks and
Recreation leaders noted concerns about keeping up with funding environmental
improvements while struggling with budget cuts and reductions in water supply.
Fortunately,  water- saving technology and practices have improved such
that conforming with state- mandated water usage restrictions is now widely
achievable across even the most arid parts of California. Integration of modern
irrigation equipment and selection of low- water using plant material will save
funds on irrigation water for its parks as well as demonstrate to residents the
accessibility of low water using landscapes.   

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN  (    1

613



CMAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

Sustainability practices are being incorporated into all River Islands parks development. Best practice guidelines outlining the potential
strategies that should be included are listed below.

Implement Low Impact Development( lID) stormwater management technology into designs. Vegetated swales capture all water
on site and clean it prior to discharging it into the many lakes within the community. The lake water is then used to irrigat th
many public apen spaces.

Install hardy, native and adapted plant varieties, avoiding invasive or water- intensive plant varieties.
Recycled water is being used with all irrigation systems to the maximum extent feasible.
Central control irrigation system controllers utilizing weather- based sensors, flow sensors, master valves, and point source irrigation
help to minimize over- watering and avoid catastrophic losses of water due to breaks and vandalism.
Consider incorporating community gardens to foster community ownership of park space and educate the public about food
security.

3. 4 SAFETY AND SECURITY
The most important aspect of monitoring and providing safe parks and open

5:

space is maintaining an existing partnership with municipal law enforcemenl.   v

law enforcement agencies provide " boots on the ground° throughout parks
and open space assets, and are therefore uniquely able to advise on

f` 

the unique needs and proven methods for various locations. Parks will be
designed with security in mind. Similarly, surveillance cameras located in

k y      "    -

particularly problematic areas may be the best option for certain locations.
A varieCy of wireless, cloud- based security camera technology is currently      ,       
available to streamline installation and monitoring of the equipment. local      "    
law enforcement feedback will be central to any decisions related to security      
at public parks.    

The most widely recognized set of best practice standards relating to safety
in parks are Crime Prevention mrough Environmental Design ( CPTED}
principles include:

Natural Surveillance s--  , - dn.
F

The overall goal of CPTED is the idea that a persan will be less likely to
m,,.  ,,       

commit a crime if there is risk of being seen. This principle encourages " see
and be seen" quality in public spaces.

New parks will, when feasible be designed such that there are buildings
or roads fronting all sides of the park for maximum surveillance.     
Where feasible homes and businesses should Face toward the park.   
Design and maintain safe pedestrian routes to the park and clear lines Il I ', ,

of sight from these route5 into major activiry zones within the park. 
Encourage neighbors to keep an eye on the park by keeping nighttime
lighting pleasant and non- obtrusive and by enforcing hours or park
usage to avoid nuisances that could cause neighbors to close doors

and windows facing the park.
Where feasible use pleasant, dimmer lighting rather than bright, blinding lighting to avoid creating the excessively dark areas that
form just outside the reach of the bright lights.
Security cameras may be installed on a case- by- case basis as deterrent to crime and vandalism.
Where feasible, use of motion sensor lighting to alert others when movement in the park is registered.

This CPTED principle encourages use of creative access control using pathway alignment, landscape/ topographic features, signage
or other features to direct the flow of user traffic, rather than traditional but intimidating mechanisms such as fences and wire.

I   I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

614



CHAPTER 3; PHASE 2 PAF K SYSTEM GUI[ I.IN° r

Avoid using control mechanisms such as barbed wire fences. This aesthetic supports the perception that the facility is dangerous.
A combination of eyes- on- the- park, sufficient lighting and patrolling, and other measures may be used where possible.
Incorporate clear, bilingual signage a[ the major pedestrian entrance( s) to the park. This signage may include information about
park hours, maintenance/ littering, and emergency contact information.
Avoid landscape features that create blind spots and prevent adequate surveillance.
Select plant materials to groundcover height( less than 2') and maintain tree canopies to a minimum of 6' above ground level.
Keeping the 2'- 6' visual range open will increase surveillance capabilities and reduce perceptions of possible criminal activity
areas.

TerriCorial Reinforcement

Use of visual cures, such as consistent types of pavement, plant materials, or signage to encourage specific usage of park space and
to delineate public/ private divisions is an important part of CPTED. In the case of public parks, this territorial reinforcement will:

Encourage community ownership of and presence at parks.
Use varied plant materials to encourage activity in some areas and to discourage unwanted activities.
Suppon the formation of community service group adoption and maintenance programs.

Mainten ncP

Maintenance is of high importance of CPTED safety guidelines. Consider the" broken window" theory, which is the theory that poorly
maintained properties will breed criminal activity. Well- maintained places indicate that there is regular human presence which monitors
the site and that the community cares about that park, which can deter criminals and deviants from that space.  River Islands is

dedicated to consistent maintenance practices:
Dedicated maintenance staff to low- hanging maintenance needs, including regular clean- up of litter and graffiti.
Adequate staff and funding to maintain and prune trees and shrubs. This is important in order to keep the trees healthy and make
the parks safer and cleaner without excess dead landscape material.
Scheduled periodic repairs of site amenities such as benches, tables, playground equipment, barbeque' s and garbage
receptades.

Scheduled regular maintenance of ball field surfaces where the field is" closed" to repair and replace turf/ clay as needed.
Regular interaction with City staff who interact with scheduled user groups. Coordinate with City Staff as well.
Staffing of enough maintenance personnel to visit each park on a regular rotation.
Determined maintenance schedules based upon regular review of park needs with maintenance staff.
Outcome- based maintenance standards for landscape maintenance. Outcome- based standards emphasize " expected end

result" maintenance standards.

3. 5 NON- MOTt7RIZED CIRCULATION

Safe pedestrian and bicyclist connections, linking parks, open spaces, and schools throughout the community is a priority. Ta this end,
a complex non- motorized circulation system has been developed to accomplish this goal. Tne circulation typology ( as reflected in
Figure 4. 5- Phase 2 Circulation Map) consists of elevated( levee) trails, classes 1, 2& 3 bicycle lanes, pedestrian trails, and pedestrian
connections. Also included as Figure 4. 6 ( Phase 2 Safe Routes To Schools) is a highlight of the routes which may be used by children
to walk or bike to school safely. These typology designations are described below.

Elevateci ( Levee} Traiis

Phase 2 elevated trails are designed to encircle the development following the levees that protect the development from flood events.
They are designed for pedestrians, bicyclists, and equestrian riders. They are also designed for maximum safety by avoiding conflicts
with automobile traffic. The trail cross section is 40' wide, with 30' designed for recreational use. The 30' is intended to include a 12'

wide paved path with a class II aggregate base shoulder on one side, a class II equestrian trail on the other side( per California State
Parks Trail Handbook, and an aggregate base shoulder for other trail amenities. See Section 3. 6 for more detailed trail informalion.

Wilhin the 30' recreational use space other trail related amenities will be included to enhance the value of the trail system. ihose

amenities may include features such as: exercise stations at strategic access locations, scenic overlooks, kiosk stations, intcrpretivc/
education signage about the river and surrounding habitat, benches/ tables for resting, bike racks at rest locations, mile markcrs,
directional signage, etc.

Class I Bike Path

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN  (    Ih

615



CNAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

Class i paths are paved rights- of- way completely separated from streets. Bike paths will have a   '`  , t r
limited number of cross streets and driveways. These paths are typically shared with pedestrians      '   

k    ;'  
b

and often called mixed- use paths. The Highway Design Manual( HDM) standards define these l^,

paths as 8'- 10' wide paths with 2' aggregate base shoulders on either side.

Cfass II Bikc Lane

Class II lanes are on- street facilities designated for bicyclists using stripes and stencils. Bike
lanes may include buffer striping to provide greater separation between bicyclists and parked
or moving vehicles. Bike lanes are the preferred treatment for all arlerial and collector streets on
the bikeway network, and not typically installed on low- volume, low- speed residential streets.
The HDM standards define these paths as minimum 4'- 6' wide paths.

Cl ss III Bike Route

Class III routes are streets designated for bicycle travel and shared with motor vehicles. While uVi

the only required treatment is signage, streets are designated as bike routes because they
are suitable for sharing with motor vehicles and provide better connectivity than other streets.
The HDM notes that minimum widths for Class III bikeways are represented, in the minimum

standards for highway lanes and shoulders.

Pedestrian Trails

Pedes rian trails are designated walkways for travel by pedestrian and are not wide enough for a ,,

traversing with bicycles. These paths vary in width, but are never narrower than 4' wide.

Pedestrian Connections

Pedestrian connections are designated walkways for travel by pedestrian and typically connect
two other circulation path designations. These paths vary in width, but are never narrower than
4' wide.

3. 6 ELEVATED L VEE TRAILS

The River Islands Community has a unique recreational opportunity as it is surrounded with a
200 yr. flood levee that not only protects the community, but also affords the residents a trail
system loop longer than most City- wide trail systems. The following paragraphs describe this
nearly 18 mile trail system in detail with supporting figures for clarity.

Trail Design

Roughly eight miles of planned levee trails will follow along the top of the levee, generally
centered on the center line of the levee alignment.  Access point will be provided from the      '"
development side of the levee at intervals to allow for recreational and maintenance uses. The

I

levee trails are maintained and overseen by Reclamation District 2062. The levee trails exceed
Highway Design Manual{ HMD) standards for two directional class I trails, with a total paved
width of 12' and unimproved aggregate base shoulders totaling 10' in width: 4' wide class II
aggregate base shoulder, and 6' wide class II equestrian trail. The remaining 8' wide paih shall
be set aside for trail amenities such as overlooks, educational/ interpretative signage, benches

and/ or exercise equipment. Figures 3.1 depicts the standard trail design for River Islands levee

trails.

I i   (  RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

616



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

Open Space On Waterside of Levees

The open space areas on the waterside of elevated levees are maintained and overseen by Reclamation District 2062, Th apen
space will be maintained to remain in a natural state as much as possible, using hydro- seeding and erosion control methods. Public
access is allowed along the 30' wide elevated levee Uails for recreational and maintenance uses. No permanent barriers are planned
to restrict public access to the waterside open spaces. However, there will be no recreational trails or amenities in these areas to
encourage public access.

FIGURE 3. 1 - TYPICAL TRAIL SECTIONS ( ILLUSTRATIVE ONLY)

t     !'    i.  ' i     . •   •`    

Levee Trail

Existing Federal I
Levee

kl
I          

k
kr

A
w

e..m._...«:. w» s.W....:,.,...    -_    
S

yy t
wiM l

v,.. .    .. _ Y t::v̂,l̀,a,      _.       ,  

r    

nau. m
y lyL'.INICYPB._................_........._...............            .

WYrie

w rryevarceuae
E 9CMtNi

Y

Shoulder with Trail Amenities I
l--Class II Aggregate Base Shoulder

Paved Levee Trail I

1/     Class II Equestrian Trail
I

ww
W-

New levee
20' 7vP .

LEVEE

ACCESS 

EASEMENT

r  • •     • • •!'

Shoulder with Trail Amenities I
Class II Aggregate Base Shoulder f

Paved Levee Trail f
Class II Equesfrion Trail

w,  ,

v:„,, „ a. . .  ,. . .. ..  A va     .     .    

Nev Levee

2D' TYP. VAREES

LEVEE

ACCESS

EASEMENT

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN      IK

617



CNAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

5houlder with Trail Amenities

f 
r Class II Aggregale Base Shoulder

Paved Levee Trail
f

Class II Equestrian Trail

l       x.

r

r

a
r..,. a ro     . 

i_     N W      
20' TYP. VARtES VARIES VRRIES
LEVEE

ACCESS

EASEMENT

o     #  • i`  •

rShoulder wifh Trail Amenities I
Class II Aggregate Base Shoulder

Paved Levee Trail
F

Class II Equestrian Trail

i i . e

j

t
ti

20' TYP.  ,    ..
LEVEE  ;

N N1.__—_'.._....._._..___..—...—..—..—._.—  ACCESS 

EASEMENT VARIES

i  • • s

Shoulder wihh Trail Amenities I
i- Class II Aggregate Base Shoulder

i     
f-Paved Leveo Trail

i     / - Class II Equestrian Trail
i     

i .      

vtw, e,  

y+    

x

5w    #
1. S     '......  .       a

wn:.

N    V

20' T!' P.

LEVEE
ACCESS

EASEMENT

i Mt'    !.

Shoulder with Trail Amenities

Class II Aggregate Base$ houlder iPaved Levee Trail

j i Class II Equestrian Trail

i  i/  `
k      

a.       a , uy;

New levee

20' TYP

LEVEE

ACCESS

EASEMENT

19 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

618



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

FIGURE 3. 2 - TYPICAL TRAI PLAN UIEW

E, A, oNA    RIVER ISLANDS TRAIL SIGN PROGRAM
51GN"

PROPOSED TOPICS

y,"`---      Historic Mossdale Crnssing Bridgc,  last link ol the
r

e Ncri       "' i TransconGnental Railroad circa 1869.

Discover a California Tre sur; th S tn lnaquin Riv r
X

ra,       

Y

The San Joa( 7uin River Delta b the numbers len[ yth, d ryth,
UUTDOOR EXERCISP

iy         
7 Y 7 W

EQUIPMfNT

number of islands, etc.— statistical overview}

t   Salute to Bennie and loyce Gario

Understanding the Primary Zone of the San loaquin Deita

me story behind Bradshaw' s Crossing Bridge

Mail delivery along the San loaquin River

FIGURE 3. 3 - CONCEPT ft R A TYPICAL TRAIL REST NODE Recreation among the Defta Waterways

Indigenous people of the San Joaquin: me Yokuts and the

BIKE REPAIR
MIWOk$

Sr""°" 

Fishing in the San loaquin River
BIKE RACKS

The Pacific Flyway: a naiural pathway for migratory birds
BENCH

T000RExtR, SE Animai life along the San Joaquin
ec uivMeNr

Building a 200- year levee- a feat of modem engineering
Crawdads!

The Dell' Osso brothers start farming in the 1920s

Lathrop' s naming and promincnce as r ilra ci t wn

Ferry boats on th San laayuin, circ 1 4

Tracts of the Delta, including the St; wa t Tr ct
1906 San Francisco earthquake surviv rs camc tt l thro

Understanding the Paradise Cut flood bypass
lathrop' s incorporation in 1989—a new city in an historic

a,n P rf
r,

z'. 

setting
Y 7

T"'    

Open space and protected species at River Islands
t, t_   , ud;

River Islands' vision of land stewardship
a, a. rF' r,

Trail Surfacing
The paved section of trail will be constructed of 3" of asphalt over 6" of road base
of the trail.   Shoulders of the trail will be constructed with 6" of compacted Class II aggregate base. Slopes of the levee will be

stabilized with erosion control hydroseed. ll ere will be no ornamental landscape or irrigation systems constructed in conjunction

with any permanent levee trails.

Trail Access

The follawing figure highlights pedestrian and non- motorized access to the levee trail, which is crucial to the concept of a walkabl
community.  To this end, the levees have been designed with multiple access points at strategic neighborhood locations and to
facilitate required levee maintenance. In order to accommodate bike groups, equestrian riders, and other groups that require staging
areas, strategic aff-site parking locations will be available for access to the trail. These off-site access locations, designated with
appropriate signage, won' t necessarily coincide with parks or open spaces, but are more closely associated with trail access points
and adjacent uses with adequate parking. These sites may include Community Park C1, the transit oriented development area, the
employment center, and the high school site. The transit oriented development area has been identified as a potential equestrian

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN  (   2O

619



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

FIGURE 3. 4 - LEVEE TRAII CONCEPT SIGNAGE AND TRAIL MARKERS

O" a
oeo aumm°°`u„ s     

G oMowmCuwW)    t Ca twr Cut).
tft tn       . i7 n       .

UtLl3(, A       

fr ,,;.       t=        
o, c; cr r;     r,

a
BENNIE AND) bYCE GATTU THE BENNIE AND JUYCE 6ATT0

z `      
Y .     

NISIORIC TRAII.     
n

81STURIC TNAIL s  
S n 9a        ,       S n n aht,         ,.     a       _,, , r

n«,.,. t n....,

fi.   ih  11 .  n      -
p. Yil[ 

l4
a tRa.     wt, p. yl,      Yfu it   r. I r i. F'       .

8 fu : 1 Yp  [ h op.     whew H i  - 

tw ' 1- tly-      13 1 I hN 1 de rci

M       

qx.  Im« t   1 tlwith l ak tt+'      0yT
te4.{     d i    :. . run    4. 1..      1 I        -

2 W.. . Mt 6 " iM t IUr. 1NM.  . -  0 t 1      

Y{.

1.  tPUvc.'
n umtlu r k. FmoawrnA fS i r lui Vu exAr. a( I rcqruu. de IW

D c ia x i antl.' rn' k Obr. Il en tiJ vniA-
1 E.  . x yrwi.: vxlFrr@iu cvf::     Ihuxues. l ateAtwt4nn cenA

m. l! ipp r ll Yetrrxlnmrrndinvrk. n

iox c. Vf pyc. . dlwf t; a& aa. udm. rkc o1 M1c th n' i.  n.   A vw y i. A ' 10-.s' .    

6 MILES

ti  .       

i,   
o       

a 5 M LES

z,',        

7 MILES

f

e , ri

j;     
ti, v

r

8 MILES    s.., ,      

w,..      

o=

9 MILES     " 

f

10 MILES

1

s

a             ,       

ri iI 
ulf    ph     i

11 MILES. 

MILE MARKER

TRAII MARKER

21 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

620



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

staging area location due to its proximity and access to the levee trail. If equestrian access is required prior to development of the
staging area, an interim location can be determined to provide parking, potable water access and other amenities necessary.

3. 7 PLANTING

Plant materials for all parks and open
spaces will be selected from Table 3.1-

Parks & Open Space Plant Species list.

Alternative species may be substituted
or added and will be considered on a

A

project by project basis by the agency
listed in Table 4. 3- A gency Review Table.
Substitutions will be based on the suitability
of the species in terms of similarity of theme,

r characteristics,  size, form, tolerance of

t,,l climatic conditions, soil requirements and

water usage. Plant species have been

selected to mimic existing characteristics
and habitat of the delta waterways and

vegetated agricultural hedgerows. Plant
rr-      

material selection will strongly consider
Levee trail access points

s the use of drought- tolerant,  durable

and long- lived species that give the
3

appearance and imagery of the Delta
Valley. Species are well adapted to the
climatic conditions and soil types typical

of the River Islands Development. large

naturally shaped flowering shrubs species
should be selected to mimic the image of traditional hedgerows typical of the surrounding agricultural regian. Flowering species that
create year- round interest are of high preference. Plant and tree selections do not include invasive characteristics, such as: surface
roots that can spread, creating trip hazards or that can be destructive to surrounding curbs and walks, species that produce large wind
blown seed varieties that become invasive or destructive, varieties that are extremely allergenic and varieties with toxic properties that
can be digested by humans or animals.

While fruiting varieties of trees or shrubs may hearken to the true agricultural use of the River Islands project, the use of such species
can create maintenance challenges and become problematic as litter creating rodent or pest problems. These species will be avoided
except in specific locations where maintenance and control can be exercised. Plant selections have been determined based upon

natural shape of species with minimal pruning or maintenance. Shrubs will be used as a screen for fences or utility sUuctures in parks
and open spaces. Evergreen plant material as a background is preferable to maintain year- round screening, however, the usage of
decorative deciduous plant species is desirable and recommended with care being taken to maintain year- round interest and structure.
Spacing of plant material will be made based upon the species being utilized to create fullness and allow for ultimate growth impact.

The use of traditional " lawn" species and spaces will be limited to parks and public open spaces that encourage active recreational
use. When" lawn" species are utilized, varieties will include deep rooting species that use less water than traditional varieties. lhe use
and application of" lawn" species will follow the guideline and requirements set for in A61881. Where bio- swales will be incorporated,
species will be selected that filter and slow the movement of water from curb inlets to drain inlets. Species will be tolerant of flooding
and will be irrigated to maintain an alternative appearance year- round.

Tree varieties have been selected to imitate a rural Delta Valley aesthetic. Evergreen varieties will be used to frame and give dditional
interest year- round ro selected areas. Flowering or accent trees will be selected for year- round interest through flower char ct ristics,
branching patterns, bark color and shape.

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN     22

621



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

TABLE 3. 1 - PARKS & OPEN SPACE PLANT SPECIES I. IST

1 •        .,   

e          «     
i

Trees

Acer negundo vac californica California Box Elder 30'- 50'  M

Acer rubrum' Armstrong',   Armstrong Red Mapie 40'- 50'      15' H
October Glory', Redpointe'

Aesculus carnea Red Horsechestnut 40' 30' M

Alnus rhombifolia White Alder

Arbutus unedo Strawberry Tree 8'- 25'      8'- 25' L

Arbutus' Marina'   Marina' Strawberry Tree 20'- 30'    20'- 30'       L

Dark green oblong
Arbutus marina-' Multi- trunked'    Strawberry Tree 15'- 30'    15'- 20'       L foliage with rosy pink fall

flowers

Betulajacquemontii( Betula utilis White Barked Himalyan
40'- 60'    25'- 30'      H

jacquemontu)      Birch

Carpinus betulus' Fastigiata' European Hornbeam 40' 30' M

Catalpa speciosa Western Catalpa 40'- 60'    20'- 40'      M

Cercidium x' Desert Museum'      Desert Museum Palo Verde 20' 20' 

Cercis canadensis' Oklahoma'    Eastern Redbud 25'- 35'    25'- 35'      M

Cercis occidentalis Western Redbud 10'- 20'    10'- 20'      VL

Cercocarpus betuloides Island Mountain Mahogany 5'- 20'     S'- 20'       VL

Timeless Beauty Desert Fragrant showy purpleChilopsis linearis' Monhews'       
W oW

15'- 20'    15'- 20'      VL
flowers

Cupressus arizonica Arizona Cypress 40' 20' VL

Ginkgo biloba' Autumn Gold'     
Ginkga,' Autumn Gold' 35'- 40'    25'- 35'      M Use male only varieties

Male only}

Koelreuteria paniculata Goldenrain Tree 20'- 35'    25'- 40'      M

Lagerstroemia indica' Dynamite'   Crape Myrtle 15'- 25'    15'- 20'       L Red Flowers

lagerstroemia x fauriei' Natchez'  Crape Myrtle 20'- 30'    15'- 20'       L

lagerstroemia x faurei' Natchez'   
Natchez Crape Myrtle 15'- 20'   12' Wide L White Flawers

Multi- Trunked'

Lagerstroemia x fauriei
Crape Myrtle 20'- 30'    15- 20'       L

Muskogee'

Magnolia soulangiana' D. D,      
Tulip Magnolia 50'      25'- 35'      M

Blanchard'

Olea europaea ' Swan Hill'       Swan Hill Olive 25'- 30'    25'- 30'      VL

Parkinsonia aculeata Mexican Palo Verde 15'- 20'    10'- 20'      VL

Pinus pinea Stone Pine L

Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 80'- 100'   25'- 35'      M

Pistacia chinensis' Pearl Street',     
Chinese Pistache Varieties 30'- 60'      50' L

Red Push' or' Keith Davey'

3 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

622



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

1 1   /        1

i

1"n r        s 1          s

A
I

i f

Platanus acerifolia' Bloodgood'   London Plane 40'- 50'    25'- 30'      M

Platanus X acerifolia' Columbia'      M

Platanus racemosa California Sycamore 50'- 90'    30'- 50'      M

Populus alba' Pyramidalis' Seedless Bolieana Poplar 50' 15' M

Populus fremontii Fremont Cottonwood 40'- 60'    30'- 40'      M

Populus nigra' Italica'      lombardy Poplar 100'      15'- 30'      M

Prosapis glandulosa' Maverick'    Texas Mesquite 25'- 30'    25'- 30'       L

4uercus agrifolia Coast Live Oak 20'- 70'    40'- 80'      VL

Quercus coccinea Scarlet Oak 60'- 80'    40'- 60'      M

Quercus douglasii Blue Oak 30'- 50'    40- 70'      VL

Quercus ilex Holly Oak 40'- 60'    40- 60'       L

Quercus lobata Valley Oak 50'- 75'    S0'- 80'       L

Quercus muehlenbergii Quinkpin Oak

Quercus robur English Oak 50"- 60'      30' M

Quercus suber Cork Oak 30'- 60'    30'- 60'       l

Quercus virginiana Soulhern Live Oak 40'- 80'    60'- 90'      M

Quercus wislizenii Interior Live Oak 30'- 70'    30'- 70'      VL

Robinia' Purple Robe'  l

Salix goodingii Gooding' s Black Willow 10'- 25'  H

Salix Iaevigala Red Willow 15'- 30'  H

Salix lucida var. lasiandra Pacific Willow H

Schinus molle California Pepper tree 25'- 40'    25'- 40'       L

Tilia cordata' Greenspire'  Littleleaf Linden 30'- 50 15'- 30 M

Ulmus parvifolia' Drake'    Chinese Elm 50'- 70'    30'- 50'      M

Ulmus wilsoniana' Frontier'    20'    M

Ulmus wilsoniana' PatrioY 30'     L

Ulmus wilsoniana' Emerald
Sunshine'      

Ulmus wilsoniana' Prospector' L

Umbellularia california California laurel 20'- 35'    20'- 35'      M

Zelkova serrata' Green Vase'      Zelkova, Green Vase 50' 50' M

Shrubs( large Background)

Abelia grandiflora Glossy Abelia 8'  S' M

Agave filifera L

Anisodontea x hypomandarum Cape Mallow 4'  4' M Purple/ pink flowers

Arbutus u.' Oktoberfest'    Strawberry Tree 6'- 8'       6'- 8' L Dark green foliage

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I   ' s

623



CHAPTER : PHASE  PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

j •                

f i! t    •    •    i          s

i i

Berberis thunbergii lapanese Barberry 4'- 6'    L

Buddieja davidii Butterfly Bush 6'- 10'      6'- 10'       M

Carpenteria californica Bush Anemone 3'- 6'    L

Cephalanthus occidentalus Button Willow 3'- 15'      3'- 15'       M

Cistus hybridus( Cistus
White Rockrose 2'- 5'       2'- 4' L

corbariensis)

Cistus ladanifer( Cistus
Crimson- Spot Rockrose 3'- 5'       3'- 5' L

ladaniferus maculatus)

Cistus x purpureus Orchid Roserock 4'  4' M Dark pink flow rs
Cornus stolonifera( sericea)

Red- Twiggetl Dogwood 6'- 8'       6'- 8' H
Baileyi'

Cotinus coggygria( Rhus cotinus)  
Smoke Bush 15' 15' L

Purpureus'

Dodonaea viscosa' Purpurea'     Purple Hopseed Bush 10'       8'- 10' L Red/ burgundy foliage

Elaeagnus pungens Silverberry 6'- 15'    L

Eriogonum fasciculatum California Buckwheat 1'- 3' 4'  L

Fremontodendron californicum California Flannelbush VL

Glossy lime green
Grevillea x' Noell' Noell Grevillea 5'  6'  L needle- like foliage with

pink and white flowers

Heteromeles arbutifolia Toyon 6'- 10'   VL

Laurus nobilis Bay Laurel 12'- 40'   L

lavatera maritima Tree Mallow 6'  6'  Gray- Green foliage with
light pink/ purpl; flow rs

lavatera thuringiaca' Mrs

Barnsley'   
Mallow L

Leucophyllum frutescens
Texas Ranger 4'- 5'       4'- 5' L

Compactum'

lupinus arboreus Yellow Bush Lupine 5'- 8'       S'- 8' L

Mahonia aquifolium Oregon Grape 6'     M

Nerium oleander' Little Red' Dwarf Red Oleander 4'  4'  L Red flowers

Nerium oleander' Petite Pink'      Dwarf Pink Oleander 4'  4'  L Pink flowers

Osmanthus fragrans Sweet Olive 10'       10'- 12'      M

Osmanthus x fortunei Hybrid Tea Olive 6'- 20'     10'- 12'      M

Philadelphus lewisii Wild Mock- orange 4'- 10'      6'- 10'       M

Philadelphus' Belle Etoile'  Purple Spot Mock Orange 5'- 7'       5'- 7'       M

Phormium tenax' Atropurpureum'   New Zealand flax 4'- 5'       4'- 5' L gurgundy- bronze
bladedfoliage

Phormium' Yellow Wave'  
Yellow Wave New Zealand

4'- 5'       4'- 5' M Yellow and lime gr n
Flax bladed foli g

Rhaphiolepis indica India Hawthorn 4'- 5'    L

25     RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

624



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

1 •        .   

s          ,     r

e

Rhaphiolepis indica' Clara' India Hawthorn 3'- 5'       3'- 5' L

Rhaphiolepis indica' Springtime'   India Hawthorn 4'- 6'    L

Raphiolepis umbeilata Yeddo Hawthorn 4'- 6'       4'- 6' L

Rhamnus californica' Mound San
San Bruno Coffeberry 3'- 15' 8'  L

Bruno'

Rhamnus californica' Eve Case'    Dwarf Coffeberry 4'- 8'       4'- 6' L

Rhamnus crocea Redberry

Rhamnus tomentella Hoary Coffeeberry L

Ribes aureum( var. graciilimum)    Golden Currant 3'- 6'    L

Ribes sanguineum Pink Flowering Currant 4'- 12'   M

Rosa califomica' Plena'    Califomia Wild Rose L

Teucrium fruticans Bush Germander 5'- 6'       S'- 6' L Gray leaves, lavender
flowers

Teucrium fruticans Bush Germander 4'- 8'      4'- 10' L

Deep green leathery
Viburnum t.' Spring Bouquet'       Spring Bouquet Viburnum 4'- 6'       4'- 6' M

foliaye with tight clusters

ot pmk buds and white
flowers

Xylosma congestum Shiny Xylosma 8- 10'      8- 10' l

Shrubs( Medium Foreground)

Berberis thunbergii' Criruzam'      
Crimson Pouby Japanese

2,  Z, M Deep red/ burgundy
Barberry foliage

Callistemon ciUinus' Compacta'    Bottlebrush L

Callistemon ciUinus' Little John' or
Dwarf Battlebrush 3'  3'  l

Captain Cook'

Coleonema pulchrum Pink Breath of Heaven 3'- 4' 4' M      ight green faliage with
tmy pink flowers

Mahonia aquifolium' Compacta'     M

Myrsine africana African Boxwood 3'- 8'       3'- 6' L

Punica granatum' Nana'   Dwarf Pomegranate 3'  5'  L Orange flowers

Rhaphialepis indica' Ballerina'     
Dwarf Pink Indian

2  4'  L Pink flow rs
H awthorne

Salvia reggii/ Salvia x
Autumn Sage 3- 4' 2'  L

jamensis

Salvia greggii' Alba' 1'- 4'       1'- 4' L

Salvia microphylla Mint Bush Sage 3- 5'       4'- 8' M

Spiraea bumalda Spiraea 2'- 3'       3'- 4' M

Spiraea x bumalda' GoldFlame'   Goldflame Spirea 3'- 4' 4' M Yellow- green foliage
with pink/ red flowers

large glossy green deep
Viburnum davidii David Viburnum 3'  3' M veined foliage, pink

buds and white flowers

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 2h

625



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

1 •.       .,   

i

Zauschneria californica California Fuschia 3' 3'- 4' L Gray leaves w/ red
flowers

Shrubs( Accents)

Achillea miileFolium californica Yarrow 1- 3' 1- 3' L

Achillea millefolium rosea' Island
pink Yarrow 1'- 3'    L

Pink'

Achillea tomentosa Woolly Yarrow 6"     L

Aloe species varies L

Amsonia tabernaemontana Blue Star Flower 2'- 3'    

Aquilegia eximia Serpentine Columbine 2' 1- 3' L

Artemisia' Powis Castle'    Powis Castle Sagebrush 3'  6'  L

Asclepias fascicularis Narrow- leaved Milkweed 1'- 3' 1' 

Dietes bicolor Fortnight lily, Bicolor Iris L

Erigeron karvinskianus Santa Barbara Daisy 1'- 2'       3'- 5' L       W th som pink
flowers

Helleborus x hybridus Lenten Rose M

Hemorcallis x' Stella de Oro'      Stella De Ora Dwarf Daylily 2'  2 M Heavy clusters of large
yellow flowers

Hesperaloe parviftora Coral Yucca 2'  2' 

Heuchera' lillian' s Pink'    Lillian' s Pink Coral Bells

Heuchera' Rosada' t sada Coral Bells

Heuchera sanguinea Coral Bells M

Iris' Canyon Snow' Canyon Snow Pacific Iris

Kniphofia uvaria Red Hot Poker M

Lavandula angustifolia English Lavender 8"- 2'       8"- 2' L

Lavandula a,' Buena Vista' English lavender 2  2  Gray•gre n foli g with
d p viol t blue flaw rs

Lavandula' Goodwin Creek
Goodwin Creek lavender L

Grey'

Lavandula stoechas' Otto Quast'  
Otto Quast Spanish

18"- 3' 2'  L
Lavender

Liriope muscari Lily Turf M

Lupinus albifrons Bush Lupine 3- 5'       2- 3' L

Penstemon heterophylus
Foothill Penstemon 1'- 3'       1'- 2' L Lavender flowers

Margarita'

Penstemon species M- L

Penstemon spectabilis Showy Pensteman 3'    M- L

Vertical spikey gray-
Perovskia a.' little Spire'    Russian Sage 2'  2'  L green foliage with

lavender- blue flawers

2     RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

626



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDEUNE J

r . ., .        1 •.       •,   

s s ri a s    •    a i

i

Yellow wit green
Phormium tenax' Apricot Queen'   New Zealand Flax 3'  4'  L margined bladed

foliage

Phormium tenax' Dusky Chief'      New Zealand Flax 5'- 6'       4'- 5' l
Reddish brown bladed

foliage

Phormium tenax' shirazz'   New Zealand Flax L

Saivia L- M

Salvia' Bee' s Biiss' Bee' s Biiss Salvia 1'- 2' 8' M

Saivia m.' Hot Lips' Hot lips Sage 3'  3'  L Red/ white flow; rs

Saivia' Mrs. Beard' Mrs. Beard Saivia 2' 3- 6' L

Salvia sonomensis Creeping Sage L

Salvia spathacea Hummingbird Sage L

Solidago californica California Goldenrod 1- 3'       18"- 3' L

Symphyotrichum chilense California aster 1- 3'    L

Tuibaghia violacea Society Garlic 18" 18" L Purple flowers

Tulbaghia v.' Siiver lace'   Variegated Society Gariic 18" 18" L
Silver/ white blades w/

purple flowers

Zauschneria californica
Island California Fuschia 1- 3' 1- 3' L

Catalina'

Zauschneria cana California Fuschia 2- 3'       18"- 3'       L

Shrubs( Grasses)

Bouteloua gracilis Blue Grama Grass 6"- 18"      6"- 1' L

Calamagrostis x acutiflora' Karl Karl Foerster' s Feather Reed Slunning ve tic l fieather
Foerster'   Grass

2  2  p umes, turn gold n in
fall

Carex barbarae White Root Sedge 1'- 3'       1'- 3' M Deep green native
meadow grass

Carex divulsa Berkeley Sedge L Deep green clumping
evergreen grass

Carex pansa California Meadow Sedge 3'- 4"   M

Carex praegracilis Clustered- field Sedge 1'  6" M

Evergreen, green and
Carex testacea Orange Sedge 18"- 24"    18"- 24"      M orange spring/ summer,

vibrant orange in winter

Deschampsia caespitosa Tufted Hair Grass 1'- 3'       1'- 3' L

Deschampsia elongata Slender Hair Grass 3'      L

Eleocharis macrostachys Spike I ush 3'  2'  L

Elymus glaucus' Anderson' Blue Wild Rye 2- 3' 2'  L

Elymus triticoides Creeping Wildrye L

Eschscholzia californica California Poppy 1' 1, 5' VL

Festuca californica California Fescue 2'- 3'       2- 3' M

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN  (   2

627



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

1 •.       .,  

s a i i r    •    •    s

N

Festuca idahoensis' siskiyou blue'   Blue Bunch Grass 14" 10" L

Evergreen ciumping
Festuca mairei Atlas Fescue 2'- 3'       2- 3' L yeilowish gray- green

fol age

Festuca occidentalis M

Festuca ovina' Giauca'    Elijah' s Biue, Blue Festuca 4"- 10"       6" M

Festuca rubra Red Fescue 3"- 12"       6" M

Grindelia camporum Gum Plant 1'- 3'       1'- 3' L

Helictotrichon sempervirens Blue Oat Grass 2'- 3'    L

Hordeum brachycanlherum
Meadow Barley VL

Californicum'

Imperata cylindrica' Rubra' Japanese Blood Grass 1'- 2'    H

luncus balticas( balticus?}  Baltic Rush 3'     H

luncus effusus Pacific Id sh 3'- 6' 3' H

Juncus patens CA Gray Rush 2'  2' H

leersia oryzoides Rice Cutgrass M

Leymus condensatus' Canyon
Canyon Prince Wild Rye 2'- 4' 2' VL

Prince'

Leymus triticoides' Grey Dawn'    Creeping Wild Rye 2' 18" VL

Lomandra I.' Breeze'       Dwarf Mat fh sh 2'- 3'       2'- 4' L

Melica imperfecta
Coast Melic Grass,      

1'- 2'       1'- 2'       VL
Oniongrass

Melica californica Melica 4'     

Miscanthus sinensis lapanese Silver Grass 5'- 6'       3-' 4' H

Miscanthus sinensis' Morning 5'- 6'       3'- 4' H
LighY

Muhlenbergia capillaris Hairy Awn Muhly 3'  6'  L

Muhlenbergia dubia Mexican Deergrass 2'- 3'       2'- 3' L

Muhlenbergia rigens Deer Grass 3'  3'  L

Nasella pulchra' Yolo'     Purple Needle Grass 2' 2'- 3' L

Pennisetum alopecuroides' Little
Dwarf Fountain Grass 18" 18" L Trim to ground in winterBunny'

Pennisetum alopecuroides
g ack Fountain Grass 18"- 2'      1$"- 2'       L

Moudry'

Pennisetum orientale Oriental Fountain Grass 12"- 18"    12- 18"       L

Pennisetum setaceum' fh brum'     Red Fountain Grass 3'- 4'       3'- 4' L

Scirpus americanus lYiree- square Bulrush 5'  5' H

Scirpus actus var. occidentalis Hardstem Bulrush 5'- 8'       5'- 8' H

Scirpus californica Califamia Bulrush 6"- 10"     6"- 10"       H

9   (  RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

628



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

1   /        1

s r1E s s e i               1
i

Scirpus microcarpus Small- fruited Bulrush 6"- 10"     6"- 10"       H

Sporobolus airoides Alkali Sacalon 1'- 3' 3' VL

Stipa cernua Nodding Feather Grass 2'- 3'       2'- 3' UL

Stipa pulchra Purple Needle Grass 1'- 2'       1'- 2' L

Stipa gigantea Giant Feather Grass 2'- 3'       2- 3' VL

ETY Mix

Carex Divulsa, Eschscholzia
californica, Festuca Idahoensis,    

Entry Mix 1'- 2'       1- 2' L
layia platy lossa, Saluia l.
Bee' s Bliss', Sysrynchium

idahoensis)

Native Mow Free Mix

Festuca idahoensis, Festuca No Mow Fescue 12"- 18"  M

rubra, Festuca occidentalis)

Shrubs( Groundcovers)

leathery gray green
r Acacia r.' Desert Carpet'   Desert Carpet Acacia 1'- 2'      10'- 12'       L foliage wtth puify yellow

ball shaped flawers

Arctostaphylos' Pacific MisC 2 1/ 2'       4'  L

Artemisia californica' Montara'    California Sagebrush 18"- 5'   L

Artemesia' Powis Castle'   Powis Castle Artemesia 3'  5' M gray green foliage

Baccharis pilularis Coyote Bush L

Baccharis pilularis' Pigeon Point'   Dwarf Coyote Brush 6'  6'  L

Ceanothus griseus horizontalis
Shrub Ceanothus 2'- 3' 8'  L Blue flowers

Yankee Point'

Ceanothus maritimus' Valley Valley Voilet Maritime Lilac L
VioleC

Ceanothus thyrsiflorus' Skylark'     Blueblossom 3'- 6' 5'  L

Ceanoihus' Concha'  L

Ceanothus' Dark Star'     Dark Star California Lilac 5'- 6'      8'- 10' L

Ceanothus 7oyce Coulter' Wild Califomia lilac 3'- 5'      8'- 10' L

Ceanothus' Ray Hartman'  Ray Hartman California 12'- 20'    15'- 20'       L

Cistus salvifolius Sageleaf Rockrose 2'  6'  L

Coprosma kirkii Kirk' s Coprosma 2- 3'    L

Cotoneaster dammeri' Eichholz'   Bearberry Cotoneaster 8" 6'- 8' L
te flowers, red

berries

Cotoneaster lacteus

Cotoneasler parneyi) 
8 10' L

Cotoneaster microphyllus Rockspray Cotoneaster 2- 3' 6'  L

Erigeron' Wayne Roderick'
Wayne f derick Seaside

g       1 1/ 2'      M
Daisy

Erigeron karvinskianus Santa Barbara Daisy 10"- 20"       3'  L

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I    (

629



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

j         r •.       .,  

Cw .    .    ,    
w

Eschscholzia californica California Poppy 1' 1, 5' Vl

Hypericum calycinum Aaron' s Beard 1'     M

Hypericum moseranum Gold Fiower 1'     M

Lessingria filaginifolia var.  Silver Carpet California-  
M

californica' Si(ver CarpeP Aster

lobularia maritima Sweet Alyssum 2"- 12"     8"- 12"       M

Lupinus microcarpus Chick Lupine 2 1/ 2'  M

Myoporum parvifolium Myoporum 6"  9'  l

Oenathera hookeri Evening Primrose 1'- 3'       1'- 3' l

Ribes viburnifolium Everg een Currant 3'- 6' 12' L

Rosa' Noamel'     
Apple Blossom Flower

Z  3' M White/ pink flowersCarpet Rose

Rosa' Noare'      Red Flower Carpet Rose 2'  3' M Red flowers

Rosa' Noaschnee' White Flower Carpet Rose 2'  3' M White flowers

Rosa' Noatraum'   Pink Flower Carpet 2'  3' M Pink flowers

Rosmarinus o.' Irene'       Rosemary 2"- 3" L Blue flowers
1/ 2'

Rosmarinus o. Prosiratus Dwarf Rosemary 2'  4'  L Blue flowers

Sisrynchium bellum Blue- eyed Grass 4"- 12"     6"- 24"       L

Trachelospermum asiaticum Asian lasmine 2' 10' M

Trachelospermemjasminoides Star Jasmine 2' 10' M

Vines

Aristolochia californica California Pipevine L

Clemaiis armandii' Snow Drift'     Evergreen clematis 15- 20'  M

Clytostoma callistlgioides Violet Trumpet Vine M

Distictis buccinato ia humpet Vine 20'- 30'  M

Ficus pumila Creeping Fig 10'    M

Hardenberdia violacea' Happy Hardenbergia Vine 10'    M
Wanderer'

Jasminum polyanthum Pink Jasmine 20'    M

Lonicera hispidula Honeysuckle 3- 10'    L

Macfadyena unguis- cati Cats Claw 20- 40'   L

Vitis californica California Wild Grape 12- 30'  VL

Wisteria sinensis' Alba' or
Cooke' s Special'     M

Trails near waterways, bioswales, or other stormwater related infrastructure

Note: Current conditions and regulations do not allow irrigation, and thus horticultural plantings, to be installed on Ihe levee and wiChin
20' of the levee toe. It is possible that regulations may change, and that other design features such as" fat levees" will be allowed to
include irrigation and planting. If conditions and regulations are revised by the State, modifications to landscaping will be considered.

1 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

630



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

3. 8 SITE FIXTURES

CPTED principles emphasize Ihe impo tance of lighting and overall park a`:,

maintenance as contributors to perceptions of safery in parks.  Investment in

basic maintenance and communiry ownership can change usage pattems for     ,, <     ,, 
the better. The following guidelines provide best practices for provision of site   "         
fixtures to support community goals for safe usable parks.

Lighting

Lighting of public spaces should conform to the Illuminating Engineering
Society's guidelines. These include provision of sufficient lighting for users to   `
discern changes in topography and surface type as well as physical details of
approaching figures.

Motion sensor activated security lighting may be considered for all new
park construction and existing park renovation as method of security
lighting.
Parks may be evaluated for feasibility of dimming or motion sensor
activated lighting complaint with California Energy Commission Title 24
on a case- by- case basis.
The Project for Public Spaces emphasizes the importance of not " over-

lighting" and area. This creates a harsh adjustment for the eye and deeper
shadowsjust outside the lighting candle for park users.
light fixtures will be installed to appropriate heights for usage. In general,
Neighborhood parks will not be lighted. Lighting in larger parks may be

4 $

required for safety and to light sports fields and large areas. 
Neighborhood parks may require ligh[s installed to an appropriate
pedestrian height, while sports field lighting will require greater height.
LED and solar lights offer benefits of low energy consumption with a
minimum of construction disruption to the surrounding area. Solar lighting
is appropriate for providing light for pedestrian areas and pathways, no1 w" k•

large- scale night lighting of parks.       
Though not utilized in most parks, some parks may include decorative     ` ',  
bollard lighting and railings as is found throughout the River Islands
Development. Typically these have been used along lake frontages, along
River Islands Parkway, and at trailhead pocket parks.

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN     32

631



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

Site Furniture

Site furniture should be attractive and inviting, yet durable enough to withstand heavy use.
Site furnishings will be manufactured to include River Islands and City logo to reinforce consistent community sense of place.
Post concise, bilingual signage requiring dog owners to clean up after their animals.
Add dog waster bag dispensers at prominent entrances and at intervals along pedesVian pathways at park facilities.
Ensure all playgrounds receive regular safety inspections by a Certified Playground Safety Inspector( CPSI)
Fixtures should be selected that will discourage lying down. Handrail- divided or curvilinear benches are options.
Site furniture and other fixtures should discourage skateboarding and activities in non- designated areas.
Select fixtures that will not create visual obstructions or potential blind spots which could impair surveillance.
Provide trash receptacles at locations that may be easily monitored and emptied by maintenance staff.
Park signs will include River Islands logo and City of Lathrop logo to reinforce the commitment to the community.
Site furniture will be approved by City. Drinking fountains should include an option for dog watering stations where appropriate.

River islands Standard Furnishings

p V  a   : V ,
aa       . r

o     !

I ,       
w

VA,,    ,  
c      

a A A
3'   a 1p \       ` 0, q

Cw  .

a"\

k\

y
a\;

k x       ti;
a     ,

ti` a c       

1; A
e''   v

11 a ra   `   '1u;
u

a' ru aa

H 

d,.

vA

z.   

t  

N

BBQ: Outdoor Creations 3QOA- 3001

ar g         
r: F.

ab e: OutdaQr Creatians # 100 Bench: DuMor 169- 60- SE

t x

x       

utdoor Creations # 50 Bike Rack:  DuMar 292- S-

33 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

632



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

3. 9 CONNECTIVITY

Connecting parks to their users is an important piece of increasing community investment and use of parks facilities. Best practices
typically involve locating new parks centrally within a neighborhood or adjacent to other community amenities, such as schoots or
community centers, in order to increase visibility and use. RI ernately, locating walkable streets and bicycle paths to connect parks with
other community hot spots provides alternative access for users who cannot or do not prefer to drive. The same efforts may be made
to align public transportation stops with parks, in an effort to coordinate parks and trail heads adjacent to public transit.

In the case of River Islands, geographically adjacent amenities such as schools, town center, lakes, and the rivers are opportunities for
establishing walkable, bike- able connections. A non- vehicular option to navigate these sites and others within the community might
encourage users to walk or bike between natural antl cultural amenities firsthand rather than driving between each. stablishing and
utilizing levee trails and connecting ihem to park locations helps establish a non- vehicular connection in River Islands.

Easy pedestrian and non- motorized access to the levee trail is crucial to the concept of a walkable community,  Multiple nFf- site
parking options will be available for access to the trail for those who need to travel to an access point for vehicle or horse off- load,
An equestrian staging area is proposed near the transit oriented area due to its ample space and access to the levee trail. These off-
site access locations, designated with appropriate signage, may be included at Community Park C1, the transit oriented development
area, the employment center, and at the high school site.

r, .,    

w <   :

x

n

3. 10 ACCESS AND INCLUSION

ADA and geyond Planning for inclusion
Trends in park development nationwide are beginning to include varied recreation opportunities such that all members of a com-
munity may enjoy public recreation facilities. It is standard best practice to comply with all local and federal guidelines for universal
accessibility in public spaces per the Americans with Disabilities( ADA) regulations. New projects and retrofits to existing parks and
facilities must seek to include all members of the community. In addition to complying with ADA standards for basic accessibility, park
designs may include standards from the Caliiornia State Parks Accessibility Guidelines in order to increase accessibility to its facilities
for all users.

Recreation amenities such as walking paths may include signage and wayfinding for persons with visual impairment, while play areas
may include accessibility options for caregivers with varied levels of physical ability. Play areas should include solid impact- attenuating
surfaces in order to ensure a safe path of travel for all users.

Univcrsal Design and Sacial Inclusion

In more recent years, park features have moved toward including universal access, social inclusian, and sensary integration to includ
everyone. Incorporating these elements increases the parks' ability to attract many unique users and increases the functionality of th
amenity.  Parks and recrearion amenities which encourage participation by all residents and visitors, regardless of physical or mental
ability, demonstrate investment in the public.

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN  (   3

633



CNAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDELINES

Playground areas provide children space to develop essential emotional, social and physical skills. Therefore, these spaces should
include elements appropriate for supporting all facets of childhood development in a safe environment. Cutting- edge studies of children
and nature suggest a myriad of benefits in integrating opportunities for spontaneous learning with natural systems into playgrounds.
Examples may include non- programmed areas consisting of varied topography and surface materials, planting of trees within the
playground space, flexible play space edges to encourage play to extend to other natural areas of the park. As a valuable experienc
in childhood development, nature play may be explored as a signature resource to be developed.

I

Social equity in parks refer to a person' s ability to access health and wellness benefits associated with using the park. Universal d sign
enables groups in society who struggle with physical or mental abilities to fully access and utilize parks and recreational spac s. The
following six areas of park design contribute to creating socially inclusive spaces with universal accessibility and sensory integration.

1. Facilities: parking areas, pathways, restrooms, public buildings, and access to water.
2, Parking: provide more than the minimum ADA requirements for parking spaces. Provide accessible parking throughout the park and
located near inclusive play areas. This provides numerous access points available to all users.
3. Pathways: Exceed ADA width guidelines Wider pathways allow for easier group access and multiple wheeled devices like
wheelchai s and strollers.

4. Restrooms Locate restrooms near ball fields and inclusive play areas. Include family restrooms large enough to house a full- size
changing table, and large enough for a caregiver to attend to a full- size adult.
5. Splash Pads: Access to pools and water areas can benefit individuals with different disabilities. Splash pads are a great way to
pravide easy access to wa er. Actuato s should be planned for locations and heights that are accessible.
6. Playgrounds: Children with disabilities are one of the largest under served minority groups in our nations. 8.9% of children between
the ages of 3 and 21 years old have a disability. Of these, approximately 1. 1% will have a physical disability, 1. 1% will have a sensory
disability, 19.1% will have a communicative disability, 11. 2% will have a social/ emotional disability, and 53.9% will have an intellectual
disability. Additionally, 2. 2% will have multiple disabilities and 10.1% will have chronic health impairment such as cancer. Disability
is often misconstrued as inability to experience play because of limitation form impairment. With over 16% of the local population of

I I I

t   

s`      4

0
r

F      ,  ,

e ,.}-   t'

aak       .     i

t

I,,       vi t'     
s

s .

h Q,    

i.       e_   ;   

I

FG.:

a a.;'

l.....:   

5     RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

634



CHAPTER 3: PHASE 2 PARK SYSTEM GUIDEUNES

v;  ,++,
i,   r r

v,  q
u   il f i       

d
ia           i

r,.   Y    ..    

r•

children 5 and up having some sort of disability, and over 27% of the local population aged 18 and under, the need for a place to play
together regardless of physical or mental limitations is evident. When feasible and when budgets allow socially inclusive and sensory
integrated play principals as noted below will be used.

Comprehensive and Balances Sensory Play opportunities: Sight, Smell, Sounds, Touch, Taste, Interoceptive, Vestibular, and
Proprioceptive.

Cozy spaces: Areas designed to escape sensory overload and re- engage after self- regulalion.
Unitary System Impact Attenuating Surfaces: For unimpeded access to recreation
Shade Play: Areas must have ample shade to provide respite from heat.
Diversity: Provide diversity in play opportunities that exceed ADA minimums ( i. e. types, materials, grasping requirements, level
of difficulty, elevated vs ground level)
Cognitive Simplicity: Play spaces should be easy to navigate with recognizable landmarks and wayfinding.
Social Play Opportunities: For social interaction and play that promote multi- users.
Intergenerational Play: Activities that encourage multiple generations to play together and interact.
Fencing: Some children on the autism spectrum and with disabilities have a tendency to bolt from the playground. lhe playground
should be fenced to keep children from running onto nearby roads, canals, and/ or other hazards.
Allergens; Selecl plant species that will be plant near playgrounds and parks that produce low levels of allerg ns and ar not
irritant to skin when touched. The Ogren' s Allergy Scale or OPALS Scale can be used to determine this,

Playground Surfacing
The primary safety surfacing system used in the River Islands Development is rubberized surfacing.

Resources

Califomia Slate Parks." The Heallh and Social Benefits of Recreation."' 2005.

Recreation Management." A look at Trends in Parks and Recreation." 2009.

Westrup, Laura." Quimby Ad 101: An Abbreviated Overview." May 2002. www. parks. ca. gov/ pages/ 795/ files/ quimby101. pdf

CPiED Guidelines: www.cptedsecurity. com

Project for Public Spaces." Lighting Use and Design." 2015. www. pps. org/ reference/ SVeeUights

me Center for Universal Design( 1997). me Rinciples of Universal Design. Version 2. 0 Raleigh, NC: North Carolina State University

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN      t;

635



Page intentionally Left Blank

636



ti   

n 

q._  o

d "  
k

4

r

a  MS. 

6       , '  

t  , `, r

p rs
V

x
L yt, d

y      ; Yk LY`
ti Ytll     k.       y r-   Y2. F   ,    

Ei3  idt:       :,,          
aY ,

k    ' 4. °      XiS+'   3'

s
A

x
yy      s` nc,'.,f,`

h

A  `/

e s 

a       s' W

a   `

i

a   e

x 
i`: Z JF  .   d

mF c -
xi„

3 a

a
F

F ni   E     . a"m t

t.,       5t g  y

b" rt
x: f

f ts`+       : f            .

s r J;. r, S   y

y      ..
y     J  -      

t t   i
3          } b° sv f,s

S

h ai ,     K. .  X

J t + 

3 a^

d S y   
v

kt 3, `' s l       , VS

i
9'"     S aX> e s     : s' S' 

u

5

rt.     3,    \    C

a+.     x k     : 
r      ..,, 5

r         n.     
r

c       i    ' tz.
h

x E  z

c z '
r

ui wt  •  i
a     . ;   

r,.       

ti

t,

r

k  

x Z AF  F ;     ,     

a„'?. 1`)

f     \

W

cS

f

a 3

2 a

x ." 
4  }      

R` 

g
5

v
i

G a sa

M     k

4

t,w".i.,-
7 a

bY.

w

lF k

v ke v

l          

r
n'              

t k'j,
x':.'`'

4°S'",
a.   '

a

p>ti« sa  , ,»   ,x
a t      

v,.

637



Page intentionally Left Blank

638



C HAPTER 4: P ROPOSEd F ARKS M A57ER P LAN gt P ARK C ON C EPTS

4.1 GI1Y C) F IATHRO R f 4RKS AN D O PHU SPACE GE. 1 ERAL. PLAN UIFZBVI 11

lhe tathrop General Flan cailsfar a ne work af open spa which inc ude neigt orf od parks, corrm,nity parks, and raacnaation
corridorsthat r alor g waterbodiesar carr ecx major c orrpor ntsaf the overall park n lF ss emwill in partfollow along
baundary lev ees arxi ougt aswdl asthe river sysbem, and be rrede up of pede trian anci bike trails, apen spaoe and farrrel
parks Imgation of open spac swill implerrent recyded watea° distrib t it ough a pupie pipe nto reduce the arrou t of

pobble watar used. Some parkswill be adjacent to hoolsto maximze theif use r essfar the corrmnity, while otherswill be
standalvne pariss separatie fromeducatiorral faalities. Wildli#e habitat ir duding wetlands Frave been cx atod to hanc;e r at al

habitat, which wilf aid in res urce managen' ent of ti' plarxur g ar a.

4. 2 PAF C ACREAGE& SB̀ 1fIC AREA STAN DRRDS

Conditian 116 of Vesting Tentative Map 3694 requt s a rrir mm m nurt er and size{ in aa} of vanous re xeational faalities

for R ase 1 of Fdver I ands' I e Cify of lathrop has had tl disc ian to sab it e# ain faalities prorride more fl cibility in
procJrarrmr g. For ir shance, a rr ti- use field rr y t e car ta accomnocia e' both sofiball arxi baseball, but credit could
be giv for the ecific facilit r shown in Condition 116. Parkstt t w e de gned and<b ilt as a park of Fhase 1 developrne
induded mandatory elem fisrequr ed by Cc rxiition 116 or athe wise qt red by the City, and" additiornal rea atiarral faalitie',
fiaalities that were not equred by condition of approval. Rrase 2 acreag and faalitiesl arr nities hav been calculafied and

deterrrir ed separatdy fromthe Fi s 1 de reloprre and will' skand apartiromany tfiase 1 dev lapmenk req rerr{ fiase 2

req r are outlined k elow in Tables4. 1 and. 2.

Cam uniiy and neighbafiaad park aaeages for R ase 2 wene usecl to cala: ate and rr the Sta e's mir mum pa idand
dedication r q  Neigi ortx od Parks mus# be provided at a rate of 2 aa es per 1, fl00 populatian and Comr nity
Parks at 3 aa es per 1, Q00 populatiar s, e pop ation is esfirr ted by ng 3. 0 per ans per hous ald. ' IFie following table
surr rizes tth ee mr mtxn aa age requrement arxi tha#the mr mrn reqc rement tras be rr fc r R ase 2.

j A   ;

10, 726

3. 0 per DU 32, 178

3 acr 1000 96. 53 acres 97.44 aaes 0.91 acr+es

2 acres/ 1000 64. 36 acres 68. 05 acres 3. 69 acres

5 ACI 1000 160. 89 ACI ES 165.49 AC S 4. 6 ACR6

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AI D QPEN SPACE MASTER PLA J I 40

639



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS H OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hi CONCEPTS

4. 3 DISTRIBUTION OF EXISTING PARKS AND FACILITIES
Current maps of River Islands parks were studied based upon established measurements of user walkability and recommended
park programming to determine new park locations for Phase 2. Smaller neighborhood parks service the immediate surraunding
neighborhood with the minimum being '/ a mile radius up to '/ z mile radius. Larger community parks have a larger service radius
with the range of'/ z mile to 1 mile radius.

Figure 4.1 shows most areas within Phase 1 and Phase 2 are covered within the'/ a mile radius, and all areas are serviced within

z mile. As can be seen all areas within Phase 2 fall within the '/ z mile service range for neighborhood parks, most areas falling
within a '/ a mile radius.

FIGURE 4.1 - NEIGHBORHOOD PARK SERVICE AREA MAP

s 

k 4!. a 4;       y  .

4°',..; i    
t:,. a..,.`

4      (

J.  ..

j 

c      .. „   r

Ws         

s   y   l

i 

r

F i   

M' 

sg' V
i  

3
3 ix

tic v '     
a"      

1'    3 l
y   .

i
A   ^  '      '

g'-        
i

a..

P
rtrn

h

r       .       

j-   

t   Y 3,             

i
s

y'i
u

ii i    4asi   

r.    

w

a    
h;        

y  

rl h. 5 3;. s,".'

r' :

i,'  
y       ; t i 4 r`,8 

6 4.       2 '

a;    , ii  ,     
d    J

aj=jy
s   -  

4   .
i  l

i:     s.
l uj,      

c.    
a      i, ,\

s       u q$ V

a'

S

ya''

Neighborhood Park
v 

School

t`.` ,

ox`'A
1/ 4 Mile Radius t     ,

s

1/ 2 Mile Radius j:
wr

Phase 2 Limits

41 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

640



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS H OPEN SPACE SYSTEM H CONCEPTS

Figure 4. 2 shows a more even distribution of community parks within Phase 1 than in Phase 2. A small area within the trensit
oriented development( TOD) areas falls outside the community park buffer. ll is area will primarily be parking and infrastructure
related to the Valley Link train station.  With this exception, all areas within the development fall within a 1 mile radius of a
Community Park and most areas fall within a '/ z mile service area.

FIGURE 4. 2 - COMMUNITY PARK SERVICE AREA MAP

s   `-       y.°    
t.,e,._   

i`     
x

y 

y               

j   r,      
w    ,  

x.'  i,

d"    
E    Y' //     

g; 

L

z   ,"  a' at

r "      g s Y.t i1 yy'  
a.    c`   W

a ii

x, S

w,"' 

t t k   
j    .:    /  :

i/ji  
v     +

l",

c+<   _ v              /       

Y. I t s-      '   / i i
t s> '

c  ik W ' r,' t   00.\    ,.'. d
r  '       "   s 

d,
x., r  k

w       . 
W

55
y       4 . 

f     . b   '..       / g
l.

iY6" '     ' "' -      7
sr      

y:.    '.*

a.  

j fi  f
x `       '       

r

ti'     s y      s
ar

e s      

w    ,,'` r 9-.     

s.     }    

w.       

i i      

z ''-   
s

s;,

j ` i   

y"        

e       ,         w,,.. ._  ..::.....--

Community Park

School

1/ 2 Mile Radius

1 Mile Radius uE,,, r, n   ,,.,

y,   -,.:    

i Phase 2 Limits

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 4

641



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS Hc OPEN SPACE SYSTEM St CONCEPTS

4. 4 PARK AMENITY BENCHMARKS

The National Recreation and Park Association ( NRPA) has long been an organization relied on for guidelines and instruciion
regarding best practices for parks and open spaces.  In 2019 the NRPA published an Agency Performance Review document
providing benchmarks for suggested amenity counts based on residents per square mile. Table 4. 2 reflects the number of amenities
proposed for phase 2 based on the NRPA' s published recommendations and Table 4. 4 reflects which parks they are located in.

4. 5 PROPOSED PARKS & OPEN SPACE SYSTEM

The parks and open space system depicted in this chapter were developed following multiple meetings and reviews of park
system components with City of Lathrop staff.  In order to clearly identify the components of the system maps were created and
are included in this chapter as follows:

Figur 4. 3 - Phase 2 Park Designation Map
Figure 4, 4 - Phase 2 Quimby Act Park Designation Map

TABLE 4. 2 - PHASE 2 PROJECTED FACILITY REQUIREMENTS

i I i. ., .       .    .  ,        ,    

r  .        

S'       bt?Cf:       

1•  ,       1•  
i   

r. •   e  

a•  .  • 1•  • • r

te A

Court Sports

Basketball Courts 7,400 4. 35 6

Tennis Courts 4, 858 6. 62 8

Multiuse courts( basketbalf/ vollyballlother) 16, 250 1. 98 2

Diamond Fields*

Baseball( Yauth)    7,369 4. 37 4

Ba eba[ I( Adult)   25, 834 1. 25 1

Softbalf Adult 13, 773 2. 34 2

SoftbaH Youth 15, 000 2,15 2

Rectangular Fields

Mufti Purpose 9,000 3. 58 4

Soccer Youth 8, 784 3. 66 4

Soccer Adult 15, 000 2.15 2

Football 35,572 0.90 1

Other

Do Park 55, 675 0. 58 2

Skate Park 62, 325 0. 51 0

642



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS & OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hc CONCEPTS

Figure 4. 5 - Phase 2 CirculaCion Map
Figure 4. 6 - Phase 2 Safe Routes To Schoois

4. 6 PRELIMINARY PARK CONCEPT PLANS

In order to identify intended locations of required and additional park elements throughout the development, preliminary concept
plans have been developed for all Quimby Act related community parks and neighborhood parks. In addition examples of
potential pocket parks, and linear parks have also been shown which will be built by River Islands, but not intended to be
built in order to meet Quimby Act requirements.  All concepts are simple concepts to convey basic park ideas and are not to
be misconstrued as final designs. As each neighborhood is developed the park designs will be revisited and adjusted to meet
specific neighborhood, budget, and recreational needs. Any changes to the park locations, acreages, or amenities must be
appraved by the City of Lathrop prior to construction. Modifications to park locations, acreages and/ or planned amenities shall
be reviewed and approved by the City of Lathrop prior to construction. Amendments to this Parks & Open Space Plan shall be

reviewed and approved by the City of Lathrop.

4. 7 CITY OVERSIGHT & DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

There are many types of open spaces and recreational facilities incorporated into the River Islands Phase 2 development. While
the development is located within the City boundaries, portions of these open spaces are owned by Reclamation District 2062
RD2062) and all parks and open space are maintained by the River Islands Public Finance Authority ( RIPFA).  lY e following

table has been provided to clearly delineate the required reviews to be completed by each agency, for each open space type.

The following descriptions describe the review typology listed in Table 4. 3.
Comprehensive Review- Comprehensive review refers to plan review for construction level improvement plans. Prior t
Improvement Plans, a Site Plan for Neighborhood Parks and Community Parks shall be reviewed and appraved by the City
and Parks& Recreation Commission. These plans are typically reviewed and signed by the Public Warks Department, Parks

Recreation Department, and the Lathrop Manteca Fire District. The City may determine which departments are required far
review based on a project by project basis.
Courtesy Review- A courtesy review of construction level improvement plans by the Public Works Department for open
spaces owned and maintained by RD2062 and/ or RIPFA but not in the public right of way.
Utility Only Review- A review by the Public Works Department of construction level utility plans only, for spaces owned and
maintained by RD2062 and/ or RIPFA.

TABLE 4. 3 - AGENCY REVIEW TABLE

G' +      
p

i           
N      : L,     

o -    ,           , ._     cg

U U U           U V

r.        J

J

ater Rftd Qpen Space( non- park)      

pen Space( outside R W)      
O en S ace( RQW Related} 

Parks& O en S ace Master Plan

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 44

643



CHAPTER 4 : PRQPOSED PARKS MASTER PLAN gc PARK CONCEPTS

TABLE 4. 4 - PHASE 2 PARK FACILITIES BY LOCATIC} N

Ii . , .   ,    .    .              j .  .   .    

v       •       r       •       •       •       s       •       •              •

r r

BasketbaN Courts 2 1 1 1 1 6

Tennis Courts 6 2 8

Multiuse courts 1 1 2

Baseball ( Youth)   4 4

Baseball ( Adult)    1 1

Softbail Adult 2 2

Softbali Youih 2 2

Multi Purpose 1 2 1 4

Soccer Yauth 3 1 4

Soccer Adult 1 1 2

Football 1 1

Do Park 1 1 2

lighted fields are required for( 2) aduit saftball, ( 1) adult baseball, and{ 1) lighted soccertmtalti purpose field.

s,  
r   ``

RIVER ISLAt DS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPAC MP STEl PLACV  (   45

644



ro

r      

x-     

i..       

l
M

p
f( 1    . 0     

4  . sF§     

fJ

N     -         
I      \ •

C  l     
d,

t     f      
i/. 

x      --

W          

t ,.

F,   ,

a              s

i'    ?   a      
j

Y     

f.
i4.
tirJ:..

i'

a        ,

y?P

f  

r                  
l      

e    ,
ry ,      a i I

I I 
r

z   -
p-   

f   = c=  

r  ,            
a I    

f    E

Wa"°".°     `  
f

u

g   ^ m' INlgo  Fio   x'i` r g
a     '    g

F I II I      I a 8

I:  (   _ Me          `

z  Y d4` dddpd  Z

E
6`   ` c i w

m

m y3y       
1  - —  <   - 

Z
g

n'

Y         

U        

o e
o Q

u s     --..     
I

2

Y...
a    .....;  

r -

cr _. I..,    - I - ------ - -- -- -  -- ---,--;- i--    -- --       -    -     
s 

d I a

I      
1 cWj

w            

5 I8 c     I g       a
U        

I
o    I          I i i    i

1..-`+=   -      1
f+ - I

Wfi-- t- I,.. i I        I i r   ; ;  ;   g
a I I c

a      
W I--  f  '- -  

u       "      
e, em, e( M      ; a- e

I
M mMMI M}.; Q M M. M C qa^ x: a        B       z   <   a 0   . 1o

W         

m.:      «

Q     ..,        
r  o00 0; 0 ooia a ooio oo o ca_ or   00

a Q r---- r------+-       ----
f ry}-  -    --,--

t o     
R Y

w
z I I I    ''      IM

i-  
lo{-}  t   e m o G   Q       

N   i i
wlm. l.. n wlo. l^  s

o la MI Wi':"     o_

a N I I i S$ 88RIgg8'€ F€ FgF 4€ F I  I IF     s N

i alq eet e  F 8a8 F 8 8R R8 8   I g W
I'   

I i       a   s  I    s    s    i       Y Y Ig  i 8  I

111      
I    ) 353s3s3 3 5 3 3333" 3s333133 3331< 333s        ,       Q

Q 4 oo oi,. a e..     
c c   e e yee

x
e Ic ey aele- e lyex e e  tt       a d

d a
o

8 8 8 8i$ 5    
d  d     a   dd       '   d dddd d d     

m       

N I_   s     "„  I i   = SxEl x      x T s y

e.
s cn

w
w I IS Ias dd ix Ivu ixs x do,' o sao' X  xoyo edd, a X a   =       O

f _  = zz===:    Id a  d       2

a d   •   ir  i i
Q                I   -       .  I^

x       :      

M        

o r   e,  NI
n=.   a    '  

I    I
m   W'

P=

1 ? = 33333533333s' 3333333333 3333 3 3, 5,   I
1= 1=_= zl_ , 41d1 dl als a l._.d. d  11 1u d_ d a  s d d= d

M W

Q
w W

4   =
2    

ii. cY

645



w      ,,

V g      

a

x"'`-     

A,,
M

W.

a I
s

0

za
r.  

a             ' 
a       '_

Zs       
W    

o 3

g
z

d

i     ..  ..    .   a V   .;  .   m L T

i v
d,

0 V
O

N
3

a f z 
g     

x
a

o Q

Q o a o c
o

v E
A' u o z    c a

z a O

u a °'

6 d
I      in O

a

a
wd:n;.   

h

n       ?      ' e3, 3'
rc=  cER

y`   

O       °      

y z          sg w
a    (   o a Q

af 0           

ei:,NFB r3 Q

W     =
a s

p,    

Q a
k  __  

o   

Q
m a< 9  ' m w

j   .       t  € g   Q

d      gP   
E_'

N
Z

Z` Z2z' Zz   _

x c  '€  

Q

f

Z 2 2 2 i       

6

a

F--   

N
Q    ,     

o- U      W
2

yj
y   tv y  : 3

F-    .   E'`     a'

2         n S e  `

LL

646



ry Clq

a
wU

U
ti

ra°

a w»'

r
a ti

Wv

Q o.  .  '°',`   d
f

Y g 1         w

a O
a. ri  
o o
v, m fi       '    

Y
a

I'\\".
t      w

cn

I s  

Q n

a
t

W

o
y i

y l     
Y

Q..

S
61A

k     !.
n"+

r I

i
r!   

s"

1
t

s       

e       

t  .'   I
x

I      +     

I

a'`

x

4 

u,'",,
r,

w

a

a. u,,,, w    

r

a

x..  ....      .     a.

4

t *

q

1    •   i   

o
1

i UQ
I m

z     .  
1

4
y    

a Z w

c.=J a    + o ".'  Q c
2  

Z
z  >,  ''   C     C

U    --' a a g o O 3 z z         z   -   `.

p m Y  Y  Y   Z
z

Z      Q      3

Q w  pp Q p]   ap   
a O      z y f 1   . 0

d Q 
O

N o  pr -   y Z W Y Z   { Wj   
y j 

5 N ' t N in N m W Q y Q Q Q   

w 2 ¢  a c a N        1         n=.   Of
U

Q
U

@ a

W WU
Y

N n W O

L 

N
n

W

647



n mv
aw

O z

u,    

g
Qa w

g
p„     

a w

Q U

a

G 2
ff

j°   

W
a

a

Q
i O

a o

a
i             d       N

p
ua   .   fY

V'    c    

N

a:     

y,  tlF- i..       
a x/       

g,a
r w n.

G

i-,`.'

f       
w   ,.     Z

r .. 
J

f    «

r

l
t`. r

t a l
y.         

v

w
r-.,.   

a .     
i

ti

r   
y

i.   d

M%     

w.   __ 

c
w,

u,        

k''      °

a

m    

s,      

r       

r       #

i"    2

N

d  
Z  

d  ¢
W    N

U N W
Ti

m 0  =
L

648



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS & OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hi CONCEPTS

J

l:

wetlands

Note: Community Park 1 c creage does not include the extent of wetlancfs.U lthin the park The wetlands are
considered waters of ihe U. S., and are protecied from pub( ic contoct, ovvretf ond maintained by a public
agency. The boundary of tiie wetlands is de ineated by environmental documents and incorporated by
ref rence. in collabc ration with the Son loaqurn County Council of Governments S1 COG), he Urerlands
have been protected by a 5' high, 50' wide earthen berm. A permanent treatment to d sce tirage pur fic i'

access and protect f e wet( ands v il be dev loped during park planning 1iasEs wi h inpu,• froro the City     _ --
and orher goveming agencies. No public access will be allawed to the wetlands. All wetlonds edr es y ll
be eft in o natural condition with no woter to bUdy contact allowed

g      %' ,:%

PARK AMENITIES COMMUNITY PARK:

4) Baseball Fields 31, 9 ACRE5

6) Tennis Courts

1) Multi- court

y^'`—= --,•=`,

l,

On- Site Parking Lot f    j

Restroom

Main Playground with Splash Pad
j

Wetland Overlook
u'. _

Shade Structures, Benches, Tables and BBQ' s

Picnic Areas& Open Space r, N. r j

Access to Levee Trail wi[ h Exercise Equipment

Spraypad r`''

50 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER P P,N

649



CHAPTER 4 ; PROPOSED PARKS Hc OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hi CONCEPTS

4

PARK AMENITIES COMMUNITY PARK:

4) Softball Fields 22. 5 ACRES

1) Baseball Fields

2) Basketbali Courts
1   '`          ', ,

Stora e S ace for S orts E ui ment

Y _  

9 P P 9 p

Concessions/ Restroom Building C   -.  >,,     

On- Site Parking Lot
Main Playground with Splash Pad

Shade Structures, Benches, Tables and BBQ' s i

Access to Linear Trail
4 1

Spraypad

51     RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

650



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS Hi OPEN SPACE SYSTEM 8c CONCEPTS

il s

ih,    

I 1
Q, i.

l' lof m IG

I,

il I '

e ( 
I k t

J

r

f,

i

f;

i

t
f}

r{     d
e  !'  

c   

r, 

ry b

fl     "    

a     :    o

PARK AMENITIES COMMUNITY PARK:

3) Soccer Fields 15. 0 ACRES

1) Football sized sports field

2) Pickieball Courts 1- l

mw '

n`"""".

r'   '`.

2) Tennis Courts

2) Bocce Ball Courts
Sr

1) Basketball Couri
d

On- Site Parking Lot
Playground i

Restroom Building
Benches

Shade Structures and Picnic Tables

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 52

651



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS c OPEN SPACE SYSTEM & CONCEPTS

m-      uM' b" Y " 
yia

a ,
a x      :^ i a,,; a, . a_, T ,    N.. e,  A.   ; ,

Levee trail along a public street

I '  u 11'}   ;',. i

V,+r ii       r'. r.

o vlder w,...:. o:: Amanitixs iM1oulctni w ii 1' r=: Am n,'. or,

IIA3yreya 6   oulder

f,lusillAp.: jna5r w!, u'. An
Po.» d I. nrae: ms r° Dn oo I. o aii 7 u=+     i

w, uF    id.i t nE     , n.
s,       i

a   t 1

a  ' ...,             
w   

t       

o, tR . sM x,. l
x».^ aa..  .   . t?^ m,.   C a  

i. i.:.    ............     ---  

srrw± ace

I'—   ----   ------
9eul: irE----.....     .......... ..._...      

i
m rm

ccis, rn7r

twSEn EHt
4 A: r. il t

i   rr     '      i  • . i i i M!'
W  .  `

hu lAe, . hi,,:,. . r,..     Sno..  ... - ru:. Ame,..,   

C' I II A Nmgi B. S' e. i' aa o sell Aj. ga! e Base S anf.,
Ri+ n Icv, , r..      Po. tl tev ...       

CliissllE    ,.,. n. C . . IEq .,,. i. roi 

r       

n A4

i

5"."" w, a, a. a,     „  W...,.'' P   
w,..     ,, ii ar,.   .

Y...., vs:.an.w.
x y

e. ec ce N--

ccesseese n. v   sa not. ws
e.uce.u.en er

PARK AMENITIES EVEE TRAILS:

All- weather Paving ( 12' paved trail with 4' shoulder) 28. 0 ACRES

Informational Kiosks i`  
a,  

Overlook Views

Site furnishings and exercise equipment

j   

Equestrian Trail( 6' class II aggregate base on edge of paved trail)    

The applicant intends to regrade the federal levee into a waterside bench which will be maintained by

Reclamation District 2062. There will be no public access to the levee, only the waterside bench.   

53 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

652



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS Hc OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hc CC7NC EP1' s

1   '   '

PARK AMENITIES NEIGHBORHOOD PARK:

1) Basketball Court 7.18 ACRES

Sensory Play Equipment& Playground - " Touch"

Aromatic/ Herb Garden- " Smell & Taste"   i-•,_._.,       ;

Lake Overlook& Access with Wind Chimes- " Hear"   
i

Labyrinih Path- " Sight"
4     :,.\

Benches

Shade Structure ti   

Picnic Tables

Q
III N »'

nnmmR l,

Open Space

f:

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 54

653



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS Hc OPEN SPACE SYSTEM & CONCEPTS

r   - ,  -

i i

PARK AMENITIES NEIGHBORHOOD PARK:

Sensory Garden 12. 47 ACRES

Agility Training
Smali and Large Dog Park i.,

l

Pet Wash Stations

Piayground

Benches r'

Shade Structure

Picnic Tables 4""
m„ a R  ,

i

BBQ i

Open Space

f;

55 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

654



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS & OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hc CONCEPTS

i •  M      

PARK AMENITIES NEIGHBORHOOD PARK:

Piayground with Shade Sail 4. 0 ACRES

Outdoor Aduit Fitness Equipment

Adult Strength Training r.,

1) Soccer Field
i

r i..rj
1} Multi- purpose Field

Benches 1
l    „

t       `

Shade Structure T'` r*           '

Picnic Tables
4

BBQ i

Open Space
s

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN  (   E;

655



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS 8c OPEN SPACE SYSTEM & CONCEPTS

i  

7' I

s r•     •

PARK AMENITIES NEIGHBORHOOD PARK:

1) Soccer field 5. 4 ACRES

On- site Parking
Outdoor Gathering/ Performance Space t    •,__..       ,°,

i   `
Shaded Walkwaysv

t  $..,

V f ux4 R      .

r.     :    ..

ti              
y

4

1 
i
f

5r'   I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

656



CHAPTER 4 : PROPO5ED PARKS Hi OPEN SPACE SYSTEM H CONCEPTS

r   - ,  -

PARK AMENITIES NEIGHBORHOOD PARK:

1) Basketball Court 7. 8 ACRES

2) Multi- Purpose Fieid

Agility Training
Smail Dog Park r-   

y

1.°s
IIIfIII1LL       ' 

1

large Dag Park
1;.

f

a + r     ,

Playground

Benches

ij`--..
Shade Structure

1

Picnic Tables j

BBQ
i

Open Space

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 5 3

657



CHAPTER 4 : PROP05ED PARKS & OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hc CONCEPTS

M   "   '      .

r
9

i

i"   

r    i      i

r;  

1  

j`    ,;  

r

r r 

1
1 1     ;

i

j
T-1    %     

M f f   • i     !

PARK AMENITIES NEIGHBORHOOD PARK:

1) Basketball Courts 6, 5 ACRES

1) Multi use- court

Sundial Feature R   '`'"      `' z
r   

f}

Nature Walk j

Playground
I

Benches

Shade Structure

Picnic Tables i

r i
BBQ

Connection to Levee Trail

Open Space

c   (  RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

658



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS H OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hc CC7NCEPT"S

i   '   '

a y1   ' Il',I '    B 

r

s      ,
r

t 1

s
1           I

ty
f'     

1\._.

4     '  

PARK AMEN171ES NEIGHBORHOOD PARK:

Playground ( 2- 5 years)    
5. 4 ACRES

Playground ( 5- 12 years)
Playground l i"`'•..i,,,,, ,,,     r'.

r• 

Benches m,, r    
y...,:>

Shade Structure
f_  

Picnic Tables

BBQ
ti          

y

Tree Grove
i

Open Space

a

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 60

659



CHAPTER 4 : PROPQSED PARKS H OPEN SPACE SYSTEM S CONCEPTS

i       ,  -      ;

r-

y

f      1

t     

i

l
1,!     

i __

l J'       
l f

l

t         

r

f

f r `--..

I  ,    
i        ___ 

j'      

i   

ri r i  

j 1 .--.....   l
i

j,       
l`    w_. 

i
I    "     :/ 1  

i   (

I1   1 i i

I
1       

r   /   

J`   I

i
t

t
r: ti

r    /
ti       

j
i i

PARK AMEN171ES NEIGHBORHOOD PARK:

1) Adult Soccer Field 5. 30 ACRES

1) Multi- Purpose Field

1) Pickleball Court
t    --..       i'.,

t.._..:'   '

Playground
r  

Benches r,      ,,       

Shade Structure
l   ;

Picnic Tables ii;-..,

BBQ i

i
Connection to Levee Trail

Open Space
l     >

61     RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

660



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS H OPEN SPACE SYSTEM H CONC; EPTS

i              
r `        •

r      •   s r     •

PARK AMENITIES NEIGNBORHOOD PARK:

Perimeter Waik 4. 0 ACRES

Playground

1 -  '._. _-.       
j.,

Benches r.    i`,---'   .

Picnic Tabies
r

l-

BBQ i±    
i

Open Space
i    `      

y

i

r,;

r,;

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN  (   

661



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS 8c OPEN SPACE SYSTEM H CONCEPTS

r r

cv,aa" S

i

I
i iP

I'

THROUGH BLOCK POCKET PARK STREET ACCESS POCKET PARK

K.

a i K\
c

a   °   -;;,

w:.

r

I'j
qdV1k

SMALL LOT LAKE ACCESS POCKET PARK LARGE LAKE ACCESS OPEN SPACE POCKET PARK

w   ..     .

PARK AMENITIES POCKET PARKS 1- 37:

Pocket parks may include 20.0 ACRES

Access Paths

Benches
f,  -__.'",, `f j,.

Picnic Tables
f    ,       y         .

Lake Access Docks ti    : u> 

Small Open Spaces

i  ,     .  . ,

1

1

i..
t \'''

63 I RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

662



CHAPTER  : PROPOSED PARKS 8c OPEN SPACE SYSTEM $ c CONCEPTS

r r 1  rr

J
1 - -.!.„,,,,.'`       ! 

4  `

L''`-    

t

4y

1

l
l

f

T_.._   
1

r

t i

1
r=

J
j Jr 

J 4y r ti  +    f  
4 is,{ i{',

l      `      I 1

j h ri" 4i;;'
1,;   ,dfi ,,,    

ti
t

i

l       /    f             

rl f1'

fj 
j

f       /// I
1 

l,   

Q i,  
d

j
f J

1

l       ``".

I
i l l            

l f 1

f  ...  l
f      

f

r      ,      1

a s s•     w

PARK AMENITIES LINEAR PARKS 1- 10:

Linear parks may inciude: 48. 4 ACRES

Access Paths

All- Weather Trails
1'..----`

f `

Benches
Y, ..•   y`''.

Picnic Tables

Lake Access
Good Neighbor fence— edestrian Trail Good Neighbor Fence X  "

Interpretive Signage
i       , ,      i

Small Open Spaces    ''
i  '       '"      4

I 4 __..,      ,_    ,     r       __       r

5 1 e       ,

rn

i,_...IiE

Linear Park il

RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN I 64

663



ATTACHMENT D

City of

Commuiaity Development Department 390 Towne Centre Drive—Lathrop, CA 95330
Planning Division Phone ( 209) 941- 7260— Fax ( 209) 941- 7268

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us

May 5, 2022

Susan Deii' Osso, Project Director

River lsiands at Lathrop
73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject: Findings of Substantial Conformance with Vesting Tentative Map 6716 for
Proposed Lotting Amendments within the River Islands, Phase 2, Woodlands
East District.

Dear Mrs. Deil' Osso:

The Community Development Department has completed its review of your request for a Finding
of Substantia! Conformance with the River Islands, Phase 2 Vesting Tentative Map ( VTM) No.
6716 for the proposed lotting amendments illustrated on the Woodlands East District Lotting
Summary Comparison map, and further detailed in the Woodlands East District Unit and Acreage
Changes table ( enclosed).  My findings and support of your substantial conformance request are
detailed below.

As noted in your substantial conformance request letter of April 22, 2022, condition of approvaf
number 36 of the Phase 2, VTM No 6716, established specific findings required for the Community
Development Director to administratively determine whether or not Final Maps are in substantial
conformance with the Vesting Tentative Map. The condition states that:

The Final Map shall be in substantial conformance with the approved Vesting Tentative Map
as determined by the Community Deve%pmenf Director.  Deviations from the approved
Vesting Tentative Map that are not considered in substantial conformance include but are
not limited to the following:

a)   Changes fo the proposed location of land uses not otherwise consistent wilh the adapted
West Lathrop Specific Plan ( WLSP) land use designation;

b)   Changes to the proposed densities of a developmenf area fhat are in excess of the density
permitted for that specific area as designated in the WLSP;

c)   Significant changes to the size and locafion of open space and recreation areas within a
devetopmeni area that would result in less open space and recreational areas compared

to the amount required to satisfy that deve%pment area's Quimby Act requiremenfs;
d)   Significant modifications ( such as to alignment or location) to major roadways, such as to

major collecfor or arterial roads where a precise plan line has been adopted; Changes that
would result in a new significant,  adverse,  unmitigated environmental impact,  or a

significant increase in any previausly identified impact.

Administrative review and approval of the requested amendments for substantial conformance is

provided for by Condition 36 above, and detailed in the following findings:

664



May 5, 2022

Future final maps based on the proposed lotting amendments to VTM 6716 will remain
consistent with the adopted WLSP land use designations.  The most notable modification to

the VTM is the increased size of Lake 14, necessitating the relocation of Neighborhood Park
7 immediately north and adjacent to the levee.  These changes da not affect the designated

land uses or require amendments ta the WLSP, as schools, lakes, and parks are permitted
uses in residential zones and are not designated by separate or unique land use designations.

Future final maps based on the proposed lotting amendments to VTM 6716 will remain
consistent with the adopted WLSP land use densities.  None of the proposed modifications
will substantially increase or decrease development densities, and none are in excess of the
density otherwise permitted.

The proposed changes to the size and location of Neighborhood Parks 6& 7 are not significant

in that the changes do nat result in less recreational acreage and the parks remain in generally
the same locations.  More specifically, Neighborhood Park, N7 is relocated immediately narth
and adjacent to the levee from its current location, and increases in size fram 5. 12 to 5. 4

acres. Neighborhood Park, N6 remains in the same location with an increase in acreage fram
7. 10 to 7. 8 acres.  Being larger and in the same general loca#ions maintains Neighborhood
Parks 6 & 7 Quimby Act acreage requirements and status and definition as Neighborhood
Parks.

There are no proposed changes in alignment or location of streets or street types; and
therefore there are no changes in environmental conditions.

Overall, the proposed lotting amendments do not create any new environmental impacts or
increase the intensity of previously analyzed environmental impacts, and remain within the
scope of the certified SEIR, requiring no further enviranmental review. •

Processing and approval of future final maps within the Phase 2, Woodlands East District as
illustrated on the Woodlands East District Lotting Summary Comparisan Map and at the densities
and acreages provided for in the Woodlands East District Unit and Acreage Changes Table, are
in substantial conformance with VTM 6716, and will continue to be subject to the existing
conditions of approval far VTM 6716 as originally adopted.  This substantial conformance

appraval is contingent upon the provision of amended pages for each of the assoclated
Phase 2 documents in order to formally document these actions, prior to final maps wlthin
the Waodlands East District. We appreciate your continued coordination and assistance with
staff on the development of your project.  If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me at ( 209) 941- 7266.

Si cerel

Mark M ' ss er

Director of Community Development

Enclosure:    Request Letter dated April 22, 2022

cc:      Stephen Salvatore, City Manager
Ramon Batista, Director of Planning & Entitlements

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
Michael King, Public Works Director
Rick Caguiat, Assistant Community Development Director
Brad Taylor, Land Development Manager

Todd Sebastian, Director of Parks, Recreation and Maintenance

Page  2

665



Ap• il 22, 2022

Mr. Mark Meissner, Community Development Director
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject: Substantial Conformance Findings— Phase 2 Vesting Tentative Map No. 6716
Woodlands East DisU• ict of River Islands)

Dear Mark:

As a follow up to our March 8, 2022 and March 17, 2022 letters requesting substantial confo mance
of revised lotting patterns in Phase 2 of River Islands, we are providing this tetter to finalize our
request for the Woodlands East District and provide final exhibits as reviewed and commented
upon by you and your staff.

Specifically, Exhibit" A" has been updated to reflect an updated lotting pattern that resolves the
City' s issues with additional roadway intersections at River Islands Parkway, the relocation of the
neighborhood park within Village 4, the expansion of Lake 14 and other issues. We sre also
providing an updated Exhibit" B" that summarizes the final changes in acreage and numbers of
dwelGng units for the Woodlands F,ast District. Exhibit" C" is a revised parks and parks service
area e chibit that reflects the new neighborhood park location. We acknowledge that we must update
the Phase 2 Master Parks Plan to the reflect the changes proposed, including the 2, S acres of
pa• kland that may not be included with the various efementary school sites. However, Exhibit" C"
still reflects the 2. 5 acres of park at schoots, since it is included in the existing, approved Phase 2
Master Parks Plan. We witl be siting an additional neighborhood park in or near Woodlands and
will provide details as to that park( ocation with the proposed update/amendment to the Parks Plan.

In order to move forward with this administrative approval, the City witl require that the none of
the conditions listed in condition of approva136 to VTM 6716 exist with regards to our proposal. I
have provided a brief e: cplanation below as per condition 36( shown in red) that provide evidence
that the findings for noi- conformance will not be met:

36)     Substrnitia! Conformnnce tii ith Vesting Ten ative Liap. The Fii al Map shall be in
sarbstcrntial conformrn7ce wi h the approved Yesting Tentcrtive Map as determitred by the
Conrmamity Development Director. Deviations from the npproved vesting Tentative Map
thcrt a•e not considered irr szrbstnrrtinl conforma ace include ba t a•e not/ imited to Ihe
follotiving:

a)       Cha ages to the propvsed locatiaa of lnnd trses not otherwise consistent with the
adopted West Lathrop Specific Plan( WLSP) land arse desi tatians;

Tire proposed lcryout changes rn e ca sislent with tlae la rd irses adop[ ed x ith tlae
IYLSP. The relocate l iaeigl borl7ood park ir the WODCIIClI7L S, DlS1PlCI IS p 7L'YI711LIL d
zrse witl in the lotiv- density reside tlial lmtd use tlesr rnilion in t vhich its locatet/. As
noted, at over/cry qf the pr po.recl lotling rnac perrk lacntial7 changes nre shuwi i t
Exhibit ", 4" proi idec! ti rth this tetter. hr ncc' Of' tIpT7CL' 11 1 IT COi7L lllOi7 pf pp 7/' OUpI

666



13Q, priar to! he improvei et 1pinn approvtrl or consh•uction of aityper/ c,s in the
srrb Planfring aren, c detailec site plan/ design pler shcrll he revieivecl ancf crpproved
by the City Prn ks crnd kecrention C. 01111) 7ISS1017. ACIC 1 lO) 7QIIy, bot/ the FY' nacllanr r

crs! 1) istrict NUP K ill reflec! lhis retiti loccrtron arad an an enrlrne yt lo the Phnse 2
P u k.s A laster PIa».

b)       Chrntges to the proposecf densities of a development a• ea that are in excess af the
densiry per nittedfor ihat specific area as designated rn tJ1e WLSP;

1Vnne of the prn osed chnnges ti+ ill resull in an itrcrease of• esidential tmit clensities
that wi11 exceed thr se per-irlrtted t4''LSP. F hibit " B" ta this Ie ter• i]lzrstrates tlte
propo.sed: u1il nncl cfensity chan,ges.

c)       Sign cnnt changes to the size rmd locatron of open space ancl recrecrtior a• as
within n developmerrt a ecr thnt woarld result in less operr space and recreatio 7a1
areas co»ip recl to the nnzozn t reqarired to satisfy that development a•ea' s Qa imby
Act require r erits;

Tl e pro osed changes wi11 increase over ll pnrk acrecrge hy 2. 5 acres witl ifa Park
N7 ns slrotia n on Filrihit " A". Further, the Iocationa! chcn ges N r`ll» ot affec[ the
Cit.' s service• ec iiir ement nf'.%r» ile fvr neighbarhond pnrks crt ct% nrile for
cvmmtmify parks a.c shn v a vn Exhibrt " C." Ara updnte t 1he Phnse? h?'aster

Parks Plcrra, alotrg ith a Neigl baf•lruod L e>>elopntetrt Plan( NL)P) that co» tcrins all
ropo.red cira» ges ta? trinrby Acl pc rks acreage will be reyuirecfp iar 10 the

appravcrl of the frrst firaal nrap ir tfre i" oodlcmd.s Ecrs Dis rict.  77re amenc ecl Pcrrks
PIL717 YUIII Cl'ISO 1) 1CItfLJE Llll UI?GIQIC l0 EXI71611 " C"( as contaifred ij the Par• ks P/ an) tu

reflecl crn nrlclitio» a! park tivithi a ar o/ her p/crnning Dis rict c n the removal of'?.S
crcres nfparklcznd l ented at ecrch cf the fi-8 sclroals within i ood/ ands Easi
Di,rt• ict.

c)      Sigrrificant ntad cations( sz ch ns to alignnzent nr localion) to major rpadwrxys,
such as to major collector or arterial roads where a precise plan In7e has been
ncfopted, Changes that woulrl rest lt ir cr new signifrcant, adverse, s nnritiKatec
envirortmental impact, or a significcrnt i crense in rnay previoirsty identified inrpact.

No si nificcmt nrodificcrtioras to nli,n mer t a locc tion arel ru vsed to rnry artei•i 11
or• cvlledar roads ns or•iginnlly proposecl r 7 the approved vesting ter tative rzaE,
f'LSP or nny ac opted precise plara line. 1b' n envira7rnenlc l in pact.c are iderrtifrec

crs a resttlt.

Please let us know if you have any questions regarding the infarmation provided with this letter or
if you require any additional infotmation to make your determination. Please feel free to contact me
at( 209) 879- 7900 or at sdellosso cr riverislands. com.

667



mcecely,

Susan Dell' Osso

President

cc:      Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
Brad Taylor, Land Development Manager

Rick Caguiat, City of Lathrop Principal Planner
Trent Dedait, Assistant Planner
David Niskanen, Contract Planner

Michael King, Public Works Director
Zach Jones, Parks and Recreation Director

Todd Sebastian, Superintendent of Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services
Exhibits:

A:      Woodlands East Lotting Summary Comparison
B:      Itesidential Unit and Acreage Summary
C:      Park Locations and Service Areas(" Buffer Map")

668



w

s"  

VILUGE 6 CHANGED FROMJ  
t85LOTST0182LOTS

y YI

7v T S.dt AC PARK AD ED
1"     VILUGESCWWGEO FROM

3 RIVER
t73L rs azeiac ro ors s9. s nc}

OlD
r    

LAI( E 11 SITE EXPANDEO AS SHONM 4Nry

4., ,-^^"'"'"""""' t;' ,     GRADINCi PLANS PAHK RELOCATED AS SHOst
t t.   .: `. y      ww. m.      WNJ

wy...._...   ;... m

J VILLAGE 4 CNANGEU FROM
j ZB.BtACT025. 9tAC

r. , 
p'  .;

e,

t,
VIILA E 8       VILLA E 5       `

1     i', t   

s t u„      . a..,.......

h^,''  , 

VILLAOE4
i VILLAGE 19

F     
r..+-..,,,    '.

v

Y.
j

VIIIAGE 22

VILLAGE 23'     , i
VILLAGE 18 w,+ -    

r
ii

H     ...  

VIILA i7  '.       _    
VILLAGE 21   

p P _ AY     

P 
u,,.,,, ,•

1'`./      

VILLAGE20 rr' N

0
r,   

r•  

WOODLANDS EAST DISTRICT

b

LOTf1NG SUMMARY COMPARISON
E• 61• EERING

RIVER ISLANDS w-

cm oF unwor e w. mewx aNwry cawonre     
ra. w+. aww

wn: wiun.. cr.     
n.. m. w ww.« w«

669



a

z      z
p      J            -  _' i
C        

OC          OC  

00 N N 01 I  01 N M N tf1 ryH C N r- 1  .- t  - Mi  . M-
i N  M-

i  .
m-

i      
N

i

l0 L!' 1 t ll M M    M M N p a
N  - 1  .- I e- i ei N ei  - 1    r-I N

N

W     =

7 C N

Q     " C Q  ?  q  m  `""  O O O 61 00 v G1
N      rt tr' f

o 0 0 0 O O uj  t tri f
V     '> a
W y

WN
a      

C  

Q        U o
o  .  .-

i o 0 0    ^  
m o0a

n  n
oc oo 0 0  „  

t  ri  
a     oc a
h=     O
z

a

rn rn m      rn N  t oo    N!
d

a N ci o  ^  
n

ni    c. i  . N-{  °'  
N      

0

y oo I  1  ^    01 N O a--  tY')  
O

L
lG  - 1 Op

W Q N M N  ^  ^  N N N  - mi e- I  

0

g
o

Q      $  o S S N
0 0           a    

tD M 1  d'  00 N t0

F= 
i-
i    N  ` n n  '"  d'

v  O      '  
N      

a`,  d F-         a      

X
C v  in  '  j p p      ~      N 41 N  '      W

W

J U    o  .  . 0 U CJ O O O          
m    .-

i      L

0 O x x x uf      

v u°  u°  v,  n Nv vi vì  2
g

v_  

O o   °
c'    -

o d

d y i+  v N
Q V    G        n 0 0
N y         

uf Ct tf1 l0  ^- 1  - i r- 1 N N N N C C    C             i y O O

W W W W W W W W W W CJ               
a      

01 t0 p'  
O 0

a C7 U   U     U  Ur     U   C7 U   

CO Y Y Y 3    N VI

g g g g    g g      s M
a

g x z a u.i w

670



CHAPTER 4 : PROPOSED PARKS Si OPEN SPACE SYSTEM Hi CONCEPT' S

EXHIBIT C- NEIGHBORHOC D PARK SERVICE AREA MAP

r   '",    ,",       

t  ti

se t.    *

P,     ,   

a,
p 4'     '  

fj

n  .

s    -  -

e" " 

a r .

t`     
w ""``    

Y^       d

V  ;    ""„  

a     

a a:   
r,

s        `    ,  .  ,  s

H

u  .     a:      

r '. o..  
y

y w#  ,
t ou

o    .

rY

4  -
q`^ z        

1'  

f      .. 

z- Wy
F 3       " e"*.  .' .§

K    

ti kd

4   ^   A

w
G

k :

y.ly3,

4 4    .:
x

y
fi-

a   a

Neighborhood Park F

u1+     4
y

6 .SCIIOOI r

a x

r'-`'-.

1/ 4 Mile Radius

1/ 2 Mile Radius
f

a"' 

phase 2 limits
s

RIVER ISLANDS PNASE 2 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE MASTER PLAN

671



672



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 5. 1

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER ADOPTING AN ORDINANCE AMENDING

THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 2

ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL",   CHAPTER

2. 36  PURCHASING SYSTEM",  SECTION 2. 36. 110

EXCEPTIONS TO PURCHASING PROCEDURES AND

LIMITS"

RECOMMENDATION:     City Council to Consider the Following Items:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  First Reading and Introduction of an Ordinance

Amending Title 2,   Chapter 2. 36   ' Purchasing
System",    Section 2. 36. 110    Exceptions To

Purchasing Procedures and Limits"  by adding a
new section     ( D")     to allow Cooperative

Purchasing Agreements

SUMMARY:

The City is currently managing numerous construction,   development and

maintenance projects.  Cooperative purchasing agreements allow staff to timely
procure goods, material and services while also meeting state and local government
purchasing procedures.    By using this process, the City can achieve better pricing
and streamline purchases by removing repetitive, resource intensive, and costly bid
procedures associated with routine purchases.

Cooperative purchasing is the process of combining the buying power of multiple
agencies to negotiate and purchase goods and services at lower prices. The idea
behind this procurement method is that the City would not need to conduct its own
competitive bidding process since one has already been conducted by an agency that
follows strict government purchasing guidelines. Cooperative purchasing agreements
allow member public agencies to aggregate individual purchasing power and achieve
greater volume discounts.

In order to use Cooperative Purchasing Agreements staff is requesting Council' s
consideration and approval of an Ordinance amending Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC),
Title 2,   Chapter 2. 36  " Purchasing System",   Section 2. 36. 110  " Exceptions To

Purchasing Procedures and Limits" by adding a new section (" D") to allow Cooperative

Purchasing Agreements .

673



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER AMENDING THE LMC

TITLE 2     ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL",     CHAPTER 2. 36

PURCHASING SYSTEM", SECTION 2. 36. 110 EXCEPTIONS TO PURCHASING

PROCEDURES AND LIMITS"

BACKGROUND:

The City currently utilizes the California Multiple Award Schedule ( CMAS) program to
purchase fleet vehicles and heavy equipment,  which is statutorily allowed by
California Government Code §  54205;  however, this program' s selection of goods
and services is somewhat limited.

In an ongoing effort to make best use of staff resources and seek cost savings, many
government agencies share contracting efforts through cooperative purchasing. This
procurement approach increases pricing competitiveness and lowers operating costs
through efficiencies gained by the cooperative purchasing programs.    Staff has

reviewed available purchasing options and purchasing programs not currently
authorized by the LMC that may provide significant cost savings to the City.

Cooperative purchasing programs such as California Communities Purchasing
Program ( CCPP), California Multiple Award Schedule ( CMAS), the National Association

of Counties  ( NACo),  Sourcewell,  and others assist public agencies by securing
competitive prices on a variety of material, equipment and other common items.

What is Cooperative Purchase?

A cooperative purchasing program combines multiple buyers'  requirements on a

single contract to aggregate volume and raise the purchasing power of each
participating entity. A lead agency typically conducts the solicitation, allowing other
agencies to " piggyback" on the resulting contract. Through cooperatives, entities can
negotiate lower prices and reduce time spent on procurement processes and
establishing contracts.

What are the benefits of Cooperative Purchasing?

Cooperative purchasing contracts can save government agencies time and money.
By the time a buyer is presented with the contract, a competitive bid process has
already been completed in accordance with state- specific requirements, and there is
no need to write or advertise the bid solicitation, receive and evaluate proposals, or
negotiate the final purchase price.  The contracts also offer scale and negotiation
leverage that helps buyers attain better and more affordable pricing.   The

transparency of these contracts ensures that the purchasing process is competitive
and enhances buyers' confidence that they are getting a fair deal.

Cooperative Purchase — How It Works

After identifying its purchasing needs,  an organization can simply search through
cooperative purchasing contracts that offer the necessary goods,  material and

services.  For example, the typical process with Sourcewell includes registering to
participate, finding a contract and then ultimately contacting the supplier.

674



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER AMENDING THE LMC

TITLE 2     ' ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL",     CHAPTER 2. 36

PURCHASING SYSTEM", SECTION 2. 36. 110 EXCEPTIONS TO PURCHASING

PROCEDURES AND LIMITS"

The supplier then quickly provides a quote based on the contracted price, and the
agency finalizes the sale with the supplier using the contract number and the agency' s
Sourcewell account number. This process helps organizations simplify the purchasing
procedure,  fulfilling all state and local competitive- bidding requirements without
going through the cumbersome bidding process.

Instead of seeking quotes,  bids,  or proposals,  organizations can simply choose

products and services from the cooperative contract' s service catalog. These services
have been pre- selected by the agency behind the cooperative through its own
stringent competitive- bidding process.

In essence, the cooperative has done this work for the organization already, and so
buyers are complying with all local, state, and national procurement laws when they
make purchases through a cooperatively purchased contract.

Therefore,  staff requests Council' s consideration and approval of an Ordinance

amending LMC,  Title 2,  Chapter 2. 36  " Purchasing System",  Section 2. 36. 110

Exceptions To Purchasing Procedures and Limits" by adding a new section (" D") to

allow Cooperative Purchasing Agreements. Approval will give the City Manager, as
the City' s Purchasing Officer,  the authority to purchase supplies,  equipment,  and

Services through legal contracts of other government jurisdictions or public agencies
while forgoing competitive bidding.

A Notice of Public Hearing was advertised in the Manteca Bulletin newspaper on
August 30th, 2023.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Cooperative Purchasing Agreements reduce administrative overhead,  increasing
efficiency and savings. By using this process, the City can achieve better pricing and
streamline purchases by removing repetitive,  resource intensive,  and costly bid
procedures associated with routine purchases.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact at this time. Staff will incorporate activities related to this

item into current council adopted operating and capital improvement project budgets.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Ordinance Amending Title 2, Chapter 2. 36 ' Purchasing System", Section

2. 36. 110 " Exceptions To Purchasing Procedures and Limits" by adding a
new section (" D") to allow Cooperative Purchasing Agreements

675



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER AMENDING THE

LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 2 ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL",

CHAPTER 2. 36 PURCHASING SYSTEM", SECTION 2. 36. 110 EXCEPTIONS TO

PURCHASING PROCEDURES AND LIMITS"

APPROVALS:

Qo   /    D 23c{     8_
Steven Hollenbea Date

Assistant Engineer

ao
Cari Jame Date

Finance Dir tor

b f3e zoti3

Thomas Hedegard Date

Deputy City Manager

g s o - 23
Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Zoti
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

9•S•23
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

676



ORDINANCE NO. 23-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING
TITLE 2,   CHAPTER 2. 36   PURCHASING SYSTEM",   SECTION 2. 36. 110

EXCEPTIONS TO PURCHASING PROCEDURES AND LIMITS" BY ADDING A

NEW SECTION ( D") TO ALLOW COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENTS

WHEREAS, Cooperative purchasing agreements allow staff to timely procure
goods,   material and services while also meeting state and local government
purchasing procedures; and

WHEREAS, Cooperative purchasing is the process of combining the buying
power of multiple agencies to negotiate and purchase goods and services at lower
prices. The idea behind this procurement method is that the City would not need to
conduct its own competitive bidding process since one has already been conducted
by an agency that follows strict government purchasing guidelines; and

WHEREAS, the City currently utilizes the California Multiple Award Schedule
CMAS) program to purchase fleet vehicles and heavy equipment, which is statutorily

allowed by California Government Code § 54205; however, this program' s selection
of goods and services is somewhat limited; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code ( GC) §§ 54202- 54203, require local

agencies to adopt an ordinance establishing policies and procedures,  including
bidding regulations,  governing purchases of supplies and equipment by the local
agency; and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Public Hearing was advertised in the Manteca Bulletin
on August 30t", 2023; and

WHEREAS, staff requests that City Council hold a public hearing, consider all
information and public testimony and,  if determined to be appropriate,  adopt an

Ordinance amending Lathrop Municipal Code Title 2 ' Administration and Personnel",
Chapter 2. 36  Purchasing System",  Section 2. 36. 110  Exceptions to purchasing
procedures and limits" by adding a new section  (" D") to allow the City to utilize
cooperative purchasing agreements; and

WHEREAS,  this will give the City Manager,  as the Purchasing Officer,  the
authority, where advantageous to the city, to use cooperative purchasing agreements

approved by the City Council, to purchase supplies, equipment, and non- professional
services through legal contracts of other government jurisdictions, or public agencies
without separate competitive bidding by the city.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby ordain as follows:

Ordinance No. 23-

677



Note: additions are shown below in underline font.

Section 1.

Title 2 of the Lathrop Municipal Code,  " Administration and Personnel"  is hereby
amended by amending Chapter 2. 36  " Purchasing System",   Section 2. 36. 110

Exceptions to purchasing procedures and limits",  to incorporate the changes as

follows:

CHAPTER 2. 36 PURCHASING SYSTEM

2. 36. 110 Exceptions to purchasing procedures and limits.

A.      The contracting of service from other governmental agencies,  sole

source purchases and professional services shall be exempt from bidding procedures.

B.      The contracting for the purchase of any item less than seventy- five
thousand dollars ($ 75, 000. 00), exclusive of sales or use tax, shipping, handling or
delivery charges from other governmental agencies, sole source purchases, or from
the Office of Procurement, Department of General Services of the state of California

shall be exempt from the bidding procedures.

C.      For any exemption to the procedures set forth in this chapter,  the

department head responsible for the purchase shall certify in writing to the

purchasing officer the reason for the exemption claimed.

D.       Without complying with the requirements of Sections 2. 36. 050,

2. 36. 060,  and 2. 36. 140,  the purchasing officer may participate in,  use,  sponsor,

conduct or administer a cooperative purchasing agreement for the procurement of
any supplies, equipment, or service with one or more public procurement units in
accordance with an agreement entered into between the participants.   Such

cooperative purchasing may include, but is not limited to, joint or multiparty contracts
between public procurement units and open- ended state and/ or federal public
procurement unit contracts which are made available to the cit

Section 2.

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a
manner that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory
duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as to provide
a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

Section 3. Severabilitv.

If any section, subsequent subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

Ordinance No. 23-

678



The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection,
subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of
the unconstitutionality or invalidity of any section,   subsection,   subdivision,

paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.

Section 4. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and after the date of its passage.

Section 5. Publication.

Within fifteen days of the adoption of this Ordinance, the City Clerk shall cause a copy
of this Ordinance,  to be published in full accordance with Section 36933 of the
Government Code.

Ordinance No. 23-

679



THIS ORDINANCE was introduced at a meeting of the City Council of the City
of Lathrop on the 11t" day of September, 2023, and was PASSED AND ADOPTED
at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on the day of

2023, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 23-

680



ITEM 5. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE

DECLARATION FOR CIP PW 22- 36 AQUIFER

STORAGE AND RECOVERY

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Adopting the Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the City of Lathrop Aquifer Storage
and Recovery Project, CIP PW 22- 36 in Accordance
with the California Environmental Quality Act

Requirements

SUMMARY:

The technique of Aquifer Storage and Recovery ( ASR) involves actively storing water
underground during periods of high precipitation for later retrieval as needed. This
process of injecting and extracting water utilizes a well and is authorized by the State
Water Board.

A Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) and Mitigation Monitoring/ Reporting Program
MMRP)  were prepared for the project,  pursuant to the provisions of California

Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA)  requirements.  The public comment and review
period began on August 2, 2023 and ended on September 15t, 2023.   As of writing
this report, a total of five comments were received and have been addressed in the

Responses to Comments Memorandum, included as Attachment D".

Staff requests that Council adopt the attached resolution adopting the MND and
MMRP, and authorize staff to file a Notice of Determination with San Joaquin County.

BACKGROUND:

The proposed ASR project would optimize the conjunctive use of the City' s existing
supplies of treated surface water and available groundwater to enhance delivered
water quality to customers and increase the reliability of the City' s water supply and
delivery system.

On January 10, 2022, Council approved the creation of CIP PW 22- 36 Aquifer Storage
and Recovery and a Professional Services Agreement with Carollo Engineers,  Inc.

Carollo)  to complete the project' s engineering feasibility study and preliminary
design.  The ASR project was also included in the FY 23- 34 budget approved by the
Planning Commission and adopted by City Council in June 2023.

The proposed project would involve the injection of treated ( potable) drinking water
from the City' s South San Joaquin Irrigation District ( SSJID) South County Water
Supply Project  ( SCWSP)  into selected confined aquifer zones for storage and
subsequent extraction ( i. e., " recovery").

681



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR CIP PW 22- 36

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY

The ASR Project would help mitigate drought impacts on the City' s surface water
supplies by providing long- term storage of up to 1, 450 acre- feet per year ( AFY) in

the lower confined aquifer.  The injection period generally occurs from November
through April when water demand is lowest.

The proposed ASR project is located in the City of Lathrop at the River Islands potable
water tank and booster pump site at APN 210- 210- 28. The project site is currently
surrounded by industrial and agricultural uses and located within the River Islands
Master Plan area. The site will ultimately be adjacent to an " Employment Center"

designated by the River Islands Master Plan.

Currently, the project site has an existing 1. 5- million- gallon ( MG) water tank with

plans for two more tanks in the future. The proposed ASR Well and two monitoring
wells would be located on the River Islands site.  One of the monitoring wells has
recently been completed near the southern boundary of this site.

A MND and MMRP were prepared for the project, pursuant to the provisions of CEQA
with NEPA like requirements. The MND was submitted to the State Clearinghouse

SCH# 2023080053) to be circulated for a 30- day public review period commencing
on August 2, 2023 and ending on September lst, 2023, in accordance with Section

21091 of the Public Resources Code.  Notices of the MND availability were also sent
out using CEQA- net, the City' s website, County Clerk, Manteca Bulletin and mailed to
a list of CEQA notice subscribers maintained by the City.   Comments were received

from the SWRCB, PG& E and the SJCOG.   The comments received are addressed in

the attached responses to comments memorandum.

Overall, the MND concluded that the ASR project could have a " Potentially Significant
Impact" to Cultural Resources and Tribal Cultural Resources environmental factors

which are addressed in the attached Mitigation and Monitoring Program.

RECOMMENDATION:

The City of Lathrop ASR project would considerably enhance reliability and mitigate
emerging risks to the City' s water supply by pumping and storing surface water
acquired from SSJID during wet periods into the ground allowing for later retrieval
and utilization during dry seasons, droughts, or instances of water supply shortage.

Staff requests that City Council adopt the attached resolution for adopting a Mitigated
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring/ Reporting Program for the subject
project in accordance with CEQA requirements, and authorizing staff to file a Notice
of Determination with San Joaquin County.

682



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR CIP PW 22- 36

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with the recommended action.   The ASR

project is estimated to cost a total of $ 6, 000, 000 and has been awarded an Urban

Communities Drought Relief Grant in the amount of$ 4, 500, 000 with a 25% local cost

share in the amount of $ 1, 500, 000.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation

Monitoring/ Reporting Program for CIP PW 22- 36 Aquifer Storage and Recovery
in Accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act Requirements

B.  Notice of Determination

C.  Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration for the City of Lathrop Aquifer
Storage and Recovery

D.   Responses to Comments Memorandum

E.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

683



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ADOPTION OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARTION FOR CIP PW 22- 36

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY

APPROVALS:

l s      g 21 Z3
Greg son Date

Senior Civil Engineer

dJZZ?. 23

Brad T or Date

City Engineer

3
Cari Ja Date

Finance irector

8 • Z3 • ZcZ3

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

8'  ` L3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

ct• • Z3
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

684



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE CITY OF

LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT, CIP PW 22- 36 IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT
REQUIREMENTS

WHEREAS,  the proposed City of Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery
project,  CIP PW 22- 36,  would optimize the conjunctive use of the City' s existing
supplies of treated surface water in addition to available groundwater, to enhance
delivered water quality to customers and increase the reliability of the City' s water
supply and delivery system; and

WHEREAS, on January 10,  2022 Council approved the creation of CIP PW

22- 36 Aquifer Storage and Recovery and a Professional Services Agreement with
Carollo Engineers,  Inc.  ( Carollo) to complete the engineering feasibility study and
preliminary design for the project.  The ASR project was also included in the FY 23-
34 budget that was approved by the Planning Commission and adopted by City
Council in June, 2023; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed project would involve the injection of treated
potable)  drinking water from the City' s South San Joaquin Irrigation District

SSJID) South County Water Supply Project ( SCWSP) into selected confined aquifer

zones for storage and subsequent extraction ( i. e., recovery"); and

WHEREAS,   a Mitigated Negative Declaration    ( MND)   and Mitigation

Monitoring/ Reporting Program  ( MMRP)  were prepared for the project,  pursuant to
the provisions of California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) requirements; and

WHEREAS,  the MND was submitted to the State Clearinghouse  ( SCH#

2023080053)  to be circulated for a 30- day public review period commencing on
August 2,  2023 and ending on September 15t,  2023,  in accordance with Section

21091 of the Public Resources Code; and

WHEREAS,  public notice of the availability of the MND was provided as
required by CEQA Guidelines Section 15072; and

WHEREAS,  five public comments were received on the MND and were
addressed in a response to comments memorandum,  listed as Attachment " D", of

the City Manager' s report, dated September 11th, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop has considered the MND together with any
public comments received on the MND; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Monitoring/ Reporting Program ( MMRP) was prepared
based on the MND; and

685



WHEREAS,  there is no substantial evidence that the project will have a
significant effect on the environment; and

WHEREAS, Section 21108 and 21152 of the Public Resources Code require

the filing of a Notice of Determination within five  ( 5)  days of certification of the

Negative Declaration.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED,  that the City of Lathrop has

determined,  based on its independent judgement,  that the Mitigated Negative

Declaration for the City of Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery project has met
the requirements of CEQA; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Counci)  adopts the MND and

MMRP and authorizes the filing of a Notice of Determination with the County.

686



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September
2023, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

687



Pnnt Form

ATTACHMENT

Notice of Determination Appendix D

To:    From:

0 Office of Planning and Research Public Agency:  City of Lathrop
U. S. Mail: SireetAddress:     

Address: 390 Towne Centre Drive

P. O. Box 3044 1400 Tenth St., Rm 113
Lathrop, CA 95330

Contact: Gregory W. Gibson, P. E.
Sacramento, CA 95812- 3044 Sacramento, CA 95814

Phone:( 209) 841- 7442

County Clerk
County of: San Joaquin Lead Agency( if different from above):

Address: 44 N. San Joaquin Street, 2nd Floor, Su
Stockton, CA 95202 Address:

Contact:

Phone:

SUBJECT: Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public
Resources Code.

State Clearinghouse Number( if submitted to State Clearinghouse): 20230080053

Project Title:  City of Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery

Project Applicant:  City of Lathrop

Project Location ( include county): Lathrop, San Joaquin County

Project Description:

The proposed ASR project would optimize the conjunctive use of the City' s existing supplies of treated
surface water in addition to available groundwater, to enhance delivered water quality to customers and
increase the reliability of the City' s water supply and delivery system.

The proposed prolect would involve the injection of treated ( potable) drinking water from the City' s Soutb

This is to advise that the City of Lathrop has approved the above

Lead Agency or Responsible Agency)

described project on 09/ 11/ 2023 and has made the following determinations regarding the above
date)

described project.

1. The project[ will  will not] have a significant effect on the environment.

2.  An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
3. Mitigation measures[ were  were not] made a condition of the approval of the project.

4. A mitigation reporting or monitoring plan [ 0 was was not] adopted for this project.

5. A statement of Overriding Considerations [ was  was not] adopted for this project.

6. Findings[ were were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

This is to certify that the final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the
negative Declaration, is available to the General Public at:

https:// www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ com- dev/ page/ public- review- documents

Signature ( Public Agency):     Title:

Date:  Date Received for filing at OPR:

Authority cited: Sections 21083, Public Resources Code.
Reference Section 21 000- 21 1 74, Public Resources Code. Revised 2011

688



ATTACHMENT     :
G

FINAL INITIAi. STUDY AN VI TIGATED

l ATIVE DECL RATIt N

FOR THE

LATHROP A uIFER STORAGE ECQVE tY PROJE T

a      

t

r  

1Y
r x a    '

e>.

1 m     

y  -   SE'' t' I+ BER 2423
x

s

r.,...., '.

P I    ' I i? ilu

Preparedfor:

F    ,.   

Cfty flf L throp
Depat tment of Public W+rks
39 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrap, CA 95330

Prepared by:

De Nr vo Planning GrBup
102U Suncast Ln, Suite 1Q6

El Darado HilIs, CA 95Z62
916) 997- 1865

D e N o v o P l a n n i n g G r o u p

A Land Use Planning, Design, and Environmental Firm

689



FINAL INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION

FOR THE

LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE RECOVERY PROJECT

SEPTEMBER 2023

Prepared for:

City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

Prepared by:

De Novo Planning Group
1020 Suncast Ln, Suite 106

E1 Dorado Hills, CA 95762

916) 997- 1865

690



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT
I I    '+

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INITIALSTUDY CHECKLIST........................................................................................................................................ 3

ProjectTitle................................................................................................................................................................... 3

LeadAgency Name and Address.......................................................................................................................... 3

Contact Person and Phone Number.................................................................................................................... 3

ProjectSponsor' s Name and Address................................................................................................................. 3

Purposeof the Initial Study.................................................................................................................................... 3

Update to the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration....................................................................4

WaterSupply Considerations................................................................................................................................4

ProjectLocation and Setting.................................................................................................................................. 5

General Plan and Zoning Designations.............................................................................................................. 5

ProjectDescription.................................................................................................................................................... 5

ProjectBackground.................................................................................................................................................... 6

Reyuested Entitlements and Other Approvals............................................................................................... 7

ProjectGoals and Objectives.................................................................................................................................. 7

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected:................................................................................................8

Determination:............................................................................................................................................................. 8

EvaluationInstructions:..............................................................................................................................................10

Evaluation of Environmental Impacts:.................................................................................................................11

EnvironmentalChecklist............................................................................................................................................12

I. AESTHETICS.......................................................................................................................................................12

II. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES...........................................................................................13

III. AIR QUALITY...................................................................................................................................................14

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES.......................................................................................................................... 15

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES............................................................................................................................... 17

VI. ENERGY.............................................................................................................................................................19

VII. GEOLOGYAND SOILS.................................................................................................................................21

VIII. Greenhouse Gas Emissions.....................................................................................................................23

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS..........................................................................................24

X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY......................................................................................................26

City of Lathrop

691



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

1 ly      '  '

XI. LAND USE AND PLANNING.......................................................................................................................29

XII. MINERAL RESOURCES...............................................................................................................................30

XIII. NOISE...............................................................................................................................................................31

XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING................................................................................................................32

XV. PUBLIC SERVICES........................................................................................................................................ 33

XVI. RECREATION................................................................................................................................................34

XVII. TRANSPORTATION/ TRAFFIC..............................................................................................................35

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES...................................................................................................... 36

XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS..................................................................................................... 37

XX. WILDFIRE........................................................................................................................................................39

XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE....................................................................................40

City of Lathrop

692



INIT[ AL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT II I I I

INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST

PROJECT TITLE

Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project

LEAD AGENCY NAME AND ADDRESS

City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

CONTACT PERSON AND PHONE NUMBER

Gregory Gibson, Senior Civil Engineer
209- 941- 7442

ggibson@ci. lathrop.ca.us

PROJECT SPONSOR' S NAME AND ADDRESS

City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

PURPOSE OF THE INITIAL STUDY

An Initial Study ( IS) is a preliminary analysis which is prepared to determine the relative

environmental impacts associated with a proposed project. It is designed as a measuring

mechanism to determine if a project will have a significant adverse effect on the environment,

thereby triggering the need to prepare a full Environmental Impact Report( EIR). It also functions

as an evidentiary document containing information which supports conclusions that the project
will not have a significant environmental impact or that the impacts can be mitigated to a" Less

Than Significant" or " No Impact" level. If there is no substantial evidence, in light of the whole

record before the agency, that the project may have a significant effect on the environment, the
lead agency shall prepare a Negative Declaration ( ND). If the IS identifies potentially significant
effects, but: ( 1) revisions in the project plans or proposals would avoid the effects or mitigate the

effects to a point where clearly no significant effects would occur, and ( 2) there is no substantial

evidence, in light of the whole record before the agency, that the project as revised may have a
significant effect on the environment, then a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) shall be

prepared.

This Initial Study has been prepared consistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15063, to

determine if the proposed Aquifer Storage and Recovery ( ASR) Project ( project) may have a
significant effect upon the environment. Based upon the findings and mitigation measures

contained within this report, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) will be prepared.

Ciry of Lathrop

693



p , e, i n.,.....

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I P I' i  '

UPDATE TO THE INITIAL STUDY fMITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION
Minor revisions have been made to the draft Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND). SpecificallX,
tvnographical errors were corrected and clarifications were made to the final environmental

document. Added language a ears in a strikeout and underlined format. CEQA Guidelines

Section 15073. 5( a) requires a lead agencv to recirculate a negative declaration when the

document must be substantially revised after public notice of its availability has previousl,

given. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15073. S(. a " substantial revision" includes two

situations: ( i) a new. avoidable significant effect is identified, and to reduce that effect to a level

of insignificance, mitigation measures or project revisions must be added; or iil the lead agency

determines that the mitigation measures or project revisions originall,y included in the negative

declaration will not reduce potentiallv significant impacts to a level of insignificance, and new
miti. ation measures or roject revisions are required. CEQA is clear that recirculation is not

required if " new information is added to the negative declaration which merely clarifies.
am,plifies. or makes insignificant modifications to the negative declaration." [ CEQA Guidelines.

15073. S( c)( 4).) None of the revisions made meet the recirculation requirements. As such.

recirculation is not required.

WATER SUPPLY CONSIDERATIONS

The San Joaquin River historically divided the city into two separate groundwater basins. To the

east of the river was the Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Subbasin1 and to the west is the Tracy

Subbasin. z Both subbasins are part of the San Joayuin Valley Groundwater Basin. The City

submitted a Basin Boundary Modification Request( BBMR) in June 2018, which was approved in

February 2019 to include the entire City within the Tracy Subbasin.

The City has five operational production wells with a combined capacity of 8.4 million gallons per

day (mgd), obtaining water from a relatively shallow aquifer at depths of 270 to 282 feet below
land surface ( BLS), above the Corcoran Clay. These wells are subject to contamination plumes
from the Occidental Chemical Corporation ( OCC), and by PFAS, resulting in a reduction in

production rates and limited use to help meet peak demands. We119 has been placed in standby

mode since summer of 2019 due to PFAS concentrations exceeding the State response level.

The City purchases Stanislaus River water from South San Joaquin Irrigation District ( SSJID)

through the South County Water Supply Project ( SCWSP). The SCWSP is a partnership between
Lathrop, Manteca, Tracy, Escalon, and SSJID. The water is treated at the Nick C. DeGroot Water

Treatment Plant ( DGWTP) located near the Woodward Reservoir in San Joaquin County, then
distributed to the jurisdictions via pipelines.

1 California Department of Water Resources, 2006. California' s Groundwater Bulletin 118, San Joaquin
Valley Groundwater Basin Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin, Groundwater Basin Number: 5- 22. 01. January.
Available: San loaquin Vallev Groundwater Basin Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin( ca.gov). Accessed: June
19, 2023.

z California Department of Water Resources, 2006. California' s Groundwater Bulletin 118, San Joaquin
Valley Groundwater Basin Tracy Subbasin, Groundwater Basin Number: 5- 22. 15. January. Available: San
Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin Tracy Subbasin( ca. gov.. Accessed: June 19, 2023.

City of Lathrop

694



Ai r r9 r. r f n, diY".

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I

PROJECT LOCATION AND SETTING

The proposed Aquifer Storage and Recovery( ASR) project is located in the City of Lathrop at the

River Islands potable water storage and sewer pumping project, located at 950 Stewart Road( see
Figure 1 and Figure 2), near Water Tank 5 and the L2 South San Joaquin Irrigation District

SSJID) turnout. The project site is immediately surrounded by industrial and agricultural uses

and is within the River Islands Master Plan area. The potable water storage and sewer pumping

project site is located adjacent to an " Employment Center" as designated by the River Islands
Master Plan.

Currently the project site has an existing 1. 5- million- gallon ( MG) water tank, and as of July 2023,

two additional tanks are currently under construction. The proposed ASR well and two

monitoring wells would be located on the River Islands site. There are two alternative placement

configurations for the proposed project; the rst is locating the ASR building within the tank site

parcel ( Figure 3), while the second is locating the ASR building on an adjacent parcel east of the
tank site parcel ( Figure 4). One of the monitoring wells has recently been completed near the

southern boundary of this site.

GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING DESIGNATIONS

The project site is currently designated Regional Commercial- River Islands ( RC- RI) by the City
of Lathrop General Plan Land Use Designations Map and is zoned Regional Commercial - River

Islands ( CR- RI).

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed project would implement Aquifer Storage and Recovery ( ASR) technology to

optimize the conjunctive use of the City' s existing supplies of treated surface water in addition to

available groundwater, to enhance delivered water quality to customers and increase the

reliability of the City's water supply and delivery system.

The proposed project would involve the injection of treated ( potable) drinking water from the

City' s South San Joaquin Irrigation District ( SSJID) South County Water Supply Project ( SCWSP)
into selected confined aquifer zones for storage and subsequent extraction ( i. e.," recovery").

The ASR Project would help mitigate drought impacts on the City' s surface water supplies by

providing long- term storage of up to 1, 450 acre- feet per year( AFl in the lower confined aquifer

that is not impacted by the City' s groundwater contamination. In general, the injection period
would occur from November through April, when water demand is lowest.

The City would utilize a new well within the project site for both the injection of the treated

surface water or drinking water supplied from the City's distribution system into the aquifer, and

the subsequent extraction of this water. The project would not require an increase in the City' s
existing surface water usage or increase the demand for water supplies. Initial well development

would start with formation of a buffer zone around the well. The buffer zone initially separates

the native groundwater and the stored water, providing water quality and geochemical benefits.

The buffer zone volume is never recovered; however, the subsequent water stored is typically

City of Lathrop

695



r.....

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT
I       '  ;

fully recovered during times when it is needed to meet peak or emergency demands or during
severe droughts. The sum of the buffer zone volume and the volume reyuired for recovery is
known as the target storage volume ( TSV). A typical" rule- of-thumb" for the buffer zone volume

is at least 70 days of recovery at the design production capacity of the well during ASR recovery,

i. e., a 2 million gallon per day ( mgd) well would likely have a buffer zone volume of at least 140
million gallons ( MG). The recovery volume remains to be determined, but would be at least the

volume required to help meet projected peak summer demands for typically 60 to 120 days and

more likely a larger volume intended to provide water supply reliability during an extended

drought. For example, to provide water supply reliability during a one- year drought, the volume

of water to be stored for a 2- mgd well would be 730 MG, plus the buffer zone volume of at least
140 MG, or at least 870 MG ( 2, 670 acre- feet [AF]).

The ASR well would be drilled to a depth of 1, 200 - 1, 500 feet BLS. The ASR well' s buffer zone is

estimated at 1, 000 GPM ( or approximately 1. 44 mgd, or 101 MG [ 309 AF]). A target storage

volume of 7 months recovery was selected for this well assuming there is a 4- month peak demand

on the existing potable water supply plus a 70- day buffer zone. Adding in the initial buffer zone
contribution the total storage volume for this well is estimated to be at least 408 MG. The radius

of this storage zone is not yet determined as it would relate to how deep and thick is the proposed

storage interval. Associated pumps and piping would be constructed to provide water injection

and recovery. Two monitoring wells would be installed, one within 30 feet of the ASR well and

the other approximately 220 feet of the well. The first well has already been installed as part of

preliminary feasibility analyses.

The ASR well may be housed in a masonry building to protect the well, pipes, and electronic

components. If constructed, the masonry building would be a single-story structure and would

include safety lighting on the outside. It is also possible that the well and piping could remain

outdoors, in an unprotected environment, or under a shade canopy. Construction of the ASR well.

including startu, monitoring, and cvcle testing would take place over approximately 24 months

beginning in early 2024.

Water stored in the aquifer under the ASR program would be used for two primary purposes: 1)
to meet peak hour summer water demands, and 2) for drought water supply. Peak hour demands

occur daily during the summer months. The ASR water would supplement the water stored by
the City in above- ground storage tanks, and water pumped from the wells assists the City in

keeping water pressure within the distribution system within the desired pressure range.

By delivering stored, high yuality surface water from SSJID, municipal water customers in

Lathrop would receive the best quality water at their taps. Water not withdrawn from the aquifer

for peak hour demand would remain in the groundwater basin for future use without

degradation of quality. The intention of the ASR program is for the City to inject approximately

1, 450 AFY and build up its banked groundwater supply over multiple years.

PROJECT BACKGROUND

In order to determine the feasibility of a long-term ASR project, the City undertook a feasibility
analysis at the project site to determine whether an ASR well would result in the desired level of

City of Lathrop

696



rl" ia pAi u+. rl',    .

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT IIIII IIIi! III II II I I III I  IIIIM''

storage. An 8. 75- inch diameter borehole to a depth of 800 feet below ground surface( bgs) by the

direct rotary drilling method. The test hole was geophysically logged to the completed depth. The
test hole was widened to 12. 25- inch diameter to a depth of 270 feet bgs, 10.625- inch diameter

from 270 to 540 feet bgs, and 8. 75- inch diameter from 540 to 800 feet bgs and install three

piezometers that would allow for the collection of zone- specific water quality samples and water

levels. Water quality, minerology, geochemical, and geologic measurements were taken and
logged.

The results, conclusions, and findings of the City's ASR Feasibility Assessment.3 The Engineer' s

Report included in the feasibility analysis demonstrates that the proposed ASR project is

technically feasible, and demonstrates that the proposed project would not adversely impact

groundwater quality or the City' s water supply infrastructure.

REQUESTED ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER APPROVALS

The City of Lathrop will be the Lead Agency for the proposed project, pursuant to the State
Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA), Section

15050. The following agencies may be required to issue permits or approve certain aspects of the

proposed project:

San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department( well drilling permit)

State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water( Drinking Water Source

Assessment and Protection application; water supply permit amendment)

PROJECT GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The City of Lathrop has identified the following goals and objectives for the proposed project:

1.   Provide seasonal storage of drinking water during winter months, when system demand
for drinking water is below peak levels and excess water supply and treatment capacity
is available, and have sufficient water supplies available for future recovery from the
same well when needed to meet peak summer demands.

2.   Provide emergency storage for drinking water in the event of a natural disaster,

transmission pipeline failure, or if the domestic water supply wells need to be taken
partially or completely offline for a period of time.

3.   Provide long- term drinking water storage ( water banking) to provide water supply
reliability and sustainability at low cost, allowing more water to be stored in wet years
and other times of relatively low water demand with recovery anticipated in later years,
and particularly during droughts.

4.   Defer expansion of the City' s water treatment facilities until such time as more water

treatment, not just disinfection, is needed.

3 City of Lathrop, 2023. Aquifer Storage Recovery Feasibility Assessment. Final. March.

City of Lathrop

697



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQU[ FER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected:

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving

at least one impact that is a " Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the

following pages.

Agriculture and Forestry
Aesthetics Air Quality

Resources

Biological Resources X Cultural Resources Energy

Geology and Soils Greenhouse Gasses
Hazards and Hazardous

Materials

Hydrology and Water
Land Use and Planning Mineral Resources

Quality

Noise Population and Housing Public Services

Recreation Transportation Tribal Cultural Resources

Utilities and Service Mandatory Findings of
Wildfire

Systems Significance

DETERMINATION:

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a

NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there
X will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or

agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

1 find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

I find that the proposed project MAY have a " potentially significant impact" or " potentially
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been

adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been

addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to
be addressed.

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because

all potentially significant effects ( a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE

DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and( b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant

to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are

imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

City of Lathrop

698



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT     
I

I I   '

i i^    D9 6 ZoZ3

Signature Date

City of Lathrop

699



IN( TIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT
I ,   

EVALUATION INSTRUCTIONS:

1)       A brief explanation is required for all answers except " No Impact" answers that are

adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses

following each question. A" No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced

information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one

involved( e.g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A" No Impact" answer should

be explained where it is based on project- specific factors as well as general standards

e. g., the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-

specific screening analysis).

2)       All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as

on-site, cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as
well as operational impacts.

3)       Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then

the checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less
than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. " Potentially Significant Impact"

is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are

one or more " Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an
EIR is required.

4)       " Negative Declaration:  Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies

where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from " Potentially

Significant Impact" to a " Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe

the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than

significant level( mitigation measures from Section XVII," Earlier Analyses," may be cross-
referenced).

5)       Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA
process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration.
Section 15063( c)( 3)( D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:
a) Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.
b)       Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist

were within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document
pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects were

addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis.
c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are " Less than Significant with Mitigation

Measures Incorporated,"  describe the mitigation measures which were

incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they
address site-specific conditions for the project.

6)       Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information

sources for potential impacts ( e. g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a

previously prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference

to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated.

City of Lathrop

700



1    r . i.....

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I

7)       Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used
or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.

8)       This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats;

however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that
are relevant to a project' s environmental effects in whatever format is selected.

9)       The explanation of each issue should identify:
a)       The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and
b)       The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than

significance

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS:

In each area of potential impact listed in this section, there are one or more questions which

assess the degree ofpotential environmental effect.A response is provided to each question using
one of the four impact evaluation criteria described below. A discussion of the response is also

included.

Potentially Significant Impact. This response is appropriate when there is substantial

evidence that an effect is significant. If there are one or more " Potentially Significant
Impact" entries, upon completion of the Initial Study, an EIR is required.
Less than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated. This response applies when the

incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from " Potentially Significant
Impact"  to a  " Less- Than- Significant Impact".  The Lead Agency must describe the

mitigation measures and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less- than-
significant level.

Less- than- Significant Impact. A less- than- significant impact is one which is deemed to

have little or no adverse effect on the environment. Mitigation measures are, therefore,

not necessary.

No Impact. These issues were either identified as having no impact on the environment,
or they are not relevant to the project.

City of Lathrop

701



r p.- i -.. ...-. 
y" , qi  ..

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

This section of the Initial Study incorporates the most current CEQA Guidelines Appendix G

Environmental Checklist Form. Impact questions and responses are included in both tabular and
narrative formats for each of the 21 environmental topic areas.

1. AESTHETI CS

W'al td t i te '       ::   x`     
g        

ri:,   i ltr      s   

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic

vista?  
X

b)   Substantially damage scenic resources,

including,  but not limited to,  trees,  rock

outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state
X

scenic highway?

c) In non- urbanized areas, substantially degrade
the existing visual character or quality of public
views of the site and its surroundings? ( Public

views are those that are experienced from publicly
accessible vantage point). If the project is in an

X

urbanized area, would the project conflict with
applicable zoning and other regulations governing
scenic quality?

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare
which would adversely affect day or nighttime x

views in the area?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through b): No Impact. There are no designated scenic vistas on the project site.

The site is not located near a scenic highway. As such, there would be no change to any visual
resources within the city. There would be no impact.

Responses c) through d): Less than Signi cant. The proposed Project would not conflict with

applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality. The proposed masonry
building would be a single-story structure that would not adversely affect day or nighttime views
in the area, and would not degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the
site and its surroundings. There is less- than- significant impact.

City of Lathrop

702



iis. i-,  . , _ 

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

11. AGRICULTUREAND FOREST RESOURCES

wourat+ e# ro,  

put t tx'     E on-       
F      

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or

Farmland of Statewide Importance ( Farmland), as

shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the

X

California Resources Agency, to non- agricultural
use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use,
x

or a Williamson Act contract?

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning
of, forest land ( as defined in Public Resources Code

section 1222( g)) or timberland( as defined in Public
X

Resources Code section 4526)?

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of
x

forest land to non- forest use?

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment
which, due to their location or nature, could result in

conversion of Farmland, to non- agricultural use or
X

conversion of forest land to non- forest use?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through e): No Impact. The project would not result in any changes to existing

land uses within the city, and the project does not have the potential to impact any agricultural
or forest resources. The project would provide more reliable municipal water supplies within the

City's service area and would not reduce water availability for existing agricultural operations.
The water stored in the aquifer under the ASR program will be used for two primary purposes:

1) to meet peak hour summer water demands, and 2) for drought water supply. There is no
impact.

City of Lathrop

703



I I

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT
I

111. AIR QUALITY

wo d   a'

t

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the
x

applicable air quality plan?

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase
of any criteria pollutant for which the project region
is non- attainment under an applicable federal or

X

state ambient air quality standard?

c)  Expose sensitive receptors to substantial

pollutant concentrations?      
X

d) Result in other emissions ( such as those leading
to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of x

people?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through d): e- Less-Than-Si nificant Impact. The project would 

generate minimal air emissions during_project construction activities. The site is alreadv flat. and
there would not be mass dirt moving. Drilling of the well would require construction equipment

that would emit minimal emissions. There would not be any emissions generated during the
operation of the project. 

T...^ w,  ^;*^-;^,. . ,^ n . ,; n ho ;„*., n„ a n foo „ c*,,, ncn

r* ^ F ^ r^'; m;^^^, '^;';';*, ^^^'.,-^  

project operations would not generate odors. The

proposed Project would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutants as there will be

no emissions generated during operation and emissions during construction would be minimal.
T'^ r^; c^^; m^^^*. The impact would be less than significant.

City of Lathrop

704



INIT[ AL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Wau1 f tJ e rty t   
t    

t

i       
r

9

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly
or through habitat modifications, on any species
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status

species in local or regionai plans, policies,  or
X

regulations, or by the California Department of Fish
and Game or U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian
habitat or other sensitive natural community
identified in local or regional plans,  policies, x

regulations or by the California Department of Fish
and Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service?

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or

federally protected wetlands ( inclading, but not
limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through x

direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or
other means?

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species
or with established native resident or migratory x

wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native

wildlife nursery sites?

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances
protecting biological resources, such as a tree x

preservation policy or ordinance?

Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat
Conservation Plan,     Natural Community
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional,

X

or state habitat conservation plan?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through: No Impact. The project involves injecting surface water into the local

aquifer for storage and future recovery. The surface water comes from the City' s existing surface
water allocations. The project would not increase the rate or volume of surface water use or

diversion, and as such, would not impact any riparian habitat or surface water resources that
provide habitat for biological resources.

The City of Lathrop is located within the jurisdiction of the San Joaquin County Multi- Species
Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan (" Plan" or" S) MSCP") and is located within the Central

Transition Zone of the SJMSCP. The San Joaquin Council of Governments ( SJCOG) prepared the
Plan pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding adopted by SJCOG, San Joaquin County, the
United States Fish and Wildlife Service ( USFWS), the California Department of Fish and Game

CDFG), Caltrans, and the cities of Escalon, Lathrop, Lodi, Manteca, Ripon, Stockton, and Tracy in
October 1994. On February 27, 2001, the Plan was unanimously adopted in its entirety by SJCOG.

City of Lathrop

705



i „ : .
i I II

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STQRAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I     I i I I

According to Chapter 1 of the SJMSCP, 4 its key purpose is to" provide a strategy for balancing the
need to conserve open space and the need to convert open space to non- open space uses, while

protecting the region' s agricultural economy; preserving landowner property rights; providing

for the long- term management of plant, fish and wildlife species, especially those that are
currently listed, or may be listed in the future, under the Federal Endangered Species Act ( ESA)
or the California Endangered Species Act ( CESA); providing and maintaining multiple use Open

Spaces which contribute to the quality of life of the residents of San Joaquin County; and,

accommodating a growing population while minimizing costs to project proponents and society
at large."

In addition, the goals and principles of the SJMSCP include the following:

Provide a County-wide strategy for balancing the need to conserve open space and the

need to convert open space to non- open space uses, while protecting the region' s

agricultural economy.

Preserve landowner property rights.

Provide for the long- term management of plant, fish, and wildlife species, especially those
that are currently listed, or may be listed in the future, under the ESA or the CESA.

Provide and maintain multiple- use open spaces, which contribute to the quality of life of

the residents of San Joayuin County.

Accommodate a growing population while minimizing costs to project proponents and
society at large.

In addition to providing compensation for conversion of open space to non- open space uses,

which affect plant and animal species covered by the SJMSCP, the SJMSCP also provides some
compensation to offset impacts of open space conversions on non- wildlife related resources such

as recreation, agriculture, scenic values and other beneficial open space uses. Specifically, the
SJMSCP compensates for conversions of open space to urban development and the expansion of

existing urban boundaries, among other activities, for public and private activities throughout

the County and within Escalon, Lathrop, Lodi, Manteca, Ripon, Stockton, and Tracy.

The project would not result in any open space conversions and would not impact any biological
resources. Project implementation would not conflict with this plan. The Project would not have
a substantial adverse effect on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive or special species

in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations or by the California Department of Fish and

Game or U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The proposed Project would not conflict with any local
policies or ordinances protecting biological resources. The proposed Project would not interfere

with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species. There is no impact.

4 San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan. November 14, 2000.
Accessed July, 2023.

City of Lathrop

706



I..
i i I I. .. il... .  ,. Ir  

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQU[ FER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES

pb,
I orit tl+e, rt     

tili     o ii
t r nrr, >     '

a)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the

significance of a historical resource pursuant to x

Section15064. 5?

b)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the

significance of an archaeological resource pursuant x

to Section 15064. 5?

c) Disturb any human remains, including those
interred outside of formal cemeteries?    

X

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Response a) No Impact. There is no potential for the project to impact any cultural or historical

resources. The proposed Project will not cause a substantial adverse change in the significance
of a historical resource. There is no impact.

Responses b)  through c)  Less Than Significant with Mitigation.   Based on previous

disturbance, and the environmental context, the proposed Project has low potential to impact

archaeological resources. Despite the low potential, the discovery of archaeological materials

during ground- disturbing activities cannot be entirely discounted. The inadvertent discovery of

cultural materials during project implementation could be a potentially significant impact. This
impact would be reduced to a less- than- significant level with implementation of Mitigation

Measure CUL- 1 and Mitigation Measure CUL- 2, which require avoidance measures or the

appropriate treatment of archaeological resources and human remains if discovered during
project implementation.

Mitigation Measure CUL- 1

If pre- contact or historic- era cultural resources are encountered during project
implementation,  construction activities within 100 feet shall halt and a qualified

archaeologist, defined as an archaeologist meeting the U. S. Secretary of the Interior' s
Professional Qualification Standards for Archeology, shall inspect the nd within 24 hours of

discovery and notify the City of Lathrop of their initial assessment. Pre- contact cultural

materials might include obsidian and chert flaked- stone tools ( e. g., projectile points, knives,
scrapers) or toolmaking debris; culturally darkened soil (" midden") containing heat- affected

rocks, artifacts, or shellfish remains; and stone milling equipment ( e. g., mortars, pestles,
handstones, or milling slabs); and battered stone tools, such as hammerstones and pitted

stones. Historic- era materials might include building or structure footings and walls, and

deposits of inetal, glass, and/ or ceramic refuse.

If the City determines, based on recommendations from a qualified archaeologist and a Native
American representative ( if the resource is pre-contact), that the resource may qualify as a
historical resource or unique archaeological resource ( as defined in CEQA Guidelines Section

15064. 5) or a tribal cultural resource ( as defined in PRC Section 21080. 3), the resource shall

City of Lathrop

707



fi ,
i•,.

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

be avoided if feasible. Consistent with Section 15126. 4( b)( 3), this may be accomplished

through planning construction to avoid the resource; incorporating the resource within open

space; capping and covering the resource; or deeding the site into a permanent conservation
easement.

If avoidance is not feasible, the City shall consult with appropriate Native American tribes ( if

the resource is pre-contact), and other appropriate interested parties to determine treatment

measures to avoid, minimize, or mitigate any potential impacts to the resource pursuant to
PRC Section 21083. 2,  and CEQA Guidelines Section 15126. 4.  This shall include

documentation of the resource and may include data recovery ( according to PRC Section
21083. 2), if deemed appropriate, or other actions such as treating the resource with

culturally appropriate dignity and protecting the cultural character and integrity of the

resource ( according to PRC Section 21084. 3).

Mitigation Measure CUL- 2

In the event of discovery or recognition of any human remains during project
implementation, construction activities within 100 feet of the find shall cease until the San

Joaquin County Coroner has been contacted to determine that no investigation of the cause
of death is required. The Coroner shall contact the Native American Heritage Commission

within 24 hours, if the Coroner determines the remains to be Native American in origin. The

Commission will then identify the person or persons it believes to be the most likely
descendant from the deceased Native American ( PRC Section 5097. 98), who in turn would

make recommendations to the City for the appropriate means of treating the human remains

and any associated funerary objects ( CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5[ d]).

City of Lathrop

708



7,,- y . ,       il,(  _
INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

VI. ENERGY

worrtdl pra, i    
k

a) Result in potentially significant environmental
impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary
consumption of energy resources, during project

X

construction or operation?

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for
renewable energy or energy efficiency?       

X

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through b) Less- than- Si nificant Impact. Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines

requires consideration of the potentially significant energy implications of a project. CEQA

requires mitigation measures to reduce " wasteful, inefficient and unnecessary" energy usage
Public Resources Code Section 21100, subdivision [ b][ 3]). According to Appendix G of the CEQA

Guidelines, the means to achieve the goal of conserving energy include decreasing overall energy

consumption, decreasing reliance on natural gas and oil, and increasing reliance on renewable

energy sources. In particular, the proposed Project would be considered " wasteful, inefficient,

and unnecessary" if it were to violate state and federal energy standards and/ or result in

significant adverse impacts related to project energy requirements, energy inefficiencies, energy

intensiveness of materials, cause significant impacts on local and regional energy supplies or

generate requirements for additional capacity, fail to comply with existing energy standards,
otherwise result in significant adverse impacts on energy resources, or conflict or create an

inconsistency with applicable plan, policy, or regulation.

The proposed Project would implement ASR technology to optimize the conjunctive use of the

City' s existing supplies of treated surface water in addition to available groundwater, to enhance

delivered water quality to customers and increase the reliability of the City' s water supply and
delivery system.

The implementation of the proposed Project is estimated to utilize approximately 390, 745
kilowatt- hours per year( kwh year). This was calculated based on the amount of water used for

long- term storage for the project ( 1, 450 acre- feet per year), as provided by the City of Lathrop,
as well as the electricity intensity factor for water supply in the San joaquin River Hydrologic

Region of 827 kwh per million gallons of water.s, s

Other potential sources of energy consumption are not considered herein, as the existing Project

site is already established, and the Project is simply the implementation of a new technology on

an already existing site. Therefore, other potential sources of energy consumption ( such as

worker trips associated with the Project) are considered to already be part of the existing
conditions. The new technology ( ASR) is anticipated to require the amount of electricity

5 See the CaIEEMod( v.2022. 1) User's Guide, Appendix G, Table G- 32, for detail on the electricity intensity
factor.

6 Based on a conversion factor of 1 acre- foot of water being equal to approximately 325, 851. 4 gallons.

City of Lathrop

709



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I

consumption as described above. The proposed Project does not anticipate installation of solar

photovoltaic ( PV) systems or other sources of renewable energy on- site.

Conclusion

The proposed Project would use energy resources for the implementation of the ASR technology

within the Project site. The proposed Project would be responsible for conserving energy, to the

extent feasible, and relies heavily on reducing per capita energy consumption to achieve this goal,
including through Statewide and local measures.

The proposed Project would be in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local

regulations regulating energy usage. As a result, the proposed Project would not result in any

significant adverse impacts related to project energy requirements, energy use inefficiencies,

and/ or the energy intensiveness of materials by amount and fuel type for each stage of the

proposed Project including construction,  operations,  maintenance,  and/ or removal.  The

proposed Project would comply with all existing energy standards, including those established

by the City of Lathrop, and would not result in significant adverse impacts on energy resources.

Therefore, the proposed Project would not be expected cause an inefficient, wasteful, or

unnecessary use of energy resources nor cause a significant impact on any of the threshold as

described by Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines. This is a less- than- significant impact.

City of Lathrop

710



i iid:,..: o ; mv

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

VII. GEOLOGYAND SOILS

woutrt e pro ie  .     i
I eaL

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial
adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or x

death involving:

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as

delineated on the most recent Alquist- Priolo

Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the
State Geologist for the area or based on other x

substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to

Division of Mines and Geology Special
Publication 42.

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?       x

iii) Seismic- related ground failure, including
liquefaction?      

X

iv) Landslides?    x

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of

topsoil? 
X

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is
unstable, or that would become unstable as a result

of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site x

landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction
or collapse?

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table

18- 1- B of the Uniform Building Code  ( 1994),

creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or
X

property?

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the
use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater

disposal systems where sewers are not available for
X

the disposal of waste water?

f   Directly or indirectly destroy a unique

paleontologicai resource or site or unique geologic x

feature?

RESPONSES TO CHECKL/ ST QUESTIONS
Responses a) No Impact. The closest earthquake fault to the Project site is the Vernalis Fault,

located approximately 5 miles southwest of the Project site. The proposed Project will not

directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects including strong seismic ground
shaking, or seismic- related ground failure such as liquefaction. Therefore, there is no impact.

USGS Quaternary Fault and Fold Database of the United States. Available:
https:// www.usgs.gov/ programs/ earthquake- hazards/ faults Accessed: July 10, 2023.

City of Lathrop

711



a,, r  ..._, ..

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

Responses b) through d): Less than Significant. The Corcoran Clay is a major regional

confining bed beneath the western part of the San Joaquin Valley. This clay separates the

overlying upper aquifer from an underlying confined lower aquifer. The top of the Corcoran Clay

is at an average depth of 280 feet beneath the Project site. The electric log and lithologic samples

collected during drilling indicate the Corcoran Clay extends from 280 to 420 feet in depth at this

location. Groundwater below the Corcoran Clay is indicated to be of high salinity. There are two

other shallow clay layers in the upper aquifer. The shallowest is termed the A- clay. The soil

cutting and electronic log for this well indicates the equivalent of the A-Clay likely extends from

90 to 100 feet in depth. Another regional clay is the C- Clay, which is present between the A- Clay

and the Corcoran Clay. The electric log for this well indicates the equivalent C- Clay extends from

220 to 230 feet in depth at this location. 8 Due to previous site disturbance, there is less than

significant impact to soil erosion and loss of topsoil. The Project site is not located on a geologic

unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable because of the project, and potentially
result in on-  or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse.
Therefore, there is a less than significant impact.

Responses e) through : No Impact. The proposed Project would involve the injection of

treated drinking water into selected confined ayuifer zones for storage and subsequent

extraction. The proposed Project will not affect the use of septic tanks or wastewater resources.

The proposed Project will not destroy a unique paleontological resource, site or unique geological
feature. Therefore, there is no impact.

8 City of Lathrop, Stewart Monitoring Well Construction Summary and Aquifer Storage and Recovery Well
Design Recommendations. March 2023

City of Lathrop

712



r n,;, n. . ,

J ,
INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQU[ FER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT ii

VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

wowar      

a)  Generate greenhouse gas emissions,  either
directly or indirectly, that may have a significant x

impact on the environment?

b)  Conflict with an applicable plan,  policy or
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the x

emissions of greenhouse gasses?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) and b): Less- than- Si nificant Impact. During construction of the ASR

well, some construction equipment would be used to drill the well. construct the masonrX
building, and install piping. GHG emissions from construction equipment would be minimal. The

project operation would not generate any greenhouse gas emissions. Project implementation

would not conflict with any statewide, regional, or local GHG reduction plans or regulations.
T' r; c^^; m^^^*. The im, act would be less than significant.

City of Lathrop

713



r,.,•'
ii" s i sr,,: . i,

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

IX. HAZARDSAND HAZARDOUSMATERIALS

t,,     
o

Wstrid pt+      y xr

i,# idt
lr o t ri.

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through the routine transport, use, or x

disposal of hazardous materials?

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset
and accident conditions involving the release of

X

hazardous materials into the environment?

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or

acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste
within one- quarter mile of an existing or proposed

X

school?

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of

hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962. 5 and, as a result, x

would it create a significant hazard to the public or
the environment?

e) For a project located within an airport land use

plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted,
within two miles of a public airport or public use
airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or

X

excessive noise for people residing or working in the
projectarea?

f Impair implementation of or physically interfere
with an adopted emergency response plan or x

emergency evacuation plan?

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or
indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death x

involving wildland fires?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through d): No Impact. The proposed project would not involve the use of any
hazardous materials. There would be no hazardous materials used, stored or transported to the

injection well site as a result of project implementation. The injection well site is not located on

a list of hazardous sites. STEAM Academy is located 1 mile north of the well site. However, this

school site would not be exposed to any project related hazards, as there are no hazardous

materials or activities associated with the project. There is no impact.

Response e): No Impact. The Federal Aviation Administration ( FAA) establishes distances of

ground clearance for take- off and landing safety based on such items as the type of aircraft using
the airport. The San Joaquin County Airport Land Use Commission ( ALUC) is an advisory body
that assists local agencies with ensuring the compatibility of land uses in the vicinity of airports.
The County ALUC reviews proposed development projects for consistency with airport land use

City of Lathrop

714



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

compatibility.  The General Plan presents a policy that is designed to ensure that new

development is consistent with setbacks, height and land use restrictions as determined by the
Federal Aviation Administration and the San Joaquin County Airport Land Use Commission.

The Stockton Metropolitan Airport is the closest airport to the project site, located approximately

12. 5 miles north of the site. The San Joaquin County' s Aviation System Stockton Metropolitan

Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan9 shows that the project site is not located within a flight zone

and the proposed project is not considered an incompatible land use. Implementation of the

proposed project would have no impact with regards to this environmental issue.

Response : No Impact. The proposed Project does not include any actions that would impair

or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan.

Furthermore, the proposed project would not result in population growth that would increase

the demand for emergency services during disasters. Implementation of the proposed Project
would result in no impact on this environmental topic.

Response g): No Impact. The risk of wildfire is related to a variety of parameters, including fuel
loading ( vegetation), fire weather ( winds, temperatures, humidity levels and fuel moisture

contents) and topography( degree of slope). Steep slopes contribute to fire hazard by intensifying
the effects of wind and making fire suppression difficult. Fuels such as grass are highly flammable
because they have a high surface area to mass ratio and require less heat to reach the ignition

point, while fuels such as trees have a lower surface area to mass ratio and require more heat to

reach the ignition point.

According to the State Responsibility Area Fire Hazard Severity Zone Mapl the Project site is not

located in a SRA High Fire Risk zone. The proposed Project does not include any structures that
would be at risk from fires, and does not include any activities that would potentially result in
wildland fires. There is no impact.

9 County of San Joaquin Aviation System Stockton Metropolitan Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan.
February 2018. Accessed July 2023.
lo CAL FIRE Fire Hazard Severity Zone Map https:// osfm. fire.ca. gov/ divisions/ community- wildfire-
preparedness- and- mitigation/ wildfire- preparedness/ fire- hazard- severity- zones/ fire- hazard- severity-
zones- map/ Accessed July 2023

City of Lathrop

715



INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

r  I I
i

j'
I fl   ',

X. HYDROLOGYAND WATER QUALITY
t; n

would tl te jd      Spj,     ' t . ' '      , ct
Ct iatcx

j

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste
discharge requirements or otherwise substantially x

degrade surface or ground water quality?

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge
such that the project may impede sustainable

X

groundwater management of the basin?

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of
the site or area, including through the alteration of
the course of a stream or river or through the x

addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which

would:

i) Result in substantial erosion or siltation on-

or off-site; 
X

ii) Substantially increase the rate or amount of
surface runoff in a manner which would result x

in flooding on- or offsite;

iii) Create or contribute runoff water which

would exceed the capacity of existing or
planned stormwater drainage systems or x

provide substantial additional sources of

polluted runoff; or

iv) Impede or redirect Flood flows?     x

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk

release of pollutants due to project inundation?      
X

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a

water quality control plan or sustainable x

groundwater management plan?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTlONS
Responses a) and b): Less than Significant. The potential for the proposed project to result in
groundwater quality impacts was addressed in the 2023 City of Lathrop Aquifer Storage and

Recovery Feasibility Assessment. Although the primary goal of most ASR programs is to
maximize water supply reliability by storing seasonally available water in the aquifer until

needed, an equally important goal is the preservation or enhancement of water quality through

the ASR process. The capture, treatment, conveyance, and later recovery of this water( in addition

to the cost of water purchase and/ or water rights) results in the recharge water being valuable.

The City of Lathrop is evaluating the potential to use an ASR groundwater banking program to
enhance the management of surplus water using seasonal storage, emergency storage, and/ or
long- term storage methods to support continued drought resiliency and overall water supply
reliability. The focus of the ASR program includes the following:

City of Lathrop

716



ii

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

Seasonal storage. During winter months, when system demand for drinking water

is below peak levels and excess water supply and treatment capacity is available,
drinking water will be stored underground through an ASR well located at the Project

site. Ambient water quality in the aquifer is brackish with an estimated TDS

concentration of about 4,300 to 6,000 mg/ L. The California drinking water standard

for TDS is 1, 000 mg/ L. The stored water will be recovered from the same well when

needed to meet peak summer demands.

Emergency storage. In the event of a natural disaster, transmission pipeline failure,

or if the domestic water supply wells need to be taken partially or completely offline
for a period an additional volume of water would be stored that is not needed for

seasonal recovery. This will provide the volume required to meet a suitable design

flow rate and duration that is determined to be appropriate for an emergency.
Long- term storage. Long- term storage, or " water banking” is increasingly used by

water utilities to provide water supply reliability and sustainability at low cost. No
additional construction cost would be required; however, the storage volume would

be increased beyond what is necessary to meet seasonal and emergency storage

demands. More water would be stored in wet years and other times of relatively low
water demand. This additional volume of long- term stored water would be carried

over for recovery in later year, and particularly during droughts.

An important issue for long- term storage is the natural regional flow rate ( feet per

year) and direction that could cause stored water to move laterally downgradient so
that it is no longer recoverable from the well in which it was recharged. Deeper ASR

wells tend to have higher TDS values, but also lower flow velocity, as in feet per year
as opposed to tens or hundreds of feet per year in shallower or unconfined aquifers.

Wellfield design can partially overcome this constraint by providing a line of ASR
wells oriented downgradient so that stored water that is no longer recoverable from

upgradient ASR wells can be recovered from downgradient ASR wells.

Deferring expansion of water treatment facilities is a secondary objective that could
be useful for the City. Water recovered from the ASR well after storage will only need
disinfection during the recovery, not retreatment of the water. This will be evaluated

during the testing phase of the Project. To the extent that ASR can help meet peak
demands with local seasonal storage, planned future expansion of the DGWTP, and
associated cost, may be deferred.

Therefore, the impact will be less than significant.

Responses c), d), and e): No Impact. There would be no change to the existing drainage pattern
or flood control facilities in the project vicinity or elsewhere in the city as a result of project
implementation. The project would not increase the risk of flooding, nor would it involve surface
water discharges that could adversely impact surface water quality. There is no impact.

City of Lathrop

717



li.
i.., 

I ' ll' i11  :
INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I  ,

There are no significant bodies of water near the project site that could result in the occurrence

of a seiche or tsunami. Additionally, the project site and the surrounding areas are essentially flat,
which precludes the possibility of mudflows occurring on the project site. There is no impact.

City of Lathrop

718



rr 

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

XI. LAND USE AND PLANNING

a y ,.            X'+
woifld ti, 1 1      i. t  

IIiCs:  . r ot:       ",

a) Physically divide an established community?      x

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a

conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation
adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an

X

environmental effect?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through b): No Impact. Implementation of the proposed project would not divide

an established community as there is no residential communities located in the surrounding

areas. The project would not conflict with the City of Lathrop General Plan or the San Joaquin

County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan. There is no impact and no
mitigation is required.

City of Lathrop

719



i   , , ,  _  
INITIA STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I I

XII. MINERAL RESOURCES

k 

WDot t p  c rr"     '    
rt. .      

thr Z l O       ,  .    
rt

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known
mineral resource that would be of value to the region x

and the residents of the state?

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site delineated
on a local general plan, specific plan or other land

X

use plan?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through b): No Impact. As described in the City of Lathrop General Plan DEIR, 11

the Project site is located in MRZ- 3, areas containing mineral deposits, the significance of which

cannot be evaluated. The project would not result in the construction of any facilities or any
changes in land use that would interfere with the extraction of mineral resources in the region.

There is no impact.

City of Lathrop. Draft Environmental lmpact Report for the Lathrop General Plan Update. May 2022.
Accessed July 2023.

City of Lathrop

720



r.. rt rr„+ Il r,  

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I I I

XIII. NOISE

Watuitl e i` t
f 

a t e.

imppd      '  :    .       7Jat r+ct'

a)  Generation of a substantial temporary or
permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the

vicinity of the project in excess of standards
established in the local general plan or noise

X

ordinance,  or applicable standards of other

agencies?

b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or
groundborne noise levels?     

X

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a
private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles
of a public airport or public use airport, would the

X

project expose people residing or working in the
project area to excessive noise levels?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through c): e- I, ac Less- than-Significant Impact. Generally, a project may

have a significant effect on the environment if it will substantially increase the ambient noise

levels for adjoining areas or expose people to severe noise levels. In practice, more specific

professional standards have been developed. These standards state that a noise impact may be

considered significant if it would generate noise that would conflict with local planning criteria

or ordinances, or substantially increase noise levels at noise-sensitive land uses.

Construction of the Project would generate some temporary noise during business hours. as
dictated bv the Citv's Noise Ordinance. rm^' m^**;^^ eration of the Project would not

generate noise. The Project will not generate excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne

noise levels. No permanent increases in ambient noise levels would occur as a result of project
implementation, and the project would not generate new noise sensitive land uses. The impact
would be less than significant.

Response c): 1Vo Impact. The project site is not located within two miles of a public airport or a
private airstrip. There is no impact.

City of Lathrop

721



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

XIV. POPULATIONAND HOUSING

s r

W` is1+  

a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth
in an area, either directly( for example, by proposing
new homes and businesses)  or indirectly  ( for x

example,  through extension of roads or other

infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people
or housing,  necessitating the construction of x

replacement housing elsewhere?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through b): No Impact. Implementation of the project would not directly result

in population growth, nor would it convert any land use designations to a use that would allow

for the construction of housing. The proposed project would not generate a significant number

of new jobs which could lead indirectly to population growth.

The project would not extend water, wastewater and electrical infrastructure to an area that

could result in indirect population growth as a result of new infrastructure. The project would

utilize existing surface water allocations for aquifer storage and recovery. No homes or people
would be displaced by the project. There is no impact.

City of Lathrop

722



IN[ TIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I

XV. PUBLICSERVICES

y    

e
i      

a)   Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or
physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the
construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service

ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:

Fire protection? x

Police protection?      x

Schools? x

Parks?  x

Other public facilities? x

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS

Responses a): No Impact. As described above, the project would not induce population growth

and would not increase the demand for public services in the City of Lathrop. There is no impact.

City of Lathrop

723



IN[ TIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

XVI. RECREATION

a) Would the project increase the use of existing
neighborhood and regional parks or other

recreational facilities such that substantial physical x

deterioration of the facility would occur or be
accelerated?

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or
require the construction or expansion of

recreational facilities which might have an adverse
X

physical effect on the environment?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUEST/ ONS
Responses a), b): No Impact. The proposed project would not increase the use of existing
recreational facilities, nor would it include the construction of new recreational facilities. There

is no impact.

City of Lathrop

724



INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

1 1

XVII. TRANSPORTATION/ TRAFFIC

Wou d ''       q+ tl t t  .:

ur ii ,:'
i" a`rt        

t+'  r; ,         

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance, or policy
addressing the circulation system, including transit, x

roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities?

b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with
CEQA Guidelines Section 15064. 3, subdivision( b)?  

X

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric
design feature ( e. g., sharp curves or dangerous
intersections)  or incompatible uses  ( e. g.,  farm

X

equipment)?

d) Result in inadequate emergency access?   x

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Response a) through d): No Impact. The proposed project would not increase vehicle traffic in

the City of Lathrop. Project operations would not generate vehicle trips on area roadways, and

the project would have no impact on traffic operations. The project site is not located in the

vicinity of a public airport or private airstrip. Project implementation would have no impact on

air traffic patterns. There are no roadway design improvements proposed as part of the project,

and therefore, no changes to the area roadways would occur. The project would not increase area

traffic and emergency access would not be impeded. Implementation of the proposed project

would not result in an increased demand for parking at the injection well site. The project would

have no impact on any existing plans or policies related to alternative transportation. There is no
impact.

City of Lathrop

725



i , n. p. ii7 i.., ro, i ...  .

INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STaRAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT I II

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES

r

a) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in
Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined
in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native
American tribe, and that is:

i) Listed or eligible for listing in the California
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local

register of historical resources as defined i     
X

Public Resources Code Section 5020. 1( k)?

ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in
its discretion and supported by substantial
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria
set forth in subdivision ( c) of Public Resources

Code Section 5024.1? In applying the criteria set x

forth in subdivision ( c) of Public Resources

Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall
consider the significance of the resources to a

California Native American tribe.

RESPONSES TO CHECKLlST QUEST/ ONS
Responses a): Less than Significant. The proposed Project site has been previously disturbed,

the project proposes adding monitoring wells to the site for aquifer storage and recovery.

However, the discovery of tribal cultural resources during ground- disturbing activities cannot be

entirely discounted. The inadvertent discovery of tribal cultural resources during project
implementation could be a potentially significant impact. This impact would be reduced to a less-
than- significant level with implementation of Mitigation Measure TCR- 1, which requires

avoidance measures or the appropriate treatment of tribal cultural resources if discovered

during project implementation.  Therefore,  the impact is less than significant with

implementation of mitigation.

Mitigation Measure TCR- 1

Implement Mitigation Measure CUL- 1.

City of Lathrop

726



i'   '   1  i. i

INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT        I I

XIX. UTILITIESAND SERVICE SYSTEMS

r ia   
tr" t

a t"       '  `  

a) Require or result in the relocation or construction

of new or expanded water, wastewater or storm

water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or
telecommunications facilities, the construction or

X

relocation of which could cause significant

environmental effects?

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve

the project and reasonably foreseeable future
development during normal, dry and multiple dry

X

years?

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater
treatment provider which serves or may serve the
project thatit has adequate capacity to serve the x

projects projected demand in addition to the
providers existing commitments?

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local

standards, or in excess of the capacity of local
infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment

X

of solid waste reduction goals?

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management
and reduction statutes and regulations related to x

solid waste?

RESPONSES TO CHECKL/ ST QUESTIONS
Responses a) through e): No Impact. The primary objectives and purpose of the proposed
project are to:

1.   Improve the quality of potable water delivered to Lathrop customers.

2.   Increase available supplies of high- quality water to meet peak demand, particularly
during summer months.

3.   Provide additional water supplies to meet demand during drought conditions.

The project would not increase the consumption of water in the City of Lathrop. All of the water
used in the ASR project would come from existing surface water supplies that are currently
entitled. Water delivered to City of Lathrop would not increase beyond existing levels, and no
changes to surface water entitlements are proposed or needed. Water stored in the aquifer under

the ASR program would be used for two primary purposes: 1) to meet peak hour summer water

demands, and 2) for drought water supply. Peak hour demands occur daily during the summer
months. The ASR water would supplement the water stored by the City in above- ground storage
tanks, and water pumped from the wells assists the City in keeping water pressure within the
distribution system within the desired pressure range.

City of Lathrop

727



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

9
i, '  '' ` I

By delivering stored, high quality surface water from SSJID, municipal water customers in

Lathrop would receive the best quality water at their taps. Water not withdrawn from the aquifer

for peak hour demand would remain in the groundwater basin for future use without

degradation of quality.

The project would not generate solid waste, nor would it increase wastewater flows in the City

of Lathrop. No new or expanded facilities would be constructed, and the project would rely on

existing City infrastructure. Overall, the project would provide benefits to the City' s water system,
and no adverse impacts would occur.

City of Lathrop

728



INITIAL STUDY— LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

XX. WILDFIRE

s 

k:

Wtu6f1 ti fir   5 n x 

n

a)  Substantially impair an adopted emergency
response plan or emergency evacuation plan?       

X

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors,
exacerbate wildfire risks,  and thereby expose
project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from

X

a wild re or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

c)  Require the installation or maintenance of

associated infrastructure( such as roads, fuel breaks,

emergency water sources, power lines or other
utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may

X

result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the
environment?

d) Expose people or structures to significant risks,
including downslope or downstream flooding or
landslides, as a result of runoff, post- fire slope

X

instability, or drainage changes?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Responses a), c): The proposed improvements would reduce fire risks on and relating to the
project site relative to existing conditions. The project would not impair implementation of or

physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan.
Fire risk would not be increased as a result of the proposed Project. Therefore, there would be
no impact.

Response b): The risk of wildfire is related to a variety of parameters, including fuel loading
vegetation), fire weather( winds, temperatures, humidity levels and fuel moisture contents) and

topography( degree of slope). Steep slopes contribute to fire hazard by intensifying the effects of
wind and making fire suppression difficult. Fuels such as grass are highly flammable because they
have a high surface area to mass ratio and require less heat to reach the ignition point. The Project
would not result in development of structures or housing which would subject residents, visitors,
or workers to long-term wildfire danger. Therefore, there would be no impact.

Response d): The project does not propose any housing that would result in direct population
growth. However, projects that do not directly induce population growth still have the potential
to result in indirect population growth through the creation of jobs or the extension of

infrastructure into areas that were not previously served. The proposed project will not result in
intensification of land uses, or the addition of structures or uses that would differ from the

current General Plan. As such, exposure to people or structures to any significant risk would not
result. Therefore, there would be no impact.

City of Lathrop

729



INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE& RECOVERY PRO] ECT

XXI. MANDATORYFINDINGS OFSIGNIFICANCE

a)  Does the project have the potential to
substantially degrade the quality of the

environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a
fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife

population to drop below self-sustaining levels,
threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community,     

X

substantially reduce the number or restrict the

range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or
eliminate important examples of the major periods
of California history or prehistory?

b)  Does the project have impacts that are
individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?

Cumulatively considerable"  means that the

incremental effects of a project are considerable x

when viewed in connection with the effects of past
projects, the effects of other current projects, and the
effects of probable future projects)?

c) Does the project have environmental effects
which will cause substantial adverse effects on x

human beings, either directly or indirectly?

RESPONSES TO CHECKLIST QUESTIONS
Response a): Less than Significant with Mitigation. The proposed Project would not result in

any impacts to biological resources including sensitive habitat, aquatic species, plant or animal
communities, rare or endangered plants or animals. However, the proposed Project could

inadvertently encounter previously unknown cultural,  archaeological,  or tribal cultural

resources, or human remains. Implementation of Mitigation Measures CUL- 1, CUL- 2, and TRC-

1 would require avoidance measures or the appropriate treatment of archaeological resources,

tribal cultural resources, and human remains if discovered during project implementation.
Therefore, the impact would be less than significant with mitigation.

Responses b), c): Less than Significant. As described throughout the analysis above, the

proposed project would not result in any significant impacts to the environment. The project
would not result in any cumulative impacts, impacts to biological resources or impacts to cultural
and/ or historical resources. There are no impacts.

City of Lathrop

730



YfJLO    ,'    
one

CGUN7Y r     se

r
f

160.. ,.,,  
i 

S A C R A M E N T O       Galt
COUNTY y p i/' l

r._

i' AMSALIOR COUNTY.  

i'      
t

c      pa E
i

i C  
N`

4 J`     .....

i _    R9Crnvv

J

j i
SOLANO COUNTY       f'. a'     

IT' _ J
i

r//    

f 12     ,   
v

Rio Vista r84

lsleton           r...   Ho mr
r Res nno

4  CALAVF RAS
C/ LOdi      COUNTY

a1." 
4 Y

y      ^   
2

f'  i r      c..  ,    

i

A        /'\ ,        r`
x   .

0 '`       
a»z      

r    `       c,_     r  .    . f   

i\p"

i 1         
U r   ,     ?     

t g, I      \\  Re..enoir

G.+`'  '.`, a, re

S# ttj%`'"'  `        88

ntroch
ey 26

1

i `           i,        

Brenitivood C O N T R A      ( o   ' °' '`€     

c pn       4

COSTA             I
COUNTY j       I

99

q I

I

Crark
Reservoir

A    ' :..   

I   
I II I i liI,' III

I

V  li, l,. lil
ii   ,   

I
a         <       

il i

Cliflvn l,            ;*           : e4" u RfiodwmiRsswwb

Project Locaiion
Fanba;     

F,`,,;   

i.
Lathrop {      I

y' 

x iluuanteca
2

Bettrnry i
12

Resm vk
I

1

r  `,.,\      , 

ya`''
s xoa e

T acy z, ti_  ..       

R,".,i  ,   r. a.      iver6artic
p w      rr

t'  ``  

ty,}` ,.-....,,;`}k SY    ` h3+ e ti`l7R0I       r
y     `       J,:'V?

9     
33

µ ,       

w       

Y

AIAMEDA       ', i

j/(93 1     Waterfo
C O U N T Y

j
Ndi j t-

aueA`     I    -     e% hsrntCeres

i w¢''     '    j STANISLAUS
I g,`  ,%      

Ci7UNTY
X  ,     -      

Bmh I

t, c,,'    ' r j/

i

4    ,..   

r,   ./

i. r  %

TUIfOC C
PatCElson t

r
y

i
SAMTA CLARA h

COUHTY 16  MERCEO
33 COUNTY

LEGEND LATHROP AQUIFER Sl' RAGE RECOVERY

Incorporated Area
N

Q Counry Boundary 1 Figure 1. Regional Project Location
0 2K 5

Miles

I:      1 i.   

i... ,. i....
f-._ ; ... ......,..,...,

731



y       .,;     

Yx. e , 

u..._. , _.      

d..   -

e     .     

Q

y

a

a

u „

z .

m      ,

u..

r

r

A      

it s
v' i

t

i T.:   .
K

F.   N

rr S,       ., w-

s 4`sr
a, :.     4 "     L,,;

t' e; a7,. •,_
r>    y Y.       .       

N   ,.

s

4 

t

r    •:     •       
e anAtlaww. w.  a. r .. ax. m

1BF
f""      S5 R

L' s.. i&.  
S

daiHvi+.

s.       :,'&'  
i

t e
rs  `  

M

kq    f"IV      p,;.       
k

rp   ,  
k..

3. .  
b y,' J'   .

g   `*
5 .

K      

irt
i

s

c 9 n

f...   y  .. ryn^.........'       .  . ...  .   .  

m.

4

a     .          

4

v

a

t      
t

a

e      }'      

a.

x

n

1,.'  "     ."      •

Rfr s+

r..    J.

G.s y.      .....
e

2

m..
y y,.. .

rCso
i:,

X t.  
r

i

s'

q,., vk              

i i

u

q '
x.  "     

I I' 1"°",       

n

it,

3 u   

x

dl9I

a >
i..

Y    I
N       

xr

a. s

W,

v          , ;     

a- 

4 k.

LEGEND LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE RECOVERY

Q Site Boundary
N

A Figure 2. Site Aerial Map
o so       ,

S F,

Y    .. ,.,......,..._

732



o       -—.    
U       

Q

e €
x a

om LL           

n
a

W a.
g     

Z g o
F T :_       _     ''`   d

o Q Zo       :. .             i
4

F   - -' -".:-'+ Q=----  j

l              

8

f P
LL'

o

o N
W°  1 '     

f     
i

Y, j

IIi

r/
f'   r

s
5 

I

v z a
3 in l  

p
a

a 0 3=     1  

w i g       
W  ,

g
o            

I

Y 3
pp  i

W Z p a" 

J

Y  ',

F
a

O
i

n I

Z O
i,` t W

W Z
o EDIi

o Y

i

1'•     a  
u-      1[ 7       m--,  --;- I

k
I;-'     '

i        y    m ,., 

ri            a9
D C,

o

r

J'; `-
o C7 I

I

c- r  __
d

D

I       -

I       -

q 
oY.       / '       i   i r-----,--,     i  '

I

I . t i i i a         i
i

i   ..     >       . i

i i2 i   
j

T''  

i          ¢       
a:'   II '+  ...

J.. i
r     i    ti j    

I
F  :

Y      o r

s R

i 5    I  i

i
1       

g      

I J
1

I I     
4! .  ,.. 1 i 1 f'"'  ' f I

11
p  '   

1\.- 

r

f   '

r   ^

1 11 ry      /\"/ I
t  /   1  ' "

f      1      .        11 FR
1  .

Ii      Ji ii  . a... e     . .  

11 0 1

m
L     J\ J     

o:     .. 

I
I I

V I

733



N

W           
O       -.—.,    
W       

z w
W           Q
a

z
W     

W o°     v~i       ( II

m=     U    W a

opzc
e§           p

r Q   n              
i                 

x„ Y   r O
ap g g oa m

o 

o a    t

1    ,--   
i-  i

ti  

o

la I. L

y I i I
r>—

F` O    
e       

IV

o       I
I

a

o

I      
i

W
W

1
B     a z

Y i'       w
a     i

N~    

b n!

u O ab  ,.
s> Yq i

o f j' °_      I

F
4

Z d    °       
a

o Y 1 I
m      / 1

a LL,        
e        I 7 C1 I7    -       ' j

y E pP 1:   

1..   -   -- •—  •      ' j

y+   y
s 0 d Qg, ' 

f         °    ad j

LJ 

0 Cl!

i i i7 I
o /     

O

J
I

S              h; 

i   Ie         :     .  ; ; 

c   
i

i•                ,>    T__ i  ', i

W
a"       .,.

8i

m O g      
y       

I ,..
Y       E...,  

e       ,    ..   
r     _       _. 

i i

i i
f

e

p G 5
4

J  ;  
i.   

t 4` I '     1     1 f 4
1 I0

s 1    I I
C>' I

J   
a n

ii li    4i4, E a ..•- —'    . . , .„    

i     
a_'_"""_     ;

y

V I

734



AT'fAC. iMENT

De Novo Planning Group

A Land Use Planning, Design, and Environmental Firm

memorandum

date September 5, 2023

to Gregory Gibson, Senior Engineer

cc

from Christina Erwin

subject Responses to Comments on the Aquifer Recovery and Storage Project IS/ MND

The City of Lathrop posted the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project Initial Study/ Mitigated
Negative Declaration ( IS/ MND) for a 30- day public comment period. The City received several comment

letters during the public comment period ( August 2, 2023 through September 1, 2023) regarding the

project and the environmental analysis.

The California Environmental Quality Act( CEQA) requires that the lead agency consider the proposed

Mitigated Negative Declaration together with comments received during the public comment period,

prior to reaching a final decision on the project( Title 14, CCR§ 15074).

Although not required, the City has chosen to respond to comments received on the IS/ MND. Table 1

identifies letters received by the City on the proposed project during the public comment period.

Table 1

Comment Letters Received Regarding the Proposed Project
Author( s) of Comment

Letter#    Entity Date Received
letter/ e-mail

1
San Joaquin Council of Governments

Laurel Boyd August 1, 2023
SJCOG)

2 Pacific Gas& Electric Company( PG& E)   Plan Review Team August 3, 2023

3
State Water Resources Contro) Board

Tahir Mansoor August 22, 2023
SWRCB)

4
San Joaquin County Environmental

Aldara Salinas August 24, 2023
Health Department

5
Central Valley Regional Water Quality

peter Minkel September 1, 2023
Control Board ( CVRWQCB)

735



Letter 1 advised that the City of Lathrop is a signatory to the signatory to San Joaquin County Multi-

Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP). As such, certain requirements must be

met in order for projects to proceed.

The ASR project is proposed on a parcel that is classified as" Urban Habitat Land" in the SJMSCP. It is

located in Land Category B, Other Open Spaces, and is in Compensation Category A, No Pay Zone. l

Disturbance of the project site has already been mitigated through compliance with the SJMSCP. In

compliance with the SJMSCP, the City must schedule a SJMSCP Biologist to perform a pre- construction

survey prior to any ground disturbance. Incidental Take Minimization Measures( ITMMs) must be

established and followed.

Letter 2 noted that the PG& E Plan Review Team is reviewing the IS/ MND. Further, it offered broad

guidance that should the project have the potential to interfere with PG& E' s facilities, PG& E would

advise the City with project- specific comments. They also provided guidance for the City when working

near PG& E' s facilities and land rights. Any proposed uses within the PG& E fee strip and/ or easement

may include a California Public Utility Commission ( CPUC) Section 851 filing. This requires the CPUC to

render approval for a conveyance of rights for specific uses on PG& E' s fee strip or easement. PG& E will

advise if the necessity to incorporate a CPUC Section 851 filing is required for the proposed project.

PG& E' s advisory language would be thoroughly reviewed prior to beginning ground disturbing activities

for the proposed project. Any conflict between PG& E' s facilities or land rights would be identified and

the City would contact PG& E to coordinate construction activities.

Letter 3 notes that there are two existing tanks shown on the aerial image in Figure 2, in contrast to the

IS/ MND text on page 5 of the IS/ MND that indicates there is only one 1. 5- million- gallon ( MG) water tank

on the project site. While Figure 2 does show two existing tanks within the boundary of the project site,

the southwestern most tank, enclosed behind its own fence, is SSJID Water Tank 5. Figure 3 highlights

the area to the east of that tank, but still within the project site, and shows one existing tank( the

easternmost tank shown in Figure 2) plus two additional tanks to be constructed in the future under a

separate proposal. The proposed project does not include the construction of water tanks.

To construct the proposed project, the State Water Resources Control Board ( SWRCB) requires the City

to submit a completed Water Supply Permit Environmental Intake Form ( EIF) prior to the SWRCB issuing

a use permit for the well.

The proposed project would result in the construction and operation of a new well in the northeastern

portion of the project site, as shown on Figure 3. Although the IS/ MND did evaluate the potential

impacts related to construction of the project, the text was not clear that construction impacts had been

considered. Minor revisions have been made to the draft IS/ MND to clarify where and how construction

San Joaquin Council of Governments, 2016. SJMSCP Compensation Map— Lathrop. Last Uploaded August 16, 2016. Available

https:// www. sjcog. org/ DocumentCenter/ View/ 769/ SJMSCP- Compensation- Map--- Lathrop. Accessed August 23, 2023.

Page 2 of 3

736



impacts were considered. Added language appears in a strikeout and underlined format in the Final

IS/ MND. CEQA Guidelines Section 15073. S( a) requires a lead agency to recirculate a negative declaration

when the document must be substantially revised after public notice of its availability has previously

been given. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15073. S( b), a " substantial revision" includes two
situations: ( i) a new, avoidable significant effect is identified, and to reduce that effect to a level of

insignificance, mitigation measures or project revisions must be added; or( ii) the lead agency

determines that the mitigation measures or project revisions originally included in the negative

declaration will not reduce potentially significant impacts to a level of insignificance, and new mitigation

measures or project revisions are required. CEQA is clear that recirculation is not required if" new
information is added to the negative declaration which merely clarifies, amplifies, or makes insignificant

modifications to the negative declaration." ( CEQA Guidelines, § 15073. 5( c)( 4).) None of the revisions

made meet the recirculation requirements. As such, recirculation is not required.

Letter 4 states the San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department ( EHD) reviewed the Notice of

Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration and has no comments at this time.

Letter 5 provides guidance to the City regarding various permits that may be needed to protect

groundwater and surface water quality. The comment is noted and will be provided to the decision
makers for consideration.

Page 3 of 3

737



Letter 1

S JCOG, Inc.

555 East Weber Avenue • Stockton, CA 95202 • ( 209) 235-0574 Email: boyd sjcog. org

San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conserr ation£ Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP)

SJMSCP RESPONSE TO LOCAL JURISDICTION( RTLJ)
ADVISORY AGENCY NOTICE TO SJCOG, Inc.

To: Greg Gibson, City of Lathrop, Public Works Departrnent

From:     Laurel Boyd, SJCOG, Inc. Phone: ( 209) 235-0574 Email: boyd@sjcog. org

Date:      August 1, 2023

Local Jurisdiction Project Title:  Notice of Availability/ Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration/ Initial Study

for the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project

Assessor Parcel Number( s):    210- 210- 01

Local Jurisdiction Project Number:      N/ A

Total Acres to be converted from Open Space Use: Unknown

Habitat Types to be Disturbed:  Urban Habitat Land ( Mitigated Prior)

Species Impact Findings:      Findings to be determined by SJMSCP biologist.

Dear Mr. Gibson:

SJCOG, Inc. has reviewed the project referral for Notice of Availability/ Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative
Declaration/ Initial Study for the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project.  This proposed project would implement
Aquifer Storage and Recover ( ASR) technology to optimize the conjunctive use of the City' s existing supplies of treated
surface water in addition to the available groundwater to enhance delivered water quality to customers and increase the
reliability of the City' s water supply and delivery system.

The proposed project would involve the injection of treated ( potable) drinking water from the City' s South San Joaquin
Irrigation District ( SSJID) South County Water Supply Project into selected confined aquifer zones for storage and
subsequent extraction ( i. e., " recovery").

Under the ASR project, each year up to 1, 450 acre- feet ( af) of treated potable surface water would be injected into the
confined aquifer at a rate of up to two million gallons per day ( gpd).  In general, the injection period would occur from
November through April, when water demand is lowest.

The City of Lathrop is a signatory to San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan
SJMSCP). Participation in the SJMSCP satisfies requirements of both the state and federal endangered species acts,

and ensures that the impacts are mitigated below a level of significance in compliance with the California Environmental

Quality Act ( CEQA).  The LOCAL JURISDICTION retains responsibility for ensuring that the appropriate Incidental Take
Minimization Measure are properly implemented and monitored and that appropriate fees are paid in compliance with the
SJMSCP. Although participation in the SJMSCP is voluntary, Local Jurisdiction/ Lead Agencies should be aware that if
project applicants choose against participating in the SJMSCP, they will be required to provide alternative mitigation in an
amount and kind equal to that provided in the SJMSCP.

This Project is subject to the SJMSCP.  This can be up to a 30 day process and it is recommended that the project
applicant contact SJMSCP staff as early as possible. It is also recommended that the project applicant obtain an
information package. http:// wwvu. sicoa. ora

Please contact SJMSCP staff regarding completing the following steps to satisfy SJMSCP requirements:

Schedule a SJMSCP Biologist to perform a pre- construction survey prior to any ground disturbance

SJMSCP Incidental take Minimization Measures and mitigation requirement:

1.   Incidental Take Minimization Measures( ITMMs) will be issued to the project and must be signed by the project applicant prior to any
ground disturbance but no later than six( 6) months from receipt of the ITMMs. If ITMMs are not signed within six months, the applicant

738



2  5 . 1 (' OG ,   la c .

must reapply for SJMSCP Coverage. Upon receipt of signed ITMMs from project applicant, SJCOG, Inc. staff will sigu the ITMMs. This
is the effective date of the ITMMs.

2.   Under no circumstance shall ground dishubance occur without compliance and satisfaction of the ITMMs.
3.   Upon issuance of fully executed ITMMs and prior to any ground disturbance, the project applicant must:

a.   Post a bond for payment of the applicable SJMSCP fee covering the entirety of the project acreage being covered( the bond
should be valid for no longer than a 6 month period); or

b.   Pay the appropriate SJMSCP fee for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or
c.   Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fee title; or

d.   Purchase approved mitigation bank credits.

4.   Within 6 months from the effective date of the ITMMs or issuance of a building permit, whichever occurs first, the project applicant must:
a.   Pay the appropriate SJMSCP for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or
b.   Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fee title; or

c.   Purchase approved mitigaUon bank credits.

Failure to satisfy the obligations of the mitigation fee shall subject the bond to be called.

Receive your Certificate of Payment and release the required permit

It should be noted that if this project has any potential impacts to waters of the United States( pursuant to Section 404 Clean Water Act], it would require
the project to seek voluntary coverage through the unmapped process under the SJMSCP which could take up to 90 days. It may be prudent to obtain a
preliminary wetlands map from a qualified consultant. If waters of the United States are confirmed on the project site, the Corps and the Regional Water
Quality Control Board( R WQCB) would have regulatory authority over those mapped areas( pursuant to Section 404 and 401 of the Clean Water Act
respectively] and permits would be required from each of these resource agencies prior to grading the project site.

If you have any questions, please call ( 209) 235- 0574.

739



3  SJCOG ,  Inc .

S JCOG, Inc.

San Joaguin County Multi-Sj ecze, r abitat Con.cervation Open Space Plan

555 East Weber Avenue Stockton, CA 95202• ( 209) 235- 0600 • FAX ( 209) 235- 0438

SJMSCP HOLD

TO: Local Jurisdiction: Communitv Development Department, Planninq Department, Buildinp

Department, EnQineering Department, Survev Department, Transportation Department,
Other:

FROM:     Laurel Boyd, SJCOG, Inc.

C? f C} T AtJI` NCtRi SIT C ISTURBANCE

NQT 1 51J A i1111. D[ NG PERMIT

D 3 NC>T lSSUE FC R TF# S P ip.lECT"

The landowner/developer for this site has requested coverage pursuant to the San Joaquin County Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan( SJMSCP).  In accordance with that agreement, the

Applicant has agreed to:

1)     SJMSCP Incidental Take Minimization Measures and mitigation requirement:

1.   Incidental Take Minimization Measures( ITMMs) will be issued to the project and must be signed by the
project applicant prior to any ground disturbance but no later than six( 6) months from receipt of the ITMMs.
If ITMMs are not signed within six months, the applicant must reapply for SJMSCP Coverage. Upon receipt

of signed ITMMs from project applicant, SJCOG, Inc. staff will sign the ITMMs. This is the effective date
of the ITMMs.

2.  Under no circumstance shall ground disturbance occur without compliance and satisfaction of the ITMMs.
3.  Upon issuance of fully executed ITMMs and prior to any ground disturbance, the project applicant must:

a.  Post a bond for payment of tbe applicable SJMSCP fee covering the entirety of the project acreage

being covered( the bond sbould be valid for no longer than a 6 month period); or
b.  Pay the appropriate SJMSCP fee for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or
c.  Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fee title; or

d.  Purchase approved mitigation bank credits.

4.  Within 6 months from the effective date of the ITMMs or issuance of a building permit, whichever occurs
first, the project applicant must:

a.  Pay the appropriate SJMSCP for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or
b.  Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fee title; or

c.  Purchase approved mitigation bank credits.

Failure to satisfy the obligations of the mitigarion fee shall subject the bond to be called.

Project Title: Lathroq Aquifer Storape& Recovery Proiect

Assessor Parcel# s: 210- 210- 01

T R Section( s):

Local Jurisdiction Contact: Grea Gibson

The LOCAL JURISDICTION retains responsibility for ensuring that the appropriate
Incidental Take Minimization Measures are properly implemented and monitored and that
appropriate fees are paid in compliance with the SJMSCP.

740



Letter 2

I    I    Christina Erwin < cervvin@denovoplanning. com>

FW: [** EXTERNAL**] RE: Notice of Availability/Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated
Negative Declaration/ Initial Study for the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery
Project
1 message

Gregory Gibson < ggibson@ci. lathrop. ca. us>   Thu, Aug 3, 2023 at 11: 56 AM
To: Christina Erwin < cerwin@denovoplanning. com>

Here is the initial response letter from PG& E.

G reg

From: Monica Garcia< mgarcia@ci. lathrop. ca. us>
Sent: Thursday, August 3, 2023 10: 28 AM
To: Gregory Gibson < ggibson@ci. lathrop. ca. us>
Subject: FW: [*" EXTERNAL**] RE: Notice of Availability/ Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration/ Initial
Study for the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project

From: PGE Plan Review< PGEPIanReview@pge. com>

Sent: Thursday, August 3, 2023 10: 27 AM
To: Monica Garcia< mgarcia@ci. lathrop. ca. us>
Subject: ["* EXTERNAL**] RE: Notice ofAvailability/ Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration/ Initial Study
for the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project

Classification: Public

Dear Monica Garcia,

Thank you for submitting the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project plans. The PG& E Plan Review
Team is currently reviewing the information provided.  Should this project have the potential to interfere
with PG& E' s facilities, we intend to respond to you with project specific comments. Attached is some
general information when working near PG& E facilities that must be adhered to when working near PG& E' s
facilities and land rights.

741



This email and attachment does not constitute PG& E' s consent to use any portion of PG& E' s land rights for
any purpose not previously conveyed. If there are subsequent modifications made to your design, we ask
that you resubmit the plans to the email address listed below.

If you have any questions regarding our response, please contact the PG& E Plan Review Team at
pgeplanreview( a pge. com.

Thank you,

k:':

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Plan Review Team

Email: pgeplanreview@pge. com

From: Monica Garcia< mgarcia@ci. lathrop. ca. us>
Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 1: 55 PM
Cc: Gregory Gibson < ggibson@ci. lathrop. ca. us>
Subject: RE: Notice of Availability/ Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration/ Initial Study for the Lathrop
Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project

r.'  —-
z,,     ,     :  """ 

7"Ei#` 1,;„, E,.,,# l i           `
A;

s

4'}

r+F" 1    xeTr Pt F,* r"  ,  F

a
4

k"' V B'
C       4      A

ti

t:

Good Afternoon,

The IS/ MND is now available on the City of Lathrop' s Website.

City of Lathrop- ASR- IS/ MND

Thank You,

Monica Garcia

Administrative Assistant I

742



City of Lathrop  Public Works Department

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop CA 95330

MAIN: 209. 941. 7430  DIRECT: 209. 941. 7423

www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ publicworks

From: Monica Garcia

Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 3: 51 PM
Subject: Notice of Availability/ Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration/ Initial Study for the Lathrop
Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project

Hello,

Please see attached Notice of Availability/ Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative
Declaration/ Initial Study for the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project.

Thank You,

Monica Garcia

Administrative Assistant I

City of Lathrop  Public Works Department

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop CA 95330

MAIN: 209. 941. 7430  DIRECT: 209. 941. 7423

www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ publicworks

rY , . `

743



You can read about PG& E' s data privacy practices here or at PGE. com/ privacy.

Initial_ Response_ Letter_ 8- 3- 2023. pdf
260K

744



Pacific Gas and
Plan Review Tedm PGEPIanReview@pge com

Land Management

Electric Company`

August 3, 2023

Monica Garcia

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop, CA 95330

Ref:  Gas and Electric Transmission and Distribution

Dear Monica Garcia,

Thank you for submitting the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project plans for our
review. PG& E will review the submitted plans in relationship to any existing Gas and Electric
facilities within the project area.  If the proposed project is adjacent/ or within PG& E owned
property and/ or easements, we will be working with you to ensure compatible uses and activities
near our facilities.

Attached you will find information and requirements as it relates to Gas facilities ( Attachment 1)
and Electric facilities ( Attachment 2).  Please review these in detail, as it is critical to ensure

your safety and to protect PG& E' s facilities and its existing rights.

Below is additional information for your review:

1.  This plan review process does not replace the application process for PG& E gas or
electric service your project may require.  For these requests, please continue to work
with PG& E Service Planning:  https:// www. pqe. com/ en US/ business/ services/ buildinq-
and- renovation/ overview/overview. paqe.

2.  If the project being submitted is part of a larger project, please include the entire scope
of your project, and not just a portion of it.  PG& E' s facilities are to be incorporated within
any CEQA document. PG& E needs to verify that the CEQA document will identify any
required future PG& E services.

3.  An engineering deposit may be required to review plans for a project depending on the
size, scope, and location of the project and as it relates to any rearrangement or new
installation of PG& E facilities.

Any proposed uses within the PG& E fee strip and/ or easement, may include a California Public
Utility Commission ( CPUC) Section 851 filing. This requires the CPUC to render approval for a
conveyance of rights for specific uses on PG& E' s fee strip or easement. PG& E will advise if the
necessity to incorporate a CPUC Section 851filing is required.

This letter does not constitute PG& E' s consent to use any portion of its easement for any
purpose not previously conveyed.  PG& E will provide a project specific response as required.

Sincerely,

Plan Review Team

Land Management

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 1

Public
745



Pacific Gas and

Electric Company`

Attachment 1 — Gas Facilities

There could be gas transmission pipelines in this area which would be considered critical
facilities for PG& E and a high priority subsurface installation under California law. Care must be
taken to ensure safety and accessibility. So, please ensure that if PG& E approves work near
gas transmission pipelines it is done in adherence with the below stipulations. Additionally, the
following link provides additional information regarding legal requirements under California
excavation laws:  https:// www. usanorth811. orq/ imaqes/ pdfs/ CA- LAW- 2018. pdf

1.       Standby Inspection: A PG& E Gas Transmission Standby Inspector must be present
during any demolition or construction activity that comes within 10 feet of the gas pipeline. This
includes all grading, trenching, substructure depth verifications ( potholes), asphalt or concrete

demolition/ removal, removal of trees, signs, light poles, etc. This inspection can be coordinated
through the Underground Service Alert ( USA) service at 811. A minimum notice of 48 hours is

required. Ensure the USA markings and notifications are maintained throughout the duration of

your work.

2.       Access: At any time, PG& E may need to access, excavate, and perform work on the gas
pipeline. Any construction equipment, materials, or spoils may need to be removed upon notice.
Any temporary construction fencing installed within PG& E' s easement would also need to be
capable of being removed at any time upon notice. Any plans to cut temporary slopes
exceeding a 1: 4 grade within 10 feet of a gas transmission pipeline need to be approved by
PG& E Pipeline Services in writing PRIOR to performing the work.

3.       Wheel Loads: To prevent damage to the buried gas pipeline, there are weight limits that
must be enforced whenever any equipment gets within 10 feet of traversing the pipe.

Ensure a list of the axle weights of all equipment being used is available for PG& E' s Standby
Inspector. To confirm the depth of cover, the pipeline may need to be potholed by hand in a few
areas.

Due to the complex variability of tracked equipment, vibratory compaction equipment, and
cranes, PG8 E must evaluate those items on a case-by- case basis prior to use over the gas
pipeline ( provide a list of any proposed equipment of this type noting model numbers and
specific attachments).

No equipment may be set up over the gas pipeline while operating. Ensure crane outriggers are
at least 10 feet from the centerline of the gas pipeline. Transport trucks must not be parked over
the gas pipeline while being loaded or unloaded.

4.       Grading: PG& E requires a minimum of 36 inches of cover over gas pipelines ( or existing
grade if less) and a maximum of 7 feet of cover at all locations. The graded surface cannot
exceed a cross slope of 1: 4.

5.       Excavating: Any digging within 2 feet of a gas pipeline must be dug by hand. Note that
while the minimum clearance is only 24 inches, any excavation work within 24 inches of the
edge of a pipeline must be done with hand tools. So to avoid having to dig a trench entirely with
hand tools, the edge of the trench must be over 24 inches away. ( Doing the math for a 24 inch

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 2

Public
746



Pacific Gas and

Electric Company'

wide trench being dug along a 36 inch pipeline, the centerline of the trench would need to be at
least 54 inches [ 24/ 2 + 24 + 36/ 2 = 54] away, or be entirely dug by hand.)

Water jetting to assist vacuum excavating must be limited to 1000 psig and directed at a 40°
angle to the pipe. All pile driving must be kept a minimum of 3 feet away.

Any plans to expose and support a PG& E gas transmission pipeline across an open excavation
need to be approved by PG& E Pipeline Services in writing PRIOR to performing the work.

6.       Boring/ Trenchless Installations: PG& E Pipeline Services must review and approve all
plans to bore across or parallel to (within 10 feet) a gas transmission pipeline. There are
stringent criteria to pothole the gas transmission facility at regular intervals for all parallel bore
installations.

For bore paths that cross gas transmission pipelines perpendicularly, the pipeline must be
potholed a minimum of 2 feet in the horizontal direction of the bore path and a minimum of 24
inches in the vertical direction from the bottom of the pipe with minimum clearances measured
from the edge of the pipe in both directions. Standby personnel must watch the locator trace
and every ream pass) the path of the bore as it approaches the pipeline and visually monitor

the pothole (with the exposed transmission pipe) as the bore traverses the pipeline to ensure
adequate clearance with the pipeline. The pothole width must account for the inaccuracy of the
locating equipment.

7.       Substructures: All utility crossings of a gas pipeline should be made as close to
perpendicular as feasible ( 90° +/- 15°). All utility lines crossing the gas pipeline must have a
minimum of 24 inches of separation from the gas pipeline. Parallel utilities, pole bases, water
line ` kicker blocks', storm drain inlets, water meters, valves, back pressure devices or other
utility substructures are not allowed in the PG& E gas pipeline easement.

If previously retired PG& E facilities are in conflict with proposed substructures, PG& E must
verify they are safe prior to removal. This includes verification testing of the contents of the
facilities, as well as environmental testing of the coating and internal surfaces.  Timelines for
PG& E completion of this verification will vary depending on the type and location of facilities in
conflict.

8.       Structures: No structures are to be built within the PG8 E gas pipeline easement. This
includes buildings, retaining walls, fences, decks, patios, carports, septic tanks, storage sheds,
tanks, loading ramps, or any structure that could limit PG& E' s ability to access its facilities.

9.       Fencing: Permanent fencing is not allowed within PG& E easements except for
perpendicular crossings which must include a 16 foot wide gate for vehicular access. Gates will
be secured with PG& E corporation locks.

10.      Landscaping:  Landscaping must be designed to allow PG& E to access the pipeline for
maintenance and not interfere with pipeline coatings or other cathodic protection systems. No
trees, shrubs, brush, vines, and other vegetation may be planted within the easement area.
Only those plants, ground covers, grasses, flowers, and low- growing plants that grow
unsupported to a maximum of four feet( 4') in height at maturity may be planted within the
easement area.

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 3

Public
747



Pacific Gas and

Electric Company`

11.      Cathodic Protection: PG& E pipelines are protected from corrosion with an " Impressed
CurrenY' cathodic protection system. Any proposed facilities, such as metal conduit, pipes,
service lines, ground rods, anodes, wires, etc. that might affect the pipeline cathodic protection
system must be reviewed and approved by PG& E Corrosion Engineering.

12.      Pipeline Marker Signs: PG& E needs to maintain pipeline marker signs for gas
transmission pipelines in order to ensure public awareness of the presence of the pipelines.
With prior written approval from PGBE Pipeline Services, an existing PG& E pipeline marker sign
that is in direct conflict with proposed developments may be temporarily relocated to
accommodate construction work. The pipeline marker must be moved back once construction is
complete.

13.      PG& E is also the provider of distribution facilities throughout many of the areas within
the state of California. Therefore, any plans that impact PG& E' s facilities must be reviewed and
approved by PG& E to ensure that no impact occurs which may endanger the safe operation of
its facilities.

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 4

Public
748



Pacific as and

Electric Company

Attachment 2— Electric Facilities

It is PG& E' s policy to permit certain uses on a case by case basis within its electric
transmission fee strip( s) and/ or easement( s) provided such uses and manner in which they are
exercised, will not interFere with PG& E' s rights or endanger its facilities. Some

examples/ restrictions are as follows:

1. Buildings and Other Structures: No buildings or other structures including the foot print and
eave of any buildings, swimming pools, wells or similar structures will be permitted within fee
strip(s) and/ or easement( s) areas. PG& E' s transmission easement shall be designated on
subdivision/ parcel maps as " RESTRICTED USE AREA— NO BUILDING."

2. Grading: Cuts, trenches or excavations may not be made within 25 feet of our towers.
Developers must submit grading plans and site development plans ( including geotechnical
reports if applicable), signed and dated, for PG8 E' s review. PG& E engineers must review grade
changes in the vicinity of our towers. No fills will be allowed which would impair ground-to-
conductor clearances. Towers shall not be left on mounds without adequate road access to

base of tower or structure.

3. Fences: Walls, fences, and other structures must be installed at locations that do not affect

the safe operation of PG&' s facilities.  Heavy equipment access to our facilities must be
maintained at all times. Metal fences are to be grounded to PG& E specifications. No wall, fence
or other like structure is to be installed within 10 feet of tower footings and unrestricted access

must be maintained from a tower structure to the nearest street. Walls, fences and other

structures proposed along or within the fee strip( s) and/ or easement( s) will require PG& E
review; submit plans to PG& E Centralized Review Team for review and comment.

4. Landscaping: Vegetation may be allowed; subject to review of plans. On overhead electric
transmission fee strip(s) and/ or easement(s), trees and shrubs are limited to those varieties that
do not exceed 10 feet in height at maturity. PG& E must have access to its facilities at all times,
including access by heavy equipment. No planting is to occur within the footprint of the tower
legs. Greenbelts are encouraged.

5. Reservoirs, Sumps, Drainage Basins, and Ponds: Prohibited within PG& E' s fee strip( s)
and/ or easement( s) for electric transmission lines.

6. Automobile Parking: Short term parking of movable passenger vehicles and light trucks
pickups, vans, etc.) is allowed. The lighting within these parking areas will need to be reviewed

by PG& E; approval will be on a case by case basis. Heavy equipment access to PG& E facilities
is to be maintained at all times. Parking is to clear PG& E structures by at least 10 feet.
Protection of PG& E facilities from vehicular traffic is to be provided at developer' s expense AND
to PG& E specifications. Blocked- up vehicles are not allowed. Carports, canopies, or awnings
are not allowed.

7. Storage of Flammable, Explosive or Corrosive Materials: There shall be no storage of fuel or

combustibles and no fueling of vehicles within PG& E' s easement. No trash bins or incinerators
are allowed.

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 5

Public

749



Pacific Gas and

Electric Gompany"

8. Streets and Roads: Access to facilities must be maintained at all times. Street lights may be
allowed in the fee strip(s) and/ or easement( s) but in all cases must be reviewed by PG& E for
proper clearance. Roads and utilities should cross the transmission easement as nearly at right
angles as possible. Road intersections will not be allowed within the transmission easement.

9. Pipelines: Pipelines may be allowed provided crossings are held to a minimum and to be as
nearly perpendicular as possible. Pipelines within 25 feet of PG& E structures require review by
PG& E. Sprinklers systems may be allowed; subject to review. Leach fields and septic tanks are
not allowed. Construction plans must be submitted to PG& E for review and approval prior to the
commencement of any construction.

10. Signs: Signs are not allowed except in rare cases subject to individual review by PG& E.

11. Recreation Areas: Playgrounds, parks, tennis courts, basketball courts, barbecue and light
trucks ( pickups, vans, etc.) may be allowed; subject to review of plans. Heavy equipment
access to PG& E facilities is to be maintained at all times. Parking is to clear PG& E structures by
at least 10 feet. Protection of PG& E facilities from vehicular traffic is to be provided at
developer' s expense AND to PG& E specifications.

12. Construction Activity: Since construction activity will take place near PG& E' s overhead
electric lines, please be advised it is the contractor' s responsibility to be aware of, and observe
the minimum clearances for both workers and equipment operating near high voltage electric
lines set out in the High- Voltage Electrical Safety Orders of the California Division of Industrial
Safety ( https:// www. dir.ca. gov/ Title8/ sb5 2.g html), as well as any other safety regulations.
Contractors shall comply with California Public Utilities Commission General Order 95
http: Uwww. cpuc. ca. ov/ gos/ G095/ 95 startup a e.) and all other safety rules.  No

construction may occur within 25 feet of PG& E' s towers. All excavation activities may only
commence after 811 protocols has been followed.

Contractor shall ensure the protection of PG& E' s towers and poles from vehicular damage by
installing protective barriers) Plans for protection barriers must be approved by PG& E prior to

construction.

13. PG& E is also the owner of distribution facilities throughout many of the areas within the
state of California. Therefore, any plans that impact PG8 E' s facilities must be reviewed and
approved by PG& E to ensure that no impact occurs that may endanger the safe and reliable
operation of its facilities.

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 6

Public

750



Subject: [** EXTERNAL**] ASR well and tanks - EIF form needed for permi
r 3    

7
Mansoor, Tahir@Waterboards< Tahir. Mansoor@waterboards. ca. gov> Tue, Aug 22, 3: 28 PM   .'

to Gregory Gibson

You are viewing an attached message. De Novo Planning Group Mail can' t verify the authenticity of attached
messages.

s;;

Hi Greg, our CEQA staff wants the City to complete the attached form for the new two tanks and the ASR well. We' ll      ;

need this form when the City apply for the permit for their use.      

In addition, our staff provided the following comment regarding CEQA document:
If the Ci of Lathro oin to use the current CEQA document the are circulatin for the A uifer Stora e       "tY p 9 9 Y 9 q 9

and Recovery Project for the well, they should address the construction of the well in the document, not just     
it' s use."    

Thanks,      

Tahir
u.

From: Schmitz, Lori@Waterboards< Lori. Schmit2@waterboards. ca. gov> x.

Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 5: 07 PM

To: Mansoor, Tahir@Waterboards< Tahir. Mansoor@waterboards. ca. gov>

Cc: Pierce, Wendy@Waterboards< Wendv.Pierce@Waterboards. ca. gov>

Subject: RE: City of Lathrop, Lathrop Aquifer Storage& Recovery Project, Infrastructure Permitting Questions
y
E,', s,:-..

Tahir,

p :

I am attaching the Google Screen shot from the document and designs from the document( pdf above).
I don' t know why there are two tanks on the Google Screen Shot already and they stated two tanks are being built,

Y

since there is only 3 tanks on the design.
t ,

Could you please follow up with the City to find out what they are building and if they have a CEQA document to cover    ;
it?     

If they are building tanks that are not yet permitted, please have them fill out the EIF form attached for the two ( or one    ,.

tank) they are building.

If they are going to be developing a well separately in the future they should also fill out an EIF form for that, when

they have their document available.

If they are going to use the current CEQA document they are circulating for the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project

for the well, they should address the construction of the well in the document, not just iYs use.

Please let us know what you find out.

Thanks!

Lori Schmitz

751



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

WATER SUPPLY PERM/ T ENV/RONMENTAL / NTAKE FORM ( E/F)

Instructions: All water supply permit applicants are required to fill out this EIF and attach the specified
attachments.

Fill out Part I and attach the documents detailed under Part I question 10 if there is a completed CEQA
or NEPA environmental document that has been circulated at the State Glearinghouse ( SCH) or if a

Notice of Exemption ( NOE) was filed at the SCH or at the county clerk.

If there is no environmental document or filed NOE, fill out Part I and Part II and attach the required

documentation detailed in Part II A. Applicants that fill out Part II are required to certify the document by
signing it.

I.   PART 1 GENERAL WATER SYSTEM AND PROJECT INFORMATION

1. Water system name:

2. Water system number:

3. Is Water System a   Public agency or  Private entity?

4. Water system contact person for this project:
Phone Number:      Email:

5. Project Name:

6. Has the project already been constructed?  yes    no

7. If no, what is the estimated start date for construction?

8. Is there an Environmental Document prepared for the Project? [ i. e. Environmental Impact Report,

Negative Declaration, Mitigated Negative Declaration, or NEPA documents ( Environmental Impact

Study, Environmental Assessment, FONSI, Categorical Exclusion)]  yes  no. If yes, what type?

9. Is there a Notice of Exemption or Categorical Exclusion for the project?  yes  no

10. Required Attachments for submittal to DDW:

If question 8 is answered ` yes', Submit Part I and following attachments to DDW.
Attachment 1 All environmental documentation ( i. e. draft and final Negative Declaration,

Mitigated Negative Declaration, or Environmental Impact Report, Mitigation Monitoring

and Reporting Program if applicable, Resolution from lead agency adopting
the CEQA document and approving the project, and Notice of Determination)

Attachment 2 Project design plans

If question 9 is answered ` yes', Submit Part I and following attachments to DDW.

Attachment 1 Notice of Exemption stamped by county clerk or proof of posting on OPR
Attachment 2 Project design plans

Attachment 3 Map of project site ( overview of plan on aerial background)

If questions 8 and 9 are both answered ` no', fill out Part 2.

1  I' a  e

r e  i , c d I I  3  :' 0  ( 1

752



II.  PART 2 FOR NO ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT AND PRIVATE ENTITIES
Part 2 is for private entities with no environmental document, public agency exempt projects that did

not file a NOE, or public agency project with no discretionary approvals required)

Section A. Required Attachments

Attachment 1 Project design plans ( minimum 30% design)

Attachment 2 Map of project site ( overview of project elements on aerial background

preferred)

Attachment 3 Overview photos of Project Site ( If no Google street view available)
Attachment 4 Geotechnical report, if available

Section B. Agency Approvals and Permits ( for private entities)

List and describe all project- related permits and any other governmental approvals required for this

project, including those required by a city, county, regional or special district, or the state (e. g.

encroachment permit, conditional use permit, rezoning, variance, etc.)
Permit/ A roval enc De artmen Phone numbe Email

Permit/ A roval enc De artmen Phone numbe Email

Permit/ A roval enc De artmen Phone numbe Email

Which public agency do you expect will be the first to permit the project? List the permitting agencies in

chronological order: 0
Is there any federally owned land within the project footprint?  yes    no,

If yes what federal agency is the landowner?

Is this project part of a larger project or series of projects?  yes    no   unknown

Section C. Project Description for CEQA Review

Provide a thorough project description ( PD) that is detailed enough for CEQA review. This can be done

using one of the three following methods. Note method used by checking the appropriate box:

Use the following questions as prompts to write a detailed PD and attach the description to the
EIF or fill in PD box under C. 1 ( preferred), 

Use as a form and fill in the information that pertains to the project,  or

Attach an Engineering Report with the preferred project described and fill in the form fields that
address details not discussed in the engineering report. 

C. 1 General Project Information

Project Name:

Project Address/ location ( give nearest cross streets if no address):

City:      County: Zip:     APN No.:

Describe the location of the project. If there are project elements at different locations, describe all
locations:

Are the new project components on land owned by the water system?  yes    no

Provide the total size of the area to be impacted by construction ( ft2 or acres). Be sure to include new

access roads, service lines, and staging areas:
Provide a written description of the prolect:

2  Pa  r

re  ised I 1 ; 2  ' 0 -> 0

753



Is the project within an existing facility?  yes    no  partially within

Does the project involve a replacement in the same footprint with a similar capacity?   yes    no

Does the project involve new construction that is not within an existing facility, or replacing or repairing

existing infrastructure?  yes    no

C. 2 Water Tank( s)

Does the project include constructing a water tank( s)?  yes    no. ( If no, do not fill out this section).

Number of tanks:

Volume of tank( s) in gallons:
Tank( s) dimensions:

Is it a replacement tank?   yes    no

If yes, list the capacity of the old tank( s):
Will the old tank( s) be destroyed as part of this project?   yes    no

If the new tank capacity is greater than 10% of the old tank' s capacity, but is for fire flow, please provide
the breakout of water usage:

Drinking Water( Gallons):
Fire Flow ( Gallons):

Will there be a discharge basin?  yes   no. If yes, what are the basin dimensions ( LxWxD)
Will the basin be lined   or unlined ?

C. 3 Well( s)

Does the project include a new well( s)?  yes    no. ( If no, do not fill out this section).

Number of new wells:

What is the expected capacity of the new well( s)?

Has the new well( s) already been drilled?  yes    no

Is the new well replacing an old well?  yes    no

If yes, what is the capacity of the old well:
Will the old well be converted to a different use? ( e. g. monitoring well, standby well, irrigation)?  yes

no

Will the old well be destroyed/ sealed?  yes    no

If no, what will be done with the old well?

Where is the old well located?

Will a new pump( s) be installed? If yes, is it electric  or diesel ?

Will the new pump will be submersible  or outside the well ?:

If outside the well, give the dimensions of the concrete pad:
Will there be a well house building? If yes, give dimensions:

Will there be a discharge basin? If yes, what are the basin dimensions ( LxWxD)?

C.4 Treatment System( s)

Does the project involve constructing a new  or modifying an existing  treatment system? ( If not,

do not fill out this section).

What kind of treatment system?

Will it be in a new building  , in an existing building  , or outside  ?

If in a new building, what are the dimensions of the building?

3  I t : e

i i   -  .> o :> ti

754



If outside, what are the pad dimensions?
What type of treatment media will be used?

What chemicals will be used?

Will the treatment media need to be removed occasionally?  yes  no

Will the media be taken to a hazardous waste treatmenUdisposal site?  yes  no

How is the spent media disposed?

Will the tanks be backwashed? If yes, describe

C. 5 Piping

Will the project require pipelines to connect new facilities to the existing system or expand the service
area?  yes  no ( If no, do not fill out this section).

Will the new equipment be connected to the existing system on- site?  yes  no

If the connection to the system is not on- site, how many linear feet or miles of pipe is needed?

C. 6 Appurtenant Features

Will the project include appurtenant features not discussed above ( lighting, fence, transformers, etc.)?

yes    no.  ( If no, do not fill out this section).

If yes, describe
Will new electrical components be installed in the ground? If yes, what are the pad dimensions?

Will trenching for electrical be needed? If yes, how many linear feet of trenching?
Will new fencing be installed?  yes    no

What type of fencing?

The height of the fencing?

C. 7. Additional comments

Section D. Environmental Setting

Describe the topography and geology of the region ( or attach a geotechnical report):
Elevation range

Describe current land use at the project site:

What are the vegetation types? ( check all that apply)
On Project Site Surrounding Area

Urbanized

Landscaped

Ruderal ( Weedy) 
Grassland

Shrub/ Chaparral

Oak Woodland

Woodland ( other)

Forest

Riparian/ Streamside

Wetland, vernal pools

4  Pa  c

i e  i s e i 1 I    ' ? i) :> ( l

755



If there are rivers, streams, or wetlands at or near the project site, list and state whether the fiow is

permanent, intermittent, or ephemeral.
Does the site have any land within coastal zone jurisdiction?  yes  no  unknown

Are there protected status wildlife or plant species within or near the Project?  yes  no 

unknown

Environmental Impacts

To the best of your abilify, check any of the following impacts that might result from the project.
Discuss below all items checked ` yes"( attach additional sheets as necessary).

Will the Project:

Yes No

1.            Remove mature native trees: #      species/ type

2.            Clear or trim native vegetation

3.            Interfere with use of recreational facilities

4.            Alter existing drainage patterns

5.            Be located in a floodplain

6.            Change scenic views or vistas from residential areas, public lands, or roads

7.            Produce significant amounts of solid waste or litter

8.            Increase dust, ash, smoke, fumes, or odors in the vicinity

9.            Substantially change noise or vibration levels in the vicinity ( beyond the

property line)
10.           Be located on or near a seismic fault

11.           Substantially increase fuel consumption
12.           Impact wetlands

13.           Convert farmland to non- farm use

Describe any known potentially significant environmental effects that may result if the project is
implemented ( attach additional sheets as necessary):

Certification

I hereby certify that the statements furnished in Part II and in the attached exhibits present the data and

information required for this initial evaluation to the best of my ability, and that the facts, statements,

and information presented are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature of Applicant:   Date:

Name:    Title:

S  Pa . c

r :  i  c i I I   '.   0 ? O

756



Letter 4

Sa N  QQ N Environmental Health Department

C O U N T Y Jasjit Kang, REHS, Director
Muniappa Naidu, REHS, Assiatant Director

i, r r ,;  E,, ti,;  • .  .

PRO( 3RAM COORDINATORS

Jeff Carruesco, REHS, RDI

Wiliy Ng, REHS
Steven Shih, REHS

Elena Manzo, REHS

Natalia Subbotnikova, REHS

August 24, 2023

To:   City of Lathrop Community Department of Public Works
Attention: Greg Gibson

From:       Aldara Salinas ( 209) 616- 3019

Environmental Health Specialist

RE:  Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project, Referral, SU0015756
Notice of Availability/ Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration/ Initial
Study for the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project

The San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department ( EHD) has reviewed the Notice of
Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration and has no comments at this time.

1868 E. Hazelton Avenue  Stockton, California 95205  T 209 468- 3420  F 209 464- 0138  www. sjgov. org/ ehd757



Letter 5
GAVIN NEWSOM
CnVFHNnH

C t1Io11M• 
YANA GARCIA

Water Boards
SEI: RETARY FUR

ENVIRONMEN? AL f` RUTECTION

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

1 September 2023

Gregory Gibson
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Center Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
ggibson@ci.lathrop.ca.us

COMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE

DECLARATION, LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT,

SCH# 2023080053, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

Pursuant to the State Clearinghouse' s 2 August 2023 request, the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Central Valley Water Board) has reviewed the
Request for Review for the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Lathrop Aquifer
Storage and Recovery Project, located in San Joaquin County.

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quality of surface and
groundwaters of the state; therefore our comments will address concerns surrounding
those issues.

1.   Regulatory Setting

Basin Plan

The Central Valley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for
all areas within the Central Valley region under Section 13240 of the Porter-Cologne
Water Quality Control Act.  Each Basin Plan must contain water quality objectives to
ensure the reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as well as a program of
implementation for achieving water quality objectives with the Basin Plans.  Federal

regulations require each state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public
health or welfare, enhance the quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean
Water Act.  In California, the beneficial uses, water quality objectives, and the
Antidegradation Policy are the State' s water quality standards.  Water quality
standards are also contained in the National Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131. 36,

and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131. 38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws,
policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin
Plans were adopted in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as
required, using Basin Plan amendments.  Once the Central Valley Water Board has
adopted a Basin Plan amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by
the State Water Resources Control Board ( State Water Board), Office of

MARK BRADFORD, CHAIR I PA7RICK PULUPA, ESQ., EXECU7IVE OFFICER

11020 Sun Center Drive# 200, Rancho Cordova, CA 95870   www. waterboards. ca. gov/ centralvalley

758



Lathrop Aquifer Storage 2 -  1 September 2023

and Recovery Project
San Joaquin County

Administrative Law ( OAL) and in some cases, the United States Environmental

Protection Agency ( USEPA).  Basin Plan amendments only become effective after
they have been approved by the OAL and in some cases, the USEPA.  Every three
3) years, a review of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the appropriateness

of existing standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Planning issues.  For more

information on the Water Quality Control Plan for the Sacramento and San Joaquin
River Basins, please visit our website:
http:// www. waterboards. ca. qov/ centralvallev/ water issues/ basin plans/

Antideqradation Considerations

All wastewater discharges must comply with the Antidegradation Policy ( State Water
Board Resolution 68- 16) and the Antidegradation Implementation Policy contained in
the Basin Plan.  The Antidegradation Implementation Policy is available on page 74
at:

https:// www. waterboards. ca. qov/ centralvallev/ water issues/ basin plans/ sacsir 2018

05. pdf

In part it states:

Any discharge of waste to high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment
or control not only to prevent a condition of pollution or nuisance from occurring, but
also to maintain the highest water quality possible consistent with the maximum
benefit to the people of the State.

This information must be presented as an analysis of the impacts and potential
impacts of the discharge on water quality, as measured by background
concentrations and applicable water quality objectives.

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements

WDRs) permitting processes.  The environmental review document should evaluate

potential impacts to both surface and groundwater quality.

II.  Permitting Requirements

Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit

If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters
or wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be
needed from the United States Army Corps of Engineers ( USACE).  If a Section 404

permit is required by the USACE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the
permit application to ensure that discharge will not violate water quality standards.  If

the project requires surface water drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to
contact the Department of Fish and Game for information on Streambed Alteration

Permit requirements.  If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act
Section 404 permits, please contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento
District of USACE at ( 916) 557- 5250.

Clean Water Act Section 401 Permit— Water Qualitv Certification
If an USACE permit (e. g., Non- Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit,
Letter of Permission, Individual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic

759



Lathrop Aquifer Storage 3 -  1 September 2023

and Recovery Project
San Joaquin County

General Permit), or any other federal permit ( e. g., Section 10 of the Rivers and

Harbors Act or Section 9 from the United States Coast Guard), is required for this

project due to the disturbance of waters of the United States ( such as streams and
wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central
Valley Water Board prior to initiation of project activities.  There are no waivers for
401 Water Quality Certifications.  For more information on the Water Quality
Certification, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
https:// www.waterboards. ca. qov/centralvallev/ water issues/ water qualitvi certificatio
n/

Waste Discharqe Requirements — Discharqes to Waters of the State

If USACE determines that only non- jurisdictional waters of the State ( i. e., " non-

federal" waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed
project may require a Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) permit to be issued by
Central Valley Water Board.  Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act, discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other
waters of the State including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to
State regulation.   For more information on the Waste Discharges to Surface Water

NPDES Program and WDR processes, visit the Central Valley Water Board website
at: https:// www.waterboards. ca. qov/centralvallev/water issues/waste to surface wat
er/

Projects involving excavation or fill activities impacting less than 0.2 acre or 400
linear feet of non- jurisdictional waters of the state and projects involving dredging
activities impacting less than 50 cubic yards of non- jurisdictional waters of the state
may be eligible for coverage under the State Water Resources Control Board Water
Quality Order No. 2004- 0004- DWQ ( General Order 2004- 0004).  For more

information on the General Order 2004- 0004, visit the State Water Resources

Control Board website at:

https:// www. waterboards. ca. qov/ board decisions/ adopted orders/ water qualitv/ 200

4/wqo/wqo2004- 0004. pdf

Dewaterinq Permit

If the proposed project includes construction or groundwater dewatering to be
discharged to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board
General Water Quality Order ( Low Threat General Order) 2003- 0003 or the Central
Valley Water Board' s Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge
Requirements ( Low Threat Waiver) R5- 2018- 0085.  Small temporary construction
dewatering projects are projects that discharge groundwater to land from excavation
activities or dewatering of underground utility vaults.  Dischargers seeking coverage
under the General Order or Waiver must file a Notice of Intent with the Central

Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge.

For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application
process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http:// www.waterboards. ca. qov/board decisions/ adopted orders/water qualitv/2003/
wqo/ wqo2003- 0003. pdf

760



Lathrop Aquifer Storage 4 -  1 September 2023

and Recovery Project
San Joaquin County

For more information regarding the Low Threat Waiver and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
https:// www.waterboards. ca. qov/ centralvallev/ board decisions/ adopted orders/ waiv

ers/ r5- 2018- 0085. pdf

Limited Threat General NPDES Permit

If the proposed project includes construction dewatering and it is necessary to
discharge the groundwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project will
require coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES)

permit.  Dewatering discharges are typically considered a low or limited threat to
water quality and may be covered under the General Order for Limited Threat
Discharges to Surface Water( Limited Threat General Order).  A complete Notice of

Intent must be submitted to the Central Valley Water Board to obtain coverage under
the Limited Threat General Order.  For more information regarding the Limited
Threat General Order and the application process, visit the Central Valley Water
Board website at:

https:// www. waterboards. ca. qov/ centralvallev/ board decisions/ adopted orders/ qene

ral orders/ r5- 2016- 0076- 01. pdf

NPDES Permit

If the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of surface
waters of the State, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project
will require coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

NPDES) permit. A complete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the
Central Valley Water Board to obtain a NPDES Permit.  For more information

regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the Central Valley
Water Board website at: https:// www.waterboards. ca. qov/ centralvallev/ help/ permit/

If you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at ( 916) 464- 4684
or Peter. Minkel2@waterboards. ca. gov.

2ta. i: i

Peter Minkel

Engineering Geologist

cc:      State Clearinghouse unit, Governor's Office of Planning and Research,
Sacramento

761



ATTACHMENi

LATHROP AQUIFER AND STORAGE RECOVERY PROJECT

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

INTRODUCTION

Section 15097 of the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Guidelines requires public
agencies to establish monitoring or reporting programs for projects approved by a public agency
whenever approval involves the adoption of either a " mitigated negative declaration" or specified

environmental findings related to environmental impact reports.

The following is the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ( MMRP) for the Lathrop Aquifer
Storage and Recovery project. The intent of the MMRP is to prescribe and enforce a means for
properly and successfully implementing the mitigation measures identified within the Initial
Study/ Mitigated Declaration ( IS/ MND) for this project.

MITIGATION MEASURES

The mitigation measures are taken from the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery IS/ MND and are
assigned the same number as in the IS/ MND. The MMRP describes the actions that must take place
to implement each mitigation measure, the timing of those actions, and the entities responsible for
implementing and monitoring the actions.

MMRP COMPONENTS

The components of the attached table, which contains applicable mitigation measures, are addressed

briefly, below.

Impact: This column summarizes the impact stated in the IS/ MND.

Mitigation Measure: All mitigation measures that were identified in the Lathrop Aquifer Storage
and Recovery IS/ MND are presented and numbered accordingly.

Action( s): For every mitigation measure, one or more actions are described. The actions delineate

the means by which the mitigation measures will be implemented, and, in some instances, the criteria
for determining whether a measure has been successfully implemented. Where mitigation measures
are particularly detailed, the action may refer back to the measure.

Implementing Party: This item identifies the entity that will undertake the required action.

Timing: Implementation of the action must occur prior to or during some part of project approval,
project design or construction or on an ongoing basis. The timing for each measure is identified.

Monitoring Party: The City of Lathrop is primarily responsible for ensuring that mitigation
measures are successfully implemented. Within the City, a number of departments and divisions
would have responsibility for monitoring some aspect of the overall project.

City of Lathrop

762



i,  
INITIAL STUDY- LATHROP AQU[ FER STORAGE& RECOVERY PROJECT

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Lathrop

763



d
a

a

a
o
F a
r 

r

O

F. 

F V

Lc1 C fC
7

v    w

p.,      a y o
a o

C7 an

z V

O            C 
v           

E, o

C.,'      a 5 

o2i       c A "
a N >W

a o m
Z     

a
o Q

a W a

w cG t7

j L     '
z..

J C

z
a

a           
w

a

o z      a

x a a
o     °. a

a z      a

0

Y c
o z ti v y    `° 

O V L V 4:    N Q vlF'      f--'      r"' 

0 7 p O v'i W OD
Q      O v 

O i' O    a    
n C

F O i'  . y G  V p  . 
v

r     ` V L Y G y    L OJ 

Z            U V O +, C 3 N O O C tC Q +'
F,     

d C a 7 0  o o' a, v w
V B  " o`'n:   T- E   m

O 4'.. 
i °  c   a,  Z aa',
m     m a m:,  a ca 

n'     
c

v'   `'  
a,   .- o ^ v, •"

Lj.7 v 
n 00. p  O '

y .    ' O p G N N .         O aNi TJ S C 

tr7 o..=' ' O ,°'. " y'° 
u p o y v h ayi `° `°  °°   

c   a       :      > 
c, 

N
d

w          y c a. m. a m      " e a c c  o         ' C q a' L a ? °   E ° o c
G=     

y s.  a  y c c.-.  E L c a' o w `°  `° ° °'. c t4

p '  °'   v   ° i o o  " ' C
p     

i L , voC  o `° ,  8 ?' `° c  y    ° q    - a  ¢  E  ¢ " 
v,    o ,. >

v E ti u o m yc m Q 7 a y
c 

y m   m
r a' v  : a `° ` , " ° N y . c " y., y `°  A  i ° ai m ca > ° c. °,

W - o a .
c `

n 7 Y 
Lr, 7 y y  c`a ca  v G cd ia a vi y .   _ vi  a  '     p   •  y

i.. C V
i„ 

Q' v ,, >, pp' C

O u o C 
t   

V
a   

a`',  >_ V c L  c. c  '-' p y  Z, a,  `
o- c

f° 

o " 3 E  . 

F„ y   o F  a, 4, c , m X N
c   =  o s. Y G  `° V   °' ` o °' y m aoVo c c

O     cY    o N  p N p' a  u C d Cp. L  . Q 7 S  R y   
O    o o d C y y M c `o cVaC

L.  U L
Y' W Vl V y y    U TA Q  N N 

W d  N .   
fA

y  y C G U

W
F

q  `
0 t° : 9 p "e'n s G         a on.-, . '    

v;  .  
v     o ' fl '

oo ia y " " Y o`  ci

w      .'^ o c v  o o ,. a o ° u `° d ° c   c o o p   ' °'° a  ia d •-• y  ' A a' ci 
j A    H  a°, c y  ° o u   ^ o  ao y °, a. n `° '"   E m m y   a a a `° a a a'
w

OD N 7 N t6 '      
F

L. y ' C v  , b w  ' O  N 7    d
y y

N G

y CL N ¢' Y V y O V 7 L K N O O     C O u U ( C F.  N O L' O. C y N V Vl O p rl 0 vi N
s.  o a o  c. o   '  m          a,     a,  m o d d a    Y a, aa 3 m H a ¢ . u o a«. . m E . c  ' a._ 3   =  m  s  n  c w.. .-.     o

a O

a,v

F Y 7
a OU •  y

71 N daQ L
y

o _

W a  

a     °
n n

F y  d

vr"'.    ..   o
Q,'   

0   ,, > `° 
n

a    " `° `F c0 C O
QO y `^ 

a i

y O n

a p v O
F      ° 

u

a      "L f6 V 
i.'7.    

7 a 4:. v' c 
7  . 7

CJ u n a

764



a,

z
4

C i C. J A
L

iC A N
7

C O C.

F. U n a O

VI7]      C
y

o
O a

p   a w

a,   Y o

O y
fQ ir

Y
I..  v V y

O G       
ri F o,o H

c v,    m v

W C 
N G, y

W C a+ S y v°,
7

N

c c     a

o

a
a
a

y
Z v

Q

o v
a

Q 

a E 

H
a s

v

a r. a n cG

I a

t y    i
F-   v    °'   w

C/ ri m
on^^ y o

a v .
0 y > C n N i

z o
o a ,          

F C -' m v
z v o. o > vc

Q'  a v    °'«        A a"i

7   C     C 7y     3
O  N t O a p O O

G y O ~ O O y O y N
m a u 3vw  v na

N       < 6 O y      G   O Y C N Gi" d C

C   ' L' as+ y  . 
O

C ` e° o  o  ;°      0 3      $   
aai      Y o E c °' a`°, rn ro o

n  i+ v  •   . G     
i. u    b0

fn y    ' + .
n N  a p c l C C 

p;   `" a  ,''` Q ,,  y= v v E. c o o .
c m a a ì,   . a y   m' ° . o o` °'  ° a ¢

7   ° °'  v a  ` a
v, = 

v v o a  y  
c°a a'i' a o .°' ro u

c.   m  E  t y y a N  £ b ' .     .
n

y

y °y'  y ' .  o a d ,
a° n ' i.   A    r". ` n, a . t6c o

c  °, o  d .  +' o o ;;       
v, afOi aS z  ;; v, a o  , c o c  m

N
a en, ' o io o c o E _ ' d o •  L  h r,     

z
d c    a' 

L  
c°a v m- an.°°

v
c°'i        ' .-., " d 3 N v  c  ` , 4 0  °'      h

y o
m :'   

a,   c   $   
v is    c  d

e tO ;, '-' v   o " c
a E a        r<

F c  '.' ca  ° c m i v on v  @ y o c. o ti x     v Z = o '° ,•    a c v

o a  o 0 0 °' 
a 

co  o,  a °' 

y o,— a`i  .      
y [ '''..  

y y ° 
x ...      c   c

v  ' 
c

Q d v   q a, y  
E ;^ a

W,  
o     

o  m     ` c
t° 

d ° o  y, n  a  7 s  
L .°     

V   °' °    
m   `° E V

v ' m o v
N  " a E o , C a a U A L E a ti  O + _  

c o
y Y ` , 

v,  u . a `° 
p, °' ,,, c  LS d 

b
v .   o i.. 

v ,'-+ 3 , c  y    F      a, y a, 
o 0 o c: o " ... a a y m          ,.. 

Q. o
G t C o

y
v o' c C ic   , 7 n     

G   "    '- a    o ca H o `.., 
u a

m o o a c c o m    ° F- °' s c v c?, °' ti   . o      u
ci a    3 a c ai ti      n    ' y ?+ c c     c   `°  c c v     E a . c o v

E
y y''+ , a     m

u C       ^' 
a.^ ^ °' N y' m ' L' N L`       :+     C .-+    

a, v ¢ 
c 

c F v, x ¢      o+ c n,
T7 +-' .. p c .  6.,   .   tn c0 V .  C         

F    u '  i N C ^    
L. .     

G
V  tp .

o    y a", v v  ,,, m, `° 
c.'. c o `° o y +'' '°'     °° y' a °': a N 3° v .  : t  

G a N = o ;;   o .o
H

pNj a i   O ' a+ N C
p

O V) w aUi  c4+i  
O  

N     ''  C £ !' o C a6'i N ' '^
y  

iC L
0  y      y

c. a  _     o v E r. i . o  N a  a... n         a .  3     .  r. z 3 o E z 3      e c     v

a

O yO fn
V  

bD v

y C 
L1.' p 

d  N
0 V V
F c

C 
a

ti  W

u ^ "' o

p s. v
O G b
N  V+
d   "

O

V A v
y y .

y 61
V  

765



oc

a
c

z a

o
F a

z w
0

o
vW cC

p a

CG o  cw,

p,   Y O

o

cN
z

o

w H o

p;  ro c a
c '

k7
y

Q  
0' C 

FG

a
d
a

w c7
Z

rrr---...  

c

1 U

frw a'
n.   a

OCL W
x 0. 

a a
b

y

a

ti      

F
U L U G W N Q N

C J H 7 p 7 O vNi   i,j"'„ 00
v o v, 

o  o ca y o 

0
y„  

u°,       o  . i 
F E. y L U V, i N    V N 
Z t o i  3 m o o c m ¢ :°

u L . av'i o' o o  ° aCi

p a 5 s  o ' cLo 

o Z
A a'7 fn c a 7 4. t. ' t6 

i

W

v

HQ
W H y

a'  ai
v 

O
F  ° 0

F o Y
Q m

F
co ,

W    
a

R  y d T y   tn

O ln

y
GJ V

V N    .
V.,  

G/

p p
v

y.

C,, 'O a 1'

t.+
7 p       IC 7 y {-

H fy wp  
a+ d... i.. 

O' C p O       ' C  C U +" y >,  Gi
4i]            d 6  <

9 a 7      Gl d ' C     , d O V
N w v  y p

y = 
V

4"    y v aF.+y C ; b v . b E d      
a       a::-       

m .

irC   v, ?w ^. om ` `° c     ° C°' oou     . II . c ° n  
Y 

R

v   `   F tii p p' O N L  
C y U      , y 0 d f0 A  .^ O N d 

C^   d C  0 y

U 7yi u t o a i

V

a ' Y L Q d  a i   ,    v u cd p„ m p '"' ,

Q A a a, 4 v m '' 0
3 >     " o  "  .  °' ".

o °+' °  " O o,o z

v a ia o°' p, d ' A     ' a° a i n'   v v '> .• S in ' n m
a      C     n

y .

W V L a
V

L L A Z
r,. -

K.  N L   O G N . O O L L
E„ i

7 a u '-' a i 7 m n
0 cC O rC u ' O O 7 C     p O  •  +-' 

O
V O        , b

i..      .. d C O N tn O .     C . in tn n i i... 
r f6 p, i.

N• V
7 w O f4 y O      O

t6 f"' O L V y 7  O  
N 

C

A  y  N y     .  '
b

u Q N A - . a u  ' L7 C caOL

i   F F  b G i N . N a v .  .^ c o R n    H a. h v°'i.° v ° o

766



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 5. 3
SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       GRAND 7URY REPORT RESPONSE

RECOMMENDATION:     Accept Grand Jury Report On School Safety in San
Joaquin County and Direct the City Attorney to
Submit a Letter to the Presiding Judge of the San
Joaquin County Superior Court Responding to the
Finding and Recommendation of the Grand  . lury
Report.

SUMMARY

In the attached 2022/ 2023 San Joaquin County Grand Jury Report titled School
Safety in San Joaquin County:  Developing a Culture of Safety,  Case  # 0322,  the

Grand Jury recommends the Lathrop City Council,  as the responding agency on
behalf of the Lathrop Police Department,  respond to the following finding and
recommendation detailed below.

BAC KG ROU N D

POSSIBLE RESPONSES TO GRAND ] URY FINDINGS:

California Penal Code Section 933. 05 requires the responding agency issue a
response in writing to the Presiding Judge of the San Joaquin County Superior Court
indicating whether the responding agency:

Option l.      Agrees; or

Option 2.      Disagrees wholly or partially with the findings of the Grand ] ury.

POSSIBLE RESPONSES TO GRAND URY RECOMMENDATIONS:

California Penal Code Section 933. 05 also requires the responding agency to
respond to each recommendation contained in the Grand Jury report with one of
the following:

Option 1.      The recommendations have been implemented,   with a summary

regarding the implemented action.

Option 2.      The recommendations have not yet been implemented,  but will be

implemented in the future, with a timeframe for implementation.

Option 3.      The recommendations require further analysis,  with an explanation

and the scope and parameters of an analysis or study,   and a

timeframe for the matter to be prepared for discussion by the ofFicer

767



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

GRAND ] URY REPORT RESPONSE

or head of the agency or department being investigated or reviewed,
including the governing body of the public agency when applicable.

Option 4.      The recommendations will not be implemented because it is not

warranted or is not reasonable, with an explanation therefor.

GRAND   ) URY FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS WITH PROPOSED

RESPONSES:

Grand Jury Finding F2. 4:  " Many district CSSP' s show a lack of ineaningful
collaboration between districts and local law enforcement agencies,   causing

confusing and chaos during an emergency."

Grand Jury Recommendation R2. 4:   " By December 15,   2023,   each law

enforcement agency in San Joaquin County meaningfully collaborate and approve
the updated CSSP for school sites within that agency' s jurisdiction."

Proposed Council Response:  The City of Lathrop City Council,  as the

responding agency,   partially disagrees with Grand Jury Finding F2. 4 and

Recommendation R2. 4 and would like to further clarify that staff confirmed that the
Lathrop Police Department has four ( 4) School Resource Officers ( SROs) assigned

to the seven ( 7) schools within the City' s jurisdiction.   The recommendation by the
Grand Jury has been implemented as all SROs work collaboratively with school
administrators and the Lathrop Police Department has approved all Comprehensive
School Safety Plans  ( CSSP)  for each of the seven  ( 7)  schools.    All SROs are

required to be familiar with and regularly work with school personnel pursuant to
said CSSP.   Table- top exercises and practice drills by SROs pursuant to said CSSP
are scheduled for completion at each school site by December 15, 2023.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the City Council accept the Grand ) ury Report and direct the City
Attorney to submit the proposed response to the Presiding Judge of the San ) oaquin

County Superior Court.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None, except for staff time to prepare this report.

768



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

GRAND JURY REPORT RESPONSE

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       2022/ 2023 Grand Jury Final Report titled School Safety in San Joaquin
County: Developing a Culture of Safety, Case # 0322

B.       Draft Letter to San Joaquin County Superior Court Presiding Judge in
response to the 2022/ 2023 Grand Jury Final Report for Case # 0322

769



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

GRAND JURY REPORT RESPONSE

APPROVALS:

o       Z

Raymond Bechler Date

Chief of Police

r---

3- Zo.. 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

0• 3
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

770



Attachment A

2022- 2023 San Joaquin County Grand Jury

fUNEK

R

School Safety in San Joaquin County:

Developing a Culture of Safety

Case # 0322

Y
r^ J

t*' L, s k s,*`,"' x

1 f        

C
5            

t`    , 7 t 
i"'"'

vr;    t,._

wr a r 
f d

l

ri l r f°°"    w ', 
r , a,   

w< . j, dt," i i
I

lf yt   ,
6

1..  ""'

f'e.'....-

a

S i

3K

Summary

The 2022- 2023 San Joaquin County Civil Grand Jury examined, through the lens of a layperson, the

safety measures in place at the 14 public school districts and the San Joaquin County Office of
Education ( SJCOE). These safety measures are mandated by California Education Code 32280-

322895. 5. Through multiple interviews, site visits, and expert witness testimony, the Grand Jury
found while many protocols have been established in the County, there is no unified approach to
school safety. Rather, safety planning often consists of a patchwork of policies and procedures and

771



many of the Comprehensive School Safety Plans ( CSSPs) required by law are boilerplate documents
that are rarely specific to school sites.

Schools in San Joaquin County are safer because of recent efforts by school districts, but more can
be done. Districts can create more opportunities for meaningful involvement by parents, students,
and staff in safety planning efforts. Parents/ guardians can ask school officials about safety at their
child' s school site.

Law enforcement must be more involved in the process of development, implementation, and

annual updates of the CSSP, including participation in safety training/ drills, building relationships
with students and staff, and helping to create a culture of safety.

While the issue of school safety is vast, the 2022- 2023 San Joaquin County Civil Grand Jury review
focused on the following areas:

Comprehensive School Safety Plans.

Observations during school site visits.

Safety training.

The 2022- 2023 Civil Grand Jury found CSSPs were not school site- specific and displayed a lack of
parental and law enforcement agency involvement, safety training was intermittent, and drills
were predictable. The Grand lury also found a lack of ineaningful staff and student discussion
regarding school safety, school sites that were inconsistent in visitor check- in procedures, and
evacuation maps missing or lacking clarity.

Glossary

AED: Automated External Defibrillator.

Average Daily Attendance: The total days of student attendance divided by the total days of
instruction.

CDE: California Department of Education.

Certificated Employee: Certificated school employees are employees of a school, district, or

county ofFice of education who are in a position that requires the employee to have a credential

from the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing ( CCTC).

Charter School: A charter school is a public school that may provide instruction in any
combination of grades ( kindergarten through grade 12). Parents/ guardians, teachers, or

community members may initiate a charter petition, which is typically presented to and

approved by a local school district governing board.

Classified Employee: Classified employees are employees of a school, district, or county office

of education who are in a position not requiring certification.

COE: County Office of Education.

Common Areas: Common areas are defined as auditoriums, multipurpose rooms, gymnasiums,

cafeterias, wellness centers, and any other area that may be used by both the public as well as

2

772



students and staff. Pursuant to Education Code Sections 38130- 38139, public schools are

required to offer the use of school facilities by non- district public groups.

CSSP: Comprehensive School Safety Plan. Safety plan required by California law for each school

site operating kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive.
Dependent Charter School: A dependent charter school is a charter school that has been

authorized and is governed by the district' s school board and is an integral part of the district' s

portFolio of schools.

First Responder: The term includes a firefighter, law enforcement officer, paramedic, emergency

medical technician, or other individual who, in the course of his or her professional duties,
responds to fire, medical, hazardous material, or other emergencies.

Flip chart: Emergency response flip charts are an effective way of referencing important

contacts and actions to be taken in an emergency. Having clearly defined procedures to deal

with emergencies that may occur in your workplace and making sure your workers are familiar

with these procedures may save lives.

Independent Charter School: A school that, although authorized by a school district board, is

governed by a separate governing board, and is operated independently from the other schools

administered by the district.

Lock Block System: A simple device that prevents locked doors from completely closing,

allowing the handle to stay locked and students or adults to quickly lock doors without the need
for keys in the case of danger on campus.

Raptor: Raptor Technologies is a company that has developed integrated school safety software
that allows schools to screen and track school visitors.

School Safety Culture: Campus climate and culture are foundational in the creation and

maintenance of a safer and more secure school for both students and staff. Keeping students

safe both physically and emotionally requires an atmosphere in which parents/ guardians,

students, and staff are all working together to protect the learning environment.

SJCOE: San Joaquin County Office of Educafion.

SRO: School Resource Officer.

Tabletop Exercise: Small group discussions about an emergency and the courses of action a

school will need to take before, during, and after an emergency to lessen the impact on the

school community. Parficipants analyze the problem together and discuss detailed roles,
responsibilities, and anticipated courses of action.

Background

Recent media reports of tragic and all too frequent shootings on school campuses across the

country have heightened community concerns about school safety and security, but school

violence is not a new or recent concern. In fact, school shootings have been part of our nation' s
history since Colonial days. During the 19th century, multiple shootings occurred on school
campuses involving intentional and accidental gunshots and other forms of violence by students
and outside intruders.

3

773



Early in the 20th century the frequency of school violence diminished, but one of the earliest
examples of mass school fatalities occurred in 1927 in Bath, Michigan, where 44 people, including
38 students, died when a former school board member dynamited the district school. In the middle

of the 20th century school attacks, bombings, and riots by individuals and mobs were often fueled
by racial and religious animosity.

The modern school violence trend toward mass casualty shootings began in San loaquin County in
1989. The Cleveland School shooting occurred ten years before the more frequently referenced
Columbine High School shooting in Colorado. Although the 1990s and early 2000s saw an overall
trend toward fewer deaths from school shootings in the United States, the public' s perception of
unsafe schools was shaped by numerous high-visibility shooting incidents that led to the belief that
our schools have become increasingly dangerous places.

School shootings are the focus of discussions in the media, however, school safety concerns range
across a continuum, from routine discipline to bullying and fighting, weather and natural disasters,
nearby transportation and industrial accidents, and shootings, as illustrated below.

hocal Saf ty Threat Gantinucam

Routine"    Bullying fights

Discipline i

i i

i Verbal i PartnedDating   
Aggression           Violence      ;

i i

i i i i i

i i i

i t i

i i
Non- Custodial   ;     Weather ar     ;    Shooting or    ;
Parentlntident   ;      Naturaf      ;   OtherWeapon   ;

i Disaster i Incident i

Threats( bomb,  Suicide Organized Terrorist

s%NATIONAL SCHOOC SIFETY AND SELURITY SFRVICES
death et.  Attack

02016, National School Safety and Security Services

School safety planning requires careful thought, preparation, and training to avoid or mitigate the
consequences of all threats across this continuum. These include not only high- consequence
threats that have a low probability of occurrence ( school shootings) but also lower-consequence

threats that have a much higher probability of occurrence ( bullying).

4

774



Reason for Investigation

Creating a safe and healthy learning environment is a top priority shared by parents/ guardians,
educators, policymakers, and the community. The importance of safe schools is reflected in Article
I, Section 28( f) of the California Constitution, which states: " All students and staff of public primary,
elementary, junior high, and senior high schools, and community colleges, colleges, and universities
have the inalienable right to attend campuses which are safe, secure and peaceful." Furthermore,

California Education Code Sections 32280- 32289. 5 mandate an annual update of each school site' s

Comprehensive School Safety Plan ( CSSP) by March 1 of each year.

The Grand Jury concluded that recent events in San loaquin County and elsewhere raised the
question of whether the schools in our County were taking appropriate steps to protect students
and staff.

The Federal government does not maintain a database of school shootings, but several other
entities do attempt to compile that data. For example, Education Week reports 2022 had the most

school shootings in the nation ( 51) and the highest number of casualties ( 40 killed and 100 injured)

in the past five years; 21 of those deaths occurred in the Uvalde school shooting in May 2022. San
loaquin County did not experience any school shootings in 2022, although one Stockton high
school student was fatally stabbed when a man entered the campus through an unattended
security checkpoint. Local media reported several instances of students being arrested for alleged
threats of violence at schools in the County. Tragically, during the Grand Jury investigation, two
students were attacked at Unity Park near Chavez High School; one student was shot and killed and
the other student was pistol- whipped.

Rather than focusing the Grand lury' s investigation on one type of school safety threat, such as
school shootings, or on school safety planning at one school or district in the County, the Grand
Jury concluded it would best serve San Joaquin County citizens to review emergency preparedness
planning for threats across the school safety continuum. The Grand Jury evaluated school safety
planning from a layperson' s perspective by measuring each district' s preparedness against best
practices as identified through research and expert testimony. This report shares with the public

the results of that evaluation. Due to the complexity of governance and the large number of

independent charter schools ( 32), the Grand Jury focused its investigation on traditional and
dependent charter schools.

Method of Investigation

The Grand Jury conducted an extensive literature review and interviewed several school safety
experts to identify consensus among experts on best school safety practices and where there were
differences of opinion. The Grand lury also surveyed each district about school safety preparation
and planning. The Grand Jury compared the responses received from each school district against
the best practices recommended by school safety experts. Follow-up interviews were conducted
with representatives from each district. Grand Jury members visited one school from each district

to confirm the information received and to observe safety preparation at the individual school
level.

5

775



Materials Reviewed

California Department of Education, " Comprehensive School Safety Plans— Violence

Prevention ( CA Dept of Education)." www.cde.ca.gov, www.cde.ca. gov/ Is/ ss/ vp/ cssp. asp.
Accessed May 2, 2023.
California Education Code Sections 32280- 32289. 5.

California Education Code Sections 38130- 38139.

California State Auditor, " Report 2016- 136." www. Auditor. ca. gov/ reports/ 2016-

136/ introduction. html. Accessed May 2, 2023.

Comprehensive School Safety Plans and related safety information provided to the Grand

Jury by the San Joaquin County Office of Education and each of the 14 school districts in San

loaquin County.

Trump, Kenneth 5., Proactive School5ecurity and Emergency Preparedness Planning.
Thousand Oaks, Calif., Corwin, 2011.

Websites Searched

Banta Unified School District Home Page." Bantasd.org, www.bantasd.org. Accessed March
4, 2023.

Blad, Evie, et al., " School Shootings in 2022: 4 Key Takeaways." Education Week, January 27,
2023, www.edweek. org/ leadership/ school- shootings- in- 2022- 4- key- takeaways/ 2022/ 12.
Accessed April 3, 2023.

Dorn, Sherman. " Perspective  Violence over Schools Is Nothing New in America."
Washington Post, September 29, 2021,

www.wash i ngtonpost. com/ outlook/ 2021/ 09/ 29/ violence- over-schools- is- nothi ng- new-
america/. Accessed October 6, 2022.

Escalon Unified School District." www.escalonusd. org, www.escalonusd. org. Accessed
March 3, 2023.

Fuentes, Annette. " A Brief History of Schoo) Violence in the United States ( 2011)."
Versobooks. com, March 23, 2018, www.versobooks. com/ blogs/ 3705- a- brief-history- of-
school- violence- in- the- united- states- 2011. Accessed June 22, 2022.

Glavin, Chris. " History of School Shootings in the United States  K12 Academics."

K12academics. com, 26 July 2018, www.kl2academics. com/ school- shootings/ history-school-
shootings- united- states. Accessed October 6, 2022.

Green, Emilee. " ICJIA Research Hub:' Icjia. illinois.gov, November 23, 2020,
icjia. illinois.gov/ researchhub/ articles/ exploring- school-violence- and- safety-concerns.
Accessed October 6, 2022.

7efferson School District Home Page:' www.jeffersonschooldistrict. com,

www.jeffersonschooldistrict. com. Accessed March 3, 2023.
Lammersville Unified School District Home Page:' www.lammersvilleschooldistrict. net,

www. lammersvilleschooldistrict. net. Accessed March 4, 2023.

Lincoln Unified School District Home Page." www.lusd. net, www. lusd. net/ Domain/ 4.

Accessed March 3, 2023.

6

776



Linden Unified School District Home Page:' www.lindenusd. com, www.lindenusd. com.

Accessed March 3, 2023.

Lodi Unified School District Home Page." www.lodiusd.net, www.lodiusd. net. Accessed

March 4, 2023.

Manteca Unified School District Home Page." www. mantecausd. net, www. mantecausd. net.

Accessed March 3, 2023.

New Hope Home Page." www.nhesd. net, www.nhesd. net. Accessed March 4, 2023.

New Jerusalem Elementary School District Home Page." Home- NewJerusalem Elementary
School District, www. njesd. net/ en- US. Accessed March 4, 2023.

Oak View Elementary School District Home Page:' www. myoakview. com,

www.myoakview.com/ oakview.aspx. Accessed March 4, 2023.

Ripon Unified School District Home Page" www. riponusd. net, www. riponusd. net. Accessed

March 3, 2023.

School Shootings This Year: How Many and Where." Education Week, January 27, 2023,
www.edweek. org/ leadership/ school- shootings- this-year-how- many- and- where/ 2022/ 01.
Accessed April 3, 2023.

Stockton Unified School District/ Home Page." www. stocktonusd. net,

www. stocktonusd. net. Accessed March 4, 2023.

The San Joaquin County Office of Education Home Page." www. sjcoe. org, www. sjcoe. org.

Accessed March 3, 2023.

Tracy Unified School District Home Page." www.tracy.kl2.Ca. us, www.tracy.kl2. ca. us.
Accessed March 3, 2023.

Interviews Conducted

District Administrators.

Representatives from all County and Local Law Enforcement Agencies.

San Joaquin County Office of Education Administrators.

School Safety Consultants.

School Safety Experts.

School Site Administrators.

School Site Certificated Personnel.

School Site Classified Personnel.

Sites Visited

Banta Elementary School ( Banta Unified School District).

Hazelton Elementary School ( Stockton Unified School District).

Lodi High School ( Lodi Unified School District).

Mountain House High School ( Lammersville Unified School District).

New Hope Elementary School ( New Hope Elementary School District).

New lerusalem Elementary School ( New Jerusalem School District).

Oak View Elementary School ( Oak View Elementary School District).

7

777



one. Charter Academy of Visual and Performing Arts ( San Joaquin County Office of
Education).

Ripon High School ( Ripon Unified School District).

Tom Hawkins Elementary School ( Jefferson School District).

Tully C. Knoles School ( Lincoln Unified School District).

Veritas Elementary School ( Manteca Unified School District).
Vista High School ( Escalon Unified School District).

Waterloo Middle School ( Linden Unified School District).

Williams Middle School ( Tracy Unified School District).

Discussions, Findings, and Recommendations

1. 0 School Safety Fundamentals

When asked, school officials, families, policymakers, and the community agree school safety is a
top priority, but often there is a disconnect between safety practices and that priority. There is
disagreement about what steps should be taken to make our schools safer or how much time,

energy, or money should be devoted to school safety efforts. The recent uptick in gun- related
incidents at schools across the country has created what some school safety experts believe is a
skewed focus on target hardening. Physical security measures, security hardware equipment,
cameras, access control, and other forms of safety technology can be useful in the school safety
tool bag but are only as valuable as the weakest human link supporting them. As one school safety
expert advised the Grand Jury, " Beware of school safety consultants with something to sell." The

emphasis on physical security measures has created a failure to focus on human factors and the
fundamentals of school security and culture.

From interviews with school safety experts and a review of publicly available literature, the Grand
Jury learned that the best safety plans focus on fundamentals such as:

Site- specific emergency plans.

Creating a culture of safety.

Lockdown drills and sheltering in place.

Evacuation and reunification.

Identifying and assigning incident command roles.

Recognizing abnormalities.

Having situational awareness at all times.

Empowering staff to make decisions during emergencies.

The focus of any school safety program should be on training to prepare people with the skills
necessary to take proper action when confronted by an emergency. An emergency by its very
nature is a time of extreme stress that often short- circuits rational thought and action. Available

8

778



data indicate lockdown drills ( close and lock the door, turn off the lights, close blinds and curtains,

move into a hardened corner that is out of sight of an intruder, and keep quiet) work best to
prepare staff and students to respond effectively to emergencies. Options- based training ( run,
hide, and fight) is recommended by some safety experts, but such training is controversial and is
discouraged by other experts. Basic, age- appropriate drills should be the focus of any safety
training involving students. Overly dramatic drills that create student anxiety should be avoided.

Safety training for school employees must be more than a once- a- year event; it must be integrated
into staff ineetings throughout the school year and must include not only teachers and
administrators but also support staff. Safety drills for staff and students must be diversified in the
type and timing of the drills.

In addition to safety training, school climate and relationships are keys to school safety.

Schools should address climate along with security and emergency preparedness, not one
or the other. Too often climate is pitted against security, instead of focusing on both.
Schools can be warm, welcoming, and trusting environments and still have balanced
security measures and comprehensive emergency preparedness guidelines."

1

A positive school culture is one in which students and staff feel respected, supported, and
connected to each other and to the school community. In such a culture, there is a greater sense of
shared responsibility for the well- being and safety of everyone in the school, and students are
more likely to report concerns or potential safety issues.

In contrast, a negative school culture, characterized by bullying, harassment, discrimination, or
general facility disrepair, can contribute to a lack of trust and support among students and staff.
This makes it more difficult for students to feel comfortable reporting safety concerns and
contributes to a sense of isolation and disengagement that increases the risk of violence or other

safety issues.

Creating a positive school culture that promotes respect, inclusivity, and collaboration helps to
foster a sense of community and shared responsibility leading to a safer school environment. This
includes initiatives such as anti- bullying and anti- harassment programs, positive behavior
interventions and supports ( PBIS), and efforts to promote diversity and cultural sensitivity.

Safety culture is a topic to be revisited throughout the school year to build upon overall school

safety. As an expert witness noted:

the key thing is really creating a culture of safetv and a culture for reporting. Where
safety is everyone' s job from the custodian, your school secretary, [your] food service
worker, your bus drivers, the first and last people to see kids during the day, to encourage
not only see something and say something, that catchphrase that has been used since 9/ 11,
but training people on how to do something. [ If] someone sees something, they say
something, then what are you trained to do. Because if someone reports it and you don' t

1 Trump, Kenneth 5., Proactive School5ecurity and Emergency Preparedness Planning. Thousand Oaks, Calif., Corwin,
2011, page 182.

9

779



act and it' s not acted in a timely appropriate manner, it' s not going to really carry this all the

way through."

A school safety culture is encouraged by involving parents/ guardians, students, teachers,
administrators, and other school personnel in a school' s safety planning process. It also is

encouraged by creating an overall positive climate at the school. Is there school engagement,

school ownership, school pride, and student artwork present and visible in the school? Is the school
clean and well- maintained? Do students and school employees have an open and trusting
relationship?

2. 0 Comprehensive School Safety Plan

The California Constitution guarantees California children the right to attend public schools

that are safe, secure, and peaceful. The CDE, public school districts, county offices of

education ( COEs), and schools and their personnel are responsible for creating learning

environments that are safe and secure. First responders, community partners, and families

play an essential role, as well. Schools must be prepared to respond to emergencies

including natural and man- made hazards and strive to prevent violence and behavior issues

that undermine safety and security. CSSPs include strategies aimed at the prevention of, and

education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on the school campus and

aspects of social, emotional, and physical safety for both youth and adults:' z

According to California Education Code Section 32281( a), every school district and County Office of

Education ( COE) in the State is responsible for developing a Comprehensive School Safety Plan

CSSP). For each of its school sites and the site council or safety planning committee for each site is

required to write and develop a CSSP that is relevant to the specific needs and resources of that

site. In school districts with fewer than " 2, 501 units of average daily attendance;' there may be one
CSSP for all schools within the district.

Every year, each school is required to adopt an updated CSSP by March 1. Before adopting its CSSP,

the school site council or safety planning committee must hold a public meeting at the school site

to allow members of the public the opportunity to express an opinion about the school safety plan.

State law includes a list of individuals and entities that must be notified in writing of these public

meetings. These opportunities for meaningful public input on safety plans and goals help build a
strong school safety culture.

Each school' s CSSP must be designed to address campus risks, prepare for emergencies, and create

a safe, secure learning environment for students and school personnel. The CSSP must include

adaptations necessary for the safety of students with disabilities. The school site council is required

to consult with representatives from the law enforcement agency, the fire department, and other

z California Department of Education, " Comprehensive School Safety Plans— Violence Prevenfion( CA Dept of
EducationJ." www.cde. ca.gov, www.cde. ca.gov/ Is/ ss/ vp/ cssp.asp. Accessed May2, 2023.

10

780



first responder entities in the writing and development of the CSSP and to share any updates to the

CSSP with those entities. An updated file of all safety- related plans and materials also must be

readily available for inspection by the public.

Administrators of a school district or COE may elect to develop those portions of a CSSP that include

tacfical responses to criminal incidents and to develop those portions of the CSSP themselves, in

consultation with law enforcement and a representafive of an exclusive bargaining unit of

employees. The governing board of a school district or COE also can confer in closed session with

law enforcement ofFicials prior to the approval of a tactical response plan. Any vote to approve the

tactical response plan would be announced following the closed session.

The CSSP must include provisions for:

1) assessing the status of crime on school campuses and at school functions and

2) identifying appropriate strategies that will provide or maintain a high level of school

safety and address the school' s procedures for complying with existing laws related to

school safety.

The SJCOE and all districts in the County have approved CSSPs for their schools. The State CSSP

requirements are lengthy and plans that attempt to discuss in detail all required elements can

become unwieldy. Some of the CSSPs reviewed by the Grand Jury were several hundred pages long

and generally included the major elements required by State law, but only a few appeared to have

been drafted to address issues unique to an individual school site. Only a few indicated there had

been any significant opportunity for public input during the drafting or approval stages of the
annual CSSP updates. Even fewer included an assessment of the status of crime at the school and

school- related functions. The Grand Jury also found plans contained only limited mention of the

unique needs during emergencies of students with disabilities. Interviews and conversafions with

district administrators and school personnel often indicated limited knowledge of the safety

information within these lengthy plans or even where the plan was physically located.

Most districts asserted that local law enforcement had been involved in the preparation or update

of district CSSPs, but the nature of that involvement varied widely and seldom was documented in a

manner that would allow the public to conclude that the involvement was meaningful. Some school
officials commented that law enforcement agencies seemed reluctant to collaborate. Fewer

districts asserted the local fire district had been involved in the preparation or update of district

CSSPs, although some schools reported during site visits that the fire marshal had assisted in the

preparation of current evacuation maps. The Grand Jury could not conclude from available

information whether law enforcement and first responders had been given the information about

the specific circumstances at individual school sites necessary for an appropriate response to a

school safety emergency.

11

781



Several districts and schools made lengthy CSSPs more useful by creating concise flip charts

identifying key steps to be taken during a range of anficipated emergencies. Most schools using

these flip charts posted them in classrooms, but only a few schools posted them in other rooms

frequented by students, such as libraries, cafeterias, multipurpose rooms, and other school

resource rooms. Many of these rooms are used by the general public during non- school hours, in
accordance with the California Education Code.

Some districts keep the entire CSSP confidential. Others make public most of the CSSP but keep

some portions of the plan confidential to avoid providing useful information to potential criminal

perpetrators. A few districts make the entire CSSP public. As noted above, the California Education

Code requires an updated file of all safety- related plans and materials to be readily available for

inspection by the public, but school administrators are authorized to keep confidential the portions

of safety plans that include tactical responses to criminal incidents. The Grand Jury considers the

better practice is to keep these sensitive provisions confidential but to make the rest of the CSSP

and other safety- related information readily available to the public and school employees.

The CSSP must include a clear description of incident command and communication roles, together

with associated duties. It also must identify the individuals responsible to perform those roles as

well as alternate individuals if the primary individual is not available to perform the role. Some of

the CSSPs reviewed by the Grand Jury identified the incident command roles, but only a few of
these identified the individuals responsible for those roles and the alternates who would assume

those roles if the primary individual was not available. None of the CSSPs reviewed by the Grand

Jury provided evidence that the individuals responsible for incident command roles had received

appropriate training to properly perform those important roles.

Some districts include meaningful information about safety measures taken by the district and its

schools through the district website and other communications with parents/ guardians. Other

districts have little or no information about safety measures on their websites and appear to have

only limited communication with parents/ guardians about safety measures.

The CSSP should describe the system to reunite parents/ guardians with their children in the event

of a campus-wide evacuation or emergency and parents/ guardians must be made aware of how

they can reunite with their children. Only some of the CSSPs reviewed by the Grand Jury contained

a detailed description of the reunification system and how parents/ guardians will be advised of the
relevant details of that system.

Findings

F2. 1 A review of CSSPs demonstrated many districts have failed to create a CSSP that addresses
safety issues unique to the individual school sites, and rather use a template and/ or boilerplate

language, leaving the school site unprepared in an emergency.

12

782



F2. 2 Many districts have not involved teachers, support staff, students, and parents/ guardians

when updating each school site' s CSSP, missing an opportunity to create a culture of school safety.

F2. 3 Many districts have not collaborated with local law enforcement and other first responders

during the annual process to update the CSSP, which could result in a prolonged and inefficient

emergency response.

F2. 4 Many district CSSPs show a lack of ineaningful collaboration between districts and local law

enforcement agencies, causing confusion and chaos during an emergency.

F2. 5 Many districts do not offer an opportunity for public input during the drafting or approval
stages of the annual CSSP, which renders the districts out of compliance with State law.

F2. 6 Most districts do not include an assessment of the status of crime at the school and school-

related functions in their CSSPs, which renders the districts out of compliance with State law and

causes potential harm and liability.

F2. 7 Many districts do not adequately address the unique needs of students with disabilities

during emergencies. The lack of planning for the most vulnerable students can cause harm during a
time of confusion and crisis.

F2. 8 A few districts do not make any part of the CSSPs available to the public, withholding

important information about steps taken by the district to reduce the probability and impact of

safety risks. Other districts post the CSSPs in their entirety, failing to keep confidential information

about tactical responses, potentially revealing sensitive information to the public.

F2. 9 Many districts have CSSPs that fail to identify incident command roles and the individuals

who are to perform those roles in case of an emergency, exposing students and staff to the

potential for confusion and increased risks during an emergency.

F2. 10 Many districts have CSSPs that fail to describe the system to reunite parents/ guardians with

their children in the event of a campus- wide evacuation, creating confusion and additional anxiety

in the event of a safety emergency.

F2. 11 Many school site CSSPs do not account for specific dangers unique to the school site ( e. g.,
train tracks, flooding, freeways).

Recommendafions

The 2022- 2023 San Joaquin County Civil Grand Jury recommends that the County Office of

Educafion, the 14 school districts, and law enforcement agencies in the County implement school
safety programs that require the following actions:

R2. 1 By March 1, 2024, the annual updates for each school site' s CSSP address safety issues
unique to the site.

13

783



R2. 2 By December 15, 2023, while updating the school' s CSSP, each school site collaborate and

receive input from representatives of teachers, support staff, students, and parents/ guardians.

R2. 3 By December 15, 2023, while updating the school' s CSSP, each school site collaborate and

receive input from the appropriate emergency response agencies.

R2. 4 By December 15, 2023, each law enforcement agency in San Joaquin County meaningfully

collaborate and approve the updated CSSP for school sites within that agency' s jurisdiction.

R2. 5 By February 1, 2024, each school site council or safety planning committee hold an

advertised public meeting at the school site to allow members of the community an opportunity to

express an opinion about the school' s proposed CSSP as required by California Education Code
Sections 32288( b)( 1) and ( 2).

R2. 6 By March 1, 2024, each school site' s CSSP include the State mandated assessment of the
status of crime at the school and school- related functions.

R2. 7 By March 1, 2024, each school site consult with the appropriate professionals to address the

unique needs of students with disabilifies when updating the CSSP.

R2. 8 By March 1, 2024, each school site' s CSSP be available to the public with the excepfion of
confidential information about tactical responses.

R2. 9 By March 1, 2024, each school site' s CSSP identify the incident command roles and the

individuals who are to perform those roles and their alternate in cases of an emergency.

R2. 10 By March 1, 2024, each school site' s CSSP describe the system to reunify parents/ guardians

with their student in the event of a campus-wide evacuation, including how parents/ guardians are
informed of reunification details.

R2. 11 By March 1, 2024, each school site' s CSSPs account for dangers unique to the specific school

site ( e. g., train tracks, flooding, freeways).

3. 0 Training

On November 11, 2022, the San Joaquin County Office of Educafion offered a free half- day School

Safety Summit for the first time. The purpose of the summit was to bring stakeholders together in a

forum that could address school safety Countywide. All but three of the 14 districts in San Joaquin

County attended the event with one or more representatives. As one attendee noted on a feedback

form, " Thank you for starting this conversation. Safety should be something we talk about more

often. Consider making this a topic that gets revisited multiple times a year." Another attendee
noted, " Thank you for taking the lead on this important topic." The Grand lury agrees.

The purpose of the summit was to try to bridge the service gap by bringing to light the differences

and the similarities of need while at the same time illustrating the importance of school culture

14

784



insofar as school safety is concerned. As noted by a witness interviewed by the Grand Jury, San

Joaquin County is unique in the districts that service the County students. Some districts have

school resource officers ( SROs) or their own sworn law enforcement department, while more rural

and smaller districts may have to wait an extended period of time for law enforcement response.

One of the experts interviewed by the Grand Jury observed, " The first and best line of defense is a

well- trained, highly alert staff and student body in a school." Recent school tragedies in the news

have received attention in the media that somefimes focuses on technology to make school sites
more difficult to access rather than the failure to focus on the human factors and fundamentals of

school safety. The same expert also noted a common thread across many, if not most of these

tragedies, is " they involve allegations of failures of human factors, not allegations that some type of

security hardware equipment failed. So we are moving and seeing this effort to have a skewed focus

on target hardening. Physical security can play a tool, any type of technology is only as good as the
weakest human link behind it:'

Repeated training for school staff and students is the best way to reduce the likelihood that people

will " freeze" during an emergency. Not only is training required by State law, but it is also an

important way to help make safety part of a school' s culture.

To be most effective, training of teachers, administrators, and support staff should include training

at the beginning of each school year but also throughout the year during regular teacher and staff

meetings. Tabletop exercises provide a cost-effective way to train in a variety of emergency

scenarios. Appropriate training for substitute teachers is an important element of school safety, but

few districts have taken steps to assure they have received emergency information in a timely,
effective, and usable manner.

Training is best reinforced by drills. Drills are most effective if the types and fiming of the drills are

varied throughout the school year including drills at times such as lunch, recess, or passing periods
when students are not in a classroom. Students' involvement in drills, however, must be limited to

age- appropriate activities and be designed to avoid the creafion of potentially harmful anxiety.

Special considerafion should be given to drills that reinforce training related to the needs of

students with disabilities. Tabletop exercises are an efFective way for staff to drill and prepare for a

variety of emergency scenarios.

Safety emergencies can be confusing and traumatic, making effective communication and incident

command vitally important. Breakdowns in communications or response coordination can have

catastrophic consequences. Schools and school districts will be responsible for notifying first

responders and commanding the early stages of response to the emergency. They will be

communicating with employees, students, and parents/ guardians during and after the emergency

while also being confronted with demands for information from the media and concerned

community members. When first responders arrive on the scene of the emergency, they typically

will take over command of the incident response, but at many schools, especially in rural areas,

15

785



there may be an extended delay before appropriate professional responders can arrive at the

scene. The school and the district must be prepared to command the response to the incident

during this delay. The yearly schedule of drills should include drills that reinforce communication
and incident command readiness.

The Incident Command System 100 ( ICS- 100) training is a course provided by the Federal

Emergency Management Agency ( FEMA) that covers the basics of the Incident Command System

ICS), which is a standardized system used by emergency response organizations to manage

incidents and emergencies. The ICS- 100 course is designed to provide an introduction to the

principles and structure of ICS, including key roles and responsibilities, and the process of

establishing a unified command during an emergency. The focus of ICS- 100 training is fourfold:

1.  Improving communicafion: ICS- 100 training teaches responders how to use a common

language and communicafion system to ensure that everyone is on the same page during an

emergency.

2.  Enhancing coordination: ICS- 100 training clarifies how responders work together and

coordinate their efforts to respond effectively to an emergency.

3.  Promoting safety: ICS- 100 training emphasizes the importance of safety during an

emergency and informs responders how to prioritize safety when responding to incidents.

4.  Reducing confusion: ICS- 100 training provides a clear structure and framework for

responding to emergencies, reducing confusion and ensuring that everyone knows their role

in an emergency.

The Grand Jury discovered that within the County, while some schoo) districts utilize ICS- 100

training, many do not, causing a security gap. When the Grand Jury inquired about ICS training with

expert witnesses, the answer was universally in support of such training, tailored to the specifics of
school sites. " I think it' s useful. I think it' s useful to understand how it all works in the big picture;'
said an expert.

While the Grand Jury recognizes that annual training can be overwhelming to school staff, not all

school site personnel require ICS- 100 training as much as those personnel identified in the CSSP

incident command roles on school campuses ( including classified employees).

While ICS- 100 training is focused on a school site, ICS- 402 training is directed towards executive-
level leadership ( district cabinet- level employees). ICS- 402 training is designed to provide education

and training for those who may be responsible for managing large- scale incidents or emergencies.

ICS- 402 training for senior- level district staff members is important for several reasons:

1.  Preparedness: School districts are responsible for the safety and well- being of students and

staff members. In the event of an emergency, having trained staff members who understand

16

786



ICS and implement it effectively is crucial in minimizing damage, preventing injuries, and

saving lives.

2.  Coordination: Large- scale emergencies involve multiple agencies and organizations, making

coordination and communication critical. ICS- 402 training helps school district staff

members understand how to work with other agencies and organizations during an

emergency, ensuring that everyone has the same understanding and that efforts are

coordinated effectively.

3.  Legal compliance: In some states or jurisdictions, ICS training is required for emergency

responders and other people who may be involved in emergency management. Providing

ICS- 402 training to school district executive staff members will ensure that the district is
compliant with these regulations.

4.  Flexibility: The ICS system is flexible and scalable, which means that it can be used to

manage emergencies of various sizes and types. By providing ICS- 402 training to district

executive staff members, districts ensure that they have a framework in place that can be
adapted to different scenarios, from minor incidents to major disasters.

Overall, ICS- 402 training assists school district leadership to prepare for emergencies, coordinate

response efforts effectively, comply with regulations, and be flexible in their response to
emergencies.

Interviews with district administrators and discussions with school staff during site visits indicated a

limited understanding of the material in a school' s CSSP. Many districts discuss safety at the

beginning of the year during in- service training and rarely return to the topic.

All districts presented evidence of monthly drills involving teachers and students throughout the

year. Few districts, however, included utilization of communication and incident command structure

ICS) identified in their CSSPs during drills. Many districts informed the Grand Jury that they varied

the day and time for scheduled safety drills, but only a few districts indicated they had intentionally

scheduled drills during times such as lunch, recess, or passing periods when students were not in
their classrooms. This is when incident command structures are most critical. Drills are made more

effecfive by presenting unexpected complications during the drill. One cost-effective variation

recommended by experts is for an administrator to stand in a doorway typically used during a fire

evacuation and inform students that the exit is blocked, forcing them to find another exit.

Many districts time evacuation drills, but the Grand Jury found limited evidence that drills typically

are followed by an analysis of what went well, what went wrong, and what needs to be changed in

the future to improve plans and drills.

Findings

17

787



F3. 1 Feedback forms completed by attendees of the San Joaquin County Office of Education
School Safety Summit and reviewed by the Grand Jury demonstrate the value and necessity of a
Countywide School Safety Summit.

F3. 2 Some of the districts failed to send representatives to the 2022 School Safety Summit,

thereby missing an opportunity to work together to make schools safer.

F3. 3 The Grand lury learned through interviews, surveys, and site tours that many districts fail to
include safety topics during regular meetings with teachers and support staff throughout the school
year, minimizing the importance of safety.

F3. 4 The Grand Jury learned through interviews, surveys, and site tours that many school sites
fail to assure substitute staff receive the information they will need in the case of a school safety

emergency, leaving the substitute staff ill- prepared for an emergency.

F3. 5 Many districts fail to include the utilization of communication and incident command
protocols ( ICS- 100) during safety drills throughout the school year, causing miscommunication in an

emergency.

F3. 6 Many district cabinet- level positions ( e. g., Superintendent, Chief Business Officer) are not
trained in ICS protocols ( ICS- 402), causing a lack of unified response to districtwide emergencies.

F3. 7 Many school sites do not vary the time of day when routine safety drills are conducted or
when students are not in classrooms, making drills predictable and leaving students unprepared for
emergencies that may occur at time.

F3. 8 Many school sites fail to include support staff( classified personnel) in probable real- life roles

during safety drills, leaving them unprepared to assist students in emergencies.

F3. 9 Most school sites fail to conduct a post- incident report after drills analyzing what went well,

what went wrong, and what needs to be changed in the future to improve plans and drills,
undermining the effectiveness of drills.

Recommendations

The 2022- 2023 San Joaquin County Civil Grand Jury recommends that the County Office of

Education and the 14 school districts in the County implement school safety programs that

require the following actions:

R3. 1 By December 1, 2023, the San Joaquin County Office of Education and the San Joaquin

County Office of Education Board of Trustees develop, adopt, and host an annual School Safety
Summit.

R3. 2 By December 1, 2023, each school district send one or more representatives to the annual

School Safety Summit hosted by the San Joaquin County Office of Education.

18

788



R3. 3 By September 1, 2023, safety topics be an agenda item at all school site staff meetings with

teachers and support staff throughout the school year.

R3. 4 By September 1, 2023, districts develop, adopt, and implement written procedures for

school sites to provide substitute staff with the information they will need in case of a school

emergency.

R3. 5 By October 1, 2023, personnel identified in the school CSSP for incident command roles be

trained and certified in ICS- 100 protocols.

R3. 6 By October 1, 2023, ICS- 402 training be completed for all district- level executive leadership.

R3. 7 By October 1, 2023, scheduled safety drills be conducted on different days throughout the

school year and at various times throughout the school day, including when students are not

normally in their classrooms.

R3. 8 By October 1, 2023, scheduled safety drills include support staff( classified) in probable

emergency roles during the year and document their participation.

R3. 9 By October 1, 2023, administrators create a post-incident report after all safety drills.

4. 0 School Site Visits

The Grand lury visited 15 school sites and observed and reviewed safety protocols. One school was
chosen from each of the 14 districts and one dependent charter school from the San Joaquin

County Office of Education. At each site, the following safety components were evaluated and
observed:

Access Control - including entry procedures and perimeter fencing or barricades.

Classrooms- including door locks, window coverings, emergency procedures and
evacuation route postings, and any emergency supplies.

Common Areas- evacuation routes posted at all entry/ exit doors.
Overall condition of the campus.

Special Considerations- including transportation corridors, train tracks, or topography.

Relationships between students, staff, and parents.

Access Control

Three schools utilized the Raptor system, which takes a picture of the visitor' s identification and

prints the ID picture onto a customized name badge. The system also screens and tracks all visitors.

Only one of the three schools utilizing this system had the Grand Jury visitors return their badge at

the end of the tour, which would prevent re- entry. Six schools performed some form of

identification check, either with a driver' s license or the Grand Jury Identification, and/ or required a

sign- in. Six schools did not ask for any identification and no sign- in was required.

19

789



Perimeter fencing at a school is a complicated issue. It is costly to install perimeter fencing around a

school and it can make the campus seem and look like a prison. However, fencing can be an

effective means of controlling who comes onto campus. It can also give a false sense of security and

unless all gates are monitored and remain locked, the end result can be the same as if there were

no fencing. Of the 15 sites visited, three did not have any or had very little perimeter fencing. One

of those sites had conducted a parent survey regarding the issue and the results were closely

divided between those who wanted the fencing and those who did not.

Commendations

Lincoln Unified utilized the Raptor system at the site visit and took our badges at the end of the

tour, utilizing best practices in visitor sign- in procedures.

Banta Unified employed the best physical barrier system. Their check- in procedure involved being

buzzed in through a half-door to a small waiting area where identification was checked and the

sign- in form was completed with both time and date before being buzzed into the office.

Classrooms

At least one classroom was toured at each school. Evacuation routes were posted in all classrooms

visited. Some maps were better than others. Some maps were too small, and one school posted a

campus map in every classroom but didn' t mark the classroom' s location or what route to follow for
evacuation.

There were inconsistencies across the school sites visited regarding door-locking procedures. The

schools visited by the Grand Jury usually kept doors locked at all times. While one school said that it

kept doors locked and closed, the Grand Jury observed a classroom door propped wide open. Many

schools utilized a lock block system, which allowed the door to be opened while quickly returning to

a locked position with a slide or flip of the switch. Some schools utilized a standard key system for

locking doors.

Some schools used flip charts with summaries of what to do in different types of emergencies. The

schools that do utilize this form of emergency procedures communication did not always post them

in the same area of each classroom or notify all staff that they had them. One school' s Assistant

Principal conducting the Grand Jury' s tour was unaware of the flip charts, what they were, or where

they were located.

About one- half of the classrooms visited had some form of an emergency information packet

folder/ binder) and a few classrooms had emergency backpacks or tubs with paperwork and

supplies to be taken in the event of an emergency.

A majority of the schools visited had window coverings, consisting of vertical or horizontal blinds,

but some were old and in disrepair. If the classroom had uncovered door windows, they would

20

790



need to be shielded in the event of a lockdown. Two of the schools utilized a magnetized shield that

was the same size as the window to slide over to cover.

Commendations

New Hope Elementary School District covered its windows with magnets that had emergency

procedures printed on them, serving two purposes.

lefferson Unified utilized very creative ways to obscure windows with the use of long roller shades

installed above the double glass doors to the library. They also used emergency kits in the

classrooms and found an inexpensive and effective way to use a magnet to allow the door to be
open while still locked.

Common Areas

The Grand Jury considered the common areas ( cafeterias, gymnasiums, libraries, and multipurpose

rooms) to be the most dangerous place to be during an emergency. The majority of the common
areas lacked adequate evacuation route signs. Some schools had no evacuation route signs, some

had one or two posted near a door, but not consistently at every door. Most had other safety
equipment available, such as fire extinguishers and Automated External Defibrillators ( AEDs). One

school' s AED box was open and empty. These observed deficiencies are particularly significant when

the public is using the space during non- school hours.

Campuses Overall

One expert emphasized the importance of campus culture, "[ a] nd just looking at the overall climate

of the school... school engagement, school ownership, school pride, school artwork and items that

children make and contribute that are part and present in the overall school."

Most schools visited were well- maintained and tidy. Whether they were built recently or decades

ago, the majority of campuses toured showed the care and pride of the staff that worked there and

the students who attended. Some were freshly painted, had newly planted landscaping, new bark

spread out, new picnic tables, and new shade structures, or were very neatly maintained. One older

campus desperately needed attention. The ramps to the portable classrooms were in disrepair, and

the playground was in poor condition, with uneven surfaces creating puddles and tripping hazards.
However, the campus that was in this state of disrepair had the best and brightest bulletin boards

scattered throughout campus, each with a different theme, showing pride in their campus.

Special Considerations

Of the school campuses toured, there were several special considerations that should be addressed

in the individual site' s CSSP. Several school sites were rurally located, resulting in emergency

responders having a much longer response time. One campus was located in an area prone to

flooding. Another campus was located much lower than the adjacent interstate, and a vehicle

accident on the interstate could become airborne, potentially landing on the field of the school.

21

791



One campus was located directly next to a major train track, and while the tour was being

conducted, two trains went by. The Grand Jury asked the tour leader about planned emergency

responses to train derailments and was informed that none existed.

Reladonships

The campuses visited represented a spectrum of relationship- based leadership and school culture.

A majority of the campuses visited appeared to have a positive school culture. Many administrators

knew one or more children' s names and conversed with them, sincerely engaging with students. At

one campus of 700 students, the Principal knew the staff, students, and parents/ guardians. At the

other end of the relationship spectrum, an Assistant Principal leading the Grand Jury tour seemed

disinterested and disengaged with both the tour and student interactions, only stopping to ask a

student why she was out of class.

Findings

F4. 1 Not all school sites have check- in procedures in place that were followed consistently,

posing serious security threats.

F4. 2 Perimeter fencing or an " open" campus each pose security challenges and require careful

consideration to mitigate security shortcomings.

F4. 3 Evacuation maps that are posted inconsistently or do not adequately illustrate evacuation

routes cause confusion and prolonged evacuation times, making staff and students vulnerable to
harm in both classrooms and common areas.

F4. 4 Inconsistent door- locking policies and failure to follow policies create opportunities for

perpetrators to enter classrooms and common areas.

F4. 5 Most school sites utilized flip charts that identify steps to be taken in case of emergencies,

however, none of the sites posted them in all rooms used by students, staff, parents/ guardians, and

the general public.

F4. 6 Insufficient window coverings give perpetrators a clear line of sight, creating risk for
students and staff.

F4. 7 Most school sites, regardless of age, were well maintained and showed school pride. One

school site demonstrated multiple maintenance shortcomings, which can negatively impact safety.

F4. 8 Good relationships among administrators, certificated and classified staff, parents, and

students are vital to promptly identify and address areas of concern, particularly regarding student

behavior. Relationships varied greatly from campus to campus.

F4. 9 The culture of safety is best developed by public transparency and involvement by all

parties. Few of the school sites visited by the Grand lury demonstrated meaningful public

engagement in safety planning.

22

792



Recommendations

The 2022- 2023 San Joaquin County Grand lury recommends that the County Office of Education

and the 14 school districts in the County implement school safety programs that require the

following actions:

R4. 1 By October 1, 2023, each school site implement an access control program that consistently

includes verifying visitors' identity and collection of any issued badge before the visitor leaves the
school site.

R4. 2 By March 1, 2024, districts develop, adopt, and implement a plan for effective perimeter
control of access at all school sites.

R4. 3 By September 1, 2023, all school sites post evacuation maps clearly showing routes from the

You Are Here" perspective be prominently posted at each entry or exit door location in both
classrooms and common areas.

R4. 4 By March 1, 2024, districts develop, adopt, and implement a plan for door- locking policies to
secure classroom and common area doors.

R4. 5 By March 1, 2024, all school sites post flip charts or similar summaries of emergency

procedures be posted in all classrooms and common areas.

R4. 6 By March 1, 2024, all school sites ensure window coverings are provided for all windows,

thereby not allowing a perpetrator a clear line of sight into a classroom or common area.

R4. 7 By October 1, 2023, the Board of Trustees, during a public meeting, review and discuss the

findings and recommendations of the 2022- 2023 San Joaquin County Civil Grand Jury report, Case
0322— School Safety in San Joaquin County: Developing a Culture of Safety.

Conclusion

The Grand lury appreciates the cooperation of all public school districts in San loaquin County,
along with the San Joaquin County Office of Education.

School districts in San Joaquin County have taken important steps to make schools safer, but more

can and should be done to reduce safety threats. While no one can predict an emergency, proper
training, drills, plans, and creating a positive school culture, including a strong safety culture, can
best mitigate tragic outcomes from those emergencies.

Parents/ guardians can help make schools safer by:

Asking if school emergency guidelines are tested and exercised.

Determining whether your school has policies and procedures on security and emergency
preparedness.

Examining access to school campuses.

23

793



Making sure accurate and timely safety information is shared.

Disclaimers

Grand Jury reports are based on documentary evidence and the testimony of sworn or admonished
witnesses, not on conjecture or opinion. However, the Grand Jury is precluded by law from
disclosing such evidence except upon the specific approval of the Presiding Judge of the Superior

Court, or another judge appointed by the Presiding Judge ( Penal Code Section 911, 924. 1( a) and
929). Similarly, the Grand Jury is precluded by law from disclosing the identity of witnesses except
upon an order of the court for narrowly defined purposes ( Penal Code Sections 924. 2 and 929).

Response Requirements

California Penal Code Sections 933 and 933. 05 require that specific responses to all findings and

recommendations contained in this report be submitted to the Presiding Judge of the San Joaquin
County Superior Court within 90 days of receipt of the report.

Note: If the responder is an elected official, the response must be sent within 60 days of receipt.

Public School Boards and law Enforcement

RESPONDING AGENCY RECOMMENDATIONS

Superintendent, San Joaquin F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 1- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

County Office of Education R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 1- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Banta Unified School District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Escalon Unified School District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Jefferson School District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Lammersville Unified School F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

District R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Lincoln Unified School District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Linden Unified School District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Lodi Unified School District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4.9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Manteca Unified Schoo)     F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

District R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

24

794



RESPONDING AGENCY RECOMMENDATIONS

New Hope Elementary School F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

District R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

New Jerusalem School District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Oak View Elementary School F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

District R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Ripon Unified School District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Stockton Unified School F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

District R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Tracy Unified Schoo) District F2. 1- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 9

R2. 1- 2. 3, 2. 5- 2. 11, 3. 2- 3. 9, & 4. 1- 4. 7

Escalon Police Department F2. 4

R2. 4

Lathrop Police Department F2. 4

R2. 4

Lodi Police Department F2. 4

R2. 4

Manteca Police Department F2. 4

R2. 4

Ripon Police Department F2. 4

R2. 4

Stockton Police Department F2. 4

R2. 4

Tracy Police Department F2. 4

R2. 4

San Joaquin County Sheriff F2. 4

R2. 4

25

795



Mail or hand deliver a hard copy of the response to:

Honorable Michael D. Coughlan, Presiding Judge

San Joaquin County Superior Court
180 E Weber Ave, Suite 1306J

Stockton, California 95202

Also, please email a copy of the response to Mr. Irving Jimenez, Staff Secretary to the Grand Jury, at
grandjury@sjcourts. org_

26

796



Attachment B

t of
DRAFT

y

Of,fice of the City Attor' rtey 390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, C 95330

Phone ( 209) 941- 7235

www.ci.lathrop. ca.us

September 12, 2023

Honorable Michael D. Coughlan, Presiding Judge
San Joaquin County Superior Court
180 East Weber Avenue, Suite 1306J

Stockton, CA 95202

Re:     Response to Grand Jury Final Report Case No. 0322 ( 2022/ 2023).
Report received by the City of Lathrop on June 28, 2023

Honorable Michael D. Coughlan,

Pursuant to California Penal Code Section 933 and 933. 05, this letter is to inform you
that on September 11, 2023 at a regularly scheduled City Council Meeting, the City Council of
the City of Lathrop, as the responding agency, reviewed and approved the above referenced
Grand Jury Final Report and directed me to write this letter of response on their behalf.

The 2022/ 2023 Grand Jury Final Report for case no. 0322 found that:

Grand Jury Findin:  " Many district CSSP' s show a lack of
meaningful collaboration between districts and local law enforcement agencies,

causing confusing and chaos during an emergency."

Grand Jury Recommendation R2. 4: ` By December 15, 2023, each law
enforcement agency in San Joaquin County meaningfully collaborate and approve
the updated CSSP for school sites within that agency' s jurisdiction."

City Council Response:   The City of Lathrop City Council, as the
responding agency,  partially disagrees with Grand Jury Finding F2. 4 and
Recommendation R2. 4 and would like to further clarify that staff confirmed that
the Lathrop Police Department has four ( 4) School Resource Officers ( SROs)

assigned to the seven   ( 7)   schools within the City' s jurisdiction.     The

recommendation by the Grand Jury has been implemented as all SROs work
collaboratively with school administrators and the Lathrop Police Department has
approved all Comprehensive School Safety Plans ( CSSP) for each of the seven ( 7)
schools.   All SROs are required to be familiar with and regularly work with
school personnel pursuant to said CSSP.  Table- top exercises and practice drills
by SROs pursuant to said CSSP are scheduled for completion at each school site
by December 15, 2023.

797



Respectfully submitted,

Salvador V. Navarrete

City Attorney

S VN/ trb

Cc:  Irving Jimenez, Staff Secretary to the Grand Jury, via email gra ldaury@sjcourts.or

2

798



ITEM 5. 4

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PROVIDE DIRECTION ON LATHROP ROAD

RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAY RECONSTRUCTION AND

CREATE CIP GG 24- 27

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Creating CIP GG 24- 27 Lathrop
Road Residential Driveway Reconstruction and

Approve Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

City Council created CIP GG- 24- 27 for the widening of Lathrop Road from two ( 2)

lanes to four  ( 4)  lanes between Harlan Road and 5th Street/ Woodfield Drive.

Construction on this project began in the summer of 2017 and was completed in the
summer of 2018.

On August 14, 2023 City Council requested that an item be brought back to discuss
the installation of a residential driveway at 570 Lathrop Road.    Staff visited the

property, held a meeting with the owner, and identified the scope of work required
to construct a new transition.   Staff estimates that the construction cost for this

project will be $ 20, 000.

Staff is requesting that City Council provide direction and approve the creation of CIP
GG 24- 27, Lathrop Road Residential Driveway Reconstruction. Staff is also requesting
the approval of a budget amendment allocating $ 20, 000 for construction purposes

utilizing General Fund Streets Reserves.

BACKGROUND:

Prior to, and during, construction staff coordinated with all adjacent property owners
to transition the new roadway improvements to their existing driveway
improvements. These transitions were performed by the City' s contractor and were
included in the project cost authorized by Council.  Most transitions occurred on

private property and required the property owner to sign a  Right of Entry"
Agreement. The Agreement is needed to enter the property, describe the scope of
the work, define the duration, and rights and responsibilities of both parties.

The property owner of 570 Lathrop Road refused to sign the Agreement multiple
times.  As a result, the City contractor was unable to transition from the roadway to
the existing driveway. The transition was constructed entirely on City property and
was limited in space due to Americans with Disabilities Act ( ADA) requirements.

799



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP GG 24- 27 LATHROP ROAD RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAY

RECONSTRUCTION

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Approving the creation of CIP GG 24- 27 will allow the City to begin construction
efforts including bid solicitation, contract execution and construction.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff is requesting the approval of a budget amendment allocating  $ 20, 000 for

construction purposes utilizing General Fund Streets Reserves as follows:

Decrease Street Reserves 20, 000

1010- 251- 03- 00

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 20, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 GG 24- 27 20, 000

Increase Expenditures

3010- 8000- 420- 12- 00 GG 24- 27 20, 000

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Creating CIP GG 24- 27 Lathrop Road Residential Driveway
Reconstruction and Approving Related Budget Amendment

B.  Exhibit - 570 Lathrop Road

800



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

SEPTEMBER li, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP GG 24- 27:    LATHROP ROAD RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAY

RECONSTRUCTION

APPROVALS:

9/Sa 
Cari James Date

Finance Di ctor

q - 5 • ZoZ3

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

51
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

i•s •Z3
S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

801



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP CREATING

CIP GG 24- 27 LATHROP ROAD RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAY RECONSTRUCTION

AND APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,  City Council created CIP PS 02- 24 for the widening of Lathrop
Road from two   ( 2)   lanes to four  ( 4)   lanes between Harlan Road and 5th

Street/ Woodfield Drive; and

WHEREAS, construction on this project began in the summer of 2017 and was
completed in the summer of 2018; and

WHEREAS,  prior to,  and during,  construction staff coordinated with all

adjacent property owners to transition the new roadway improvements to their
existing driveway improvements; and

WHEREAS, the property owner of 570 Lathrop Road refused to sign a Right
of Entry Agreement on multiple occasions which would have allowed the City
contractor to construct transition improvements; and

WHEREAS,  on August 14,  2023 City Council requested that an item be
brought back to discuss the installation of a residential driveway at 570 Lathrop Road;
and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting that City Council approve the creation of CIP
GG 24- 27 Lathrop Road Residential Driveway Reconstruction; and

WHEREAS, to initiate construction efforts staff is requesting the approval of a
budget amendment allocating  $ 20, 000 for construction purposes utilizing General
Fund Streets Reserves as follows:

Decrease Street Reserves:

1010- 251- 03- 00 20, 000

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 20, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 GG 24- 27 20, 000

Increase Expenditures

3010- 8000- 420- 12- 00 GG 24- 27 20, 000

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) GG 24-

27 Lathrop Road Residential Driveway Reconstruction; and

802



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of September, 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROV AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

803



ATTACHMENT

r. s     

v:_

a

u.:

b
r„r

p  ,     ,,$..

Proposed area

of work

r    F

t
F

p. y_`.. s

y  ;   
h   

r,

w    .
r':''       

r:      

t

570 Lathrop Road m     ''

x      .,        *      

v _       
v   :  x   #,

x      :

t

x     

v 

d      , .

m

Ii 

804


	2023-09-11 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda
	MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 11, 2023
	AGENDA

	2023-09-11 Item 4.2 Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of July 10, 2023
	2023-09-11 Item 4.3 Table Sponsorship at Stockton Chamber of Commerce 's 56th Annual Industrial Barbeque
	2023-09-11 Item 4.4 Economic Development Related Memberships and Sponsorships
	2023-09-11 Item 4.5 Planning Fee Waiver Request by Global Seva Foundation (TUP-23-95)
	2023-09-11 Item 4.6 Authorize Acceptance of the Step Grant Fund Award from the State of California Office of Traffic Safety
	2023-09-11 Item 4.7 Approve 2023 Facility Fee Waiver Request for Mitra USA
	2023-09-11 Item 4.8 Approve 2023 Facility Fee Waiver Request for Lathrop Little League
	2023-09-11 Item 4.9 Approve Out of State Travel for the 2023 National League of Cities City Summit
	2023-09-11 Item 4.10 Approve Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement Svcs for the Annual Pumpkin Maze Event at Dell'Osso Farms
	2023-09-11 Item 4.11 Approve Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement Svcs for the American Heart Association's 209 Heart & Stroke Walk Event
	2023-09-11 Item 4.12 Approve Out of State Travel for the Police Department Records Supervisor to Attend the RIMSCON 2023 Conference
	2023-09-11 Item 4.13 Approve Purchase of a Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Spray Rig for the Parks, Recreation, and Maintenance Svcs Dept
	2023-09-11 Item 4.14 Approve Wastewater Treatment Capacity Transfer from South Lathrop Land, LLC to Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC through the City
	2023-09-11 Item 4.15 Approve Amendment No. 1 with Dokken Engineering for the Harlan Rd Realignment at Roth Rd, CIP PS 14-04
	2023-09-11 Item 4.16  Accept Public Imp. Constructed by Amerine Systems, Inc for City Hall Landscape Renovations, CIP GG 21-09
	2023-09-11 Item 4.17 Accept Public Imp. Constructed by Tim Paxin's Pacific Excavation for Streetlights Assoc'd with Louise Ave. Landscape, CIP GG 21-15
	2023-09-11 Item 4.18 Award Service Contract to Sweeping Corporation of America of California for Street Sweeping Svcs
	2023-09-11 Item 4.19 Ratify City Manager Approval of Construction Contract with Luma Engineering, Inc. for City Facilities ADA Imp., CIP GG 23-14
	2023-09-11 Item 4.20 Approve FM, CFD Annexation, and SIA for 105 Lots in Tract 4155 Unit 1 within West Village District of R.I
	2023-09-11 Item 4.21 Approve FM, CFD Annexation, and SIA for 68 Lots in Tract 4172 Village 1 within West Village District of R.I
	2023-09-11 Item 4.22 Approve Consolidated Joint Community Facilities Agreement with River Islands Public Finance Authority
	2023-09-11 Item 4.23 Approve the Revised River Islands Phase Two Parks and Open Space Master Plan.
	2023-09-11 Item 5.1 P.H. to Consider Adopting Ord Amending the LMC by Adding New Sec. 2.36.110 Exceptions to Purchase Proceedures and Limits
	2023-09-11 Item 5.2 Adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for CIP PW 22-36, Aquifer Storage and Recovery
	2023-09-11 Item 5.3 Grand Jury Report Response
	2023-09-11 Item 5.4 Provide Direction on Lathrop Rd Residential Driveway Reconstruction and Create CIP GG 24-27



